
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center - Fleming Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Jun 25 2020 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (None)

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize Social Studies Teachers of the Year

2. Recognize 2019-2020 Retirees

Presenters

School Showcase (None)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

3. C1 - Minutes of Workshop on May 14, 2020; Workshop on May 26, 2020; Regular Meeting on June 4, 2020

2020 May 14 Workshop.pdf

2020 May 26 Workshop.pdf

2020 June 4 Regular Meeting.pdf

School Board Member

4. C2 - Approve employment contract for Kenneth Wagner, Chief of Police (Mrs. Studdard)

Human Resources

5. C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Instruction-Academic Services

6. C4 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Approve Modifications to the 2019-2020 Student
Progression Plan

Student Progression Plan 2020 - 2021 - Redlined DRAFT.pdf

Page 1 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23467
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23485
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23468
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-may-14-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-may-26-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-june-4-regular-meeting_2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24504
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23483
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23479
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23479
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/student-progression-plan-2020-2021-redlined-draft.pdf


Rationale for 20-21 SPP Changes.pdf

Student Progression Plan 2020 - 2021 - Un-Redlined DRAFT.pdf

Approval to Advertise and Public Hearing to Adopt Student Progression Plan 20-21.pdf

7. C5 - MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING Between Clay County District Schools, Florida and Pace Center for
Girls, Inc.

July 2020 (June 25,20) PACE Contract 2020-21.pdf

8. C6 - Florida Virtual School - Amendment 3 to 2018-2021 Franchise Agreement - Appendix G - COVID-19 Student
Support Project

200128 Fl Virtual Amend 3.pdf

9. C7 - Florida Virtual School - Pricing Amendment 2 to Franchise Agreement for State of Florida School district with
School Board of Clay County - Appendix A

200127 Fl Virtual Amend 2.pdf

10. C8 - Approval for the Purchase of Edgenuity Virtual Instruction Curriculum 6-12th grades

200126Edgeuityfinal.pdf

11. C9 - Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and AMI Kids

July 2020 (June 25, 20) - AMI Kids Contract.pdf

12. C10 - Approval for the Purchase of K12 Florida LLC Virtual Instruction Curriculum for elementary curriculum usage.

200125K12 Fl Agreement Final.pdf

Instruction-Career and Technical Education

13. C11 - CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trips

CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trips.pdf

ffa-out-of-state-and-overnight-field-trips_1 (1).pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

14. C12 -  Professional Learning Catalog 2020-21

Professional Learning Catalog 2020-21.pdf

15. C13 - Approval of Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling (LETRS) for Reading Endorsement

200137 Voyager Sopris Learning.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

16. C14 - Healthcare Services Agreement

Contract Review Form & Contract with Health Hero Florida.pdf

Business Affairs

17. C15 - Approve the 2020-2021 District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance renewal submitted by Arthur J.
Gallagher & Co. (broker)

Core360 PPT_Program Structure_FINAL.pdf

Clay County District Schools Property  Casualty Premium Summary 2020xlsx.pdf

Page 2 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/rationale-for-20-21-spp-changes.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/student-progression-plan-2020-2021-un-redlined-draft.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-and-public-hearing-to-adopt-student-progression-plan-20-21.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23480
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23480
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/july-2020-june-2520-pace-contract-2020-21.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23481
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23481
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200128-fl-virtual-amend-3.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23482
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23482
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200127-fl-virtual-amend-2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23487
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200126edgeuityfinal.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24497
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/july-2020-june-25-20-ami-kids-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24500
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200125k12-fl-agreement-final.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23470
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/cte-out-of-state-and-overnight-field-trips.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/ffa-out-of-state-and-overnight-field-trips_1-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24488
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/professional-learning-catalog-2020-21.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24494
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200137-voyager-sopris-learning.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23473
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contract-review-form-contract-with-health-hero-florida.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=22442
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=22442
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/core360-ppt_program-structure_final.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/clay-county-district-schools-property-casualty-premium-summary-2020xlsx.pdf


18. C16 - Approve Advertisement and Notice of Public Hearing to adopt proposed revisions to School Board Policy
5.02A, Business Affairs Purchasing, 5.03B Business Affairs School Activity Accounts, and 5.02C, Business Affairs Use
of School Buildings, Grounds and Equipment

Internal Account policy 5.03B.pdf

CCSB - 5.02 Business Affairs_Purchasing_Federal Grant Funds as of 6_9_2020_(DRAFT).pdf

Proposed 5.02C BAD Facility Use Policy.pdf

Approval to Advertise Public Hearing SB Policies 5.02A, 5.03B, 5.02C.pdf

19. C17 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2020-2021

Allocation Summary - June 25, 2020.pdf

20. C18 - Approve Advertisement and Notice of Public Hearing for Revisions to the Clay County District Schools Use of
Facilities/Use of Grounds Manual

NEW Application-Agreement - Updated 6-2020 (7).pdf

Approval to Advertise Notice of Public Hearing Use of Facilities & Grounds Manual.pdf

21. C19 - Approve Advertisement and Notice of Public Hearing on Revisions to the Clay County District Schools Internal
Accounts Manual

Internal Accounts Manual.pdf

Approval to Advertise Notice of Public Hearing Internal Accounts Manual.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

22. C20 - Monthly Financial Reports for May, 2020

May 2020 Board Monthly Financial Report.pdf

May 2020 Board Monthly Property Report.pdf

23. C21 - Budget Amendment for Month Ending May 31, 2020

Business Affairs-Property

24. C22 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - June, 2020

Deletion-Report-June, 2020.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

25. C23 - BID to be Awarded

Operations-Facilities

26. C24 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 6.25.20.pdf

27. C25 - Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights Elementary School Intercom/PA System

KHE Intercom.PA Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

28. C26 - Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights High School Intercom/PA System

KHHS Intercom.PA Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

29. C27 - Change Order #1 for Lakeside Junior High School Parking Lot Renovation

Page 3 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24503
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24503
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24503
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/internal-account-policy-503b_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/ccsb-502-business-affairs_purchasing_federal-grant-funds-as-of-6_9_2020_draft.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proposed-502c-bad-facility-use-policy_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-public-hearing-sb-policies-502a-503b-502c.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23469
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/allocation-summary-june-25-2020.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24506
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24506
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/new-application-agreement-updated-6-2020-7.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-notice-of-public-hearing-use-of-facilities-grounds-manual.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24505
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24505
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/internal-accounts-manual.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-notice-of-public-hearing-internal-accounts-manual.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24486
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2020-board-monthly-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2020-board-monthly-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24502
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23472
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-june-2020.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23486
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24487
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-62520.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24489
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khe-intercompa-substantial-final-completion.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24490
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khhs-intercompa-substantial-final-completion_2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24491


LSJH Parking Lot Renovation CO 1.pdf

30. C28 - Change Order #3 (Direct Purchasing) for Doctors Inlet Elementary School Cafeteria Expansion

DIS Cafeteria Expansion CO 3.pdf

31. C29 - Substantial and Final Completion of Rideout Elementary School Intercom/PA System

ROE Intercom.PA Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

32. C30 - Substantial and Final Completion of Thunderbolt Elementary School Intercom/PA System

TBE Intercom.PA Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

33. C31 - District Renovation/Remodeling Operations Building 1 First Floor Contract Award

Bid Tabulation C-30-19 20.pdf

34. C32 - 2019-20 S.R.E.F. Casualty, Safety, Sanitation, Relocatable, and Fire Safety Inspection

Elementary SREF Inspections.pdf

Elementary SREF Inspections Cont..pdf

High School SREF Inspections.pdf

35. C33 - Change Order #1 for Clay High School Erosion Control/Stormwater Repair

Change Order #1 for Clay High School Erosion Control Stormwater Repair.pdf

36. C34 - Option Contract for Roderico Property

RODERIGO OPTION CONTRACT.docxFINAL (1).docx FINAL AGAIN.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update

CESPA Update

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

37. D1 - Human Resources Special Action

Business Affairs-Purchasing

38. D2 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised proposed revisions to School Board Policy 5.02A, Business Affairs
Purchasing

CCSB - 5.02 Business Affairs_Purchasing_FEDERAL GRANT MONEY (1).docx FINAL (1).pdf

Approval to Advertise Notice of Public Hearing SB Policy Purchasing 5.02A.pdf

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lsjh-parking-lot-renovation-co-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24492
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/dis-cafeteria-expansion-co-3.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24493
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/roe-intercompa-substantial-final-completion.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24495
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/tbe-intercompa-substantial-final-completion.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24496
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/bid-tabulation-c-30-19-20.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24498
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections-cont.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/high-school-sref-inspections.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24499
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-for-clay-high-school-erosion-control-stormwater-repair.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=24501
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/roderigo-option-contractdocxfinal-1docx-final-again.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23484
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23474
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=23474
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/ccsb-502-business-affairs_purchasing_federal-grant-money-1docx-final-1_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-notice-of-public-hearing-sb-policy-purchasing-502a.pdf


School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize Social Studies Teachers of the Year

Description
These awards, sponsored by the Florida Council for the Social Studies, recognize teachers who facilitate and inspire student
learning and creativity in grades K-12. 
Karen Steinmetz (LAE), Clay County’s nominee for FCSS’s Outstanding Social Studies Teacher of the Year in the Elementary
Division
Cynthia Cheatwood (OPJH), Clay County’s nominee for FCSS’s Outstanding Social Studies Teacher of the Year in the Middle
School Division
Keisha Gordon (CVA), Clay County’s nominee for FCSS’s Outstanding Social Studies Teacher of the Year in the Senior High
Division
Melissa Fisher (OHS), Clay County’s nominee for Prentice-Hall’s Excellence in Teaching History Award
Lily Peterson (OVE), Clay County’s nominee for Holt-McDougal’s Warren Tracy Beginning Teacher Award

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Recognition Only

Contact
Roger Dailey, 336-6904, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net.
Kelly Watt,904-336-6970, kelly.watt@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
N/A

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize 2019-2020 Retirees

Description
The Clay County School Board recognizes district employees who retired in the 2019-2020 school year by offering
congratulations and expressing appreciation for their years of faithful service to the district.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
For recognition only.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Recognition.  No action required.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, (904) 336-6701, brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net;
Catherine Richardson, Director of Support Personnel Services, (904) 336-6711, catherine.richardson@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
NONE

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of Workshop on May 14, 2020; Workshop on May 26, 2020; Regular Meeting on June 4, 2020

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2020 May 14 Workshop.pdf

2020 May 26 Workshop.pdf

2020 June 4 Regular Meeting.pdf

Page 7 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-may-14-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-may-26-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-june-4-regular-meeting_2.pdf


Page 8 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 9 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 10 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 11 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 12 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 13 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 14 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 15 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 16 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Approve employment contract for Kenneth Wagner, Chief of Police (Mrs. Studdard)

Description
The School Board has discussed providing Chief of Police Kenneth Wagner with a three (3) year contract in order to provide the
position with employment security.  The attached contract provides that security and also in designed for his position as a police
officer rather than an education administrator.   

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will provide a contract tailored to the office of Chief of Police and will be for three (3) years. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve employment contract as submitted.

Contact
Carol Y. Studdard, Chairman; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
Listed paygrade, over three years.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 17 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
 
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 18 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing to Approve Modifications to the 2019-2020 Student Progression Plan

Description
Florida Statute 1008.25 requires each school board to establish a comprehensive program for student progression. The review
and adoption of this Student Progression Plan (SPP) will allow the district to incorporate required legislative changes and the
recommendations to ensure this document best supports the district's work with students.

Gap Analysis
The district's Student Progression Plan ensures that the required program of study, placement, promotion, reporting, retention,
and assessment procedures used within the district are comprehensive in meeting the needs of individual students. The 2019-
2020 SPP was reviewed and amended. The newly added language is in accordance with state law. Without approval of the
proposed changes to the 2019-2020 SPP, the district will not be in compliance with Florida Statute.

Previous Outcomes
The district is currently following the 2019-2020 Student Progression Plan. This plan does not include the most recent changes to
legislation. The revised plan will ensure the implementation of statutory requirements related to student progression.

Expected Outcomes
In accordance with state statute, an advertisement on the proposed revisions to the 2019-2020 Student Progression Plan will be
made public and, after 30 days, a public hearing and a vote will be held to give consideration to the proposed modifications. The
consideration of these changes will allow the district to be in compliance with legislation.

Strategic Plan Goal
1.1 Develop a high quality and aligned instructional system
1.3 Prepare all students to be full option graduates who are prepared for college, eligible to enlist in military services, or able to
compete in the workforce.

Recommendation
That the School Board approve the advertisement of revisions and notice of public hearing for the Student Progression Plan 2020
- 2021.  

Contact
Roger Dailey, 904-336-6904, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Student Progression Plan 2020 - 2021 - Redlined DRAFT.pdf

Rationale for 20-21 SPP Changes.pdf

Student Progression Plan 2020 - 2021 - Un-Redlined DRAFT.pdf

Approval to Advertise and Public Hearing to Adopt Student Progression Plan 20-21.pdf

Page 19 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/student-progression-plan-2020-2021-redlined-draft.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/rationale-for-20-21-spp-changes.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/student-progression-plan-2020-2021-un-redlined-draft.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-and-public-hearing-to-adopt-student-progression-plan-20-21.pdf


 

1 
 

  

 

STUDENT 
PROGRESSION 

PLAN 
 

2019 20- 202021 
 

ADDISON G. DAVISDAVID S. BROSKIE 
SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF CLAY COUNTY 
 
 

     JANICE KEREKES  DISTRICT 1 
     CAROL STUDDARD  DISTRICT 2 
     TINA BULLOCK  DISTRICT 3 

            MARY BOLLA   DISTRICT 4 
     ASHLEY GILHOUSEN  DISTRICT 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 20 of 1019

DRAFT



 

2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................. 7 

FLORIDA STATE STANDARDS ..................................................................................... 7 

GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR PROMOTION, SPECIAL ASSIGNMENT AND 
PLACEMENT..................................................................................................................... 7 

STATEWIDE STUDENT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM ................................................... 8 

GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR DROPOUT PREVENTION PROGRAMS AND 
ACADEMIC INTERVENTION PROGRAMS .................................................................. 9 

MILITARY FAMILIES AND TRANSFERS .................................................................. 11 

TRANSFER OF EDUCATIONAL RECORDS AND ENROLLMENT ..................... 11 

ABSENCE AS RELATED TO DEPLOYMENT ACTIVITIES .................................. 12 

GRADUATION OF CHILDREN FROM MILITARY FAMILIES ............................ 12 

ELIGIBILITY ............................................................................................................... 13 

OVERSIGHT, ENFORCEMENT AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION ........................... 13 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION (K-6) ............................................................................. 14 

ADMISSION AND DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS .................................................... 14 

TRANSFER DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS ............................................................... 15 

ELEMENTARY INSTRUCTION ................................................................................ 17 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND RECESS ............................................................. 17 

REGULAR PROGRAM ........................................................................................... 18 

HOMEWORK (SDCC Policy 4.40) ......................................................................... 18 

MULTI-TIERED SYSTEM OF SUPPORTS/RESPONSE TO INTERVENTION 
PLAN/PROGRESS MONITORING ........................................................................ 19 

READING DEFICIENCIES AND PARENTAL NOTIFICATION (F.S.1008.25) ... 23 

ATTENDANCE ........................................................................................................ 24 

ASSESSMENT (F.S. 1008) ...................................................................................... 28 

ELIGIBILITY FOR ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT ................................................... 29 

FLORIDA STANDARDS ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT FOR STUDENTS WITH 
SIGNIFICANT COGNITIVE DISABILITIES ........................................................ 29 

GUIDELINES FOR EXEMPTION OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS 
(ELL)......................................................................................................................... 31 

REPORTING PUPIL PROGRESS ............................................................................... 31 

REPORT CARDS - F.S. 1003.33 ............................................................................. 31 

REPORT CARDS K-1 .............................................................................................. 32 

REPORT CARDS 2-6............................................................................................... 32 

HONOR ROLL (GRADES 2-6 ONLY) ................................................................... 33 

Page 21 of 1019

DRAFT



 

3 
 

ELEMENTARY GRADE PLACEMENT K-6 ............................................................ 33 

MULTIPLE BIRTH SIBLINGS/CLASSROOM PLACEMENT (s.1003.06, F.S.). 34 

PROMOTION ........................................................................................................... 34 

STANDARDS FOR MID-YEAR PROMOTION OF RETAINED THIRD 
GRADERS – RULE 6A-1.094222 ........................................................................... 35 

DETERMINATION REGARDING PROMOTION ................................................ 36 

ACCELERATION .................................................................................................... 36 

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES ........................................................................ 37 

REMEDIATION ........................................................................................................... 37 

REMEDIATION K-6................................................................................................ 37 

SECONDARY SCHOOL REFORM (TO INCLUDE SIXTH GRADE)................. 38 

SIXTH GRADE FAST TRACK PROGRAM .......................................................... 39 

RETENTION ................................................................................................................ 39 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................ 39 

MANDATORY GRADE 3 RETENTION AND SUPPORT (F.S. 1008.25) ........... 40 

EXEMPTION FOR GOOD CAUSE ............................................................................ 41 

GOOD CAUSE EXEMPTIONS FOR GRADE 3 .................................................... 41 

PRINCIPAL’S RESPONSIBILITY – GOOD CAUSE (F.S. 1008.25).................... 43 

PROMOTION (K-2, 4-6).......................................................................................... 43 

EXTENDED DAY PROGRAMS................................................................................. 44 

DEFINITION ............................................................................................................ 44 

STUDENT ELIGIBILITY FOR ACADEMIC TUTORING AND SUMMER 
READING CAMP .................................................................................................... 45 

REQUIRED PROGRAM OF STUDY K-6 .................................................................. 45 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS AVAILABLE ....................................................................... 46 

TITLE I BASIC READING AND MATHEMATICS ACADEMIC SERVICES ... 46 

VIRTUAL SCHOOL (F.S. 1002.45) ........................................................................ 46 

CVA STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY ................................................. 46 

VOLUNTARY PRE-KINDERGARTEN PROGRAM (VPK) ................................ 47 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS (ELL) .......................................................... 47 

DROPOUT PREVENTION AND ACADEMIC INTERVENTION PROGRAMS 48 

MULTI-TIER SYSTEM OF SUPPORT ..................................................................... 48 

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION .............................................................. 48 

HOSPITAL/HOMEBOUND ...................................................................................... 48 

SECONDARY EDUCATION .......................................................................................... 49 

Page 22 of 1019

DRAFT



 

4 
 

ARTICULATED ACCELERATION ........................................................................... 49 

ASSESSMENT EXEMPTION ..................................................................................... 50 

ATTENDANCE ............................................................................................................ 50 

HABITUAL TRUANCY .......................................................................................... 51 

EXCUSED/UNEXCUSED ABSENCES ................................................................. 52 

BRIGHT FUTURES SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM .................................................... 54 

CALCULATING GRADES AND GRADE POINT AVERAGE ................................ 55 

CLAY VIRTUAL ACADEMY .................................................................................... 55 

STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY ........................................................ 56 

COLLEGE READY TEST SCORES ........................................................................... 57 

CORRESPONDENCE COURSES ............................................................................... 57 

COURSE SEQUENCING/JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL COURSE 
SEQUENCING/JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL .................................................................. 57 

COURSE SUBSTITUTIONS ....................................................................................... 58 

CREDIT ACCELERATION PROGRAM (CAP) ........................................................ 59 

DROPPING/TRANSFERRING FROM HONORS OR ADVANCED COURSES .... 60 

END-OF-COURSE (EOC) EXAMS ............................................................................ 60 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS (ELL) .............................................................. 62 

FLORIDA SEAL OF BILITERACY ........................................................................... 63 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE STUDENT GUIDELINES .................................................. 63 

FORGIVENESS “D” AND “F”.................................................................................... 65 

GRADING SCALE ...................................................................................................... 65 

GRADUATION EXERCISES/DIPLOMAS ................................................................ 66 

GRADUATION OPTIONS .......................................................................................... 67 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENT:  CPR TRAINING ............................................... 73 

HIV/AIDS ..................................................................................................................... 73 

HOME EDUCATION .................................................................................................. 74 

HONOR ROLL ............................................................................................................. 75 

INTERIM REPORTS ................................................................................................... 75 

INTERSCHOLASTIC PARTICIPATION ................................................................... 75 

MULTI-TIERED SYSTEM OF SUPPORTS/RESPONSE TO INTERVENTION 
PLAN/PROGRESS MONITORING ............................................................................ 76 

OFFENSES AGAINST INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ............................................ 78 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS ................................................................................ 79 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION ........................................................................................... 79 

Page 23 of 1019

DRAFT



 

5 
 

PROMOTION AND RETENTION .............................................................................. 79 

PROMOTION AND PLACEMENT OF JUNIOR HIGH STUDENTS ...................... 81 

PROMOTION AND PLACEMENT OF HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS..................... 82 

READING AND MATH REMEDIATION ................................................................. 83 

SCHEDULE CHANGES .............................................................................................. 84 

CLAY VIRTUAL ACADEMY - STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY ...... 84 

SEMESTER EXAMS ................................................................................................... 85 

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS ................................................................................... 85 

SUMMER SCHOOL .................................................................................................... 85 

TERMINATION OF SCHOOL PLACEMENT AT AGE 16 ...................................... 86 

TRANSFERRING STUDENT ..................................................................................... 87 

TRANSFER STUDENT PLACEMENT (Military Dependent Children) .................... 88 

CHANGE OF CLASS/COURSES OF CLAY COUNTY STUDENTS ...................... 89 

VALEDICTORIAN AND SALUTATORIAN RECOGNITION ................................ 90 

VOLUNTARY SERVICE HOURS ............................................................................. 90 

WEIGHTED GRADES ................................................................................................ 92 

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION ................................................................... 92 

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION .............................................................. 92 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES AND 
TYPES OF DIPLOMAS ............................................................................................... 92 

STANDARD DIPLOMA .............................................................................................. 93 

ELIGIBILITY ........................................................................................................... 93 

REQUIREMENTS FOR GENERAL STANDARDS DIPLOMAS ......................... 93 

WAIVER OF STATEWIDE, STANDARDIZED ASSESSMENT RESULTS FOR 
STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES ........................................................................ 94 

REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIFIC STANDARD DIPLOMAS............................. 95 

ESE SERVICES AND THE PROVISION OF FAPE .............................................. 95 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION ........................................................................ 95 

DEFERRAL OF GRADUATION/RECEIPT OF STANDARD HIGH SCHOOL 
DIPLOMA ................................................................................................................ 96 

GIFTED PROGRAM ................................................................................................... 96 

CLASSROOM ACCOMMODATIONS ...................................................................... 97 

DISTRICT AND STATEWIDE ASSESSMENT ACCOMMODATIONS ................. 98 

FLORIDA STANDARDS ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT FOR STUDENTS WITH 
SIGNIFICANT COGNITIVE DISABILITIES ............................................................ 98 

Page 24 of 1019

DRAFT



 

6 
 

HOSPITAL/HOMEBOUND ...................................................................................... 99 

ADULT EDUCATION ................................................................................................... 100 

ADULT HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA ........................................................................ 100 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................... 100 

EXPLANATION OF EACH SUBJECT AREA ......................................................... 101 

 

 

 
 

Page 25 of 1019

DRAFT



 

7 
 

INTRODUCTION   

The purpose of this document is to present to school personnel, parents, students, and other 
interested citizens the Board Rule the administrative procedures required in state 
legislation. It is the intent of the Legislature that each student’s progression from one grade 
to another be determined, in part, upon proficiency in reading, writing, science, and 
mathematics; that district school board policies facilitate such proficiency; and that each 
student and his or her parent be informed of that student’s academic progress. 
  
Florida Statute 1008.25 states:  
  
Each district school board shall establish a comprehensive plan for student progression 
which must provide for a student’s progression from one grade to another based on the 
student’s mastery of the standards. 

FLORIDA STATE STANDARDS   

Student Performance Standards in Florida are defined as the K-12 Academic Standards for 
the State of Florida, inclusive of the Next Generation Sunshine State Standards, and 
establish the core content of the curricula to be taught and specify the core content 
knowledge and skills that K-12 public school students are expected to acquire. The 
standards are rigorous and reflect the knowledge and skills students need for success in 
college and careers. The standards and benchmarks describe what students should know 
and be able to do at grade level progression for kindergarten to grade 8 and in grade bands 
for grade levels 9-12. 
 

GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR PROMOTION, SPECIAL 
ASSIGNMENT AND PLACEMENT  

Student promotion in the Clay County School District is based upon an evaluation of each 
student’s progress toward meeting the appropriate grade level expectations. Decisions 
regarding promotion and retention should be based on consideration of the following:  

  
Progress tests, classroom assignments, daily observations, standardized tests, state 
assessment, mastery of Course Performance Standards/Grade Level Expectations, 
district competencies and objectives and other data, as appropriate or required.  
Responsibility for determining each pupil’s level of performance and ability to 
function academically, socially and emotionally at the next academic level, is that 
of the classroom teacher, subject to the review and final approval of the principal.  
 
  

Students who do not satisfactorily achieve established objectives for the grade or course to 
which they are assigned, may be assigned to the same grade for the next school year or 

Page 26 of 1019

DRAFT



 

8 
 

given alternative assignment.  The areas of reading, writing, mathematics and science must 
be assessed with the use of District performance measures, testing, teacher observation, 
classroom assignments and state assessment measures.  The purpose is to provide 
assistance to students who do not meet district and state expectations for proficiency in 
ELA, science and mathematics and/or to improve behavior and attendance by way of 
interventions. The plan may include one or more of the following activities as considered 
appropriate by the school administration: Tier I (core supports); Tier II or Tier III 
interventions that may include, small group interventions within the school day; 
accommodations to support academic/behavioral/social emotional progress, extended day 
services; tutoring; scheduling of classes to focus on only a few subjects needing 
remediation or emphasis (ELA; science and/or mathematics); consideration for ESE 
services; behavior contracts, attendance improvement plans, and other remedial activities 
as determined by the school district.  A student’s level of proficiency in the areas of reading, 
writing, and mathematics must be reviewed and the student’s progression must be based, 
in part, upon this proficiency.  Science proficiency was added in 1999 with statewide 
measurement beginning in 2003.  Students not meeting desired levels of proficiency as 
determined by the district and/or as evidenced by the results of state mandated tests are to 
be provided remedial instruction designed to foster their progress toward mastery of 
essential concepts and required standards.  If mastery is not achieved, remediation may be 
provided through, but not limited to, one or more of the following: summer school 
coursework (grades 6-12) or intensive skill development, extended day or school year 
services/academic tutoring, parent tutorial programs, mentoring, contracted academic 
services (previously approved), modified curriculum, exceptional education services, class 
size reduction, and suspension of other curriculum offerings in areas other than reading, 
writing, and mathematics or in those subjects specifically required for graduation in grades 
9-12.  

  
Retention of students must be considered if the student has been provided remedial 
instruction and upon reassessment falls below determined cutoff points on the district 
criteria for retention or on assessments as prescribed by the state.  It is the intent of the 
school district that children should be retained as little as possible during the elementary 
and junior high school years.  Students must not be retained without documentation that 
remediation was provided in a timely and comprehensive manner as documentation by 
either the student’s RtI Plan or the student’s IEP.   

 
Students scoring a Level 1 on the statewide assessment test in reading for grade 3 must be 
retained.  It should be noted that no social promotion/Administrative placement 
(1008.25(6)(a) F.S.) is allowed.  Florida statutes prohibits the assignment of a student to a 
grade level based solely on age or other factors that constitute social promotion, 
administrative placement or placement at the next grade level without regard for student 
mastery of the appropriate Florida Standards. 

STATEWIDE STUDENT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM   

All students must participate in statewide assessment tests at designated grade levels as 
required by S.1008.22 F.S.  The primary purposes of the student assessment program are 

Page 27 of 1019

DRAFT



 

9 
 

to provide information needed to improve the public schools by enhancing the learning 
gains of all students and to inform parents of the educational progress of their public school 
children. The program must be designed to: 
 

 Assess the annual learning gains of each student toward achieving the Florida 
Standards or Next Generation Sunshine State Standards appropriate for the 
student’s grade level. 

 Provide data for making decisions regarding school accountability and recognition. 
 Identify the educational strengths and needs of students and the readiness of 

students to be promoted to the next grade level or to graduate from high school with 
a standard diploma. 

 Assess how well educational goals and curricular standards are met at the school, 
district, and state levels. 

 Provide information to aid in the evaluation and development of educational 
programs and policies. 

 Provide information on the performance of Florida students compared with that of 
other students across the United States. 

GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR DROPOUT PREVENTION 
PROGRAMS AND ACADEMIC INTERVENTION PROGRAMS   

Dropout prevention and academic intervention programs may differ from traditional 
education programs and schools in scheduling, administrative structure, philosophy, 
curriculum, setting and learning activities, and/or diagnostic and assessment procedures in 
eligible students as required by S.1008.22 F.S.  The educational program shall provide 
services which support the program goals and lead to improved discipline.  Student 
participation in such programs shall be for disruptive students.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of law to the contrary, no student shall be identified as being eligible to receive 
services funded through the dropout prevention and academic intervention program based 
solely on the student being from a single-parent family.  
 
Students in grades 1-12 shall be eligible for participation in these programs based upon the 
following Early Warning System criteria:  
  

● The student is academically unsuccessful as evidenced by low test scores, retention, 
failing grades, low grade point average, falling behind in earning credits, or not 
meeting the state or district proficiency levels in reading, mathematics, or writing.  
 Course failure in English Language Arts or mathematics during any grading 

period. A Level 1 score on the statewide, standardized assessments in 
English 

 Language Arts or mathematics or, for students in kindergarten through 
grade 3, a substantial reading deficiency under s. 1008.25(5)(a). 

● The student’s attendance below 90 percent, regardless of whether absence is 
excused or a result of out-of-school suspension. 

● The student has one or more suspensions, whether in school or out of school. 
● The student has a pattern of excessive absenteeism or has been identified as a 

Page 28 of 1019

DRAFT



 

10 
 

habitual truant. 
● The student has a history of disruptive behavior in school or has committed an 

offense that warrants out-of-school suspension or expulsion from school according 
to the district school board’s code of student conduct. For the purposes of this 
program, “disruptive behavior” is behavior that: 

● Interferes with the student’s own learning or the educational process of others and 
requires attention and assistance beyond that which the traditional program can 
provide or results in frequent conflicts of a disruptive nature while the student is 
under the jurisdiction of the school either in or out of the classroom; or 

● Severely threatens the general welfare of students or others with whom the student 
comes into contact. 

● The student is identified by a school’s early warning system pursuant to s. 
1001.42(18)(b). 

● “Second chance schools” means district school board programs provided through 
cooperative agreements between the Department of Juvenile Justice, private 
providers, state or local law enforcement agencies, or other state agencies for 
students who have been disruptive or violent or who have committed serious 
offenses. As partnership programs, second chance schools are eligible for waivers 
by the Commissioner of Education from State Board of Education rules that prevent 
the provision of appropriate educational services to violent, severely disruptive, or 
delinquent students in small nontraditional settings or in court-adjudicated settings. 

 
Each district may establish dropout prevention and academic intervention programs at the 
elementary, middle, junior high school, or high school level.  Programs designed to 
eliminate patterns of excessive absenteeism or habitual truancy shall emphasize academic 
performance and may provide specific instruction in the areas of technical education, pre-
employment training, and behavioral management. Such programs shall utilize 
instructional teaching methods appropriate to the specific needs of the student.  
  
Each school district shall establish procedures for ensuring that teachers assigned to 
dropout prevention and academic intervention programs possess the effective, pedagogical, 
and content-related skills necessary to meet the needs of these students.  
  
Each district providing a program for dropout prevention and academic intervention 
program pursuant to the provisions of this section shall maintain for each participating 
student records documenting the student’s eligibility, the length of participation, the type 
of program to which the student was assigned or the type of academic intervention services 
provided and an evaluation of the student’s academic and behavioral performance while in 
the program.  The school principal or his/her designee shall prior to placement in a dropout 
prevention and academic intervention  or the provision of an academic service, provide 
written notice of placement or services by certified mail, return receipt request, to the 
student’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian.  The parent, guardian, or legal custodian of 
the student shall sign an acknowledgment of the notice of placement or service and return 
the signed acknowledgment to the principal within 3 days after receipt of the notice.  The 
parents or guardians of student assigned to such a dropout prevention and academic 
intervention program shall be notified in writing and entitled to an administrative review 

Page 29 of 1019

DRAFT



 

11 
 

of any action by school personnel relating to such placement.  

MILITARY FAMILIES AND TRANSFERS 

The “Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children” was 
implemented to accommodate children from military families who have been transferred 
from one state to another.  The purpose of the “Compact” is to make this transition as 
seamless as possible.  The “Compact” applies to active members of the uniformed services, 
members or veterans of the uniformed services who are severely injured and medically 
discharged or retired for a period of one year after medical discharge or retirement, and 
members of the uniformed services who die on active duty or as a result of injuries 
sustained on active duty for a period of one year after death. 

TRANSFER OF EDUCATIONAL RECORDS AND ENROLLMENT 

In the event that official educational records cannot be obtained by the parent, the sending 
school will furnish a complete set of “unofficial educational records.”  When the receiving 
school obtains these records, the student will be enrolled and appropriately placed pending 
validation by the official records.  Copying fees will not exceed the reasonable cost of 
reproduction. If necessary; 
 

● Upon enrolling the student, the receiving school will request official records from 
the sending school.  Upon receipt of this request, the school will furnish the records 
within ten (10) business three (3) school days (not including staff holidays); 

● Immunization records must be provided at the time of enrollment; 
● Students should be allowed to continue their enrollment at the grade level in which 

they left the previous state regardless of age (including kindergarten).  If the 
student(s) successfully completed a grade level in the sending state, they should be 
enrolled in the next highest grade level in the receiving state, regardless of age; 

● Any student who transfers from an out-of-state public school and does not meet 
regular age requirements for admission to the receiving school will be admitted 
upon presentation of the information provided by the educational records.  If 
transferring from an out-of-state nonpublic school and does not meet regular age 
requirements of the receiving school, the student will be admitted if the student 
meets age requirements for public schools within the state from which he or she is 
transferring and if the student’s academic credit is acceptable under rules of the 
receiving school board.  To be admitted into the receiving school, the transferring 
student must provide the following: 
 Official military orders showing that the military member was assigned to 

the state in which the child was previously enrolled and attended school.  If 
the child was residing with a legal guardian and not the military member, a 
copy of the family care plan or proof of guardianship will be provided; 

 An official letter or transcript from the school authorities of the sending 
school showing attendance, academic and grade placement information; 

 Documented evidence of immunization; 
 Evidence of date of birth. 

● When the student transfers before or during the school year, the receiving school 

Page 30 of 1019

DRAFT



 

12 
 

will initially honor placement of the student in educational courses based on the 
student’s enrollment in the sending state/school or based on the educational 
assessment conducted at the sending school.  Continuing the student’s academic 
program from the previous school should be paramount when considering 
placement.  The receiving school may conduct further evaluations to ensure 
appropriate placement; 

● In compliance with IDEA, the receiving school will initially provide comparable 
services to a student with disabilities based on his/her current “Individualized 
Education Program” (IEP) and make reasonable accommodations and 
modifications for incoming students with disabilities, subject to an existing 504 
Plan, in order to provide the student with equal access to education.  The receiving 
school may then perform subsequent evaluations to ensure appropriate placement 
and services; 

● School districts shall have flexibility in waiving course/program prerequisites for 
placement in courses/programs. 

ABSENCE AS RELATED TO DEPLOYMENT ACTIVITIES 

● A student whose parent/legal guardian is an active duty member of the uniformed 
services and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or immediately returned 
from deployment to a combat zone or combat support posting, will be granted 
additional excused absences at the discretion of the Superintendent or Principal to 
visit with his or her parent/legal guardian.  

GRADUATION OF CHILDREN FROM MILITARY FAMILIES 

In order to facilitate the on-time graduation of children of military families, schools will 
incorporate the following procedures: 

● Waive specific course requirements for graduation if similar coursework has been 
satisfactorily completed in the sending school OR will provide reasonable 
justification for denial.  If a waiver is not provided to a student who would qualify 
to graduate from the sending school, the receiving school will provide an alternative 
means of acquiring coursework for that graduation to occur on time; 

● Exit exams: Receiving schools will accept any of the following testing information: 
 Exit or end-of-course exams required for graduation from the sending state; 
 National norm-referenced achievement tests; 
 Alternative testing in lieu of testing requirements for graduation in the 

receiving state. 
● Students transferring under the “HOPE Scholarship Program” are eligible for all 

programs offered by the District or a school. 
● In case a student transfers during their senior year and is ineligible to graduate from 

the receiving school after all alternatives have been considered, the two schools will 
communicate to ensure the receipt of a diploma from the sending school if the 
student met the graduation requirements from that school. 

● Clay Virtual Academy students from military families that move from Clay County 
but maintain residency in Florida and a mailing address in Clay county that is 
checked regularly may remain enrolled in Clay Virtual Academy.  Due to onsite 

Page 31 of 1019

DRAFT



 

13 
 

state testing requirements, most will want to continue enrollment as a 
homeschooled student.   

ELIGIBILITY 

● Special power of attorney, relative to the guardianship of a child of a military family 
and executed under applicable law will be sufficient for the purpose of enrollment 
and all other actions requiring parental participation and consent; 

● A transitioning military child who is placed in the non-custodial parent or other 
person standing in loco parentis, may continue to attend the school in which they 
are enrolled while residing with the custodial parent; 

● The school will make every effort to obtain eligibility privileges for extracurricular 
activities, regardless of application deadlines, working in conjunction with the state 
high school athletic association, to the extent they are otherwise qualified. 

OVERSIGHT, ENFORCEMENT AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Please refer to the “Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children” 
for information related to disputes or controversies.  In addition, contact the Clay County 
School District with questions pertaining to this subject. 
  

Page 32 of 1019

DRAFT



 

14 
 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION (K-6) 

ADMISSION AND DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS 

 
Kindergarten (F.S. 1003.21) 
Any child who has attained the age of five years on or before September 1 will be admitted 
to kindergarten at any time during that school year.  NO PROVISION FOR EARLY 
ADMISSION TO KINDERGARTEN EXISTS. 
 
First Grade (F.S. 1003.21) 
Any child who has attained the age of six years on or before September 1 will be admitted 
to first grade if kindergarten has been successfully completed.  Successful completion of 
kindergarten will be defined as: 

 
● Enrollment in a public school; or 
● Satisfactory completion in a nonpublic kindergarten program as evidenced by a 

report card or letter from the principal of the previous school or the Verification of 
Entrance to First Grade form verifying completion under Florida Statute 1003.21.  
NO PROVISION FOR EARLY ADMISSION TO FIRST GRADE EXISTS. 

  
First Entry to the Clay County District Schools 
Before admitting a student to Florida schools for the first time, the school must have 
documentation required by Florida Statutes and the Clay County School Board 
policy/procedures: 

 
● Proof of date of birth for kindergarten and grade one students.  (F.S. 1003.21)  If 

an official birth certificate for the student cannot be obtained by the 
parent/guardian, the following may be accepted in the order set forth in Florida 
Statute 1003.21: 
 A duly attested transcript of a certificate of baptism showing the date of 

birth and place of baptism of the child, accompanied by an affidavit sworn 
to by the parent; 

 An insurance policy on the child’s life that had been in force for at least two 
years; 

 A bona fide contemporary religious record of the child’s birth accompanied 
by an affidavit sworn to by the parent; 

 A passport or certificate of arrival in the United States showing the age of 
the child; 

 A transcript of record of age shown in the child’s school record of at least 
four years prior to application, stating date of birth; or 

 If none of these evidences can be produced, an affidavit of age sworn to by 
the parent, accompanied by a certificate of age signed by a public health 
officer or by a public school physician. 

 
A homeless child, as defined by F.S. 1003.01, shall be given temporary exemption for 30 
days. 

Page 33 of 1019

DRAFT



 

15 
 

 
●  A certificate showing a school entry health examination performed within one year 

prior to enrollment.  Exemptions will be granted on religious grounds upon 
receiving written request from parents or guardian stating objections to the 
examination.  (F.S. 1003.22) 

● A Florida Certificate of Immunization, DH680 form and DH681 (Religious 
Exemption) are the only acceptable immunization certificates for admittance grades 
PreK-12. Required immunizations include (F.S. 1003.22): 
 Four or five doses of diphtheria-tetanus-pertussis (DTaP) vaccine 
 Two or three doses of hepatitis B (HepB) vaccine 
 Three, four, or five doses of polio vaccine * 
 Two doses of measles-mumps-rubella (MMR) vaccine 
 Two doses of varicella vaccine for K-8 ** 
 One dose of varicella vaccine for grades 10-12  

*If fourth dose of vaccine is administered prior to fourth birthday, a fifth 
dose of polio vaccine is required for kindergarten entry only. 
**Varicella vaccine is not required if varicella disease is documented by 
health care provider. 

● An official letter or transcript from proper school authority which shows record of 
attendance, academic information, and grade placement of student. 

● Social Security Number (District request) 
 

TRANSFER DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS 

 
Elementary grade placement of transfer students to the district shall be in accordance with 
the requirements as stated in F.S. 1003.21 and F.S. 1003.22 and will be subject to the 
following conditions (this includes HOPE Scholarship Program transfers): 
 
In-State Transfers from Nonpublic Schools to Kindergarten 
Students transferring from a nonpublic Florida Kindergarten to the Clay County District 
Schools must provide: 
 

● Evidence of date of birth (five years of age on or before September 1) 
● Proof of immunization 
● Evidence of medical examination performed within the last twelve months and 
● Social Security Number (District request) 

 
In-State Transfers from Nonpublic Schools to First Grade 
Pupils transferring from a nonpublic first grade must provide: 
 

● Evidence of successful completion of kindergarten in a nonpublic Florida school 
● Evidence of date of birth (six years of age on or before  

September 1) 
● Evidence of medical examination performed within the last twelve months 
● Proof of immunization and 

Page 34 of 1019

DRAFT



 

16 
 

● Social Security Number (District request) 
 
Underage Out-of-State Transfers to Kindergarten and First Grade from Public and 
Nonpublic Schools 
Entry into kindergarten and first grade, by out-of-state transfer students, who do not meet 
regular age requirements for admission to Florida Public Schools, shall be based on their 
previous state’s age requirements for entrance into public schools and shall be in 
accordance with Florida Administrative Rule 6A 1.0985. 

 
Any student who transfers from an out-of-state public or nonpublic school shall be admitted 
upon presentation of the following data: 

 
● An official letter or transcript from proper school authority which shows record of 

attendance, academic information, and grade placement of the student 
● Evidence of immunization against communicable diseases as required by F.S. 

1003.22 on a Florida 680 or 681 
● Evidence of date of birth in accordance with F.S. 1003.21 
● Evidence of medical examination performed within the last twelve months and 
● Social Security Number (District request) 

 
Home Education Program Entry or Reentry (FS 1003.21/1002.41) 
When a student is transferring into Clay County District Schools from a home education 
program, the child must meet all district and state entrance qualifications.  Temporary grade 
placement will be based on the following variables: 

 
● Age and maturity; 
● Standardized achievement test results; 
● Previous record in public and private schools which include state assessments and; 
● Evidence of work and achievement while in home education 

 
Final grade placement will be determined by the principal at the end of four weeks 
(6A 1.09) 
 
Assigning Grades to Transferring Students 
When students transfer from one school to another, the sending school is required to send 
all grades earned during the current grading period regardless of days enrolled.   

 
Transfers from one CCSD elementary school to another will be through Focus. 
 
Assigning Report Card Grades 
Receiving schools shall assign progress report grades when the student has been enrolled 
in the school fifteen (15) or more days.  The primary responsibility for assigning grades 
rests with the teacher subject to approval by the principal. 

 
In no way will an academic penalty be used for a “code of conduct” violation with the 
exception of cheating or plagiarism. 

Page 35 of 1019

DRAFT



 

17 
 

 
Conversion Chart (Grades 3-6) 
If a transfer student does not have numeric grades available, the following conversion chart 
can be used for averaging purposes: 
 

A+  =  100 A  =  95 O =  95 
B+  =    89 B  =  85 S  =  80 
C+  =    79 C  =  75 N  =  75 
D+  =    69 D  =  65 U  =  59 
 F  =  55  

 
Grades earned outside of the School District of Clay County should be averaged  to 
obtain the year’s average using the conversion chart.  A notation in the comment section 
should denote grades and where they were earned. 
 
Change of Class/Courses of Clay County Students  
A parent may request a transfer of their child(ren) to another classroom teacher within the 
same grade or course at any time during the year based on (1) the teacher’s out-of-field 
certification status or (2) personal preference.  The parent may not, however, choose a 
specific classroom teacher.  At the time of the request, the school must approve or deny the 
request within 2  two weeks.  If the request is denied, the school will notify the parent and 
specify the reasons for the denial. F.S. 1003.3101 
 
Procedures Concerning Request for Transfer of Students: 
 

● Parent makes a written request to the school Principal to transfer their child(ren) to 
another teacher (must be in the same grade level and/or course); Prior to principal 
consideration, a parent teacher conference must take place; 

● The Principal considers the request and notifies the parent within two weeks.  The 
Principal must consider: 
 Class size 
 Grade and course 
 Any variable that would impact the student or class that is being considered 

(ex., discipline issues, teacher input)  
● If approved, parent and teacher are notified; 
● If not approved, parent is notified with explanation given. 
● Consistent with School Board rules and in accordance with state statute 

(1012.28(5)F.S.), the Superintendent has designated the principal of the school as 
the final authority in the placement of students in a program(s) or classes. 

 

ELEMENTARY INSTRUCTION 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND RECESS 

Florida Statute 1003.455 requires each district school board to develop a physical education 
program that stresses physical fitness and encourages healthful, active lifestyles. K-5 

Page 36 of 1019

DRAFT



 

18 
 

students and 6th grade students enrolled in an elementary school are required to have 150 
minutes each week with at least 30 consecutive minutes on any day during which physical 
education instruction is conducted.  The physical education requirement shall be waived 
for a student in grades kindergarten through grade eight who meets one of the following 
criteria: 

 
● required to enroll in a remedial course 
● parent indicates in writing to the school that: 

 parent requests that student enroll in one of the courses provided by the school 
as an alternative option to physical education 

 student is participating in physical activities outside the school equal to or in 
excess of mandated requirements.  

  
“Free-play” recess will be included in the elementary day for grades K - 5 for 120 minutes 
weekly. (HB 7069) 
 

REGULAR PROGRAM 

Each student in grades K-6 will receive regularly scheduled instruction based on the district 
adopted curriculum.  Curriculum content for all subjects must integrate critical-thinking, 
problem-solving, and workforce-literacy skills; communication, reading, and writing 
skills; math skills, collaboration skills; contextual and applied-learning skills; technology-
literacy skills; information and media-literacy skills; and civic-engagement skills. (Chapter 
1001, Part II). Schools may also offer courses in art, music, media, and/or technology. The 
instructional schedule should be at least five hours and thirty-five minutes.  Flexibility in 
the designing of school schedules is permissible and may reflect the integration of content 
determined necessary to provide an appropriate instructional program.   

 
All students must meet state requirements concerning mastery of curriculum frameworks 
and student performance standards based on the Florida State Standards.  Mastery is 
documented by passing grades as determined by the classroom teacher. 

HOMEWORK (SDCC Policy 4.40) 

Homework is defined as assignments which support specific concepts taught during the 
school day.  Incomplete class work is not considered to be homework, but rather a 
continuation of the student’s daily class work responsibility. Because all Clay Virtual 
Academy course work is completed outside the traditional classroom, this policy does not 
apply to CVA students.   
 
Homework should not exceed 20-30 minutes for K-3 or 30-45 minutes for 4-6.  
Individually assigned, rather  than class assignments, are strongly recommended.  No 
homework is to be assigned over school holidays.  No homework is to be assigned during 
statewide assessment tests. 
 

Page 37 of 1019

DRAFT



 

19 
 

MULTI-TIERED SYSTEM OF SUPPORTS/RESPONSE TO INTERVENTION 
PLAN/PROGRESS MONITORING 

A Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) is an evidence-based model of schooling that 
uses data-based problem-solving to integrate academic and behavioral instruction and 
intervention. The integrated instruction and intervention is delivered to students in varying 
intensities (multiple tiers) based on student need. 
 
The tiers, or levels of student supports, represent a way to organize resources to provide 
instruction/intervention based on student need. These are NOT locations for students, but 
rather specific instruction/interventions supports provided based on student need. 
Additional resources or supplemental supports (i.e., tier 2 and tier 3) are in addition to what 
all students receive (general instruction) and can be provided in a variety of ways and 
locations.  
 
Three levels of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support: 
 

● Tier 1 Intervention (Universal Prevention) 
● Tier 2 Intervention (Supplemental/At-Risk) 
● Tier 3 Intervention (Individualized/Intensive) 

 
The Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS). The basic elements of MTSS are required 
by the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) Every Student Succeeds Act 
(ESSA) and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA); therefore, it is the 
basis for all broad-based initiatives for schools striving to increase student outcomes. 
Response to Intervention (RtI) has been described in Florida as a multi-tiered system of 
supports (MTSS) for providing high quality instruction and intervention matched to student 
needs using learning rate over time and level of performance to inform instructional 
decisions. This system is depicted as a three-tiered framework that uses increasingly more 
intense instruction and interventions matched to need. 
 
 Elements of the MTSS Process: 
 

● Highly effective personnel deliver scientific, research-based instruction and 
evidence-based practices. 

● Evidence-based curriculum and instructional approaches have a high probability of 
success for most students. 

● Instruction is differentiated to meet individual learning needs. 
● Reliable, valid, and instructionally relevant assessments include the following: 

 Screening Measures: Assessment tools designed to collect data for the 
purpose of measuring the effectiveness of core instruction and identifying 
students needing more intensive interventions and support. 

 Diagnostic Measures: Formal or informal assessment tools that measure 
skill strengths and weaknesses, identify skills in need of improvement, and 
assist in determining why a problem is occurring.   

 Progress Monitoring Measures: Ongoing assessment conducted for the 
purposes of guiding instruction, monitoring student progress, and 

Page 38 of 1019

DRAFT



 

20 
 

evaluating instruction/intervention effectiveness.   
 Formative Measures: Ongoing assessment embedded within effective 

teaching to guide instructional decisions. 
 Summative (Outcome) Measures: Typically administered near the end of 

the school year to give an overall perspective of the effectiveness of the 
instructional program. 

● Ongoing, systematic planning/problem solving is consistently used by teams 
including parents and educators, from enrollment to graduation for all students, to 
make decisions across a continuum of student needs. 

● Student response to instruction/intervention (MTSS) data are used to guide 
meaningful decision making. 

● Job embedded, ongoing, professional development and follow-up coaching with 
modeling are provided to ensure effective instruction at all levels. 

● Actively engaged administrative leadership for data-based decision making is 
inherent to the school culture. 

● All students and their parent(s) are engaged throughout the process in one proactive 
and seamless educational system. 

 
Problem Solving Process 
The problem-solving process is critical to making the instructional adjustments needed for 
continual improvement.  This process involves an ongoing cycle with the following steps: 

 
Step One: Define the problem of goal by determining the difference between what 
is expected and what is occurring. 
 
Step Two: Analyze the problem using data to determine why the issue is occurring.  
 
Step Three: Develop and Implement a Plan driven by the results of the team’s 
problem analysis by establishing a performance goal for the group of students or 
the individual student and developing an intervention plan to achieve the goal. 
 
Step Four: Measure response to instruction/interventions by using data gathered 
from progress monitoring at agreed upon intervals to evaluate the effectiveness of 
the intervention plan based on the student’s or group of students’ response to the 
intervention.  

 
Response to Intervention (RtI) refers to the fourth step of the problem-solving process. RtI 
encompasses the utilization of student-centered progress-monitoring data to make 
instructional decisions to ensure positive student outcomes. 
 
Needs of students who struggle in the area(s) of reading, math, language or behavior should 
be addressed and instruction should be tailored to these needs based upon frequent progress 
monitoring data. Students who continue to perform below grade level expectations should be 
targeted for intervention.  These interventions and the monitoring of these interventions should be 
documented within the RtI (Response to Intervention) process. 

 
MTSS teams ensure the students’ needs are addressed through grade level/content area 

Page 39 of 1019

DRAFT



 

21 
 

team meetings where specific student needs are discussed and plans are generated to 
address these needs. These RtI teams – with parent involvement – will continually monitor 
student progress and make appropriate intervention recommendations.  If the student’s 
deficiency isn’t remediated while serving Tier III interventions, or if a student is 
responding to intervention but requires a level of intensity and resources to sustain growth 
performance, a referral for evaluation for Exceptional Student Education may be 
recommended.   

 
If the documented deficiency has not been remediated a student may be retained in 
accordance with state guidelines.  Each student who does not meet the minimum 
performance expectations defined by the Commissioner of Education for the statewide 
assessment tests in reading, writing, science and mathematics must continue to be provided 
with remedial or supplemental instruction until the expectations are met or the student 
graduates from high school or is not subject to compulsory school attendance. 
 
Intensive remedial instructional strategies may include but are not limited to: 
 

● Summer school coursework (Grades 3 and 6) 
● Extended day services (before or after school tutoring) 
● Parent tutorial programs (if appropriate) 
● Contracted academic services (previously approved by the district) 
● Exceptional Student Education 
● Suspension of curriculum other than reading, writing, and mathematics, and science 
● Intensive skills development programs 
● Immediate intensive intervention (iii) inside or outside the literacy block if deficit 

is in reading. 
● Implementation of a positive behavior support plan 
● Remediation plan to help the student with make-up work 
● Contingent upon available funds and on a first-come, first-serve basis, students 

classified as ELL and who are enrolled in a program receiving services that are 
specifically designed to meet the needs of English Language Learner students are 
eligible for the “Reading Scholarships Accounts” program (see page 16 under 
“Reading Deficiencies and Parental Notification” form more information). 

● Contingent upon available funds and on a first-come, first-serve basis, students 
scoring a Level 1 or Level 2 on the 3rd grade statewide, standardized ELA 
assessment are eligible for the “Reading Scholarships Accounts” program (see page 
16 under “Reading Deficiencies and Parental Notification” form more 
information). 

 
A review shall be conducted of MTSS Plans for all retained third grade students who 
did not score above Level 1 on FSA and did not meet one of the Good Cause 
exemptions.  The Plan must address additional supports and services needed to 
remediate the deficiency. 
 
 
   

Page 40 of 1019

DRAFT



 

22 
 

 When to consider starting an MTSS Academic or Behavior Plan
 
Academic Considerations 
 

 
READING MATH WRITING 

K-2 

● Consistently scoring in the red 
success zone on a Clay 
established benchmark 
assessment Scoring in the yellow 
success zone of a Clay 
established benchmark 
assessment if supported by other 
data 

● Teacher, parent, or other 
instructional personnel 
recommendation 

● Report card reflects skills not 
mastered as expected for grade 
level 

● Scoring at the at-
risk level on a Clay 
established 
benchmark 
assessment if 
supported by other 
data sources 

● Teacher 
recommendation 

● Report card reflects 
skills not mastered 
as expected for 
grade level 

● Report card reflects 
skills not mastered 
as expected for 
grade level 

● Teacher 
recommendation 

● Clay established 
assessment rubric 
demonstrates 
weakness in writing 
skills 

3-6 

● Scoring at the at-risk level on 
Clay established benchmark 
assessment if supported by other 
data 

● Teacher, parent, or other 
instructional personnel 
recommendation 

● Report card reflects skills not 
mastered as expected for grade 
level 

● Scored at level 1 or 2 on FSA for 
the two previous school years 

● Required for retained 3rd grade 
readers 

● Scoring at the at-
risk level on Clay 
established 
benchmark 
assessment if 
supported by other 
data 

● Teacher 
recommendation 

● Report card reflects 
skills not mastered 
as expected for 
grade level 

● Scored at level 1 or 
2 on or FSA for the 
two previous school 
years 

● Report card reflects 
skills not mastered 
as expected for 
grade level 

● Teacher 
recommendation 

● Clay established 
assessment rubric 
demonstrates 
weakness in writing 
skills 

 
Behavioral Considerations 

K-6 

● Discipline referrals, Clay Behavior Universal Screener, Schoolwide Positive Behavioral 
Interventions and Supports (PBIS) data 

● Students who exhibit externalizing or internalizing behaviors 
● Students who present many behavioral challenges in and out of the classroom 
● Students experiencing in-class consequences but do not get discipline referrals 
● Students in ESE settings who may still need additional behavioral supports  
● Teacher, parent, or other instructional personnel recommendation 

 

Page 41 of 1019

DRAFT



 

23 
 

READING DEFICIENCIES AND PARENTAL NOTIFICATION (F.S.1008.25) 
Any student in kindergarten through grade 3 who exhibits a substantial deficiency in 
reading based upon screening, diagnostic, progress monitoring, or assessment data; 
statewide assessments; or teacher observations must be provided intensive, explicit, 
systematic, and multisensory reading interventions immediately following the 
identification of the reading deficiency. A school may not wait for a student to receive a 
failing grade at the end of a grading period to identify the student as having a substantial 
reading deficiency and initiate intensive reading interventions. The student’s reading 
proficiency must be monitored and the intensive interventions must continue until the 
student demonstrates grade level proficiency in a manner determined by the district, which 
may include achieving a Level 3 on the statewide, standardized English Language Arts 
assessment. The State Board of Education shall identify by rule guidelines for determining 
whether a student in kindergarten through grade 3 has a substantial deficiency in reading. 

 
 

The parent of any student who exhibits a substantial deficiency in reading, must be notified 
in writing of the following: 

● That his or her child has been identified as having a substantial deficiency in 
reading, including a description and explanation, in terms understandable to the 
parent, of the exact nature of the student’s difficulty in learning and lack of 
achievement in reading. 

● A description of the current services that are provided to the child. 
● A description of the proposed intensive interventions and supports that will be 

provided to the child that are designed to remediate the identified area of reading 
deficiency. 

● That if the child’s reading deficiency is not remediated by the end of grade 3, the 
child must be retained unless he or she is exempt from mandatory retention for good 
cause. 

● Strategies, including multisensory strategies, through a read-at-home plan the 
parent can use in helping his or her child succeed in reading. 

● That the statewide, standardized English Language Arts assessment is not the sole 
determiner of promotion and that additional evaluations, portfolio reviews, and 
assessments are available to the child to assist parents and the school district in 
knowing when a child is reading at or above grade level and ready for grade 
promotion. 

● The district’s specific criteria and policies for a portfolio and the evidence required 
for a student to demonstrate mastery of Florida’s academic standards for English 
Language Arts. A parent of a student in grade 3 who is identified anytime during 
the year as being at risk of retention may request that the school immediately begin 
collecting evidence for a portfolio. 

● The district’s specific criteria and policies for midyear promotion. Midyear 
promotion means promotion of a retained student at any time during the year of 
retention once the student has demonstrated ability to read at grade level. 

 
 

Page 42 of 1019

DRAFT



 

24 
 

Reading Scholarships 
FS 1002.411 provides reading scholarship accounts for students.  Contingent upon 
available funds, and on a first-come, first-served basis, each student in grades 3 through 5 
who is enrolled in a Florida public school is eligible for a reading scholarship account if 
the student scored below a Level 3 on the grade 3 or grade 4 statewide, standardized 
English Language Arts (ELA) assessment in the prior school year. An eligible student who 
is classified as an English Language Learner and is enrolled in a program or receiving 
services that are specifically designed to meet the instructional needs of English Language 
Learner students shall receive priority. 
 
For an eligible student to receive a reading scholarship account, the student’s parent must: 
 

● Submit an application to an eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization by 
the deadline established by such organization; StepUpForStudents.org 

● Submit eligible expenses to the eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization 
for reimbursement of qualifying expenditures, which may include: instructional 
materials, curriculum, tuition and fees for tutoring, summer education and after-
school education programs designed to improve reading or literacy skills 

 
By September 30, the school district shall notify the parent of each student in grades 3 
through 5 who scored below a level 3 on the statewide, standardized ELA assessment in 
the prior school year of the process to request and receive a reading scholarship, subject to 
available funds. 
 

ATTENDANCE 

Florida Law (Section 1003.21, Florida Statutes) states that all children who are either six 
years of age, who will be six years old by February 1 of any school year, or who are older 
than six years of age but who have not attained the age of 16 years, must attend school 
regularly during the entire school term. 
 
The “Every Student Succeeds Act” changes the focus of attendance.  Instead of focusing 
on Truancy, the focus is narrowed to Chronic Absences.  There has been a shift from 
punitive measures to preventive and supportive interventions.  The process is driven by 
data which ensures accountability.  A multi-tiered model of interventions should be 
established in each school.  Tier one interventions should be implemented school-wide and 
can include contests, recognition of good/improved attendance etc.  Tier two interventions 
are teacher/classroom based, and Tier three interventions are implemented by a 
multidisciplinary team.  Once Tier one and Tier two interventions have been implemented 
for attendance without improvement, a referral should be made to the multidisciplinary 
team.  The team should schedule a meeting with and obtain input from the teacher.  The 
parent and the student will be invited to the intervention meeting.  The intervention team 
should have regular meetings.  These meetings not only provide prevention and 
intervention, but follow-up meetings are held to check-in on prior attendees. The goal of 
the team is to develop a plan to help the student become more successful by utilizing 
strategies specific to each student including, but not limited to: 

Page 43 of 1019

DRAFT



 

25 
 

 
● Changes in the learning environment 
● Implementation of an incentive plan 
● Mentoring 
● Student/family counseling 
● Tutoring 
● Evaluation of credits, and alternative educational options 
● Attendance contracts 
● Agency referrals 
● Remediation plan to help the student with make-up work 

 
For the intervention plan to be successful, the plan must be achievable.  If the team 
determines it is appropriate to accept make-up work for unexcused absences, the Principal 
or Designee will seek input from the team, including the teacher and make a final 
determination.  The intervention plan and the student’s response should be monitored.  If 
the team has concerns, there should be discussion about what is working and what needs 
to be re-addressed.  Referring the student for consequences should not be considered until 
all resources have been exhausted.  The decision to proceed with a CINS (Children in Need 
of Service) petition or Referral to the Truancy Arbitration Program is a decision the 
intervention team will make when the members agree that a referral should be made. 
 
Habitual Truancy 
“Habitual truant” means a student who has 15 unexcused absences within 90 calendar days 
with or without the knowledge or consent of the student’s parent, is subject to compulsory 
school attendance under s.1003.21(1) and (2) (a), and is not exempt under s.1003.21 (3) or 
s.1003.24, or by meeting the criteria for any other exemption specified by law or rules of 
the State Board of Education. Such a student must have been the subject of the activities 
specified in s.1003.26 and s.1003.27 (3), without resultant successful remediation of the 
truancy problem before being dealt with as a child in need of services. 
 
Truancy Procedures: If a student has had at least five (5) unexcused absences, or absences 
for which the reasons are unknown, within a calendar month or 10 unexcused absences, or 
absences for which the reasons are unknown, within a 90-calendar day period, Tier 2 
interventions should be implemented.  If these are not successful, primary teacher shall 
report to the school Principal or his or her designee that the student may be exhibiting a 
pattern of nonattendance. F.S.1003.26. 
 
The multidisciplinary team shall be diligent in facilitation intervention services and shall 
report the child to the Superintendent only when all reasonable efforts to resolve non-
attendance behavior are exhausted. F.S. 1003.23(1)(d). 
 
If the parent or guardian in charge of the student refuses to participate in the remedial 
strategies because he or she believes that those strategies are unnecessary or inappropriate, 
the parent or guardian in charge of the student may appeal to the school board. 
F.S.1003.26(1)(e). 
 

Page 44 of 1019

DRAFT



 

26 
 

If the board’s final determination is that the strategies of the multidisciplinary Team are 
appropriate, and the parent or guardian in charge of the student still refuses to participate 
or cooperate, the Superintendent may seek criminal prosecution for non compliance with 
compulsory school attendance. s. 1003.26(1)(e), F.S 
 
If nonattendance continues after the implementation of intervention strategies, the 
Superintendent or designee shall file a CINS petition, defined in s.984.15, F.S. The school 
representative, a parent, law enforcement, a court, or the DJJ shall initiate a referral to a 
CINS provider or a case staffing committee established pursuant to s. 984.12, F.S., and 
procedures established by the district school board. The purpose of the referral to CINS is 
to secure prevention services for a habitually truant student and the family (F.S.1003.27(3). 
Prior to the filing of the CINS petition, reasonable time must be allowed to complete 
interventions to remedy conditions contributing to the truant behavior and must comply 
with the requirements of F.S.1003.26. 
 
EXCUSED/UNEXCUSED ABSENCES 
An absence from school under the following circumstances shall be considered excused: 

 
● With permission – The absence was with the knowledge and consent of the 

principal of the school, which the student attends. 
● Sickness, injury or other insurmountable condition – Attendance was impracticable 

or inadvisable on account of sickness or injury, or impracticable because of some 
other stated insurmountable condition. 

● Absence for religious instruction or holidays – A student with the written consent 
of his or her parent/guardian shall be excused from attendance in school on a 
particular day or days, or at a particular time of day, and shall be excused from any 
examination, study or work assignment at such time to participate in religious 
instruction, for observance of a religious holiday or because tenets of his or her 
religion forbid secular activity at such time. The principal shall reserve the right to 
refuse a student’s request for released time, if according to the provisions of the 
district’s student progression plan: 

● The student is not enrolled in sufficient courses to allow for the student’s promotion 
or graduation, and thus the released time would not be equivalent to an optional 
period. 

● The student’s grades/academic progress is insufficient to allow for the student’s 
promotion or graduation.  Absences approved for religious reasons do not affect 
perfect attendance. 

● Absences due to head lice will be excused, up to 2 days per incident and for a total 
of 10 days per school year. After a student has accumulated 10 excused absences 
due to head lice during a school year, further absences due to head lice will be 
considered unexcused. Unusual circumstances may be addressed by the principal 
to go beyond these 10 days for excused absences. 

 
It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to provide a written statement to the school 
explaining the absence within three (3) school days following the return of the student to 
school. 

Page 45 of 1019

DRAFT



 

27 
 

 
If a student is continually sick and repeatedly absent from school, he or she must be under 
the supervision of a physician in order to receive an excuse from attendance. Such excuse 
provides that a student’s condition justifies absence for more than 5 days per grading 
period/10 days per semester/20 days per year. The principal of the school shall determine 
when it is necessary to require a physician’s statement from the student’s medical provider 
and required the parent/guardian to provide a copy to their child’s school within a 
reasonable period of time as determined by the principal or designee. 
 
An absence from school under the following circumstances may be considered unexcused: 
 

● The absence was without the parent/guardian’s knowledge, consent or connivance. 
● Permission for the absence was requested but denied by the principal of the 

student’s school. 
● No written statement of the absence from the parent/guardian has been received by 

the school explaining the reason for the absence within three (3) school days 
following the return of the student to schools. 

 
The principal has administrative discretion in cases of excessive absences to reject a written 
note and consider the absence as unexcused when absences are seriously impacting 
academic progress, with the exception of sickness, injury or insurmountable conditions. 
 
Accumulated unexcused tardy and early departure time equivalent to one full school day 
may be counted as one unexcused absence in the total number of unexcused absences 
required for possible legal action. 
 
Missed instructional time due to tardiness and early departures shall be accumulated as 
excused or unexcused using the same policies as for absent days.   

 
Excused absences are:  religious instruction/holidays, sickness, injury or other 
insurmountable conditions, absence for medical, clinical or therapeutic treatment of autism 
spectrum disorder, or absences due to participation in an academic class or program or as 
otherwise excused by the principal. 

 
Students who have excused absences must be allowed to make up missed work.  If a 
student has excessive absences, then he/she must demonstrate mastery of the student 
performance standards.  Students who are absent with an excused absence on the day that 
a paper, project, test or other major assignment is due will be allowed to turn in the 
assignment or take the test/examination without academic penalty.  Work assigned prior to 
the absence is due the day the student returns.  Work assigned during the absence will be 
due in the amount of time equal to the number of days absent unless an intervention plan 
is established which indicates otherwise. 

 
For unexcused absences, including out of school suspension, work assigned or tests that 
cover instruction prior to the unexcused absence must be taken and graded.  Work assigned 
and due during the time of an unexcused absence may be accepted for credit at the 

Page 46 of 1019

DRAFT



 

28 
 

discretion of the teacher. 
 
Attendance for CVA is documented as follows: 

   
● Students in grades K-5 must follow pace chart for each week;  
● Students in grades 6-12 must stay on pace for each week (minimum of 5% per 

week); 
● Any day a K-5 student does not log in is considered an absence if coursework is 

not up to date; 
 

The Learnfare program requires children of cash assistance recipients to attend school 
regularly or they risk having their cash assistance reduced. (SDCC 4.54) 

 
Per School Board Policy, Perfect Attendance is awarded to students that have been 
neither absent nor tardy. Perfect attendance will be awarded to those students who have 
been present in school every day, with no absences or tardies. To prevent parents from 
sending their child to school and then checking them out 30 minutes later, a  student 
checked out  prior to 10 a.m. will be considered as absent for purposes of “perfect 
attendance”. If a student is checked out after 10:00 a.m. they are considered present and 
“perfect attendance” is not affected. (SDCC Policy 4.02 G)   

ASSESSMENT (F.S. 1008) 

Students in grades kindergarten through 6 are evaluated annually.  All students, unless 
specifically exempted, must take all statewide and local achievement tests at their 
appropriate grade level.  Each student who does not meet specific levels of performance 
in reading, writing, science, and mathematics must be provided with additional diagnostic 
assessments to determine the nature of the student’s difficulty and academic needs.  Test 
accommodations and modification of procedures may occur, as necessary, for students in 
Exceptional Education, for students with a 504 plan, and for students who have Limited 
English Proficiency, are provided through the Individual Education Plan (IEP), 504 Plan 
or the English Language Learners Plan (ELL).  

 
The Florida Standards Assessments (FSA) (http://fsassessments.org) elementary testing 
requirements are as follows: 

 
Florida Kindergarten Readiness Screener (FLKRS) – (F.S. 1002.69) All school 
districts are required to administer the statewide screening based upon the VPK 
standards to each kindergarten student in the school district within the first 30 
school days of the school year.  Data will be used to identify students in need of 
intervention and support. Retained kindergarten students will not be screened.  
Teachers are encouraged to share the data from the FLKRS with parents when 
conferencing. 
 
FSA English Language Arts – Writing– The FSA Writing component is 
administered to all fourth, fifth, and sixth grade students. Results for the Writing 
Component will be combined with the FSA English Language Arts assessment for 

Page 47 of 1019

DRAFT



 

29 
 

one combined score.  
 
FSA Mathematics – This test is administered to all students in grades 3, 4, 5 and 
6.   
 
FSA English Language Arts – This test is administered to all students in grades 
3,4,5, and 6 in a separate assessment window from the FSA Writing component.  
Results from the English Language Arts assessment are combined with the FSA 
Writing component for one combined score. 

 
Statewide Science Assessment – This test is administered to all fifth grade 
students.  Students are compared to other fifth grade students within the state. 
 
ACCESS 2.0 – This test is administered to all ELL (English Language Learner) 
students with a code of “LY” on the first day of the test administration window. 
   
Progress Monitoring 
 

● Clay County District schools will use the i-Ready reading diagnostic three times a 
year for reading progress monitoring in grades K-8. *K-3 

● Clay County District schools will use the Achieve3000 LevelSet three times a year 
for reading progress monitoring in grades 4-10.  

● Clay County District schools will use the i-Ready reading diagnostic three times a 
year for math progress monitoring in grades K-8.  

 
Student performance on teacher developed commercially produced assessments determine 
grades on report cards. Required district achievement testing and statewide assessments do 
not impact the student’s report card grade. 

ELIGIBILITY FOR ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT   

FLORIDA STANDARDS ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT FOR STUDENTS WITH 
SIGNIFICANT COGNITIVE DISABILITIES 

Participation Guidelines 
All Florida students participate in the state’s assessment and accountability system. The 
Florida Standards Alternate Assessment (FSAA) is designed for students whose 
participation in the general statewide assessment program (Florida Standards Assessments, 
Statewide Science Assessment, Next Generation Sunshine State Standards End-of-Course 
Assessments) is not appropriate, even with accommodations. The FSAA measures student 
academic performance on the Access Points in Language Arts, Mathematics, and Science, 
and Social Studies.  Access Points are academic expectations written specifically for 
students with significant cognitive disabilities. They reflect the essence or core intent of 
the standards that apply to all students in the same grade, but at reduced levels of 
complexity.  

 
 

Page 48 of 1019

DRAFT



 

30 
 

Per section 1008.22, Florida Statutes, and Rule 6A-1.0943 F.A.C., only students with 
significant cognitive impairment are eligible to participate in the FSAA program. 
Therefore, students with a primary disability category of SLD must not participate in the 
FSAA program and subsequently should not be enrolled in access courses that align to the 
FSAA program. 
 
The decision for a student with a disability to participate in the statewide alternate 
assessment is made by the Individual Educational Plan (IEP) team and recorded on the IEP.  
The IEP team should consider the student’s present level of educational performance in 
reference to the Florida Standards Assessments and Next Generation Sunshine State 
Standards Assessments. 

 
All of the following criteria must be met: 

  
● The student has a significant cognitive disability.  
● Even with appropriate and allowable instructional accommodations, assistive 

technology or accessible instructional materials, the student requires modifications 
to the grade-level general state content standards as defined in rules 6A-
6.03411(1)(z) and  6A-1.09401 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). 

● The student requires direct instruction in academic areas of English language arts, 
math, social studies and science, based on access points, in order to acquire, 
generalize and transfer skills across settings.  

● The parent must sign consent in  accordance with Rule 6A-6.0331(10), F.A.C 
 

If the student meets all of the criteria for alternate assessment, the student should be 
enrolled in access courses and the Florida Standards Alternate Assessment should be used 
to provide a meaningful evaluation of the student’s current academic achievement. 

 
If the student does not meet the criteria, the student should be instructed in general 
education courses and participate in the general statewide standardized assessments with 
or without accommodations as appropriate. 

 
Student performance is assessed four levels of achievement.  For all grade levels and 
content areas, the minimum scale score in Achievement Level 3 is identified as the passing 
score. 

 
The four achievement levels are: 

 
Level 1 
Students at this level do not demonstrate an adequate level of success with the 
Florida Standards Access Points. 

 
Level 2 
Students at this level demonstrate a limited level of success with the Florida 
Standards Access Points. 

 

Page 49 of 1019

DRAFT



 

31 
 

 
Level 3 
Students at this level demonstrate a satisfactory level of success with the Florida 
Standards Access Points. 

 
Level 4 
Students at this level demonstrate an above satisfactory level of success with the 
Florida Standards Access Points. 

 
NOTE:  Access courses can only be used for students with significant cognitive disabilities 
who are eligible for alternate assessment.  Determining the specific benchmarks within 
each strand and the functional level(s) applicable to a student shall be the responsibility of 
the IEP Committee. It is expected that only students with the most significant cognitive 
disabilities who are eligible under IDEA will participate in the FSAA. 

  

GUIDELINES FOR EXEMPTION OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS 
(ELL) 

English Language Learner (ELL) students, who have been in an English Language 
Program for less than two years and fail to meet district expectations on the state 
assessments in reading, shall be exempted for Good Cause from the third grade mandatory 
retention. 
 
All English Language Learners (ELL) who are identified as LY, or active ESOL learners 
are required to take the annual ACCESS 2.0 assessment in accordance with Rule 6A-
6.0902.  

REPORTING PUPIL PROGRESS 

 
Districts must annually report to the parent of each student the progress toward achieving 
state and district expectations for proficiency in reading, writing, science, social studies 
and mathematics, and the student’s results on each statewide assessment test.  The 
evaluation of each student’s progress must be based on the student’s classroom work, 
observations, tests, district and state assessments, and other relevant information. 

REPORT CARDS - F.S. 1003.33 

Student report cards will be issued every nine weeks.  Incomplete work must be completed 
for a grade within two weeks of the last day of the grading period.  This may not extend 
past the last day of school.  Extensions for illness or incapacitating accident must be 
approved by the Principal. 
 
 Report cards will contain: 

 
● The student’s academic performance in each class or course grades 3-6 based upon 

examinations as well as written papers, class participation, and other academic 

Page 50 of 1019

DRAFT



 

32 
 

performance criteria (performance will be considered at grade level unless 
otherwise stated) 

● The student’s conduct and behavior 
● The student’s attendance, including absences and tardies 

 
The final report card for a school year shall contain a statement indicating  end-of-the-
year status or performance or non-performance at grade level, acceptable or unacceptable 
behavior and attendance, and promotion or non-promotion. 
 
Students in Kindergarten – Second grade with significant cognitive disabilities and 
working on the Participatory or Supported Level Florida State Standards Access Points 
will be evaluated with a modified report card.  All other students will be evaluated with 
the standard grade  level report card. 
 

REPORT CARDS K-1 

The Report Cards for K-1 students will include grades earned in Language Arts, 
Mathematics, Social Studies, and Science/Health.  These grades are evaluated through the 
use of the following scale: 
  

E -  Excellent - Student consistently exceeds grade level expectations. (90% - 
100%) 

S -  Satisfactory - Student consistently meets grade level expectations. (70% - 
89%) 

N - Needs Improvement - Student does not consistently meets grade level 
expectations. (60% - 69%) 

U - Unsatisfactory - Student does not meet grade level expectations. (59% and 
below) 

 
Conduct and behavior is evaluated by the teacher using the following scale: 
 

O - Outstanding 
S - Satisfactory 
N - Needs Improvement 
U Unsatisfactory 

REPORT CARDS 2-6 

The Report Cards for 2-6 students will include grades earned in Language Arts, 
Mathematics, Social Studies, and Science/Health are evaluated through the use of the 
following scale: 

A 90  -  100 
B 80  -    89 
C 70  -    79 
D 60  -    69 
F 0 -       59 

Page 51 of 1019

DRAFT



 

33 
 

 
 

Conduct and behavior is evaluated by the teacher using the following scale: 
 
S Satisfactory 
N Needs Improvement 
U Unsatisfactory 

 
Students may also participate in courses such as physical education, music, art and 
technology. Performance or nonperformance in these classes may be communicated by the 
teacher via the district’s Parent Portal. 
 
EVERY GRADING PERIOD, THE TEACHER WILL INDICATE WHETHER 
THE STUDENT IS WORKING ON (ON GRADE LEVEL), OR BL (BELOW 
GRADE LEVEL) FOR ALL CORE ACADEMIC SUBJECTS. 
 

HONOR ROLL (GRADES 2-6 ONLY) 

To be eligible for the Honor Roll in grades 2-6, students must be working on grade level.  
Principals are encouraged to institute alternative methods to recognize the achievement of 
students who earn all “A’s” and/or “A’s and B’s” but are not working on grade level. 
 
For “A” Honor Roll: 
All “A’s” are required in: Language Arts, Math, Science/Health, and Social Studies.  
Resource grades (such as Art, Music, Physical Education, Technology) of Outstanding 
and/or Satisfactory are also required to remain on the Honor Roll.  Conduct grades do not 
count toward Honor Roll.  To attain year-long “A” honor roll the student must attain “A” 
honor roll each grading period during the year. 

 
For “A/B” Honor Roll: 
Grades of “A” or “B” are required in Language Arts, Math, Science/Health and Social 
Studies.  Resource grades (such as Art, Music, Physical Education, Technology) of 
Outstanding and/or Satisfactory are also required to remain on the Honor Roll.  Conduct 
grades do not count toward the Honor Roll.  To attain year-long honor roll for “AB” the 
student must achieve honor roll each grading period during the year.  

 

ELEMENTARY GRADE PLACEMENT K-6 

 
State law (1003.21(2)F.S.) places the responsibility for the placement of students with the 
school district. Parents or guardians may discuss a placement with school officials and ask 
for an explanation of the placement, and they may review the evidence the school used to 
make the placement. Parents or guardians cannot determine a student’s placement, unless 
otherwise provided by law, as in the case of a placement in a program for exceptional 
students or a dropout prevention program. School personnel should utilize available 

Page 52 of 1019

DRAFT



 

34 
 

resources to achieve parental understanding and cooperation regarding grade placement.  
The final decision for promotion or retention is the responsibility of the building 
Principal (1012.28(5)F.S.). 
 

MULTIPLE BIRTH SIBLINGS/CLASSROOM PLACEMENT (s.1003.06, F.S.) 

The parent of multiple birth siblings who are assigned to the same grade level and school 
may request that the school place the siblings in the same classroom or in separate 
classrooms.  The request must be made no later than 5 days before the first day of each 
school year or 5 days after the first day of attendance of students during the school year if 
the students are enrolled in the school after the school year commences.  The school may 
recommend the appropriate classroom placement for the siblings and may provide 
professional educational advice to assist the parent with the decision regarding appropriate 
classroom placement.  A school is not required to place multiple birth siblings in the same 
classroom if factual evidence of performance shows proof that the siblings should be 
separated or if the request would require the school district to add an additional class to the 
grade level of the siblings.  Further, at the end of the first grading period  following the 
multiple birth siblings’ enrollment in the school, if the principal of the school, in 
consultation with the teacher of each classroom in which the siblings are placed, determines 
that the requested classroom placement is disruptive to the school, the principal may 
determine the appropriate classroom  placement for the siblings.  A parent may appeal the 
principal’s decision in the manner provided by school district policy.  During an appeal, 
the multiple birth siblings must remain in the classroom chosen by the parent.  This does 
not affect the right or obligation involving placement decisions pertaining to students with 
disabilities under state law or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.  It also does 
not affect the right of a school district, principal, or teacher to remove a student from a 
classroom pursuant to school district discipline policies. 
 

PROMOTION 

Promotion is based on mastery performance standards approved by the State Board of 
Education according to Florida Statute 1003.41 for Pre-K through 12.  Progression from 
one grade to the other is determined in part by proficiency in reading, writing, science, and 
mathematics at each grade level as defined in the Florida State Standards.  This also 
includes proficiency in statewide assessments below which a student must receive 
remediation or be retained within an intensive program that is different from the previous 
year’s program and takes into account student learning style. 

 
No student may be assigned to a grade level based solely on age or other factors that 
constitute social promotion (F.S. 1008.25).  Social promotion occurs when a student is 
promoted based on factors other than the student achieving the district and state levels of 
performance for student progression.  A student fails to meet the state portion of the levels 
of performance for student progression when the student fails to achieve the required levels 
in reading, writing, mathematics, or science on the Florida Standards Assessment. 

 
Promotion, assignment, or retention normally will occur at the end of the school year or at 

Page 53 of 1019

DRAFT



 

35 
 

the end of summer school, if it is available.  The primary responsibility for determining 
each student’s performance and ability to function academically, socially, and emotionally 
in the next grade is that of the classroom teacher subject to review and final approval of 
the principal.   

 
Students in grade 6 must earn a promotion credit in Language Arts, Math, Science, and 
Social Studies to be promoted to 7th grade.  To earn a promotion credit a student must earn 
a “D” or better on grade level in the subject area.  A student may earn only one promotion 
credit in Summer School. A student can earn an additional promotion credit for promotion 
purposes through a state approved virtual instruction provider. 

 
Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) options are 
educational options that provide academically challenging curriculum or accelerated 
instruction. ACCEL options include whole-grade promotion, mid-year promotion, and 
subject-matter acceleration within the same school; virtual instruction in higher grade level 
subjects pursuant to S. 1002.3105 (2) (a).   

 
Additional ACCEL options include enriched science, technology, engineering, and math 
(STEM) coursework; enrichment programs; flexible grouping; and differentiated 
instruction.  

 
Parents should contact the school principal for information related to student eligibility 
requirements for participation in ACCEL options available within the principal’s school. 

 

STANDARDS FOR MID-YEAR PROMOTION OF RETAINED THIRD 
GRADERS – RULE 6A-1.094222 

Mid-year promotion of retained third grade students must occur during the first semester 
of the academic year. 

 
To be eligible, a student must demonstrate that he/she: 

 
● Is a successful and independent reader as demonstrated by reading at or above third 

grade level; and  
● Has progressed sufficiently to master appropriate fourth grade reading skills; and 
● Has at least a “C” average in reading, math, science, and social studies at the third 

grade level. 
  
The student must be able to demonstrate that he/she has the ability to perform satisfactorily 
at a fourth grade reading level consistent with the month of promotion to fourth grade as 
presented in the ELA Curriculum Guides. Evidence of demonstration of mastery will be: 
 

● Successful completion of a portfolio that meets state criteria in Rule 6A-1.094222; 
or 

● A score at the 45th percentile or higher on the SAT-10 reading test or iReady reading 
equivalent of the 50th percentile or above which is consistent with the month of 

Page 54 of 1019

DRAFT



 

36 
 

promotion to fourth grade. 
  
To promote a student by portfolio, there must be evidence of mastery of the third grade 
Florida State Standard Benchmarks for Language Arts and beginning mastery for fourth 
grade Language Arts.  The portfolio must meet the following requirements: 
 

 Be selected by the district; 
 Be an accurate picture of the student’s ability and include only student work that 

has been independently produced in the classroom; 
 Include evidence of mastery of the standards assessed by the grade 3 FSA ELA; 
 Include evidence of beginning mastery of grade 4 standards.  This includes multiple 

choice, text-based response, and passages that are approximately 50% literary text 
and 50% information text and; 

 Be signed by the teacher and the principal as an accurate assessment of the required 
reading skills. 

 
The RtI/MTSS Plan for any retained third grade student, who has been promoted mid-year 
to fourth grade, must continue to be implemented for the entire academic year. 

 

DETERMINATION REGARDING PROMOTION  

The basis for making the determination regarding promotion should reflect student 
performance according to: 

 
● Proficiency with state standards as determined by i-Ready diagnostic reports in 

grades K-8* 
● Student growth as determined by i-Ready diagnostic reports in grades K-8* 
● Classwork and formative/summative assessments (reported grades) 
● Performance on required statewide assessments 
● Other objective data presented by teacher (Achieve3000 Lexile Level, LLI Reading 

Level, etc.) 
 

Recommendation of the Individual Education Plan (IEP) team.  

ACCELERATION 

Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) options are 
educational options that provide academically challenging curriculum or accelerated 
instruction. ACCEL options include whole-grade and mid-year promotion; subject-matter 
acceleration; virtual instruction in higher grade level subjects; and the Credit Acceleration 
Program under s. 1003.4295. Additional ACCEL options include enriched science, 
technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM) coursework; enrichment programs; 
flexible grouping; and differentiated instruction. 

 
Each principal/school must establish student eligibility requirements for virtual instruction 
in higher grade level subjects. Each principal must also establish student eligibility 
requirements for whole grade promotion, mid-year promotion, and subject matter 

Page 55 of 1019

DRAFT



 

37 
 

acceleration when the promotion or acceleration occurs within the principal’s school. 
 

The school must carefully consider the effect of ACCEL options, especially mid-year and 
full-year promotion, on the student’s future social, emotional and academic performance.  

 
Acceleration Options: 
 
● Whole Grade Promotion – Promotion of a student occurring at the end of the 

school year from one grade to a grade higher than normal matriculation allows. The 
student will be monitored for the first four (4) weeks of the change of placement to 
assess progress. If acceleration is not appropriate for the student as determined by 
the principal, the student will be returned to the former placement. 

● Mid-year Promotion – A student remains coded in the grade level they are 
currently enrolled in and is placed in the next grade level for instruction. The 
student will be monitored every four (4) weeks of the change of placement to assess 
progress. If acceleration is not appropriate for the student as determined by the 
school principal, the student will be returned to the former placement. If 
appropriately placed, the student will be formally promoted to the next grade level 
mid-year. 

● Subject Matter Acceleration – A student that is placed with students at a more 
advanced grade level on campus for one or more subjects for a part of a day without 
being assigned to a higher grade. The student will be monitored every four (4) 
weeks of the change of placement to assess progress. If acceleration is not 
appropriate for the student as determined by the school principal, the student will 
be returned to the former placement. 
 

Parents should contact the school principal for information related to student eligibility 
requirements for participation in ACCEL options. 

 

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 

Students with disabilities must meet the state or district levels of performance for student 
progression unless the disabling condition prevents the student from attaining the required 
levels of performance in the regular curriculum in pursuit of a standard diploma.  In such 
cases, promotion will be determined by the IEP team and based on the student meeting the 
goals and objectives on the Individual Education Plan.  See Good Cause regarding 
mandatory grade 3 retention if applicable. 

 

REMEDIATION 

REMEDIATION K-6 

A student exhibiting substantial reading difficulty must receive intensive reading 
instruction both during and outside the literacy block. Remediation should also be 
supported in the content area subjects.  This must occur immediately following the 
identification of the reading deficiency.  The student must continue to be given reading 

Page 56 of 1019

DRAFT



 

38 
 

instruction until the deficiency is remedied. 
 

Any student who does not meet the district levels of performance in reading, writing, 
science, and mathematics or who does not meet the specific levels of performance on 
statewide assessments as determined by the Commissioner of Education, must be provided 
remediation through: 

 
● Additional diagnostic assessments, determined by the district, to identify the nature 

of the student’s difficulty and areas of academic need; and 
● Implementation of an individual intervention plan developed, in conjunction with 

a parent or guardian that is designed to assist the student( in meeting state and 
district expectations of proficiency. 

● Contingent upon available funds, access to the “Reading Scholarship Accounts” 
program. 

SECONDARY SCHOOL REFORM (TO INCLUDE SIXTH GRADE)  

(F.S. 1003.4156) 
 

In order to be promoted to grade 9, junior high students must successfully complete the 
following during their 6th, 7th and 8th grade years: 

 
● 3 courses in English Language Arts 
● 3 courses in Mathematics (Successful completion of a high school level Algebra 1 

or Geometry course is not contingent upon the student’s performance on the 
statewide, standardized end-of-course (EOC) assessment. However, to earn high 
school credit, the junior high student must take the EOC and pass the course, with 
the assessment constituting 30% of the final course grade.) 

● 3 courses in Social Studies (one of which must be Civics which includes a 
statewide, standardized EOC that constitutes 30% of the student’s final grade.  A 
middle grades/junior high student who transfers into the state’s public school 
system from out of country, out of state, a private school, or a home education 
program after the beginning of the second term/semester of grade “8” is not 
required to meet the civics education requirement for promotion IF the student’s 
transcript documents passage of three courses in social studies or two-year-long 
courses in social studies that include coverage of civics education.) 

● 3 courses in Science (Successful completion of a high school level Biology 1 course 
is not contingent upon the student’s performance on the statewide, standardized 
EOC assessment required under s. 1008.22.  However, to earn a credit for this 
course, the student must take the Biology 1 EOC, which constitutes 30% of the 
student’s final course grade, and earn a passing grade in the course.) 

● F.S. 1003.455 Requires one semester of physical education each year for students 
enrolled in grades 6-8. 
 

Sixth grade students who score Level 1 or 2 on the FSA ELA must complete a remedial 
course or a content area course in which remediation strategies are incorporated in course 
content the following year.  Students scoring a Level 2 on FSA Reading will be assessed 

Page 57 of 1019

DRAFT



 

39 
 

at the end of the sixth grade to determine placement in intensive reading or placement in a 
content area reading course in seventh grade. 

 
Sixth grade students who score Level 1 or 2 on the FSA Math must receive remediation 
that may be integrated into the required math course the next year.  Refer to page 19 for 
requirements of RtI Plans for students scoring Level 1 or 2 on FSA. 
 

SIXTH GRADE FAST TRACK PROGRAM 

This program allows selected 6th grade students to be promoted to the junior high should 
they meet the following criteria: 

 
● Student with 2 or more retentions 
● Student who is 13 years of age on or before September 1st 
● Student must attend summer school 
● Principal recommends for Fast Track; requires District Office approval 

 
Contact the school guidance counselor for more information. 

RETENTION 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Students failing to achieve district levels of expectation must receive remediation.  If, after 
remediation, they are still deficient, they may be retained. 

 
Recommended Steps for Retention Consideration 

 
● Identify potential students and verify whether the students are receiving support 

services through an active monitoring plan or Individual Education Plan or 504 
Plan. 

● In consultation with the principal, teachers will notify parents prior to the last nine 
weeks of the school year. 

● Students who have difficulty meeting promotion requirements should be evaluated 
for retention by the professional team (administrator, teacher, and counselor).  
Consideration should be given for a referral to the Response to Intervention 
Team/MTSS, Student Services Team, and/or counseling.  
 

No one test with a single administration should determine promotion or retention.  The 
preponderance of evidence from evaluations should determine if a student is ready for the 
work of the next grade level. 
 
The state board has adopted rules to prescribe limited circumstances in which a student 
may be promoted without meeting the specific assessment performance level prescribed 
by the district’s Student Progression Plan.  Such rules specifically address the promotion 
of the students with Limited English Proficiency and students with disabilities.  Refer to 
exemption for Good Cause regarding grade 3 students. 

Page 58 of 1019

DRAFT



 

40 
 

 
The school district must consider an appropriate alternative placement for a student who 
has been retained two (2) or more years. 

 
Students in grades K-6 being considered for retention may be recommended for academic 
tutoring or summer school, if available.  Student participation in these support services 
does not automatically result in promotion or retention.  The principal of the student’s 
assigned school makes the final decision regarding promotion or retention. 

MANDATORY GRADE 3 RETENTION AND SUPPORT (F.S. 1008.25) 

It is the ultimate goal of the Legislature that every student read at or above grade level.  
Any student who exhibits a substantial deficiency in reading, based upon locally 
determined or statewide assessments conducted in kindergarten or grade 1, grade 2, or 
grade 3, or through teacher observations, must be given intensive reading instruction 
immediately following the identification of the reading deficiency.   The student’s reading 
proficiency must be reassessed by locally determined assessments or through teacher 
observations at the beginning of the grade following the intensive reading instruction.  The 
student must continue to be provided with intensive reading instruction until the reading 
deficiency is remedied.  

 
If the student’s reading deficiency is not remedied by the end of the grade 3, as 
demonstrated by scoring at Level 2 or higher on the statewide assessment test in reading 
for grade 3, the student must be retained unless he/she is exempt from mandatory retention 
for Good Cause. 

 
If a grade 3 student transfers after the administration of the Florida Standards Assessment, 
it is up to the district to assess the student’s reading proficiency at the end of the year to 
determine if the student needs to repeat the third grade.  The assessment, identified by the 
state, is the SAT-10 or iReady Reading.  The student must score 45% or higher on the SAT-
10 or 50th percentile or higher on the iReady diagnostic to be eligible for promotion unless 
Good Cause is applicable.  A portfolio may also be presented to the principal.  See “Good 
Cause”. 

 
Retention of Limited English Proficient (LEP) students must be determined by a school’s 
LEP Committee, except in the case of mandatory retention for reading deficiencies in grade 
3.  See “Good Cause”. 

 
The parent of any student who exhibits a substantial deficiency in reading must be notified 
in writing of:  that deficiency, a description of the current services and proposed 
supplemental instructional services and supports; that the child will be retained unless he 
or she meets one of the Good Cause exemptions; the strategies for parents to use in helping 
their child succeed in reading proficiency; that the FSA is not the sole determiner of 
promotion; and the district’s specific criteria and policies for mid-year promotion. 

 
Each school district shall conduct a review of MTSS Plans (or Individual Education Plans 
for students with disabilities) for all retained third grade students who did not score above 

Page 59 of 1019

DRAFT



 

41 
 

Level 1 on the FSA ELA and did not meet one of the Good Cause exemptions, and shall 
address additional supports and services needed to remediate the deficiency. 

 
Third grade students who are retained must be provided intensive interventions in reading 
to eliminate the specific reading deficiency, as identified by a valid and reliable diagnostic 
assessment.  The intensive interventions must include:  effective instructional practices; 
participation in the district’s summer reading camp; and appropriate teaching 
methodologies. 

 
Each school district shall provide written notification to the parent of any third grade 
student who is retained that his or her child has not met requirement for promotion and the 
reasons the child is not eligible for a Good Cause exemption.  The notification must include 
a description of proposed interventions and supports that will be provided to the child. 

 
The school district shall require a student portfolio to be completed for each retained third 
grade student. 

 
Retained third grade students must be provided with intensive instructional services and 
supports to remediate the identified area of reading deficiency, including scientifically 
research-based reading instruction and other strategies, which may include, but are not 
limited to:  integration of science and social studies content within the reading block; small 
group instruction; reduced teacher-student ratios; more frequent progress monitoring; 
tutoring or mentoring; transition classes containing 3rd and 4th grade students; extended 
school day, week, or year (summer reading camps). 

 
Provide students who are retained with a highly effective teacher. 
 
Retained third grade students who have received intensive instructional services who 
subsequently score Level 1 must be offered the option of being placed in a transitional 
instructional setting.  Such a setting shall specifically be designed to produce learning gains 
sufficient to meet grade 4 performance standards while continuing to remediate the areas 
of reading deficiency. 

 

EXEMPTION FOR GOOD CAUSE 

GOOD CAUSE EXEMPTIONS FOR GRADE 3 

The district school board may only exempt students from mandatory retention in grade 3 
for Good Cause.  Good Cause exemptions shall be limited to the following: 

 
● Limited English proficient students who have had less than two years of instruction 

in an English for Speakers of Other Languages Program. 
● Students with disabilities whose Individual Education Plan indicates that 

participation in FSA is not appropriate. 
● Students who demonstrate an acceptable level of performance on an alternative 

standardized reading assessment approved by the State Board of Education.  (SAT-

Page 60 of 1019

DRAFT



 

42 
 

10 alternative assessment/iReady reading). 
● All grade 3 students new to the county or students who missed the reading portion 

of the FSA will be administered the an alternative assessment prior to the end of 
the school year.  All grade 3 students who scored Level 1 will also take the SAT-
10 at the end of Summer Reading Camp.  

● To promote a student using the SAT-10 as an alternative assessment Good Cause 
exemption, the grade 3 student scoring at Level 1 Reading FSA must score at or 
above the 45th percentile on a parallel form of the SAT-10.  The SAT-10 may only 
be administered TWO times.  The earliest the alternative assessment may be 
administered is following the receipt of the grade 3 student’s Reading FSA scores 
or during the last two weeks of school, whichever occurs first, for student 
promotion purposes.  The iReady scale score requirement for promotion is Reading 
535 or higher. 

● To promote a student by portfolio, there must be evidence of mastery of the third 
grade Florida State Standard Benchmarks for Language Arts and beginning 
mastery for fourth grade Language Arts.  The portfolio must meet the following 
requirements: 
 be selected by the district student’s teacher; 
 be an accurate picture of the student’s ability and include only student work 

that has been independently produced in the classroom; 
 include evidence of mastery of the standards benchmarks assessed by the 

grade 3 Reading FSA ELA (2015); 
 include evidence of beginning mastery of grade 4 standards. Benchmarks 

that are assessed by the grade 4 Reading FSA (2015).  This includes 
multiple choice, short text-based response, and extended response items and 
passages that are approximately 5060% literary text and 5040% information 
text, and are between 100-900 words with an average of 500 words.  For 
each benchmark, there must be three examples of mastery as 
demonstrated by a grade of “70%” or better;  and 

 be signed by the teacher and the principal as an accurate assessment of the 
required reading skills. 

● Students with disabilities who participate in the FSA and who have an Individual 
Education Plan or a Section 504 Plan that reflects that the student has received the 
intensive remediation in reading for more than two years but still demonstrates a 
deficiency in reading and was previously retained in K, 1, 2, or 3. 

● Students who have received the intensive remediation in reading for two or more 
years, but still demonstrate a deficiency in reading and who were previously 
retained in K-3 for a total of two years.  Intensive reading instruction for students 
so promoted must include an altered instructional day based upon a monitoring plan 
(or Individual Education Plans for students with disabilities) that included 
specialized diagnostic information and specific reading strategies for each student.  
The District School Board shall assist schools and teachers to implement reading 
strategies that research has shown to be successful in improving reading among low 
performing readers. 

● Students who have already been retained once in 3rd grade. 
 

Page 61 of 1019

DRAFT



 

43 
 

PRINCIPAL’S RESPONSIBILITY – GOOD CAUSE (F.S. 1008.25) 

 
Requests for Good Cause exemptions for students from the mandatory retention 
requirement shall be made consistent with the following: 

 
● Documentation shall be submitted from the student’s teacher to the school principal 

that indicates that the promotion of the student is appropriate and is based upon the 
student’s academic record.  In order to minimize paperwork requirements, such 
documentation shall consist only of the existing MTSS Plan, Individual 
Educational Plan, if applicable, report card, and student portfolio. 

● The school principal shall review and discuss such recommendation with the 
teacher and make the determination as to whether the student should be promoted 
or retained.  If the school principal determines that the student should be promoted 
based upon good cause guidelines, the principal should complete a good cause 
attestation form and send it to the District Reading Department.  The student should 
be coded as promoted within the FOCUS database.   
 

PROMOTION (K-2, 4-6) 

 
School personnel should utilize available resources to achieve parental understanding and 
cooperation regarding grade placement.  The final decision is the responsibility of the 
principal. 
 
A student may be considered for promotion, by the principal, to the next higher grade with 
the exception of mandatory retention for third grade.  The following reasons shall be the 
determining factor when making this decision for promotion: 

 
● Limited English proficient students who have had less than two years of instruction 

in an English for Speakers of Other Languages Program who have previously been 
retained at least one year in the grade grouping and are on a monitoring plan. 

● Students with disabilities whose Individual Education Plan indicates that 
participation in State/District standardized testing is not appropriate. 

● Students receiving intensive reading instruction for two or more years, mandatory 
retention in grade 3 and at least one additional year of retention but still has 
deficiency in reading.  If promoted under this exemption, intensive reading 
instruction must be provided the next year to include an altered instructional day 
based on an MTSS Plan (or Individual Education Plans for students with 
disabilities) that includes specialized diagnostic information and specific reading 
strategies. 

 
Request for exemption from retention for any student (K-2 or 4-6) with continuing reading 
deficiencies must be consistent with the following: 

 
● Documentation must be submitted by the student’s teacher to the principal that 

indicates that the promotion of the student is appropriate and is based on the 

Page 62 of 1019

DRAFT



 

44 
 

student’s academic record.  Such documentation can consist of the existing MTSS 
Plan, IEP, report card, student portfolio, or alternate testing and evaluations. 

● The principal must review and discuss the recommendation with the teacher(s), 
counselor and psychologist and determine promotion or retention.  If the principal 
determines that the child is to be promoted, he/she will sign the report card and 
indicate promoted.  A statement will be added to the report card stating the data on 
which promotion is based. 

 
For third grade students see Section on Mandatory Retention in Grade 3. 
 
A student may be assigned by the principal, to the same grade grouping (K-3 or 4-6) even 
if the student has previously been retained in that grade grouping.  Parents will be notified, 
in writing, of this placement. 

 
Any student may be assigned at any time during the school year to a lower grade if the 
principal determines standards have not been met and the student will benefit from the 
placement.  Parents will be notified of the special assignment, and it will be documented 
in the student’s record. 

 
Districts shall implement a policy for the mid-year promotion of any retained third grade 
student who can demonstrate that he or she is a successful and independent reader, reading 
at or above grade level, and ready to be promoted to grade 4.  Reevaluating any retained 
third grade student may include subsequent assessments, alternative assessments, and 
portfolio reviews in accordance with rules of the State Board of Education.  Students 
promoted during the school year after November 1 must demonstrate proficiency above 
that required to score at Level 2 on the grade 3 FSA as determined by the State Board.  See 
Mid-Year Promotion. 

 
The placement of a student to a higher grade which results in advancing a grade, or part of 
a grade, should be based on evidence that the child will benefit from the instructional 
program in the advanced grade.  Parents will be notified of the placement, and it will be 
documented in the student’s record. 

 
The principal should receive input from the Exceptional Student Education student’s 
Individual Education Plan or Educational Plan regarding the appropriateness of placement.  
 

EXTENDED DAY PROGRAMS 

DEFINITION 

The definition for extended day programs includes academic tutoring programs during the 
regular school term.  Elementary schools, within the district, may provide academic 
tutoring before or after school, Saturdays or other days that school are not regular school 
days in addition to Summer Reading Camp.  The purpose of the extended day program is 
to provide support for the students at risk of academic failure during the school term instead 
of waiting until the summer to provide remedial instruction. 

Page 63 of 1019

DRAFT



 

45 
 

 
The principal’s approval to recommend the student for academic tutoring or Summer 
Reading Camp should be made on the basis of the student’s need to meet the district and 
state levels of performance in reading and writing.  Grade 3 students who score Level 1 on 
the Florida Standards Assessment will be targeted for Summer Reading Camp. 

 

STUDENT ELIGIBILITY FOR ACADEMIC TUTORING AND SUMMER 
READING CAMP 

Basic Education students, who were enrolled in Clay County Schools in the previous year, 
will qualify if they have a current monitoring plan or who meet individual school criteria 
for eligibility for available tutoring. 

 
Students in grade 3, mandatorily retained, will be given the opportunity to attend Summer 
Reading Camp. The purpose of summer reading camp is to provide intensive reading 
remediation and to provide retained students with an additional opportunity for promotion 
to fourth grade. The district policy for Summer Reading Camp attendance requires that 
students not miss more than two days of camp. In the event a student is absent more than 
two days he/she will be dropped from summer reading camp and will not have the 
opportunity to take the SAT-10 test at the conclusion of camp.  In addition, repeated tardy 
or late pick-up (three or more) may also result in the student being dropped from the 
Summer Reading Camp program.  This attendance policy is in place to ensure that students 
are provided with maximum time for intensive instruction. 

 
Students may make prior arrangements to take the SAT-10 at their district school on the 
last day of reading camp if they are taking remedial instruction through a private program. 

 
In addition to the above criteria Exceptional Student Education (ESE) students may qualify 
if the IEP team determines extended school year services are necessary. 
 
English Language Learner (ELL) students are eligible. 
 
Sixth grade students may attend summer school to remediate one course. A student can 
earn an additional promotion credit for promotional purposes through a state approved 
virtual instruction provider. 

 
On a case by case basis Principals may determine whether previously retained, over-aged 
sixth graders may benefit by repeating one summer school course to be “conditionally 
promoted” to 7th grade where additional remediation must occur. (See Secondary PPP) 

REQUIRED PROGRAM OF STUDY K-6 

The required program of study for elementary students in Clay County District Schools 
reflects state and local requirements for Elementary Education, including but not limited 
to, the Florida State Standards. 

Page 64 of 1019

DRAFT



 

46 
 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS AVAILABLE 

TITLE I BASIC READING AND MATHEMATICS ACADEMIC SERVICES 

Title I is a federally funded program designed to supplement basic education in core 
curriculum area of reading, math, science, and writing. 

 

VIRTUAL SCHOOL (F.S. 1002.45) 

Clay Virtual Academy (CVA) is a school choice option for K-12 full and part-time   
students who reside in Clay County.  Public, private or homeschool students may take 
classes with CVA. Students taking CVA for full time enrollment outside of Clay County 
must be released from their county of residence. 

 
CVA offers full time/part-time enrollment as a franchise of Connections and FLVS, but 
also offers other full time programs through Pasco County Virtual School and FLVS (full 
time and flex). Part-time classes are available for students in 6 grade for any student who 
wishes to take additional classes and for 4th and 5th grade students who qualify based on 
state assessments. Elementary students who enroll directly with FLVS/Connections 
Academy as a school choice option are no longer considered Clay County enrollees but 
may still participate in state test and extracurricular activities at their zoned schools. 
 
Applications for CVA are accepted only during open enrollment periods listed on the CVA 
website, cva.oneclay.net.  Applications are considered without regard to age, disability, 
race, national origin, religion, or gender.  The application process is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that students will be successful in their academic work.  Acceptance to CVA at 
any other time than an open enrollment period is only under extenuating circumstances and 
require administrative and guidance counselor approval. No students may enroll or exit 
after Survey 2 until semester.   

 

CVA STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY 
Students are required to follow a pace chart (secondary) or scheduler (elementary). If a 
student does not stay on pace, they are considered absent based on pace/scheduler.  This 
can impact attendance and future enrollment in the school.  If students do not maintain 
pace, working consecutively on required assignments, they will be withdrawn in the first 
21 days of a course with no penalty. Even if a student is ahead of pace, weekly submission 
is required in each course. This is monitored closely by teachers and administration. If a 
student cannot independently succeed in the virtual setting, it is in the best interest of the 
student to attend a traditional school where daily monitoring and assistance in time 
management and task completion can occur.  
 
Students have a 21 day grace period starting from the course activation date to drop a 
course.  Students must be on pace in each course in the first 21 days with passing grades 
or they will be withdrawn from their course(s) at that point. Students who do this will be 
withdrawn without a grade NG. Students who withdraw after the 21 day period will be 
issued a W/P or W/F, and if over 50% complete, a failing grade. When students add 

Page 65 of 1019

DRAFT



 

47 
 

courses, the educational suitability and availability of courses will be considered before an 
approval will be granted. Changes will only be considered in the first 21 days.  If a student 
seeks to enter back into a class at their zoned school, class size caps established by the state 
may disallow that change. After the 21 day grace period, the student may have to complete 
the course online. Administrators and guidance counselors will interpret this. 
 

VOLUNTARY PRE-KINDERGARTEN PROGRAM (VPK) 

The free Voluntary Prekindergarten Program will be offered at selected school sites during 
the summer and during the regular school year.  Parents must provide transportation.  In 
order to be eligible, the parent/guardian must: 

 
● Provide a certificate of eligibility from Episcopal Children’s Services. 
● Provide a registered birth certificate indicating the child will be four years old on 

or before September 1st of the year of participation in VPK.  They must be eligible 
to enter Kindergarten in the fall following VPK. 

● Provide a physical dated within one year of the school entry date.  Exemptions will 
be granted on religious grounds upon receiving written request from 
parents/guardian stating objections to the examination (F.S. 1003.22).  A homeless 
child as defined by F.S. 1003.01, shall be given temporary exemption for 30 days. 

● Provide a valid DH 680 Florida Certificate of Immunization or DH 681 Florida 
Certificate of Religious Exemption for Immunization.  This is the only document 
schools are permitted to accept as proof of immunization. 

● Provide a Social Security Number (District request). 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS (ELL)  

The ELL Program is designed to meet the communication and academic needs of students 
whose native language is one other than English. These students will receive 
comprehensive instruction utilizing ELL strategies based on curriculum frameworks and 
guides that provide them equal access to appropriate instruction. 

  
Placement  
An ELL Committee, which is composed of the principal or designee, an ESOL/ELA 
teacher, a guidance counselor, and any other personnel who may be responsible for the 
language instruction of the ELL, shall make recommendations concerning appropriate 
placement, along with the parent or guardian of the student being reviewed. 
 
The program of study for English language learners is determined by the student’s current 
level of English proficiency and academic potential as evidenced by transcripts, language 
screening, performance data, and/or age appropriate grade placement policies. (Rule 6A-
6.904 F.A.C.) 

  
Assessment  
In accordance with federal mandates outlined in ESSA, all ELLs (K-12) must participate 
in the annual English language proficiency assessment in order to evaluate their progress 
in English language acquisition, and must also participate in statewide assessments, 

Page 66 of 1019

DRAFT



 

48 
 

regardless of their Date of Entry. 
  

Retention  
Promotion or retention decisions will not be based solely on scores from any single 
assessment instrument. ELLs cannot be retained based on their lack of English proficiency 
alone. Retention of an English language learner is based on failure to meet requirements in 
reading, writing, science, social studies, and mathematics, based on: 

 
● Academic performance and progress using assessment instruments in both English 

and their native language, 
● Attendance, progress reports, and age of the student, 
● Number of years the student has been enrolled in the ESOL program, and 
● The student’s current level of English language proficiency. (Rule 6A-1.09432 F. 

A. C.) 
  

Exit Procedures 
Students may be exited from the ESOL Program either by satisfying exit criteria or through 
the ELL committee, at which time they will remain on a monitored status for two additional 
years. 

 
DROPOUT PREVENTION AND ACADEMIC INTERVENTION PROGRAMS 

MULTI-TIER SYSTEM OF SUPPORT 
Within a multi-tiered system of supports, resources are allocated in direct proportion to 
student needs.  Data will be collected at each tier and used to measure the effectiveness of 
the supports so that meaningful decisions can be made about which instruction and 
interventions should be maintained and layered.  (See Multi-Tiered System of Supports)  

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION 
Programs are available to students determined eligible for exceptional student education 
(3-21 years of age) as described in the Exceptional Student Education Policies and 
Procedures document which is approved by the Florida Department of Education and the 
School Board of Clay County.  Referrals to the Student Services Team may be initiated by 
school personnel or parents.  Special provisions regarding exemption from general 
statewide assessment are addressed in the student’s Individual Educational Plan.  Gifted 
education, for qualified students, is available K-12.   

HOSPITAL/HOMEBOUND 
This program is available to K-12 students and PreK Exceptional Student Education 
students who are physically or emotionally too ill to attend school.  These students may 
continue their academic instruction in the home or in the hospital.  Eligibility is determined 
by an attending physician or psychiatrist certifying that the student is non-contagious and 
expected to be in a home/hospital program for fifteen (15) school days or longer, or has a 
chronic condition  requiring extended absence. 

 

Page 67 of 1019

DRAFT



 

49 
 

SECONDARY EDUCATION 

ARTICULATED ACCELERATION  

Articulated acceleration will serve either to shorten the length of time necessary for a 
student to complete the requirements associated with a postsecondary degree or to increase 
the depth of study available for a particular subject.  This shall include, but shall not be 
limited to, the following: 
 

● Dual Enrollment (DE) courses 
● Advanced Placement (AP) courses 
● International Baccalaureate (IB) courses and Preliminary IB courses 
 Advanced International Certificate of Education (AICE) 
● Virtual Education Options; including CVA and Florida Virtual School (FLVS) 
● Industry Certifications that articulate to Post secondary credit as identified by the 

Florida Department of Education, Gold Articulation Agreements. 
 

Schools will notify parents of students currently in/or entering high school of the 
opportunity and benefits of accelerated coursework.   
 
It is the policy of the School District of Clay County to purchase tests for students who 
meet the following criteria involving AP, IB and AICE tests: 
   

● A student must be enrolled in the course in order to be eligible to take the exam, 
except in the case of CAP for AP tests; 

● The student must earn a “C” or higher in order for the school to purchase a test for 
that student, except in the case of CAP for AP tests; 

● CAP students and home-schooled students who are not enrolled through Clay 
Virtual Academy but wish to take an exam may do so at a non-refundable fee (the 
cost of the test at that time).  Checks must be made payable to the “School District 
of Clay County.” 

 
Dual Enrollment – Students, who qualify for Dual Enrollment may take certain college 
classes from specified institutions within the Florida Postsecondary Articulation 
Agreement and receive high school and college credit.  These classes have no tuition fees 
and books are provided free of charge. This includes home school students who enroll 
through Clay Virtual Academy.  Please contact your high school guidance office for 
eligibility requirements and specific information.  These courses may be taken either on 
or off the high school campus for credit. Courses taken on the college campus may be 
taken during the day or evening.  Students may be released for the courses from the high 
school campus since these courses would be considered part of their daily schedule.  Dual 
Enrollment courses shall not be combined with any other course. 
 

Early Admissions – Early admissions is a form of dual enrollment permitting high school 

Page 68 of 1019

DRAFT



 

50 
 

students to enroll in college or career courses on a full-time basis. As with all dual 
enrollment programs, students earn both high school and college/career credits for courses 
completed. Career early admissions is a form of career dual enrollment through which 
eligible secondary students enroll full time in a career center or a Florida College System 
institution in postsecondary programs leading to industry certifications, as listed in the 
CAPE Postsecondary Industry Certification Funding List pursuant to s. 1008.44.  These 
students are entitled under rule and law to all rights and privileges allowed for all seniors 
included, but not limited to, participation in class activities (i.e. grad night, prom, etc.), 
rank in class, and eligibility for class Valedictorian or Salutatorian. 

ASSESSMENT EXEMPTION 

A child with a medical complexity may be exempt from participating in statewide, 
standardized assessments, including FAA if based upon medical documentation from a 
physician that the student is medically fragile and needs intensive care due to a condition 
such as congenital disorder or acquired multi-system disease; has a severe neurological or 
cognitive disorder with marked functional impairment; or is technology dependent for 
activities of daily living and lacks the capacity to perform on an assessment. The student, 
if the IEP determines that the student qualifies, has the following options: 
 

● One year exemption, if approved by the superintendent, from all statewide 
assessments. 

● One to three year exemption, if approved by the superintendent, from all statewide 
assessments. 

● Permanent exemption, if approved by the superintendent, from all statewide 
assessments. 

ATTENDANCE 

 
Florida Law (Section 1003.21, Florida Statutes) states that all children who are either six 
years of age, who will be six years old by February 1 of any school year, or who are older 
than six years of age but who have not attained the age of 16 years, must attend school 
regularly during the entire school term. 
 
The “Every Student Succeeds Act” changes the focus of attendance.  Instead of focusing 
on Truancy, the focus is narrowed to Chronic Absences.  There has been a shift from 
punitive measures to preventive and supportive interventions.  The process is driven by 
data which ensures accountability.  A multi-tiered model of interventions should be 
established in each school.  Tier one interventions should be implemented school-wide and 
can include contests, recognition of good/improved attendance etc.  Tier two interventions 
are teacher/classroom based, and Tier three interventions are implemented by a 
multidisciplinary team.  Once Tier one and Tier two interventions have been implemented 
for attendance without improvement, a referral should be made to the multidisciplinary 
team.  The team should schedule a meeting with and obtain input from the teacher.  The 
parent and the student will be invited to the intervention meeting.  The intervention team 
should have regular meetings.  These meetings not only provide prevention and 

Page 69 of 1019

DRAFT



 

51 
 

intervention, but follow-up meetings are held to check-in on prior attendees. The goal of 
the team is to develop a plan to help the student become more successful by utilizing 
strategies specific to each student including, but not limited to: 
 

● Changes in the learning environment 
● Implementation of an incentive plan 
● Mentoring 
● Student/family counseling 
● Tutoring 
● Evaluation of credits, and alternative educational options 
● Attendance contracts 
● Agency referrals 
● Remediation plan to help the student with make-up work 

 
For the intervention plan to be successful, the plan must be achievable.  If the team 
determines it is appropriate to accept make-up work for unexcused absences, the Principal 
or Designee will seek input from the team, including the teacher and make a final 
determination.  The intervention plan and the student’s response should be monitored.  If 
the team has concerns, there should be discussion about what is working and what needs 
to be re-addressed.  Referring the student for consequences should not be considered until 
all resources have been exhausted.  The decision to proceed with a CINS petition or 
Referral to the Truancy Arbitration Program is a decision the intervention team will make 
when the members agree that a referral should be made. 
 

HABITUAL TRUANCY 

“Habitual truant” means a student who has 15 unexcused absences within 90 calendar days 
with or without the knowledge or consent of the student’s parent, is subject to compulsory 
school attendance under s.1003.21(1) and (2) (a), and is not exempt under s.1003.21 (3) or 
s.1003.24, or by meeting the criteria for any other exemption specified by law or rules of 
the State Board of Education. Such a student must have been the subject of the activities 
specified in s.1003.26 and s.1003.27 (3), without resultant successful remediation of the 
truancy problem before being dealt with as a child in need of services. 
 
Truancy Procedures: If a student has had at least five (5) unexcused absences, or absences 
for which the reasons are unknown, within a calendar month or 10 unexcused absences, or 
absences for which the reasons are unknown, within a 90-calendar day period, Tier 2 
interventions should be implemented.  If these are not successful, the primary teacher shall 
report to the school Principal or his or her designee that the student may be exhibiting a 
pattern of nonattendance. F.S.1003.26. 
 
The multidisciplinary team shall be diligent in facilitation intervention services and shall 
report the child to the Superintendent only when all reasonable efforts to resolve non-
attendance behavior are exhausted. F.S. 1003.23(1)(d). 
 

● If the parent or guardian in charge of the student refuses to participate in the 

Page 70 of 1019

DRAFT



 

52 
 

remedial strategies because he or she believes that those strategies are unnecessary 
or inappropriate, the parent or guardian in charge of the student may appeal to the 
school board. F.S.1003.26(1)(e).. 

● If the board’s final determination is that the strategies of the multidisciplinary Team 
are appropriate, and the parent or guardian in charge of the student still refuses to 
participate or cooperate, the Superintendent may seek criminal prosecution for non 
compliance with compulsory school attendance. s. 1003.26(1)(e), F.S 

● If nonattendance continues after the implementation of intervention strategies, the 
Superintendent or designee shall file a CINS petition, defined in s.984.15, F.S. The 
school representative, a parent, law enforcement, a court, or the DJJ shall initiate a 
referral to a CINS provider or a case staffing committee established pursuant to s. 
984.12, F.S., and procedures established by the district school board. The purpose 
of the referral to CINS is to secure prevention services for a habitually truant 
student and the family (F.S.1003.27(3). Prior to the filing of the CINS petition, 
reasonable time must be allowed to complete interventions to remedy conditions 
contributing to the truant behavior and must comply with the requirements of 
F.S.1003.26. 
 

EXCUSED/UNEXCUSED ABSENCES 

 
An absence from school under the following circumstances shall be considered excused: 
 

● With permission – The absence was with the knowledge and consent of the 
principal of the school, which the student attends. 

● Sickness, injury or other insurmountable condition – Attendance was impracticable 
or inadvisable on account of sickness or injury, or was impracticable because of 
some other stated insurmountable condition. 

● Absence for religious instruction or holidays – A student with the written consent 
of his or her parent/guardian shall be excused from attendance in school on a 
particular day or days, or at a particular time of day, and shall be excused from any 
examination, study or work assignment at such time to participate in religious 
instruction, for observance of a religious holiday or because tenets of his or her 
religion forbid secular activity at such time. The principal shall reserve the right to 
refuse a student’s request for released time, if according to the provisions of the 
district’s student progression plan: 
 The student is not enrolled in sufficient courses to allow for the student’s 

promotion or graduation, and thus the released time would not be equivalent 
to an optional period. 

 The student’s grades/academic progress is insufficient to allow for the 
student’s promotion or graduation.  Absences approved for religious 
reasons do not affect perfect attendance. 

● Absences due to head lice will be excused, up to 2 days per incident and for a total 
of 10 days per school year. After a student has accumulated 10 excused absences 
due to head lice during a school year, further absences due to head lice will be 
considered unexcused. Unusual circumstances may be addressed by the principal 

Page 71 of 1019

DRAFT



 

53 
 

to go beyond these 10 days for excused absences. 
 
It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to provide a written statement to the school 
explaining the absence within three (3) school days following the return of the student to 
school. 
 
If a student is continually sick and repeatedly absent from school, he or she must be under 
the supervision of a physician in order to receive an excuse from attendance. Such excuse 
provides that a student’s condition justifies absence for more than 5 days per grading 
period/10 days per semester/20 days per year. The principal of the school shall determine 
when it is necessary to require a physician’s statement from the student’s medical provider 
and required the parent/guardian to provide a copy to their child’s school within a 
reasonable period of time as determined by the principal or designee. 
 
An absence from school under the following circumstances may be considered unexcused: 
 

● The absence was without the parent/guardian’s knowledge, consent or connivance. 
● Permission for the absence was requested but denied by the principal of the 

student’s school. 
● No written statement of the absence from the parent/guardian has been received by 

the school explaining the reason for the absence within three (3) school days 
following the return of the student to schools. 

 
The principal has administrative discretion in cases of excessive absences to reject a written 
note and consider the absence as unexcused when absences are seriously impacting 
academic progress, with the exception of sickness, injury or insurmountable conditions. 
 
Accumulated unexcused tardy and early departure time equivalent to one full school day 
may be counted as one unexcused absence in the total number of unexcused absences 
required for possible legal action. 
 
Missed instructional time due to tardiness and early departures shall be accumulated as 
excused or unexcused using the same policies as for absent days. 
 
Pertaining to children of military families, students may receive 5 excused days when the 
absences are due to a parent/guardian leaving for active duty, on leave from active duty or 
returning from deployment (FS-1000.36). 

In no instance will an academic penalty be used for a “Code of Conduct” violation. 
 
Attendance for Clay Virtual Academy students will be documented as 
follows: 
 

● Students in grades K-5 must log in each school day; 
● Students in grades 6-12 must follow their pace chart and be on pace; 
● Any day a  K-5 student does not log in is considered an absence unless otherwise 

approved by a CVA administrator or guidance counselor; 

Page 72 of 1019

DRAFT



 

54 
 

● Any week a 6-12 student completes less than their pace chart % of the coursework, 
an absence equal to the percentage below 5 will be documented unless otherwise 
approved by a CVA administrator or designee. 

 

Perfect Attendance is awarded to students that have been neither absent or tardy. 
Perfect attendance will be awarded to those students who have been present in school 
every day, with no absences or tardies. If a student is not in attendance for half of the 
school day he/she would be considered as absent for purposes of “perfect attendance”.  If 
a student is checked out after 10:00 a.m. they are considered present and “perfect 
attendance” is not affected.  (SDCC Policy 4.02 G)  Clay Virtual Academy students are 
not eligible for perfect attendance. 

BRIGHT FUTURES SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 

The “Bright Futures Scholarship Program” is intended to reward any Florida high school 
graduate who merits recognition of high academic achievement and who enrolls in an 
eligible Florida public or private post-secondary educational institution within 3 years of 
high school graduation.  If a student enlists directly into the military after graduation, the 
3-year period begins upon date of separation of active duty.  If a student has a full-time 
religious or service obligation lasting at least 18 months, the two-year eligibility period for 
an initial award and the five-year period for renewal begin upon completion of the 
obligation. The “Bright Futures Scholarship Program” is the umbrella program for state-
funded scholarships based on academic achievement in high school that were formerly 
provided through such programs as the “Florida Academic Scholars” and “Gold Seal 
Programs”.  High school guidance departments can provide specific details about meeting 
the program's criteria.  The following information covers the basic components of the 
“Bright Futures Scholarship Program”: 

● 4-Levels of scholarship awards – Florida Academic Scholars (FAS); Florida 
Medallion Scholars (FMS); Florida Gold Seal Vocational Scholars (GSV); Florida 
Gold Seal CAPE Scholars (GSC) 

● For all 4 awards, the student must earn a Florida high school diploma and meet the 
requirements for the specific award. 

● Each award has its own academic requirements, award amounts and funding length.  
A student may receive funding for only one award with the highest award earned 
being selected. 

● Earn the 16 core credits 
● Achieve the required Grade Point Average or Industry Certification depending on 

the level received. 
● Achieve the required SAT, ACT or PERT test scores for the level received 
● Perform required number of voluntary service hours based on the level received 

 
More information about the Bright Futures program, along with other Florida scholarship 
opportunities, can be found at www.FloridaStudentFinancialAid.org. 

Page 73 of 1019

DRAFT



 

55 
 

CALCULATING GRADES AND GRADE POINT AVERAGE 

Semester grades will be calculated by multiplying each quarter (9-weeks) numeric grade 
by .45 (45%), multiplying the semester exam by .10 (10%), and adding the products 
together. For semester courses, a final average of “60” and above equals ½ credit.  Courses 
that have “End-of-Course” (EOC) exams will receive full credit at the conclusion and then 
have the GPA calculated.  For athletic purposes, the semester grades will be calculated to 
determine eligibility status. 
 
The District will maintain a one-half credit earned system including full-year courses with 
credits posted after each semester.  For year-long courses, if a student fails one semester, 
but passes the other semester with a high enough grade to achieve a passing average for 
the year, the student will receive a full credit (1) for the course. For courses that require an 
“End-of-Course” assessment which is 30% of the final grade, the District will determine 
the calculations and disseminate to the schools.  The primary responsibility for assigning 
grades rests with the teacher with final approval of the Principal.  Parents and students are 
urged to contact the school about this calculation.  Please see the section on “Graduation 
Options” for more information about EOC’s and diplomas. 
 
In calculating GPA for graduation and eligibility purposes, all courses taken must be used 
in determining the final GPA.  This calculation includes all virtual courses taken.  “WP” 
and “WF” indicators in virtual courses are not counted in the GPA calculations. Quality 
points are assigned by each semester average (A = 4, B = 3, C = 2, D = 1, F = 0).  Students 
must have a 2.0 GPA on a 4.0 scale in order to meet graduation requirements and receive 
a “Standard,” “Scholar,” or “Merit” diploma.  All credit-earning courses taken in grades 7-
12 and through virtual programs will count in the cumulative GPA calculations.  For 
purpose of class rank only credit earning courses taken in grades 9-12 and through virtual 
programs during those years will be counted. Courses in which “grade forgiveness” 
policies have been applied are exempt. 
 
All courses designated as “Honors,” (this includes “Pre-AICE and Pre-IB”) will be 
weighted as “4.5” on the weight scale for Clay County schools.  “Level 3” Career and 
Technical Education courses will be weighted on a “4.5” basis.  Courses designated as 
“Dual Enrollment, Advanced Placement, AICE and International Baccalaureate” will be 
weighted at “5.0.”  

CLAY VIRTUAL ACADEMY 

Clay Virtual Academy (CVA) is a school choice option for K-12 full and part-time students 
who reside in Clay County.  Public, private or homeschool students may take classes with 
CVA. CVA offers full time/part-time enrollment as a franchise of FLVS, but also offers 
other full time programs through other providers (local districts, virtual charter schools, 
and/or FLVS full time and flex).  Students may  opt  to  take  7th   or  8th   period  courses  
through  Clay Virtual Academy (a franchise of FLVS) or FLVS  for acceleration, original 
credit or grade forgiveness. For more information please see your guidance counselor or 
cva.oneclay.net. 

Secondary students who enroll directly with FLVS/Connections Academy as a school 

Page 74 of 1019

DRAFT



 

56 
 

choice option are no longer considered Clay County enrollees but may still participate in 
state test and extracurricular activities at their zoned schools. 
 
Clay Virtual Academy is a school of choice and may not be able to accommodate all 
students. 
 

● Clay County shall not deny access to any District approved online courses assuming 
that the desired online course(s) is an appropriate course placement based on the 
students’ academic history, grade level, ability level and age appropriateness.  This 
program is available to full-time and/or part-time students in virtual courses in 6-
12 (FS.1002.45); 

● CVA offers numerous courses during the school year, including Honors courses 
and Advanced Placement (AP) courses.  CVA course grades are accepted for credit 
and are transferable.  CVA is considered part of the Clay County school system and 
has accreditation status AdvancEd and the courses are approved by the NCAA; 

● The student may participate at their zoned school’s graduation if at the time of 
enrollment during their senior year they are in good standing with the zoned school.  
Any student recommended for an alternative educational setting for disciplinary 
reasons may not participate in the commencement exercises at their zoned school; 
including students who enroll at CVA in lieu of the recommended alternative 
educational setting. 

 
Applications for CVA are accepted only during open enrollment periods listed on the CVA 
website, cva.oneclay.net. Applications are considered without regard to age, disability, 
race, national origin, religion, or gender.  The application process is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that students will be successful in their academic work.  Acceptance to CVA at 
any other time than an open enrollment period is only under extenuating circumstances and 
requires administrative and guidance counselor approval. No students may enroll or exit 
after Survey 2 until semester, nor after Survey 3.  

STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY 

Students are required to follow a pace chart. If a student does not stay on pace, they are 
considered absent based on pace/scheduler.  This can impact attendance and future 
enrollment in the school.  If students do not maintain pace, working consecutively on 
required assignments, they will be withdrawn in the first 21 days of a course with no 
penalty.  Even if a student is ahead of pace, weekly submission is required in each course. 
This is monitored closely by teachers and administration. If a student cannot independently 
succeed in the virtual setting, it is in the best interest of the student to attend a traditional 
school where daily monitoring and assistance in time management and task completion can 
occur.  

Students have a 21 day grace period starting from the course activation date to drop a 
course.  Students must be on pace in each course in the within the first 21 days with passing 
grades or they will be withdrawn from their course(s). Students who do this will be 
withdrawn without a grade (NG). Students who withdraw after the 21 day period will be 
issued a W/P or W/F, and if over 50% complete, a failing grade. When students add 

Page 75 of 1019

DRAFT



 

57 
 

courses, the educational suitability and availability of courses will be considered before an 
approval will be granted. Changes will only be considered in the first 21 days.  If a student 
seeks to enter back into a class at their zoned school, class size caps established by the state 
may disallow that change. After the 21 day grace period, the student may have to complete 
the course online.  

COLLEGE READY TEST SCORES 

 
ACT 
Reading 19 
Math 19 
SAT 
Verbal 440 
Math 440 
PERT 
Reading 106 
Writing 103 
Math 114 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE COURSES             
Credit by “correspondence courses” shall not be accepted unless transferred in as part of 
an official transcript from another accredited school or district.  Credit used for this type of 
course through  a  state  or  regionally  accredited  school  is  required  to  be  accepted  at  
face  value Acceptable nationally recognized accreditation organization. 

COURSE SEQUENCING/JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL COURSE 
SEQUENCING/JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL 
Students are generally required to enroll in a full year of mathematics, language arts, 
science, social studies and physical educations courses in grades 7 and 8.  (Please see the 
section entitled “Physical Education” to obtain more information on the P.E. waiver.)  The 
core courses mentioned above are offered at various levels with the school making 
recommendations on the placement of the student.  Unless students receive the P.E. waiver, 
they will have P.E. and an elective during the school day.  Students may choose from a 
Career and Technical Education course and/or a Visual and Performing Arts course for 
their elective.   

Social Studies at the Junior High level includes a Civics course which has an EOC attached 
to the course counting for 30% of the students’ final grade.  In addition, the student must 
pass the course in order to eventually be promoted to the 9th grade.  The U.S. History course 
will include Florida History, the Declaration of Independence content and its’ relationship 
to our government, the Federalist papers, and the U.S. Constitution.   

Page 76 of 1019

DRAFT



 

58 
 

Junior High students taking Algebra and Geometry will have an End of Course Exam 
(EOC) in addition to the 7th grade Civics EOC.  Courses requiring an EOC exam will have 
state mandated rules attached.   Algebra I, Geometry and Civics EOC results account for 
30% of the students’ overall grade.  Students in Junior High must pass the course with a 
“60” or above in order to receive the credit and be promoted.  Students will have several 
opportunities to take the exam in order to receive the passing score.   

Students in 7th and 8th grade may enroll in high school credit earning courses approved by 
the District.  This enables the student to earn high school credits as well as meeting the 
junior high school promotional requirements.  Clay Virtual Academy offers accelerated 
courses for qualified students that may allow Junior High students to accelerate into High 
School math, science, computers and business skills and/or foreign language 
credits. Common courses approved by the District for high school credit are: Algebra 1, 
Geometry, Spanish, Digital Information Technology (The focus of this course is to teach 
students the “Microsoft Office Suite” software which will prove to be valuable to students whether 
or not they choose to take business classes in the future.  Students must score a “Level 3” or higher 
on the 7th grade “Reading FSA” and possess proficient keyboarding skills to be eligible.) and 
Agricultural Foundations.  Digital Information Technology will count towards the Fine 
Arts/Practical Arts graduation requirements and is a full-year course.  These courses will 
be offered based on demand and teacher availability.   Students and parents should check 
with their assigned school about other credit earning courses. 

COURSE SUBSTITUTIONS 

For a complete list of secondary course substitutions, see the FLDOE Secondary Student 
Progression FAQs, Career and Technical Education (CTE) Course Substitutions and 
Course Code Directory. 

Interscholastic Sport(s), Fine Arts, and Reserve Officer Training Corps 

● Participation in an interscholastic sport for two full seasons will satisfy the one 
credit physical education requirement.  

● Completion of one semester with a grade of “C” or better in a marching band class, 
physical activity class that requires participation in marching band activities as an 
extracurricular activity or in a dance class will satisfy one-half credit in physical 
education or one-half credit in performing arts. 
 This credit may not be used to satisfy the personal fitness requirement or 

the requirement for adaptive physical education under an IEP or 504 plan. 
● Completion of two years in a Reserve Officer Training Corps class (including a 

significant component of drills) will satisfy the one credit requirement in physical 
education and the one credit requirement in performing arts. 
 This credit may not be used to satisfy the personal fitness requirement or 

the requirement for adaptive physical education under an IEP or 504 plan. 
 

Career and Technical Education 
 
Students may substitute up to two credits in each of the non-elective core subject areas of 
English, mathematics, and science as provided for in the Course Code Directory (CCD). 

Page 77 of 1019

DRAFT



 

59 
 

Career and Technical Education earnings that are used as substitution credits in one subject 
area may not be used as a substitute for any other subject area.  Career and Technical 
Education substitutions and approved Industry Certifications substituting for math and 
science credits will not count toward state university system admission requirements. 

Military Training 
 
Students may be granted up to one elective credit toward graduation for successful 
completion of military basic training (pass/fail) during the summer between the 11th  and 
12th  grades provided the student is officially enrolled in one of the approved National 
Guard or military reserve sponsored “Split Training Option” programs. Credit would be 
granted under the appropriate Junior ROTC course listing in the “State Course code 
Directory” or other courses specifically designed to cover this program that may be added 
to the “Directory” by the DOE. 
 
Local  schools,  with  the  approval  of  the  Superintendent,  may  offer  course  
substitutions  as provided for in the Course Code Directory. 
 

Local schools, with the approval of the Superintendent, may modify course delivery 
procedures to include extensive student involvement in field interpretations and studies 
outside the regular classroom.  In all cases, total classroom and “field” time will equal the 
number of contact hours required to earn credit as well as providing for demonstrated 
mastery of student performance standards for each course.  In the case of courses under the 
District Dropout Prevention Plan, course modifications as allowed by SBE Rule and 
Performance-Based programs, will be allowed for credit. 

CREDIT ACCELERATION PROGRAM (CAP) 

The Credit Acceleration Program (CAP) authorizes secondary students to earn high school 
credit in a course that requires a “End-of-Course” (EOC) exam, an Advanced Placement 
(AP) Examination, or a College Level Examination Program (CLEP) without having to 
actually be enrolled in the course(s).  A student may earn high school credit in Algebra I, 
Geometry, U.S. History or Biology I if the student passes the statewide, standardized EOC 
without the requirement of enrolling in or completing the course.  Students are eligible to 
take the EOC each time that it is offered by the state. Students are responsible for the 
expense of the AP or CLEP test itself and possible administrative costs. 
The requirements and eligibility process to participate in the CAP program are: 
 

● The EOC will be administered only at the times established by the state assessment 
calendar; 

● The score necessary to earn the credit will be determined by the state; 
● Only credit (no grade) will be earned by meeting the passing score on the EOC; 
● The parent/student must notify the school counselor or Principal in writing in a 

timely manner regarding their desire to participate in the CAP process; 
● Students/parents must supply evidence that they are prepared to sit for the 

assessment or that there is reasonable justification for the request.  This evidence 

Page 78 of 1019

DRAFT



 

60 
 

includes, but is not limited to, previous FCAT/FSA scores, assessment, and grades 
earned in recent EOC associated courses; 

● Obtain the Principal's approval to take the EOC/AP/CLEP test ; 
● If a student takes the EOC and does not earn credit, the student will not be eligible 

to apply for further CAP testing for the same course until additional preparation has 
been documented and approved by the school officials. 

DROPPING/TRANSFERRING FROM HONORS OR ADVANCED COURSES 

 
If a student is enrolled in an honors or AP full-credit course, the student may only drop the 
course within the first ten class meetings, or he/she may NOT drop the course until the end 
of the semester and only if the following conditions exist: 
 

● Grade of D or F, 
● Completion of a parent conference during each grading period, 
● Demonstration of the student seeking consistent academic assistance, and  
● Space available in a comparable course.  

 
If a student is enrolled in an honors or AP half-credit course, the student may only drop the 
course after the end of the first nine weeks grading period and only if the following 
conditions exist: 
 

● Grade of D or F, 
● Completion of a parent conference during each grading period, 
● Demonstration of the student seeking consistent academic assistance, and  
● Space available in a comparable course.  

 
Withdrawing from an honors or AP course is denoted with the WP or WF designation, but 
cannot be done until after the midpoint of the course. In the case of extenuating 
circumstances, a petition may be made on a case-by-case basis to the principal (or designee) 
for review of criteria to ensure proper course placement.  
 
After 21 days, the grade earned in the honors/AP class follows the student to the next 
course, but teachers have flexibility to adjust the transfer grade based on demonstrated 
mastery of standards in the new course. Note – withdrawing from dual enrollment courses 
is governed by the college deadlines, not school policy. 

 

END-OF-COURSE (EOC) EXAMS 
Some courses require “End-of-Course” (EOC) exams. The Algebra 1 EOC is 30% of the 
students’ overall grade and MUST PASS to meet the graduation requirement. Students, 
who score a Level 1 or 2 on the Algebra I EOC, may be enrolled in and complete an 
intensive remedial course the following year or be placed in a content area course that 
includes remediation of skills not acquired by the student. EOC’s are also required in Civics 
(7th grade – 30% of the students’ overall grade), Geometry (30% of the overall grade 

Page 79 of 1019

DRAFT



 

61 
 

for  “Standard,” “Scholar” and “Merit” diplomas), Biology (30% for “Standard” and 
“Merit” diplomas; MUST PASS and 30% for “Scholar” diploma students); and U.S. 
History (30% for “Standard” and “Merit” diplomas; MUST PASS and 30% for “Scholar” 
diploma students).  Please see the “Graduation Chart” for more information on graduation 
requirements. The District and school distributes information about EOC requirements, 
testing information and resources each year. Students in Junior High taking a course 
requiring an EOC will not participate in the statewide standardized assessment for that 
subject. 
 
For Junior High students taking Civics, the EOC constitutes 30% of their grade. If a student 
transfers into a Florida public school after the beginning of the second semester of their 8th 
grade year, the student is exempt from the Civics requirement if: 
 

● The student transcript documents passing three Social Studies courses. 
● Or two year-long courses in Social Studies that include coverage of Civics 

education. 
 

Students may take an EOC during the regular administration of the test in order to receive 
credit for the course once the state establishes the passing score(s).  This can occur even 
without being enrolled in or completing the entire course (see information on 
CAP).  Students in grades K-12 are eligible under the CAP.  Home education students will 
not take the EOC unless the student’s parent chooses to use the EOC for the annual 
evaluation required by the school district as specified in section 1002.41 Florida 
Statutes.  Homeschool parents should consult with Clay Virtual Academy about 
EOC’s.  Students enrolled in Florida Virtual must take all required EOC’s. 
 
Concerning students who transfer into Clay County from out of the country, out-of-state, a 
private school, or a home school, with a transcript that shows credit received in Algebra 1 
or an EOC required course under the “Scholar” diploma status. 
 
The transfer student is required to take: 
 

● The Algebra 1 EOC assessment if the student is entering grade 9 and the transcript 
does not indicate a passing/proficient score on a statewide, standardized EOC 
assessment in Algebra 1 or on the high school statewide assessment in mathematics 
required by the state from which the student transferred for purposes of satisfying 
the requirements of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act. After taking the 
Algebra I EOC at least one time, the student can satisfy the Algebra I EOC 
graduation requirement by achieving a score of “97” on the PERT.  
 

● The Biology and U.S. History EOCs – for “Scholar” diploma students only – if the 
student entered grade 9 in 2013-14 or thereafter and the transcript does not indicate 
a passing/proficient score on a statewide, standardized EOC assessment in that 
course. 
 

Page 80 of 1019

DRAFT



 

62 
 

Florida private school students do not participate in the statewide assessments because 
these assessments exist to meet federal and state assessment accountability requirements 
for Florida public schools.  Private school students who transfer into a Florida public 
school, however, must achieve a passing score on the Algebra 1 EOC at some point and 
the Biology and U.S. History EOC if seeking a “Scholar” diploma.  Students will have 
several opportunities to take these assessments.  The School District will distribute 
information about the EOC’s and graduation requirements to the private schools on a yearly 
basis.  Public school students attending private schools through the use of a school choice 
scholarship, such as the McKay Scholarship, may take the EOC assessments. 
   
Students enrolled in accelerated courses (AP, IB, AICE, DE) leading to college credit are 
not required to participate in the EOC assessment. However, to meet the Scholar Diploma 
requirement in Biology and US History, all AP, AICE, and IB students must pass their 
respective tests or the EOC assessment.  
 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS (ELL) 

  
The ELL Program is designed to meet the communication and academic needs of students 
whose native language is one other than English. These students will receive 
comprehensive instruction utilizing ELL strategies based on curriculum frameworks and 
guides that provide them equal access to appropriate instruction. 
  
Placement  
An ELL Committee, which is composed of the principal or designee, an ESOL/ELA 
teacher, a guidance counselor, and any other personnel who may be responsible for the 
language instruction of the ELL, shall make recommendations concerning appropriate 
placement, along with the parent or guardian of the student being reviewed. 
The program of study for English language learners is determined by the student’s current 
level of English proficiency and academic potential as evidenced by transcripts, language 
screening, performance data, and/or age appropriate grade placement policies. (Rule 6A-
6.904 F.A.C.) 
  
Assessment  
In accordance with federal mandates outlined in ESSA, all ELLs (K-12) must participate 
in the annual English language proficiency assessment in order to evaluate their progress 
in English language acquisition, and must also participate in statewide assessments, 
regardless of their Date of Entry. 
  
Retention  
Promotion or retention decisions will not be based solely on scores from any single 
assessment instrument. ELLs cannot be retained based on their lack of English proficiency 
alone. Retention of an English language learner is based on failure to meet requirements 
in reading, writing, science, social studies, and mathematics, based on: 
 

Page 81 of 1019

DRAFT



 

63 
 

● Academic performance and progress using assessment instruments in both English 
and their native language, 

● Attendance, progress reports, and age of the student, 
● Number of years the student has been enrolled in the ESOL program, and 
● The student’s current level of English language proficiency. (Rule 6A-1.09432 F. 

A. C.) 
  

Exit Procedures  
Students may be exited from the ESOL Program either by satisfying exit criteria or through 
the ELL committee, at which time they will remain on a monitored status for two 
additional years. 

 
FLORIDA SEAL OF BILITERACY 
Students who attain a high level of competency in listening, speaking, reading and writing 
on one or more world languages, in addition to English, will be eligible for the “Gold” or 
“Silver” Seal of Biliteracy. This level of attainment will then be denoted on the student’s 
diploma and transcript. 
  
The purpose for recognizing students attainment of this proficiency is to: encourage 
students to study for world languages; provide employers with a method of identifying an 
individual with biliteracy skills who is seeking employment; provide a postsecondary 
institution with a method of recognizing an applicant with biliteracy skills who is seeking 
admissions to the postsecondary institution; affirm the value of diversity, honor multiple 
cultures and languages, and strengthen the relationships between cultures in a community. 
Students should consult with their school counselors in order to learn more about the 
standards of each level. 
 

A. Silver Seal of Biliteracy   
● earn four foreign language course credits in the same foreign language with a 

cumulative 3.0 GPA or higher on a 4.0 scale, and   
● earn a 3 or higher on the English Language Arts/FSA assessment 
 

B. Gold Seal of Biliteracy 
● earn four foreign language course credits in the same foreign language with a 

cumulative 3.0 GPA or higher on a 4.0 scale, and   
● earn a 4 or higher on the English Language Arts/FSA assessment 

 
In the event that the student was not able to complete 4 years of a World Language for 
high school credit, there are other assessment and portfolio options that may be used to 
fulfill the course requirement. Students should consult with their school counselors in 
order to learn more about the standards, additional exam options, and performance of each 
level. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE STUDENT GUIDELINES 

Only  those  organizations  operating  international exchange programs at the high school 

Page 82 of 1019

DRAFT



 

64 
 

level that are members in good standing of the “Council on Standards for International 
Educational Travel” (CSIET) will be allowed to place students in Clay County public 
schools.  At no time will the number of exchange students allowed in a high school exceed 
one-fourth (1/4) of one percent of the total school population or more than five (5) from 
one organization.  This provision may be waived with approval of the Superintendent of 
Schools or their designee upon the written request of the school principal.  It is up to the 
school principal to determine the number of students allowed from each sponsoring 
organization, but unless requested, current federal regulations limit the number per 
organization to five (5).  All organizations or host families must have foreign exchange 
students registered with their respective schools no later than five (5) calendar weeks prior 
to the start of school for student each year 
 
Under the standards prescribed by CSIET, the following policies must be met by the host 
family and the exchange program prior to enrolling: 
 

● Written acceptance by the school principal or their designee prior to a host family 
being designated; 

● Specific information must be provided to the school.  This includes academic 
records translated into English, the number of years completed prior to arrival and 
the years required in the home country to complete secondary school; 

● The level of the student’s English language proficiency, based on test scores from 
the ELTIS, must be provided to the District/School. If the student does not meet 
the minimum score requirement (218), the student will not be placed in a Clay 
County school. It is the goal of the District to make sure foreign exchange students 
have sufficient command of the English language to enable the student to function 
well in an English-speaking academic and community environment; appropriate 
background information and expectations regarding school experience; 

● The student must not have completed more than 11 years of primary and secondary 
education exclusive of kindergarten; 

● The student will be classified as a junior and must successfully complete/pass a 
minimum of six subjects in order to participate in graduation. Foreign exchange 
students who have received a high school diploma, or its equivalent, in their home 
country are not eligible to be foreign exchange students in the District. 

● All exchange students will be required to take American History, English III 
(American Literature), American Government, Economics, and a minimum of 3 
electives.  The only exception to the required courses will be if the home country 
required a specific curriculum for a student in a specific grade and the local school 
can reasonably meet the student’s course needs.  Written documentation of this 
requirement must be included as part of the student’s records; 

● Driver’s Education, if offered at the school, will not be allowed as a course for 
exchange students; 

● Foreign exchange students are subject to all school and district rules and 
regulations per the Clay County Code of Conduct. 

● Foreign exchange students at no time will receive a Clay County diploma of any 
type nor participate in graduation ceremonies. They will be awarded a special 
certificate certifying that they successfully completed the course of study for 

Page 83 of 1019

DRAFT



 

65 
 

exchange students as prescribed by the School District of Clay County.  These 
students will not take the FSA or other assessments that may be prescribed by the 
DOE since they will not be awarded a standard diploma. 

● Exchange students will be limited to a one-year program or, if approved by the 
principal, a semester. 

● Exchange students entering into Clay County high schools through immigration 
status require a J-1 Visa.  To get a J-1 Visa the student must be in an accepted 
foreign exchange program. 

● A foreign exchange student may only register at the appropriate high school that 
shall be designated as the school within the regular school attendance zone of the 
host family’s residence. 

● A foreign exchange student may be eligible to participate in sports and activities 
provided they meet Florida High School Athletic Association (FHSAA) rules and 
policies. 

FORGIVENESS “D” AND “F” 

Students in grades 9-12 may retake a course in which they earned a “D” or “F.”  The higher 
grade earned will be used in computing their GPA.  This is to allow a student whose GPA 
is less than 2.0 to improve their GPA in order to meet the minimum graduation 
requirement.  The grade forgiveness policy for required courses is limited to replacing the 
grade of “D” or “F” with a grade of “C” or higher earned in the same or comparable course.  
Elective courses may replace the grade of “D” or “F” with a grade of “C” or higher in any 
elective course.  Year-long electives will replace year-long electives; semester electives 
will replace semester electives.  Junior High students taking high school credit earning 
courses may forgive grades of “C,” “D,” or “F.” Once a “C” is earned through grade 
forgiveness, all previous attempts are forgiven and are not included in the student’s GPA. 

GRADING SCALE 

Florida Grading Scale for Grades 6-12 is: 
 

Letter 
Grade 

Progress Numerical 
Equivalent 

GPA Value 

A Outstanding 90-100 “4” point 

B Above Average 80-89 “3” point 

C Average Progress 70-79 “2” point 

D Below Average 60-69 “1” point 

F Failure 50-59 “0” point 

I Incomplete   

 

Page 84 of 1019

DRAFT



 

66 
 

 

 
Students moving into Clay County shall have letter grades converted to numeric grades 
for averaging purposes.  If a student cannot produce documentation, or if numeric grades 
cannot be obtained, the following conversions will be made: 
 

Letter to Numeric Grade Conversions 

A+ = 100 A = 95 S = 80 

B+ = 89 B = 85 N = 75 

C+ = 79 C = 75 U = 59 

D+ = 69 D = 65  

 F = 55  

 
If the student has not enrolled in school, schools will use a zero for the numeric grade. 

GRADUATION EXERCISES/DIPLOMAS 

● Students who meet the requirements for a “Standard,” “Scholar,” “Merit,” and 
“Certificate of Completion” shall be eligible to participate in graduation exercises, 
unless the District or local school rules dealing with discipline or rules relative to 
graduation exercise participation are violated.  Any violation is subject to review 
by the school principal for determination of outcome.  Students, who fail to meet 
the minimum credits as prescribed by the School District of Clay County even 
though they have passed the state assessments, shall not participate in graduation 
exercises and shall not receive a “Certificate of Completion.”  Students eligible for 
a “Certificate of Completion” shall participate in graduation exercises.  It is also 
District and State policy that eligible students are: 

 
● Allowed to graduate prior to their cohorts (the 24-credit option and 18-credit 

ACCEL option); 
● Students who graduate prior to their cohorts may continue to participate in school 

and social events and other specifically named events as part of the student’s cohort, 
excluding athletics; 

● Authorize eligible students who graduate from high school mid-year to receive a 
Bright Futures Scholarship award during the spring term. 
 

During all phases of graduation exercises, including rehearsals, Baccalaureate and 
commencement, students participating will not be differentiated as to diploma or 
“Certificate of Completion” except as noted in programs used during scheduled exercises.  
Any reference made relative to the certification of students exiting high school during 
graduation exercises shall be limited to certification of the entire class.  An example of 
wording or a statement that would be acceptable for use in the exercises would be, “Seniors 

Page 85 of 1019

DRAFT



 

67 
 

of the class of ____are now certified as graduates or have completed their high school 
course of study as prescribed by the School District of Clay County and the State of 
Florida.” 
 
“Certificate of Completion” – Students who meet all credit requirements for graduation, 
but fail to meet a state assessment requirement AND/OR the required GPA for graduation 
may be awarded a “Certificate of Completion.”  Basic education students or students served 
under Section 504 of the “Rehabilitation Act of 1973” who receive a “Certificate of 
Completion,” or are eligible to receive a “Certificate of Completion,” may return to school 
for one additional year to meet all graduation requirements and receive a regular high 
school diploma.  The awarding of a “Certificate of Completion” applies to students 
choosing the 24-credit option and the 18 credit ACCEL option.  A student who has not 
completed all requirements for the three-year option, including earning passing scores on 
the state assessments and achieving the required GPA, must be required to meet the 24-
credit option and must attend high school for a fourth year. 
 
It is the District’s policy that in order for a student to receive a diploma from the school in 
which they attended during their senior year must complete all requirements prior to the 
end of the summer school session.  If the requirements are met after the beginning of school 
for the next year that student will receive an “Adult High School Diploma.” 

GRADUATION OPTIONS 
In July 2017, the Legislature amended laws related to the high school graduation 
requirements.  Students entering grade nine in the 2014-2015 school year and forward have 
several diploma options.  They are: 
 

● 24-credit Standard option (with “Scholar” and/or “Merit Designations 
● 18-credit Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning 

(ACCEL) option  
● International Baccalaureate (IB) Diploma curriculum 
● Advanced International Certificate of Education (AICE) curriculum 

 
 All of these graduation options include opportunities to take rigorous academic courses 
designed to prepare students for their future academic and career choices.  Students may 
change their selection of program options (24 credit and 18 credit ACCEL options) at any 
time during grades 9-12.  Please refer to the “Graduation Requirement” charts in order to 
compare programs and the criteria for each type diploma. 
 
A few points to remember when choosing a graduation option: 
 

● Students selecting the IB program are committed to a four-year program.  Should a 
student decide to exit the program prior to completion, they will be placed in the 
24-credit option and must meet all requirements for that option; 

● A student selecting the 18-credit ACCEL program must attend high school as a full-
time student for 3 years.  These students are still eligible for Florida Bright Futures 

Page 86 of 1019

DRAFT



 

68 
 

Scholarships and qualify for acceleration programs (e.g.: AP, Dual Enrollment, 
etc.) if all criteria is met;  High school credits awarded prior to the 9th grade will be 
counted toward the required credits for all graduation options; 

● Students who plan to apply to an out-of-state or private in-state college or university 
and who are interested in the 18 credit ACCEL option should contact those 
institutions as early as possible for specific admissions requirements; 

● Students must complete an online course to meet the graduation requirement 
(unless otherwise specified).  Students in the IB, AICE, or 18 credit ACCEL 
programs are exempt from this graduation requirement.  If an IB, AICE, or 18 credit 
ACCEL student withdraws or is removed from the program, they must fulfill this 
requirement. 

● Students in the AICE program are exempt from Physical Education and Fine and 
Performing Arts requirements.  If an AICE student withdraws or is removed from 
the program, they must fulfill this requirement. 
 

Below is a summary of the graduation requirements for diploma types: 
 
24 Credit Standard Diploma  
This program takes the traditional four years to complete high school and requires students 
to take at least 24 credits in core content areas.  Foreign Language is not required for this 
program, although it is recommended for Florida college preparation and is required for 
admission to Florida’s state universities.  At least one of the courses to meet graduation 
requirements must be an online. 
 

● 4 credits in English Language Arts -  major concentration in composition, reading 
for information and literature; Must pass the 10th grade FSA ELA or have a 
concordant score on a standardized test (ACT, SAT); 

● 4 credits in Math – two of which must be Algebra 1 (must pass EOC and have exam 
count as 30% of course grade) and Geometry (must participate in EOC with results 
counting for 30% of final grade in course); two credits may be substituted with 
allowable industry certification that lead to college credit. 

● 3 credits in Science – one of which must be Biology (must participate in EOC with 
results counting for 30% of final grade in course); Two of the 3 credits must have 
lab components; One (1) credit may be substituted with allowable industry 
certification that leads to college credit, Biology excluded; One (1) credit may be 
substituted with an identified rigorous computer science course with a related 
industry certification, Biology excluded;. 

● 3 credits in Social Science – 1 credit in U.S. History (must participate in EOC with 
results counting for 30% of final grade in course); 1 credit in World History; ½ 
credit in Economics with Financial Literacy; ½ credit in American Government; 

● 1 credit in Fine and Performing Arts, Speech and Debate,  or a specified Practical 
Arts course; 

● 1 credit in Physical Education (includes integration of health) 
● 8 credits in electives – elective courses are selected by the student in order to pursue 

a complete educational program and to meet eligibility requirements.  Some 
students will be required to take certain electives based on assessment scores; 

Page 87 of 1019

DRAFT



 

69 
 

● 1 course from the above list must be an online course.  This can be either a ½ or 1 
credit course.  The online course requirement may not apply to a student who has 
an IEP which indicates that an online course would be inappropriate, OR to a 
student who is enrolled in a Florida high school and has less than 1 academic year 
remaining; 

● 24 credits may be earned through equivalent, applied, or integrated or career 
education courses, including work-related internships; 

● The student must have a cumulative GPA of 2.0 or higher on a 4.0 scale. 
 

“Scholar” Designation of Standard Diploma – same as above except for the following 
additions: 
 

● Math – Earn 1 credit in Algebra II; Pass the Geometry EOC; Earn 1 credit in 
Statistics or equally rigorous course; 

● Science – Must Pass the Biology EOC or earn minimum score for college credit on 
AP, AICE, or IB Biology I assessment; must take Chemistry or Physics; Earn 1 
credit in a course that is equally rigorous to Chemistry or Physics; 

● Social Sciences – Must Pass the U.S. History EOC or earn minimum score for 
college credit on AP, AICE, or IB U.S. History assessment; 

● Earn at least 2 credits in a Foreign Language; 
● Earn at least 1 credit in  AP, IB, AICE, or Dual Enrollment course 

 
“Merit” diploma – same as “Standard” diploma except for the following addition: 
 

● Students pursuing a merit designation must attain one or more industry 
certifications. 
 

International Baccalaureate (IB) Diploma 
The IB program is a rigorous pre-university course of study leading to internationally 
standardized tests.  The program’s comprehensive two-year curriculum allows its’ 
graduates to fulfill requirements of many different nations’ educational systems.  Students 
completing IB courses and exams from six areas: 1) Language A1; 2) Language A2; 3) 
Individual and Societies; 4) Experimental Sciences; 5) Mathematics; and 6) Arts and 
Electives.  IB diploma candidates must demonstrate their mastery of course work by 
passing a battery of comprehensive written, and in some cases oral, examinations in the 
six subject groups.  In addition, IB candidates are required to take the course, “Theory of 
Knowledge,” complete 150 hours of community service projects and extra-curricular 
activities, and to write an extended essay.  Students in schools enrolled in IB courses do 
not have to pay to take the exams. 
 

Advanced International Certificate of Education (AICE) Diploma 
AICE is a program that is a rigorous pre-university course of study, leading to 
internationally standardized examinations under the Cambridge International Examination 
program.  AICE diploma candidates must demonstrate their knowledge of the coursework 
by passing a battery of comprehensive written, and in the case of foreign language, oral 
examinations.  AICE students are required to select seven tests, one test from each of four 

Page 88 of 1019

DRAFT



 

70 
 

major subject groups: Math and Science, Languages, Arts and Humanities, Global 
Perspectives and the remaining three examinations from any of the subject areas the 
student chooses with a maximum of two credits coming from the optional category.. 
  
The two schools in Clay County that offers the AICE program are Fleming Island High 
School and Oakleaf High School.  The AICE program is considered an Academy and 
students must be either zoned for those schools in order to participate or among the 10% 
of the total candidates selected that are zoned at other schools.  For more information, 
parents and students should contact those schools. 
 
For an AICE diploma, a candidate must earn the equivalent of seven credits by passing a 
combination of exams at either the full (one-credit) Advanced Subsidiary Level (AS) or 
double (two credits) International Advanced Level (A), with at least one course coming 
from Global Perspectives and one course from each of the other three curriculum 
areas.  Students in schools enrolled in the AICE courses do not have to pay to take the 
exams. 
 
ACCEL (18-credit) Diploma 
Students who choose this option are only required to earn 18 credits.  The core credits 
(Math, Language Arts, Social Sciences, and Science) are the same as the standard diploma 
types.  These students pursuing the ACCEL diploma option do not have to earn a Physical 
Education credit, the online course credit is not required, and only 3 elective credits are 
needed instead of 8 elective credits.  All other requirements are still in effect. 
 

Online Credit Graduation Requirement 
Students may meet this requirement by completing and passing an online high school 
course offered by the following: 

● Florida/Clay Virtual School; 
● A district high school (traditional, franchise, or virtual charter); 
● A postsecondary school as an online dual enrollment course; 
● District virtual instruction programs; and 
● A district middle school (high school level course) 

 
Online course specifications and substitutions: 
 

● Core course or considered electives, earning ½ credit or 1 full credit after course 
successfully completed. 

● Completion of a course in which a student earns a nationally recognized industry 
certification in information technology that is identified on the Career and 
Professional Education Act (CAPE) Industry Certification Funding List pursuant 
to s. 1008.44, F.S., 

● Passage of the information technology certification examination without 
enrollment in or completion of the corresponding courses. 

● Passage of an online content assessment by which the student demonstrates skills 
and competency in locating information and applying technology for instructional 
purposes without enrollment of the corresponding course or courses. 

Page 89 of 1019

DRAFT



 

71 
 

Exceptions and Exemptions to Online Course Graduation Requirement 
The online course requirement may not apply to a student who has an IEP which indicates 
that an online course would be inappropriate OR to a student who transfers into a Florida 
public high school who has less than a year left in high school.  

Students may also satisfy the online course graduation requirement by completing a 
blended learning course.   

Due to the blended model of instruction in secondary intensive reading classes (online and 
offline learning), successful completion of a year-long intensive reading course satisfies 
the online course requirement for students. If a 9-12 grade student passes the FSA ELA 
Assessment re-take or earns a concordant score, (s)he must remain in the intensive reading 
course for the full year in order to satisfy the online course requirement. If a student has 
already met the online course requirement outside of the intensive reading course and 
passes the FSA ELA Assessment or ACT/SAT in the fall, the student may exit intensive 
reading at the semester break. 

Any student in grades 6-12 scoring a level 1 or 2 on FSA Reading Assessment must be 
screened using district-selected assessments. Students who pass the screeners will receive 
reading support within content area classes in order to fulfill their reading remediation 
requirement. Those students who do not pass the screeners must be placed in an intensive 
reading class.   

 
 

 
  

Page 90 of 1019

DRAFT



 

72 
 

 

Graduation Requirements/Diploma Options 
 
Subject Area 

Graduation Requirements of 
24-Credit 

“STANDARD” Diploma 

Graduation Requirements of 
24-Credit 

“SCHOLAR” Designation 

Graduation Requirements of 
24-Credit 

“MERIT” Designation 
English 4 credits in Language Arts 

 
MUST PASS 10th grade FSA ELA assessment    

4 credits in Language Arts 
 
MUST PASS 10th grade FSA ELA 
assessment      
        

4 credits in Language Arts 
 
MUST PASS 10th grade FSA ELA 
assessment      

Mathematics 4 credits:  
 
1 credit must be Algebra I (MUST PASS EOC; 
EOC 30% of grade) 
 
1 credit in Geometry (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
2 additional courses - 2 credits may be 
substituted with allowable industry certification 
courses that lead to college credit. 
 

4 credits: 
 
1 credit must be Algebra I (MUST PASS 
EOC; EOC 30% of grade) 
 
1 credit in Geometry (EOC 30% of grade; 
MUST PASS EOC 
 
1 credit in Algebra II  
 
1 credit in Statistics or equally rigorous 
course. 
 

4 credits: 
 
1 credit must be Algebra I (MUST PASS 
EOC; EOC 30% of grade) 
 
1 credit in Geometry (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
2 additional courses - 2 credits may be 
substituted with allowable industry 
certification courses that lead to college 
credit. 
 

Science 3 credits: 
 
1 credit in Biology 1 (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
2 credits in equally rigorous course, 2 of 3 
credits must have lab. One credit may be 
substituted with allowable industry certification 
leading to college credit. 
 

3 credits: 
 
1 credit in Biology 1 (MUST PASS EOC) 
 
1 credit in Chemistry or Physics 
 
1 credit in equally rigorous course 

3 credits: 
 
1 credit in Biology 1 (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
2 credits in equally rigorous course, 2 of 3 
credits must have lab. One credit may be 
substituted with allowable industry 
certification leading to college credit. 

Social Studies 3 credits: 
 
1 credit in World History 
 
1 credit in US History (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
½ credit in Government 
 
½ credit in Economics with Financial Literacy 
 

3 credits: 
 
1 credit in World History 
 
1 credit in US History (MUST PASS EOC) 
 
½ credit in Government 
 
½ credit in Economics with Financial Literacy 

3 credits: 
 
1 credit in World History 
 
1 credit in US History (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
½ credit in Government 
 
½ credit in Economics with Financial Literacy 

World Language Not required for high school graduation, but 
required for admission into state universities. 

2 credits in the same language or 
demonstrated proficiency in a second 
language. 

Not required for high school graduation, but 
required for admission into state universities. 

Fine and Performing 
Arts, Speech and 
Debate, or Practical Art 

1 credit in Fine or Performing Arts, Speech and 
Debate, or Practical Arts (eligible courses 
specified in Course Code Directory) 
 

1 credit in Fine or Performing Arts, Speech 
and Debate, or Practical Arts (eligible 
courses specified in Course Code Directory) 

1 credit in Fine or Performing Arts, Speech 
and Debate, or Practical Arts (eligible 
courses specified in Course Code Directory) 

Physical Education 1 credit in Physical Education to include the 
integration of health to include the CPR/AED 
training.  
 

1 credit in Physical Education to include the 
integration of health to include the CPR/AED 
training. 

1 credit in Physical Education to include the 
integration of health to include the CPR/AED 
training. 

Electives 8 credits Must earn 1 AP, IB, AICE, or Dual Enrollment 
credit 

8 credits 

On-line Course 
Requirement 

1 course (can be either a semester or yearlong 
course credit; if yearlong course is selected, 
the entire course must be completed to satisfy 
requirement). 
 

1 course (can be either a semester or 
yearlong course credit; if yearlong course is 
selected, the entire course must be 
completed to satisfy requirement). 

1 course (can be either a semester or 
yearlong course credit; if yearlong course is 
selected, the entire course must be 
completed to satisfy requirement). 

Total 24 credits* 
 

24 credits 24 credits* 

Industry Certification 
Requirements 

None required None required Must attain one or more industry 
certifications. 

Grade Point Average 
(GPA) Requirement 

Cumulative GPA of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale 
 

State Assessment 
Requirements 

Students MUST PASS: 
● Grade 10 FSA ELA (or ACT/SAT concordant score) 
● Algebra I EOC (or ACT/SAT concordant score or a comparative score on the PERT for students who entered 

9th grade before 2018-19)
Special Note: 
*For the Standard Diploma and Merit Diploma the 24 credits may be earned through equivalent, applied, or integrated or career education courses including work-related 
internships. 
 

Page 91 of 1019

DRAFT



 

73 
 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENT:  CPR TRAINING 

For students entering the ninth grade in 2017-18 and thereafter, compression only 
cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) and automated external defibrillator (AED) 
instruction will be implemented with the following requirements: 

● The twenty-four (24) credit standard diploma option will require compression only 
CPR and AED instruction. 
 CPR and AED will be taught in the Personal Fitness course, traditionally or 

virtually.  
 Additional instructional opportunities may be provided through another 

appropriate course or school-related activity.  
● The instructional program must meet the following requirements: 

 The instruction will be in compliance with the American Heart Association, 
American Red Cross, or a nationally recognized program based on the most 
current national evidence-based emergency cardiovascular care guidelines 
for compression only CPR.  

 Instruction will include the core cognitive and psychomotor skills 
associated with compression only CPR. 

 Instruction will include appropriate use of an AED which may be taught 
electronically (e.g video). 

● Schools will provide compression only CPR instruction or will arrange for 
instruction by community-based providers. 
 Compression only CPR/AED instructors are not required to be certified 

teachers. 
 Certified teachers providing compression only CPR/AED instruction are 

not required to be certified trainers of compression only CPR/AED.  
 Students are not required to earn compression only CPR/AED certification 

to successfully complete the instruction. 
 Students who are physically and/or cognitively unable to perform the 

training will be exempt from this requirement.  Schools will make this 
determination in accordance with the student's Individualized Education 
Program (IEP). 
 

The superintendent or designee shall be responsible for ensuring that schools comply with 
the requirements as outlined in this policy.  

HIV/AIDS 

All students are given instruction in computer literacy, metrics, consumer education, 
effects of alcohol and drugs, the importance of kindness to animals, conservation of natural 
resources, child abuse, and an opportunity to enroll in Driver’s Education (if offered).  In 
addition, in grades 7 and 8, instruction will be given through the science courses in 
(required of each school per state law): 

● Personal hygiene 

Page 92 of 1019

DRAFT



 

74 
 

● Substance abuse 
● Human sexuality 
● HIV/AIDS, communicable diseases as per state law 
 

Updated and factual School board adopted curricula related to human sexuality, Human 
Immunodeficiency Virus infection, Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS), and 
other sexually transmitted diseases shall be integrated into science courses for junior high.  
and Personal Fitness for high school. Instruction shall address human reproduction, fetal 
development, pregnancy prevention along with causes, transmission, and prevention 
through materials approved by the School Board. Instruction  in  reproductive  health,  
interpersonal  skills,  and  parenting  to  reduce  teenage pregnancy and to promote healthy 
behavior for all students K-12 shall be taught in accordance with current Florida Statutes. 

A student shall be exempt from these instructional activities provided his/her parent(s) or 
legal guardian files a written request with the school principal. 

The Superintendent, or designee, shall review curriculum frameworks which are prepared 
and distributed by the Florida Department of Education and related to Acquired Immune 
Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) education.  If the curriculum frameworks are inconsistent 
with locally determined curriculum for AIDS education or are not reflective of local values 
and concerns, the Superintendent shall advise the School Board and provide 
recommendations for instructional activities. 

HOME EDUCATION 

“Home Education Program” is defined in F.S. 1002.41 

Clay County secondary schools, this includes including Clay Virtual Academy, are 
accredited by the AdvancEd.  A student seeking to enter or re-enter a Clay County public 
school from a home educating program or a non-accredited school must meet all entrance 
requirements (state and district) that any other student must meet.  The student will be 
enrolled at the appropriate grade level based on validated academic performance. A 
student may enroll full (K-12) or part-time (6-12) in Clay Virtual Academy and remain 
homeschooled. 
 

All transfer work from a home education program other than Clay Virtual Academy or 
FLVS or accredited program, will be posted on a “pass/fail” basis and will not be utilized 
in GPA calculation unless the grade is validated by the student taking an approved exam.  
F.S.1006 allows home schooled students to participate in interscholastic extracurricular 
activities of their attendance zoned school.  The home education student must meet the 
same requirements of grades, residency and behavior as required of other students.  They 
must be permitted to enroll in curricular classes that are required of the extra-curricular 
activity (Ex.: ROTC, Band, etc.).   The home education student must register his/her intent 
to participate in extracurricular activities with the school before the beginning of the 
activity in which he or she wishes to participate. The student standards for participation 
in interscholastic extracurricular activities begin with the student’s first semester of 

Page 93 of 1019

DRAFT



 

75 
 

the 9th grade.  If a student’s cumulative GPA falls below 2.0 in the specified courses, the 
student must execute an academic performance contract with the district school board, the 
FHSAA, and the student’s parents.  At a minimum, the contract must require the student 
to attend summer school to improve his/her GPA.  A student must also maintain good 
conduct to remain eligible to participate in interscholastic extracurricular activities. 
 
Home school students enrolled with Clay Virtual Academy have opportunities to 
participate in CVA social activities.  To receive a CVA diploma, students must enroll as 
public school students for their entire senior year and meet District requirements. Should 
homeschooled students wish to graduate from a high school and receive that schools’ 
diploma; they must re-enroll for their entire senior year. 

HONOR ROLL 

The “Honor Roll” status of students will be based on the following criteria: 
 

● The “A” Honor Roll will consist of all “A’s” on or above grade level; 
● The “A/B” Honor Roll will consist of all “A’s or B’s” on or above grade level; 
● Unweighted grades are utilized for Honor Roll selection; 
● Conduct grades do not count toward Honor Roll determination 

INTERIM REPORTS 

Parents or adult students must be notified in writing at a time during a grading period when 
it is apparent that the student may fail or is doing “Unsatisfactory” work in any course or 
grade assignment.   It  is  imperative  that  contact  take  place  to  allow  for  an  opportunity  
to  use intervention strategies to correct deficiencies in academic areas.  An 
acknowledgement of such notification should be obtained, if possible. 

INTERSCHOLASTIC PARTICIPATION 

To be eligible for interscholastic competition, a student must meet the following criteria: 
 

● Have a cumulative 2.0 GPA on a 4.0 scale.  Students who fall below the 2.0 
requirement will remain ineligible for the next entire semester; 

● The student must be in good standing with the school based on school and District 
policies. 

● The student’s eligibility is also contingent upon meeting the policies established in 
the district’s Code of Student Conduct.  

● See School Board Policy 4.43 for complete eligibility information.
 

Summer school subjects shall be included in the calculation of the students’ GPA of the 
previous semester for participation in extracurricular activities during the first semester of 
each school year.  Seventh (7th) grade students shall be eligible for participating during the 
first semester provided they were regularly promoted from the 6th grade. 
 

Page 94 of 1019

DRAFT



 

76 
 

MULTI-TIERED SYSTEM OF SUPPORTS/RESPONSE TO INTERVENTION 
PLAN/PROGRESS MONITORING 

A Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) is an evidence-based model of schooling that 
uses data-based problem-solving to integrate academic and behavioral instruction and 
intervention. The integrated instruction and intervention is delivered to students in varying 
intensities (multiple tiers) based on student need. 
 
The tiers, or levels of student supports, represent a way to organize resources to provide 
instruction/intervention based on student need. These are NOT locations for students, but 
rather specific instruction/interventions supports provided based on student need. 
Additional resources or supplemental supports (i.e., tier 2 and tier 3) are in addition to what 
all students receive (general instruction) and can be provided in a variety of ways and 
locations.  
 
Three levels of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support: 
 

● Tier 1 Intervention (Universal Prevention) 
● Tier 2 Intervention (Supplemental/At-Risk) 
● Tier 3 Intervention (Individualized/Intensive) 

 
The Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS). The basic elements of MTSS are required 
by the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) and the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) therefore, it is the basis for all broad-based initiatives 
for schools striving to increase student outcomes. Response to Intervention (RtI) has been 
described in Florida as a multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS) for providing high quality 
instruction and intervention matched to student needs using learning rate over time and 
level of performance to inform instructional decisions. This system is depicted as a three-
tiered framework that uses increasingly more intense instruction and interventions matched 
to need. 
 
Elements of the MTSS Process: 
 

● Highly effective personnel deliver scientific, research-based instruction and 
evidence-based practices. 

● Evidence-based curriculum and instructional approaches have a high probability of 
success for most students. 

● Instruction is differentiated to meet individual learning needs. 
● Reliable, valid, and instructionally relevant assessments include the following: 

 Screening Measures: Assessment tools designed to collect data for the 
purpose of measuring the effectiveness of core instruction and identifying 
students needing more intensive interventions and support. 

 Diagnostic Measures: Formal or informal assessment tools that measure skill 
strengths and weaknesses, identify skills in need of improvement, and assist 
in determining why a problem is occurring.   

 Progress Monitoring Measures: Ongoing assessment conducted for the 
purposes of guiding instruction, monitoring student progress, and evaluating 

Page 95 of 1019

DRAFT



 

77 
 

instruction/intervention effectiveness.   
 Formative Measures: Ongoing assessment embedded within effective 

teaching to guide instructional decisions. 
 Summative (Outcome) Measures: Typically administered near the end of the 

school year to give an overall perspective of the effectiveness of the 
instructional program. 

● Ongoing, systematic planning/problem solving is consistently used by teams 
including parents and educators, from enrollment to graduation for all students, to 
make decisions across a continuum of student needs. 

● Student response to instruction/intervention (RtI) data are used to guide meaningful 
decision making. 

● Job embedded, ongoing, professional development and follow-up coaching with 
modeling are provided to ensure effective instruction at all levels. 

● Actively engaged administrative leadership for data-based decision making is 
inherent to the school culture. 

● All students and their parent(s) are engaged throughout the process in one proactive 
and seamless educational system. 
 

Problem Solving Process 
The problem-solving process is critical to making the instructional adjustments needed for 
continual improvement.  This process involves an ongoing cycle with the following steps: 

 
● Step One: Define the problem of goal by determining the difference between what 

is expected and what is occurring. 
● Step Two: Analyze the problem using data to determine why the issue is occurring.  
● Step Three: Develop and Implement a Plan driven by the results of the team’s 

problem analysis by establishing a performance goal for the group of students or 
the individual student and developing an intervention plan to achieve the goal. 

● Step Four: Measure response to instruction/interventions by using data gathered 
from progress monitoring at agreed upon intervals to evaluate the effectiveness of 
the intervention plan based on the student’s or group of students’ response to the 
intervention.  

 
Response to Intervention (RtI) refers to the fourth step of the problem-solving process. RtI 
encompasses the utilization of student-centered progress-monitoring data to make 
instructional decisions to ensure positive student outcomes. 
 
Needs of students who struggle in the area(s) of reading, math, language or behavior should 
be addressed and instruction should be tailored to these needs based upon frequent progress 
monitoring data. Students who continue to perform below grade level expectations should be 
targeted for intervention.  These interventions and the monitoring of these interventions should be 
documented within the RtI (Response to Intervention) process.   

 
MTSS teams ensure the students’ needs are addressed through grade level/content area 
team meetings where specific student needs are discussed and plans are generated to 
address these needs. These RtI teams – with parent involvement – will continually monitor 
student progress and make appropriate intervention recommendations.  If the student’s 

Page 96 of 1019

DRAFT



 

78 
 

deficiency isn’t remediated while serving Tier III interventions, or if a student is 
responding to intervention but requires a level of intensity and resources to sustain growth 
performance, a referral for evaluation for Exceptional Student Education may be 
recommended.  If the documented deficiency has not been remediated a student may be 
retained in accordance with state guidelines. 
 
Each student who does not meet the minimum performance expectations defined by the 
Commissioner of Education for the statewide assessment tests in reading, writing, science 
and mathematics must continue to be provided with remedial or supplemental instruction 
until the expectations are met or the student graduates from high school or is not subject to 
compulsory school attendance. 
 
Intensive remedial instructional strategies may include but are not limited to: 
 

● Summer school coursework (Grades 3 and 6) 
● Extended day services (before or after school tutoring) 
● Parent tutorial programs (if appropriate) 
● Contracted academic services (previously approved by the district) 
● Exceptional Student Education 
● Suspension of curriculum other than reading, writing, and mathematics, and science 
● Intensive skills development programs 
● Immediate intensive intervention (iii) inside or outside the literacy block if deficit 

is in reading. 
● Implementation of a positive behavior support plan 
● Remediation plan to help the student with make-up work 
● Contingent upon available funds and on a first-come, first-serve basis, students 

classified as ELL and who are enrolled in a program receiving services that are 
specifically designed to meet the needs of English Language Learner students are 
eligible for the “Reading Scholarships Accounts” program (see page 16 under 
“Reading Deficiencies and Parental Notification” form more information). 

● Contingent upon available funds and on a first-come, first-serve basis, students 
scoring a Level 1 or Level 2 on the 3rd grade statewide, standardized ELA 
assessment are eligible for the “Reading Scholarships Accounts” program (see page 
16 under “Reading Deficiencies and Parental Notification” form more 
information). 

OFFENSES AGAINST INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

Florida Statute provides that, “whoever willfully, knowingly, and without authorization 
modifies data,  programs,  or  supporting  documentation  residing  or  existing  internal  or  
external  to  a computer, computer system, or computer network commits an offense against 
intellectual property.” 
 
Except as otherwise provided in this section, an offense against intellectual property is a 
felony of the third degree.  If the offense is committed for the purpose of devising or 
executing any scheme or artifice to defraud or to obtain any property, then the offender is 
guilty of a felony of the second degree. 

Page 97 of 1019

DRAFT



 

79 
 

 

In addition, it is unlawful for any individual to knowingly and willingly taking an online 
course or examination on behalf of another person for compensation.  Any individual that 
violates this provision commits a misdemeanor of the second degree.  FS1008.24 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

Clay County shall use the DOE prepared student performance as the approved curriculum 
for Secondary Education, including updates and changes as received from DOE.  No 
courses shall be offered which are not state approved unless a special course is piloted 
under state guidelines and with School Board approval. 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

The 2008 Legislature passed Senate bill 610 requiring each district to include the 
availability of one-on-one counseling to students regarding the benefits of physical 
education.  Beginning in 2009-10 the equivalent of one class period per day of physical 
education for one semester (minimum standard) of each year for students enrolled in grades 
6-8 will occur.  The physical education requirement shall be waived (grades 6-8) for a 
student who meets one of the following criteria (unless the child meets one of the waiver 
criteria listed below, he/she will be enrolled in physical education while in grades 6-8): 
 

● The student is enrolled or required to enroll in a remedial course 
● The student’s parent indicates in writing to the school one of the following: 

 The parent requests that the student enroll in another course from among 
those designated by the school district, or 

 The student is participating in physical activities outside the school day 
which are equal to or in excess of the mandated requirement. 

PROMOTION AND RETENTION 

Any pupil who has been retained may be assigned during the next school year to the next 
higher grade if the principal has documentation that standards have been met and that the 
student will be able to benefit from instruction at the high grade.  Normally, this assignment 
occurs at the end of the semester, if such an assignment results in the child transferring to 
another school.  Regarding the placement, principals must document through a variety of 
means that the student has met state standards.  This should be done by reviewing the 
academic history of the student, looking at assessments and applying remediation/grade 
recovery processes established by Clay County.  In no case, shall the move be initiated 
until the principal of the receiving school has been notified and agrees with the 
documentation.  If the receiving principal questions the transfer, the two principals should 
meet to discuss any questions or concerns.  If requested by either principal, a district review 
may be used to determine proper placement of the student in question.  The 
recommendation should be made in writing to the district school superintendent.  
Documentation and recommendation will then be forwarded to the Chief Academic Officer 
for review. In addition, school personnel should utilize all resources to achieve parent 
understanding and cooperation regarding a student’s grade placement. 

Page 98 of 1019

DRAFT



 

80 
 

 
All students who appear to be having difficulty meeting promotion requirements should be 
evaluated carefully by the professional staff, considered for Multi-Tiered System of 
Support (MTSS).  Students who are to be retained must receive counseling services and 
may be recommended for evaluation by specialists if the principal and teacher(s) feel such 
a referral would benefit the child.  Any child in middle or junior high school, who has been 
retained one year and is recommended for retention a second year, is to be referred for an 
evaluation by appropriate specialists, psychologists, etc. 
 
Students who do not satisfactorily achieve established objectives for the grade or course 
which they are assigned may be assigned to the same grade for the next school year or 
given an alternative assignment.  Student’s level of proficiency in the areas of reading, 
writing, science, and mathematics must be reviewed and the student’s progression must be 
based, in part, upon this proficiency.  Students not meeting desired levels of proficiency as 
determined by the District and/or as evidenced by the results of state mandated tests are to 
be provided remedial instruction designed to foster their progress toward mastery of 
essential concepts and required standards.  If mastery is not achieved, remediation may be 
provided through, but not limited to, one or more of the following: 
 

● Summer school course work or intensive skills development; 
● Extended day or school year services/academic tutoring; 
● Parent tutorial programs/ 
● Mentoring 
● Contracted academic services (previously approved); 
● Modified curriculum; 
● Exceptional Student Education (ESE) services; 
● Class size reduction; 
● Use of educational software (COMPASS) 
● Suspension of other curriculum offerings in areas other than reading, writing, 

English and math, or in those subjects specifically required for graduation. 
 
Retention  of  students  must  be  considered  if  the  student  has  failed  to  master  approved 
performance standards and has been provided remedial instruction and upon reassessment 
falls below determined cut-off points on a District measure of assessment or on the state 
assessments in reading, writing, science and mathematics.  A student may also be retained 
within an intensive program that is different from the previous year’s program and takes 
into consideration the student’s learning style.  Children should be retained as little as 
possible.  Students must not be retained without documentation that remediation was 
provided in a timely and comprehensive manner. No student may be assigned to a grade 
level based solely on age or other factors that constitute social promotion. 
 
Upon subsequent evaluation, if the documented deficiency has not been remediated, the 
student may be retained.  Each student who does not meet the minimum performance  
expectations  defined  by  the  commissioner  of  Education  for  the  statewide assessment 
tests in reading, writing, science, and mathematics must continue remedial or supplemental 

Page 99 of 1019

DRAFT



 

81 
 

instruction until the expectations are met or the student graduates from high school or is 
not subject to compulsory school attendance.  An appropriate alternative placement must 
be considered for a student who has been retained two or more years. 
 
Each district must annually report to the parent or legal guardian of each student the 
progress of the student towards achieving state and district expectations for proficiency in 
reading, writing, and mathematics.  The district must report to the parent or legal guardian 
the student’s results on each statewide assessment.  The evaluation of each student’s 
progress must be based upon the student’s classroom work, observations, tests, district and 
state assessments, and other relevant information.  Progress reporting must be provided to 
the parent or legal guardian, in writing, in a format adopted by the district School Board. 
 
In general, the procedures outlined in this Student Progression Plan apply to all students 
with disabilities.  An IEP serves as the basis for decisions regarding retention and 
promotion. 
 
Under most circumstances, students will complete grade groupings within a set time frame. 
However, the principal may authorize that a student be retained a second time in any one 
of the grade groupings. 

PROMOTION AND PLACEMENT OF JUNIOR HIGH STUDENTS 

In order to be promoted to the next higher grade within the junior high, a student must 
successfully complete Language Arts, Mathematics, Science, Social Studies and one 
additional course for a total of five (5) subjects.  Existing state student performance 
standards shall be the basis for each course. Appropriate procedures shall be followed by 
the classroom teacher to continuously and carefully observe student performance 
throughout the school year to determine if expected achievement levels and/or course 
performance standards are being met.  Under no circumstances should student performance 
be judged solely on the basis of a single test. 
 
The areas of reading, writing, mathematics and science must be assessed with the use of 
District performance measures, testing, teacher observation, classroom assignments and 
state assessment measures.  Remediation measures must be taken and documented in the 
student’s PMP.  No student may be assigned to a grade level based solely on age or other 
factors that constitute social promotion (See P. 83 “Summer School – Junior High” on more 
information pertaining to promotion from grade level to grade level at the junior high.) 
 

In order to be promoted to grade 9, Junior High students MUST successfully complete the 
following during their 6th, 7th and 8th grade years: 
 

● 3 courses in English Language Arts 
● 3 courses in Mathematics (Successful completion of a high school level Algebra 1 

or Geometry course is not contingent upon the student’s performance on the 
statewide, standardized end-of-course (EOC) assessment.  However, to earn high 

Page 100 of 1019

DRAFT



 

82 
 

school credit, the junior high student must take the EOC and pass the course, with 
the assessment constituting 30% of the final course grade.) 

● 3 courses in Social Studies (one of which must be, at a minimum, a one-semester 
Civics education course that includes the roles and responsibilities of federal, state 
and local governments, the structures and functions of the legislative, executive and 
judicial branches of government; and the meaning and significance of historic 
documents, such as the Articles of Confederation, the Declaration of Independence 
and the U.S. constitution.  In addition, this course includes a statewide, standardized 
EOC that constitutes 30% of the student’s final grade as required under s. 1008.22, 
F.S..  A middle grades student who transfers into the state’s public school system 
from an out-of-country, an out-of-state, a private school, or a home education 
program after the beginning of the second term/semester of grade “8” is not 
required to meet the civics education requirement for promotion IF the student’s 
transcript documents passage of three courses in social studies or two year-long 
courses in social studies that include coverage of civics education.) 

● 3 courses in Science (Successful completion of a high school level Biology 1 course 
is not contingent upon the student’s performance on the statewide, standardized 
EOC assessment required under s. 1008.22.  However, to earn a credit for this 
course, the student must take the Biology 1 EOC, which constitutes 30% of the 
student’s final course grade, and earn a passing grade in the course.) 

 

PROMOTION AND PLACEMENT OF HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS 

Grade level designation for high school students will be determined as 
follows: 
 

● Following  completion  of  one  year  designated  as  a  9th   grader,  the  student  will  
be designated as a 10th grader in the computer system.  This designation does not 
guarantee that the student has successfully completed the traditional 6-credits per 
school year; 

● Following  completion  of  one  year  designated  as  a  10th   grader,  the  student  
will  be designated as a 11th grader in the computer system.  This designation does 
not guarantee that the student has successfully completed the traditional 12-credits 
for two years of high school enrollment; 

● Following the completion of one year designated as a 11th grader, the student must 
have completed 18-credits OR 21-credits at the end of the 1st semester of the 
students fourth year enrolled at a high school and have a 2.0 cumulative GPA in 
order to be classified as a 12th grader (Senior) and take part in Senior oriented events 
(Prom, Grad Bash, and any other school determined Senior activities) 

 
According to state statutes, students are assigned to a cohort class at the beginning of each 
year enrolled at a high school.  This cohort status determines the graduation requirements 
that must be met by that student.  Students will be regularly notified as to their “credits 
earned” status towards graduation. The student will need to acquire the appropriate number 
of credits based on the graduation option chosen in order to be on track to graduate in four 

Page 101 of 1019

DRAFT



 

83 
 

years with their 9th grade cohort.  Grade recovery opportunities exist in order to help 
maintain student’s progress towards graduation. 
 
Students age 18 or older wishing to return to school after withdrawing may petition the 
school for placement.  The principal and/or designee will review the reasons for return 
given by the student and family.  The principal will make the final determination based on 
the following requirements: 
 

● The student has accumulated at least 16 credits; 
● The student has a probable chance of graduating within the academic year; 
● An  agreement  between  the  student  and  school  concerning  attendance, behavior  

and school performance is agreed upon. 
 
If the principal does not agree to the conditions or the student does not meet the criteria, 
Adult Education will serve the educational needs of the student. 
 
As in state statute, students who received a “Certificate of Completion” may return for a 
5th year of high school in order to obtain their Standard Diploma. 

READING AND MATH REMEDIATION 

Reading: All 7th through 10th grade students scoring a Level 1 or Level 2 on the reading 
portion of the FSA will be screened for intensive reading placement.  Screening includes 
the use of the Achieve 3000 Spring Benchmark results, as well as a district comprehension 
screener and teacher recommendations. Students qualifying for intensive reading will be 
placed in one class period of reading using a blended model of teacher instruction and 
computer based practice. Students not qualifying for intensive reading placement will 
receive reading support in the content area classes.  Students in grades 11 and 12 who 
score a Level 1 or 2 on FSA retakes and who has have  not earned a concordant score on 
the ACT or SAT will be placed in an intervention course focusing on ACT/SAT 
preparation and reading remediation. If a student passes the FSA retake or earns a 
concordant score, (s)he may exit the intensive reading program at the end of the first 
semester. (Note: The Instructional Decision Tree for intensive reading placement can be 
found on the district website.) 
 
Math:  Students in grades 7 and 8, who score an achievement level 1 on FSA, will be 
placed in standard math classes and will not qualify for advanced math programs.  Eighth 
grade students scoring an achievement level 1 on the pre-algebra FSA will be given 
priority for Algebra 1A/1B upon entering high school.  As a mandatory Florida math 
graduation requirement, students in Algebra 1 and Geometry are required to take an “End-
of-Course” exam.  Students not scoring an achievement level 3 or higher will be placed in 
a Liberal Arts Math course.  Secondary schools will also be utilizing the Edgenuity online 
program to remediate course work, as a virtual tutor, and credit recovery.  Additional 
remedial options are available in all Clay County secondary schools through the Guidance 
Department. 

Page 102 of 1019

DRAFT



 

84 
 

SCHEDULE CHANGES 

When changing a student’s schedule after the first ten days of school, leveling must be 
within the same specific subject.  An example of this is if a student requests a schedule 
change and they are enrolled in Algebra Honors, Algebra 1 would be the most appropriate 
change.  Grades earned will be transferred as part of the leveling process.  Any withdrawals 
after the first quarter would require a withdraw “F/0” for the 2nd grading period and the 
semester exam.  Students who withdraw with an “F” from a course may enter a semester 
course at the semester change if space is available. 
 
In the case where a student has been improperly placed in a class, and this has been verified 
by the teacher, then movement to another more appropriate subject area class is in order 
with the approval of the principal.  This should take place before the end of the first grading 
period so the student may be placed in an appropriate course.  Current grades should be 
transferred to average in with grades earned in the new course.  If inappropriate placement 
is determined prior to the end of the first interim reporting period and no appropriate class 
is available for reassignment, then the grade given to the student for the course would be 
a “Withdrawn: Passing.”  The grade would then be posted as no credit just as we do with 
course forgiveness. 
 
Students taking courses through Clay Virtual Academy or FLVS should review the 
“Student Contact and Drop” policy. 

CLAY VIRTUAL ACADEMY - STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY 

Only through continuous communication can students be successful in an online course.  
Within each course the instructor outlines the weekly minimum work requirements.  It is 
essential that the student and instructors maintain regular contact.  To ensure that our 
students are aware of this commitment, the four-part process below will be followed: 
 

● If the student does not submit the expected numbers of assignment(s) within a 
period of seven (7) consecutive days, the student and parent(s) will receive a phone 
call from the instructor.  During the call, the student, parent(s), and teacher will 
work to resolve any issues that prevent the student from submitting an acceptable 
number of assignments each week. 

● If the student does not respond to the phone call by submitting assignments within 
seven  (7)  days  or  does  not  continue  to  submit  an  acceptable  number  of 
assignments each week, the instructor will send an email to the student/parent to 
remind them of the importance of submitting work and detailing the withdrawal 
process, if necessary. 

● If the student does not respond by submitting assignments within fourteen (14) days 
of the initial phone call, CVA will assume that the student does not intend to remain 
in the course, and the student will be administratively dropped from the course. 

● An  official  final  grade  report  will  be  emailed  to  the  student.   If the course 
withdrawal date falls within the grace period, a grade of “W” will be issued. After 
the grace period, a grade of “WP or WF” (or failing grade (if over 50% completed) 
will be issued to their school transcripts. 

Page 103 of 1019

DRAFT



 

85 
 

 

Students from outside Clay County may enroll in CVA full or part time online programs.   

SEMESTER EXAMS 

All students in grades 9-12 shall take semester exams.  The School Board approved exam 
exemption procedures for seniors only is as follows: 
 

● Exam exemptions are limited to seniors only; 
● All seniors in year-long courses with a 1st  semester average of “B” or better and a 

“B” average or better for 3rd  and 4th  quarters averaged together, will be exempt 
from taking those exams given at the end of the 2nd semester.   Courses that are a 
semester in length are not exempt at any time; 

● Attendance is not a consideration under the current exemption policy 
● Exam values are the same for the current school year 
● Semester exams will not be given early. 

 

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

Junior High: Students with exceptional ability may be enrolled in credit earning courses 
at the high school with the approval of the school principals and the parent.  The parent 
shall assume the responsibility for transporting the student between schools, where 
appropriate.  Such enrollment must be limited to courses which are congruent with the 
beginning or ending of the school day, but not both.  Student’s grades and credits shall be 
awarded as received by the school where the student is regularly enrolled. 
 
Special classes/programs: The district will employ special programs designed to assist 
students in meeting the necessary credits and the 2.0 GPA required for graduation.  
Appropriate approaches not already covered in this plan will include, but shall not be 
limited to, special counseling tutorial programs, help and/or homework sessions, skills 
classes and special assistance to obtain a high school equivalency diploma when all 
requirements for graduation have been met except for the attainment of a 2.0 cumulative 
GPA. 

SUMMER SCHOOL 

Summer school is an extension of the school year for students who attended Clay County 
schools.  Students who did not attend Clay County schools are not eligible for the summer 
program unless they enrolled prior to the beginning of the 4th nine-week period or 
approved for the HOPE Scholarship Program (see the “Student Code of Conduct for more 
information about this program).  High School Students may earn up to two full-credits 
during the summer regardless of the vehicle(s) used to acquire that credit. 
 
Junior High Summer School: “Conditional Promotion.” 
For a 6th or 7th grader who has failed two subjects, or ESE students with IEP 
recommendations, they may take one (1) of the courses during the traditional “Summer 

Page 104 of 1019

DRAFT



 

86 
 

School” period.  The other failed course must be completed either through a virtual 
program or during the next summer school offering. Junior High students may receive 
grade forgiveness for courses in which they received a “C,” “D,” or “F.” If math is one of 
the failed courses, it must be taken during the immediate summer school session.  An 8th 

grader failing two subjects must have all subjects successfully completed prior to enrolling 
in the 9th grade.  The “Conditional Promotion” must take into consideration the following 
factors in addition to the completion of the failed courses: 
 

● Whether or not the student has been previously retained; 
● The student is older than the average age of the other students; 
● It will be in the best interest of the student to receive a “Conditional Promotion”; 
● There is evidence that the student has the ability to be successful at the next grade 

level. 
 

If it is the determination of the Principal to not approve a “Conditional Promotion” for a 
student, the student will be recommended for retention.  An 8th grade student must have 
passing grades for all core content subjects for 6th-8th grade in order to be promoted to 9th 
grade, therefore, “Conditional Promotion” does not apply.  Students failing 3 or more 
courses are automatically retained. 
 
High School Summer School: 
Students may take ½ credit or up to 2 credits during the summer period.  All coursework 
for grade forgiveness must be completed prior to the next school year.  High school 
students may take courses that they received a “D” or “F” in so as to earn credit and to 
raise their GPA’s.  Courses for new or original credit are limited and determined on an 
annual basis by the District. 
 
Summer programs by other districts which assign credit may be reviewed by Clay County 
staff to determine appropriateness of assigning local credit.  Prior approval should be 
received before attempting summer courses at other schools/districts. 

TERMINATION OF SCHOOL PLACEMENT AT AGE 16 
A student who attains the age of 16 years during the school year is not subject to 
compulsory school attendance beyond the date upon which he or she attains that age if the 
student files a formal declaration of intent to terminate school enrollment with the 
District.  The declaration must acknowledge that terminating school enrollment is likely 
to reduce the student’s earning potential and must be signed by the student and the 
student’s parent. 
The following steps must also be taken: 

● The school shall notify the student’s parent of receipt of the student’s declaration 
of intent to terminate school enrollment. 

● The student’s guidance counselor or other school personnel shall conduct an exit 
interview with the student to determine the reasons for the student’s decision to 

Page 105 of 1019

DRAFT



 

87 
 

terminate school enrollment and actions that could be taken to keep the student in 
school. 

● The student shall be informed of opportunities to continue his or her education in a 
different environment, including, but not limited to, adult education and GED test 
preparation. 

● The student shall complete a survey to provide data on student reasons for 
terminating enrollment and actions taken by schools to keep students enrolled. 

TRANSFERRING STUDENT  

Students transferring from one school to another shall have the grade assigned by the 
departing school and by the receiving school if registered there for 15 or more days.  If a 
student is transferring to a school in another district at a time near the end of the school 
year and the school they are transferring to, has already completed the school year, it will 
be the responsibility of our “sending school” to use good judgment for the benefit of the 
student involved.  Usually no more than 20 school days should apply.  The student’s grades 
should be closed out and credit posted. Virtual students taking FLVS content courses 
receive grades of “WF” or “WP” when transferring prior to course completion per FLVS 
policy.  The principal has the authority to waive class exams (this does not include “End-
of Course” exams) in order to close out a student’s grades. 

Transferring Student and Graduation: students who enter a Clay County school at the 11th 

or 12th grade level from out-of-state or from a foreign country shall not be required to 
spend additional time in the high school in order to meet the high school course/credits 
requirements IF the student has met all course/credit requirements of the school district, 
state, or country from which he or she is transferring.  In addition to credit requirements 
to receive a standard high school diploma, a transfer student must earn a 2.0 GPA, pass 
the Algebra I EOC OR have passed an equivalent Algebra I EOC from the transferring 
state or county, pass the 10th Grade FSA ELA OR receive the concordant scores on the 
SAT or ACT identified by the Department of Education. Such students who are not 
proficient in English should receive immediate and intensive instruction in English 
language acquisition.   

 
Transfer Credit Policies and Guidelines: The “State Uniform Transfer of High School 
Credits Rule” states that credits and grades earned and offered for acceptance shall be 
based on official transcripts and shall be accepted at face value subject to validation if 
required by the receiving school’s accreditation.  The rule does not require that the 
transferring school be accredited in order for the credits to be accepted at face value.  The 
rule states that the requested grades or credits will be accepted if presented as part of an 
official transcript.  An official transcript is a document that is sent directly from the 
administrator of the school where the credit is earned to the receiving school.  An official 
transcript shall be sent by mail or electronically signed by a school administrator, be on 
school letterhead, and/or be embossed with the school’s seal.  An official transcript should 
clearly identify the school, the student, course number, date the course was taken and the 
credit earned and grade in each course. 

 
Examples of unofficial transcripts are: hand delivered by the student or parent, delivered 

Page 106 of 1019

DRAFT



 

88 
 

to the designated school administrator in an opened envelope, or is on plain paper.  The 
rule, therefore, precludes  districts  and  individual  schools  from  placing  any  additional  
requirements  or procedures on the transfer of high school credits. 

If validation of the official transcript is deemed necessary for accreditation purposes by the 
receiving school or the student does not possess an official transcript, or if the student is a 
home education student, credits shall be validated through performance during the first 
grading period that the student is enrolled in the school.  A student transferring into a school 
shall be placed at the appropriate sequential course level and in order to receive credit, a 
student should have a minimum grade point average of 2.0 at the end of the first grading 
period.  If a student does not meet this requirement, they shall have their credits validated 
using the “Alternative Validation Procedure” listed below: 

● Portfolio evaluation by the Superintendent or designee; 
● Written recommendation by a Florida certified teacher selected by the parent and 

approved by the principal; 
● Demonstrated performance in courses taken through dual Enrollment or at other 

private schools; 
● Demonstrated proficiencies on nationally-normed standardized subject area 

assessments; 
● Demonstrated proficiencies on the FSA ELA; 
● Written review of the criteria utilized for a given subject provided by the former 

school.  Student must be provided at least ninety (90) days from date of transfer to 
prepare for assessments outlined in the “Alternative Validation procedure” of this 
rule, if required. 

 
If the “Alternative Validation procedure” is used, parents are obligated to the findings of 
the procedure.  A school has until the end of the first grading period in which the student 
is enrolled to validate an official transcript.  After this point, all credits and grades are to 
be accepted at face value. 

TRANSFER STUDENT PLACEMENT (Military Dependent Children) 

CCSB participates in the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military 
Children, the purpose of which is to remove barriers to educational success imposed on 
children of military families because of frequent moves and deployment of their parents. 
The district will implement the requirements listed in FS 1000.36. 
 

In order to facilitate on-time graduation for transferring military children enrolled any time 
in high school, as specified in section F.S. 1000.36, Article VII the following provisions 
apply: 
 

● A school district must waive specific courses required for graduation if similar 
coursework has been satisfactorily completed in another school district or shall 
provide reasonable justification for denial. If a waiver is not granted to a student 
who would qualify to graduate from a school of the sending state, the school of the 

Page 107 of 1019

DRAFT



 

89 
 

receiving state must provide an alternative means of acquiring the required course 
work so that graduation may occur on time. 

● States must accept exit or end-of-course (EOC) exams required for graduation 
from a school in the sending state. 

● If a transitioning student who transfers in his or her senior year is ineligible to 
graduate from a school in the receiving state after all alternatives have been 
considered, both the sending and receiving state schools must ensure the receipt of 
the diploma from the sending state school if the student meets the graduation 
requirements of the sending state school. The student may participate in all local 
graduation activities. 

 
Dependent children of active duty military personnel who otherwise meet the eligibility 
criteria for special academic programs offered through public schools shall be given first 
preference for admission to such programs even if the program is being offered through a 
public school other than the school to which the student would generally be assigned. If 
such a program is offered through a public school other than the school to which the student 
would generally be assigned, the parent of the student must assume responsibility for 
transporting the student to that school. For purposes of this subsection, special academic 
programs include advanced studies programs, dual enrollment, Advanced Placement (AP), 
Advanced International Certificate of Education (AICE), and International Baccalaureate 
(IB). 
 

HOPE Scholarship Program students follow these same policies (see the “Student Code of 
Conduct for more information about this program). 

CHANGE OF CLASS/COURSES OF CLAY COUNTY STUDENTS 

A parent may request a transfer of their child(ren) to another classroom teacher within the 
same grade or course at any time during the year.  The parent may not, however, choose a 
specific classroom teacher.  At the time of the request, the school must approve or deny the 
request within 2 weeks.  If the request is denied, the school will notify the parent and 
specify the reasons for the denial. F.S. 1003.3101 

Procedures Concerning Request for Transfer of Students: 

● Parent makes a written request to the school Principal to transfer their child(ren) 
to another teacher (must be in the same grade level and/or course); Prior to 
principal consideration, a parent teacher conference must take place; 

● The Principal considers the request and notifies the parent within two weeks.  The 
Principal must consider:  
 Class size 
 Grade and course 
 Any variable that would impact the student or class that is being considered 

(ex., discipline issues, teacher input) 
● If approved, parent and teacher are notified; 
● If not approved, parent is notified with explanation given. 

 

Page 108 of 1019

DRAFT



 

90 
 

VALEDICTORIAN AND SALUTATORIAN RECOGNITION 

When a school awards Valedictorian and Salutatorian status, the following criteria must be 
met: 
 

● Senior class rank (Valedictorian & Salutatorian inclusive) shall be based on a 
weighted grade point average on all courses taken in grades 9-12 including virtual 
courses. Calculations of GPAs for valedictorian and salutatorian shall be made at 
the conclusion of the eighth semester. If virtual grades are not reported to the school 
prior to the last day of senior exams, that course should not be included in the 
determination of valedictorian(s) and salutatorian(s)." 

● A high school transfer student shall be given quality point weighting for any course 
acceptable for transfer if that course is deemed comparable to a course in Clay 
County that receives a quality point weighting. All courses that carry weight on the 
grade point average should be labeled on the transfer student record as honors, dual 
enrollment, advanced, advanced placement, accelerated, or some other description 
that denotes an honors level class. The principal or designee shall make the 
determination as to which transfer courses qualify for quality points. 

● Students graduating from a three-year 18-Credit Graduation Program are eligible 
for valedictorian and salutatorian status. The conclusion of the eighth semester is 
the deadline for an 18-credit graduation program student to select to graduate and 
compete for valedictorian or salutatorian status, or continue to complete the 24-
credit diploma.  

● A student who transfers to or within Clay County during the last year prior to 
graduation is not eligible to be named sole Valedictorian or Salutatorian. However, 
that student is eligible to be Co-Valedictorian or Co-Salutatorian based on the 
following criteria:  
 If ranked first in the senior class based on the cumulative weighted GPA, 

the transfer student would be named Co-Valedictorian along with the 
second ranked student. The third-ranked student would be named 
Salutatorian. 

 If ranked second in the senior class, the transfer student would be named 
Co-Salutatorian along with the third-ranked student 

VOLUNTARY SERVICE HOURS  
Voluntary Service Hours are required for all Bright Futures Scholarship Awards - Florida 
Academic Scholars, Florida Medallion Scholars,  Gold Seal Vocational Scholars and Gold 
Seal CAPE Scholars : 100, 75 and 30 hours respectively. Students may begin logging and 
documenting volunteer service hours the summer before the student enters ninth 
grade.  Service hours may include, but are not limited to, a business or governmental 
internship, work for a nonprofit community service organization, or activities on behalf of 
a candidate for public office. These service hours are not a Florida or school district 
requirement for graduation with a standard high school diploma. 
 
For student who are attempting to receive school community service hours for an activity, 
below are the district guidelines: 

Page 109 of 1019

DRAFT



 

91 
 

● Volunteer service is defined as “assisting where needed in a social issue where the 
student’s service directly addresses a need in the school or community in areas such 
as health, education, environment, public safety, etc.; 

● Volunteer service activities should receive prior approval from the school’s 
designated high school personnel (typically, the student’s high school counselor) to 
ensure that credit will be awarded to the student; 

● Activities performed at school should be designed to meet greater needs in the areas 
of health, education, environment, or public safety identified within the 
school.  The benefits of the activities should be extended to individuals or families 
in need, not to the student’s own family; 

● Volunteer service activities must be unpaid.  The student must not be compensated 
with money, goods, or services for their time; 

● Volunteer service activities must be rendered for “not-for-profit” organizations or 
agencies; 

● The student may engage in direct, indirect, or advocacy service activities. 
Definitions and examples of those activities are: 
 “Direct Service” involves face-to-face contact with service 

recipients.  Examples include tutoring other students, serving meals at a 
homeless shelter or working with the elderly in a nursing home; 

 “Indirect Service” involves performing a service without having face-to-
face contact with the recipients.  Usually, resources are channeled to or 
through an organization to help alleviate a problem.  Examples include food 
and clothing drives, marathons, fundraisers, or environmental projects; 

 “Advocacy” involves educating others about a particular social problem 
with a goal of eliminating the cause of that problem.  Examples include 
writing letters to legislators or editors, preparing and displaying posters to 
an identified audience, writing and performing informative plays, or 
creating educational materials for other target groups; 

● Hours spent in volunteer service activities must be verified by a site supervisor. The 
appropriate documentation on business letterhead must be signed by the site 
supervisor.  Business letterhead can also be attached to the completed Clay County 
Volunteer Service Documentation Form; 

 
Activities that MAY NOT be approved include, but are not limited to, the following: 

● Any activity that violates federal or state laws, which prohibit discrimination on the 
basis or face, creed, sex, age, color, national origin, marital status, sexual 
orientation, or disability; 

● Co-curricular activities that are course requirements; 
● Hours submitted after graduation; 
● Fostering of animals in a location other than the shelter associated with a 

government agency or non-profit organization; 
● Any activity whose main purpose is to increase the amount of revenue for a private, 

for-profit business or to generate new revenue for that business; 
● Any activity that replaced a paid staff worker of the agency or institution that the 

student volunteers with; 

Page 110 of 1019

DRAFT



 

92 
 

● Any activity rendered as a prerequisite for future student employment; 
● Any activity that is performed as a result of disciplinary action taken by the school 

or courts; 
● Any activity whose main purpose is to help prepare and/or participate in the 

performance of a religious service or religious educational activity UNLESS the 
hours are spent addressing a social problem (examples may include:  Habitat for 
Humanity, A community-wide summer Vacation Bible School, etc.); 

● Attendance at self-improvement workshops or conferences; 
● Participation as an athlete in school sponsored athletics; 
● Participation as an assistant or trainer at a school-based sports training camp; 
● Participation in regularly scheduled school drama, band, or chorus performances, 

festivals, or competitions. 

WEIGHTED GRADES 

Weighted courses earn additional quality points toward the GPA calculation.  The 
traditional 4.0 scale (A = 4, B = 3, C = 2, D = 1, F = 0) is used for athletic eligibility, 
promotion, Bright Futures, etc.  Rank in class is the primary purpose for utilizing a 
weighted grading scale.  Weighted courses include: “Level 3” Career and Technical 
Education courses, Dual enrollment, IB, AP and AICE courses, all Honors level courses, 
Foreign Language courses for year 3 and above, Chemistry II, Physics II and Gifted 
Studies. 

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION 

 

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION 
Programs are available to students determined eligible for exceptional student education 
(3-21 years of age) as described in the Exceptional Student Education Policies and 
Procedures document which is approved by the Florida Department of Education and the 
School Board of Clay County.  Referrals to the Student Services Team may be initiated by 
school personnel or parents.  Special provisions regarding exemption from general 
statewide assessment are addressed in the student’s Individual Educational Plan.  Gifted 
education, for qualified students, is available K-12.   

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES AND 
TYPES OF DIPLOMAS 

 
Legislation signed on June 20, 2014 by the Governor significantly changed the diploma 
options for students with disabilities.  The legislation in Senate Bill 850 eliminates special 
diploma options and develops pathways to a standard diploma for all students with 
disabilities. This legislation is specific regarding the special diploma option.  As of June 
20, 2014, the special diploma option is available ONLY to students who enrolled in grade 
nine (9) or higher prior to the 2014-15 school year and the student's Individual Education 
Plan indicated a selection of special diploma. Students with disabilities who entered the 

Page 111 of 1019

DRAFT



 

93 
 

9th grade before the 2014-2015 school year cannot be switched to special diploma after 
June 20, 2014. 

 
In compliance with SBER 6A-1.095, FAC (Requirements for High School Diploma) and 
SBER 61-1.0996, FAC (Graduation Requirements for Certain Exceptional Students), a 
student with disabilities may exit high school with a special diploma only if this option is 
specified on the Individual Education Plan prior to the 2014-15 school year.   

If a student with disabilities does not fulfill criteria for a diploma, he/she may exit high 
school with a certificate of completion. 

The selection of a diploma option must take place at an Individual Educational Plan (IEP) 
meeting during the student’s eighth grade school year or during the school year prior to the 
student becoming age 14, whichever comes first.  Since the selection of a diploma option 
will have a significant impact upon the student’s high school curriculum, the IEP team will 
collaborate with the student’s parents/guardians to select the most appropriate diploma 
option. The IEP team will discuss specific course and credit requirements for each diploma 
option in order to make an informed decision.  The diploma option selected at the IEP 
meeting is noted on the IEP.  At each annual IEP meeting thereafter, the academic 
performance of the student in relation to the diploma option selected shall be addressed 
and the diploma recommendation reviewed.  If, at any time, a change to the diploma option 
is recommended or requested, the change must be approved by the parent and is subject to 
verification of appropriateness by an independent reviewer. Copies of each IEP shall be 
given to the parents. 

STANDARD DIPLOMA 

ELIGIBILITY 

All students with disabilities who entered 9th grade in 2014-15 must meet the requirements 
for a standard diploma in order to graduate.  Note: Only students with disabilities who 
enrolled in grade nine (9) or higher prior to the 2014-15 school year and had an Individual 
Education Plan indicating a selection of special diploma may earn a special diploma rather 
than a standard diploma. Students with disabilities exclusively in programs for students 
with Visual and Speech Impairments, Gifted or Homebound or Hospitalized must 
pursue a standard diploma. 

REQUIREMENTS FOR GENERAL STANDARDS DIPLOMAS 

The standard diploma will be awarded to any student who has satisfactorily completed the 
high school program and has met all local and state requirements for graduation.  The 
standard diploma will be awarded to students who: 

● Earn a passing grade on the required statewide assessment(s) or meet the waiver 
requirements. 

● Successfully complete the required credits in grades 9-12. Students with disabilities 

Page 112 of 1019

DRAFT



 

94 
 

must earn required credits in district approved education courses listed in the 
Course Code Directory in order to meet the credit requirements for a standard 
diploma. Students with disabilities may meet the elective credit requirements by 
earning credits in basic, vocational or exceptional student education courses as 
allowed by the standard diploma option selected. 

● Attain the same cumulative grade point average required in the general education 
section of Student Progression Plan. 

 

WAIVER OF STATEWIDE, STANDARDIZED ASSESSMENT RESULTS FOR 
STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 

Section 1008.22(3)(c)1., Florida Statutes (F.S.), requires that school districts provide 
instruction to prepare students with disabilities to demonstrate satisfactory performance in 
the core content knowledge and skills necessary for successful grade-to-grade progression 
and high school graduation. Assessment results may be waived under specific 
circumstances for students with disabilities for the purpose of receiving a course grade and 
a standard high school diploma.  

To be considered for a statewide, standardized assessment results waiver, the following 
criteria must be met: 

● The student must be identified as a student with a disability, as defined in s. 
1007.02, F.S.: The term “student with a disability” means a student who is 
documented as having an intellectual disability; a hearing impairment, including 
deafness; a speech or language impairment; a visual impairment, including 
blindness; an emotional or behavioral disability; an orthopedic or other health 
impairment; an autism spectrum disorder; a traumatic brain injury; or a specific 
learning disability, including, but not limited to, dyslexia, dyscalculia, or 
developmental aphasia. 

● The student must have an individual educational plan (IEP). 
● The student must have taken the statewide, standardized assessment with 

appropriate allowable accommodations at least once. 
● In accordance with s. 1008.22(3)(c)2., F.S., the IEP team must make a 

determination of whether a statewide, standardized assessment accurately measures 
the student’s abilities, taking into consideration all allowable accommodations for 
students with disabilities. 

 
Students with disabilities who choose to pursue the 18-credit, Academically      Challenging 
Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) option, may be eligible for a waiver of 
statewide, standardized assessment results as long as they meet all of the waiver 
requirements and the requirements for the ACCEL option. 

Students pursuing a standard diploma with a scholar diploma designation are not eligible 
for a waiver. In order for a student to earn a scholar diploma designation, a student must 
meet the requirements of s. 1003.4285, F.S. 

Page 113 of 1019

DRAFT



 

95 
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIFIC STANDARD DIPLOMAS 

For those who have selected a General Standard Diploma, the following additional 
options may be discussed at an IEP team meeting and selected if appropriate.   

Standard Diploma via Access Courses:  This diploma is ONLY available to students with 
significant cognitive disabilities who are enrolled in access courses.  The following may 
considered: 

● Substitution of eligible Career Technical Education (CTE) courses for required 
access courses.  Eligible CTE courses are noted in the state course code directory.    

● Modified expectations or outcomes to the CTE curriculum if CTE substitutions 
have been selected in lieu of required access courses. 

● Waiver of the Florida Standards Alternate Assessment for the purpose of receiving 
a course grade and a standard high school diploma.  If this option is recommended 
by the IEP team, the parent must approve it.  In addition, a Graduation Portfolio 
must be developed in the area (reading, math, science) in which the waiver is 
granted.  

 
Standard Diploma via Academic Courses and Employment Competencies:  This may be 
considered when the IEP team has determined that mastery of both academic and 
employment competencies are the most appropriate way for the student to demonstrate 
skills.  If this option is selected, an appropriate and signed Employment Transition Plan 
must be in place and separate from the IEP. Also, in addition to meeting the requirements 
noted for the general standard diploma, the IEP team may discuss and opt to substitute 
eligible Career Technical Education (CTE) courses for required core academic courses.  
Eligible CTE courses are noted in the state course code directory.    

Standard Diploma Merit Designation, Standard Diploma Scholar Designation, Advanced 
International Certificate of Education, State of Florida High School Performance-Based 
Diploma, State of Florida High School Diploma, International Baccalaureate, Standard 
Diploma ACCEL 18 Credit Option:  Specific requirements for each of these diploma types 
can be found in the Secondary Education section of this manual.  

ESE SERVICES AND THE PROVISION OF FAPE 

Under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, students with disabilities may 
receive public education services until their 22nd birthday. Students who have not 
graduated with a standard diploma or who have selected the option to defer the receipt of 
their standard diploma may receive services from the school district until their 22nd 
birthday. 

 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

According to statute, a Certificate of Completion is awarded to any student with a disability 
who has met all requirements for graduation with a standard diploma, except for passing 
the Statewide Assessment Program.  The awarding of a certificate of completion to students 

Page 114 of 1019

DRAFT



 

96 
 

with disabilities does not prevent a student with a disability from pursuing a standard 
diploma.  A student with disabilities may continue to pursue a standard diploma until 
his/her 22nd birthday. 

 

DEFERRAL OF GRADUATION/RECEIPT OF STANDARD HIGH SCHOOL 
DIPLOMA 

This applies only to students with disabilities pursuing a standard diploma during the 
school year in which the student is expected to graduate.  [Students who receive a special 
diploma or a certificate of completion do NOT need to defer receipt of the special diploma 
or certificate in order to continue to receive FAPE.]  The IEP team must review the benefits 
of deferring and describe in writing the services and programs available to the student who 
wishes to defer.  The decision is made by the parent or the student if over age 18 during 
the year the student is expected to meet all of the requirements for a standard diploma, 
which is the senior year.  Additionally, the decision to defer must be made by May 15 of 
the senior year.  A student with a disability may only defer receipt of a standard diploma 
if: 
 

● The IEP includes special education, transition planning, transition services, or 
related services through age 21 AND 

● The student is enrolled in one or more of the following:    
 Accelerated college credit instruction (dual enrollment and early admission, 

advanced placement, and credit by examination)  
 Industry certification courses that lead to college credit (check with the 

Career-Technical Education department for courses that apply)                                   
 Collegiate high school program (International Baccalaureate program, or 

Advanced International Certificate of Education program) 
 Courses necessary to satisfy the Scholar designation requirements (the 

scholar designation requires satisfactory completion of additional academic 
courses and assessments; see fldoe.org for additional information) 

 A structured work-study program (any program that is designed to prepare 
the student for employment), internship, or pre-apprenticeship program (for 
students who are at least 16 years old). 

GIFTED PROGRAM 

A student is eligible for special instructional programs for the Gifted from kindergarten 
through grade 12 if the student meets one of these criteria: 
 

● The student demonstrates: 
 The need for a special program. 
 A majority of characteristics of Gifted students according to a standard scale 

or checklist. 
 Superior intellectual development as measured by an intelligence quotient of 

two standard deviations or more above the mean on an individually 
administered standardized test of intelligence. 

Page 115 of 1019

DRAFT



 

97 
 

● The student is a member of an underrepresented group and meets the criteria 
specified in an approved school district plan for increasing the participation of 
underrepresented groups in programs for students who are Gifted. 
Underrepresented groups are defined in Rule 6A-6.03019, F.A.C., as students with 
limited English proficiency or students from low socio-economic status families. 
 

When a student is determined eligible for this program, an Educational Plan is developed.  
In grades K-6, Clay County District Schools utilizes the research based Gifted Enrichment 
Model as the best way to meet the depth and complex needs of elementary students who 
are Gifted.  In grades 7-8, junior high schools may utilize academic content courses or 
provide support facilitation.  Students who are Gifted articulating from grade 8 to 9 will 
have an Educational Plan articulation meeting to address appropriate services. 
 
In order to ensure that Exceptional Student Education Services are provided for all students 
who are Gifted, the following principles should guide decision making: 
 

● The Educational Plan (EP) drives the Gifted service; students must attend the Gifted 
class, or receive the Gifted services, as they do any other required instruction.  
Participation in Gifted classes cannot be used as a reward. 

● The Educational Plan identifies the amount of time a student receives instruction 
with the Gifted teacher.  If any changes are needed to the Educational Plan, 
individual EP meetings must be held (including the parent/guardian) to address the 
changes.  The changes must be described in Present Level of Educational 
Performance. 

● Students who attend Gifted Enrichment classes are responsible for concepts 
covered in their general education class.  The general education teacher should try 
to schedule critical lectures, presentations of new material, and tests at a time when 
the Gifted students are present. Any critical material covered when the Gifted  
students are receiving their required Gifted service will be provided to students 
upon their return to class.  

● Students who are Gifted attending an enrichment class are NOT required to make 
up classwork or homework missed while participating in activities with the Gifted 
teacher.  Additionally, missed classwork must not be assigned as homework.  
However, the students may be held responsible for key concepts covered during 
their absence. 

● Middle school students who attend a Gifted class for content instruction receive 
their grade for that subject from the Gifted teacher. 

● In order to be considered an ESE service, all Gifted classes (Enrichment classes at 
elementary school or Gifted academic content courses at the junior high school) 
must be taught by a Gifted Endorsed Teacher and the classes must be comprised of 
only students who are Gifted. 

CLASSROOM ACCOMMODATIONS 

ESE and 504 students should receive classroom accommodations as listed in their IEP or 
504 Plan.   Accommodations are implemented in all general education courses, Career and 
Technical Education (CTE) courses and programs of study as needed to assure students the 

Page 116 of 1019

DRAFT



 

98 
 

opportunity to meet requirements for course completion and high school graduation 
requirements for a standard diploma.  The appropriate accommodations shall be 
determined on the basis of the assessed needs of the student and shall be reflected in his/her 
IEP.  Accommodations to these courses shall not include modifications to the student 
performance standards.   

DISTRICT AND STATEWIDE ASSESSMENT ACCOMMODATIONS  

Allowable district and state standardized assessment accommodations should be 
considered by the IEP team at annual IEP reviews.  Note that only allowable 
accommodations approved by any specified standardized assessments are permissible.  
Parents and students should be made aware that there may be accommodations used in the 
classroom that are not permissible on standardized assessments.  

 
Teachers are to use appropriate testing accommodations, identified on the IEP, for a 
student with disabilities in all situations.   

   

FLORIDA STANDARDS ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT FOR STUDENTS WITH 
SIGNIFICANT COGNITIVE DISABILITIES 

Participation Guidelines: 
All Florida students participate in the state’s assessment and accountability system. The 
Florida Standards Alternate Assessment (FSAA) is designed for students whose 
participation in the general statewide assessment program (Florida Standards Assessments, 
Statewide Science Assessment, Next Generation Sunshine State Standards End-of-Course 
Assessments) is not appropriate, even with accommodations. The FSAA measures student 
academic performance on the Access Points in Language Arts, Mathematics, and Science, 
and Social Studies.  Access Points are academic expectations written specifically for 
students with significant cognitive disabilities. They reflect the essence or core intent of 
the standards that apply to all students in the same grade, but at reduced levels of 
complexity.  
 
The decision for a student with a disability to participate in the statewide alternate 
assessment is made by the Individual Educational Plan (IEP) team and recorded on the IEP.  
The IEP team should consider the student’s present level of educational performance in 
reference to the Florida Standards Assessments and Next Generation Sunshine State 
Standards Assessments.  All of the following criteria must be met: 

  
● The student has a significant cognitive disability.  
● Even with appropriate and allowable instructional accommodations, assistive 

technology or accessible instructional materials, the student requires modifications 
to the grade-level general state content standards as defined in rules 6A-
6.03411(1)(z) and  6A-1.09401 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). 

● The student requires direct instruction in academic areas of English language arts, 
math, social studies and science, based on access points, in order to acquire, 
generalize and transfer skills across settings.  

Page 117 of 1019

DRAFT



 

99 
 

● The parent must sign consent in accordance with Rule 6A-6.0331(10), F.A.C. 
 

If the student meets all of the criteria for alternate assessment, the student should be 
enrolled in access courses and the Florida Standards Alternate Assessment should be used 
to provide a meaningful evaluation of the student’s current academic achievement.   

 
If the student does not meet the criteria, the student should be instructed in general 
education courses and participate in the general statewide standardized assessments with 
or without accommodations as appropriate. 

 
Student performance is assessed four levels of achievement.  For all grade levels and 
content areas, the minimum scale score in Achievement Level 3 is identified as the passing 
score.  The four achievement levels are: 

 
Level 1 Students at this level do not demonstrate an adequate level of success with 

the Florida Standards Access Points. 
 

Level 2   Students at this level demonstrate a limited level of success with the 
Florida Standards Access Points. 

 
Level 3  Students at this level demonstrate a satisfactory level of success with the 

Florida Standards Access Points. 
 
Level 4  Students at this level demonstrate an above satisfactory level of success 

with the Florida Standards Access Points. 
 

NOTE:  Access courses can only be used for students with significant cognitive disabilities 
who are eligible for alternate assessment.  Determining the specific benchmarks within 
each strand and the functional level(s) applicable to a student shall be the responsibility of 
the IEP Committee. It is expected that only students with the most significant cognitive 
disabilities who are eligible under IDEA will participate in the FSAA.  
 

HOSPITAL/HOMEBOUND 
This program is available to K-12 students and PreK Exceptional Student Education 
students who are physically or emotionally too ill to attend school.  These students may 
continue their academic instruction in the home or in the hospital.  Eligibility is determined 
by an attending physician or psychiatrist certifying that the student is non-contagious and 
expected to be in a home/hospital program for fifteen (15) school days or longer, or has a 
chronic condition  requiring extended absence. 
 

Page 118 of 1019

DRAFT



 

100 
 

ADULT EDUCATION 

ADULT HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA 

Adult High School Eligibility Requirements 
● He/she must be withdrawn from a secondary institution and beyond compulsory 

school age; but cannot be over the age of 21. 
● He/she must meet with a Clay County Adult Education advisor before they are 

enrolled.  An official transcript should be available at this time so that a review of 
past academic history can be conducted; 

● Due to limited course offerings, it is recommended that an eligible Adult High 
School student must have previously attained 20 credits. The balance of credits (24 
is required for graduation) may be completed through the Adult High school 
program; 

● Classes will be available 1 day per week unless otherwise noted.  Please inquire 
about the location of the classes from the Adult Education office.  Students are 
allowed to work outside of the classroom in order to expedite completion of the 
program.  However, all testing or assessments must be done in the lab setting at the 
Adult Education location; 

● All students, regardless of residency status, must pay a $30 tuition fee, per trimester. 
● Registration for returning adult education students who have been administratively 

withdrawn for disciplinary or attendance reasons or who do not remain 
continuously enrolled will pay a $10.00 re-entry fee. 

● Please check with the Adult Education office on times and locations of classes. 
● Office hours and phone number: 904-272-8170 

 7:30 a.m.-8:00 p.m. Monday-Thursday 
 7:30 a.m.-3:00 p.m. Friday 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 

The following sequence of graduation requirements is necessary for graduation from the 
Adult High School Credit Program in the Clay County School District.  Additionally, each 
student must complete each course with at least 70% mastery.  Students must accumulate 
24 credits, post a 2.0 GPA and pass the FCAT. 
 
   Language Arts   4 
   Mathematics   4 

Science   3 
Social Studies   3 
Physical Education  0   (1/2 credit can be accepted) 
Fine Arts   ½  (Art and Other Cultures, etc.) 
Practical Arts   ½ 
Electives   9 

TOTAL         24 

Page 119 of 1019

DRAFT



 

101 
 

EXPLANATION OF EACH SUBJECT AREA 

 
● Language Arts   (4) 

These courses fulfill the required four credits.  These required courses should have 
the word English in the course title.  (ENGLISH I, II, III, IV).  The major emphasis 
will be centered on Literature and Composition. 

● Mathematics  (4) 
Students must pass Algebra I, its equivalent, or a higher math in order to meet the 
math requirement. 

● *Science  (3) 
No specific course requirements apply.  Physical Science and Biology, however, is 
highly recommended. 

● Social Studies  (3)   
The Social Studies requirement include 1 credit in American History, 1 credit in 
World History,  ½ credit in Economics, and ½ credit in American Government. 

● **Fine Arts  (1/2) 
The ½ credit may be accepted for Adult Education students.  These courses include 
Drama, Music and Dance in which manual dexterity is required. 

● **Practical Arts  (1/2) 
Courses in the Practical Arts may be accepted.  Please refer to the Practical Arts 
Course Guide. 

● Life Management Skills  (1/2) 
A ½ credit in Life Management Skills is no longer required; however, if a student 
has received a passing grade in this course it will be accepted. 

● Electives  (9) 
Credit in elective areas fluctuates yearly to accommodate the total credits to be 
earned. 
  

 
 
Special Note: 

 
With appropriate documentation, adults can receive up to two elective credits for successful 
military experience. 

 
There are many students who come to Adult Education without having a Fine Arts, 
Physical Education, Practical Arts and Life Management Skills credit.  Because these 
courses are not offered specifically, they are often substituted with courses such as:  Art 
and Other Cultures, Environmental Science, Marine Science, Writing Composition, 
Journalism, Contemporary Literature, Florida Law, Florida History, Psychology and 
Sociology. 

 
** One (1) credit in either Fine Arts or Practical Arts will also meet this requirement. 

 

Page 120 of 1019

DRAFT



SECTION TITLE ORIGINAL  RATIONALE FOR REVISION
Cover Page 1 Update year and superintendent name to current data

Index titles:  Exceptional Student Education and 

Hospital/Homebound
3

These two items should be removed from this part of the index.  This content will 

be moved to the ESE section beginning on page 92.  H/H will be listed in the 

index to reflect new location.  We should have one section entitled ESE.

Title: MULTI‐TIER SYSTEM OF SUPPORT Page 48 3
Remove title from index.  Section location has changed and appears more than 

once in index

Tranfers 11 Statute says this should be three (3) days.
Tranfers 17 earned outside of the school district
Tranfers 17 Change 2 to two

Multi‐Tiered System Of Supports/Response To 

Intervention Plan/Progress Monitoring
19

Change Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) to Every Student 

Succeeds Act (ESSA)

19 Discuss wording of homework assigned

MTSS 21

The beginning of this sentence was incomplete when copied from original.

Add, "  MTSS teams ensure the students’ needs are addressed through grade 

level/content area..."

Attendance 25 Add "(Child in Need of Services)" after CINS

Eligibility for Alternate Assessment 29

Add clarifying eligibility requirements, "Per section 1008.22, Florida Statutes, and 

Rule 6A‐1.0943 F.A.C., only students with significant cognitive impairment are 

eligible to participate in the FSAA program. Therefore, students with a primary 

disability category of SLD must not participate in the FSAA program and 

subsequently should not be enrolled in access courses that align to the FSAA 

program."
Promotion 44 Change "advance" to advanced

Extended Day Programs 44 Remove "school"

Exceptional Student Education   48
Enhance organization of information. Move this paragraph to beginning of ESE 

section on page 92.

Hospital Homebound 48
Enhance organization of information. Move this paragraph to ESE section on 

page 99 (above Adult Education section).

ELL 50 Add the word "be"
ELL 51 Add space between paragraphs

Habitual Truancy 51
Move the two paragraphs to indicated areas on ESE section and add "the" in 

paragraph two

Excused/Unexcused Absences 53 Correct grammatical error
Calculating Grades and Grade Point Average 55 Correct grammatical error

Student Contact and Drop Policy 56 Correct grammatical error
Course Sequencing 57 Correct grammatical error

EOC Exams 61 Correct typo
ELL 65 Add space

Grad Options 67 Delete "for"
Grad Options 68 Correct grammatical errors
AICE Diploma 70 Correct grammatical error

Home Education 74 Correct grammatical error
Multi‐Tiered System Of Supports/Response To 

Intervention Plan/Progress Monitoring
76

Delete this section. It is a duplicate of the MTSS section beginning on page 19.
Home Ed 78 Process outlined?

Exceptional Student Education 92 Delete this section. Special diploma is no longer an option.

Standard Diploma Eligibility ESE 93
Delete highlighted sentence. All students with disabilities will pursue a standard 

diploma.

ESE Diploma 96 Delete ‐ no longer a valid option
Assessment Accommodations 97 Sentence still valid
Assessment Accommodations 97 Delete sentence ‐ all students pursue a standard diploma.

Adult Ed 99 Delete ‐ High School Completion not an option
ESE SERVICES AND THE PROVISION OF FAPE 99 Add new section IDEA 2004 Guidance for parent/adult student clarity ‐  ESE 

SERVICES AND THE PROVISION OF FAPE

Under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, students with disabilities 

may receive public education services until their 22nd birthday. Students who 

have not graduated with a standard diploma or who have selected the option to 

defer the receipt of their standard diploma may receive services from the school 

district until their 22nd birthday. This is not a new policy. Clay has always 

followed this practice as outlined under IDEA. 

2020‐21 Student Progression Plan 

Rationale for Major Revisions

INTRODUCTION

Page 121 of 1019

DRAFT



 

1 
 

  

 

STUDENT 
PROGRESSION 

PLAN 
 

2020- 2021 
 

DAVID S. BROSKIE 
SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF CLAY COUNTY 
 
 

     JANICE KEREKES  DISTRICT 1 
     CAROL STUDDARD  DISTRICT 2 
     TINA BULLOCK  DISTRICT 3 

            MARY BOLLA   DISTRICT 4 
     ASHLEY GILHOUSEN  DISTRICT 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 122 of 1019

DRAFT



 

2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................. 6 

FLORIDA STATE STANDARDS ..................................................................................... 6 

GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR PROMOTION, SPECIAL ASSIGNMENT AND 
PLACEMENT..................................................................................................................... 6 

STATEWIDE STUDENT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM ................................................... 7 

GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR DROPOUT PREVENTION PROGRAMS AND 
ACADEMIC INTERVENTION PROGRAMS .................................................................. 8 

MILITARY FAMILIES AND TRANSFERS .................................................................. 10 

TRANSFER OF EDUCATIONAL RECORDS AND ENROLLMENT ..................... 10 

ABSENCE AS RELATED TO DEPLOYMENT ACTIVITIES .................................. 11 

GRADUATION OF CHILDREN FROM MILITARY FAMILIES ............................ 11 

ELIGIBILITY ............................................................................................................... 12 

OVERSIGHT, ENFORCEMENT AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION ........................... 12 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION (K-6) ............................................................................. 13 

ADMISSION AND DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS .................................................... 13 

TRANSFER DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS ............................................................... 14 

ELEMENTARY INSTRUCTION ................................................................................ 16 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND RECESS ............................................................. 16 

REGULAR PROGRAM ........................................................................................... 17 

HOMEWORK (SDCC Policy 4.40) ......................................................................... 17 

MULTI-TIERED SYSTEM OF SUPPORTS/RESPONSE TO INTERVENTION 
PLAN/PROGRESS MONITORING ........................................................................ 18 

READING DEFICIENCIES AND PARENTAL NOTIFICATION (F.S.1008.25) ... 22 

ATTENDANCE ........................................................................................................ 23 

ASSESSMENT (F.S. 1008) ...................................................................................... 27 

ELIGIBILITY FOR ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT ................................................... 28 

FLORIDA STANDARDS ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT FOR STUDENTS WITH 
SIGNIFICANT COGNITIVE DISABILITIES ........................................................ 28 

GUIDELINES FOR EXEMPTION OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS 
(ELL)......................................................................................................................... 30 

REPORTING PUPIL PROGRESS ............................................................................... 30 

REPORT CARDS - F.S. 1003.33 ............................................................................. 30 

REPORT CARDS K-1 .............................................................................................. 31 

REPORT CARDS 2-6............................................................................................... 31 

HONOR ROLL (GRADES 2-6 ONLY) ................................................................... 32 

Page 123 of 1019

DRAFT



 

3 
 

ELEMENTARY GRADE PLACEMENT K-6 ............................................................ 32 

MULTIPLE BIRTH SIBLINGS/CLASSROOM PLACEMENT (s.1003.06, F.S.). 33 

PROMOTION ........................................................................................................... 33 

STANDARDS FOR MID-YEAR PROMOTION OF RETAINED THIRD 
GRADERS – RULE 6A-1.094222 ........................................................................... 34 

DETERMINATION REGARDING PROMOTION ................................................ 35 

ACCELERATION .................................................................................................... 35 

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES ........................................................................ 36 

REMEDIATION ........................................................................................................... 36 

REMEDIATION K-6................................................................................................ 36 

SECONDARY SCHOOL REFORM (TO INCLUDE SIXTH GRADE)................. 37 

SIXTH GRADE FAST TRACK PROGRAM .......................................................... 38 

RETENTION ................................................................................................................ 38 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................ 38 

MANDATORY GRADE 3 RETENTION AND SUPPORT (F.S. 1008.25) ........... 39 

EXEMPTION FOR GOOD CAUSE ............................................................................ 40 

GOOD CAUSE EXEMPTIONS FOR GRADE 3 .................................................... 40 

PRINCIPAL’S RESPONSIBILITY – GOOD CAUSE (F.S. 1008.25).................... 42 

PROMOTION (K-2, 4-6).......................................................................................... 42 

EXTENDED DAY PROGRAMS................................................................................. 43 

DEFINITION ............................................................................................................ 43 

STUDENT ELIGIBILITY FOR ACADEMIC TUTORING AND SUMMER 
READING CAMP .................................................................................................... 44 

REQUIRED PROGRAM OF STUDY K-6 .................................................................. 44 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS AVAILABLE ....................................................................... 45 

TITLE I BASIC READING AND MATHEMATICS ACADEMIC SERVICES ... 45 

VIRTUAL SCHOOL (F.S. 1002.45) ........................................................................ 45 

CVA STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY ................................................. 45 

VOLUNTARY PRE-KINDERGARTEN PROGRAM (VPK) ................................ 46 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS (ELL) .......................................................... 46 

SECONDARY EDUCATION .......................................................................................... 48 

ARTICULATED ACCELERATION ........................................................................... 48 

ASSESSMENT EXEMPTION ..................................................................................... 49 

ATTENDANCE ............................................................................................................ 49 

HABITUAL TRUANCY .......................................................................................... 50 

Page 124 of 1019

DRAFT



 

4 
 

EXCUSED/UNEXCUSED ABSENCES ................................................................. 51 

BRIGHT FUTURES SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM .................................................... 53 

CALCULATING GRADES AND GRADE POINT AVERAGE ................................ 54 

CLAY VIRTUAL ACADEMY .................................................................................... 54 

STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY ........................................................ 55 

COLLEGE READY TEST SCORES ........................................................................... 56 

CORRESPONDENCE COURSES ............................................................................... 56 

COURSE SEQUENCING/JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL COURSE 
SEQUENCING/JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL .................................................................. 56 

COURSE SUBSTITUTIONS ....................................................................................... 57 

CREDIT ACCELERATION PROGRAM (CAP) ........................................................ 58 

DROPPING/TRANSFERRING FROM HONORS OR ADVANCED COURSES .... 59 

END-OF-COURSE (EOC) EXAMS ............................................................................ 59 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS (ELL) .............................................................. 61 

FLORIDA SEAL OF BILITERACY ........................................................................... 62 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE STUDENT GUIDELINES .................................................. 62 

FORGIVENESS “D” AND “F”.................................................................................... 64 

GRADING SCALE ...................................................................................................... 64 

GRADUATION EXERCISES/DIPLOMAS ................................................................ 65 

GRADUATION OPTIONS .......................................................................................... 66 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENT:  CPR TRAINING ............................................... 72 

HIV/AIDS ..................................................................................................................... 72 

HOME EDUCATION .................................................................................................. 73 

HONOR ROLL ............................................................................................................. 74 

INTERIM REPORTS ................................................................................................... 74 

INTERSCHOLASTIC PARTICIPATION ................................................................... 74 

OFFENSES AGAINST INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ............................................ 75 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS ................................................................................ 75 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION ........................................................................................... 75 

PROMOTION AND RETENTION .............................................................................. 75 

PROMOTION AND PLACEMENT OF JUNIOR HIGH STUDENTS ...................... 77 

PROMOTION AND PLACEMENT OF HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS..................... 78 

READING AND MATH REMEDIATION ................................................................. 79 

SCHEDULE CHANGES .............................................................................................. 80 

CLAY VIRTUAL ACADEMY - STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY ...... 80 

Page 125 of 1019

DRAFT



 

5 
 

SEMESTER EXAMS ................................................................................................... 81 

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS ................................................................................... 81 

SUMMER SCHOOL .................................................................................................... 82 

TERMINATION OF SCHOOL PLACEMENT AT AGE 16 ...................................... 82 

TRANSFERRING STUDENT ..................................................................................... 83 

TRANSFER STUDENT PLACEMENT (Military Dependent Children) .................... 84 

CHANGE OF CLASS/COURSES OF CLAY COUNTY STUDENTS ...................... 85 

VALEDICTORIAN AND SALUTATORIAN RECOGNITION ................................ 86 

VOLUNTARY SERVICE HOURS ............................................................................. 87 

WEIGHTED GRADES ................................................................................................ 88 

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION ................................................................... 88 

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION .............................................................. 88 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES AND 
TYPES OF DIPLOMAS ............................................................................................... 89 

STANDARD DIPLOMA .............................................................................................. 89 

ELIGIBILITY ........................................................................................................... 89 

REQUIREMENTS FOR GENERAL STANDARDS DIPLOMAS ......................... 89 

WAIVER OF STATEWIDE, STANDARDIZED ASSESSMENT RESULTS FOR 
STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES ........................................................................ 90 

REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIFIC STANDARD DIPLOMAS............................. 90 

ESE SERVICES AND THE PROVISION OF FAPE .............................................. 91 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION ........................................................................ 91 

DEFERRAL OF GRADUATION/RECEIPT OF STANDARD HIGH SCHOOL 
DIPLOMA ................................................................................................................ 91 

GIFTED PROGRAM ................................................................................................... 92 

CLASSROOM ACCOMMODATIONS ...................................................................... 93 

DISTRICT AND STATEWIDE ASSESSMENT ACCOMMODATIONS ................. 93 

FLORIDA STANDARDS ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT FOR STUDENTS WITH 
SIGNIFICANT COGNITIVE DISABILITIES ............................................................ 94 

HOSPITAL/HOMEBOUND ...................................................................................... 95 

 

 

 
 

Page 126 of 1019

DRAFT



 

6 
 

INTRODUCTION   

The purpose of this document is to present to school personnel, parents, students, and other 
interested citizens the Board Rule the administrative procedures required in state 
legislation. It is the intent of the Legislature that each student’s progression from one grade 
to another be determined, in part, upon proficiency in reading, writing, science, and 
mathematics; that district school board policies facilitate such proficiency; and that each 
student and his or her parent be informed of that student’s academic progress. 
  
Florida Statute 1008.25 states:  
  
Each district school board shall establish a comprehensive plan for student progression 
which must provide for a student’s progression from one grade to another based on the 
student’s mastery of the standards. 

FLORIDA STATE STANDARDS   

Student Performance Standards in Florida are defined as the K-12 Academic Standards for 
the State of Florida, inclusive of the Next Generation Sunshine State Standards, and 
establish the core content of the curricula to be taught and specify the core content 
knowledge and skills that K-12 public school students are expected to acquire. The 
standards are rigorous and reflect the knowledge and skills students need for success in 
college and careers. The standards and benchmarks describe what students should know 
and be able to do at grade level progression for kindergarten to grade 8 and in grade bands 
for grade levels 9-12. 
 

GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR PROMOTION, SPECIAL 
ASSIGNMENT AND PLACEMENT  

Student promotion in the Clay County School District is based upon an evaluation of each 
student’s progress toward meeting the appropriate grade level expectations. Decisions 
regarding promotion and retention should be based on consideration of the following:  

  
Progress tests, classroom assignments, daily observations, standardized tests, state 
assessment, mastery of Course Performance Standards/Grade Level Expectations, 
district competencies and objectives and other data, as appropriate or required.  
Responsibility for determining each pupil’s level of performance and ability to 
function academically, socially and emotionally at the next academic level, is that 
of the classroom teacher, subject to the review and final approval of the principal.  
 
  

Students who do not satisfactorily achieve established objectives for the grade or course to 
which they are assigned, may be assigned to the same grade for the next school year or 

Page 127 of 1019

DRAFT



 

7 
 

given alternative assignment.  The areas of reading, writing, mathematics and science must 
be assessed with the use of District performance measures, testing, teacher observation, 
classroom assignments and state assessment measures.  The purpose is to provide 
assistance to students who do not meet district and state expectations for proficiency in 
ELA, science and mathematics and/or to improve behavior and attendance by way of 
interventions. The plan may include one or more of the following activities as considered 
appropriate by the school administration: Tier I (core supports); Tier II or Tier III 
interventions that may include, small group interventions within the school day; 
accommodations to support academic/behavioral/social emotional progress, extended day 
services; tutoring; scheduling of classes to focus on only a few subjects needing 
remediation or emphasis (ELA; science and/or mathematics); consideration for ESE 
services; behavior contracts, attendance improvement plans, and other remedial activities 
as determined by the school district.  A student’s level of proficiency in the areas of reading, 
writing, and mathematics must be reviewed and the student’s progression must be based, 
in part, upon this proficiency.  Science proficiency was added in 1999 with statewide 
measurement beginning in 2003.  Students not meeting desired levels of proficiency as 
determined by the district and/or as evidenced by the results of state mandated tests are to 
be provided remedial instruction designed to foster their progress toward mastery of 
essential concepts and required standards.  If mastery is not achieved, remediation may be 
provided through, but not limited to, one or more of the following: summer school 
coursework (grades 6-12) or intensive skill development, extended day or school year 
services/academic tutoring, parent tutorial programs, mentoring, contracted academic 
services (previously approved), modified curriculum, exceptional education services, class 
size reduction, and suspension of other curriculum offerings in areas other than reading, 
writing, and mathematics or in those subjects specifically required for graduation in grades 
9-12.  

  
Retention of students must be considered if the student has been provided remedial 
instruction and upon reassessment falls below determined cutoff points on the district 
criteria for retention or on assessments as prescribed by the state.  It is the intent of the 
school district that children should be retained as little as possible during the elementary 
and junior high school years.  Students must not be retained without documentation that 
remediation was provided in a timely and comprehensive manner as documentation by 
either the student’s RtI Plan or the student’s IEP.   

 
Students scoring a Level 1 on the statewide assessment test in reading for grade 3 must be 
retained.  It should be noted that no social promotion/Administrative placement 
(1008.25(6)(a) F.S.) is allowed.  Florida statutes prohibits the assignment of a student to a 
grade level based solely on age or other factors that constitute social promotion, 
administrative placement or placement at the next grade level without regard for student 
mastery of the appropriate Florida Standards. 

STATEWIDE STUDENT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM   

All students must participate in statewide assessment tests at designated grade levels as 
required by S.1008.22 F.S.  The primary purposes of the student assessment program are 

Page 128 of 1019

DRAFT



 

8 
 

to provide information needed to improve the public schools by enhancing the learning 
gains of all students and to inform parents of the educational progress of their public school 
children. The program must be designed to: 
 

 Assess the annual learning gains of each student toward achieving the Florida 
Standards or Next Generation Sunshine State Standards appropriate for the 
student’s grade level. 

 Provide data for making decisions regarding school accountability and recognition. 
 Identify the educational strengths and needs of students and the readiness of 

students to be promoted to the next grade level or to graduate from high school with 
a standard diploma. 

 Assess how well educational goals and curricular standards are met at the school, 
district, and state levels. 

 Provide information to aid in the evaluation and development of educational 
programs and policies. 

 Provide information on the performance of Florida students compared with that of 
other students across the United States. 

GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR DROPOUT PREVENTION 
PROGRAMS AND ACADEMIC INTERVENTION PROGRAMS   

Dropout prevention and academic intervention programs may differ from traditional 
education programs and schools in scheduling, administrative structure, philosophy, 
curriculum, setting and learning activities, and/or diagnostic and assessment procedures in 
eligible students as required by S.1008.22 F.S.  The educational program shall provide 
services which support the program goals and lead to improved discipline.  Student 
participation in such programs shall be for disruptive students.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of law to the contrary, no student shall be identified as being eligible to receive 
services funded through the dropout prevention and academic intervention program based 
solely on the student being from a single-parent family.  
 
Students in grades 1-12 shall be eligible for participation in these programs based upon the 
following Early Warning System criteria:  
  

● The student is academically unsuccessful as evidenced by low test scores, retention, 
failing grades, low grade point average, falling behind in earning credits, or not 
meeting the state or district proficiency levels in reading, mathematics, or writing.  
 Course failure in English Language Arts or mathematics during any grading 

period. A Level 1 score on the statewide, standardized assessments in 
English 

 Language Arts or mathematics or, for students in kindergarten through 
grade 3, a substantial reading deficiency under s. 1008.25(5)(a). 

● The student’s attendance below 90 percent, regardless of whether absence is 
excused or a result of out-of-school suspension. 

● The student has one or more suspensions, whether in school or out of school. 
● The student has a pattern of excessive absenteeism or has been identified as a 

Page 129 of 1019

DRAFT



 

9 
 

habitual truant. 
● The student has a history of disruptive behavior in school or has committed an 

offense that warrants out-of-school suspension or expulsion from school according 
to the district school board’s code of student conduct. For the purposes of this 
program, “disruptive behavior” is behavior that: 

● Interferes with the student’s own learning or the educational process of others and 
requires attention and assistance beyond that which the traditional program can 
provide or results in frequent conflicts of a disruptive nature while the student is 
under the jurisdiction of the school either in or out of the classroom; or 

● Severely threatens the general welfare of students or others with whom the student 
comes into contact. 

● The student is identified by a school’s early warning system pursuant to s. 
1001.42(18)(b). 

● “Second chance schools” means district school board programs provided through 
cooperative agreements between the Department of Juvenile Justice, private 
providers, state or local law enforcement agencies, or other state agencies for 
students who have been disruptive or violent or who have committed serious 
offenses. As partnership programs, second chance schools are eligible for waivers 
by the Commissioner of Education from State Board of Education rules that prevent 
the provision of appropriate educational services to violent, severely disruptive, or 
delinquent students in small nontraditional settings or in court-adjudicated settings. 

 
Each district may establish dropout prevention and academic intervention programs at the 
elementary, middle, junior high school, or high school level.  Programs designed to 
eliminate patterns of excessive absenteeism or habitual truancy shall emphasize academic 
performance and may provide specific instruction in the areas of technical education, pre-
employment training, and behavioral management. Such programs shall utilize 
instructional teaching methods appropriate to the specific needs of the student.  
  
Each school district shall establish procedures for ensuring that teachers assigned to 
dropout prevention and academic intervention programs possess the effective, pedagogical, 
and content-related skills necessary to meet the needs of these students.  
  
Each district providing a program for dropout prevention and academic intervention 
program pursuant to the provisions of this section shall maintain for each participating 
student records documenting the student’s eligibility, the length of participation, the type 
of program to which the student was assigned or the type of academic intervention services 
provided and an evaluation of the student’s academic and behavioral performance while in 
the program.  The school principal or his/her designee shall prior to placement in a dropout 
prevention and academic intervention  or the provision of an academic service, provide 
written notice of placement or services by certified mail, return receipt request, to the 
student’s parent, guardian, or legal custodian.  The parent, guardian, or legal custodian of 
the student shall sign an acknowledgment of the notice of placement or service and return 
the signed acknowledgment to the principal within 3 days after receipt of the notice.  The 
parents or guardians of student assigned to such a dropout prevention and academic 
intervention program shall be notified in writing and entitled to an administrative review 

Page 130 of 1019

DRAFT



 

10 
 

of any action by school personnel relating to such placement.  

MILITARY FAMILIES AND TRANSFERS 

The “Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children” was 
implemented to accommodate children from military families who have been transferred 
from one state to another.  The purpose of the “Compact” is to make this transition as 
seamless as possible.  The “Compact” applies to active members of the uniformed services, 
members or veterans of the uniformed services who are severely injured and medically 
discharged or retired for a period of one year after medical discharge or retirement, and 
members of the uniformed services who die on active duty or as a result of injuries 
sustained on active duty for a period of one year after death. 

TRANSFER OF EDUCATIONAL RECORDS AND ENROLLMENT 

In the event that official educational records cannot be obtained by the parent, the sending 
school will furnish a complete set of “unofficial educational records.”  When the receiving 
school obtains these records, the student will be enrolled and appropriately placed pending 
validation by the official records.  Copying fees will not exceed the reasonable cost of 
reproduction. If necessary; 
 

● Upon enrolling the student, the receiving school will request official records from 
the sending school.  Upon receipt of this request, the school will furnish the records 
within three (3) school days (not including staff holidays); 

● Immunization records must be provided at the time of enrollment; 
● Students should be allowed to continue their enrollment at the grade level in which 

they left the previous state regardless of age (including kindergarten).  If the 
student(s) successfully completed a grade level in the sending state, they should be 
enrolled in the next highest grade level in the receiving state, regardless of age; 

● Any student who transfers from an out-of-state public school and does not meet 
regular age requirements for admission to the receiving school will be admitted 
upon presentation of the information provided by the educational records.  If 
transferring from an out-of-state nonpublic school and does not meet regular age 
requirements of the receiving school, the student will be admitted if the student 
meets age requirements for public schools within the state from which he or she is 
transferring and if the student’s academic credit is acceptable under rules of the 
receiving school board.  To be admitted into the receiving school, the transferring 
student must provide the following: 
 Official military orders showing that the military member was assigned to 

the state in which the child was previously enrolled and attended school.  If 
the child was residing with a legal guardian and not the military member, a 
copy of the family care plan or proof of guardianship will be provided; 

 An official letter or transcript from the school authorities of the sending 
school showing attendance, academic and grade placement information; 

 Documented evidence of immunization; 
 Evidence of date of birth. 

● When the student transfers before or during the school year, the receiving school 

Page 131 of 1019

DRAFT



 

11 
 

will initially honor placement of the student in educational courses based on the 
student’s enrollment in the sending state/school or based on the educational 
assessment conducted at the sending school.  Continuing the student’s academic 
program from the previous school should be paramount when considering 
placement.  The receiving school may conduct further evaluations to ensure 
appropriate placement; 

● In compliance with IDEA, the receiving school will initially provide comparable 
services to a student with disabilities based on his/her current “Individualized 
Education Program” (IEP) and make reasonable accommodations and 
modifications for incoming students with disabilities, subject to an existing 504 
Plan, in order to provide the student with equal access to education.  The receiving 
school may then perform subsequent evaluations to ensure appropriate placement 
and services; 

● School districts shall have flexibility in waiving course/program prerequisites for 
placement in courses/programs. 

ABSENCE AS RELATED TO DEPLOYMENT ACTIVITIES 

● A student whose parent/legal guardian is an active duty member of the uniformed 
services and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or immediately returned 
from deployment to a combat zone or combat support posting, will be granted 
additional excused absences at the discretion of the Superintendent or Principal to 
visit with his or her parent/legal guardian.  

GRADUATION OF CHILDREN FROM MILITARY FAMILIES 

In order to facilitate the on-time graduation of children of military families, schools will 
incorporate the following procedures: 

● Waive specific course requirements for graduation if similar coursework has been 
satisfactorily completed in the sending school OR will provide reasonable 
justification for denial.  If a waiver is not provided to a student who would qualify 
to graduate from the sending school, the receiving school will provide an alternative 
means of acquiring coursework for that graduation to occur on time; 

● Exit exams: Receiving schools will accept any of the following testing information: 
 Exit or end-of-course exams required for graduation from the sending state; 
 National norm-referenced achievement tests; 
 Alternative testing in lieu of testing requirements for graduation in the 

receiving state. 
● Students transferring under the “HOPE Scholarship Program” are eligible for all 

programs offered by the District or a school. 
● In case a student transfers during their senior year and is ineligible to graduate from 

the receiving school after all alternatives have been considered, the two schools will 
communicate to ensure the receipt of a diploma from the sending school if the 
student met the graduation requirements from that school. 

● Clay Virtual Academy students from military families that move from Clay County 
but maintain residency in Florida and a mailing address in Clay county that is 
checked regularly may remain enrolled in Clay Virtual Academy.  Due to onsite 

Page 132 of 1019

DRAFT



 

12 
 

state testing requirements, most will want to continue enrollment as a 
homeschooled student.   

ELIGIBILITY 

● Special power of attorney, relative to the guardianship of a child of a military family 
and executed under applicable law will be sufficient for the purpose of enrollment 
and all other actions requiring parental participation and consent; 

● A transitioning military child who is placed in the non-custodial parent or other 
person standing in loco parentis, may continue to attend the school in which they 
are enrolled while residing with the custodial parent; 

● The school will make every effort to obtain eligibility privileges for extracurricular 
activities, regardless of application deadlines, working in conjunction with the state 
high school athletic association, to the extent they are otherwise qualified. 

OVERSIGHT, ENFORCEMENT AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Please refer to the “Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children” 
for information related to disputes or controversies.  In addition, contact the Clay County 
School District with questions pertaining to this subject. 
  

Page 133 of 1019

DRAFT



 

13 
 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION (K-6) 

ADMISSION AND DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS 

 
Kindergarten (F.S. 1003.21) 
Any child who has attained the age of five years on or before September 1 will be admitted 
to kindergarten at any time during that school year.  NO PROVISION FOR EARLY 
ADMISSION TO KINDERGARTEN EXISTS. 
 
First Grade (F.S. 1003.21) 
Any child who has attained the age of six years on or before September 1 will be admitted 
to first grade if kindergarten has been successfully completed.  Successful completion of 
kindergarten will be defined as: 

 
● Enrollment in a public school; or 
● Satisfactory completion in a nonpublic kindergarten program as evidenced by a 

report card or letter from the principal of the previous school or the Verification of 
Entrance to First Grade form verifying completion under Florida Statute 1003.21.  
NO PROVISION FOR EARLY ADMISSION TO FIRST GRADE EXISTS. 

  
First Entry to the Clay County District Schools 
Before admitting a student to Florida schools for the first time, the school must have 
documentation required by Florida Statutes and the Clay County School Board 
policy/procedures: 

 
● Proof of date of birth for kindergarten and grade one students.  (F.S. 1003.21)  If 

an official birth certificate for the student cannot be obtained by the 
parent/guardian, the following may be accepted in the order set forth in Florida 
Statute 1003.21: 
 A duly attested transcript of a certificate of baptism showing the date of 

birth and place of baptism of the child, accompanied by an affidavit sworn 
to by the parent; 

 An insurance policy on the child’s life that had been in force for at least two 
years; 

 A bona fide contemporary religious record of the child’s birth accompanied 
by an affidavit sworn to by the parent; 

 A passport or certificate of arrival in the United States showing the age of 
the child; 

 A transcript of record of age shown in the child’s school record of at least 
four years prior to application, stating date of birth; or 

 If none of these evidences can be produced, an affidavit of age sworn to by 
the parent, accompanied by a certificate of age signed by a public health 
officer or by a public school physician. 

 
A homeless child, as defined by F.S. 1003.01, shall be given temporary exemption for 30 
days. 

Page 134 of 1019

DRAFT



 

14 
 

 
●  A certificate showing a school entry health examination performed within one year 

prior to enrollment.  Exemptions will be granted on religious grounds upon 
receiving written request from parents or guardian stating objections to the 
examination.  (F.S. 1003.22) 

● A Florida Certificate of Immunization, DH680 form and DH681 (Religious 
Exemption) are the only acceptable immunization certificates for admittance grades 
PreK-12. Required immunizations include (F.S. 1003.22): 
 Four or five doses of diphtheria-tetanus-pertussis (DTaP) vaccine 
 Two or three doses of hepatitis B (HepB) vaccine 
 Three, four, or five doses of polio vaccine * 
 Two doses of measles-mumps-rubella (MMR) vaccine 
 Two doses of varicella vaccine for K-8 ** 
 One dose of varicella vaccine for grades 10-12  

*If fourth dose of vaccine is administered prior to fourth birthday, a fifth 
dose of polio vaccine is required for kindergarten entry only. 
**Varicella vaccine is not required if varicella disease is documented by 
health care provider. 

● An official letter or transcript from proper school authority which shows record of 
attendance, academic information, and grade placement of student. 

● Social Security Number (District request) 
 

TRANSFER DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS 

 
Elementary grade placement of transfer students to the district shall be in accordance with 
the requirements as stated in F.S. 1003.21 and F.S. 1003.22 and will be subject to the 
following conditions (this includes HOPE Scholarship Program transfers): 
 
In-State Transfers from Nonpublic Schools to Kindergarten 
Students transferring from a nonpublic Florida Kindergarten to the Clay County District 
Schools must provide: 
 

● Evidence of date of birth (five years of age on or before September 1) 
● Proof of immunization 
● Evidence of medical examination performed within the last twelve months and 
● Social Security Number (District request) 

 
In-State Transfers from Nonpublic Schools to First Grade 
Pupils transferring from a nonpublic first grade must provide: 
 

● Evidence of successful completion of kindergarten in a nonpublic Florida school 
● Evidence of date of birth (six years of age on or before  

September 1) 
● Evidence of medical examination performed within the last twelve months 
● Proof of immunization and 

Page 135 of 1019

DRAFT



 

15 
 

● Social Security Number (District request) 
 
Underage Out-of-State Transfers to Kindergarten and First Grade from Public and 
Nonpublic Schools 
Entry into kindergarten and first grade, by out-of-state transfer students, who do not meet 
regular age requirements for admission to Florida Public Schools, shall be based on their 
previous state’s age requirements for entrance into public schools and shall be in 
accordance with Florida Administrative Rule 6A 1.0985. 

 
Any student who transfers from an out-of-state public or nonpublic school shall be admitted 
upon presentation of the following data: 

 
● An official letter or transcript from proper school authority which shows record of 

attendance, academic information, and grade placement of the student 
● Evidence of immunization against communicable diseases as required by F.S. 

1003.22 on a Florida 680 or 681 
● Evidence of date of birth in accordance with F.S. 1003.21 
● Evidence of medical examination performed within the last twelve months and 
● Social Security Number (District request) 

 
Home Education Program Entry or Reentry (FS 1003.21/1002.41) 
When a student is transferring into Clay County District Schools from a home education 
program, the child must meet all district and state entrance qualifications.  Temporary grade 
placement will be based on the following variables: 

 
● Age and maturity; 
● Standardized achievement test results; 
● Previous record in public and private schools which include state assessments and; 
● Evidence of work and achievement while in home education 

 
Final grade placement will be determined by the principal at the end of four weeks 
(6A 1.09) 
 
Assigning Grades to Transferring Students 
When students transfer from one school to another, the sending school is required to send 
all grades earned during the current grading period regardless of days enrolled.   

 
Transfers from one CCSD elementary school to another will be through Focus. 
 
Assigning Report Card Grades 
Receiving schools shall assign progress report grades when the student has been enrolled 
in the school fifteen (15) or more days.  The primary responsibility for assigning grades 
rests with the teacher subject to approval by the principal. 

 
In no way will an academic penalty be used for a “code of conduct” violation with the 
exception of cheating or plagiarism. 

Page 136 of 1019

DRAFT



 

16 
 

 
Conversion Chart (Grades 3-6) 
If a transfer student does not have numeric grades available, the following conversion chart 
can be used for averaging purposes: 
 

A+  =  100 A  =  95 O =  95 
B+  =    89 B  =  85 S  =  80 
C+  =    79 C  =  75 N  =  75 
D+  =    69 D  =  65 U  =  59 
 F  =  55  

 
Grades earned outside of the School District of Clay County should be averaged  to 
obtain the year’s average using the conversion chart.  A notation in the comment section 
should denote grades and where they were earned. 
 
Change of Class/Courses of Clay County Students  
A parent may request a transfer of their child(ren) to another classroom teacher within the 
same grade or course at any time during the year based on (1) the teacher’s out-of-field 
certification status or (2) personal preference.  The parent may not, however, choose a 
specific classroom teacher.  At the time of the request, the school must approve or deny the 
request within two weeks.  If the request is denied, the school will notify the parent and 
specify the reasons for the denial. F.S. 1003.3101 
 
Procedures Concerning Request for Transfer of Students: 
 

● Parent makes a written request to the school Principal to transfer their child(ren) to 
another teacher (must be in the same grade level and/or course); Prior to principal 
consideration, a parent teacher conference must take place; 

● The Principal considers the request and notifies the parent within two weeks.  The 
Principal must consider: 
 Class size 
 Grade and course 
 Any variable that would impact the student or class that is being considered 

(ex., discipline issues, teacher input)  
● If approved, parent and teacher are notified; 
● If not approved, parent is notified with explanation given. 
● Consistent with School Board rules and in accordance with state statute 

(1012.28(5)F.S.), the Superintendent has designated the principal of the school as 
the final authority in the placement of students in a program(s) or classes. 

 

ELEMENTARY INSTRUCTION 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND RECESS 

Florida Statute 1003.455 requires each district school board to develop a physical education 
program that stresses physical fitness and encourages healthful, active lifestyles. K-5 

Page 137 of 1019

DRAFT



 

17 
 

students and 6th grade students enrolled in an elementary school are required to have 150 
minutes each week with at least 30 consecutive minutes on any day during which physical 
education instruction is conducted.  The physical education requirement shall be waived 
for a student in grades kindergarten through grade eight who meets one of the following 
criteria: 

 
● required to enroll in a remedial course 
● parent indicates in writing to the school that: 

 parent requests that student enroll in one of the courses provided by the school 
as an alternative option to physical education 

 student is participating in physical activities outside the school equal to or in 
excess of mandated requirements.  

  
“Free-play” recess will be included in the elementary day for grades K - 5 for 120 minutes 
weekly. (HB 7069) 
 

REGULAR PROGRAM 

Each student in grades K-6 will receive regularly scheduled instruction based on the district 
adopted curriculum.  Curriculum content for all subjects must integrate critical-thinking, 
problem-solving, and workforce-literacy skills; communication, reading, and writing 
skills; math skills, collaboration skills; contextual and applied-learning skills; technology-
literacy skills; information and media-literacy skills; and civic-engagement skills. (Chapter 
1001, Part II). Schools may also offer courses in art, music, media, and/or technology. The 
instructional schedule should be at least five hours and thirty-five minutes.  Flexibility in 
the designing of school schedules is permissible and may reflect the integration of content 
determined necessary to provide an appropriate instructional program.   

 
All students must meet state requirements concerning mastery of curriculum frameworks 
and student performance standards based on the Florida State Standards.  Mastery is 
documented by passing grades as determined by the classroom teacher. 

HOMEWORK (SDCC Policy 4.40) 

Homework is defined as assignments which support specific concepts taught during the 
school day.  Incomplete class work is not considered to be homework, but rather a 
continuation of the student’s daily class work responsibility. Because all Clay Virtual 
Academy course work is completed outside the traditional classroom, this policy does not 
apply to CVA students.   
 
Homework should not exceed 20-30 minutes for K-3 or 30-45 minutes for 4-6.  
Individually assigned, rather  than class assignments, are strongly recommended.  No 
homework is to be assigned over school holidays.  No homework is to be assigned during 
statewide assessment tests. 
 

Page 138 of 1019

DRAFT



 

18 
 

MULTI-TIERED SYSTEM OF SUPPORTS/RESPONSE TO INTERVENTION 
PLAN/PROGRESS MONITORING 

A Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) is an evidence-based model of schooling that 
uses data-based problem-solving to integrate academic and behavioral instruction and 
intervention. The integrated instruction and intervention is delivered to students in varying 
intensities (multiple tiers) based on student need. 
 
The tiers, or levels of student supports, represent a way to organize resources to provide 
instruction/intervention based on student need. These are NOT locations for students, but 
rather specific instruction/interventions supports provided based on student need. 
Additional resources or supplemental supports (i.e., tier 2 and tier 3) are in addition to what 
all students receive (general instruction) and can be provided in a variety of ways and 
locations.  
 
Three levels of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support: 
 

● Tier 1 Intervention (Universal Prevention) 
● Tier 2 Intervention (Supplemental/At-Risk) 
● Tier 3 Intervention (Individualized/Intensive) 

 
The Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS). The basic elements of MTSS are required 
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) and the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act (IDEA); therefore, it is the basis for all broad-based initiatives for schools striving to 
increase student outcomes. Response to Intervention (RtI) has been described in Florida as 
a multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS) for providing high quality instruction and 
intervention matched to student needs using learning rate over time and level of 
performance to inform instructional decisions. This system is depicted as a three-tiered 
framework that uses increasingly more intense instruction and interventions matched to 
need. 
 
 Elements of the MTSS Process: 
 

● Highly effective personnel deliver scientific, research-based instruction and 
evidence-based practices. 

● Evidence-based curriculum and instructional approaches have a high probability of 
success for most students. 

● Instruction is differentiated to meet individual learning needs. 
● Reliable, valid, and instructionally relevant assessments include the following: 

 Screening Measures: Assessment tools designed to collect data for the 
purpose of measuring the effectiveness of core instruction and identifying 
students needing more intensive interventions and support. 

 Diagnostic Measures: Formal or informal assessment tools that measure 
skill strengths and weaknesses, identify skills in need of improvement, and 
assist in determining why a problem is occurring.   

 Progress Monitoring Measures: Ongoing assessment conducted for the 
purposes of guiding instruction, monitoring student progress, and 

Page 139 of 1019

DRAFT



 

19 
 

evaluating instruction/intervention effectiveness.   
 Formative Measures: Ongoing assessment embedded within effective 

teaching to guide instructional decisions. 
 Summative (Outcome) Measures: Typically administered near the end of 

the school year to give an overall perspective of the effectiveness of the 
instructional program. 

● Ongoing, systematic planning/problem solving is consistently used by teams 
including parents and educators, from enrollment to graduation for all students, to 
make decisions across a continuum of student needs. 

● Student response to instruction/intervention (MTSS) data are used to guide 
meaningful decision making. 

● Job embedded, ongoing, professional development and follow-up coaching with 
modeling are provided to ensure effective instruction at all levels. 

● Actively engaged administrative leadership for data-based decision making is 
inherent to the school culture. 

● All students and their parent(s) are engaged throughout the process in one proactive 
and seamless educational system. 

 
Problem Solving Process 
The problem-solving process is critical to making the instructional adjustments needed for 
continual improvement.  This process involves an ongoing cycle with the following steps: 

 
Step One: Define the problem of goal by determining the difference between what 
is expected and what is occurring. 
 
Step Two: Analyze the problem using data to determine why the issue is occurring.  
 
Step Three: Develop and Implement a Plan driven by the results of the team’s 
problem analysis by establishing a performance goal for the group of students or 
the individual student and developing an intervention plan to achieve the goal. 
 
Step Four: Measure response to instruction/interventions by using data gathered 
from progress monitoring at agreed upon intervals to evaluate the effectiveness of 
the intervention plan based on the student’s or group of students’ response to the 
intervention.  

 
Response to Intervention (RtI) refers to the fourth step of the problem-solving process. RtI 
encompasses the utilization of student-centered progress-monitoring data to make 
instructional decisions to ensure positive student outcomes. 
 
Needs of students who struggle in the area(s) of reading, math, language or behavior should 
be addressed and instruction should be tailored to these needs based upon frequent progress 
monitoring data. Students who continue to perform below grade level expectations should be 
targeted for intervention.  These interventions and the monitoring of these interventions should be 
documented within the RtI (Response to Intervention) process. 

 
MTSS teams ensure the students’ needs are addressed through grade level/content area 

Page 140 of 1019

DRAFT



 

20 
 

team meetings where specific student needs are discussed and plans are generated to 
address these needs. These RtI teams – with parent involvement – will continually monitor 
student progress and make appropriate intervention recommendations.  If the student’s 
deficiency isn’t remediated while serving Tier III interventions, or if a student is 
responding to intervention but requires a level of intensity and resources to sustain growth 
performance, a referral for evaluation for Exceptional Student Education may be 
recommended.   

 
If the documented deficiency has not been remediated a student may be retained in 
accordance with state guidelines.  Each student who does not meet the minimum 
performance expectations defined by the Commissioner of Education for the statewide 
assessment tests in reading, writing, science and mathematics must continue to be provided 
with remedial or supplemental instruction until the expectations are met or the student 
graduates from high school or is not subject to compulsory school attendance. 
 
Intensive remedial instructional strategies may include but are not limited to: 
 

● Summer school coursework (Grades 3 and 6) 
● Extended day services (before or after school tutoring) 
● Parent tutorial programs (if appropriate) 
● Contracted academic services (previously approved by the district) 
● Exceptional Student Education 
● Suspension of curriculum other than reading, writing, and mathematics, and science 
● Intensive skills development programs 
● Immediate intensive intervention (iii) inside or outside the literacy block if deficit 

is in reading. 
● Implementation of a positive behavior support plan 
● Remediation plan to help the student with make-up work 
● Contingent upon available funds and on a first-come, first-serve basis, students 

classified as ELL and who are enrolled in a program receiving services that are 
specifically designed to meet the needs of English Language Learner students are 
eligible for the “Reading Scholarships Accounts” program (see page 16 under 
“Reading Deficiencies and Parental Notification” form more information). 

● Contingent upon available funds and on a first-come, first-serve basis, students 
scoring a Level 1 or Level 2 on the 3rd grade statewide, standardized ELA 
assessment are eligible for the “Reading Scholarships Accounts” program (see page 
16 under “Reading Deficiencies and Parental Notification” form more 
information). 

 
A review shall be conducted of MTSS Plans for all retained third grade students who 
did not score above Level 1 on FSA and did not meet one of the Good Cause 
exemptions.  The Plan must address additional supports and services needed to 
remediate the deficiency. 
 
 
   

Page 141 of 1019

DRAFT



 

21 
 

 When to consider starting an MTSS Academic or Behavior Plan
 
Academic Considerations 
 

 
READING MATH WRITING 

K-2 

● Consistently scoring in the red 
success zone on a Clay 
established benchmark 
assessment Scoring in the yellow 
success zone of a Clay 
established benchmark 
assessment if supported by other 
data 

● Teacher, parent, or other 
instructional personnel 
recommendation 

● Report card reflects skills not 
mastered as expected for grade 
level 

● Scoring at the at-
risk level on a Clay 
established 
benchmark 
assessment if 
supported by other 
data sources 

● Teacher 
recommendation 

● Report card reflects 
skills not mastered 
as expected for 
grade level 

● Report card reflects 
skills not mastered 
as expected for 
grade level 

● Teacher 
recommendation 

● Clay established 
assessment rubric 
demonstrates 
weakness in writing 
skills 

3-6 

● Scoring at the at-risk level on 
Clay established benchmark 
assessment if supported by other 
data 

● Teacher, parent, or other 
instructional personnel 
recommendation 

● Report card reflects skills not 
mastered as expected for grade 
level 

● Scored at level 1 or 2 on FSA for 
the two previous school years 

● Required for retained 3rd grade 
readers 

● Scoring at the at-
risk level on Clay 
established 
benchmark 
assessment if 
supported by other 
data 

● Teacher 
recommendation 

● Report card reflects 
skills not mastered 
as expected for 
grade level 

● Scored at level 1 or 
2 on or FSA for the 
two previous school 
years 

● Report card reflects 
skills not mastered 
as expected for 
grade level 

● Teacher 
recommendation 

● Clay established 
assessment rubric 
demonstrates 
weakness in writing 
skills 

 
Behavioral Considerations 

K-6 

● Discipline referrals, Clay Behavior Universal Screener, Schoolwide Positive Behavioral 
Interventions and Supports (PBIS) data 

● Students who exhibit externalizing or internalizing behaviors 
● Students who present many behavioral challenges in and out of the classroom 
● Students experiencing in-class consequences but do not get discipline referrals 
● Students in ESE settings who may still need additional behavioral supports  
● Teacher, parent, or other instructional personnel recommendation 

 

Page 142 of 1019

DRAFT



 

22 
 

READING DEFICIENCIES AND PARENTAL NOTIFICATION (F.S.1008.25) 
Any student in kindergarten through grade 3 who exhibits a substantial deficiency in 
reading based upon screening, diagnostic, progress monitoring, or assessment data; 
statewide assessments; or teacher observations must be provided intensive, explicit, 
systematic, and multisensory reading interventions immediately following the 
identification of the reading deficiency. A school may not wait for a student to receive a 
failing grade at the end of a grading period to identify the student as having a substantial 
reading deficiency and initiate intensive reading interventions. The student’s reading 
proficiency must be monitored and the intensive interventions must continue until the 
student demonstrates grade level proficiency in a manner determined by the district, which 
may include achieving a Level 3 on the statewide, standardized English Language Arts 
assessment. The State Board of Education shall identify by rule guidelines for determining 
whether a student in kindergarten through grade 3 has a substantial deficiency in reading. 

 
 

The parent of any student who exhibits a substantial deficiency in reading, must be notified 
in writing of the following: 

● That his or her child has been identified as having a substantial deficiency in 
reading, including a description and explanation, in terms understandable to the 
parent, of the exact nature of the student’s difficulty in learning and lack of 
achievement in reading. 

● A description of the current services that are provided to the child. 
● A description of the proposed intensive interventions and supports that will be 

provided to the child that are designed to remediate the identified area of reading 
deficiency. 

● That if the child’s reading deficiency is not remediated by the end of grade 3, the 
child must be retained unless he or she is exempt from mandatory retention for good 
cause. 

● Strategies, including multisensory strategies, through a read-at-home plan the 
parent can use in helping his or her child succeed in reading. 

● That the statewide, standardized English Language Arts assessment is not the sole 
determiner of promotion and that additional evaluations, portfolio reviews, and 
assessments are available to the child to assist parents and the school district in 
knowing when a child is reading at or above grade level and ready for grade 
promotion. 

● The district’s specific criteria and policies for a portfolio and the evidence required 
for a student to demonstrate mastery of Florida’s academic standards for English 
Language Arts. A parent of a student in grade 3 who is identified anytime during 
the year as being at risk of retention may request that the school immediately begin 
collecting evidence for a portfolio. 

● The district’s specific criteria and policies for midyear promotion. Midyear 
promotion means promotion of a retained student at any time during the year of 
retention once the student has demonstrated ability to read at grade level. 

 
 

Page 143 of 1019

DRAFT



 

23 
 

Reading Scholarships 
FS 1002.411 provides reading scholarship accounts for students.  Contingent upon 
available funds, and on a first-come, first-served basis, each student in grades 3 through 5 
who is enrolled in a Florida public school is eligible for a reading scholarship account if 
the student scored below a Level 3 on the grade 3 or grade 4 statewide, standardized 
English Language Arts (ELA) assessment in the prior school year. An eligible student who 
is classified as an English Language Learner and is enrolled in a program or receiving 
services that are specifically designed to meet the instructional needs of English Language 
Learner students shall receive priority. 
 
For an eligible student to receive a reading scholarship account, the student’s parent must: 
 

● Submit an application to an eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization by 
the deadline established by such organization; StepUpForStudents.org 

● Submit eligible expenses to the eligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization 
for reimbursement of qualifying expenditures, which may include: instructional 
materials, curriculum, tuition and fees for tutoring, summer education and after-
school education programs designed to improve reading or literacy skills 

 
By September 30, the school district shall notify the parent of each student in grades 3 
through 5 who scored below a level 3 on the statewide, standardized ELA assessment in 
the prior school year of the process to request and receive a reading scholarship, subject to 
available funds. 
 

ATTENDANCE 

Florida Law (Section 1003.21, Florida Statutes) states that all children who are either six 
years of age, who will be six years old by February 1 of any school year, or who are older 
than six years of age but who have not attained the age of 16 years, must attend school 
regularly during the entire school term. 
 
The “Every Student Succeeds Act” changes the focus of attendance.  Instead of focusing 
on Truancy, the focus is narrowed to Chronic Absences.  There has been a shift from 
punitive measures to preventive and supportive interventions.  The process is driven by 
data which ensures accountability.  A multi-tiered model of interventions should be 
established in each school.  Tier one interventions should be implemented school-wide and 
can include contests, recognition of good/improved attendance etc.  Tier two interventions 
are teacher/classroom based, and Tier three interventions are implemented by a 
multidisciplinary team.  Once Tier one and Tier two interventions have been implemented 
for attendance without improvement, a referral should be made to the multidisciplinary 
team.  The team should schedule a meeting with and obtain input from the teacher.  The 
parent and the student will be invited to the intervention meeting.  The intervention team 
should have regular meetings.  These meetings not only provide prevention and 
intervention, but follow-up meetings are held to check-in on prior attendees. The goal of 
the team is to develop a plan to help the student become more successful by utilizing 
strategies specific to each student including, but not limited to: 

Page 144 of 1019

DRAFT



 

24 
 

 
● Changes in the learning environment 
● Implementation of an incentive plan 
● Mentoring 
● Student/family counseling 
● Tutoring 
● Evaluation of credits, and alternative educational options 
● Attendance contracts 
● Agency referrals 
● Remediation plan to help the student with make-up work 

 
For the intervention plan to be successful, the plan must be achievable.  If the team 
determines it is appropriate to accept make-up work for unexcused absences, the Principal 
or Designee will seek input from the team, including the teacher and make a final 
determination.  The intervention plan and the student’s response should be monitored.  If 
the team has concerns, there should be discussion about what is working and what needs 
to be re-addressed.  Referring the student for consequences should not be considered until 
all resources have been exhausted.  The decision to proceed with a CINS (Children in Need 
of Service) petition or Referral to the Truancy Arbitration Program is a decision the 
intervention team will make when the members agree that a referral should be made. 
 
Habitual Truancy 
“Habitual truant” means a student who has 15 unexcused absences within 90 calendar days 
with or without the knowledge or consent of the student’s parent, is subject to compulsory 
school attendance under s.1003.21(1) and (2) (a), and is not exempt under s.1003.21 (3) or 
s.1003.24, or by meeting the criteria for any other exemption specified by law or rules of 
the State Board of Education. Such a student must have been the subject of the activities 
specified in s.1003.26 and s.1003.27 (3), without resultant successful remediation of the 
truancy problem before being dealt with as a child in need of services. 
 
Truancy Procedures: If a student has had at least five (5) unexcused absences, or absences 
for which the reasons are unknown, within a calendar month or 10 unexcused absences, or 
absences for which the reasons are unknown, within a 90-calendar day period, Tier 2 
interventions should be implemented.  If these are not successful, primary teacher shall 
report to the school Principal or his or her designee that the student may be exhibiting a 
pattern of nonattendance. F.S.1003.26. 
 
The multidisciplinary team shall be diligent in facilitation intervention services and shall 
report the child to the Superintendent only when all reasonable efforts to resolve non-
attendance behavior are exhausted. F.S. 1003.23(1)(d). 
 
If the parent or guardian in charge of the student refuses to participate in the remedial 
strategies because he or she believes that those strategies are unnecessary or inappropriate, 
the parent or guardian in charge of the student may appeal to the school board. 
F.S.1003.26(1)(e). 
 

Page 145 of 1019

DRAFT



 

25 
 

If the board’s final determination is that the strategies of the multidisciplinary Team are 
appropriate, and the parent or guardian in charge of the student still refuses to participate 
or cooperate, the Superintendent may seek criminal prosecution for non compliance with 
compulsory school attendance. s. 1003.26(1)(e), F.S 
 
If nonattendance continues after the implementation of intervention strategies, the 
Superintendent or designee shall file a CINS petition, defined in s.984.15, F.S. The school 
representative, a parent, law enforcement, a court, or the DJJ shall initiate a referral to a 
CINS provider or a case staffing committee established pursuant to s. 984.12, F.S., and 
procedures established by the district school board. The purpose of the referral to CINS is 
to secure prevention services for a habitually truant student and the family (F.S.1003.27(3). 
Prior to the filing of the CINS petition, reasonable time must be allowed to complete 
interventions to remedy conditions contributing to the truant behavior and must comply 
with the requirements of F.S.1003.26. 
 
EXCUSED/UNEXCUSED ABSENCES 
An absence from school under the following circumstances shall be considered excused: 

 
● With permission – The absence was with the knowledge and consent of the 

principal of the school, which the student attends. 
● Sickness, injury or other insurmountable condition – Attendance was impracticable 

or inadvisable on account of sickness or injury, or impracticable because of some 
other stated insurmountable condition. 

● Absence for religious instruction or holidays – A student with the written consent 
of his or her parent/guardian shall be excused from attendance in school on a 
particular day or days, or at a particular time of day, and shall be excused from any 
examination, study or work assignment at such time to participate in religious 
instruction, for observance of a religious holiday or because tenets of his or her 
religion forbid secular activity at such time. The principal shall reserve the right to 
refuse a student’s request for released time, if according to the provisions of the 
district’s student progression plan: 

● The student is not enrolled in sufficient courses to allow for the student’s promotion 
or graduation, and thus the released time would not be equivalent to an optional 
period. 

● The student’s grades/academic progress is insufficient to allow for the student’s 
promotion or graduation.  Absences approved for religious reasons do not affect 
perfect attendance. 

● Absences due to head lice will be excused, up to 2 days per incident and for a total 
of 10 days per school year. After a student has accumulated 10 excused absences 
due to head lice during a school year, further absences due to head lice will be 
considered unexcused. Unusual circumstances may be addressed by the principal 
to go beyond these 10 days for excused absences. 

 
It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to provide a written statement to the school 
explaining the absence within three (3) school days following the return of the student to 
school. 

Page 146 of 1019

DRAFT



 

26 
 

 
If a student is continually sick and repeatedly absent from school, he or she must be under 
the supervision of a physician in order to receive an excuse from attendance. Such excuse 
provides that a student’s condition justifies absence for more than 5 days per grading 
period/10 days per semester/20 days per year. The principal of the school shall determine 
when it is necessary to require a physician’s statement from the student’s medical provider 
and required the parent/guardian to provide a copy to their child’s school within a 
reasonable period of time as determined by the principal or designee. 
 
An absence from school under the following circumstances may be considered unexcused: 
 

● The absence was without the parent/guardian’s knowledge, consent or connivance. 
● Permission for the absence was requested but denied by the principal of the 

student’s school. 
● No written statement of the absence from the parent/guardian has been received by 

the school explaining the reason for the absence within three (3) school days 
following the return of the student to schools. 

 
The principal has administrative discretion in cases of excessive absences to reject a written 
note and consider the absence as unexcused when absences are seriously impacting 
academic progress, with the exception of sickness, injury or insurmountable conditions. 
 
Accumulated unexcused tardy and early departure time equivalent to one full school day 
may be counted as one unexcused absence in the total number of unexcused absences 
required for possible legal action. 
 
Missed instructional time due to tardiness and early departures shall be accumulated as 
excused or unexcused using the same policies as for absent days.   

 
Excused absences are:  religious instruction/holidays, sickness, injury or other 
insurmountable conditions, absence for medical, clinical or therapeutic treatment of autism 
spectrum disorder, or absences due to participation in an academic class or program or as 
otherwise excused by the principal. 

 
Students who have excused absences must be allowed to make up missed work.  If a 
student has excessive absences, then he/she must demonstrate mastery of the student 
performance standards.  Students who are absent with an excused absence on the day that 
a paper, project, test or other major assignment is due will be allowed to turn in the 
assignment or take the test/examination without academic penalty.  Work assigned prior to 
the absence is due the day the student returns.  Work assigned during the absence will be 
due in the amount of time equal to the number of days absent unless an intervention plan 
is established which indicates otherwise. 

 
For unexcused absences, including out of school suspension, work assigned or tests that 
cover instruction prior to the unexcused absence must be taken and graded.  Work assigned 
and due during the time of an unexcused absence may be accepted for credit at the 

Page 147 of 1019

DRAFT



 

27 
 

discretion of the teacher. 
 
Attendance for CVA is documented as follows: 

   
● Students in grades K-5 must follow pace chart for each week;  
● Students in grades 6-12 must stay on pace for each week (minimum of 5% per 

week); 
● Any day a K-5 student does not log in is considered an absence if coursework is 

not up to date; 
 

The Learnfare program requires children of cash assistance recipients to attend school 
regularly or they risk having their cash assistance reduced. (SDCC 4.54) 

 
Per School Board Policy, Perfect Attendance is awarded to students that have been 
neither absent nor tardy. Perfect attendance will be awarded to those students who have 
been present in school every day, with no absences or tardies. To prevent parents from 
sending their child to school and then checking them out 30 minutes later, a  student 
checked out  prior to 10 a.m. will be considered as absent for purposes of “perfect 
attendance”. If a student is checked out after 10:00 a.m. they are considered present and 
“perfect attendance” is not affected. (SDCC Policy 4.02 G)   

ASSESSMENT (F.S. 1008) 

Students in grades kindergarten through 6 are evaluated annually.  All students, unless 
specifically exempted, must take all statewide and local achievement tests at their 
appropriate grade level.  Each student who does not meet specific levels of performance 
in reading, writing, science, and mathematics must be provided with additional diagnostic 
assessments to determine the nature of the student’s difficulty and academic needs.  Test 
accommodations and modification of procedures may occur, as necessary, for students in 
Exceptional Education, for students with a 504 plan, and for students who have Limited 
English Proficiency, are provided through the Individual Education Plan (IEP), 504 Plan 
or the English Language Learners Plan (ELL).  

 
The Florida Standards Assessments (FSA) (http://fsassessments.org) elementary testing 
requirements are as follows: 

 
Florida Kindergarten Readiness Screener (FLKRS) – (F.S. 1002.69) All school 
districts are required to administer the statewide screening based upon the VPK 
standards to each kindergarten student in the school district within the first 30 
school days of the school year.  Data will be used to identify students in need of 
intervention and support. Retained kindergarten students will not be screened.  
Teachers are encouraged to share the data from the FLKRS with parents when 
conferencing. 
 
FSA English Language Arts – Writing– The FSA Writing component is 
administered to all fourth, fifth, and sixth grade students. Results for the Writing 
Component will be combined with the FSA English Language Arts assessment for 

Page 148 of 1019

DRAFT



 

28 
 

one combined score.  
 
FSA Mathematics – This test is administered to all students in grades 3, 4, 5 and 
6.   
 
FSA English Language Arts – This test is administered to all students in grades 
3,4,5, and 6 in a separate assessment window from the FSA Writing component.  
Results from the English Language Arts assessment are combined with the FSA 
Writing component for one combined score. 

 
Statewide Science Assessment – This test is administered to all fifth grade 
students.  Students are compared to other fifth grade students within the state. 
 
ACCESS 2.0 – This test is administered to all ELL (English Language Learner) 
students with a code of “LY” on the first day of the test administration window. 
   
Progress Monitoring 
 

● Clay County District schools will use the i-Ready reading diagnostic three times a 
year for reading progress monitoring in grades K-8. *K-3 

● Clay County District schools will use the Achieve3000 LevelSet three times a year 
for reading progress monitoring in grades 4-10.  

● Clay County District schools will use the i-Ready reading diagnostic three times a 
year for math progress monitoring in grades K-8.  

 
Student performance on teacher developed commercially produced assessments determine 
grades on report cards. Required district achievement testing and statewide assessments do 
not impact the student’s report card grade. 

ELIGIBILITY FOR ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT   

FLORIDA STANDARDS ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT FOR STUDENTS WITH 
SIGNIFICANT COGNITIVE DISABILITIES 

Participation Guidelines 
All Florida students participate in the state’s assessment and accountability system. The 
Florida Standards Alternate Assessment (FSAA) is designed for students whose 
participation in the general statewide assessment program (Florida Standards Assessments, 
Statewide Science Assessment, Next Generation Sunshine State Standards End-of-Course 
Assessments) is not appropriate, even with accommodations. The FSAA measures student 
academic performance on the Access Points in Language Arts, Mathematics, and Science, 
and Social Studies.  Access Points are academic expectations written specifically for 
students with significant cognitive disabilities. They reflect the essence or core intent of 
the standards that apply to all students in the same grade, but at reduced levels of 
complexity.  

 
 

Page 149 of 1019

DRAFT



 

29 
 

Per section 1008.22, Florida Statutes, and Rule 6A-1.0943 F.A.C., only students with 
significant cognitive impairment are eligible to participate in the FSAA program. 
Therefore, students with a primary disability category of SLD must not participate in the 
FSAA program and subsequently should not be enrolled in access courses that align to the 
FSAA program. 
 
The decision for a student with a disability to participate in the statewide alternate 
assessment is made by the Individual Educational Plan (IEP) team and recorded on the IEP.  
The IEP team should consider the student’s present level of educational performance in 
reference to the Florida Standards Assessments and Next Generation Sunshine State 
Standards Assessments. 

 
All of the following criteria must be met: 

  
● The student has a significant cognitive disability.  
● Even with appropriate and allowable instructional accommodations, assistive 

technology or accessible instructional materials, the student requires modifications 
to the grade-level general state content standards as defined in rules 6A-
6.03411(1)(z) and  6A-1.09401 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). 

● The student requires direct instruction in academic areas of English language arts, 
math, social studies and science, based on access points, in order to acquire, 
generalize and transfer skills across settings.  

● The parent must sign consent in  accordance with Rule 6A-6.0331(10), F.A.C 
 

If the student meets all of the criteria for alternate assessment, the student should be 
enrolled in access courses and the Florida Standards Alternate Assessment should be used 
to provide a meaningful evaluation of the student’s current academic achievement. 

 
If the student does not meet the criteria, the student should be instructed in general 
education courses and participate in the general statewide standardized assessments with 
or without accommodations as appropriate. 

 
Student performance is assessed four levels of achievement.  For all grade levels and 
content areas, the minimum scale score in Achievement Level 3 is identified as the passing 
score. 

 
The four achievement levels are: 

 
Level 1 
Students at this level do not demonstrate an adequate level of success with the 
Florida Standards Access Points. 

 
Level 2 
Students at this level demonstrate a limited level of success with the Florida 
Standards Access Points. 

 

Page 150 of 1019

DRAFT



 

30 
 

 
Level 3 
Students at this level demonstrate a satisfactory level of success with the Florida 
Standards Access Points. 

 
Level 4 
Students at this level demonstrate an above satisfactory level of success with the 
Florida Standards Access Points. 

 
NOTE:  Access courses can only be used for students with significant cognitive disabilities 
who are eligible for alternate assessment.  Determining the specific benchmarks within 
each strand and the functional level(s) applicable to a student shall be the responsibility of 
the IEP Committee. It is expected that only students with the most significant cognitive 
disabilities who are eligible under IDEA will participate in the FSAA. 

  

GUIDELINES FOR EXEMPTION OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS 
(ELL) 

English Language Learner (ELL) students, who have been in an English Language 
Program for less than two years and fail to meet district expectations on the state 
assessments in reading, shall be exempted for Good Cause from the third grade mandatory 
retention. 
 
All English Language Learners (ELL) who are identified as LY, or active ESOL learners 
are required to take the annual ACCESS 2.0 assessment in accordance with Rule 6A-
6.0902.  

REPORTING PUPIL PROGRESS 

 
Districts must annually report to the parent of each student the progress toward achieving 
state and district expectations for proficiency in reading, writing, science, social studies 
and mathematics, and the student’s results on each statewide assessment test.  The 
evaluation of each student’s progress must be based on the student’s classroom work, 
observations, tests, district and state assessments, and other relevant information. 

REPORT CARDS - F.S. 1003.33 

Student report cards will be issued every nine weeks.  Incomplete work must be completed 
for a grade within two weeks of the last day of the grading period.  This may not extend 
past the last day of school.  Extensions for illness or incapacitating accident must be 
approved by the Principal. 
 
 Report cards will contain: 

 
● The student’s academic performance in each class or course grades 3-6 based upon 

examinations as well as written papers, class participation, and other academic 

Page 151 of 1019

DRAFT



 

31 
 

performance criteria (performance will be considered at grade level unless 
otherwise stated) 

● The student’s conduct and behavior 
● The student’s attendance, including absences and tardies 

 
The final report card for a school year shall contain a statement indicating  end-of-the-
year status or performance or non-performance at grade level, acceptable or unacceptable 
behavior and attendance, and promotion or non-promotion. 
 
Students in Kindergarten – Second grade with significant cognitive disabilities and 
working on the Participatory or Supported Level Florida State Standards Access Points 
will be evaluated with a modified report card.  All other students will be evaluated with 
the standard grade  level report card. 
 

REPORT CARDS K-1 

The Report Cards for K-1 students will include grades earned in Language Arts, 
Mathematics, Social Studies, and Science/Health.  These grades are evaluated through the 
use of the following scale: 
  

E -  Excellent - Student consistently exceeds grade level expectations. (90% - 
100%) 

S -  Satisfactory - Student consistently meets grade level expectations. (70% - 
89%) 

N - Needs Improvement - Student does not consistently meets grade level 
expectations. (60% - 69%) 

U - Unsatisfactory - Student does not meet grade level expectations. (59% and 
below) 

 
Conduct and behavior is evaluated by the teacher using the following scale: 
 

O - Outstanding 
S - Satisfactory 
N - Needs Improvement 
U Unsatisfactory 

REPORT CARDS 2-6 

The Report Cards for 2-6 students will include grades earned in Language Arts, 
Mathematics, Social Studies, and Science/Health are evaluated through the use of the 
following scale: 

A 90  -  100 
B 80  -    89 
C 70  -    79 
D 60  -    69 
F 0 -       59 

Page 152 of 1019

DRAFT



 

32 
 

 
 

Conduct and behavior is evaluated by the teacher using the following scale: 
 
S Satisfactory 
N Needs Improvement 
U Unsatisfactory 

 
Students may also participate in courses such as physical education, music, art and 
technology. Performance or nonperformance in these classes may be communicated by the 
teacher via the district’s Parent Portal. 
 
EVERY GRADING PERIOD, THE TEACHER WILL INDICATE WHETHER 
THE STUDENT IS WORKING ON (ON GRADE LEVEL), OR BL (BELOW 
GRADE LEVEL) FOR ALL CORE ACADEMIC SUBJECTS. 
 

HONOR ROLL (GRADES 2-6 ONLY) 

To be eligible for the Honor Roll in grades 2-6, students must be working on grade level.  
Principals are encouraged to institute alternative methods to recognize the achievement of 
students who earn all “A’s” and/or “A’s and B’s” but are not working on grade level. 
 
For “A” Honor Roll: 
All “A’s” are required in: Language Arts, Math, Science/Health, and Social Studies.  
Resource grades (such as Art, Music, Physical Education, Technology) of Outstanding 
and/or Satisfactory are also required to remain on the Honor Roll.  Conduct grades do not 
count toward Honor Roll.  To attain year-long “A” honor roll the student must attain “A” 
honor roll each grading period during the year. 

 
For “A/B” Honor Roll: 
Grades of “A” or “B” are required in Language Arts, Math, Science/Health and Social 
Studies.  Resource grades (such as Art, Music, Physical Education, Technology) of 
Outstanding and/or Satisfactory are also required to remain on the Honor Roll.  Conduct 
grades do not count toward the Honor Roll.  To attain year-long honor roll for “AB” the 
student must achieve honor roll each grading period during the year.  

 

ELEMENTARY GRADE PLACEMENT K-6 

 
State law (1003.21(2)F.S.) places the responsibility for the placement of students with the 
school district. Parents or guardians may discuss a placement with school officials and ask 
for an explanation of the placement, and they may review the evidence the school used to 
make the placement. Parents or guardians cannot determine a student’s placement, unless 
otherwise provided by law, as in the case of a placement in a program for exceptional 
students or a dropout prevention program. School personnel should utilize available 

Page 153 of 1019

DRAFT



 

33 
 

resources to achieve parental understanding and cooperation regarding grade placement.  
The final decision for promotion or retention is the responsibility of the building 
Principal (1012.28(5)F.S.). 
 

MULTIPLE BIRTH SIBLINGS/CLASSROOM PLACEMENT (s.1003.06, F.S.) 

The parent of multiple birth siblings who are assigned to the same grade level and school 
may request that the school place the siblings in the same classroom or in separate 
classrooms.  The request must be made no later than 5 days before the first day of each 
school year or 5 days after the first day of attendance of students during the school year if 
the students are enrolled in the school after the school year commences.  The school may 
recommend the appropriate classroom placement for the siblings and may provide 
professional educational advice to assist the parent with the decision regarding appropriate 
classroom placement.  A school is not required to place multiple birth siblings in the same 
classroom if factual evidence of performance shows proof that the siblings should be 
separated or if the request would require the school district to add an additional class to the 
grade level of the siblings.  Further, at the end of the first grading period  following the 
multiple birth siblings’ enrollment in the school, if the principal of the school, in 
consultation with the teacher of each classroom in which the siblings are placed, determines 
that the requested classroom placement is disruptive to the school, the principal may 
determine the appropriate classroom  placement for the siblings.  A parent may appeal the 
principal’s decision in the manner provided by school district policy.  During an appeal, 
the multiple birth siblings must remain in the classroom chosen by the parent.  This does 
not affect the right or obligation involving placement decisions pertaining to students with 
disabilities under state law or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.  It also does 
not affect the right of a school district, principal, or teacher to remove a student from a 
classroom pursuant to school district discipline policies. 
 

PROMOTION 

Promotion is based on mastery performance standards approved by the State Board of 
Education according to Florida Statute 1003.41 for Pre-K through 12.  Progression from 
one grade to the other is determined in part by proficiency in reading, writing, science, and 
mathematics at each grade level as defined in the Florida State Standards.  This also 
includes proficiency in statewide assessments below which a student must receive 
remediation or be retained within an intensive program that is different from the previous 
year’s program and takes into account student learning style. 

 
No student may be assigned to a grade level based solely on age or other factors that 
constitute social promotion (F.S. 1008.25).  Social promotion occurs when a student is 
promoted based on factors other than the student achieving the district and state levels of 
performance for student progression.  A student fails to meet the state portion of the levels 
of performance for student progression when the student fails to achieve the required levels 
in reading, writing, mathematics, or science on the Florida Standards Assessment. 

 
Promotion, assignment, or retention normally will occur at the end of the school year or at 

Page 154 of 1019

DRAFT



 

34 
 

the end of summer school, if it is available.  The primary responsibility for determining 
each student’s performance and ability to function academically, socially, and emotionally 
in the next grade is that of the classroom teacher subject to review and final approval of 
the principal.   

 
Students in grade 6 must earn a promotion credit in Language Arts, Math, Science, and 
Social Studies to be promoted to 7th grade.  To earn a promotion credit a student must earn 
a “D” or better on grade level in the subject area.  A student may earn only one promotion 
credit in Summer School. A student can earn an additional promotion credit for promotion 
purposes through a state approved virtual instruction provider. 

 
Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) options are 
educational options that provide academically challenging curriculum or accelerated 
instruction. ACCEL options include whole-grade promotion, mid-year promotion, and 
subject-matter acceleration within the same school; virtual instruction in higher grade level 
subjects pursuant to S. 1002.3105 (2) (a).   

 
Additional ACCEL options include enriched science, technology, engineering, and math 
(STEM) coursework; enrichment programs; flexible grouping; and differentiated 
instruction.  

 
Parents should contact the school principal for information related to student eligibility 
requirements for participation in ACCEL options available within the principal’s school. 

 

STANDARDS FOR MID-YEAR PROMOTION OF RETAINED THIRD 
GRADERS – RULE 6A-1.094222 

Mid-year promotion of retained third grade students must occur during the first semester 
of the academic year. 

 
To be eligible, a student must demonstrate that he/she: 

 
● Is a successful and independent reader as demonstrated by reading at or above third 

grade level; and  
● Has progressed sufficiently to master appropriate fourth grade reading skills; and 
● Has at least a “C” average in reading, math, science, and social studies at the third 

grade level. 
  
The student must be able to demonstrate that he/she has the ability to perform satisfactorily 
at a fourth grade reading level consistent with the month of promotion to fourth grade as 
presented in the ELA Curriculum Guides. Evidence of demonstration of mastery will be: 
 

● Successful completion of a portfolio that meets state criteria in Rule 6A-1.094222; 
or 

● A score at the 45th percentile or higher on the SAT-10 reading test or iReady reading 
equivalent of the 50th percentile or above which is consistent with the month of 

Page 155 of 1019

DRAFT



 

35 
 

promotion to fourth grade. 
  
To promote a student by portfolio, there must be evidence of mastery of the third grade 
Florida State Standard Benchmarks for Language Arts and beginning mastery for fourth 
grade Language Arts.  The portfolio must meet the following requirements: 
 

 Be selected by the district; 
 Be an accurate picture of the student’s ability and include only student work that 

has been independently produced in the classroom; 
 Include evidence of mastery of the standards assessed by the grade 3 FSA ELA; 
 Include evidence of beginning mastery of grade 4 standards.  This includes multiple 

choice, text-based response, and passages that are approximately 50% literary text 
and 50% information text and; 

 Be signed by the teacher and the principal as an accurate assessment of the required 
reading skills. 

 
The RtI/MTSS Plan for any retained third grade student, who has been promoted mid-year 
to fourth grade, must continue to be implemented for the entire academic year. 

 

DETERMINATION REGARDING PROMOTION  

The basis for making the determination regarding promotion should reflect student 
performance according to: 

 
● Proficiency with state standards as determined by i-Ready diagnostic reports in 

grades K-8* 
● Student growth as determined by i-Ready diagnostic reports in grades K-8* 
● Classwork and formative/summative assessments (reported grades) 
● Performance on required statewide assessments 
● Other objective data presented by teacher (Achieve3000 Lexile Level, LLI Reading 

Level, etc.) 
 

Recommendation of the Individual Education Plan (IEP) team.  

ACCELERATION 

Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) options are 
educational options that provide academically challenging curriculum or accelerated 
instruction. ACCEL options include whole-grade and mid-year promotion; subject-matter 
acceleration; virtual instruction in higher grade level subjects; and the Credit Acceleration 
Program under s. 1003.4295. Additional ACCEL options include enriched science, 
technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM) coursework; enrichment programs; 
flexible grouping; and differentiated instruction. 

 
Each principal/school must establish student eligibility requirements for virtual instruction 
in higher grade level subjects. Each principal must also establish student eligibility 
requirements for whole grade promotion, mid-year promotion, and subject matter 

Page 156 of 1019

DRAFT



 

36 
 

acceleration when the promotion or acceleration occurs within the principal’s school. 
 

The school must carefully consider the effect of ACCEL options, especially mid-year and 
full-year promotion, on the student’s future social, emotional and academic performance.  

 
Acceleration Options: 
 
● Whole Grade Promotion – Promotion of a student occurring at the end of the 

school year from one grade to a grade higher than normal matriculation allows. The 
student will be monitored for the first four (4) weeks of the change of placement to 
assess progress. If acceleration is not appropriate for the student as determined by 
the principal, the student will be returned to the former placement. 

● Mid-year Promotion – A student remains coded in the grade level they are 
currently enrolled in and is placed in the next grade level for instruction. The 
student will be monitored every four (4) weeks of the change of placement to assess 
progress. If acceleration is not appropriate for the student as determined by the 
school principal, the student will be returned to the former placement. If 
appropriately placed, the student will be formally promoted to the next grade level 
mid-year. 

● Subject Matter Acceleration – A student that is placed with students at a more 
advanced grade level on campus for one or more subjects for a part of a day without 
being assigned to a higher grade. The student will be monitored every four (4) 
weeks of the change of placement to assess progress. If acceleration is not 
appropriate for the student as determined by the school principal, the student will 
be returned to the former placement. 
 

Parents should contact the school principal for information related to student eligibility 
requirements for participation in ACCEL options. 

 

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 

Students with disabilities must meet the state or district levels of performance for student 
progression unless the disabling condition prevents the student from attaining the required 
levels of performance in the regular curriculum in pursuit of a standard diploma.  In such 
cases, promotion will be determined by the IEP team and based on the student meeting the 
goals and objectives on the Individual Education Plan.  See Good Cause regarding 
mandatory grade 3 retention if applicable. 

 

REMEDIATION 

REMEDIATION K-6 

A student exhibiting substantial reading difficulty must receive intensive reading 
instruction both during and outside the literacy block. Remediation should also be 
supported in the content area subjects.  This must occur immediately following the 
identification of the reading deficiency.  The student must continue to be given reading 

Page 157 of 1019

DRAFT



 

37 
 

instruction until the deficiency is remedied. 
 

Any student who does not meet the district levels of performance in reading, writing, 
science, and mathematics or who does not meet the specific levels of performance on 
statewide assessments as determined by the Commissioner of Education, must be provided 
remediation through: 

 
● Additional diagnostic assessments, determined by the district, to identify the nature 

of the student’s difficulty and areas of academic need; and 
● Implementation of an individual intervention plan developed, in conjunction with 

a parent or guardian that is designed to assist the student (in meeting state and 
district expectations of proficiency. 

● Contingent upon available funds, access to the “Reading Scholarship Accounts” 
program. 

SECONDARY SCHOOL REFORM (TO INCLUDE SIXTH GRADE)  

(F.S. 1003.4156) 
 

In order to be promoted to grade 9, junior high students must successfully complete the 
following during their 6th, 7th and 8th grade years: 

 
● 3 courses in English Language Arts 
● 3 courses in Mathematics (Successful completion of a high school level Algebra 1 

or Geometry course is not contingent upon the student’s performance on the 
statewide, standardized end-of-course (EOC) assessment. However, to earn high 
school credit, the junior high student must take the EOC and pass the course, with 
the assessment constituting 30% of the final course grade.) 

● 3 courses in Social Studies (one of which must be Civics which includes a 
statewide, standardized EOC that constitutes 30% of the student’s final grade.  A 
middle grades/junior high student who transfers into the state’s public school 
system from out of country, out of state, a private school, or a home education 
program after the beginning of the second term/semester of grade “8” is not 
required to meet the civics education requirement for promotion IF the student’s 
transcript documents passage of three courses in social studies or two-year-long 
courses in social studies that include coverage of civics education.) 

● 3 courses in Science (Successful completion of a high school level Biology 1 course 
is not contingent upon the student’s performance on the statewide, standardized 
EOC assessment required under s. 1008.22.  However, to earn a credit for this 
course, the student must take the Biology 1 EOC, which constitutes 30% of the 
student’s final course grade, and earn a passing grade in the course.) 

● F.S. 1003.455 Requires one semester of physical education each year for students 
enrolled in grades 6-8. 
 

Sixth grade students who score Level 1 or 2 on the FSA ELA must complete a remedial 
course or a content area course in which remediation strategies are incorporated in course 
content the following year.  Students scoring a Level 2 on FSA Reading will be assessed 

Page 158 of 1019

DRAFT



 

38 
 

at the end of the sixth grade to determine placement in intensive reading or placement in a 
content area reading course in seventh grade. 

 
Sixth grade students who score Level 1 or 2 on the FSA Math must receive remediation 
that may be integrated into the required math course the next year.  Refer to page 19 for 
requirements of RtI Plans for students scoring Level 1 or 2 on FSA. 
 

SIXTH GRADE FAST TRACK PROGRAM 

This program allows selected 6th grade students to be promoted to the junior high should 
they meet the following criteria: 

 
● Student with 2 or more retentions 
● Student who is 13 years of age on or before September 1st 
● Student must attend summer school 
● Principal recommends for Fast Track; requires District Office approval 

 
Contact the school guidance counselor for more information. 

RETENTION 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Students failing to achieve district levels of expectation must receive remediation.  If, after 
remediation, they are still deficient, they may be retained. 

 
Recommended Steps for Retention Consideration 

 
● Identify potential students and verify whether the students are receiving support 

services through an active monitoring plan or Individual Education Plan or 504 
Plan. 

● In consultation with the principal, teachers will notify parents prior to the last nine 
weeks of the school year. 

● Students who have difficulty meeting promotion requirements should be evaluated 
for retention by the professional team (administrator, teacher, and counselor).  
Consideration should be given for a referral to the Response to Intervention 
Team/MTSS, Student Services Team, and/or counseling.  
 

No one test with a single administration should determine promotion or retention.  The 
preponderance of evidence from evaluations should determine if a student is ready for the 
work of the next grade level. 
 
The state board has adopted rules to prescribe limited circumstances in which a student 
may be promoted without meeting the specific assessment performance level prescribed 
by the district’s Student Progression Plan.  Such rules specifically address the promotion 
of the students with Limited English Proficiency and students with disabilities.  Refer to 
exemption for Good Cause regarding grade 3 students. 

Page 159 of 1019

DRAFT



 

39 
 

 
The school district must consider an appropriate alternative placement for a student who 
has been retained two (2) or more years. 

 
Students in grades K-6 being considered for retention may be recommended for academic 
tutoring or summer school, if available.  Student participation in these support services 
does not automatically result in promotion or retention.  The principal of the student’s 
assigned school makes the final decision regarding promotion or retention. 

MANDATORY GRADE 3 RETENTION AND SUPPORT (F.S. 1008.25) 

It is the ultimate goal of the Legislature that every student read at or above grade level.  
Any student who exhibits a substantial deficiency in reading, based upon locally 
determined or statewide assessments conducted in kindergarten or grade 1, grade 2, or 
grade 3, or through teacher observations, must be given intensive reading instruction 
immediately following the identification of the reading deficiency.   The student’s reading 
proficiency must be reassessed by locally determined assessments or through teacher 
observations at the beginning of the grade following the intensive reading instruction.  The 
student must continue to be provided with intensive reading instruction until the reading 
deficiency is remedied.  

 
If the student’s reading deficiency is not remedied by the end of the grade 3, as 
demonstrated by scoring at Level 2 or higher on the statewide assessment test in reading 
for grade 3, the student must be retained unless he/she is exempt from mandatory retention 
for Good Cause. 

 
If a grade 3 student transfers after the administration of the Florida Standards Assessment, 
it is up to the district to assess the student’s reading proficiency at the end of the year to 
determine if the student needs to repeat the third grade.  The assessment, identified by the 
state, is the SAT-10 or iReady Reading.  The student must score 45% or higher on the SAT-
10 or 50th percentile or higher on the iReady diagnostic to be eligible for promotion unless 
Good Cause is applicable.  A portfolio may also be presented to the principal.  See “Good 
Cause”. 

 
Retention of Limited English Proficient (LEP) students must be determined by a school’s 
LEP Committee, except in the case of mandatory retention for reading deficiencies in grade 
3.  See “Good Cause”. 

 
The parent of any student who exhibits a substantial deficiency in reading must be notified 
in writing of:  that deficiency, a description of the current services and proposed 
supplemental instructional services and supports; that the child will be retained unless he 
or she meets one of the Good Cause exemptions; the strategies for parents to use in helping 
their child succeed in reading proficiency; that the FSA is not the sole determiner of 
promotion; and the district’s specific criteria and policies for mid-year promotion. 

 
Each school district shall conduct a review of MTSS Plans (or Individual Education Plans 
for students with disabilities) for all retained third grade students who did not score above 

Page 160 of 1019

DRAFT



 

40 
 

Level 1 on the FSA ELA and did not meet one of the Good Cause exemptions, and shall 
address additional supports and services needed to remediate the deficiency. 

 
Third grade students who are retained must be provided intensive interventions in reading 
to eliminate the specific reading deficiency, as identified by a valid and reliable diagnostic 
assessment.  The intensive interventions must include:  effective instructional practices; 
participation in the district’s summer reading camp; and appropriate teaching 
methodologies. 

 
Each school district shall provide written notification to the parent of any third grade 
student who is retained that his or her child has not met requirement for promotion and the 
reasons the child is not eligible for a Good Cause exemption.  The notification must include 
a description of proposed interventions and supports that will be provided to the child. 

 
The school district shall require a student portfolio to be completed for each retained third 
grade student. 

 
Retained third grade students must be provided with intensive instructional services and 
supports to remediate the identified area of reading deficiency, including scientifically 
research-based reading instruction and other strategies, which may include, but are not 
limited to:  integration of science and social studies content within the reading block; small 
group instruction; reduced teacher-student ratios; more frequent progress monitoring; 
tutoring or mentoring; transition classes containing 3rd and 4th grade students; extended 
school day, week, or year (summer reading camps). 

 
Provide students who are retained with a highly effective teacher. 
 
Retained third grade students who have received intensive instructional services who 
subsequently score Level 1 must be offered the option of being placed in a transitional 
instructional setting.  Such a setting shall specifically be designed to produce learning gains 
sufficient to meet grade 4 performance standards while continuing to remediate the areas 
of reading deficiency. 

 

EXEMPTION FOR GOOD CAUSE 

GOOD CAUSE EXEMPTIONS FOR GRADE 3 

The district school board may only exempt students from mandatory retention in grade 3 
for Good Cause.  Good Cause exemptions shall be limited to the following: 

 
● Limited English proficient students who have had less than two years of instruction 

in an English for Speakers of Other Languages Program. 
● Students with disabilities whose Individual Education Plan indicates that 

participation in FSA is not appropriate. 
● Students who demonstrate an acceptable level of performance on an alternative 

standardized reading assessment approved by the State Board of Education.  (SAT-

Page 161 of 1019

DRAFT



 

41 
 

10 alternative assessment/iReady reading). 
● All grade 3 students new to the county or students who missed the reading portion 

of the FSA will be administered the alternative assessment prior to the end of the 
school year.  All grade 3 students who scored Level 1 will also take the SAT-10 at 
the end of Summer Reading Camp.  

● To promote a student using the SAT-10 as an alternative assessment Good Cause 
exemption, the grade 3 student scoring at Level 1 Reading FSA must score at or 
above the 45th percentile on a parallel form of the SAT-10.  The SAT-10 may only 
be administered TWO times.  The earliest the alternative assessment may be 
administered is following the receipt of the grade 3 student’s Reading FSA scores 
or during the last two weeks of school, whichever occurs first, for student 
promotion purposes.  The iReady scale score requirement for promotion is Reading 
535 or higher. 

● To promote a student by portfolio, there must be evidence of mastery of the third 
grade Florida State Standard Benchmarks for Language Arts and beginning 
mastery for fourth grade Language Arts.  The portfolio must meet the following 
requirements: 
 be selected by the district student’s teacher; 
 be an accurate picture of the student’s ability and include only student work 

that has been independently produced in the classroom; 
 include evidence of mastery of the standards benchmarks assessed by the 

grade 3 Reading FSA ELA (2015); 
 include evidence of beginning mastery of grade 4 standards. Benchmarks 

that are assessed by the grade 4 Reading FSA (2015).  This includes 
multiple choice, short text-based response, and extended response items and 
passages that are approximately 5060% literary text and 5040% information 
text, and are between 100-900 words with an average of 500 words.  For 
each benchmark, there must be three examples of mastery as 
demonstrated by a grade of “70%” or better;  and 

 be signed by the teacher and the principal as an accurate assessment of the 
required reading skills. 

● Students with disabilities who participate in the FSA and who have an Individual 
Education Plan or a Section 504 Plan that reflects that the student has received the 
intensive remediation in reading for more than two years but still demonstrates a 
deficiency in reading and was previously retained in K, 1, 2, or 3. 

● Students who have received the intensive remediation in reading for two or more 
years, but still demonstrate a deficiency in reading and who were previously 
retained in K-3 for a total of two years.  Intensive reading instruction for students 
so promoted must include an altered instructional day based upon a monitoring plan 
(or Individual Education Plans for students with disabilities) that included 
specialized diagnostic information and specific reading strategies for each student.  
The District School Board shall assist schools and teachers to implement reading 
strategies that research has shown to be successful in improving reading among low 
performing readers. 

● Students who have already been retained once in 3rd grade. 
 

Page 162 of 1019

DRAFT



 

42 
 

PRINCIPAL’S RESPONSIBILITY – GOOD CAUSE (F.S. 1008.25) 

 
Requests for Good Cause exemptions for students from the mandatory retention 
requirement shall be made consistent with the following: 

 
● Documentation shall be submitted from the student’s teacher to the school principal 

that indicates that the promotion of the student is appropriate and is based upon the 
student’s academic record.  In order to minimize paperwork requirements, such 
documentation shall consist only of the existing MTSS Plan, Individual 
Educational Plan, if applicable, report card, and student portfolio. 

● The school principal shall review and discuss such recommendation with the 
teacher and make the determination as to whether the student should be promoted 
or retained.  If the school principal determines that the student should be promoted 
based upon good cause guidelines, the principal should complete a good cause 
attestation form and send it to the District Reading Department.  The student should 
be coded as promoted within the FOCUS database.   
 

PROMOTION (K-2, 4-6) 

 
School personnel should utilize available resources to achieve parental understanding and 
cooperation regarding grade placement.  The final decision is the responsibility of the 
principal. 
 
A student may be considered for promotion, by the principal, to the next higher grade with 
the exception of mandatory retention for third grade.  The following reasons shall be the 
determining factor when making this decision for promotion: 

 
● Limited English proficient students who have had less than two years of instruction 

in an English for Speakers of Other Languages Program who have previously been 
retained at least one year in the grade grouping and are on a monitoring plan. 

● Students with disabilities whose Individual Education Plan indicates that 
participation in State/District standardized testing is not appropriate. 

● Students receiving intensive reading instruction for two or more years, mandatory 
retention in grade 3 and at least one additional year of retention but still has 
deficiency in reading.  If promoted under this exemption, intensive reading 
instruction must be provided the next year to include an altered instructional day 
based on an MTSS Plan (or Individual Education Plans for students with 
disabilities) that includes specialized diagnostic information and specific reading 
strategies. 

 
Request for exemption from retention for any student (K-2 or 4-6) with continuing reading 
deficiencies must be consistent with the following: 

 
● Documentation must be submitted by the student’s teacher to the principal that 

indicates that the promotion of the student is appropriate and is based on the 

Page 163 of 1019

DRAFT



 

43 
 

student’s academic record.  Such documentation can consist of the existing MTSS 
Plan, IEP, report card, student portfolio, or alternate testing and evaluations. 

● The principal must review and discuss the recommendation with the teacher(s), 
counselor and psychologist and determine promotion or retention.  If the principal 
determines that the child is to be promoted, he/she will sign the report card and 
indicate promoted.  A statement will be added to the report card stating the data on 
which promotion is based. 

 
For third grade students see Section on Mandatory Retention in Grade 3. 
 
A student may be assigned by the principal, to the same grade grouping (K-3 or 4-6) even 
if the student has previously been retained in that grade grouping.  Parents will be notified, 
in writing, of this placement. 

 
Any student may be assigned at any time during the school year to a lower grade if the 
principal determines standards have not been met and the student will benefit from the 
placement.  Parents will be notified of the special assignment, and it will be documented 
in the student’s record. 

 
Districts shall implement a policy for the mid-year promotion of any retained third grade 
student who can demonstrate that he or she is a successful and independent reader, reading 
at or above grade level, and ready to be promoted to grade 4.  Reevaluating any retained 
third grade student may include subsequent assessments, alternative assessments, and 
portfolio reviews in accordance with rules of the State Board of Education.  Students 
promoted during the school year after November 1 must demonstrate proficiency above 
that required to score at Level 2 on the grade 3 FSA as determined by the State Board.  See 
Mid-Year Promotion. 

 
The placement of a student to a higher grade which results in advancing a grade, or part of 
a grade, should be based on evidence that the child will benefit from the instructional 
program in the advanced grade.  Parents will be notified of the placement, and it will be 
documented in the student’s record. 

 
The principal should receive input from the Exceptional Student Education student’s 
Individual Education Plan or Educational Plan regarding the appropriateness of placement.  
 

EXTENDED DAY PROGRAMS 

DEFINITION 

The definition for extended day programs includes academic tutoring programs during the 
regular school term.  Elementary schools, within the district, may provide academic 
tutoring before or after school, Saturdays or other days that are not regular school days in 
addition to Summer Reading Camp.  The purpose of the extended day program is to provide 
support for the students at risk of academic failure during the school term instead of waiting 
until the summer to provide remedial instruction. 

Page 164 of 1019

DRAFT



 

44 
 

 
The principal’s approval to recommend the student for academic tutoring or Summer 
Reading Camp should be made on the basis of the student’s need to meet the district and 
state levels of performance in reading and writing.  Grade 3 students who score Level 1 on 
the Florida Standards Assessment will be targeted for Summer Reading Camp. 

 

STUDENT ELIGIBILITY FOR ACADEMIC TUTORING AND SUMMER 
READING CAMP 

Basic Education students, who were enrolled in Clay County Schools in the previous year, 
will qualify if they have a current monitoring plan or who meet individual school criteria 
for eligibility for available tutoring. 

 
Students in grade 3, mandatorily retained, will be given the opportunity to attend Summer 
Reading Camp. The purpose of summer reading camp is to provide intensive reading 
remediation and to provide retained students with an additional opportunity for promotion 
to fourth grade. The district policy for Summer Reading Camp attendance requires that 
students not miss more than two days of camp. In the event a student is absent more than 
two days he/she will be dropped from summer reading camp and will not have the 
opportunity to take the SAT-10 test at the conclusion of camp.  In addition, repeated tardy 
or late pick-up (three or more) may also result in the student being dropped from the 
Summer Reading Camp program.  This attendance policy is in place to ensure that students 
are provided with maximum time for intensive instruction. 

 
Students may make prior arrangements to take the SAT-10 at their district school on the 
last day of reading camp if they are taking remedial instruction through a private program. 

 
In addition to the above criteria Exceptional Student Education (ESE) students may qualify 
if the IEP team determines extended school year services are necessary. 
 
English Language Learner (ELL) students are eligible. 
 
Sixth grade students may attend summer school to remediate one course. A student can 
earn an additional promotion credit for promotional purposes through a state approved 
virtual instruction provider. 

 
On a case by case basis Principals may determine whether previously retained, over-aged 
sixth graders may benefit by repeating one summer school course to be “conditionally 
promoted” to 7th grade where additional remediation must occur. (See Secondary PPP) 

REQUIRED PROGRAM OF STUDY K-6 

The required program of study for elementary students in Clay County District Schools 
reflects state and local requirements for Elementary Education, including but not limited 
to, the Florida State Standards. 

Page 165 of 1019

DRAFT



 

45 
 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS AVAILABLE 

TITLE I BASIC READING AND MATHEMATICS ACADEMIC SERVICES 

Title I is a federally funded program designed to supplement basic education in core 
curriculum area of reading, math, science, and writing. 

 

VIRTUAL SCHOOL (F.S. 1002.45) 

Clay Virtual Academy (CVA) is a school choice option for K-12 full and part-time   
students who reside in Clay County.  Public, private or homeschool students may take 
classes with CVA. Students taking CVA for full time enrollment outside of Clay County 
must be released from their county of residence. 

 
CVA offers full time/part-time enrollment as a franchise of Connections and FLVS, but 
also offers other full time programs through Pasco County Virtual School and FLVS (full 
time and flex). Part-time classes are available for students in 6 grade for any student who 
wishes to take additional classes and for 4th and 5th grade students who qualify based on 
state assessments. Elementary students who enroll directly with FLVS/Connections 
Academy as a school choice option are no longer considered Clay County enrollees but 
may still participate in state test and extracurricular activities at their zoned schools. 
 
Applications for CVA are accepted only during open enrollment periods listed on the CVA 
website, cva.oneclay.net.  Applications are considered without regard to age, disability, 
race, national origin, religion, or gender.  The application process is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that students will be successful in their academic work.  Acceptance to CVA at 
any other time than an open enrollment period is only under extenuating circumstances and 
require administrative and guidance counselor approval. No students may enroll or exit 
after Survey 2 until semester.   

 

CVA STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY 
Students are required to follow a pace chart (secondary) or scheduler (elementary). If a 
student does not stay on pace, they are considered absent based on pace/scheduler.  This 
can impact attendance and future enrollment in the school.  If students do not maintain 
pace, working consecutively on required assignments, they will be withdrawn in the first 
21 days of a course with no penalty. Even if a student is ahead of pace, weekly submission 
is required in each course. This is monitored closely by teachers and administration. If a 
student cannot independently succeed in the virtual setting, it is in the best interest of the 
student to attend a traditional school where daily monitoring and assistance in time 
management and task completion can occur.  
 
Students have a 21 day grace period starting from the course activation date to drop a 
course.  Students must be on pace in each course in the first 21 days with passing grades 
or they will be withdrawn from their course(s) at that point. Students who do this will be 
withdrawn without a grade NG. Students who withdraw after the 21 day period will be 
issued a W/P or W/F, and if over 50% complete, a failing grade. When students add 

Page 166 of 1019

DRAFT



 

46 
 

courses, the educational suitability and availability of courses will be considered before an 
approval will be granted. Changes will only be considered in the first 21 days.  If a student 
seeks to enter back into a class at their zoned school, class size caps established by the state 
may disallow that change. After the 21 day grace period, the student may have to complete 
the course online. Administrators and guidance counselors will interpret this. 
 

VOLUNTARY PRE-KINDERGARTEN PROGRAM (VPK) 

The free Voluntary Prekindergarten Program will be offered at selected school sites during 
the summer and during the regular school year.  Parents must provide transportation.  In 
order to be eligible, the parent/guardian must: 

 
● Provide a certificate of eligibility from Episcopal Children’s Services. 
● Provide a registered birth certificate indicating the child will be four years old on 

or before September 1st of the year of participation in VPK.  They must be eligible 
to enter Kindergarten in the fall following VPK. 

● Provide a physical dated within one year of the school entry date.  Exemptions will 
be granted on religious grounds upon receiving written request from 
parents/guardian stating objections to the examination (F.S. 1003.22).  A homeless 
child as defined by F.S. 1003.01, shall be given temporary exemption for 30 days. 

● Provide a valid DH 680 Florida Certificate of Immunization or DH 681 Florida 
Certificate of Religious Exemption for Immunization.  This is the only document 
schools are permitted to accept as proof of immunization. 

● Provide a Social Security Number (District request). 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS (ELL)  

The ELL Program is designed to meet the communication and academic needs of students 
whose native language is one other than English. These students will receive 
comprehensive instruction utilizing ELL strategies based on curriculum frameworks and 
guides that provide them equal access to appropriate instruction. 

  
Placement  
An ELL Committee, which is composed of the principal or designee, an ESOL/ELA 
teacher, a guidance counselor, and any other personnel who may be responsible for the 
language instruction of the ELL, shall make recommendations concerning appropriate 
placement, along with the parent or guardian of the student being reviewed. 
 
The program of study for English language learners is determined by the student’s current 
level of English proficiency and academic potential as evidenced by transcripts, language 
screening, performance data, and/or age appropriate grade placement policies. (Rule 6A-
6.904 F.A.C.) 

  
Assessment  
In accordance with federal mandates outlined in ESSA, all ELLs (K-12) must participate 
in the annual English language proficiency assessment in order to evaluate their progress 
in English language acquisition, and must also participate in statewide assessments, 

Page 167 of 1019

DRAFT



 

47 
 

regardless of their Date of Entry. 
  

Retention  
Promotion or retention decisions will not be based solely on scores from any single 
assessment instrument. ELLs cannot be retained based on their lack of English proficiency 
alone. Retention of an English language learner is based on failure to meet requirements in 
reading, writing, science, social studies, and mathematics, based on: 

 
● Academic performance and progress using assessment instruments in both English 

and their native language, 
● Attendance, progress reports, and age of the student, 
● Number of years the student has been enrolled in the ESOL program, and 
● The student’s current level of English language proficiency. (Rule 6A-1.09432 F. 

A. C.) 
  

Exit Procedures 
Students may be exited from the ESOL Program either by satisfying exit criteria or through 
the ELL committee, at which time they will remain on a monitored status for two additional 
years. 

 
 

Page 168 of 1019

DRAFT



 

48 
 

SECONDARY EDUCATION 

ARTICULATED ACCELERATION  

Articulated acceleration will serve either to shorten the length of time necessary for a 
student to complete the requirements associated with a postsecondary degree or to increase 
the depth of study available for a particular subject.  This shall include, but shall not be 
limited to, the following: 
 

● Dual Enrollment (DE) courses 
● Advanced Placement (AP) courses 
● International Baccalaureate (IB) courses and Preliminary IB courses 
 Advanced International Certificate of Education (AICE) 
● Virtual Education Options; including CVA and Florida Virtual School (FLVS) 
● Industry Certifications that articulate to Post secondary credit as identified by the 

Florida Department of Education, Gold Articulation Agreements. 
 

Schools will notify parents of students currently in/or entering high school of the 
opportunity and benefits of accelerated coursework.   
 
It is the policy of the School District of Clay County to purchase tests for students who 
meet the following criteria involving AP, IB and AICE tests: 
   

● A student must be enrolled in the course in order to be eligible to take the exam, 
except in the case of CAP for AP tests; 

● The student must earn a “C” or higher in order for the school to purchase a test for 
that student, except in the case of CAP for AP tests; 

● CAP students and home-schooled students who are not enrolled through Clay 
Virtual Academy but wish to take an exam may do so at a non-refundable fee (the 
cost of the test at that time).  Checks must be made payable to the “School District 
of Clay County.” 

 
Dual Enrollment – Students, who qualify for Dual Enrollment may take certain college 
classes from specified institutions within the Florida Postsecondary Articulation 
Agreement and receive high school and college credit.  These classes have no tuition fees 
and books are provided free of charge. This includes home school students who enroll 
through Clay Virtual Academy.  Please contact your high school guidance office for 
eligibility requirements and specific information.  These courses may be taken either on 
or off the high school campus for credit. Courses taken on the college campus may be 
taken during the day or evening.  Students may be released for the courses from the high 
school campus since these courses would be considered part of their daily schedule.  Dual 
Enrollment courses shall not be combined with any other course. 
 

Early Admissions – Early admissions is a form of dual enrollment permitting high school 

Page 169 of 1019

DRAFT



 

49 
 

students to enroll in college or career courses on a full-time basis. As with all dual 
enrollment programs, students earn both high school and college/career credits for courses 
completed. Career early admissions is a form of career dual enrollment through which 
eligible secondary students enroll full time in a career center or a Florida College System 
institution in postsecondary programs leading to industry certifications, as listed in the 
CAPE Postsecondary Industry Certification Funding List pursuant to s. 1008.44.  These 
students are entitled under rule and law to all rights and privileges allowed for all seniors 
included, but not limited to, participation in class activities (i.e. grad night, prom, etc.), 
rank in class, and eligibility for class Valedictorian or Salutatorian. 

ASSESSMENT EXEMPTION 

A child with a medical complexity may be exempt from participating in statewide, 
standardized assessments, including FAA if based upon medical documentation from a 
physician that the student is medically fragile and needs intensive care due to a condition 
such as congenital disorder or acquired multi-system disease; has a severe neurological or 
cognitive disorder with marked functional impairment; or is technology dependent for 
activities of daily living and lacks the capacity to perform on an assessment. The student, 
if the IEP determines that the student qualifies, has the following options: 
 

● One year exemption, if approved by the superintendent, from all statewide 
assessments. 

● One to three year exemption, if approved by the superintendent, from all statewide 
assessments. 

● Permanent exemption, if approved by the superintendent, from all statewide 
assessments. 

ATTENDANCE 

 
Florida Law (Section 1003.21, Florida Statutes) states that all children who are either six 
years of age, who will be six years old by February 1 of any school year, or who are older 
than six years of age but who have not attained the age of 16 years, must attend school 
regularly during the entire school term. 
 
The “Every Student Succeeds Act” changes the focus of attendance.  Instead of focusing 
on Truancy, the focus is narrowed to Chronic Absences.  There has been a shift from 
punitive measures to preventive and supportive interventions.  The process is driven by 
data which ensures accountability.  A multi-tiered model of interventions should be 
established in each school.  Tier one interventions should be implemented school-wide and 
can include contests, recognition of good/improved attendance etc.  Tier two interventions 
are teacher/classroom based, and Tier three interventions are implemented by a 
multidisciplinary team.  Once Tier one and Tier two interventions have been implemented 
for attendance without improvement, a referral should be made to the multidisciplinary 
team.  The team should schedule a meeting with and obtain input from the teacher.  The 
parent and the student will be invited to the intervention meeting.  The intervention team 
should have regular meetings.  These meetings not only provide prevention and 

Page 170 of 1019

DRAFT



 

50 
 

intervention, but follow-up meetings are held to check-in on prior attendees. The goal of 
the team is to develop a plan to help the student become more successful by utilizing 
strategies specific to each student including, but not limited to: 
 

● Changes in the learning environment 
● Implementation of an incentive plan 
● Mentoring 
● Student/family counseling 
● Tutoring 
● Evaluation of credits, and alternative educational options 
● Attendance contracts 
● Agency referrals 
● Remediation plan to help the student with make-up work 

 
For the intervention plan to be successful, the plan must be achievable.  If the team 
determines it is appropriate to accept make-up work for unexcused absences, the Principal 
or Designee will seek input from the team, including the teacher and make a final 
determination.  The intervention plan and the student’s response should be monitored.  If 
the team has concerns, there should be discussion about what is working and what needs 
to be re-addressed.  Referring the student for consequences should not be considered until 
all resources have been exhausted.  The decision to proceed with a CINS petition or 
Referral to the Truancy Arbitration Program is a decision the intervention team will make 
when the members agree that a referral should be made. 
 

HABITUAL TRUANCY 

“Habitual truant” means a student who has 15 unexcused absences within 90 calendar days 
with or without the knowledge or consent of the student’s parent, is subject to compulsory 
school attendance under s.1003.21(1) and (2) (a), and is not exempt under s.1003.21 (3) or 
s.1003.24, or by meeting the criteria for any other exemption specified by law or rules of 
the State Board of Education. Such a student must have been the subject of the activities 
specified in s.1003.26 and s.1003.27 (3), without resultant successful remediation of the 
truancy problem before being dealt with as a child in need of services. 
 
Truancy Procedures: If a student has had at least five (5) unexcused absences, or absences 
for which the reasons are unknown, within a calendar month or 10 unexcused absences, or 
absences for which the reasons are unknown, within a 90-calendar day period, Tier 2 
interventions should be implemented.  If these are not successful, the primary teacher shall 
report to the school Principal or his or her designee that the student may be exhibiting a 
pattern of nonattendance. F.S.1003.26. 
 
The multidisciplinary team shall be diligent in facilitation intervention services and shall 
report the child to the Superintendent only when all reasonable efforts to resolve non-
attendance behavior are exhausted. F.S. 1003.23(1)(d). 
 

● If the parent or guardian in charge of the student refuses to participate in the 

Page 171 of 1019

DRAFT



 

51 
 

remedial strategies because he or she believes that those strategies are unnecessary 
or inappropriate, the parent or guardian in charge of the student may appeal to the 
school board. F.S.1003.26(1)(e).. 

● If the board’s final determination is that the strategies of the multidisciplinary Team 
are appropriate, and the parent or guardian in charge of the student still refuses to 
participate or cooperate, the Superintendent may seek criminal prosecution for non 
compliance with compulsory school attendance. s. 1003.26(1)(e), F.S 

● If nonattendance continues after the implementation of intervention strategies, the 
Superintendent or designee shall file a CINS petition, defined in s.984.15, F.S. The 
school representative, a parent, law enforcement, a court, or the DJJ shall initiate a 
referral to a CINS provider or a case staffing committee established pursuant to s. 
984.12, F.S., and procedures established by the district school board. The purpose 
of the referral to CINS is to secure prevention services for a habitually truant 
student and the family (F.S.1003.27(3). Prior to the filing of the CINS petition, 
reasonable time must be allowed to complete interventions to remedy conditions 
contributing to the truant behavior and must comply with the requirements of 
F.S.1003.26. 
 

EXCUSED/UNEXCUSED ABSENCES 

 
An absence from school under the following circumstances shall be considered excused: 
 

● With permission – The absence was with the knowledge and consent of the 
principal of the school, which the student attends. 

● Sickness, injury or other insurmountable condition – Attendance was impracticable 
or inadvisable on account of sickness or injury, or was impracticable because of 
some other stated insurmountable condition. 

● Absence for religious instruction or holidays – A student with the written consent 
of his or her parent/guardian shall be excused from attendance in school on a 
particular day or days, or at a particular time of day, and shall be excused from any 
examination, study or work assignment at such time to participate in religious 
instruction, for observance of a religious holiday or because tenets of his or her 
religion forbid secular activity at such time. The principal shall reserve the right to 
refuse a student’s request for released time, if according to the provisions of the 
district’s student progression plan: 
 The student is not enrolled in sufficient courses to allow for the student’s 

promotion or graduation, and thus the released time would not be equivalent 
to an optional period. 

 The student’s grades/academic progress is insufficient to allow for the 
student’s promotion or graduation.  Absences approved for religious 
reasons do not affect perfect attendance. 

● Absences due to head lice will be excused, up to 2 days per incident and for a total 
of 10 days per school year. After a student has accumulated 10 excused absences 
due to head lice during a school year, further absences due to head lice will be 
considered unexcused. Unusual circumstances may be addressed by the principal 

Page 172 of 1019

DRAFT



 

52 
 

to go beyond these 10 days for excused absences. 
 
It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to provide a written statement to the school 
explaining the absence within three (3) school days following the return of the student to 
school. 
 
If a student is continually sick and repeatedly absent from school, he or she must be under 
the supervision of a physician in order to receive an excuse from attendance. Such excuse 
provides that a student’s condition justifies absence for more than 5 days per grading 
period/10 days per semester/20 days per year. The principal of the school shall determine 
when it is necessary to require a physician’s statement from the student’s medical provider 
and required the parent/guardian to provide a copy to their child’s school within a 
reasonable period of time as determined by the principal or designee. 
 
An absence from school under the following circumstances may be considered unexcused: 
 

● The absence was without the parent/guardian’s knowledge, consent or connivance. 
● Permission for the absence was requested but denied by the principal of the 

student’s school. 
● No written statement of the absence from the parent/guardian has been received by 

the school explaining the reason for the absence within three (3) school days 
following the return of the student to schools. 

 
The principal has administrative discretion in cases of excessive absences to reject a written 
note and consider the absence as unexcused when absences are seriously impacting 
academic progress, with the exception of sickness, injury or insurmountable conditions. 
 
Accumulated unexcused tardy and early departure time equivalent to one full school day 
may be counted as one unexcused absence in the total number of unexcused absences 
required for possible legal action. 
 
Missed instructional time due to tardiness and early departures shall be accumulated as 
excused or unexcused using the same policies as for absent days. 
 
Pertaining to children of military families, students may receive 5 excused days when the 
absences are due to a parent/guardian leaving for active duty, on leave from active duty or 
returning from deployment (FS-1000.36). 

In no instance will an academic penalty be used for a “Code of Conduct” violation. 
 
Attendance for Clay Virtual Academy students will be documented as 
follows: 
 

● Students in grades K-5 must log in each school day; 
● Students in grades 6-12 must follow their pace chart and be on pace; 
● Any day a  K-5 student does not log in is considered an absence unless otherwise 

approved by a CVA administrator or guidance counselor; 

Page 173 of 1019

DRAFT



 

53 
 

● Any week a 6-12 student completes less than their pace chart % of the coursework, 
an absence equal to the percentage below 5 will be documented unless otherwise 
approved by a CVA administrator or designee. 

 

Perfect Attendance is awarded to students that have been neither absent or tardy. 
Perfect attendance will be awarded to those students who have been present in school 
every day, with no absences or tardies. If a student is not in attendance for half of the 
school day he/she would be considered as absent for purposes of “perfect attendance”.  If 
a student is checked out after 10:00 a.m. they are considered present and “perfect 
attendance” is not affected.  (SDCC Policy 4.02 G)  Clay Virtual Academy students are 
not eligible for perfect attendance. 

BRIGHT FUTURES SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 

The “Bright Futures Scholarship Program” is intended to reward any Florida high school 
graduate who merits recognition of high academic achievement and who enrolls in an 
eligible Florida public or private post-secondary educational institution within 3 years of 
high school graduation.  If a student enlists directly into the military after graduation, the 
3-year period begins upon date of separation of active duty.  If a student has a full-time 
religious or service obligation lasting at least 18 months, the two-year eligibility period for 
an initial award and the five-year period for renewal begin upon completion of the 
obligation. The “Bright Futures Scholarship Program” is the umbrella program for state-
funded scholarships based on academic achievement in high school that were formerly 
provided through such programs as the “Florida Academic Scholars” and “Gold Seal 
Programs”.  High school guidance departments can provide specific details about meeting 
the program's criteria.  The following information covers the basic components of the 
“Bright Futures Scholarship Program”: 

● 4-Levels of scholarship awards – Florida Academic Scholars (FAS); Florida 
Medallion Scholars (FMS); Florida Gold Seal Vocational Scholars (GSV); Florida 
Gold Seal CAPE Scholars (GSC) 

● For all 4 awards, the student must earn a Florida high school diploma and meet the 
requirements for the specific award. 

● Each award has its own academic requirements, award amounts and funding length.  
A student may receive funding for only one award with the highest award earned 
being selected. 

● Earn the 16 core credits 
● Achieve the required Grade Point Average or Industry Certification depending on 

the level received. 
● Achieve the required SAT, ACT or PERT test scores for the level received 
● Perform required number of voluntary service hours based on the level received 

 
More information about the Bright Futures program, along with other Florida scholarship 
opportunities, can be found at www.FloridaStudentFinancialAid.org. 

Page 174 of 1019

DRAFT



 

54 
 

CALCULATING GRADES AND GRADE POINT AVERAGE 

Semester grades will be calculated by multiplying each quarter (9-weeks) numeric grade 
by .45 (45%), multiplying the semester exam by .10 (10%), and adding the products 
together. For semester courses, a final average of “60” and above equals ½ credit.  Courses 
that have “End-of-Course” (EOC) exams will receive full credit at the conclusion and then 
have the GPA calculated.  For athletic purposes, the semester grades will be calculated to 
determine eligibility status. 
 
The District will maintain a one-half credit earned system including full-year courses with 
credits posted after each semester.  For year-long courses, if a student fails one semester, 
but passes the other semester with a high enough grade to achieve a passing average for 
the year, the student will receive a full credit (1) for the course. For courses that require an 
“End-of-Course” assessment which is 30% of the final grade, the District will determine 
the calculations and disseminate to the schools.  The primary responsibility for assigning 
grades rests with the teacher with final approval of the Principal.  Parents and students are 
urged to contact the school about this calculation.  Please see the section on “Graduation 
Options” for more information about EOC’s and diplomas. 
 
In calculating GPA for graduation and eligibility purposes, all courses taken must be used 
in determining the final GPA.  This calculation includes all virtual courses taken.  “WP” 
and “WF” indicators in virtual courses are not counted in the GPA calculations. Quality 
points are assigned by each semester average (A = 4, B = 3, C = 2, D = 1, F = 0).  Students 
must have a 2.0 GPA on a 4.0 scale in order to meet graduation requirements and receive 
a “Standard,” “Scholar,” or “Merit” diploma.  All credit-earning courses taken in grades 7-
12 and through virtual programs will count in the cumulative GPA calculations.  For 
purpose of class rank only credit earning courses taken in grades 9-12 and through virtual 
programs during those years will be counted. Courses in which “grade forgiveness” 
policies have been applied are exempt. 
 
All courses designated as “Honors,” (this includes “Pre-AICE and Pre-IB”) will be 
weighted as “4.5” on the weight scale for Clay County schools.  “Level 3” Career and 
Technical Education courses will be weighted on a “4.5” basis.  Courses designated as 
“Dual Enrollment, Advanced Placement, AICE and International Baccalaureate” will be 
weighted at “5.0.”  

CLAY VIRTUAL ACADEMY 

Clay Virtual Academy (CVA) is a school choice option for K-12 full and part-time students 
who reside in Clay County.  Public, private or homeschool students may take classes with 
CVA. CVA offers full time/part-time enrollment as a franchise of FLVS, but also offers 
other full time programs through other providers (local districts, virtual charter schools, 
and/or FLVS full time and flex).  Students may  opt  to  take  7th   or  8th   period  courses  
through  Clay Virtual Academy (a franchise of FLVS) or FLVS  for acceleration, original 
credit or grade forgiveness. For more information please see your guidance counselor or 
cva.oneclay.net. 

Secondary students who enroll directly with FLVS/Connections Academy as a school 

Page 175 of 1019

DRAFT



 

55 
 

choice option are no longer considered Clay County enrollees but may still participate in 
state test and extracurricular activities at their zoned schools. 
 
Clay Virtual Academy is a school of choice and may not be able to accommodate all 
students. 
 

● Clay County shall not deny access to any District approved online courses assuming 
that the desired online course(s) is an appropriate course placement based on the 
students’ academic history, grade level, ability level and age appropriateness.  This 
program is available to full-time and/or part-time students in virtual courses in 6-
12 (FS.1002.45); 

● CVA offers numerous courses during the school year, including Honors courses 
and Advanced Placement (AP) courses.  CVA course grades are accepted for credit 
and are transferable.  CVA is considered part of the Clay County school system and 
has accreditation status AdvancEd and the courses are approved by the NCAA; 

● The student may participate at their zoned school’s graduation if at the time of 
enrollment during their senior year they are in good standing with the zoned school.  
Any student recommended for an alternative educational setting for disciplinary 
reasons may not participate in the commencement exercises at their zoned school; 
including students who enroll at CVA in lieu of the recommended alternative 
educational setting. 

 
Applications for CVA are accepted only during open enrollment periods listed on the CVA 
website, cva.oneclay.net. Applications are considered without regard to age, disability, 
race, national origin, religion, or gender.  The application process is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that students will be successful in their academic work.  Acceptance to CVA at 
any other time than an open enrollment period is only under extenuating circumstances and 
requires administrative and guidance counselor approval. No students may enroll or exit 
after Survey 2 until semester, nor after Survey 3.  

STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY 

Students are required to follow a pace chart. If a student does not stay on pace, they are 
considered absent based on pace/scheduler.  This can impact attendance and future 
enrollment in the school.  If students do not maintain pace, working consecutively on 
required assignments, they will be withdrawn in the first 21 days of a course with no 
penalty.  Even if a student is ahead of pace, weekly submission is required in each course. 
This is monitored closely by teachers and administration. If a student cannot independently 
succeed in the virtual setting, it is in the best interest of the student to attend a traditional 
school where daily monitoring and assistance in time management and task completion can 
occur.  

Students have a 21 day grace period starting from the course activation date to drop a 
course.  Students must be on pace in each course in the within the first 21 days with passing 
grades or they will be withdrawn from their course(s). Students who do this will be 
withdrawn without a grade (NG). Students who withdraw after the 21 day period will be 
issued a W/P or W/F, and if over 50% complete, a failing grade. When students add 

Page 176 of 1019

DRAFT



 

56 
 

courses, the educational suitability and availability of courses will be considered before an 
approval will be granted. Changes will only be considered in the first 21 days.  If a student 
seeks to enter back into a class at their zoned school, class size caps established by the state 
may disallow that change. After the 21 day grace period, the student may have to complete 
the course online.  

COLLEGE READY TEST SCORES 

 
ACT 
Reading 19 
Math 19 
SAT 
Verbal 440 
Math 440 
PERT 
Reading 106 
Writing 103 
Math 114 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE COURSES             
Credit by “correspondence courses” shall not be accepted unless transferred in as part of 
an official transcript from another accredited school or district.  Credit used for this type of 
course through  a  state  or  regionally  accredited  school  is  required  to  be  accepted  at  
face  value Acceptable nationally recognized accreditation organization. 

COURSE SEQUENCING/JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL COURSE 
SEQUENCING/JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL 
Students are generally required to enroll in a full year of mathematics, language arts, 
science, social studies and physical educations courses in grades 7 and 8.  (Please see the 
section entitled “Physical Education” to obtain more information on the P.E. waiver.)  The 
core courses mentioned above are offered at various levels with the school making 
recommendations on the placement of the student.  Unless students receive the P.E. waiver, 
they will have P.E. and an elective during the school day.  Students may choose from a 
Career and Technical Education course and/or a Visual and Performing Arts course for 
their elective.   

Social Studies at the Junior High level includes a Civics course which has an EOC attached 
to the course counting for 30% of the students’ final grade.  In addition, the student must 
pass the course in order to eventually be promoted to the 9th grade.  The U.S. History course 
will include Florida History, the Declaration of Independence content and its’ relationship 
to our government, the Federalist papers, and the U.S. Constitution.   

Page 177 of 1019

DRAFT



 

57 
 

Junior High students taking Algebra and Geometry will have an End of Course Exam 
(EOC) in addition to the 7th grade Civics EOC.  Courses requiring an EOC exam will have 
state mandated rules attached.   Algebra I, Geometry and Civics EOC results account for 
30% of the students’ overall grade.  Students in Junior High must pass the course with a 
“60” or above in order to receive the credit and be promoted.  Students will have several 
opportunities to take the exam in order to receive the passing score.   

Students in 7th and 8th grade may enroll in high school credit earning courses approved by 
the District.  This enables the student to earn high school credits as well as meeting the 
junior high school promotional requirements.  Clay Virtual Academy offers accelerated 
courses for qualified students that may allow Junior High students to accelerate into High 
School math, science, computers and business skills and/or foreign language 
credits. Common courses approved by the District for high school credit are: Algebra 1, 
Geometry, Spanish, Digital Information Technology (The focus of this course is to teach 
students the “Microsoft Office Suite” software which will prove to be valuable to students whether 
or not they choose to take business classes in the future.  Students must score a “Level 3” or higher 
on the 7th grade “Reading FSA” and possess proficient keyboarding skills to be eligible.) and 
Agricultural Foundations.  Digital Information Technology will count towards the Fine 
Arts/Practical Arts graduation requirements and is a full-year course.  These courses will 
be offered based on demand and teacher availability.   Students and parents should check 
with their assigned school about other credit earning courses. 

COURSE SUBSTITUTIONS 

For a complete list of secondary course substitutions, see the FLDOE Secondary Student 
Progression FAQs, Career and Technical Education (CTE) Course Substitutions and 
Course Code Directory. 

Interscholastic Sport(s), Fine Arts, and Reserve Officer Training Corps 

● Participation in an interscholastic sport for two full seasons will satisfy the one 
credit physical education requirement.  

● Completion of one semester with a grade of “C” or better in a marching band class, 
physical activity class that requires participation in marching band activities as an 
extracurricular activity or in a dance class will satisfy one-half credit in physical 
education or one-half credit in performing arts. 
 This credit may not be used to satisfy the personal fitness requirement or 

the requirement for adaptive physical education under an IEP or 504 plan. 
● Completion of two years in a Reserve Officer Training Corps class (including a 

significant component of drills) will satisfy the one credit requirement in physical 
education and the one credit requirement in performing arts. 
 This credit may not be used to satisfy the personal fitness requirement or 

the requirement for adaptive physical education under an IEP or 504 plan. 
 

Career and Technical Education 
 
Students may substitute up to two credits in each of the non-elective core subject areas of 
English, mathematics, and science as provided for in the Course Code Directory (CCD). 

Page 178 of 1019

DRAFT



 

58 
 

Career and Technical Education earnings that are used as substitution credits in one subject 
area may not be used as a substitute for any other subject area.  Career and Technical 
Education substitutions and approved Industry Certifications substituting for math and 
science credits will not count toward state university system admission requirements. 

Military Training 
 
Students may be granted up to one elective credit toward graduation for successful 
completion of military basic training (pass/fail) during the summer between the 11th  and 
12th  grades provided the student is officially enrolled in one of the approved National 
Guard or military reserve sponsored “Split Training Option” programs. Credit would be 
granted under the appropriate Junior ROTC course listing in the “State Course code 
Directory” or other courses specifically designed to cover this program that may be added 
to the “Directory” by the DOE. 
 
Local  schools,  with  the  approval  of  the  Superintendent,  may  offer  course  
substitutions  as provided for in the Course Code Directory. 
 

Local schools, with the approval of the Superintendent, may modify course delivery 
procedures to include extensive student involvement in field interpretations and studies 
outside the regular classroom.  In all cases, total classroom and “field” time will equal the 
number of contact hours required to earn credit as well as providing for demonstrated 
mastery of student performance standards for each course.  In the case of courses under the 
District Dropout Prevention Plan, course modifications as allowed by SBE Rule and 
Performance-Based programs, will be allowed for credit. 

CREDIT ACCELERATION PROGRAM (CAP) 

The Credit Acceleration Program (CAP) authorizes secondary students to earn high school 
credit in a course that requires a “End-of-Course” (EOC) exam, an Advanced Placement 
(AP) Examination, or a College Level Examination Program (CLEP) without having to 
actually be enrolled in the course(s).  A student may earn high school credit in Algebra I, 
Geometry, U.S. History or Biology I if the student passes the statewide, standardized EOC 
without the requirement of enrolling in or completing the course.  Students are eligible to 
take the EOC each time that it is offered by the state. Students are responsible for the 
expense of the AP or CLEP test itself and possible administrative costs. 
The requirements and eligibility process to participate in the CAP program are: 
 

● The EOC will be administered only at the times established by the state assessment 
calendar; 

● The score necessary to earn the credit will be determined by the state; 
● Only credit (no grade) will be earned by meeting the passing score on the EOC; 
● The parent/student must notify the school counselor or Principal in writing in a 

timely manner regarding their desire to participate in the CAP process; 
● Students/parents must supply evidence that they are prepared to sit for the 

assessment or that there is reasonable justification for the request.  This evidence 

Page 179 of 1019

DRAFT



 

59 
 

includes, but is not limited to, previous FCAT/FSA scores, assessment, and grades 
earned in recent EOC associated courses; 

● Obtain the Principal's approval to take the EOC/AP/CLEP test ; 
● If a student takes the EOC and does not earn credit, the student will not be eligible 

to apply for further CAP testing for the same course until additional preparation has 
been documented and approved by the school officials. 

DROPPING/TRANSFERRING FROM HONORS OR ADVANCED COURSES 

 
If a student is enrolled in an honors or AP full-credit course, the student may only drop the 
course within the first ten class meetings, or he/she may NOT drop the course until the end 
of the semester and only if the following conditions exist: 
 

● Grade of D or F, 
● Completion of a parent conference during each grading period, 
● Demonstration of the student seeking consistent academic assistance, and  
● Space available in a comparable course.  

 
If a student is enrolled in an honors or AP half-credit course, the student may only drop the 
course after the end of the first nine weeks grading period and only if the following 
conditions exist: 
 

● Grade of D or F, 
● Completion of a parent conference during each grading period, 
● Demonstration of the student seeking consistent academic assistance, and  
● Space available in a comparable course.  

 
Withdrawing from an honors or AP course is denoted with the WP or WF designation, but 
cannot be done until after the midpoint of the course. In the case of extenuating 
circumstances, a petition may be made on a case-by-case basis to the principal (or designee) 
for review of criteria to ensure proper course placement.  
 
After 21 days, the grade earned in the honors/AP class follows the student to the next 
course, but teachers have flexibility to adjust the transfer grade based on demonstrated 
mastery of standards in the new course. Note – withdrawing from dual enrollment courses 
is governed by the college deadlines, not school policy. 

 

END-OF-COURSE (EOC) EXAMS 
Some courses require “End-of-Course” (EOC) exams. The Algebra 1 EOC is 30% of the 
students’ overall grade and MUST PASS to meet the graduation requirement. Students, 
who score a Level 1 or 2 on the Algebra I EOC, may be enrolled in and complete an 
intensive remedial course the following year or be placed in a content area course that 
includes remediation of skills not acquired by the student. EOC’s are also required in Civics 
(7th grade – 30% of the students’ overall grade), Geometry (30% of the overall grade 

Page 180 of 1019

DRAFT



 

60 
 

for  “Standard,” “Scholar” and “Merit” diplomas), Biology (30% for “Standard” and 
“Merit” diplomas; MUST PASS and 30% for “Scholar” diploma students); and U.S. 
History (30% for “Standard” and “Merit” diplomas; MUST PASS and 30% for “Scholar” 
diploma students).  Please see the “Graduation Chart” for more information on graduation 
requirements. The District and school distributes information about EOC requirements, 
testing information and resources each year. Students in Junior High taking a course 
requiring an EOC will not participate in the statewide standardized assessment for that 
subject. 
 
For Junior High students taking Civics, the EOC constitutes 30% of their grade. If a student 
transfers into a Florida public school after the beginning of the second semester of their 8th 
grade year, the student is exempt from the Civics requirement if: 
 

● The student transcript documents passing three Social Studies courses. 
● Or two year-long courses in Social Studies that include coverage of Civics 

education. 
 

Students may take an EOC during the regular administration of the test in order to receive 
credit for the course once the state establishes the passing score(s).  This can occur even 
without being enrolled in or completing the entire course (see information on 
CAP).  Students in grades K-12 are eligible under the CAP.  Home education students will 
not take the EOC unless the student’s parent chooses to use the EOC for the annual 
evaluation required by the school district as specified in section 1002.41 Florida 
Statutes.  Homeschool parents should consult with Clay Virtual Academy about 
EOC’s.  Students enrolled in Florida Virtual must take all required EOC’s. 
 
Concerning students who transfer into Clay County from out of the country, out-of-state, a 
private school, or a home school, with a transcript that shows credit received in Algebra 1 
or an EOC required course under the “Scholar” diploma status. 
 
The transfer student is required to take: 
 

● The Algebra 1 EOC assessment if the student is entering grade 9 and the transcript 
does not indicate a passing/proficient score on a statewide, standardized EOC 
assessment in Algebra 1 or on the high school statewide assessment in mathematics 
required by the state from which the student transferred for purposes of satisfying 
the requirements of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act. After taking the 
Algebra I EOC at least one time, the student can satisfy the Algebra I EOC 
graduation requirement by achieving a score of “97” on the PERT.  
 

● The Biology and U.S. History EOCs – for “Scholar” diploma students only – if the 
student entered grade 9 in 2013-14 or thereafter and the transcript does not indicate 
a passing/proficient score on a statewide, standardized EOC assessment in that 
course. 
 

Page 181 of 1019

DRAFT



 

61 
 

Florida private school students do not participate in the statewide assessments because 
these assessments exist to meet federal and state assessment accountability requirements 
for Florida public schools.  Private school students who transfer into a Florida public 
school, however, must achieve a passing score on the Algebra 1 EOC at some point and 
the Biology and U.S. History EOC if seeking a “Scholar” diploma.  Students will have 
several opportunities to take these assessments.  The School District will distribute 
information about the EOC’s and graduation requirements to the private schools on a yearly 
basis.  Public school students attending private schools through the use of a school choice 
scholarship, such as the McKay Scholarship, may take the EOC assessments. 
   
Students enrolled in accelerated courses (AP, IB, AICE, DE) leading to college credit are 
not required to participate in the EOC assessment. However, to meet the Scholar Diploma 
requirement in Biology and US History, all AP, AICE, and IB students must pass their 
respective tests or the EOC assessment.  
 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS (ELL) 

  
The ELL Program is designed to meet the communication and academic needs of students 
whose native language is one other than English. These students will receive 
comprehensive instruction utilizing ELL strategies based on curriculum frameworks and 
guides that provide them equal access to appropriate instruction. 
  
Placement  
An ELL Committee, which is composed of the principal or designee, an ESOL/ELA 
teacher, a guidance counselor, and any other personnel who may be responsible for the 
language instruction of the ELL, shall make recommendations concerning appropriate 
placement, along with the parent or guardian of the student being reviewed. 
The program of study for English language learners is determined by the student’s current 
level of English proficiency and academic potential as evidenced by transcripts, language 
screening, performance data, and/or age appropriate grade placement policies. (Rule 6A-
6.904 F.A.C.) 
  
Assessment  
In accordance with federal mandates outlined in ESSA, all ELLs (K-12) must participate 
in the annual English language proficiency assessment in order to evaluate their progress 
in English language acquisition, and must also participate in statewide assessments, 
regardless of their Date of Entry. 
  
Retention  
Promotion or retention decisions will not be based solely on scores from any single 
assessment instrument. ELLs cannot be retained based on their lack of English proficiency 
alone. Retention of an English language learner is based on failure to meet requirements 
in reading, writing, science, social studies, and mathematics, based on: 
 

Page 182 of 1019

DRAFT



 

62 
 

● Academic performance and progress using assessment instruments in both English 
and their native language, 

● Attendance, progress reports, and age of the student, 
● Number of years the student has been enrolled in the ESOL program, and 
● The student’s current level of English language proficiency. (Rule 6A-1.09432 F. 

A. C.) 
  

Exit Procedures  
Students may be exited from the ESOL Program either by satisfying exit criteria or through 
the ELL committee, at which time they will remain on a monitored status for two 
additional years. 

 
FLORIDA SEAL OF BILITERACY 
Students who attain a high level of competency in listening, speaking, reading and writing 
on one or more world languages, in addition to English, will be eligible for the “Gold” or 
“Silver” Seal of Biliteracy. This level of attainment will then be denoted on the student’s 
diploma and transcript. 
  
The purpose for recognizing students attainment of this proficiency is to: encourage 
students to study for world languages; provide employers with a method of identifying an 
individual with biliteracy skills who is seeking employment; provide a postsecondary 
institution with a method of recognizing an applicant with biliteracy skills who is seeking 
admissions to the postsecondary institution; affirm the value of diversity, honor multiple 
cultures and languages, and strengthen the relationships between cultures in a community. 
Students should consult with their school counselors in order to learn more about the 
standards of each level. 
 

A. Silver Seal of Biliteracy   
● earn four foreign language course credits in the same foreign language with a 

cumulative 3.0 GPA or higher on a 4.0 scale, and   
● earn a 3 or higher on the English Language Arts/FSA assessment 
 

B. Gold Seal of Biliteracy 
● earn four foreign language course credits in the same foreign language with a 

cumulative 3.0 GPA or higher on a 4.0 scale, and   
● earn a 4 or higher on the English Language Arts/FSA assessment 

 
In the event that the student was not able to complete 4 years of a World Language for 
high school credit, there are other assessment and portfolio options that may be used to 
fulfill the course requirement. Students should consult with their school counselors in 
order to learn more about the standards, additional exam options, and performance of each 
level. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE STUDENT GUIDELINES 

Only  those  organizations  operating  international exchange programs at the high school 

Page 183 of 1019

DRAFT



 

63 
 

level that are members in good standing of the “Council on Standards for International 
Educational Travel” (CSIET) will be allowed to place students in Clay County public 
schools.  At no time will the number of exchange students allowed in a high school exceed 
one-fourth (1/4) of one percent of the total school population or more than five (5) from 
one organization.  This provision may be waived with approval of the Superintendent of 
Schools or their designee upon the written request of the school principal.  It is up to the 
school principal to determine the number of students allowed from each sponsoring 
organization, but unless requested, current federal regulations limit the number per 
organization to five (5).  All organizations or host families must have foreign exchange 
students registered with their respective schools no later than five (5) calendar weeks prior 
to the start of school for student each year 
 
Under the standards prescribed by CSIET, the following policies must be met by the host 
family and the exchange program prior to enrolling: 
 

● Written acceptance by the school principal or their designee prior to a host family 
being designated; 

● Specific information must be provided to the school.  This includes academic 
records translated into English, the number of years completed prior to arrival and 
the years required in the home country to complete secondary school; 

● The level of the student’s English language proficiency, based on test scores from 
the ELTIS, must be provided to the District/School. If the student does not meet 
the minimum score requirement (218), the student will not be placed in a Clay 
County school. It is the goal of the District to make sure foreign exchange students 
have sufficient command of the English language to enable the student to function 
well in an English-speaking academic and community environment; appropriate 
background information and expectations regarding school experience; 

● The student must not have completed more than 11 years of primary and secondary 
education exclusive of kindergarten; 

● The student will be classified as a junior and must successfully complete/pass a 
minimum of six subjects in order to participate in graduation. Foreign exchange 
students who have received a high school diploma, or its equivalent, in their home 
country are not eligible to be foreign exchange students in the District. 

● All exchange students will be required to take American History, English III 
(American Literature), American Government, Economics, and a minimum of 3 
electives.  The only exception to the required courses will be if the home country 
required a specific curriculum for a student in a specific grade and the local school 
can reasonably meet the student’s course needs.  Written documentation of this 
requirement must be included as part of the student’s records; 

● Driver’s Education, if offered at the school, will not be allowed as a course for 
exchange students; 

● Foreign exchange students are subject to all school and district rules and 
regulations per the Clay County Code of Conduct. 

● Foreign exchange students at no time will receive a Clay County diploma of any 
type nor participate in graduation ceremonies. They will be awarded a special 
certificate certifying that they successfully completed the course of study for 

Page 184 of 1019

DRAFT



 

64 
 

exchange students as prescribed by the School District of Clay County.  These 
students will not take the FSA or other assessments that may be prescribed by the 
DOE since they will not be awarded a standard diploma. 

● Exchange students will be limited to a one-year program or, if approved by the 
principal, a semester. 

● Exchange students entering into Clay County high schools through immigration 
status require a J-1 Visa.  To get a J-1 Visa the student must be in an accepted 
foreign exchange program. 

● A foreign exchange student may only register at the appropriate high school that 
shall be designated as the school within the regular school attendance zone of the 
host family’s residence. 

● A foreign exchange student may be eligible to participate in sports and activities 
provided they meet Florida High School Athletic Association (FHSAA) rules and 
policies. 

FORGIVENESS “D” AND “F” 

Students in grades 9-12 may retake a course in which they earned a “D” or “F.”  The higher 
grade earned will be used in computing their GPA.  This is to allow a student whose GPA 
is less than 2.0 to improve their GPA in order to meet the minimum graduation 
requirement.  The grade forgiveness policy for required courses is limited to replacing the 
grade of “D” or “F” with a grade of “C” or higher earned in the same or comparable course.  
Elective courses may replace the grade of “D” or “F” with a grade of “C” or higher in any 
elective course.  Year-long electives will replace year-long electives; semester electives 
will replace semester electives.  Junior High students taking high school credit earning 
courses may forgive grades of “C,” “D,” or “F.” Once a “C” is earned through grade 
forgiveness, all previous attempts are forgiven and are not included in the student’s GPA. 

GRADING SCALE 

Florida Grading Scale for Grades 6-12 is: 
 

Letter 
Grade 

Progress Numerical 
Equivalent 

GPA Value 

A Outstanding 90-100 “4” point 

B Above Average 80-89 “3” point 

C Average Progress 70-79 “2” point 

D Below Average 60-69 “1” point 

F Failure 50-59 “0” point 

I Incomplete   

 

Page 185 of 1019

DRAFT



 

65 
 

 

 
Students moving into Clay County shall have letter grades converted to numeric grades 
for averaging purposes.  If a student cannot produce documentation, or if numeric grades 
cannot be obtained, the following conversions will be made: 
 

Letter to Numeric Grade Conversions 

A+ = 100 A = 95 S = 80 

B+ = 89 B = 85 N = 75 

C+ = 79 C = 75 U = 59 

D+ = 69 D = 65  

 F = 55  

 
If the student has not enrolled in school, schools will use a zero for the numeric grade. 

GRADUATION EXERCISES/DIPLOMAS 

● Students who meet the requirements for a “Standard,” “Scholar,” “Merit,” and 
“Certificate of Completion” shall be eligible to participate in graduation exercises, 
unless the District or local school rules dealing with discipline or rules relative to 
graduation exercise participation are violated.  Any violation is subject to review 
by the school principal for determination of outcome.  Students, who fail to meet 
the minimum credits as prescribed by the School District of Clay County even 
though they have passed the state assessments, shall not participate in graduation 
exercises and shall not receive a “Certificate of Completion.”  Students eligible for 
a “Certificate of Completion” shall participate in graduation exercises.  It is also 
District and State policy that eligible students are: 

 
● Allowed to graduate prior to their cohorts (the 24-credit option and 18-credit 

ACCEL option); 
● Students who graduate prior to their cohorts may continue to participate in school 

and social events and other specifically named events as part of the student’s cohort, 
excluding athletics; 

● Authorize eligible students who graduate from high school mid-year to receive a 
Bright Futures Scholarship award during the spring term. 
 

During all phases of graduation exercises, including rehearsals, Baccalaureate and 
commencement, students participating will not be differentiated as to diploma or 
“Certificate of Completion” except as noted in programs used during scheduled exercises.  
Any reference made relative to the certification of students exiting high school during 
graduation exercises shall be limited to certification of the entire class.  An example of 
wording or a statement that would be acceptable for use in the exercises would be, “Seniors 

Page 186 of 1019

DRAFT



 

66 
 

of the class of ____are now certified as graduates or have completed their high school 
course of study as prescribed by the School District of Clay County and the State of 
Florida.” 
 
“Certificate of Completion” – Students who meet all credit requirements for graduation, 
but fail to meet a state assessment requirement AND/OR the required GPA for graduation 
may be awarded a “Certificate of Completion.”  Basic education students or students served 
under Section 504 of the “Rehabilitation Act of 1973” who receive a “Certificate of 
Completion,” or are eligible to receive a “Certificate of Completion,” may return to school 
for one additional year to meet all graduation requirements and receive a regular high 
school diploma.  The awarding of a “Certificate of Completion” applies to students 
choosing the 24-credit option and the 18 credit ACCEL option.  A student who has not 
completed all requirements for the three-year option, including earning passing scores on 
the state assessments and achieving the required GPA, must be required to meet the 24-
credit option and must attend high school for a fourth year. 
 
It is the District’s policy that in order for a student to receive a diploma from the school in 
which they attended during their senior year must complete all requirements prior to the 
end of the summer school session.  If the requirements are met after the beginning of school 
for the next year that student will receive an “Adult High School Diploma.” 

GRADUATION OPTIONS 
In July 2017, the Legislature amended laws related to the high school graduation 
requirements.  Students entering grade nine in the 2014-2015 school year and forward have 
several diploma options.  They are: 
 

● 24-credit Standard option (with “Scholar” and/or “Merit Designations 
● 18-credit Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning 

(ACCEL) option  
● International Baccalaureate (IB) Diploma curriculum 
● Advanced International Certificate of Education (AICE) curriculum 

 
 All of these graduation options include opportunities to take rigorous academic courses 
designed to prepare students for their future academic and career choices.  Students may 
change their selection of program options (24 credit and 18 credit ACCEL options) at any 
time during grades 9-12.  Please refer to the “Graduation Requirement” charts in order to 
compare programs and the criteria for each type diploma. 
 
A few points to remember when choosing a graduation option: 
 

● Students selecting the IB program are committed to a four-year program.  Should a 
student decide to exit the program prior to completion, they will be placed in the 
24-credit option and must meet all requirements for that option; 

● A student selecting the 18-credit ACCEL program must attend high school as a full-
time student for 3 years.  These students are still eligible for Florida Bright Futures 

Page 187 of 1019

DRAFT



 

67 
 

Scholarships and qualify for acceleration programs (e.g.: AP, Dual Enrollment, 
etc.) if all criteria is met;  High school credits awarded prior to the 9th grade will be 
counted toward the required credits for all graduation options; 

● Students who plan to apply to an out-of-state or private in-state college or university 
and who are interested in the 18 credit ACCEL option should contact those 
institutions as early as possible for specific admissions requirements; 

● Students must complete an online course to meet the graduation requirement 
(unless otherwise specified).  Students in the IB, AICE, or 18 credit ACCEL 
programs are exempt from this graduation requirement.  If an IB, AICE, or 18 credit 
ACCEL student withdraws or is removed from the program, they must fulfill this 
requirement. 

● Students in the AICE program are exempt from Physical Education and Fine and 
Performing Arts requirements.  If an AICE student withdraws or is removed from 
the program, they must fulfill this requirement. 
 

Below is a summary of the graduation requirements for diploma types: 
 
24 Credit Standard Diploma  
This program takes the traditional four years to complete high school and requires students 
to take at least 24 credits in core content areas.  Foreign Language is not required for this 
program, although it is recommended for Florida college preparation and is required for 
admission to Florida’s state universities.  At least one of the courses to meet graduation 
requirements must be online. 
 

● 4 credits in English Language Arts -  major concentration in composition, reading 
for information and literature; Must pass the 10th grade FSA ELA or have a 
concordant score on a standardized test (ACT, SAT); 

● 4 credits in Math – two of which must be Algebra 1 (must pass EOC and have exam 
count as 30% of course grade) and Geometry (must participate in EOC with results 
counting for 30% of final grade in course); two credits may be substituted with 
allowable industry certification that lead to college credit. 

● 3 credits in Science – one of which must be Biology (must participate in EOC with 
results counting for 30% of final grade in course); Two of the 3 credits must have 
lab components; One (1) credit may be substituted with allowable industry 
certification that leads to college credit, Biology excluded; One (1) credit may be 
substituted with an identified rigorous computer science course with a related 
industry certification, Biology excluded;. 

● 3 credits in Social Science – 1 credit in U.S. History (must participate in EOC with 
results counting for 30% of final grade in course); 1 credit in World History; ½ 
credit in Economics with Financial Literacy; ½ credit in American Government; 

● 1 credit in Fine and Performing Arts, Speech and Debate,  or a specified Practical 
Arts course; 

● 1 credit in Physical Education (includes integration of health) 
● 8 credits in electives – elective courses are selected by the student in order to pursue 

a complete educational program and to meet eligibility requirements.  Some 
students will be required to take certain electives based on assessment scores; 

Page 188 of 1019

DRAFT



 

68 
 

● 1 course from the above list must be an online course.  This can be either a ½ or 1 
credit course.  The online course requirement may not apply to a student who has 
an IEP which indicates that an online course would be inappropriate, OR to a 
student who is enrolled in a Florida high school and has less than 1 academic year 
remaining; 

● 24 credits may be earned through equivalent, applied, or integrated or career 
education courses, including work-related internships; 

● The student must have a cumulative GPA of 2.0 or higher on a 4.0 scale. 
 

“Scholar” Designation of Standard Diploma – same as above except for the following 
additions: 
 

● Math – Earn 1 credit in Algebra II; Pass the Geometry EOC; Earn 1 credit in 
Statistics or equally rigorous course; 

● Science – Must Pass the Biology EOC or earn minimum score for college credit on 
AP, AICE, or IB Biology I assessment; must take Chemistry or Physics; Earn 1 
credit in a course that is equally rigorous to Chemistry or Physics; 

● Social Sciences – Must Pass the U.S. History EOC or earn minimum score for 
college credit on AP, AICE, or IB U.S. History assessment; 

● Earn at least 2 credits in a Foreign Language; 
● Earn at least 1 credit in  AP, IB, AICE, or Dual Enrollment course 

 
“Merit” diploma – same as “Standard” diploma except for the following addition: 
 

● Students pursuing a merit designation must attain one or more industry 
certifications. 
 

International Baccalaureate (IB) Diploma 
The IB program is a rigorous pre-university course of study leading to internationally 
standardized tests.  The program’s comprehensive two-year curriculum allows its’ 
graduates to fulfill requirements of many different nations’ educational systems.  Students 
completing IB courses and exams from six areas: 1) Language A1; 2) Language A2; 3) 
Individual and Societies; 4) Experimental Sciences; 5) Mathematics; and 6) Arts and 
Electives.  IB diploma candidates must demonstrate their mastery of course work by 
passing a battery of comprehensive written, and in some cases oral, examinations in the 
six subject groups.  In addition, IB candidates are required to take the course, “Theory of 
Knowledge,” complete 150 hours of community service projects and extra-curricular 
activities, and to write an extended essay.  Students in schools enrolled in IB courses do 
not have to pay to take the exams. 
 

Advanced International Certificate of Education (AICE) Diploma 
AICE is a program that is a rigorous pre-university course of study, leading to 
internationally standardized examinations under the Cambridge International Examination 
program.  AICE diploma candidates must demonstrate their knowledge of the coursework 
by passing a battery of comprehensive written, and in the case of foreign language, oral 
examinations.  AICE students are required to select seven tests, one test from each of four 

Page 189 of 1019

DRAFT



 

69 
 

major subject groups: Math and Science, Languages, Arts and Humanities, Global 
Perspectives and the remaining three examinations from any of the subject areas the 
student chooses with a maximum of two credits coming from the optional category.. 
  
The two schools in Clay County that offers the AICE program are Fleming Island High 
School and Oakleaf High School.  The AICE program is considered an Academy and 
students must be either zoned for those schools in order to participate or among the 10% 
of the total candidates selected that are zoned at other schools.  For more information, 
parents and students should contact those schools. 
 
For an AICE diploma, a candidate must earn the equivalent of seven credits by passing a 
combination of exams at either the full (one-credit) Advanced Subsidiary Level (AS) or 
double (two credits) International Advanced Level (A), with at least one course coming 
from Global Perspectives and one course from each of the other three curriculum 
areas.  Students in schools enrolled in the AICE courses do not have to pay to take the 
exams. 
 
ACCEL (18-credit) Diploma 
Students who choose this option are only required to earn 18 credits.  The core credits 
(Math, Language Arts, Social Sciences, and Science) are the same as the standard diploma 
types.  These students pursuing the ACCEL diploma option do not have to earn a Physical 
Education credit, the online course credit is not required, and only 3 elective credits are 
needed instead of 8 elective credits.  All other requirements are still in effect. 
 

Online Credit Graduation Requirement 
Students may meet this requirement by completing and passing an online high school 
course offered by the following: 

● Florida/Clay Virtual School; 
● A district high school (traditional, franchise, or virtual charter); 
● A postsecondary school as an online dual enrollment course; 
● District virtual instruction programs; and 
● A district middle school (high school level course) 

 
Online course specifications and substitutions: 
 

● Core course or considered electives, earning ½ credit or 1 full credit after course 
successfully completed. 

● Completion of a course in which a student earns a nationally recognized industry 
certification in information technology that is identified on the Career and 
Professional Education Act (CAPE) Industry Certification Funding List pursuant 
to s. 1008.44, F.S., 

● Passage of the information technology certification examination without 
enrollment in or completion of the corresponding courses. 

● Passage of an online content assessment by which the student demonstrates skills 
and competency in locating information and applying technology for instructional 
purposes without enrollment of the corresponding course or courses. 

Page 190 of 1019

DRAFT



 

70 
 

Exceptions and Exemptions to Online Course Graduation Requirement 
The online course requirement may not apply to a student who has an IEP which indicates 
that an online course would be inappropriate OR to a student who transfers into a Florida 
public high school who has less than a year left in high school.  

Students may also satisfy the online course graduation requirement by completing a 
blended learning course.   

Due to the blended model of instruction in secondary intensive reading classes (online and 
offline learning), successful completion of a year-long intensive reading course satisfies 
the online course requirement for students. If a 9-12 grade student passes the FSA ELA 
Assessment re-take or earns a concordant score, (s)he must remain in the intensive reading 
course for the full year in order to satisfy the online course requirement. If a student has 
already met the online course requirement outside of the intensive reading course and 
passes the FSA ELA Assessment or ACT/SAT in the fall, the student may exit intensive 
reading at the semester break. 

Any student in grades 6-12 scoring a level 1 or 2 on FSA Reading Assessment must be 
screened using district-selected assessments. Students who pass the screeners will receive 
reading support within content area classes in order to fulfill their reading remediation 
requirement. Those students who do not pass the screeners must be placed in an intensive 
reading class.   

 
 

 
  

Page 191 of 1019

DRAFT



 

71 
 

 

Graduation Requirements/Diploma Options 
 
Subject Area 

Graduation Requirements of 
24-Credit 

“STANDARD” Diploma 

Graduation Requirements of 
24-Credit 

“SCHOLAR” Designation 

Graduation Requirements of 
24-Credit 

“MERIT” Designation 
English 4 credits in Language Arts 

 
MUST PASS 10th grade FSA ELA assessment    

4 credits in Language Arts 
 
MUST PASS 10th grade FSA ELA 
assessment      
        

4 credits in Language Arts 
 
MUST PASS 10th grade FSA ELA 
assessment      

Mathematics 4 credits:  
 
1 credit must be Algebra I (MUST PASS EOC; 
EOC 30% of grade) 
 
1 credit in Geometry (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
2 additional courses - 2 credits may be 
substituted with allowable industry certification 
courses that lead to college credit. 
 

4 credits: 
 
1 credit must be Algebra I (MUST PASS 
EOC; EOC 30% of grade) 
 
1 credit in Geometry (EOC 30% of grade; 
MUST PASS EOC 
 
1 credit in Algebra II  
 
1 credit in Statistics or equally rigorous 
course. 
 

4 credits: 
 
1 credit must be Algebra I (MUST PASS 
EOC; EOC 30% of grade) 
 
1 credit in Geometry (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
2 additional courses - 2 credits may be 
substituted with allowable industry 
certification courses that lead to college 
credit. 
 

Science 3 credits: 
 
1 credit in Biology 1 (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
2 credits in equally rigorous course, 2 of 3 
credits must have lab. One credit may be 
substituted with allowable industry certification 
leading to college credit. 
 

3 credits: 
 
1 credit in Biology 1 (MUST PASS EOC) 
 
1 credit in Chemistry or Physics 
 
1 credit in equally rigorous course 

3 credits: 
 
1 credit in Biology 1 (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
2 credits in equally rigorous course, 2 of 3 
credits must have lab. One credit may be 
substituted with allowable industry 
certification leading to college credit. 

Social Studies 3 credits: 
 
1 credit in World History 
 
1 credit in US History (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
½ credit in Government 
 
½ credit in Economics with Financial Literacy 
 

3 credits: 
 
1 credit in World History 
 
1 credit in US History (MUST PASS EOC) 
 
½ credit in Government 
 
½ credit in Economics with Financial Literacy 

3 credits: 
 
1 credit in World History 
 
1 credit in US History (EOC 30% of grade) 
 
½ credit in Government 
 
½ credit in Economics with Financial Literacy 

World Language Not required for high school graduation, but 
required for admission into state universities. 

2 credits in the same language or 
demonstrated proficiency in a second 
language. 

Not required for high school graduation, but 
required for admission into state universities. 

Fine and Performing 
Arts, Speech and 
Debate, or Practical Art 

1 credit in Fine or Performing Arts, Speech and 
Debate, or Practical Arts (eligible courses 
specified in Course Code Directory) 
 

1 credit in Fine or Performing Arts, Speech 
and Debate, or Practical Arts (eligible 
courses specified in Course Code Directory) 

1 credit in Fine or Performing Arts, Speech 
and Debate, or Practical Arts (eligible 
courses specified in Course Code Directory) 

Physical Education 1 credit in Physical Education to include the 
integration of health to include the CPR/AED 
training.  
 

1 credit in Physical Education to include the 
integration of health to include the CPR/AED 
training. 

1 credit in Physical Education to include the 
integration of health to include the CPR/AED 
training. 

Electives 8 credits Must earn 1 AP, IB, AICE, or Dual Enrollment 
credit 

8 credits 

On-line Course 
Requirement 

1 course (can be either a semester or yearlong 
course credit; if yearlong course is selected, 
the entire course must be completed to satisfy 
requirement). 
 

1 course (can be either a semester or 
yearlong course credit; if yearlong course is 
selected, the entire course must be 
completed to satisfy requirement). 

1 course (can be either a semester or 
yearlong course credit; if yearlong course is 
selected, the entire course must be 
completed to satisfy requirement). 

Total 24 credits* 
 

24 credits 24 credits* 

Industry Certification 
Requirements 

None required None required Must attain one or more industry 
certifications. 

Grade Point Average 
(GPA) Requirement 

Cumulative GPA of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale 
 

State Assessment 
Requirements 

Students MUST PASS: 
● Grade 10 FSA ELA (or ACT/SAT concordant score) 
● Algebra I EOC (or ACT/SAT concordant score or a comparative score on the PERT for students who entered 

9th grade before 2018-19)
Special Note: 
*For the Standard Diploma and Merit Diploma the 24 credits may be earned through equivalent, applied, or integrated or career education courses including work-related 
internships. 
 

Page 192 of 1019

DRAFT



 

72 
 

GRADUATION REQUIREMENT:  CPR TRAINING 

For students entering the ninth grade in 2017-18 and thereafter, compression only 
cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) and automated external defibrillator (AED) 
instruction will be implemented with the following requirements: 

● The twenty-four (24) credit standard diploma option will require compression only 
CPR and AED instruction. 
 CPR and AED will be taught in the Personal Fitness course, traditionally or 

virtually.  
 Additional instructional opportunities may be provided through another 

appropriate course or school-related activity.  
● The instructional program must meet the following requirements: 

 The instruction will be in compliance with the American Heart Association, 
American Red Cross, or a nationally recognized program based on the most 
current national evidence-based emergency cardiovascular care guidelines 
for compression only CPR.  

 Instruction will include the core cognitive and psychomotor skills 
associated with compression only CPR. 

 Instruction will include appropriate use of an AED which may be taught 
electronically (e.g. video). 

● Schools will provide compression only CPR instruction or will arrange for 
instruction by community-based providers. 
 Compression only CPR/AED instructors are not required to be certified 

teachers. 
 Certified teachers providing compression only CPR/AED instruction are 

not required to be certified trainers of compression only CPR/AED.  
 Students are not required to earn compression only CPR/AED certification 

to successfully complete the instruction. 
 Students who are physically and/or cognitively unable to perform the 

training will be exempt from this requirement.  Schools will make this 
determination in accordance with the student's Individualized Education 
Program (IEP). 
 

The superintendent or designee shall be responsible for ensuring that schools comply with 
the requirements as outlined in this policy.  

HIV/AIDS 

All students are given instruction in computer literacy, metrics, consumer education, 
effects of alcohol and drugs, the importance of kindness to animals, conservation of natural 
resources, child abuse, and an opportunity to enroll in Driver’s Education (if offered).  In 
addition, in grades 7 and 8, instruction will be given through the science courses in 
(required of each school per state law): 

● Personal hygiene 

Page 193 of 1019

DRAFT



 

73 
 

● Substance abuse 
● Human sexuality 
● HIV/AIDS, communicable diseases as per state law 
 

Updated and factual School board adopted curricula related to human sexuality, Human 
Immunodeficiency Virus infection, Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS), and 
other sexually transmitted diseases shall be integrated into science courses for junior high.  
and Personal Fitness for high school. Instruction shall address human reproduction, fetal 
development, pregnancy prevention along with causes, transmission, and prevention 
through materials approved by the School Board. Instruction  in  reproductive  health,  
interpersonal  skills,  and  parenting  to  reduce  teenage pregnancy and to promote healthy 
behavior for all students K-12 shall be taught in accordance with current Florida Statutes. 

A student shall be exempt from these instructional activities provided his/her parent(s) or 
legal guardian files a written request with the school principal. 

The Superintendent, or designee, shall review curriculum frameworks which are prepared 
and distributed by the Florida Department of Education and related to Acquired Immune 
Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS) education.  If the curriculum frameworks are inconsistent 
with locally determined curriculum for AIDS education or are not reflective of local values 
and concerns, the Superintendent shall advise the School Board and provide 
recommendations for instructional activities. 

HOME EDUCATION 

“Home Education Program” is defined in F.S. 1002.41 

Clay County secondary schools, including Clay Virtual Academy, are accredited by the 
AdvancEd.  A student seeking to enter or re-enter a Clay County public school from a 
home educating program or a non-accredited school must meet all entrance requirements 
(state and district) that any other student must meet.  The student will be enrolled at the 
appropriate grade level based on validated academic performance. A student may enroll 
full (K-12) or part-time (6-12) in Clay Virtual Academy and remain homeschooled. 
 

All transfer work from a home education program other than Clay Virtual Academy or 
FLVS or accredited program, will be posted on a “pass/fail” basis and will not be utilized 
in GPA calculation unless the grade is validated by the student taking an approved exam.  
F.S.1006 allows home schooled students to participate in interscholastic extracurricular 
activities of their attendance zoned school.  The home education student must meet the 
same requirements of grades, residency and behavior as required of other students.  They 
must be permitted to enroll in curricular classes that are required of the extra-curricular 
activity (Ex.: ROTC, Band, etc.).   The home education student must register his/her intent 
to participate in extracurricular activities with the school before the beginning of the 
activity in which he or she wishes to participate. The student standards for participation 
in interscholastic extracurricular activities begin with the student’s first semester of 
the 9th grade.  If a student’s cumulative GPA falls below 2.0 in the specified courses, the 

Page 194 of 1019

DRAFT



 

74 
 

student must execute an academic performance contract with the district school board, the 
FHSAA, and the student’s parents.  At a minimum, the contract must require the student 
to attend summer school to improve his/her GPA.  A student must also maintain good 
conduct to remain eligible to participate in interscholastic extracurricular activities. 
 
Home school students enrolled with Clay Virtual Academy have opportunities to 
participate in CVA social activities.  To receive a CVA diploma, students must enroll as 
public school students for their entire senior year and meet District requirements. Should 
homeschooled students wish to graduate from a high school and receive that schools’ 
diploma; they must re-enroll for their entire senior year. 

HONOR ROLL 

The “Honor Roll” status of students will be based on the following criteria: 
 

● The “A” Honor Roll will consist of all “A’s” on or above grade level; 
● The “A/B” Honor Roll will consist of all “A’s or B’s” on or above grade level; 
● Unweighted grades are utilized for Honor Roll selection; 
● Conduct grades do not count toward Honor Roll determination 

INTERIM REPORTS 

Parents or adult students must be notified in writing at a time during a grading period when 
it is apparent that the student may fail or is doing “Unsatisfactory” work in any course or 
grade assignment.   It  is  imperative  that  contact  take  place  to  allow  for  an  opportunity  
to  use intervention strategies to correct deficiencies in academic areas.  An 
acknowledgement of such notification should be obtained, if possible. 

INTERSCHOLASTIC PARTICIPATION 

To be eligible for interscholastic competition, a student must meet the following criteria: 
 

● Have a cumulative 2.0 GPA on a 4.0 scale.  Students who fall below the 2.0 
requirement will remain ineligible for the next entire semester; 

● The student must be in good standing with the school based on school and District 
policies. 

● The student’s eligibility is also contingent upon meeting the policies established in 
the district’s Code of Student Conduct.  

● See School Board Policy 4.43 for complete eligibility information.
 

Summer school subjects shall be included in the calculation of the students’ GPA of the 
previous semester for participation in extracurricular activities during the first semester of 
each school year.  Seventh (7th) grade students shall be eligible for participating during the 
first semester provided they were regularly promoted from the 6th grade. 
 

Page 195 of 1019

DRAFT



 

75 
 

OFFENSES AGAINST INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

Florida Statute provides that, “whoever willfully, knowingly, and without authorization 
modifies data,  programs,  or  supporting  documentation  residing  or  existing  internal  or  
external  to  a computer, computer system, or computer network commits an offense against 
intellectual property.” 
 
Except as otherwise provided in this section, an offense against intellectual property is a 
felony of the third degree.  If the offense is committed for the purpose of devising or 
executing any scheme or artifice to defraud or to obtain any property, then the offender is 
guilty of a felony of the second degree. 
 

In addition, it is unlawful for any individual to knowingly and willingly taking an online 
course or examination on behalf of another person for compensation.  Any individual that 
violates this provision commits a misdemeanor of the second degree.  FS1008.24 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

Clay County shall use the DOE prepared student performance as the approved curriculum 
for Secondary Education, including updates and changes as received from DOE.  No 
courses shall be offered which are not state approved unless a special course is piloted 
under state guidelines and with School Board approval. 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

The 2008 Legislature passed Senate bill 610 requiring each district to include the 
availability of one-on-one counseling to students regarding the benefits of physical 
education.  Beginning in 2009-10 the equivalent of one class period per day of physical 
education for one semester (minimum standard) of each year for students enrolled in grades 
6-8 will occur.  The physical education requirement shall be waived (grades 6-8) for a 
student who meets one of the following criteria (unless the child meets one of the waiver 
criteria listed below, he/she will be enrolled in physical education while in grades 6-8): 
 

● The student is enrolled or required to enroll in a remedial course 
● The student’s parent indicates in writing to the school one of the following: 

 The parent requests that the student enroll in another course from among 
those designated by the school district, or 

 The student is participating in physical activities outside the school day 
which are equal to or in excess of the mandated requirement. 

PROMOTION AND RETENTION 

Any pupil who has been retained may be assigned during the next school year to the next 
higher grade if the principal has documentation that standards have been met and that the 
student will be able to benefit from instruction at the high grade.  Normally, this assignment 
occurs at the end of the semester, if such an assignment results in the child transferring to 
another school.  Regarding the placement, principals must document through a variety of 

Page 196 of 1019

DRAFT



 

76 
 

means that the student has met state standards.  This should be done by reviewing the 
academic history of the student, looking at assessments and applying remediation/grade 
recovery processes established by Clay County.  In no case, shall the move be initiated 
until the principal of the receiving school has been notified and agrees with the 
documentation.  If the receiving principal questions the transfer, the two principals should 
meet to discuss any questions or concerns.  If requested by either principal, a district review 
may be used to determine proper placement of the student in question.  The 
recommendation should be made in writing to the district school superintendent.  
Documentation and recommendation will then be forwarded to the Chief Academic Officer 
for review. In addition, school personnel should utilize all resources to achieve parent 
understanding and cooperation regarding a student’s grade placement. 
 
All students who appear to be having difficulty meeting promotion requirements should be 
evaluated carefully by the professional staff, considered for Multi-Tiered System of 
Support (MTSS).  Students who are to be retained must receive counseling services and 
may be recommended for evaluation by specialists if the principal and teacher(s) feel such 
a referral would benefit the child.  Any child in middle or junior high school, who has been 
retained one year and is recommended for retention a second year, is to be referred for an 
evaluation by appropriate specialists, psychologists, etc. 
 
Students who do not satisfactorily achieve established objectives for the grade or course 
which they are assigned may be assigned to the same grade for the next school year or 
given an alternative assignment.  Student’s level of proficiency in the areas of reading, 
writing, science, and mathematics must be reviewed and the student’s progression must be 
based, in part, upon this proficiency.  Students not meeting desired levels of proficiency as 
determined by the District and/or as evidenced by the results of state mandated tests are to 
be provided remedial instruction designed to foster their progress toward mastery of 
essential concepts and required standards.  If mastery is not achieved, remediation may be 
provided through, but not limited to, one or more of the following: 
 

● Summer school course work or intensive skills development; 
● Extended day or school year services/academic tutoring; 
● Parent tutorial programs/ 
● Mentoring 
● Contracted academic services (previously approved); 
● Modified curriculum; 
● Exceptional Student Education (ESE) services; 
● Class size reduction; 
● Use of educational software (COMPASS) 
● Suspension of other curriculum offerings in areas other than reading, writing, 

English and math, or in those subjects specifically required for graduation. 
 
Retention  of  students  must  be  considered  if  the  student  has  failed  to  master  approved 
performance standards and has been provided remedial instruction and upon reassessment 
falls below determined cut-off points on a District measure of assessment or on the state 
assessments in reading, writing, science and mathematics.  A student may also be retained 

Page 197 of 1019

DRAFT



 

77 
 

within an intensive program that is different from the previous year’s program and takes 
into consideration the student’s learning style.  Children should be retained as little as 
possible.  Students must not be retained without documentation that remediation was 
provided in a timely and comprehensive manner. No student may be assigned to a grade 
level based solely on age or other factors that constitute social promotion. 
 
Upon subsequent evaluation, if the documented deficiency has not been remediated, the 
student may be retained.  Each student who does not meet the minimum performance  
expectations  defined  by  the  commissioner  of  Education  for  the  statewide assessment 
tests in reading, writing, science, and mathematics must continue remedial or supplemental 
instruction until the expectations are met or the student graduates from high school or is 
not subject to compulsory school attendance.  An appropriate alternative placement must 
be considered for a student who has been retained two or more years. 
 
Each district must annually report to the parent or legal guardian of each student the 
progress of the student towards achieving state and district expectations for proficiency in 
reading, writing, and mathematics.  The district must report to the parent or legal guardian 
the student’s results on each statewide assessment.  The evaluation of each student’s 
progress must be based upon the student’s classroom work, observations, tests, district and 
state assessments, and other relevant information.  Progress reporting must be provided to 
the parent or legal guardian, in writing, in a format adopted by the district School Board. 
 
In general, the procedures outlined in this Student Progression Plan apply to all students 
with disabilities.  An IEP serves as the basis for decisions regarding retention and 
promotion. 
 
Under most circumstances, students will complete grade groupings within a set time frame. 
However, the principal may authorize that a student be retained a second time in any one 
of the grade groupings. 

PROMOTION AND PLACEMENT OF JUNIOR HIGH STUDENTS 

In order to be promoted to the next higher grade within the junior high, a student must 
successfully complete Language Arts, Mathematics, Science, Social Studies and one 
additional course for a total of five (5) subjects.  Existing state student performance 
standards shall be the basis for each course. Appropriate procedures shall be followed by 
the classroom teacher to continuously and carefully observe student performance 
throughout the school year to determine if expected achievement levels and/or course 
performance standards are being met.  Under no circumstances should student performance 
be judged solely on the basis of a single test. 
 
The areas of reading, writing, mathematics and science must be assessed with the use of 
District performance measures, testing, teacher observation, classroom assignments and 
state assessment measures.  Remediation measures must be taken and documented in the 
student’s PMP.  No student may be assigned to a grade level based solely on age or other 

Page 198 of 1019

DRAFT



 

78 
 

factors that constitute social promotion (See P. 83 “Summer School – Junior High” on more 
information pertaining to promotion from grade level to grade level at the junior high.) 
 

In order to be promoted to grade 9, Junior High students MUST successfully complete the 
following during their 6th, 7th and 8th grade years: 
 

● 3 courses in English Language Arts 
● 3 courses in Mathematics (Successful completion of a high school level Algebra 1 

or Geometry course is not contingent upon the student’s performance on the 
statewide, standardized end-of-course (EOC) assessment.  However, to earn high 
school credit, the junior high student must take the EOC and pass the course, with 
the assessment constituting 30% of the final course grade.) 

● 3 courses in Social Studies (one of which must be, at a minimum, a one-semester 
Civics education course that includes the roles and responsibilities of federal, state 
and local governments, the structures and functions of the legislative, executive and 
judicial branches of government; and the meaning and significance of historic 
documents, such as the Articles of Confederation, the Declaration of Independence 
and the U.S. constitution.  In addition, this course includes a statewide, standardized 
EOC that constitutes 30% of the student’s final grade as required under s. 1008.22, 
F.S..  A middle grades student who transfers into the state’s public school system 
from an out-of-country, an out-of-state, a private school, or a home education 
program after the beginning of the second term/semester of grade “8” is not 
required to meet the civics education requirement for promotion IF the student’s 
transcript documents passage of three courses in social studies or two year-long 
courses in social studies that include coverage of civics education.) 

● 3 courses in Science (Successful completion of a high school level Biology 1 course 
is not contingent upon the student’s performance on the statewide, standardized 
EOC assessment required under s. 1008.22.  However, to earn a credit for this 
course, the student must take the Biology 1 EOC, which constitutes 30% of the 
student’s final course grade, and earn a passing grade in the course.) 

 

PROMOTION AND PLACEMENT OF HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS 

Grade level designation for high school students will be determined as 
follows: 
 

● Following  completion  of  one  year  designated  as  a  9th   grader,  the  student  will  
be designated as a 10th grader in the computer system.  This designation does not 
guarantee that the student has successfully completed the traditional 6-credits per 
school year; 

● Following  completion  of  one  year  designated  as  a  10th   grader,  the  student  
will  be designated as a 11th grader in the computer system.  This designation does 
not guarantee that the student has successfully completed the traditional 12-credits 
for two years of high school enrollment; 

Page 199 of 1019

DRAFT



 

79 
 

● Following the completion of one year designated as a 11th grader, the student must 
have completed 18-credits OR 21-credits at the end of the 1st semester of the 
students fourth year enrolled at a high school and have a 2.0 cumulative GPA in 
order to be classified as a 12th grader (Senior) and take part in Senior oriented events 
(Prom, Grad Bash, and any other school determined Senior activities) 

 
According to state statutes, students are assigned to a cohort class at the beginning of each 
year enrolled at a high school.  This cohort status determines the graduation requirements 
that must be met by that student.  Students will be regularly notified as to their “credits 
earned” status towards graduation. The student will need to acquire the appropriate number 
of credits based on the graduation option chosen in order to be on track to graduate in four 
years with their 9th grade cohort.  Grade recovery opportunities exist in order to help 
maintain student’s progress towards graduation. 
 
Students age 18 or older wishing to return to school after withdrawing may petition the 
school for placement.  The principal and/or designee will review the reasons for return 
given by the student and family.  The principal will make the final determination based on 
the following requirements: 
 

● The student has accumulated at least 16 credits; 
● The student has a probable chance of graduating within the academic year; 
● An  agreement  between  the  student  and  school  concerning  attendance, behavior  

and school performance is agreed upon. 
 
If the principal does not agree to the conditions or the student does not meet the criteria, 
Adult Education will serve the educational needs of the student. 
 
As in state statute, students who received a “Certificate of Completion” may return for a 
5th year of high school in order to obtain their Standard Diploma. 

READING AND MATH REMEDIATION 

Reading: All 7th through 10th grade students scoring a Level 1 or Level 2 on the reading 
portion of the FSA will be screened for intensive reading placement.  Screening includes 
the use of the Achieve 3000 Spring Benchmark results, as well as a district comprehension 
screener and teacher recommendations. Students qualifying for intensive reading will be 
placed in one class period of reading using a blended model of teacher instruction and 
computer based practice. Students not qualifying for intensive reading placement will 
receive reading support in the content area classes.  Students in grades 11 and 12 who 
score a Level 1 or 2 on FSA retakes and who have not earned a concordant score on the 
ACT or SAT will be placed in an intervention course focusing on ACT/SAT preparation 
and reading remediation. If a student passes the FSA retake or earns a concordant score, 
(s)he may exit the intensive reading program at the end of the first semester. (Note: The 
Instructional Decision Tree for intensive reading placement can be found on the district 
website.) 
 

Page 200 of 1019

DRAFT



 

80 
 

Math:  Students in grades 7 and 8, who score an achievement level 1 on FSA, will be 
placed in standard math classes and will not qualify for advanced math programs.  Eighth 
grade students scoring an achievement level 1 on the pre-algebra FSA will be given 
priority for Algebra 1A/1B upon entering high school.  As a mandatory Florida math 
graduation requirement, students in Algebra 1 and Geometry are required to take an “End-
of-Course” exam.  Students not scoring an achievement level 3 or higher will be placed in 
a Liberal Arts Math course.  Secondary schools will also be utilizing the Edgenuity online 
program to remediate course work, as a virtual tutor, and credit recovery.  Additional 
remedial options are available in all Clay County secondary schools through the Guidance 
Department. 

SCHEDULE CHANGES 

When changing a student’s schedule after the first ten days of school, leveling must be 
within the same specific subject.  An example of this is if a student requests a schedule 
change and they are enrolled in Algebra Honors, Algebra 1 would be the most appropriate 
change.  Grades earned will be transferred as part of the leveling process.  Any withdrawals 
after the first quarter would require a withdraw “F/0” for the 2nd grading period and the 
semester exam.  Students who withdraw with an “F” from a course may enter a semester 
course at the semester change if space is available. 
 
In the case where a student has been improperly placed in a class, and this has been verified 
by the teacher, then movement to another more appropriate subject area class is in order 
with the approval of the principal.  This should take place before the end of the first grading 
period so the student may be placed in an appropriate course.  Current grades should be 
transferred to average in with grades earned in the new course.  If inappropriate placement 
is determined prior to the end of the first interim reporting period and no appropriate class 
is available for reassignment, then the grade given to the student for the course would be 
a “Withdrawn: Passing.”  The grade would then be posted as no credit just as we do with 
course forgiveness. 
 
Students taking courses through Clay Virtual Academy or FLVS should review the 
“Student Contact and Drop” policy. 

CLAY VIRTUAL ACADEMY - STUDENT CONTACT AND DROP POLICY 

Only through continuous communication can students be successful in an online course.  
Within each course the instructor outlines the weekly minimum work requirements.  It is 
essential that the student and instructors maintain regular contact.  To ensure that our 
students are aware of this commitment, the four-part process below will be followed: 
 

● If the student does not submit the expected numbers of assignment(s) within a 
period of seven (7) consecutive days, the student and parent(s) will receive a phone 
call from the instructor.  During the call, the student, parent(s), and teacher will 
work to resolve any issues that prevent the student from submitting an acceptable 
number of assignments each week. 

Page 201 of 1019

DRAFT



 

81 
 

● If the student does not respond to the phone call by submitting assignments within 
seven  (7)  days  or  does  not  continue  to  submit  an  acceptable  number  of 
assignments each week, the instructor will send an email to the student/parent to 
remind them of the importance of submitting work and detailing the withdrawal 
process, if necessary. 

● If the student does not respond by submitting assignments within fourteen (14) days 
of the initial phone call, CVA will assume that the student does not intend to remain 
in the course, and the student will be administratively dropped from the course. 

● An  official  final  grade  report  will  be  emailed  to  the  student.   If the course 
withdrawal date falls within the grace period, a grade of “W” will be issued. After 
the grace period, a grade of “WP or WF” (or failing grade (if over 50% completed) 
will be issued to their school transcripts. 

 

Students from outside Clay County may enroll in CVA full or part time online programs.   

SEMESTER EXAMS 

All students in grades 9-12 shall take semester exams.  The School Board approved exam 
exemption procedures for seniors only is as follows: 
 

● Exam exemptions are limited to seniors only; 
● All seniors in year-long courses with a 1st  semester average of “B” or better and a 

“B” average or better for 3rd  and 4th  quarters averaged together, will be exempt 
from taking those exams given at the end of the 2nd semester.   Courses that are a 
semester in length are not exempt at any time; 

● Attendance is not a consideration under the current exemption policy 
● Exam values are the same for the current school year 
● Semester exams will not be given early. 

 

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

Junior High: Students with exceptional ability may be enrolled in credit earning courses 
at the high school with the approval of the school principals and the parent.  The parent 
shall assume the responsibility for transporting the student between schools, where 
appropriate.  Such enrollment must be limited to courses which are congruent with the 
beginning or ending of the school day, but not both.  Student’s grades and credits shall be 
awarded as received by the school where the student is regularly enrolled. 
 
Special classes/programs: The district will employ special programs designed to assist 
students in meeting the necessary credits and the 2.0 GPA required for graduation.  
Appropriate approaches not already covered in this plan will include, but shall not be 
limited to, special counseling tutorial programs, help and/or homework sessions, skills 
classes and special assistance to obtain a high school equivalency diploma when all 
requirements for graduation have been met except for the attainment of a 2.0 cumulative 
GPA. 

Page 202 of 1019

DRAFT



 

82 
 

SUMMER SCHOOL 

Summer school is an extension of the school year for students who attended Clay County 
schools.  Students who did not attend Clay County schools are not eligible for the summer 
program unless they enrolled prior to the beginning of the 4th nine-week period or 
approved for the HOPE Scholarship Program (see the “Student Code of Conduct for more 
information about this program).  High School Students may earn up to two full-credits 
during the summer regardless of the vehicle(s) used to acquire that credit. 
 
Junior High Summer School: “Conditional Promotion.” 
For a 6th or 7th grader who has failed two subjects, or ESE students with IEP 
recommendations, they may take one (1) of the courses during the traditional “Summer 
School” period.  The other failed course must be completed either through a virtual 
program or during the next summer school offering. Junior High students may receive 
grade forgiveness for courses in which they received a “C,” “D,” or “F.” If math is one of 
the failed courses, it must be taken during the immediate summer school session.  An 8th 

grader failing two subjects must have all subjects successfully completed prior to enrolling 
in the 9th grade.  The “Conditional Promotion” must take into consideration the following 
factors in addition to the completion of the failed courses: 
 

● Whether or not the student has been previously retained; 
● The student is older than the average age of the other students; 
● It will be in the best interest of the student to receive a “Conditional Promotion”; 
● There is evidence that the student has the ability to be successful at the next grade 

level. 
 

If it is the determination of the Principal to not approve a “Conditional Promotion” for a 
student, the student will be recommended for retention.  An 8th grade student must have 
passing grades for all core content subjects for 6th-8th grade in order to be promoted to 9th 
grade, therefore, “Conditional Promotion” does not apply.  Students failing 3 or more 
courses are automatically retained. 
 
High School Summer School: 
Students may take ½ credit or up to 2 credits during the summer period.  All coursework 
for grade forgiveness must be completed prior to the next school year.  High school 
students may take courses that they received a “D” or “F” in so as to earn credit and to 
raise their GPA’s.  Courses for new or original credit are limited and determined on an 
annual basis by the District. 
 
Summer programs by other districts which assign credit may be reviewed by Clay County 
staff to determine appropriateness of assigning local credit.  Prior approval should be 
received before attempting summer courses at other schools/districts. 

TERMINATION OF SCHOOL PLACEMENT AT AGE 16 
A student who attains the age of 16 years during the school year is not subject to 

Page 203 of 1019

DRAFT



 

83 
 

compulsory school attendance beyond the date upon which he or she attains that age if the 
student files a formal declaration of intent to terminate school enrollment with the 
District.  The declaration must acknowledge that terminating school enrollment is likely 
to reduce the student’s earning potential and must be signed by the student and the 
student’s parent. 
The following steps must also be taken: 

● The school shall notify the student’s parent of receipt of the student’s declaration 
of intent to terminate school enrollment. 

● The student’s guidance counselor or other school personnel shall conduct an exit 
interview with the student to determine the reasons for the student’s decision to 
terminate school enrollment and actions that could be taken to keep the student in 
school. 

● The student shall be informed of opportunities to continue his or her education in a 
different environment, including, but not limited to, adult education and GED test 
preparation. 

● The student shall complete a survey to provide data on student reasons for 
terminating enrollment and actions taken by schools to keep students enrolled. 

TRANSFERRING STUDENT  

Students transferring from one school to another shall have the grade assigned by the 
departing school and by the receiving school if registered there for 15 or more days.  If a 
student is transferring to a school in another district at a time near the end of the school 
year and the school they are transferring to, has already completed the school year, it will 
be the responsibility of our “sending school” to use good judgment for the benefit of the 
student involved.  Usually no more than 20 school days should apply.  The student’s grades 
should be closed out and credit posted. Virtual students taking FLVS content courses 
receive grades of “WF” or “WP” when transferring prior to course completion per FLVS 
policy.  The principal has the authority to waive class exams (this does not include “End-
of Course” exams) in order to close out a student’s grades. 

Transferring Student and Graduation: students who enter a Clay County school at the 11th 

or 12th grade level from out-of-state or from a foreign country shall not be required to 
spend additional time in the high school in order to meet the high school course/credits 
requirements IF the student has met all course/credit requirements of the school district, 
state, or country from which he or she is transferring.  In addition to credit requirements 
to receive a standard high school diploma, a transfer student must earn a 2.0 GPA, pass 
the Algebra I EOC OR have passed an equivalent Algebra I EOC from the transferring 
state or county, pass the 10th Grade FSA ELA OR receive the concordant scores on the 
SAT or ACT identified by the Department of Education. Such students who are not 
proficient in English should receive immediate and intensive instruction in English 
language acquisition.   

 
Transfer Credit Policies and Guidelines: The “State Uniform Transfer of High School 
Credits Rule” states that credits and grades earned and offered for acceptance shall be 
based on official transcripts and shall be accepted at face value subject to validation if 

Page 204 of 1019

DRAFT



 

84 
 

required by the receiving school’s accreditation.  The rule does not require that the 
transferring school be accredited in order for the credits to be accepted at face value.  The 
rule states that the requested grades or credits will be accepted if presented as part of an 
official transcript.  An official transcript is a document that is sent directly from the 
administrator of the school where the credit is earned to the receiving school.  An official 
transcript shall be sent by mail or electronically signed by a school administrator, be on 
school letterhead, and/or be embossed with the school’s seal.  An official transcript should 
clearly identify the school, the student, course number, date the course was taken and the 
credit earned and grade in each course. 

 
Examples of unofficial transcripts are: hand delivered by the student or parent, delivered 
to the designated school administrator in an opened envelope, or is on plain paper.  The 
rule, therefore, precludes  districts  and  individual  schools  from  placing  any  additional  
requirements  or procedures on the transfer of high school credits. 

If validation of the official transcript is deemed necessary for accreditation purposes by the 
receiving school or the student does not possess an official transcript, or if the student is a 
home education student, credits shall be validated through performance during the first 
grading period that the student is enrolled in the school.  A student transferring into a school 
shall be placed at the appropriate sequential course level and in order to receive credit, a 
student should have a minimum grade point average of 2.0 at the end of the first grading 
period.  If a student does not meet this requirement, they shall have their credits validated 
using the “Alternative Validation Procedure” listed below: 

● Portfolio evaluation by the Superintendent or designee; 
● Written recommendation by a Florida certified teacher selected by the parent and 

approved by the principal; 
● Demonstrated performance in courses taken through dual Enrollment or at other 

private schools; 
● Demonstrated proficiencies on nationally-normed standardized subject area 

assessments; 
● Demonstrated proficiencies on the FSA ELA; 
● Written review of the criteria utilized for a given subject provided by the former 

school.  Student must be provided at least ninety (90) days from date of transfer to 
prepare for assessments outlined in the “Alternative Validation procedure” of this 
rule, if required. 

 
If the “Alternative Validation procedure” is used, parents are obligated to the findings of 
the procedure.  A school has until the end of the first grading period in which the student 
is enrolled to validate an official transcript.  After this point, all credits and grades are to 
be accepted at face value. 

TRANSFER STUDENT PLACEMENT (Military Dependent Children) 

CCSB participates in the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military 
Children, the purpose of which is to remove barriers to educational success imposed on 
children of military families because of frequent moves and deployment of their parents. 

Page 205 of 1019

DRAFT



 

85 
 

The district will implement the requirements listed in FS 1000.36. 
 

In order to facilitate on-time graduation for transferring military children enrolled any time 
in high school, as specified in section F.S. 1000.36, Article VII the following provisions 
apply: 
 

● A school district must waive specific courses required for graduation if similar 
coursework has been satisfactorily completed in another school district or shall 
provide reasonable justification for denial. If a waiver is not granted to a student 
who would qualify to graduate from a school of the sending state, the school of the 
receiving state must provide an alternative means of acquiring the required course 
work so that graduation may occur on time. 

● States must accept exit or end-of-course (EOC) exams required for graduation 
from a school in the sending state. 

● If a transitioning student who transfers in his or her senior year is ineligible to 
graduate from a school in the receiving state after all alternatives have been 
considered, both the sending and receiving state schools must ensure the receipt of 
the diploma from the sending state school if the student meets the graduation 
requirements of the sending state school. The student may participate in all local 
graduation activities. 

 
Dependent children of active duty military personnel who otherwise meet the eligibility 
criteria for special academic programs offered through public schools shall be given first 
preference for admission to such programs even if the program is being offered through a 
public school other than the school to which the student would generally be assigned. If 
such a program is offered through a public school other than the school to which the student 
would generally be assigned, the parent of the student must assume responsibility for 
transporting the student to that school. For purposes of this subsection, special academic 
programs include advanced studies programs, dual enrollment, Advanced Placement (AP), 
Advanced International Certificate of Education (AICE), and International Baccalaureate 
(IB). 
 

HOPE Scholarship Program students follow these same policies (see the “Student Code of 
Conduct for more information about this program). 

CHANGE OF CLASS/COURSES OF CLAY COUNTY STUDENTS 

A parent may request a transfer of their child(ren) to another classroom teacher within the 
same grade or course at any time during the year.  The parent may not, however, choose a 
specific classroom teacher.  At the time of the request, the school must approve or deny the 
request within 2 weeks.  If the request is denied, the school will notify the parent and 
specify the reasons for the denial. F.S. 1003.3101 

Procedures Concerning Request for Transfer of Students: 

Page 206 of 1019

DRAFT



 

86 
 

● Parent makes a written request to the school Principal to transfer their child(ren) 
to another teacher (must be in the same grade level and/or course); Prior to 
principal consideration, a parent teacher conference must take place; 

● The Principal considers the request and notifies the parent within two weeks.  The 
Principal must consider:  
 Class size 
 Grade and course 
 Any variable that would impact the student or class that is being considered 

(ex., discipline issues, teacher input) 
● If approved, parent and teacher are notified; 
● If not approved, parent is notified with explanation given. 

 

VALEDICTORIAN AND SALUTATORIAN RECOGNITION 

When a school awards Valedictorian and Salutatorian status, the following criteria must be 
met: 
 

● Senior class rank (Valedictorian & Salutatorian inclusive) shall be based on a 
weighted grade point average on all courses taken in grades 9-12 including virtual 
courses. Calculations of GPAs for valedictorian and salutatorian shall be made at 
the conclusion of the eighth semester. If virtual grades are not reported to the school 
prior to the last day of senior exams, that course should not be included in the 
determination of valedictorian(s) and salutatorian(s)." 

● A high school transfer student shall be given quality point weighting for any course 
acceptable for transfer if that course is deemed comparable to a course in Clay 
County that receives a quality point weighting. All courses that carry weight on the 
grade point average should be labeled on the transfer student record as honors, dual 
enrollment, advanced, advanced placement, accelerated, or some other description 
that denotes an honors level class. The principal or designee shall make the 
determination as to which transfer courses qualify for quality points. 

● Students graduating from a three-year 18-Credit Graduation Program are eligible 
for valedictorian and salutatorian status. The conclusion of the eighth semester is 
the deadline for an 18-credit graduation program student to select to graduate and 
compete for valedictorian or salutatorian status, or continue to complete the 24-
credit diploma.  

● A student who transfers to or within Clay County during the last year prior to 
graduation is not eligible to be named sole Valedictorian or Salutatorian. However, 
that student is eligible to be Co-Valedictorian or Co-Salutatorian based on the 
following criteria:  
 If ranked first in the senior class based on the cumulative weighted GPA, 

the transfer student would be named Co-Valedictorian along with the 
second ranked student. The third-ranked student would be named 
Salutatorian. 

 If ranked second in the senior class, the transfer student would be named 
Co-Salutatorian along with the third-ranked student 

Page 207 of 1019

DRAFT



 

87 
 

VOLUNTARY SERVICE HOURS  
Voluntary Service Hours are required for all Bright Futures Scholarship Awards - Florida 
Academic Scholars, Florida Medallion Scholars,  Gold Seal Vocational Scholars and Gold 
Seal CAPE Scholars : 100, 75 and 30 hours respectively. Students may begin logging and 
documenting volunteer service hours the summer before the student enters ninth 
grade.  Service hours may include, but are not limited to, a business or governmental 
internship, work for a nonprofit community service organization, or activities on behalf of 
a candidate for public office. These service hours are not a Florida or school district 
requirement for graduation with a standard high school diploma. 
 
For student who are attempting to receive school community service hours for an activity, 
below are the district guidelines: 

● Volunteer service is defined as “assisting where needed in a social issue where the 
student’s service directly addresses a need in the school or community in areas such 
as health, education, environment, public safety, etc.; 

● Volunteer service activities should receive prior approval from the school’s 
designated high school personnel (typically, the student’s high school counselor) to 
ensure that credit will be awarded to the student; 

● Activities performed at school should be designed to meet greater needs in the areas 
of health, education, environment, or public safety identified within the 
school.  The benefits of the activities should be extended to individuals or families 
in need, not to the student’s own family; 

● Volunteer service activities must be unpaid.  The student must not be compensated 
with money, goods, or services for their time; 

● Volunteer service activities must be rendered for “not-for-profit” organizations or 
agencies; 

● The student may engage in direct, indirect, or advocacy service activities. 
Definitions and examples of those activities are: 
 “Direct Service” involves face-to-face contact with service 

recipients.  Examples include tutoring other students, serving meals at a 
homeless shelter or working with the elderly in a nursing home; 

 “Indirect Service” involves performing a service without having face-to-
face contact with the recipients.  Usually, resources are channeled to or 
through an organization to help alleviate a problem.  Examples include food 
and clothing drives, marathons, fundraisers, or environmental projects; 

 “Advocacy” involves educating others about a particular social problem 
with a goal of eliminating the cause of that problem.  Examples include 
writing letters to legislators or editors, preparing and displaying posters to 
an identified audience, writing and performing informative plays, or 
creating educational materials for other target groups; 

● Hours spent in volunteer service activities must be verified by a site supervisor. The 
appropriate documentation on business letterhead must be signed by the site 
supervisor.  Business letterhead can also be attached to the completed Clay County 
Volunteer Service Documentation Form; 

 

Page 208 of 1019

DRAFT



 

88 
 

Activities that MAY NOT be approved include, but are not limited to, the following: 

● Any activity that violates federal or state laws, which prohibit discrimination on the 
basis or face, creed, sex, age, color, national origin, marital status, sexual 
orientation, or disability; 

● Co-curricular activities that are course requirements; 
● Hours submitted after graduation; 
● Fostering of animals in a location other than the shelter associated with a 

government agency or non-profit organization; 
● Any activity whose main purpose is to increase the amount of revenue for a private, 

for-profit business or to generate new revenue for that business; 
● Any activity that replaced a paid staff worker of the agency or institution that the 

student volunteers with; 
● Any activity rendered as a prerequisite for future student employment; 
● Any activity that is performed as a result of disciplinary action taken by the school 

or courts; 
● Any activity whose main purpose is to help prepare and/or participate in the 

performance of a religious service or religious educational activity UNLESS the 
hours are spent addressing a social problem (examples may include:  Habitat for 
Humanity, A community-wide summer Vacation Bible School, etc.); 

● Attendance at self-improvement workshops or conferences; 
● Participation as an athlete in school sponsored athletics; 
● Participation as an assistant or trainer at a school-based sports training camp; 
● Participation in regularly scheduled school drama, band, or chorus performances, 

festivals, or competitions. 

WEIGHTED GRADES 

Weighted courses earn additional quality points toward the GPA calculation.  The 
traditional 4.0 scale (A = 4, B = 3, C = 2, D = 1, F = 0) is used for athletic eligibility, 
promotion, Bright Futures, etc.  Rank in class is the primary purpose for utilizing a 
weighted grading scale.  Weighted courses include: “Level 3” Career and Technical 
Education courses, Dual enrollment, IB, AP and AICE courses, all Honors level courses, 
Foreign Language courses for year 3 and above, Chemistry II, Physics II and Gifted 
Studies. 

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION 

 

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION 
Programs are available to students determined eligible for exceptional student education 
(3-21 years of age) as described in the Exceptional Student Education Policies and 
Procedures document which is approved by the Florida Department of Education and the 
School Board of Clay County.  Referrals to the Student Services Team may be initiated by 
school personnel or parents.  Special provisions regarding exemption from general 

Page 209 of 1019

DRAFT



 

89 
 

statewide assessment are addressed in the student’s Individual Educational Plan.  Gifted 
education, for qualified students, is available K-12.   

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES AND 
TYPES OF DIPLOMAS 

 
The selection of a diploma option must take place at an Individual Educational Plan (IEP) 
meeting during the student’s eighth grade school year or during the school year prior to the 
student becoming age 14, whichever comes first.  Since the selection of a diploma option 
will have a significant impact upon the student’s high school curriculum, the IEP team will 
collaborate with the student’s parents/guardians to select the most appropriate diploma 
option. The IEP team will discuss specific course and credit requirements for each diploma 
option in order to make an informed decision.  The diploma option selected at the IEP 
meeting is noted on the IEP.  At each annual IEP meeting thereafter, the academic 
performance of the student in relation to the diploma option selected shall be addressed 
and the diploma recommendation reviewed.  If, at any time, a change to the diploma option 
is recommended or requested, the change must be approved by the parent and is subject to 
verification of appropriateness by an independent reviewer. Copies of each IEP shall be 
given to the parents. 

STANDARD DIPLOMA 

ELIGIBILITY 

All students with disabilities who entered 9th grade in 2014-15 must meet the requirements 
for a standard diploma in order to graduate.  Note: Only students with disabilities who 
enrolled in grade nine (9) or higher prior to the 2014-15 school year and had an Individual 
Education Plan indicating a selection of special diploma may earn a special diploma rather 
than a standard diploma.  

REQUIREMENTS FOR GENERAL STANDARDS DIPLOMAS 

The standard diploma will be awarded to any student who has satisfactorily completed the 
high school program and has met all local and state requirements for graduation.  The 
standard diploma will be awarded to students who: 

● Earn a passing grade on the required statewide assessment(s) or meet the waiver 
requirements. 

● Successfully complete the required credits in grades 9-12. Students with disabilities 
must earn required credits in district approved education courses listed in the 
Course Code Directory in order to meet the credit requirements for a standard 
diploma. Students with disabilities may meet the elective credit requirements by 
earning credits in basic, vocational or exceptional student education courses as 
allowed by the standard diploma option selected. 

● Attain the same cumulative grade point average required in the general education 
section of Student Progression Plan. 

 

Page 210 of 1019

DRAFT



 

90 
 

WAIVER OF STATEWIDE, STANDARDIZED ASSESSMENT RESULTS FOR 
STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 

Section 1008.22(3)(c)1., Florida Statutes (F.S.), requires that school districts provide 
instruction to prepare students with disabilities to demonstrate satisfactory performance in 
the core content knowledge and skills necessary for successful grade-to-grade progression 
and high school graduation. Assessment results may be waived under specific 
circumstances for students with disabilities for the purpose of receiving a course grade and 
a standard high school diploma.  

To be considered for a statewide, standardized assessment results waiver, the following 
criteria must be met: 

● The student must be identified as a student with a disability, as defined in s. 
1007.02, F.S.: The term “student with a disability” means a student who is 
documented as having an intellectual disability; a hearing impairment, including 
deafness; a speech or language impairment; a visual impairment, including 
blindness; an emotional or behavioral disability; an orthopedic or other health 
impairment; an autism spectrum disorder; a traumatic brain injury; or a specific 
learning disability, including, but not limited to, dyslexia, dyscalculia, or 
developmental aphasia. 

● The student must have an individual educational plan (IEP). 
● The student must have taken the statewide, standardized assessment with 

appropriate allowable accommodations at least once. 
● In accordance with s. 1008.22(3)(c)2., F.S., the IEP team must make a 

determination of whether a statewide, standardized assessment accurately measures 
the student’s abilities, taking into consideration all allowable accommodations for 
students with disabilities. 

 
Students with disabilities who choose to pursue the 18-credit, Academically      Challenging 
Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) option, may be eligible for a waiver of 
statewide, standardized assessment results as long as they meet all of the waiver 
requirements and the requirements for the ACCEL option. 

Students pursuing a standard diploma with a scholar diploma designation are not eligible 
for a waiver. In order for a student to earn a scholar diploma designation, a student must 
meet the requirements of s. 1003.4285, F.S. 

REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIFIC STANDARD DIPLOMAS 

For those who have selected a General Standard Diploma, the following additional 
options may be discussed at an IEP team meeting and selected if appropriate.   

Standard Diploma via Access Courses:  This diploma is ONLY available to students with 
significant cognitive disabilities who are enrolled in access courses.  The following may 
considered: 

Page 211 of 1019

DRAFT



 

91 
 

● Substitution of eligible Career Technical Education (CTE) courses for required 
access courses.  Eligible CTE courses are noted in the state course code directory.    

● Modified expectations or outcomes to the CTE curriculum if CTE substitutions 
have been selected in lieu of required access courses. 

● Waiver of the Florida Standards Alternate Assessment for the purpose of receiving 
a course grade and a standard high school diploma.  If this option is recommended 
by the IEP team, the parent must approve it.  In addition, a Graduation Portfolio 
must be developed in the area (reading, math, science) in which the waiver is 
granted.  

 
Standard Diploma via Academic Courses and Employment Competencies:  This may be 
considered when the IEP team has determined that mastery of both academic and 
employment competencies are the most appropriate way for the student to demonstrate 
skills.  If this option is selected, an appropriate and signed Employment Transition Plan 
must be in place and separate from the IEP. Also, in addition to meeting the requirements 
noted for the general standard diploma, the IEP team may discuss and opt to substitute 
eligible Career Technical Education (CTE) courses for required core academic courses.  
Eligible CTE courses are noted in the state course code directory.    

Standard Diploma Merit Designation, Standard Diploma Scholar Designation, Advanced 
International Certificate of Education, State of Florida High School Performance-Based 
Diploma, State of Florida High School Diploma, International Baccalaureate, Standard 
Diploma ACCEL 18 Credit Option:  Specific requirements for each of these diploma types 
can be found in the Secondary Education section of this manual.  

ESE SERVICES AND THE PROVISION OF FAPE 

Under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, students with disabilities may 
receive public education services until their 22nd birthday. Students who have not 
graduated with a standard diploma or who have selected the option to defer the receipt of 
their standard diploma may receive services from the school district until their 22nd 
birthday. 

 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

According to statute, a Certificate of Completion is awarded to any student with a disability 
who has met all requirements for graduation with a standard diploma, except for passing 
the Statewide Assessment Program.  The awarding of a certificate of completion to students 
with disabilities does not prevent a student with a disability from pursuing a standard 
diploma.  A student with disabilities may continue to pursue a standard diploma until 
his/her 22nd birthday. 

 

DEFERRAL OF GRADUATION/RECEIPT OF STANDARD HIGH SCHOOL 
DIPLOMA 

This applies only to students with disabilities pursuing a standard diploma during the 

Page 212 of 1019

DRAFT



 

92 
 

school year in which the student is expected to graduate.  [Students who receive a special 
diploma or a certificate of completion do NOT need to defer receipt of the special diploma 
or certificate in order to continue to receive FAPE.]  The IEP team must review the benefits 
of deferring and describe in writing the services and programs available to the student who 
wishes to defer.  The decision is made by the parent or the student if over age 18 during 
the year the student is expected to meet all of the requirements for a standard diploma, 
which is the senior year.  Additionally, the decision to defer must be made by May 15 of 
the senior year.  A student with a disability may only defer receipt of a standard diploma 
if: 
 

● The IEP includes special education, transition planning, transition services, or 
related services through age 21 AND 

● The student is enrolled in one or more of the following:    
 Accelerated college credit instruction (dual enrollment and early admission, 

advanced placement, and credit by examination)  
 Industry certification courses that lead to college credit (check with the 

Career-Technical Education department for courses that apply)                                   
 Collegiate high school program (International Baccalaureate program, or 

Advanced International Certificate of Education program) 
 Courses necessary to satisfy the Scholar designation requirements (the 

scholar designation requires satisfactory completion of additional academic 
courses and assessments; see fldoe.org for additional information) 

 A structured work-study program (any program that is designed to prepare 
the student for employment), internship, or pre-apprenticeship program (for 
students who are at least 16 years old). 

GIFTED PROGRAM 

A student is eligible for special instructional programs for the Gifted from kindergarten 
through grade 12 if the student meets one of these criteria: 
 

● The student demonstrates: 
 The need for a special program. 
 A majority of characteristics of Gifted students according to a standard scale 

or checklist. 
 Superior intellectual development as measured by an intelligence quotient of 

two standard deviations or more above the mean on an individually 
administered standardized test of intelligence. 

● The student is a member of an underrepresented group and meets the criteria 
specified in an approved school district plan for increasing the participation of 
underrepresented groups in programs for students who are Gifted. 
Underrepresented groups are defined in Rule 6A-6.03019, F.A.C., as students with 
limited English proficiency or students from low socio-economic status families. 
 

When a student is determined eligible for this program, an Educational Plan is developed.  
In grades K-6, Clay County District Schools utilizes the research based Gifted Enrichment 
Model as the best way to meet the depth and complex needs of elementary students who 

Page 213 of 1019

DRAFT



 

93 
 

are Gifted.  In grades 7-8, junior high schools may utilize academic content courses or 
provide support facilitation.  Students who are Gifted articulating from grade 8 to 9 will 
have an Educational Plan articulation meeting to address appropriate services. 
 
In order to ensure that Exceptional Student Education Services are provided for all students 
who are Gifted, the following principles should guide decision making: 
 

● The Educational Plan (EP) drives the Gifted service; students must attend the Gifted 
class, or receive the Gifted services, as they do any other required instruction.  
Participation in Gifted classes cannot be used as a reward. 

● The Educational Plan identifies the amount of time a student receives instruction 
with the Gifted teacher.  If any changes are needed to the Educational Plan, 
individual EP meetings must be held (including the parent/guardian) to address the 
changes.  The changes must be described in Present Level of Educational 
Performance. 

● Students who attend Gifted Enrichment classes are responsible for concepts 
covered in their general education class.  The general education teacher should try 
to schedule critical lectures, presentations of new material, and tests at a time when 
the Gifted students are present. Any critical material covered when the Gifted  
students are receiving their required Gifted service will be provided to students 
upon their return to class.  

● Students who are Gifted attending an enrichment class are NOT required to make 
up classwork or homework missed while participating in activities with the Gifted 
teacher.  Additionally, missed classwork must not be assigned as homework.  
However, the students may be held responsible for key concepts covered during 
their absence. 

● Middle school students who attend a Gifted class for content instruction receive 
their grade for that subject from the Gifted teacher. 

● In order to be considered an ESE service, all Gifted classes (Enrichment classes at 
elementary school or Gifted academic content courses at the junior high school) 
must be taught by a Gifted Endorsed Teacher and the classes must be comprised of 
only students who are Gifted. 

CLASSROOM ACCOMMODATIONS 

ESE and 504 students should receive classroom accommodations as listed in their IEP or 
504 Plan.   Accommodations are implemented in all general education courses, Career and 
Technical Education (CTE) courses and programs of study as needed to assure students the 
opportunity to meet requirements for course completion and high school graduation 
requirements for a standard diploma.  The appropriate accommodations shall be 
determined on the basis of the assessed needs of the student and shall be reflected in his/her 
IEP.  Accommodations to these courses shall not include modifications to the student 
performance standards.   

DISTRICT AND STATEWIDE ASSESSMENT ACCOMMODATIONS  

Allowable district and state standardized assessment accommodations should be 

Page 214 of 1019

DRAFT



 

94 
 

considered by the IEP team at annual IEP reviews.  Note that only allowable 
accommodations approved by any specified standardized assessments are permissible.  
Parents and students should be made aware that there may be accommodations used in the 
classroom that are not permissible on standardized assessments.  

 
Teachers are to use appropriate testing accommodations, identified on the IEP, for a 
student with disabilities in all situations.   

   

FLORIDA STANDARDS ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT FOR STUDENTS WITH 
SIGNIFICANT COGNITIVE DISABILITIES 

Participation Guidelines: 
All Florida students participate in the state’s assessment and accountability system. The 
Florida Standards Alternate Assessment (FSAA) is designed for students whose 
participation in the general statewide assessment program (Florida Standards Assessments, 
Statewide Science Assessment, Next Generation Sunshine State Standards End-of-Course 
Assessments) is not appropriate, even with accommodations. The FSAA measures student 
academic performance on the Access Points in Language Arts, Mathematics, and Science, 
and Social Studies.  Access Points are academic expectations written specifically for 
students with significant cognitive disabilities. They reflect the essence or core intent of 
the standards that apply to all students in the same grade, but at reduced levels of 
complexity.  
 
The decision for a student with a disability to participate in the statewide alternate 
assessment is made by the Individual Educational Plan (IEP) team and recorded on the IEP.  
The IEP team should consider the student’s present level of educational performance in 
reference to the Florida Standards Assessments and Next Generation Sunshine State 
Standards Assessments.  All of the following criteria must be met: 

  
● The student has a significant cognitive disability.  
● Even with appropriate and allowable instructional accommodations, assistive 

technology or accessible instructional materials, the student requires modifications 
to the grade-level general state content standards as defined in rules 6A-
6.03411(1)(z) and  6A-1.09401 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). 

● The student requires direct instruction in academic areas of English language arts, 
math, social studies and science, based on access points, in order to acquire, 
generalize and transfer skills across settings.  

● The parent must sign consent in accordance with Rule 6A-6.0331(10), F.A.C. 
 

If the student meets all of the criteria for alternate assessment, the student should be 
enrolled in access courses and the Florida Standards Alternate Assessment should be used 
to provide a meaningful evaluation of the student’s current academic achievement.   

 
If the student does not meet the criteria, the student should be instructed in general 
education courses and participate in the general statewide standardized assessments with 
or without accommodations as appropriate. 

Page 215 of 1019

DRAFT



 

95 
 

 
Student performance is assessed four levels of achievement.  For all grade levels and 
content areas, the minimum scale score in Achievement Level 3 is identified as the passing 
score.  The four achievement levels are: 

 
Level 1 Students at this level do not demonstrate an adequate level of success with 

the Florida Standards Access Points. 
 

Level 2   Students at this level demonstrate a limited level of success with the 
Florida Standards Access Points. 

 
Level 3  Students at this level demonstrate a satisfactory level of success with the 

Florida Standards Access Points. 
 
Level 4  Students at this level demonstrate an above satisfactory level of success 

with the Florida Standards Access Points. 
 

NOTE:  Access courses can only be used for students with significant cognitive disabilities 
who are eligible for alternate assessment.  Determining the specific benchmarks within 
each strand and the functional level(s) applicable to a student shall be the responsibility of 
the IEP Committee. It is expected that only students with the most significant cognitive 
disabilities who are eligible under IDEA will participate in the FSAA.  
 

HOSPITAL/HOMEBOUND 
This program is available to K-12 students and PreK Exceptional Student Education 
students who are physically or emotionally too ill to attend school.  These students may 
continue their academic instruction in the home or in the hospital.  Eligibility is determined 
by an attending physician or psychiatrist certifying that the student is non-contagious and 
expected to be in a home/hospital program for fifteen (15) school days or longer, or has a 
chronic condition  requiring extended absence. 
 

Page 216 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 217 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING Between Clay County District Schools, Florida and Pace Center for Girls, Inc.

Description
This MOU adds a service to the current program.  Currently, Pace takes in girls to a site and provides the educational,
counseling, and other services.  This additional program, Reach Program, will provide outpatient counseling and case
management services.  The school will coordinate and recommend young girls who meet the criteria for the program.

Gap Analysis
This program will provide services to young girls who may not be attending Pace Center for Girls, but yet still require certain
services.

Previous Outcomes
This would be the first year of the program, so no statistics are available.
 

Expected Outcomes
Both parties will provide needed services to referred youth that involves outpatient opportunities.  This service, Reach, will allow
more young girls to participate in activities/services that are needed in the Clay communities.

Strategic Plan Goal
To ensure that every Clay County student (girls) are provided quality social/emotional services.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the modification to the existing contract.

Contact
Roger Daily, Asst. Supt. of Curriculum and Instruction; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Michael Wingate, Director of Academic Services; michael.wingate@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.  Clay County agrees to provide office space and telephone service, when feasible.

Review Comments

Attachments

July 2020 (June 25,20) PACE Contract 2020-21.pdf

Page 218 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/july-2020-june-2520-pace-contract-2020-21.pdf


Page 219 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 220 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 221 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 222 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 223 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 224 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 225 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 226 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 227 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Florida Virtual School - Amendment 3 to 2018-2021 Franchise Agreement - Appendix G - COVID-19 Student Support
Project

Description
Due to the COVID-19 Crisis, FLVS has created an agreement with lower curriculum fees to many courses that students are
taking during school closures.  This is an amendment to those lower costs to those enrollments that occured during the COVID-
19 crisis. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Lower curriculum costs for FLVS curriculum during the  crisis through June 30th to many (but not all) FLVS courses.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Appendix G shall only pertain to those student enrollments identified in the FLVS-VSA system as "COVID-19".  COVID
Enrollments will end on June 30, 2020, absent further amendment. 

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
(904) 336-8081

Financial Impact
The service fee for COVID Enrollments will be $9.78 per new enrollment per segment and will apply to the entire course list in
Appendix A EXCEPT the following courses, which will be billed at the standard rate in Appendix A.

Review Comments

Attachments

200128 Fl Virtual Amend 3.pdf

Page 228 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200128-fl-virtual-amend-3.pdf


Page 229 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 230 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 231 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 232 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 233 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - Florida Virtual School - Pricing Amendment 2 to Franchise Agreement for State of Florida School district with School
Board of Clay County - Appendix A

Description
This Amendment replaces Appendix A, Course Fees with an annual updated, lower course fee list as stted in section 8.9 of the
Agreement

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Lower curriculum fees for FLVS curriculum for the 2020-2021 school year. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
To approve the FLVS Amendment 2 - curriculum fee decrease. 

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
904-336-8181

Financial Impact
Approximately 10%-13% price decrease for FLVS curriculum than previous years.

Review Comments

Attachments

200127 Fl Virtual Amend 2.pdf

Page 234 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200127-fl-virtual-amend-2.pdf


Page 235 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 236 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 237 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 238 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 239 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 240 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 241 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 242 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 243 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Approval for the Purchase of Edgenuity Virtual Instruction Curriculum 6-12th grades

Description
The Edgenuity virtual instruction program (VIP) courses are designed to reflect research-based instructional practices to meet the
needs of all students.  Their courses feature rigourous, explicit instruction led by expert, on-screen teachers, as well as allowing
district teachers to incorporate their own uniqueness to the course.  It includes courses with challenging content, relevant
activities, adaptable formative and summative assessments and real-time feedback.  Their curriculum is aligned with the
Common Core and other state standards and the curriculum has been approved by the Florida Department of Education. 

Gap Analysis
Clay Virtual Academy offered Edgenuity virtual instruction curriculum to CCDS district students 6th-12th grades in the 2019-20
school year.  CVA will have the opportunity to use various virtual instruction curriculums to meet the graduation requirements. 
This year, we are not looking at paing a large curriculum fee up front, but to pay per course, after grace period. 

Previous Outcomes
Clay schools had purchased Edgenuity curriculum to use for credit recovery, during the COVID 19 crisis, and to utilize the
mental health courses for all CCDS 6th-12th grade studnets. CVA also used Edgenuity for the 2019-2020 school year. 

Expected Outcomes
Students will continue to use the Edgenuity curriculum on account of engaging teacher lead videos and interactive lessons. 
Teachers have the ability to differentiate lessons within the current content of the program to help meet the needs of
individualized students.
Edgenuity reports generated will assist all stakeholders to be able to monitor and address student progress and needs. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Strategy 1/1 Redesign instructional frameworks for all grade levels and subject areas to reflect opportunities to differentiate
instruction.  Strategy 1.1.4 Develop an online "one stop shop" that houses all curriculum materials.  Strategy 1.1.5: Implement
test preparation itms specifications to ensure students are exposed to content and assessments aligned to standards. 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the purchase of Edgenuity's Virtual Instruction Curriculum with online resources for
grades K-12 for the 2020-2021 school year. 

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
904-336-8081
Amanda Stilianou, CVA Principal, amanda.stilianou@myoneclay.net 904-336-9878

Financial Impact
We will pay curriculum fees ($40-$80) based on students taking an Edgenuity virtual course with a CVA teacher

Review Comments

Attachments

200126Edgeuityfinal.pdf

Page 244 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200126edgeuityfinal.pdf


Page 245 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 246 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 247 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 248 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 249 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 250 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 251 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 252 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 253 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 254 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 255 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 256 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 257 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 258 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 259 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 260 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 261 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 262 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 263 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 264 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 265 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 266 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 267 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 268 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 269 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 270 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and AMI Kids

Description
A collaborative agreement between the School Board of Clay County and the AMI Kids Clay County, Inc., to address the needs
of male students in Clay County.  This program works in conjunction with the Department of Juvenile Justice, to provide an
educational program and related services for eligible male students (up to 44 students).  This program, located at Clay High
School, focuses on student needs dealing with specialized counseling, credit recovery services, life skills, positive gender
identification, community service learning projects, and career exploration.  Students attend the program for approximately 1
year.  The collaboration between the two organizations has allowed students to seek an alternative setting to a previously
unsuccessful environment.
For the 2020-21 contract, language has been added that deals with any possibility of Clay High School needing portable space
due to growth.  In addition, for the 2021-22 year, an analysis will be done in order to determine monthly charges for the space.
 

Gap Analysis
Although the program has only been in Clay County for 4 1/2 years, the district monitors the program and their intervention
strategies in order to yield positive results in the areas of academics, social behavior, and the number of students who
successfully return to their home school.
 

Previous Outcomes
The program will be completing data in the next month.  Due to the shutdown of schools, this information is not available.

Expected Outcomes
By continuing the collaboration with AMI Kids, it is expected that students will be identified by the secondary schools,
Bannerman Learning Center, recommended by parents, and/or the student volunteers for the program.  AMI Kids is notified by
any of these sources and students are oriented to the program.  Once the students are enrolled, they begin the counseling program
offered and then the credit/course recovery program begins.  Periodic meetings take place to review outcomes and to
communicate with the District on proposed return dates of the students.  Through the District plan, students are able to recoup
credits and, therefore, remain on track to either be promoted or to earn the necessary credits towards graduation.  Curriculum
deficiencies are addressed, counseling and behavior therapy takes place, increasing the likelihood of success for the students.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Establish a respectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all.
Strategy 3.1: Engage stakeholders to strengthen and build a collaborative and constructive environment that encourages high
expectations for all.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between the School Board of Clay County and AMI Kids.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Asst. Superintendent of Curriculum and Instruction; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$340,000 (Clay County allocates 85% of an FTE to AMI Kids)

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 271 of 1019

DRAFT



July 2020 (June 25, 20) - AMI Kids Contract.pdf

Page 272 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/july-2020-june-25-20-ami-kids-contract.pdf


Page 273 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 274 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 275 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 276 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 277 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 278 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 279 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 280 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 281 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 282 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 283 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 284 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 285 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 286 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 287 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 288 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Approval for the Purchase of K12 Florida LLC Virtual Instruction Curriculum for elementary curriculum usage.

Description
The K12 Florida LLC virtual instruction program (VIP) courses promotes strong academics along with a positive online school
experience.  It is mastery-based, including hand-on opportunities away from the computer.  Students are expected to spend about
3-6 hours per day (depending on grade level) working on and off line to master standards and curriculum.  They will work with a
Clay County District School Clay Virtual Academy (CVA) teacher, which will assess and teach lessons to ensure matery.
Not only does K12 Florida LLC offer rigorous, visually stimulationg appropriate online curriculum, they also offer many offline
materials, books, science kits, and workbooks for students to use offline as well.
PLEASE NOTE: A medium school district such as CCDS is required to have a minumum of 3 virtual instruction offerings.  We
currently have a contract with FLVS, Edgenuity, and K12  FS 1002.45

Gap Analysis
CVA currently holds a contract agreement with K12 for the 2019-2020 school year.  We would like to continue services.

Previous Outcomes
Please see "Gap Analysis"

Expected Outcomes
Elementary students will be exposed to rigorous, engaging, appropriate online curriculum to meet the state standards.  They will
master content with the assistance of a CVA teacher. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Strategy 1.1: Redesign instructional frameworks for all grade levels and subject areas to reflect opportunities to differentiate
instruction. 
Strategy 1/1/4: Develop an online "one stop shop" that houses all curriculum materials. 
Strategy 1/1/5: Implemet test preparation items specifications to ensure students are exposed to content and assessments aligned
to standards.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the purchase of K12 LLC Florida virtual instruction curriculum with online
resources for grades K-12 for the 2020-2021 school year. 

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net (904) 336- 8081
Amanda Stilianou, CVA Principal, amanda.stilanou@myoneclay.net  (904) 336-9878

Financial Impact
Please see pages 2 of 46 of the contract agreement.
Under the VIP Program Products and Services Fees:  Elementary Pricing  for content only (using CVA teacher) is $340.00 for
single course per school year (two semesters). The comprehensive program inculdes therr components: (1) Courses Content, (2)
Materials (for K-8 courses), and (3) a suite of learning tools tailored to Client's needs.  Instructional text or e-books, suplies and
teaching tools (collectively, Materials) for K-8 students.

Review Comments

Attachments

200125K12 Fl Agreement Final.pdf

Page 289 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200125k12-fl-agreement-final.pdf


1 of 46 
 

Q-52152 
 

 
 

This Online Educational Products and Services Order (this "Order”), dated as of 7/1/2020 (the "Order Effective Date"), is between Clay County 

School District, 900 Walnut St, , FL 32043 ("Customer") and K12 Florida LLC ("K12"), 2300 Corporate Park Drive Herndon, VA 20171. This Order 

incorporates and is in all respects subject to both the Florida Attachment to The Online Educational Products and Services Order (“Attachment”) 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and the K12 Online Educational Products and Services Agreement Terms (the "Terms") attached hereto as Exhibit 

B, on the date that this Order bears the signatures of both Customer and K12. Collectively, the Order, Attachment and Terms will constitute the 

entire agreement (“Agreement”). All capitalized terms will have the meanings assigned to those terms in the Agreement. I am authorized by 

Customer to enter into this Order for the products, services and licenses indicated herein, at the prices set forth below and pursuant to the Terms. 

 

Accepted by Customer: 

 
Signature: Date:   

 

Name (Print): Title:   
 

Accepted by K12: 

 
Signature: Date: 

  
 

Name (Print): Title:   
 

1. Period: 7/1/2020 through 6/30/2021 and is not eligible for a renewal period. 

2. Territory: Students served by Clay County School District, FL. 

3. For the Services and/or Products provided under this Order, Customer shall pay the following Fees: 

 

(a) Florida Virtual Instruction Program (“VIP”) Products and Services 

 

Product Product Description Unit Price 

FL VIP Comprehensive K-12 Full-Time 
(Content, Hosting, Instruction) 

VIP Comprehensive K-12 Program with K12 teachers for up to 6 courses per student per 
semester. Includes content, hosting, instruction, materials, and advisor support for grades 
6-12. 

$4,295.00 

FL VIP K-5 Annual Course (Content, 
Hosting, Instruction) 

VIP single annual course with K12 teacher. Includes content, hosting, instruction and 
materials. 

$590.00 

FL VIP 6-12 Semester Course 
(Content, Hosting, Instruction) 

VIP single semester course with K12 teacher. Includes content, hosting, instruction and 
materials. 

$370.00 

MS Online Course Enrollment License 
(Content, Hosting, Instruction) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Online Standard MS semester course (non-AP). 
Includes content, hosting and instruction. 

$225.00 

HS Online Course Enrollment License 
(Content, Hosting, Instruction) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Online Standard HS semester course (non-AP). 
Includes content, hosting and instruction. 

$225.00 

AP Online Course Enrollment License 
(Content, Hosting, Instruction) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Online AP semester course. Includes content, 
hosting and instruction. 

$245.00 

CR Online Course Enrollment License 
(Content, Hosting, Instruction) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Online Credit Recovery semester course. Includes 
content, hosting and instruction. 

$225.00 

Career Focused Electives Course 
Enrollment License (Content, Hosting, 
Instruction) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Career Focused Pathways catalog semester 
course (non-AP). Includes content, hosting and instruction. 

$344.00 

 
(b) Florida Approved Course Provider Products and Services 
 

Product Product Description Unit Price 

MS Online Course Enrollment License 
(Content, Hosting) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Online Standard MS semester course (non-AP). 
Includes content and hosting. 

$50.00 

HS Online Course Enrollment License 
(Content, Hosting) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Online Standard HS semester course (non-AP). 
Includes content and hosting. 

$50.00 

AP Online Course Enrollment License 
(Content, Hosting) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Online AP semester course. Includes content and 
hosting. 

$50.00 

CR Online Course Enrollment License 
(Content, Hosting) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Online Credit Recovery semester course. Includes 
content and hosting. 

$50.00 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Kevin Chavous President, Academics, Policy & Schools

6/8/2020

Page 290 of 1019

DRAFT



2 of 46 
 

K12 K-8 Online Course Enrollment 
License (Content, Hosting) 

License for a single student in a K12 Standard K-8 year course. Includes content and 
hosting. 

$340.00 

K12 9-12 Online Course Enrollment 
License (Content, Hosting) 

License for a single student in a K12 Standard HS semester course. Includes content and 
hosting. 

$170.00 

Career Focused Electives Course 
Enrollment License (Content, Hosting) 

License for a single student in a FuelEd Career Focused Electives catalog semester 
course (non-AP). Includes content and hosting 

$144.00 

Training: Webinar Access to one online synchronous professional development session for up to 35 users 
in a district. .*Some exceptions may apply due to program selected 

$750.00 

Career Exploration License for a single student to access a career exploration system available in English 
and Spanish that allows the student to complete a variety of self-assessments, look for 
colleges and universities known for certain areas of interest, build resumes, learn about 
scholarship opportunities, and search for 
employment., includes content and hosting (non-AP) 

$10.00 

Powered By Marketing Package Includes a landing page to capture school-specific leads, access to enrollment Parent 
Portal system, and support from enrollment center agents for interested families. Fee is 
per approved enrollment generated each month. 

$0.00 

 
4. Description of Educational Products.  
K12 and FuelEd Online Courses: Each K12 or FuelEd course includes content as described in the course catalog. K12 or FuelEd may from time to 
time, in its sole discretion, deliver or otherwise make available to Customer certain updated courseware, which such updates shall also be subject to 
all of the Terms. Customer acknowledges and agrees that certain courseware and updates thereto may be designed to utilize separate textbook 
products or course materials and Customer may be responsible for procuring such materials. A complete list of required materials may be accessed 
at https://www.fueleducation.com/materials. 

 
5. Description of Services.  
Instructional Services: Customer will be provided licensed teachers for instruction to enrolled students for selected courses.  
 
Hosting Solution: The set-up, configuration and hosting of the applicable courseware for the delivery of courses, solely for the provision of educational 
services to its students in the Territory enrolled in Customers educational programs.  
 
Professional Services: Customer will be provided with professional services as described in Section 3, above. On-Site professional services include 
the cost of reasonable travel and accommodations. If Customer requests additional professional services outside the scope of those provided in 
Section 3 above, the Customer will be presented with an estimate of additional costs for Customers approval in advance of undertaking the requested 
change of scope. 

 
6. Billing Terms.  
Customer shall be invoiced for the Educational Products and Services ordered hereunder in accordance with the Terms, unless otherwise specified 
on this Order. Customer shall be invoiced quarterly and FuelEd shall be paid within 45 days of the receipt of a billing invoice in accordance with the 
Local Government Prompt Payment Act. Where required, an original invoice referencing a Customer purchase order number shall be submitted for 
payment to the Customer’s Accounts Payable Department, 814 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida. FuelEd provides a 28 day grace period 
for students who enroll in courses or use instructional services. If a student withdraws from such course within 28 days from when the student enrolls, 
Customer will be refunded 50% of the applicable course or instruction fees, but only if such withdrawal was received in writing by fax or email before 
the grace period ended.  
 
FL VIP Full-Time Products: FuelEd will invoice Customer for courses and educational tools and services quarterly (in the months of September, 
December, March, and June) with invoices payable in accordance with the Terms. 
 
Services Billing Terms: Services shall be invoiced upon order. No refunds except as otherwise noted. 
 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 291 of 1019

DRAFT



3 of 46 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FLORIDA ATTACHMENT TO THE 
ONLINE EDUCATIONAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES ORDER 

  
This Attachment is fully incorporated into the terms and conditions of the Online Educational Products and Services Order (“Order”) to which it is attached and the K12 Online 
Educational Products and Services Agreement Terms (the “Terms”) that are incorporated into said Order. It modifies certain provisions found in the Order and Terms, as noted 
below. WHERE THERE IS A CONFLICT BETWEEN THE ORDER, THE TERMS, AND THIS ADDENDUM, THIS ADDENDUM SHALL CONTROL.  
 
Note: This Attachment is only applicable to products and services ordered under the Florida Virtual Instruction Program. 
 
Section 1: Florida VIP Program Requirements 
 
The following Florida Virtual Instruction Program requirements noted in §1002.45 of the Florida Statutes shall be added to the K12 Online Educational Products and Services 
Agreement Terms (the “Terms”). 

a) Contract Requirements 
 
Contracts between Florida school boards and an Approved Virtual Instruction Provider require certain provisions to be included (see, § 1002.45 (4) F. S.)   
 

Requirement Text K12 Response Statute Reference 

Curriculum Plan “Set forth a detailed 
curriculum plan that illustrates 
how students will be provided 
services and be measured for 
attainment of proficiency in 
the Next Generation Sunshine 
State Standards for each 
grade level and subject.” 

K12 has provided a detailed curriculum plan in compliance with 
this requirement in the K12 Florida LLC Disclosure 
Requirements attached hereto as Exhibit C. 
  
K12 agrees to implement this plan in accordance with the 
requirements of the Florida VIP program. 

§ 1002.45 (4)(a) F. S. 

Graduation Plan “Provide a method for 
determining that a student 
has satisfied the 
requirements for graduation 
in s. 1002.3105(5), 
s. 1003.4281, or 
s. 1003.4282 if the contract is 
for the provision of a full-time 
virtual instruction program to 
students in grades 9 through 
12.” 

K12 provides a percentage grade to the Customer and the 
customer can use these percentage grades within their own 
system. K12 does not assign letter grades. Customer’s school 
board can use such information to determine if a student has met 
such requirements, in accordance with Florida law and 
Customer’s School Board’s policies.  

§ 1002.45 (4)(b) F. S. 

Conflict Resolution “Specify a method for 
resolving conflicts among the 
parties.” 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION: The parties agree that they will use 
their best efforts to settle any and all disputes arising out of, 
under or in connection with this Agreement, including without 
limitation the validity, interpretation, performance and breach 
hereof, prior to initiating any legal proceeding, whether judicial 
or administrative in nature.  The efforts shall be primarily 
between the Executive Vice President of Operations for K12 and 
the Superintendent of the Customer or their respective 
designees.  The laws of the State of Florida, without regard to its 
conflict of laws provisions, will govern all disputes arising out of 
or related to this Agreement, including the validity, enforceability 
or construction thereof.   Each party submits to the jurisdiction of 
the state and federal courts located in the State of Florida for 
purposes of any action, suit or proceeding arising out of or 
related to this Agreement and agrees not to plead or claim that 
any action, suit or proceeding arising out of or related to this 
Agreement that is brought in such courts has been brought in an 
inconvenient forum. 
 

§ 1002.45 (4)(c) F. S. 

Termination “Specify authorized reasons 
for termination of the 
contract.” 

NOTICE OF NON-RENEWAL:  The period of this Agreement is 
as specified in the Order (“Period”). Following the Subscription 
Period, this Agreement will automatically extend for successive 
additional Subscription Periods of one (1) year (each such period 
a “Renewal Period”), unless (a) either party provides the other 
with written notice of non-renewal at least six (6) months before 
the expiration of the then-current Subscription Period or 
Renewal Period (as applicable); (b) the Agreement is sooner 
terminated under the section labeled Termination; or (c) the 
Customer (as defined in the Order) provides K12 with written 
notice of non-renewal as set forth under the section of these K12 
Online Educational Products and Services Agreement Terms 
labeled Price And Payment.  
 
TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: Either party may terminate this 
Agreement at any time with ninety (90) days’ prior written notice 
to the other party for cause.  Termination for cause may be used 
if a party breaches any material term or fails to fulfill any 

§ 1002.45 (4)(d) F. S. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 292 of 1019

DRAFT



4 of 46 
 

representation, warranty, or material condition, term, provision 
or obligation contained in this Agreement and fails to cure within 
thirty (30) days of such notice from the terminating party.  Upon 
termination, the non-breaching party shall be entitled to seek any 
remedies to which it shall be entitled at law or in equity. If any 
change in applicable law that is enacted after the date hereof 
could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect 
on the ability of any party to carry out its obligations under this 
Agreement, such party, upon written notice to the other party 
may request renegotiation of this Agreement. Such renegotiation 
shall be undertaken in good faith. If the parties are unable to 
renegotiate and agree upon revised terms within 120 days of 
such notice of renegotiation, then this Agreement shall be 
terminated effective at the end of the school year in which such 
notice was given. Termination of this Agreement does not relieve 
Customer of any obligations for payments outstanding to K12 as 
of the date of termination and does not relieve either party of any 
obligations that continue upon termination. 

 
TERMINATION DUE TO ANNUAL FEE INCREASE:  K12 
reserves the right to change the prices set forth in any Order no 
more often than once per Renewal Period (if any).  K12 will 
provide written notice of any price increase to Customer at least 
ninety (90) days’ prior to the start of the Renewal Period (if any) 
for which it would be applicable.  Customer may, in its sole 
discretion, terminate the Agreement within thirty (30) days of 
such notice.  Such termination will be effective at the end of the 
then-current Period or Renewal Period (if any).   
 

Financial Responsibility 
Upon Termination 

“Require the approved 
provider to be responsible for 
all debts of the virtual 
instruction program if the 
contract is not renewed or is 
terminated.” 

K12 shall be responsible for all debts for the Customer’s virtual 
instruction program that arise out of K12’s performance of this 
contract if the contract is not renewed or is terminated.  This does 
not excuse the Customer from paying any obligations incurred 
resulting from its obligations under this contract or from the 
payment of any debts incurred under this contract for 
termination, unless such termination is as provided for under the 
clause titled Termination for Cause. 

§ 1002.45 (4)(e) F. S. 

Compliance Requirement “Require the approved 
provider to comply with all 
requirements of this section.” 

K12 represents and warrants that it shall comply with all statutory 
requirements of § 1002.45 F. S.   
 

§ 1002.45 (4)(f) F. S. 

 

b) Provider Requirements 
 
Virtual Instruction Providers must meet certain requirements as provided under Section 2 of § 1002.45 F. S. K12 represents and warrants that it meets all such requirements as 
an Approved Provider under Florida law. These requirements follow below: 

Requirement Text K12 Response Statute Reference 

Non-Sectarian “Is nonsectarian in its 
programs, admission 
policies, employment 
practices, and operations” 

K12 represents and warrants that it adheres to a non-sectarian policy 
can be found here: 
http://www.k12.com/content/dam/k12/sites/default/files/pdf/Policy--
K12-Florida-LLC-Nonsectarian-Policy-092915.pdf 

§ 1002.45 (2)(a)(1) F. S. 

Anti-Discrimination “Complies with the 
antidiscrimination provisions 
of § 1000.05” 

K12 represents and warrants that it complies with the 
antidiscrimination provisions found in § 1000.05 of the Florida 
Statutes. K12’s anti-discrimination policy can be found here: 
http://www.k12.com/content/dam/k12/sites/default/files/pdf/Policy--
K12-Florida-LLC-Anti-Discrimination-Policy-092915.pdf 
 

§ 1002.45 (2)(a)(2) F. S. 

Florida Offices, 
Administrative Staff, and 
Teacher Background 
Checks 

“Locates an administrative 
office or offices in this state, 
requires its administrative 
staff to be state residents, 
requires all instructional staff 
to be Florida-certified 
teachers under chapter 1012 
and conducts background 
screenings for all employees 
or contracted personnel, as 
required by s.1012.32, using 
state and national criminal 
history records” 

Administrative Offices – K12 has an office located at 9143 Phillips 
Hwy, Suite 590, Jacksonville, FL 32256 
 
Administrative Staff – All K12 administrative staff located it its Florida 
office are Florida residents. 
 
Teachers – Customer will be provided the services of Florida-certified 
teachers, compliant with Chapter 1012. Additionally, teachers 
providing such services shall comply with all Florida and national 
background screening requirements. Additional information can be 
found here: http://www.k12.com/Florida-DOE.html 
 

§ 1002.45 (2)(a)(3) F. S. 

Teacher and Parent 
Responsibilities and 
Teacher to Student Parent 
Interactions Policies 

Provides to parents and 
students specific 
information posted and 
accessible online that 
includes, but is not limited 
to, the following teacher-

K12 has detailed its Teacher and Parent Responsibilities and 
Teacher to Student Parent Interactions Policies here: 
http://www.k12.com/content/dam/k12/sites/default/files/pdf/Policy--
K12-Florida-LLC-Teacher-Parent-Responsibilities-and-Teacher-
Student-Parent-Interactions-092915.pdf 
 

§ 1002.45 (2)(a)(4)(a) – 
(e)  F. S.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 293 of 1019

DRAFT



5 of 46 
 

parent and teacher-student 
contact information for each 
course: 
a. How to contact the 
instructor via phone, e-mail, 
or online messaging tools. 
b. How to contact 
technical support via phone, 
e-mail, or online messaging 
tools. 
c. How to contact the 
administration office via 
phone, e-mail, or online 
messaging tools. 
d. Any requirement for 
regular contact with the 
instructor for the course and 
clear expectations for 
meeting the requirement. 
 

 

Prior Experience “Possesses prior, 
successful experience 
offering online courses to 
elementary, middle, or high 
school students as 
demonstrated by quantified 
student learning gains in 
each subject area and 
grade level provided for 
consideration as an 
instructional program 
option. However, for a 
provider without sufficient 
prior, successful experience 
offering online courses, the 
department may 
conditionally approve the 
provider to offer courses 
measured pursuant to 
subparagraph (8)(a)2. 
Conditional approval shall 
be valid for 1 school year 
only and, based on the 
provider’s experience in 
offering the courses, the 
department shall determine 
whether to grant approval to 
offer a virtual instruction 
program” 

As one of the original companies to provide online K-12 education, 
K12 has over 15 years of providing online courses to elementary, 
middle, and high school students. Additional information about K12’s 
experience in the online educational space can be found here: 
http://www.k12.com/Florida-DOE.html 

§ 1002.45 (2)(a)(5)  F. S. 

Accreditation “Is accredited by a regional 
accrediting association as 
defined by State Board of 
Education rule” 

In 2015, the FuelEd Instructional Services Team received a five year 
accreditation renewal from AdvancED to 2020. The original 
accreditation was awarded in 2010. For additional information, 
please see the K12 Florida LLC Disclosure Requirements attached 
hereto as Exhibit C. 

§ 1002.45 (2)(a)(6)  F. S. 

Curriculum Quality “Ensures instructional and 
curricular quality through a 
detailed curriculum and 
student performance 
accountability plan that 
addresses every subject 
and grade level it intends to 
provide through contract 
with the school district, 
including: 
a. Courses and programs 
that meet the standards of 
the International Association 
for K-12 Online Learning 
and the Southern Regional 
Education Board. 
b. Instructional content 
and services that align with, 
and measure student 
attainment of, student 
proficiency in the Next 
Generation Sunshine State 
Standards. 

K12 represents and warrants that it complies with these 
requirements. Additional details may be found here: 
http://www.k12.com/Florida-DOE.html 
 

§ 1002.45 (2)(a)(7)  F. S. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 294 of 1019

DRAFT



6 of 46 
 

c. Mechanisms that 
determine and ensure that a 
student has satisfied 
requirements for grade level 
promotion and high school 
graduation with a standard 
diploma, as appropriate” 
 

Publication Requirements “Publishes for the general 
public, in accordance with 
disclosure requirements 
adopted in rule by the State 
Board of Education, as part 
of its application as a 
provider and in all contracts 
negotiated pursuant to this 
section: 

a. Information and 
data about the curriculum of 
each full-time and part-time 
program. 

b. School policies and 
procedures. 

c. Certification status 
and physical location of all 
administrative and 
instructional personnel. 

d. Hours and times of 
availability of instructional 
personnel. 

e. Student-teacher 
ratios. 

f. Student completion 
and promotion rates. 

g. Student, educator, 
and school performance 
accountability outcomes” 
 

K12 makes all information requiring disclosure available for public 
review. This information can be found in the K12 Florida LLC 
Disclosure Requirements attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

§ 1002.45 (2)(a)(8)  F. S. 

Independent Audit “Performs an annual 
financial audit of its 
accounts and records 
conducted by an 
independent certified public 
accountant which is in 
accordance with rules 
adopted by the Auditor.” 
General, is conducted in 
compliance with generally 
accepted auditing 
standards, and includes a 
report on financial 
statements presented in 
accordance with generally 
accepted accounting 
principles.” 

K12’s parent company, K12 Inc., is publically held and traded on the 
New York Stock Exchange. In accordance with applicable law 
governing public companies, an independent audit is performed 
annually. The results of K12 Inc.’s most recent audit, as well as all 
other required financial disclosures, can  be found here: 
investors.k12.com 

§1002.45 (2)(a)(10) F. S. 

 

c) Virtual Instruction Program Requirements 
Florida law requires that Approved Providers and Schools develop a virtual instruction program that meets certain requirements. K12 meets such requirements as discussed in 
detail below: 

Requirement Text K12 Response Statute Reference 

Course Alignment “Align virtual course 
curriculum and course 
content to the Sunshine 
State Standards under 
s.1003.41.” 

The curriculum K12 will use in the performance of its services as an 
Approved Provider is aligned to the Florida Sunshine State Standards. 
Additional details on K12 courses and curriculum can be found in the 
K12 Florida LLC Disclosure Requirements attached hereto as Exhibit 
C. 
 

§1002.45 (3)(a) F. S. 

Student Proficiency “Offer instruction that is 
designed to enable a 
student to gain proficiency 
in each virtually delivered 
course of study.” 

K12’s program is designed to enable a student to gain proficiency in 
each virtually delivered course of study. Additional details can be 
found in the K12 Florida LLC Disclosure Requirements attached 
hereto as Exhibit C. 

§1002.45 (3)(b) F. S. 

Instructional Materials “Provide each student 
enrolled in the program 
with all the necessary 
instructional materials.” 

Each student will be provided with required course materials as further 
detailed in the Order above. 

§1002.45 (3)(c) F. S. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 295 of 1019

DRAFT



7 of 46 
 

Materials for Students 
Qualifying for National 
School Lunch Act 

“Provide each full-time 
student enrolled in the 
program who qualifies for 
free or reduced-price 
school lunches under the 
National School Lunch Act, 
or who is on the direct 
certification list, and who 
does not have a computer 
or Internet access in his or 
her home with: 
1. All equipment 
necessary for participants 
in the virtual instruction 
program, including, but not 
limited to, a computer, 
computer monitor, and 
printer, if a printer is 
necessary to participate in 
the program; and 
2. Access to or 
reimbursement for all 
Internet services 
necessary for online 
delivery of instruction.” 
 

The provision of free materials to full-time students enrolled in 
Customer’s virtual instruction program is the duty of Customer School 
District. K12 has no visibility into students that would qualify for the 
National School Lunch Act. K12 is happy to provision to Customer any 
required materials at the prices in the above Order. 

§1002.45 (3)(d) F. S. 

No Tuition or Registration 
Fees 

“Not require tuition or 
student registration fees.” 

K12 does not charge students enrolled in Customer’s virtual instruction 
program any tuition or registration fees. It charges the fees disclosed in 
the above Order directly to the School Board. 

§1002.45 (3)(e) F. S. 

d) Student Participation Requirements 
Florida law requires that students enrolled in a virtual instruction program meet certain participation requirements. K12 facilitates compliance with these requirements as discussed 
in detail below: 

Requirement Text K12 Response Statute Reference 

Compulsory Attendance “Comply with the 
compulsory attendance 
requirements of s. 
1003.21. Student 
attendance must be 
verified by the school 
district.” 

K12’s Attendance, Participation and Performance Policy details the 
process by which K12 will facilitate compliance with this requirement. 
Additional details may be found here:  
http://www.k12.com/content/dam/k12/sites/default/files/pdf/Policy--
%20K12-Florida-LLC-Attendance-Participation-and-Performance-
Policies-and-Procedures-093015.pdf 

§1002.45 (6)(a) F. S. 

Assessment Location “Take state assessment 
tests within the school 
district in which such 
student resides, which 
must provide the student 
with access to the district’s 
testing facilities.” 

K12’s State Testing Policies and Procedures detail the process by 
which K12 will facilitate compliance with this requirement. Additional 
details may be found here: 
http://www.k12.com/content/dam/k12/sites/default/files/pdf/Policy--
K12-Florida-LLC-State-Testing-Policies-and-Procedures-092915.pdf 
 

§1002.45 (6)(b) F. S. 

 
Section 2: Florida VIP Full-Time Virtual and Homeschool Payment Terms 

a) FLORIDA FULL-TIME VIRTUAL AND HOMESCHOOL PRICE AND PAYMENT: The prices and billing terms for the products, services, and licenses will be as set 
forth in this Amendment.  Invoices shall be submitted to Customer by K12 and full payment of such invoices shall be due by Customer no more than forty five (45) 
days from the date of an invoice.   If full payment is not timely received, K12, in its sole discretion, may cease the provision of any or all products, services and licenses. 
Customer agrees to pay interest at one percent (1%) per month on any unpaid balance from 30 days after the due date in accordance with the Local Governmental 
Prompt Payment Act, Fla. St. Chapter 218. If Customer wishes to dispute any charge invoiced to Customer by K12 or its Affiliates, Customer must submit a good faith 
claim regarding the Disputed Amount, in a format clearly delineated to coincide with the format of the disputed invoice and with documentation as may reasonably be 
required by K12 and its Affiliates to support the claim no later than ninety (90) days after the date of the invoice.. K12 will provide written notice of any price increase 
to Customer at least ninety (90) days’ prior to the start of the Renewal Period (if any) for which it would be applicable. Customer may, in its sole discretion, terminate 
the Agreement within thirty (30) days of such notice. Such termination will be effective at the end of the then-current Period or Renewal Period (if any). 

b) FLORIDA FULL-TIME VIRTUAL AND HOMESCHOOL WITHDRAWAL AND REFUND: When a student withdraws from a K12 course, or do not otherwise complete 
a course (as determined by then-current Florida law), Customer shall be entitled to a pro rata refund or credit for the specific course from which student withdrew or 
did not complete. For full-time student enrollments, the amount refunded or credited shall be determined by dividing the amount charged for student’s course enrollment 
by the total number of courses the student is taking to determine the “per course” cost. 

c) Note that Florida VIP Full-Time virtual students are not defined by number of courses, but rather as those students reported with both the K12 Florida provider code 
and the 7001 vendor code. Florida VIP Homeschool students are not defined by number of courses, but rather as those students reported with the K12 Florida provider 
code, the 7001 vendor code, and the N998 homeschool code 

 
Section 3: Florida Public Records 
 
K12 agrees that it will: 
(a) Keep and maintain public records (as defined by Section 119.011(12) F.S.) that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the Customer in order to perform the services 
herein. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 296 of 1019

DRAFT



8 of 46 
 

(b) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that the public agency would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the 
cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law. For the purposes of this contract, the Customer will forward to K12 such public records requests that it deems valid 
for non-privileged, non-confidential, non-exempt public records in K12’s possession. K12 will evaluate the request and provide the Customer with such public records in accordance 
with applicable Florida law. 
(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law. 
(d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the public agency all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the 
contract and, to the extent allowed by applicable law, destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. 
All records stored electronically must be provided to the public agency in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the public agency. 
 
Section 4: Program Monitoring 

The parties acknowledge that Customer shall regularly monitor the program and the provision of services under the program for compliance with Florida law and the terms of this 
Order.  The scope of monitoring includes, but is not limited to, verifying the following: 1) that the curriculum plan is followed; 2) that students have met graduation requirements set 
forth in F.S. 1002.3105(5), 1003.4281, or 1003.4282 (if applicable); 3) that K12 maintain the confidentiality of all education records and the information contain within; 4) that K12 
shall not disclose, unless allowed by applicable law or this Order, any education records without the prior written consent of the parent or Customer; and 5) that K12, to the extent 
require by this Order and Florida law, supplied every student participant with all instructional materials. 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 297 of 1019

DRAFT



9 of 46 
 

EXHIBIT B 

K12 Products and Services Agreement Terms 

PERIOD: The period of this Agreement is as specified in the Order ("Period").  

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES: Customer will be provided with those products and services, including where applicable a limited, non-exclusive, 
nontransferable license, without sublicense rights, for access to K12 or its Affiliates online courses, curriculum, learning management system and applicable 
instructional tools and online services, for the Period and Renewal Period (if any). 

PRICE AND PAYMENT: The prices and billing terms for the products, services, and licenses will be as set forth on the Order, except as set forth herein. 
Invoices shall be submitted to Customer by K12 or its Affiliates and full payment of such invoices shall be due by Customer no more than thirty (30) days from 
Customer’s receipt of an invoice. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement, if full payment is not timely received, K12, in its sole discretion, may 
cease the provision of any or all products, services, and licenses. Customer agrees to pay interest at one and one quarter percent (1.25%) per month on any 
unpaid balance from the due date. If Customer wishes to dispute any charge invoiced to Customer by K12 or its Affiliates, Customer must submit a good faith 
claim regarding the Disputed Amount, in a format clearly delineated to coincide with the format of the disputed invoice and with documentation as may 
reasonably be required by K12 and its Affiliates to support the claim no later than ninety (90) days after the date of the invoice. K12 reserves the right to change 
the prices set forth in any Order no more often than once per Renewal Period (if any). K12 will provide written notice of any price increase to Customer at least 
ninety (90) days' prior to the start of the Renewal Period (if any) for which it would be applicable. Customer may, in its sole discretion, terminate the Agreement 
within thirty (30) days of such notice. Such termination will be effective at the end of the then-current Period or Renewal Period (if any). 

TAXES: Customer represents that it is exempt from sales and use taxes imposed by the state and local governmental divisions in which it is located. Customer 
must provide K12 with Customer's exemption certificates or other proof of Customer tax-exempt status reasonably acceptable to K12. 

TERMINATION: Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time with ninety (90) days' prior written notice to the other party for cause. Termination for 
cause may be used if a party breaches any material term or fails to fulfill any representation, warranty, or material condition, term, provision or obligation 
contained in this Agreement and fails to cure within thirty (30) days of such notice from the terminating party. Upon termination, the non-breaching party shall 
be entitled to seek any remedies to which it shall be entitled at law or in equity. If any change in applicable law that is enacted after the date hereof could 
reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the ability of any party to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, such party, upon written 
notice to the other party may request renegotiation of this Agreement. Such renegotiation shall be undertaken in good faith. If the parties are unable to 
renegotiate and agree upon revised terms within 120 days of such notice of renegotiation, then this Agreement shall be terminated effective at the end of the 
school year in which such notice was given. Termination of this Agreement does not relieve Customer of any obligations for payments outstanding to K12 as 
of the date of termination and does not relieve either party of any obligations that continue upon termination. 

INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS: Customer will provide K12 with all information reasonably required by K12 to provide the products, services, and licenses. 

FERPA AND CONFIDENTIALITY: If Customer is a public entity receiving federal Title I funds, Customer represents that K12 is a "school official" with a 
"legitimate educational interest" under the definitions of those terms set forth in the Customer's Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA") 
notification(s) to students and parents during the Period and Renewal Periods (if any) of this Agreement. K12 agrees to develop, implement, maintain and use 
appropriate administrative, technical or physical security measures to the full extent required by FERPA in order to maintain the confidentiality of "education 
records" as that term is defined by FERPA. Customer recognizes and agrees that for purposes of all applicable laws, K12 has a legitimate educational interest 
for purposes of Customer disclosing to K12 students' education records. Regardless of whether Customer is a public entity receiving federal Title I funds, to 
the extent permitted by applicable law K12 or its affiliates may provide Customer with confidential information (as designated by K12) required by Customer in 
writing for its internal use or reporting to regulatory authorities. Customer agrees to develop, implement, maintain and use appropriate administrative, technical 
or physical security measures to maintain the confidentiality of such confidential information. 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS, SPECIAL EDUCATION, AND DISABILITIES: If Customer is a public entity receiving federal Title III and/or Title I funds, 
Customer agrees that it is the Local Educational Agency responsible for the provision of English Language Learner education and special education. Although 
K12 or its Affiliates may provide products and services that may be used in furtherance of professional development programs and/or language instruction 
education programs for English Language Learners, Customer is responsible for the provision and/or implementation of any services of any nature as required 
by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Equal Educational Opportunities Act, the English Language Acquisition, Language Enhancement, and Academic 
Achievement Act or any similar law, whether federal, state or local. The provision of special education, the creation, implementation or provision of Individualized 
Education Programs, the provision of reasonable accommodations or any services of any nature under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act or any similar law, whether federal, state or local are not services provided under this 
Agreement. Notwithstanding the forgoing, during the Period and Renewal Period (if any) of this Agreement, K12 will discuss, formulate and make adjustments 
and accommodations in furtherance of IEPs or reasonable accommodations established by Customer, but solely to the extent that K12 may do so without 
incurring direct or indirect costs. 

PUBLICITY: During the Period and Renewal Period (if any) of this Agreement, Customer hereby agrees that K12 and its Affiliates shall have the right, but not 
the obligation, to list Customer as a customer in other materials promoting the Content. K12 will remove Customer's name from any such list within thirty (30) 
days after any termination of this Agreement. 

AUDIT RIGHTS: This paragraph shall only be applicable if a Non-Hosted Solution is applicable to the order. Customer shall maintain books and records in 
connection with its use of the non-hosted courses for the Period of this Agreement and for at least three (3) years after the date this Agreement terminates or 
expires. K12 or its representatives may audit the relevant books and records of Customer during the Period of this Agreement, and for three (3) years after the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 298 of 1019

DRAFT



10 of 46 
 

expiration of this Agreement to ensure compliance with this Agreement. Any such audit shall be conducted during regular business hours at Customer's facilities 
and shall not unreasonably interfere with Customer's business activities. Audits shall be conducted no more than once annually. If an audit reveals that 
Customer has underpaid fees due to K12 or its Affiliates, all such fees shall be paid immediately, together with interest at the rate of prime plus one percent 
(1%); and in the event such underpayment is in excess of five percent (5%) of the total owed to K12 or its Affiliates for any given audit period, then Customer 
shall, in addition, reimburse to K12 or its Affiliates the reasonable costs of conducting the audit. In connection with the license grants set forth in these Terms, 
(i) K12 or its Affiliates may monitor actual usage of the courses and (ii) at periodic intervals designated by K12 or its Affiliates in accordance with its then current 
practices, may request that Customer deliver to K12 or its Affiliates in writing a summary of the actual number of students that are currently enrolled and using 
the courses. Unless otherwise set forth in the applicable Order, all license Fees shall be payable in accordance with the number of students determined 
pursuant to the Reporting Process. 

WARRANTY: K12 warrants that the services will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner in accordance with commercially reasonable industry 
standards. THE FOREGOING WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING, 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND K12 MAKES NO 
GUARANTEES AS TO THE RESULTS OR ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE STUDENTS. WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING, K12 MAKES NO GUARANTEES 
AND SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR OUTAGES OR OTHER NON-ACCESSIBILITY TO THE K12 WEBSITE, END-USER CONNECTION SPEED OR 
CONNECTIVITY PROBLEMS REGARDLESS OF THE CAUSE. K12 OFFERS NO WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO ANY THIRD PARTY PRODUCTS OR 
SERVICES PROVIDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT. K12 DOES NOT WARRANT THAT USE THE SITE OR CONTENT WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED 
OR ERROR-FREE, THAT ERRORS WILL BE CORRECTED OR THAT IT WILL BE FREE OF VIRUSES OR OTHER HARMFUL COMPONENTS. 

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY: Customer acknowledges and agrees that all courses, content, software, graphics, pictures, documents, licenses, designs, and 
materials, and any and all derivatives thereof (collectively, Works) made available to Customer pursuant to this Agreement are protected by copyrights, 
trademarks, service marks, patents, trade secrets, or other proprietary rights and laws and K12 (or its Affiliates or licensors) own all right, title and interest in 
and to the Works. Customer acknowledges and agrees that it has no intellectual property interest or claims in the Works and has no rights to make any use of 
such Works except as expressly granted herein. Except as expressly authorized in writing by an officer of K12, Customer agrees not to sell, license, sublicense, 
rent, modify, distribute, copy, reproduce, transmit, publicly display, publicly perform, publish, adapt, edit, or create derivative works from any of the Works. 
Customer will not act or permit any action that would impair any of K12's (or its Affiliates' or licensors') rights in the Works. Customer agrees not to: (a) 
disassemble, reverse compile, reverse engineer or otherwise attempt to discover the source code of or trade secrets embodied in the Works (or any portion 
thereof); (b) distribute, lend, rent, sell, transfer, or grant sublicenses to, or otherwise make available the Works (or any portion thereof) to third parties, including, 
but not limited to, making such Works available (i) through resellers, OEMs, other distributors, or (ii) as an application service provider, service bureau, or rental 
source, unless expressly permitted in the Order; (c) embed or incorporate in any manner the Works (or any element thereof) into other applications of Customer 
or third parties; (d) use or transmit the Works in violation of any applicable law, rule or regulation, including any export/import laws, (e) in any way access, use, 
or copy any portion of the Works (including the logic and/or architecture thereof and any trade secrets included therein) to directly or indirectly develop, promote, 
distribute, sell or support any product or service that is competitive with the Works, (f) remove, obscure or alter any copyright notices or any name, logo, tagline 
or other designation of K12 or its Affiliates displayed on any portion of the Works. Customer shall not permit any third party to perform any of the foregoing 
actions and shall be responsible for all damages and liabilities incurred as a result of such actions. Customer acknowledges that in the event Customer breaches 
any provision contained in this paragraph, K12's interests will be irreparably injured, the full extent of K12's damages may be impossible to ascertain, and 
monetary damages will not be an adequate remedy. Customer agrees that K12 will be entitled to enforce this agreement by an injunction or other legal or 
equitable relief in any court of its choice without the necessity of posting bond or security, in addition to its right to seek monetary damages or any other remedy. 

INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: K12 agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Customer and its employees, contractors, officers, 
and board members from and against any and all liabilities, claims, damages, injuries, judgments, demands and expenses, including court costs and attorney's 
fees, that arise out of or in connection with any acts or omissions of K12 related to or arising from this Agreement (collectively "Claims") except to the extent 
that such Claims arise out of actions or omissions of Customer and subject to the conditions precedent that a) Customer provide written notice to K12 within 
thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Claim and b) Customer permits K12 to assume the control and defense of the Claim with counsel selected by K12. IN NO 
EVENT SHALL K12'S LIABILITY TO CUSTOMER AND ITS EMPLOYEES, CONTRACTORS, OFFICERS AND BOARD MEMBERS UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT OR FOR ANY MATTER OR CAUSE OF ACTION ARISING IN CONNECTION HEREWITH EXCEED THE AMOUNT PAID BY CUSTOMER TO 
K12 HEREUNDER. IN NO EVENT SHALL K12 BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER, WHETHER UNDER THEORY OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, FOR 
ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR SPECIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING ANY DAMAGE TO BUSINESS REPUTATION, LOST 
PROFITS OR LOST DATA), WHETHER FORESEEABLE OR NOT AND WHETHER K12 IS ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. To the 
extent permitted by law, Customer agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless K12 and its Affiliates and all of their employees, contractors, officers, and 
board members from and against any and all liabilities, claims, damages, injuries, judgments, demands and expenses, including court costs and attorney's 
fees, that arise out of or in connection with any acts or omissions of Customer related to or arising from this Agreement (collectively "Claims") except to the 
extent that such Claims arise out of actions or omissions of K12 and subject to the conditions precedent that a) K12 provide written notice to Customer within 
thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Claim and b) K12 permits Customer to assume the control and defense of the Claim with counsel selected by Customer. 
No provision or language in this paragraph or the underlying contract shall be construed or interpreted to increase the scope or dollar limit of the Customer’s 
liability beyond that which is set forth in section 768.28 of the Florida Statutes. Nor shall any such language be construed or interpreted to waive the Customer’s 
sovereign immunity from suit, or to require the Customer to indemnify K12 or any other person, corporation or legal entity of any kind or nature whatsoever for 
injury or loss resulting from any acts or omissions other than those which arise from the actionable negligence of the Customer or its agents or employees. 
The Customer expressly reserves all other protections and privileges related to its sovereign immunity. 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION: The parties agree that they will use their best efforts to settle any and all disputes arising out of, under or in connection with this 
Agreement, including without limitation the validity, interpretation, performance and breach hereof, prior to initiating any legal proceeding, whether judicial or 
administrative in nature. The efforts shall be primarily between the President of K12 and the Superintendent of the Customer or their respective designees. 
The laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, without regard to its conflict of laws provisions, will govern all disputes arising out of or related to this Agreement, 
including the validity, enforceability or construction thereof. Each party submits to the jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located in the Commonwealth 
of Virginia for purposes of any action, suit or proceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement and agrees not to plead or claim that any action, suit or 
proceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement that is brought in such courts has been brought in an inconvenient forum. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 299 of 1019

DRAFT



11 of 46 
 

INSURANCE. K12 will, at its own expense, maintain commercial general liability insurance (including personal injury, advertising injury and contractual liability) 
with a minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 per occurrence and in the aggregate, professional liability insurance with a minimum limit of liability of $500,000 
per claim and in the aggregate, automobile insurance with a minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 combined single limit and workers’ compensation insurance 
in the minimum amounts required by statute. All policies other than the workers’ compensation policy shall name Customer as an Additional Insured.  K12 
shall, upon execution of this Agreement and upon request of Customer, send a certificate of insurance to show that the policies are in full force and effect and 
set forth the limits of liability.  K12 shall not cancel the insurance policies nor cause them to be cancelled. 

MISCELLANEOUS: a) A waiver of any part of this Agreement in one instance is not a waiver of any other part or any other instance; b) If any part of this 
Agreement is held invalid or if the applicability of any part of this Agreement is held invalid to a particular set of circumstances for any reason, such holding or 
declaration shall not in any way affect or impair the remaining provisions or the application to a different set of circumstances; c) Except as otherwise provided 
in this Agreement, neither party may assign or delegate any rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party and 
any such assignments shall be void and of no effect, except that K12 may assign all of its rights and obligations under this Agreement to any person or entity 
that controls K12, is controlled by K12, or is under common control with K12 or to any successor in interest that acquires all or substantially all of the assets of 
K12; d) This Agreement does not create any legal or equitable rights on the part of any third party, as a third party beneficiary or otherwise; e) K12 is not a 
division or any part of Customer. Customer is not a division or any part of K12. Nothing herein is intended to be construed as or to create a partnership or joint 
venture by or between K12 and Customer; f) Notwithstanding any other section of this Agreement, no party will be liable for any delay in performance or, except 
with respect to payment hereunder, inability to perform due to acts of God or due to war (declared or undeclared), riot, terrorism, civil war, embargo, fire, flood, 
explosion, sabotage, labor strike, internet outage or other acts beyond its reasonable control and unrelated to its fault or negligence; g) Customer and all users 
of licensed products shall comply with the terms and conditions of the Terms of Use pertaining to the use of courseware, web sites and learning management 
systems, as such terms are set forth therein; h) All representations, warranties and indemnities made in this Agreement will survive termination of this 
agreement; i) This Agreement and the documents to which it refers form the entire Agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter herein. 
Customer may not rely on any other documents, proposals, statements, or representations by any sales or service representatives or other parties, unless 
expressly contained herein; j) Fuel Education LLC will provide all services, licenses and materials under this Agreement either directly or in conjunction with its 
Affiliates. An "Affiliate" of Fuel Education LLC is an entity that controls, is controlled by, or under common control with, Fuel Education LLC and "control" means 
the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management policies of an entity, whether through the ownership of 
securities, by contract or otherwise. Fuel Education LLC and its Affiliates shall be referred to collectively as K12; k) All written notices required by the terms of 
this Agreement will be sent to the Superintendent of the Customer at the address set forth above and to the General Counsel of K¹² at 2300 Corporate Park 
Drive, Herndon, VA 20171 (and such addresses may be changed upon proper notice to such addressees). Notice may be given by either certified or registered 
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or reputable overnight carrier, postage prepaid and is deemed to have been given three days after mailing or, 
as to overnight delivery, on the date of personal delivery to the address stated thereon. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 300 of 1019

DRAFT



12 of 46 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

K12 FLORIDA LLC DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Section 1002.45, Florida Statutes., requires the Provider to publish, for the general public, and as part 
of this application and any subsequent applications or contracts with school districts, the following 
information: 

 

SOURCE OF ORIGIN OF CURRICULUM AND COURSE CONTENT 

• Information and data about the curriculum of each full-time and part-time program. Please 
include, at minimum, the source or origin of curriculum and course content, specific research 
and best practice used in design, the basis for and frequency of revisions, research related to 
effectiveness of curriculum, evidence that content and assessments are accurate, free of bias, 
and accessible for students with disabilities and limited English proficiency. Post a list 
identifying the National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) approval status for each 
applicable high school course offered. 

 

K12 Florida LLC (“K12”), currently authorized by the Florida Department of Education to participate 

with school districts in the Virtual Instruction Program as well as to provide virtual instruction services 

to cyber charter schools, is a wholly owned subsidiary of K12 Inc., the largest provider of individualized 

online education programs primarily for students in kindergarten through high school in the U.S.  K12 

Inc. was founded in 2000 to utilize advances in technology to provide children with access to a high- 

quality public school education regardless of their geographic location or socioeconomic background. 

In the 2017-2018 school year, K12 Inc. and its subsidiaries served full-time students in public schools 

we managed in thirty-three states and the District of Columbia. We also served public school districts 

and schools in all 50 states through our Institutional Sales business, Fuel Education LLC (“FuelEd”), 

providing curriculum, technology solutions, teachers, professional development and other support 

services customized to school and/or district needs. 

 

K12 Inc. has invested to develop and acquire curriculum and online learning platforms that promote 

mastery of core concepts and skills for students of all abilities using the K12 Inc. suite of services and 

instructional curriculum and courseware which we will collectively refer to as “K12” in this document 

(currently including K12, FuelEd Online Courses, Anywhere Learning System, Middlebury Interactive 

Languages, LTS Education Systems, LearnBop and Career Pathways curriculum). K12 Inc. provides a 

continuum of technology-based educational products and solutions to cyber charter schools, public 

school districts, public schools, private schools, and families as we strive to transform the educational 

experience into one that delivers individualized education on a highly scalable basis. As an innovator in 

K-12 online education, we believe we have attained distinctive core competencies that allow us to meet 

the varied needs of our school customers and students and have shown academic success and 

achievement in the schools we serve. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 301 of 1019

DRAFT



13 of 46 
 

CURRICULUM AND COURSE CONTENT 
 
The design, development, and delivery of K12’s curriculum are grounded in a set of guiding principles 

that promote critical thinking and problem solving skills to prepare students for the demands of the 21st 

Century. K12 uses “big ideas” in every subject area to organize the explicit learning objectives for each 

course. K12 content experts have developed a clear understanding of those subjects and concepts that 

are often difficult for students to grasp. Greater instructional effort is focused on the most important 

concepts (the biggest ideas) and on the most challenging concepts and skills (as revealed by experience 

and research). K12 uses existing research, feedback from parents and students, and experienced teacher 

judgments to determine these priorities and to modify K12’s learning systems to guide the allocation of 

each student’s time and effort. 

 

The K12 curriculum aligns to the Common Core State Standards, the Next Generation Science 

Standards, and the iNACOL National Standards for Quality Online Courses. The objectives are crafted 

from educational research, state and national standards, and deep content expertise. Each course clearly 

identifies the objectives to be mastered in each lesson, unit, and semester. The lesson objectives are 

clearly defined in each unit and lesson on the learning platform in the Lesson Resources section. 

 

Several types of multimedia are standard in the K12 curriculum and used strategically to engage 

different learning intelligences, particularly visual and kinesthetic learners who are often harder to 

engage through traditional teaching methods: 

 

• Audio: maximize the learner’s ability to process information without being overwhelmed by 

visuals 

• Photographs/illustrations:  help represent, organize, and interpret the content 

• Interactive activities: used to segment content, personalize learning, promote agency in learning, 
and offer opportunity to engage in activities incrementally increasing in cognitive difficulty (See 
Interactive Framework, below) 

• Technology-Enhanced Item types: offer students opportunity to demonstrate varying depths of 

knowledge mimicking high-stakes testing demands 

• Animations/Videos:  used as concrete modeling of behavioral learning objectives, hooks to 

introduce real-world applications, and brings instruction to life 

 

As an example of interactive activities, many K12 science courses now include interactive virtual labs 

(vLabs). The vLabs offer highly engaging online experiments that enable students to demonstrate the 

scientific method, test a hypothesis, witness various outcomes, and examine sources of error. Course 

vLabs can be used to reinforce concepts learned in the hands-on labs or, when appropriate, supplement 

or replace certain onsite labs. 

 
Interactive Framework 

Enhancements to the K12 curriculum have introduced an interactive framework designed to fully reap 

the benefits of online learning. To achieve this, direct instruction and practice activities must do more 

than present students with text on a screen. New courses are carefully designed to match interactivity 

level to the cognitive level of the task at hand, based on research-backed principles of cognitive science. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 302 of 1019

DRAFT



14 of 46 
 

Enhancements to the K12 K-8 curriculum include a variety of innovative games embedded in the 

courses – full “stand-alone” but instructionally integrated games in over 500 locations throughout core 

subjects in grades K-8—plus countless smaller, game-like interactives. The K12 inventory of games is 

growing each semester. 

 

K12 has also launched mobile applications for iOS and Android devices which are available free to 

download from iTunes and Google Play. The mobile applications are in addition to the curriculum and 

are designed to allow students to practice skills at any time. 

 

In addition to the online curriculum, the K12 curriculum provides students with interactive offline 

learning in a number of ways: 

 

• Multiple ways to complete questions, self-assessments, and study guides 

• A variety of hands-on manipulatives and supplies to encourage investigation and make the 

course as much about offline learning as online learning 

• Live web-based teacher-student interactions provide for 1:1 and/or group learning. These 
activities generate opportunities for student communication through remediation, practice, 
critical thinking, short projects, and more. 

 
Elementary and Middle School Curriculum 

From Kindergarten through 8th grade, K12 courses are categorized into seven major subject areas – 

math, science, language arts/English, history, art, music, and world languages – plus adaptive K-5 math 

courses and supplemental courses. The proprietary elementary and middle school curriculum includes 

the courses that students need to complete their core kindergarten through eighth grade education, with 

more than 700 engaging lessons in each subject. These courses focus on developing fundamental skills 

and teaching the key knowledge building blocks or schemas that each student needs to master the major 

subject areas, meet state standards and complete more advanced coursework. The curriculum includes 

assessments built into nearly every lesson to ensure mastery and provide for remediation or enrichment 

where necessary. 

 

Math: K12's elementary (grades K-5) Math program is designed to establish fluency in arithmetical 

computation (daily-life, functional math) while also deepening the ability to reason mathematically 

(conceptual math). A suite of courses collectively called Summit Math represents K12’s second 

generation of research and development into effective approaches in early mathematics instruction and 

current e-learning instructional design. 

 

K12’s Math courses emphasize an active, multi-sensory approach to ensure that students understand the 

concrete realities that underlie mathematical concepts. Regular practice and review ensures mastery of 

basic skills. Embedded online games and animations motivate students and help illustrate concepts, 

while challenge problems help develop critical thinking skills. 

 

In Math Plus courses, many lesson assessments are linked to backup adaptive lessons for students 

needing extra practice. The engaging approach features colorful graphics and animation; learning tools, 

and games; adaptive activities that help struggling students master concepts and skills before moving on; 

and focused support for Learning Coaches to help their children succeed. From helping younger students 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 303 of 1019

DRAFT



15 of 46 
 

make the link between the concrete and the abstract to immersing older students in the symbolic 

manipulations of Algebra, K12 Math provides a thorough mathematical grounding. 

 

Science: K12 offers real science for young students. The program balances hands-on experience with 

systematic study of scientific terms and concepts. Students receive lab supplies and materials that give 

them a hands-on experience to enhance their understanding of experimental procedures and scientific 

concepts. Exploring life, earth, and physical sciences in each grade, K12 science nurtures curiosity, 

analytical skills, and an appreciation of how the world is shaped by ongoing scientific and technological 

advances. 

 

Students learn about the human body, plants and animals, rocks and minerals, stars, matter, motion, 

electricity, magnetism, and much more. Through hands-on experiments, the program helps students 

develop skills of observation and analysis, and learn how scientists understand our world, using 

materials shipped to students in kits. This fundamental instructional practice of applied science has 

prepared the K12 science courses for the Next Generation Science Standards, with their notable 

emphasis on applied science in the NGSS’s newly explicit engineering strand. 

 

Language Arts/English: K12 Language Arts/English courses help students develop important reading 

and writing skills, while also inspiring a love of literature. Combining Phonics, Literature, Language 

Skills, and Spelling lessons, the Language Arts/English program emphasizes classic works from a 

diverse range of cultures and traditions, documentary and non-fiction texts, and writing as a process, and 

so prepares students well for standardized tests in the areas of language skills and reading 

comprehension. Younger children learn the basics of phonics and grammar and prepare for reading 

through systematic, multi-sensory activities; while older students develop literary analysis and 

comprehension skills by reading novels and nonfiction works. 

 

History: K12 emphasizes the story in History—a story that includes not only great women and men but 

also everyday people. With integrated topics in Geography and Civics, K12 History opens young minds 

and imaginations to far-off lands, distant times, and diverse cultures. The kindergarten History program 

takes students on a world tour of the seven continents and provides an overview of American History 

through a series of biographies of famous Americans. The History program in grades 1–4 tells the story 

of civilization from the Stone Age to the Space Age, while students in grades 5 and up explore major 

themes and topics in greater depth through survey courses in American and World History. As required 

in Florida, a civics education course is offered as preparation to pass the Florida Civics EOC 

Assessment to be eligible for promotion from middle school. 

 

Art:  Following timelines parallel to those of the History lessons, K12 Art lessons introduce students to 

great works of art from different cultures and eras, while engaging them in creative activity, including 

painting, drawing, sculpting, and weaving using materials such as oil pastels, crayons, molding clay, 

plaster, yarn, and more. Students are introduced to the elements of art—line, shape, color—and identify 

different types of artworks such as portrait, landscape, and still life as they learn about important 

paintings, sculpture, and architecture. They study the works of famous artists and learn about different 

artistic movements such as Impressionism and Cubism and explore artistic traditions of diverse lands 

and cultures. Students also create their own works of art similar to those they have learned about, such 

as mobiles, collages, and stained glass. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 304 of 1019

DRAFT



16 of 46 
 

Music: Spotlight on Music explores and builds foundational music skills. This course offers a variety 

of learning activities that include singing, dancing, virtual instruments, listening maps, and authentic 

sound recordings. Music comes to life in the course through six units that are organized into three 

sections: Spotlight on Concepts, Spotlight on Music Reading, and Spotlight on Celebrations. Students 

learn about these musical elements: duration, pitch, design, tone color, expressive qualities, and cultural 

context. Students explore music from around the world while also exploring beat, meter, rhythm, 

melody, harmony, texture, form, tone color, dynamics, tempo, style, and music background.  Students 

also have the opportunity to perform seasonal and celebratory songs. 

 

World Languages: K12 offers the only online language-learning program designed specifically for 

students in the lower elementary grade levels. The K12 offering in World Languages, Middlebury 

Interactive Languages, gives students a choice of World Language courses and helps students to read, 

write, speak, and listen for meaning in the languages they choose to study, with an overall emphasis on 

proficiency. Combining a variety of games, simple narratives, and regular writing and speaking 

challenges, the World Language program highlights common vocabulary terms and phrases, introducing 

younger students to a wide range of grammar patterns, while helping older students master numerous 

grammar principles. Courses prepare students to put their new language to use, incorporating the 

vocabulary and patterns they have learned. 

 

In addition, culture lessons challenge younger students to recognize different cultural manifestations, 

while older students analyze and compare practices and perspectives of various cultures. Because 

learning a language involves a variety of learning skills, studying a foreign language can enhance a 

student’s ability to learn and function in several other areas. Children who have studied a language at the 

elementary level score higher on tests in reading, language arts, and math. People who have learned 

foreign languages show greater cognitive development in areas such as mental flexibility, creativity, and 

higher order thinking skills, such as problem-solving, conceptualizing, and reasoning. 

 

In addition to cognitive benefits, the study of foreign languages leads to the acquisition of some 

important life skills. Because language learners learn to deal with unfamiliar cultural ideas, they are 

much better equipped to adapt and cope in a fast-changing world. They also learn to effectively handle 

new situations. In addition, the encounter with cultures different from one's own leads to tolerance of 

diverse lifestyles and customs and it improves the learner's ability to understand and communicate with 

people from different walks of life. 

 
High School Curriculum 

Whether targeting a top-tier, four-year university; a local community college; or an immediate career, 

high school students can choose from an array of appropriately paced course offerings in order to 

maximize their post-high school success. 

 

K12 courses meet all graduation requirements, and the diversity of electives is designed both to help 

students earn their high school diploma and find their own path to post-high school success. 

 

Math, English, Science, and History courses are offered in a range of levels (Core, Comprehensive, 

Honors, and Advanced Placement; see details below). Unlike other programs, where a student must be 

on a particular “academic path”, the K12 program allows students to chart their own course, choosing 

from a number of levels of courses designed to match various aptitudes and goals. So, if a student excels 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 305 of 1019

DRAFT



17 of 46 
 

in Math and Science, they may take all Honors/AP courses in those subjects, while choosing from 

among Core or Comprehensive versions of English and History courses. These multiple course levels 

prevent students from being “locked in” to one level of a particular subject and reflect and support the 

natural progress and growth of each student. Foundational and credit recovery courses are offered to 

meet the needs of diverse learners. 

 

K12 continues to invest in the high school curriculum to improve accessibility and interoperability with 

mobile devices. Most K12-produced textbooks, reference guides, literature readers, and lab manuals are 

now offered in a digital, online format (PDFs, eBooks) and are optimized for use with mobile devices. 

New content is developed following mobile-first development practices and support responsive design. 

 

By using the K12 high school curriculum, the School allows students to harness the power of 

individualized learning by choosing from the following levels of Math, English, Science, and History 

courses: 

 

• Core courses: Topics are broken into discrete modules that are taught in tandem with the 

framework students need to develop strong study skills. Rich, engaging content with interactive 

demonstrations and activities help students absorb and retain information. 

 

• Comprehensive courses: Students do more extensive writing and research projects, and tackle 

problems that require more analytical thinking. Course projects and activities also demand more 

independent thinking and self-discipline than projects in Core courses. 

 

• Honors courses: Students are held to a greater degree of accountability in which they must show 

even greater independence and self-discipline. Students synthesize and evaluate information and 

concepts from multiple sources and read texts typically assigned in college-level courses. 

Students also demonstrate college-level writing in essays that require analysis of primary and 

secondary sources, responsible use of evidence, and comprehensive citation of sources. Honors 

projects—emphasizing duration over time, group and collaborative work, and communication 

skills—are inspired by the principles embodied in the 21st Century Skills Initiative. 

 

• Advanced Placement (AP) Courses: The K12 curriculum offers an AP array that is far larger 

than that in most conventional brick-and-mortar schools. K12 re-evaluates its AP catalog of 

courses in accordance with changing College Board guidelines, and student and school requests. 

AP courses are college-level courses that follow curriculum frameworks specified by the College 

Board. These courses are designed to prepare students for success on AP exams, providing 

students the opportunity to earn credit at many of the nation’s colleges and universities. 

 

In SY2018-2019, K12 offers 17 Advanced Placement courses. Syllabi for those courses were 

officially approved through the College Board’s AP audit process from August through 

November 2018. 

 

History: K12 high school History emphasizes the narrative of History—a narrative story that includes 

great historical figures as well as everyday people, and the governments, arts, belief systems, and 

technologies they have developed in various cultures over time. These History courses meet state and 

national standards for content and skills and are offered at levels appropriate to the student’s needs. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 306 of 1019

DRAFT



18 of 46 
 

Courses in World History, Modern World History, United States History, and Modern United States 

History combine stunning textbooks (in both conventional and online formats) published by K12 and 

integrated with interactive online lessons that guide students’ reading, reinforce major concepts, allow 

students to practice the skills of the historian, and enrich student learning through virtual field trips, 

discussion boards, and a variety of research and skills activities. Online lessons also integrate topics in 

Geography, Civics, and Economics into the study of history. Economics and U.S. Government courses 

are also offered to meet graduation requirements. 

 

English: K12 high school English courses are designed to engage students in reading quality literature, 

writing in diverse genres, and communicating ideas in a variety of media. All courses offer students the 

opportunity to read short stories, novels, dramas, poetry, and nonfiction from classic and contemporary 

authors. Students demonstrate their mastery of literal and inferential comprehension and then progress to 

more complex tasks of literary analysis and interpretation. K12 English courses focus on the craft of 

writing and the development of oral and written communication skills in standard (formal) English 

through structured lessons in composition, which include opportunities for teachers to provide frequent 

feedback so that students may revise and refine their work. By engaging in systematic practice in 

vocabulary, grammar, usage, and mechanics, and reading comprehension, students hone critical skills 

which are frequently found in standardized assessments. 

 

Science: K12 offers a complete high school curriculum in science. The curriculum includes courses in 

physical science, biology, earth science, chemistry, physics and environmental science. 

 

K12 science courses provide hands-on exploration: courses have the option to use real materials to 

conduct scientific laboratory investigations at home. Options also exist to take these courses using 

virtual laboratories that reflect actual laboratory experience in a virtual setting. Throughout the sweep of 

K12 high school science courses, students become familiar with, and practice using, science processes 

and scientific methods. They develop skills in areas such as questioning, hypothesizing, data collection 

and analysis, and forming scientific conclusions. Each K12 high school science course prepares students 

for college science courses, not only by providing solid, scientifically accurate content but also by 

developing laboratory awareness and skills, and by firmly anchoring students in scientific principles. 

 

Math:  K12 high school Math balances mastery of fundamental skills with critical thinking and 

problem-solving. The program emphasizes an active, research-based approach to ensure that each 

student understands the mathematical concepts, but also is able to master critical skills. Each course has 

both online and offline components. Online exploration, narration, and interactive activities help 

students develop and hone understanding of key concepts and skills. Online lessons also include worked 

examples that provide guidance and scaffolding to help students make connections between the concepts 

and the skills. Some worked examples are animated to bring the math to life, while others provide 

students with the ability to interact with a structured, partially-completed problem. 

 

The textbooks (in both offline and digital formats) provide reference information, more worked 

examples. Robust, well-sequenced problem sets so students can learn by practicing are offered in every 

math course whether online or offline. Each lesson also includes resources that help teachers and 

mentors support students. Formative assessments come in the form of computer-scored quizzes. 

Summative assessments include computer-scored as well as teacher-graded components with robust 

rubrics. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 307 of 1019

DRAFT



19 of 46 
 

 

Many courses are available in various levels including Core, Comprehensive, Honors, and AP. Among 

the math courses offered are Algebra I, Algebra II, and Geometry to meet graduation requirements. 

 

World Languages:  K12 offers a selection of World Languages for high school students that meet the 

graduation requirements for the 24 Credit Standard High School Diploma option and the 18 Credit 

Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) Diploma option. 

 
Elective Curriculum: 

K12’s core curriculum is enhanced by a wide array of electives that enriches students’ education in 

essential areas—including those identified by the 21st Century Skills and STEM initiatives—and will 

prepare students well for the world beyond high school. K12’s elective curriculum includes courses in: 

 

• World Languages: World Languages are increasingly important in the economy today, and 

students can take up to four years (including college-level AP) of courses in a variety of World 

Languages. K12’s online language courses include recording technology so students’ speaking 

ability can be accurately assessed by their teachers. Languages include: Spanish, French, 

German, Latin, Japanese, and Chinese. 

• Science: Special interests in science can be pursued in Environmental Science, Renewable 

Technologies, Astronomy, or Forensic Science. 

• Social Science: Students interested in the social sciences can elect to explore Anthropology, 

Psychology, Economics, Civics, Sociology, Family and Consumer Science, Archaeology, or 

Contemporary World Issues. 

• Fine Arts: Electives in the arts include Fine Art, Music Appreciation, and AP Art History. 

• Technology and Computer Science: A variety of technology and computer science courses are in 

K12’s portfolio, ranging from basic Computer Literacy to AP Computer Science. Students may 

explore career avenues with courses including Java Programming, Digital Art, Image Design and 

Editing, Audio Engineering, Engineering Design/CAD, C++ Programming, and Web Design. 

Technology and computer science courses are heavily project-based, and students complete the 

courses with portfolios of completed work. 

• Business: Students are given additional opportunities to explore careers with Introduction to 

Marketing I and II and Accounting. They can get practical experience in creating budgets, 

developing long-term financial plans to meet their goals, and making responsible choices about 

income and expenses with Personal Finance. Consumer Math’s comprehensive review and study 

of arithmetic skills has both personal and vocational applications. 

• Health and Physical Education: Students can earn credit and learn essential skills with the 

courses Skills for Health and Physical Education. Physical Education, which may be repeated for 

additional semesters as needed to meet state standards, requires daily physical activity, verified 

by a parent or mentor. Both courses are also available as credit recovery. 

• Communications: Students can pursue their interests in communications with courses in 

Journalism, Public Speaking, or Creative Writing. 

• Elective Advanced Placement courses: Including Macroeconomics, Microeconomics, and 

Psychology:  Depending on the policies of the college they attend, students may receive college 

credit, advanced placement, or both by taking the AP exam associated with an AP course and 

earning a score of 3 or higher. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 308 of 1019

DRAFT



20 of 46  

• College and Career Readiness: Students are guided through high school with a series of courses 

called Finding Your Path. These courses, which include K12’s school-counseling tool, help 

students navigate the unique challenges of each year of high school, plan ahead, and meet their 

goals. Other courses that focus on study skills, school success, and future plans include Reaching 

Your Academic Potential and Achieving Your Career and College Goals. Students may also get 

valuable work experience and school credit for projects they design themselves in Service 

Learning. Examples of college and Career Readiness courses include: 

 
Career Technical Education 

K12 recognizes that student plans after high school will vary and may include immediate immersion in 

the work force as well as post-secondary education. K12 has recently augmented their catalog and will 

continue to expand their offerings in the area of CTE to increase students’ career and industry readiness 

by high school graduation. Examples of these CTE offerings extend from individual courses that are part 

of their catalog to sequences of courses in programs that result in preparedness to earn industry- 

recognized certifications. 

 

K12 offers a wide range of CTE courses, from career exploration courses to in-depth content in 30 of the 

Career Pathways™ in six of the sixteen National Career Clusters™. K12 is continuing to develop 

additional exploration courses and in-depth courses based on other pathways identified in the National 

Career Cluster Framework. 

 
Remediation and Credit Recovery 

K12 and its curriculum experts are prepared to meet all students where they are. The K12 curriculum 

also provides two kinds of courses for struggling students, “at risk” students, and students who have not 

successfully completed courses required for graduation: 

 

• Remediation courses: These courses bring students up to grade level in math and English— 

guiding them through the skills and knowledge needed for success. Remediation courses 

evaluate students’ current knowledge and provide the instruction needed for them to successfully 

continue their studies at a high school level. 

• Credit recovery courses: These courses allow students to gain credit for courses they have 

previously taken and not completed successfully. They include diagnostic unit tests assessing 

students’ understanding of fundamental content and direct them to review or move ahead 

accordingly. Fresh, engaging content delivered with new approaches helps students grasp 

concepts they missed the first time. Designed to provide flexibility in delivering teacher support, 

these courses include computer-graded assignments and assessments with the option to augment 

teacher-graded assignments and assessments, as appropriate. 

 

SPECIFIC RESEARCH AND BEST PRACTICE USED IN DESIGN 
 
K12 provides a rich, research-based curriculum that has been proven to deliver strong student 

achievement and growth. The program is designed to meet the needs of diverse student populations by 

integrating multiple assessment tools, cognitive learning strategies, and instructional supports. The 

pedagogical approach incorporates development of a research-based curriculum with built-in cognitive 

science-based learning strategies and a design that anticipates and assesses for common misconceptions 

that interfere with student learning and progress. K12 provides a full service product unique in the e- 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 309 of 1019

DRAFT



21 of 46  

learning space through its award-winning curriculum and instructional supports, training, and 

professional development for teachers designed to leverage best practices from brick and mortar 

classrooms that are adapted to the e-learning environment. 

 
A Research-based Pedagogical Basis 

Extensive and ongoing research ensures that the K12 curriculum is based on sound principles of 

instructional design and delivery. The research base includes: 

 

• Research on the Structure of Expert Knowledge: (including mathematicians, scientists, 

historians, writers, and others) to map the relationships among big ideas, facts, and skills in each 

subject area 

 

• Research on General Instructional Principles: empirically-tested principles of online 

instruction using multimedia resources 

 

• Research on Teaching Specific Topics and Addressing Possible Misconceptions: helping 

students overcome misconceptions related to complex instructional objectives 

 

• iNACOL National Standards for Quality Online Courses, version 2: including online course 

guidelines for content, instructional design, student assessment, technology, and course 

evaluation and support 

 

• Proven Strong Student Achievement and Outcomes: performance evaluations based on a 

variety of assessments administered throughout the school year to inform and evaluate the 

teaching and learning cycle 

 

• A Curriculum Designed to Meet Diverse Needs: providing unit-level and lesson-level goals 

and objectives, online and offline activities, and other attributes to meet diverse student needs 

 

• Multiple Assessment Tools and Strategies: assessment tools and strategies linked to learning 

objectives allowing students to demonstrate what they have learned in a variety of ways 

 

• Cognitive Science Research on How Students Learn: K12 has an Assessment and Research 

team dedicated to reviewing and synthesizing cognitive science research who work with course 

development teams to ensure that K12 course developers draw on methods shown by scientific 

research to be effective in improving learning. The Assessment and Research team includes a 

doctorate-level cognitive science statistician who has conducted original research specific to e- 

learning teaching methods and tools in addition to studies of the effectiveness of their curricula. 

In addition to the cognitive science research that goes into K12 curriculum, the team also 

conducts evaluations of the assessment materials that are used to measure student performance as 

they move through the courses. The alignment between the cognitive research, student 

performance measurement, and instructional strategies are targeted to ensure best practice and 

student accessibility to K12 curriculum. 

 

K12 Inc. has documented how our courses are aligned to Florida online courses including alignment to 

the Florida Standards, the Mathematics Florida Standards (MAFS), Language Arts Florida Standards 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 310 of 1019

DRAFT



22 of 46  

(LAFS), and the Next Generation Sunshine State Standards for Science (NGSSS)). The K12 curriculum 

is also aligned to K12 Inc.’s mission to help students reach their full potential through inspired teaching 

and personalized learning. 
 

iNACOL National Standards for Quality Online Courses, version 2 

In 2007, the International Association for K-12 Online Learning (iNACOL) published standards based 

closely on work originally formulated by the Southern Regional Education Board (SREB). iNACOL’s 

standards outline quality guidelines for online courses—covering content, instructional design, student 

assessment, technology, and course evaluation and support. Schools and other educational organizations 

use these standards as a rubric for evaluating the quality of any online courses they wish to offer. The 

iNACOL standards were revised in late summer 2011. K12’s courses have been so widely recognized 

for embodying best practices for online learning that K12’s curriculum department was invited to join 

the committee for revising the standards. Version 2—published in October 2011—includes reformulated 

standards that are more easily applicable and verifiable in the growing landscape of different online 

scenarios. 

 

A K12 evaluation of its courses against the iNACOL standards reveals high marks for compliance. 

Documentation for alignment with the 2011 standards is available for review. 

 
Proven to Deliver Strong Student Achievement and Outcomes 

To assess the effectiveness of curriculum and instruction across all K12 public school programs (which, 

state by state, follow different standards and administer different assessments), K12 uses a variety of 

readiness, formative, summative, and state-required assessments at applicable grade levels. Readiness 

assessments offer an initial benchmark for student skill level in each core area, which allows teachers to 

differentiate instruction based on student needs. Summative and state-required assessments are used to 

measure student learning at culminating points in a student’s academic career, such as at the end of a 

semester or the end of the school year. Student performance is evaluated to inform and evaluate the 

teaching and learning cycle. 

 
A Curriculum Designed to Meet Diverse Needs 

• Each K12 course follows a carefully organized scope and sequence articulating measurable unit- 
level goals and lesson-level objectives that clearly state what students should know and be able 
to do at the end of the course. To help students master the objectives, K12 creates and assembles 
a wide variety of learning components to satisfy the diverse needs of students in multiple 
learning environments. 

 

• K12 lessons address multiple learning styles, including auditory, visual, and kinesthetic 

modalities. The online curriculum is designed in a rich, multimedia format to engage different 

learning intelligences, particularly visual and kinesthetic learners who are often harder to engage 

through traditional teaching methods. 

 

• Online and offline activities within the K12 curriculum can be adapted in ways to accommodate 

student needs, and new tools allow high school teachers to adjust and augment curriculum for 

individual students. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 311 of 1019

DRAFT



23 of 46  

• The K12 curriculum includes several types of activities to enhance students' critical thinking. As 

students develop factual knowledge, problem-solving skills, and conceptual understanding, they 

practice critical thinking through a variety of tasks that require them to reflect on what they’ve 

learned and how it applies to new tasks and situations. 

 

• K12 is committed to delivering a curriculum that is multicultural, pluralistic, and inclusive. 

Curriculum developers are trained in how to guard against demographic, geographic, political, 

racial, and intellectual bias. 

 
A Curriculum with Multiple Assessment Tools and Strategies 

• K12 assessments employ a variety of formats, allowing students to demonstrate what they have 
learned in a variety of ways, from online computer-scored multiple choice tests to extended 
performance tasks evaluated by the teacher. In many courses, teachers are provided detailed 
rubrics to guide evaluation. 

 

• K12’s assessments are consistently linked to clearly-stated learning objectives designed to 

capture varying depths of knowledge, including recall of factual information, deep understanding 

of concepts, strategic application of concepts and skills, and metacognitive knowledge. 

Instructional activities are built directly from the objectives and related to the assessment items, 

ensuring coherent alignment of objectives, instruction, and assessment. 

 

• Appropriate assessments are built into almost every lesson to evaluate mastery and guide 

instruction to remediation or enrichment. 

 
BASIS FOR AND FREQUENCY OF REVISION 

 

K12 Inc. reviews course content on a regular basis to update and enhance course content, materials, 

instructions and assessments. Every student and teacher benefits from courses including assessments 

that take advantage of the newest standards, proven instructional methods and the latest technology. 

Regardless of the reason, K12 Inc. is committed to maintain up-to-date, standards-based, fully aligned 

courses. K12 Inc. has an in-house product development team that stays in touch with changes and 

quickly acts to keep courses current. 

 

Each year our content development group prepares a development plan for new courses and course 

enhancements based on emerging needs, client feedback, and input from teaching staff. In general, K12 

courses are revised or redeveloped every few years, depending on age and changes in academic 

standards.  State and national standards are subject to review and change for any given year due to real 

world contexts. 

 

User feedback is reviewed daily and minor changes, called “maintenance”, are made throughout the year 

based on the feedback. Feedback is a crucial part of the course development process and maintenance of 

the course. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 312 of 1019

DRAFT



24 of 46  

RESEARCH RELATED TO EFFECTIVENESS OF CURRICULUM 
 
K12 Inc., using the K12 suite of services and instructional curriculum and courseware has shown 

academic success and achievement in the schools it serves across the country. 

• In 2018, AdvancED, a nonprofit nationwide accreditation agency for schools and school 

systems, renewed its five year quality assurance accreditation of K12 Inc. AdvancED is the 

world’s largest education community. AdvancED was created through a 2006 merger of the 

PreK-12 divisions of the North Central Association (NCA) and the Southern Association of 

Colleges and Schools (SACS)—and expanded through the 2011 acquisition of the Northwest 

Accreditation Commission (NWAC). 

 

AdvancED conducts rigorous, on-site external reviews of PreK-12 schools and school systems to 

ensure that all learners realize their full potential. AdvancED Education Service Agency (ESA) 

Accreditation is a systems approach to improving learner performance results over time. This 

Accreditation recognizes that increasing student achievement is more than improving instruction. 

It is a result of how effectively all the parts of the corporation - the leadership, schools, and 

classrooms served - work together to meet the needs of learners. 

 

To earn and maintain Accreditation, K12 Inc. must: 

• Meet quality standards set forth by AdvancED. 

• Engage in a continuous process of improvement. 

• Demonstrate quality assurance through internal (Self-Study) and external review (Quality 

Assurance Review). 

 
• In 2015, the FuelEd Instructional Services Team received a five year accreditation renewal from 

AdvancED to 2020.  The original accreditation was awarded in 2010. 

 

• In 2007, K12 Inc. managed public schools graduated their first cohort of just 12 students. Since 

that time, more than 40,000 students have earned a high school diploma including more than 

8,500 students who graduated in 2018 from online and blended schools using the K12 education 

program. Students graduating from K12 Inc. virtual schools have enrolled in hundreds of higher 

education institutions. They can be found attending selective universities, schools of liberal arts, 

culinary arts, business, fine arts, and top technology and fashion institutes, among 

others. Graduates are also going into careers--in the military, apprenticeship programs, on the 

job training or directly into the workforce. 

 
K12’s Suite of Curriculum Content and Assessment 

School leaders and teachers will review curriculum, assessments, and supplemental materials each year 

or upon a change in state standards and/or assessments, to ensure standards alignment and ability to 

differentiate instruction and assessment. This includes instructional mapping, which is a process for 

collecting and planning instruction using curriculum related data that identify core skills, processes 

employed, and priority standards for each subject area and grade level. Modifications will be made 

throughout the year as determined by the school leaders and teachers as necessary. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 313 of 1019

DRAFT



25 of 46  

K12’s highly credentialed subject matter experts bring their own scholarly and teaching backgrounds to 

course design and development and are required to maintain relationships with and awareness of 

guidelines from nearly 70 national and international subject area associations. 

 

• AAAL—American Association for Applied Linguistics 

• AAAS—American Association for the Advancement of Science 

• AAPT – American Association of Physics Teachers 

• AATF—American Association of Teachers of French 

• AATG—American Association of Teachers of German 

• AATSP—American Association of Teachers of Spanish and Portuguese 

• Accessible Book Consortium 

• ACL—American Classical League 

• ACTE – Association for Career and Technical Education 

• ACTFL—American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages 

• ADA National Network 

• ADP/Achieve.org—American Diploma Project from www.Achieve.org 

• Advance CTE 

• AERA—American Educational Research Association - http://www.aera.net 

• APA—American Philological Association 

• Assistive Technology Industry Association 

• CCSSO—Council of Chief State School Officers – www.ccsso.org 

• CEFR—Common European Framework of Reference for Languages 

• Center for Civic Education 

• Center on Online Learning and Students with Disabilities 

• CLTA—Chinese Language Teachers' Association 

• CRESST—National Center for Research on Evaluation, Standards, & Student Testing 

– www.cresst.org 

• Final Report 2008: Foundations for Success 

• Getty Education Institute for the Arts 

• Head Start 

• IAD—International Dyslexia Association 

• ILR—International Language Roundtable 

• ILTA—International Language Testing Association 

• iNACOL—International Association for K–12 Online Learning 

• IRA—International Reading Association 

• IUPAC—International Union of Pure and Applied Chemistry 

• MCREL—Mid Continent Research for Education and Learning 

• NAEA—National Art Education Association 

• NAEP—National Assessment of Educational Progress – www.nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard 

• NAS—National Academy of Science 

• NASPE—National Association for Sport and Physical Education 

• National Art Education Association 

• National Association for Gifted Children 

• National Association for Music Education 

• National Center on Accessible Education Materials 

• National Center on Universal Design for Learning 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 314 of 1019

DRAFT



26 of 46  

• National Geographic 

• National Mathematics Advisory Panel 

• NCAA 

• NCEE—National Council on Economic Education 

• NCES – National Center for Education Statistics – www.nces.ed.gov 

• NCHE—National Council for History Education 

• NCHS—National Center for History in the Schools 

• NCSA—National Conference on Student Assessment - http://www.ccsso.org/ncsa.html 

• NCSS—National Social Studies Standards 

• NCTE—National Council of Teachers of English 

• NCTM—National Council of Teachers of Mathematics 

• NETS/ISTE—National Educational Technology Standards from the International Society for 

Technology in Education 

• NGSS—Next Generation Science Standards 

• NICHD—National Institute of Child Health and Human Development 

• NIFL—National Institute for Literacy 

• NRP—National Reading Panel 

• NSTA—National Science Teachers Association 

• PARCC—Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers 

• Partnership for 21st Century Skills 

• PISA—Programme for International Student Assessment – www.oecd.org/pisa/aboutpisa 

• President's Council on Fitness, Sports, and Nutrition 

• Quality Indicators for Assistive Technology 

• Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium 

• Teachers of English to Speakers of Other Languages 

• The College Board 

• The President's Challenge 

• W3C—World Wide Web Consortium 

• WCAG—Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 

 

EVIDENCE THAT CONTENT IS FREE OF BIAS AND ACCESSIBLE FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES AND 
LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY 

 

Bias is prevented in both content and assessments by rigorous training of Content Specialists, Writers, 

Instructional Designers, Visual Designers, and Editors. The K12 Inc. Style Guidelines devote a section 

to how to guard against demographic, geographic, political, racial and intellectual bias. Here is our 

policy statement on the issue: 
 

Multiculturalism and the K12 Curriculum Within the American and Global Contexts 

 
The motto on the Great Seal of the United States—E pluribus unum (“out of many, one”)—affirms the 

bold ambition of our country to forge a unified nation out of a wide diversity of backgrounds and beliefs. 

At K12 Inc., we believe that students should understand and value both the pluribus and the unum—that 

they should learn about both the cultural diversity that distinguishes our nation and the common 

inheritance that unites us as Americans. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 315 of 1019

DRAFT



27 of 46  

The vision for K12 Inc. announced in 2007 placed that unifying American inheritance, which remains at 

the core of our curriculum, within a more global context: 

 

Our Vision: To provide any child access to exceptional and meaningful curriculum and tools that 

enables him or her to maximize his or her success in life regardless of geographic, financial, or 

demographic circumstance. The ideals of the italicized words were realized in 2008 through the 

creation of the K12 Inc. International Academy, now serving students around the world. 

 

To help our students grasp the common American inheritance within its global context, K12 Inc. is 

committed to developing a curriculum that is multicultural, pluralistic, and inclusive—a curriculum that 

seeks to weave many and diverse strands into the educational tapestry. Through this curriculum, we 

seek not only to educate students who are academically well prepared but also to develop students who 

 Understand the characteristics and contributions of American culture and cultures throughout 

the world. 

 Understand that societies reflect contributions from many cultures. 

 Develop attitudes of mutual acceptance and respect for others, regardless of heritage, 

background, gender, disability, or social status. 

 

To achieve these goals, we feel it is important to broaden students’ knowledge of the world beyond 

themselves; reach beyond the particularities of their immediate situation and singular heritage; and 

open their mind and imagination to a diverse range of people, cultures, ideas, and achievements. Mutual 

respect and understanding begin when one can transcend provincial limitations and see oneself as part 

of both an interdependent global community and a larger historical process. 

 

Accessibility for Students with Disabilities and Limited English Proficiency 
 
Since 2001, K12 Inc. has served students with disabilities. In the SY2015-2016 about 13.8% of students 

attending K12 Inc. virtual academies which are responsible for providing special education services are 

students with exceptionalities across all disability categories. Students with disabilities are served in 

accordance with federal and state regulations including Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

(and amendments thereto, at 29 USC Section 794 et seq. and its implementing regulations at 34 CFR 

Section 104), and the Individuals with Disabilities Educational Act (“IDEA” at 10 USC Section 14010  

et seq. and its implementing regulations at 34 CFR section 300). A free and appropriate education is 

provided to such students in accordance with their Individualized Education Programs (IEPs), as 

required by the IDEA, and 504 plans as required by Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the most 

recent, Americans with Disabilities Amendment Act (ADAA). K12 Product Development utilizes the 

Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0 Level A and AA (WCAG 2.0 A & AA) as the rubric we strive 

for in making sure our curriculum, communication, and resources are accessible. This is done to provide 

an accessible platform that is compatible with accessibility API’s, assistive technology, and language 

translation programs. Our use of a variety of resources including the National Instructional Media 

Access Center, Book share and other means of flexible formatting help us to be able to meet the 

accessible educational media needs of our users in accordance with the National Instructional Media 

Standard (NIMAS). 

 

To meet the needs of exceptional learners, our K12 virtual education courses are accessible, meaning 

exceptional learners can physically access the information and learning resources as effectively as 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 316 of 1019

DRAFT



28 of 46  

students not identified as exceptional. Our courses are also supportive, meaning the exceptional learner 

finds support built into the course design, materials, and learning activities that minimize the negative 

impact of the student’s learning weaknesses and maximize the use of their learning strengths. Students 

enrolled in virtual charter schools and district virtual instruction programs served by K12 Florida LLC 

(“K12”) are provided with accessibility to all coursework in accordance with their Individualized 

Education Programs (IEPs) through resources (from K12 and/or the school district, as applicable) 

tailored to each student’s individual abilities and needs, including assistive technologies and 

individualized support. 

K12 curriculum is designed using the concept of Universal Design for Learning (UDL) and provides 

students with: 

• multiple means of representation so that learners have various options for acquiring information 

• multiple means of expression so that learners have alternative ways to show that learning has 

occurred 

• multiple means of engagement to increase motivation and tap into students’ interests 

 
Multiple Means of Representation 

• Content presented in video, audio, slide show and other 

• Reading materials at multiple difficulty levels 

• Reading materials with supportive resources 

• Presentations at variable complexity levels 

• Graphic representations such as concept maps and graphic organizers 

• Illustrative representations such as diagrams and simulations 

 
Multiple Means of Expression 

• Alternative forms of text input and other augmentative communication tools 

• Media-based assignments: drawings, maps, diagrams, videos, slideshows, web pages 

• Reduced text assignments: outlines, concept maps, tables, graphs, hands-on activities 

• Supportive tools: spelling and grammar checkers, drawing programs, outliners 

• Social networking options: online chat, instant messaging 

• Shared writing and peer editing 

 
Multiple Means of Engagement 

• Role-playing 

• Online chat 

• Threaded discussions 

• Brainstorming activities 

• Team inquiry projects 

• Online experiments 

 

Web-based content in K12 courses are made accessible to students with disabilities by incorporating: 

• digital books, text-to-speech software, large print text, graphic images, or manipulatives 

• response accommodations such as a word processor with voice recognition, graphic organizers, 

or other. 

• technologies such as screen reader software, screen magnifiers, word prediction software, audio 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 317 of 1019

DRAFT



29 of 46  

books or other more traditional technologies and supports. 

• Scheduling accommodations such as extended due dates, shorter periods of work time, or 

assignments presented in small chunks (Beech, 2012). 
 

Accessibility for Students with Limited English Proficiency 
 
The K12 courseware lends itself to providing age- and grade- appropriate content for English Learners. 

EL students will receive comprehensive instruction for the core curriculum to ensure progress that is 

comparable to that of native English speakers. 

 

The flexibility of the curriculum allows sheltered instruction and mainstream/inclusion delivery models 

to be integrated so that EL students are provided with equal access to the same scope and sequence as 

the instruction provided to the non-EL students at the same grade levels, while providing specific 

accommodations. 

 

In the sheltered instructional model, students are “sheltered” in the sense that they do not compete with 

fluent speakers of English. Teachers adjust the level of instruction to ensure that students understand the 

grade level curriculum. This type of instruction enables ELs to become proficient in English and 

facilitates the acquisition of academic language necessary to succeed in content area classrooms. In the 

mainstream inclusion model, EL students receive instruction with ESOL strategies during the 

synchronous sessions with non-EL students. 

 

The curriculum will enable students in the EL program to meet the same curriculum standards as non- 

EL students in English/Language Arts and content area instruction. A program of EL instruction will be 

implemented according to the student’s individual needs based on their EL plan, and will be delivered 

by teachers with appropriate certification and/or endorsement.  Instruction will be designed to develop 

the student's mastery of the four language skills, including listening, speaking, reading, and writing, as 

rapidly as possible. In addition to providing EL instruction, cyber charter schools and district virtual 

instruction programs served by K12 will also ensure that teachers are implementing EL strategies in 

mathematics, science, social studies, and other courses on the student’s schedule following state 

guidelines. 

 

In addition to the core curriculum, general EL instructional strategies will: 

 Provide a learning environment that provides a sense of comfort 

 Establish a daily routine for the student 

 Use as many of the senses as possible to present information to students 

 Provide EL students guidelines for written work 

 Provide alternative instruction when appropriate 

 Arrange small discussion and talking activities that permit students to practice verbal skills 

 Utilize oral techniques 

 Utilize graphic organizers such as webbing and semantic maps 

 Modify lesson objectives according to the language level of the EL student 

 Use manipulatives to help students visualize the math concepts 

 Allow students to use computational aids such as number lines, abacus, counters and 

computation charts 

 Teach math concepts and computation procedures through games and kinesthetic activities 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 318 of 1019

DRAFT



30 of 46  

 Give practice in reading word problems by identifying the key words to determine the 

operation needed to solve the problem 

 Utilize the cooperative learning approach in which the student is given the opportunity for 

peer instructions 
 

NATIONAL COLLEGIATE ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION (NCAA) COURSE APPROVAL 
 
Since its inception, K12 Inc. has been committed to creating thoroughly researched, high quality 

curriculum that is aligned to state and national standards.  In the past, the National Collegiate Athletic 

Association (NCAA) has found K12 core courses as meeting the requirements for establishing the 

initial-eligibility status for high school student-athletes wishing to compete in college.  However, course 

eligibility is dependent on each school’s delivery model based on their compliance with NCAA non- 

traditional legislation by applying as a Non-traditional Program. Additional information can be found 

at:  http://fs.ncaa.org/Docs/eligibility_center/OVN/New_School_Review_Tutorial.pdf 
 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 

• All school policies and procedures. To address specific questions in this application, please provide 
policies and procedures related to the following topics in an easy-to-find location on this disclosure 
website so they can be reviewed: non-sectarian, anti-discrimination, teacher responsibilities, parental 
responsibilities, teacher-student interaction, teacher-parent interaction, academic integrity, student 
eligibility, state assessment requirements, attendance and participation requirements. 

 

Nine documents have been provided that collectively address the requested policies and procedures for 

cyber charter schools and district virtual instruction programs (including the Florida Cyber Charter 

Academy Parent/Student Handbook and the Florida Learning Coach Success Guide). K12 follows all 

district mandates and policies as outlined in the individual district contracts. Information about those 

unique district policies and procedures can be found on K12’s All Participating Schools in Florida 

website www.k12.com/participating-schools/florida. 
 

Policies and procedures related to the following topics for cyber charter schools that K12 provides 

virtual instruction services to (non-sectarian, anti-discrimination, teacher responsibilities, parental 

responsibilities, teacher-student interaction, teacher-parent interaction, academic integrity, student 

eligibility, state assessment requirements, attendance and participation requirements) can be found by 

clicking on the Florida Virtual Instruction Programs Disclosure Information link on K12’s website 

(www.k12.com) which will take visitors to the K12 Virtual Instruction Provider Information and the 

following documents and others: 

 

 Academic Integrity Policies and Parental Supervision 

 Anti-Discrimination Policy 

 Attendance Participation and Performance Policy 

 Nonsectarian Policy 

 State Testing Policies and Procedures 

 Student Admission and Enrollment Eligibility and Requirements 

 Teacher and Parent Responsibilities and Teacher to Student and Parent Interactions 

 FLCCA Parent/Student Handbook 2018-2019 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 319 of 1019

DRAFT



31 of 46  

 Florida Learning Coach Success Guide 

 
CERTIFICATION STATUS AND PHYSICAL LOCATION OF STAFF 

• Certification status and physical location (state of residence) of all administrative and instructional 
personnel, to include state certification(s), highly-qualified status, out-of-field, National Board 
certified, ESOL-endorsed or similar credential in other state, and reading-endorsed or similar 
credential in other state. 

 

The certification status and physical location (state of residence) of all administrative and instructional 

personnel employed in district virtual instruction programs and cyber charter schools served by K12 at 

the time of this application are found on the disclosure website www.k12.com in documents “FLCCA 

Instructional and Administrative Staff” and “K12 Florida LLC District VIP Instructional and 

Administrative Staff”. 

 

HOURS AND AVAILABILITY OF INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL 
 

Individual teachers are available during the traditional school day and will set appointments to meet with 

parents and/or students outside of the traditional day when necessary. Teachers are expected to respond 

to communications within 24 hours and grade assignments within 72 hours. 

 

AVERAGE STUDENT-TEACHER RATIOS AND TEACHER LOADS 
 

• Average student-teacher ratios and teacher loads for full-time and part-time teachers by grade-level 
bands K-3, 4-8 and 9-12 and for core and elective courses. 

 

K12 takes into account the needs of the individual students, families, schools, and teachers in assigning 

teacher loads. An average teacher load for elementary grades K-3 full-time core courses is 65; grades K- 

3 part-time core courses (0.5 teacher) is 35; average teacher load for K-3 full time electives is 250, and 

K-3 part time (.5) electives is 125. For the grade level band of 4-8 the average teacher load is calculated 

taking into consideration the 4-5th grade average teacher load and the 6-8th grade average teacher 

load.  The grades 4-5 average teacher load mirrors the grades K-3 average teacher load, and the grades 

6-8 average teacher load mirrors the grades 9-12 average teacher load.   As such, the average teacher 

load for grades 4-8 full-time core courses is 132; grades 4-8 part-time core courses (0.5 teacher) is 67; 

average teacher load for grades 4-8 full time electives load is 250, and grades 4-8 part time (.5) electives 

is 125.  An average teacher load for grades 9-12 full-time core courses is 200; grades 9-12 part-time core 

courses (0.5 teacher) is 100 ; average grades 9-12 full time electives load is 250, and grades 9-12 part 

time (.5) electives is 125. 

 

Students in the online environment are not divided up into class periods, and as such student-teacher 

ratios in this environment are complex to calculate. Teachers most often work with students in a 1:1 

ratio to review course content, provide individualized feedback or deliver instructional 

support.  Teachers may also work in small groups with students in a 5:1 or 10:1 or 25:1 setting for 

support or direct instruction.   Other interactions or class meetings can be up to 200:1 if the full class is 

invited to a synchronous session.  The student teacher ratio is fluid based on the nature of the student- 

teacher interaction.   Using the average teacher loads, and considering a typical brick and mortar school 

day of 6 periods for grades 6-12 and electives (with grades K-3 not divided into class periods), the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 320 of 1019

DRAFT



32 of 46  

average student-teacher ratios can be calculated as follows: grades K-3 full time core courses 65:1; 

grades K-3 part time core courses 35:1; grades K-3 grades full time electives 42:1; grades K-3 part time 

electives 21:1; grades 4-8 full time core 22:1; grades 4-8 part time core 11:1; grades 4-8 full time 

electives 42:1; grades 4-8 part time electives 21:1; grades 9-12 full time core 33:1; grades 9-12 part time 

core 17:1; grades 9-12 full time electives 42:1; and grades 9-12 part time electives 21:1. 

 

STUDENT COMPLETIONS AND PROMOTIONS 
 

• Student completions (percent completions and percent successful completions) and promotion rates 
in total and by subgroup*. Student completion calculations are to include all students who are 
enrolled for more than 14 calendar days in a course. 

 

Completion and Promotion in District Virtual Instruction Programs 

 
District virtual instruction programs served by K12 had a completion rate of 92.60% for the 2015-2016 

school year, 91.10% for the 2016–2017 school year, and 90.36% for the 2017-2018 school year. 

Completion rates include all students who were enrolled for more than 14 calendar days in a course. 

 

In the grades K-8 district virtual instruction programs, student completion rates are the same as the 

successful completion rates and student promotion rates.  However, in high school a student is not 

necessarily retained due to a failed course, but will be considered a successful completer for only 

courses they pass.  For example, if they passed Algebra in semester one, but not in semester 2, the 

student would be considered a successful completer for only semester 1 of Algebra. 

 

Percent of Subgroup Completions and Promotions by School Year 
 % of Completions/ 

Promotions in SY15-16 
% of Completions/ 
Promotions in SY16-17 

% of Completions/ 
Promotions in SY17- 
18 

English Language Learner 100.00% 90.00% 83.33% 

Free & Reduced Lunch Eligible1
 93.36% 90.02% 87.82% 

Special Education 92.73% 92.06% 78.87% 
504 Plan 87.50% 87.50% 91.67% 

Gifted or Talented 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 
 

 
 

1 Where any of the following phrases are used throughout this document, the subsequent information contained in this 

footnote is to be considered applicable: “Free & Reduced Lunch Eligible”; “Free/Reduced Lunch Students”; “Economically 

Disadvantaged”; and “economically disadvantaged students.” Laws and regulations vary significantly from one state to the 

next and are constantly evolving. States sometimes change policies and practices regarding how to identify students who are 

economically disadvantaged. For example, determining how and which students are eligible for free and reduced-price  

lunch. Data shows that these students usually underperform students identified as not eligible for subsidized meals. There 

are several different methods of identifying students who are economically disadvantaged. Public schools must comply with 

state policies regarding identification and reporting of students who are economically disadvantaged. State online schools 

face unique challenges when identifying students who are economically disadvantaged, and our internal data may be 

different than state reported data on the schools. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 321 of 1019

DRAFT



33 of 46  

 

School Year 2015 – 2016 Completions and Promotions for Ethnic Subgroups 
 

Ethnic Subgroups 
# of Students that 
Completed Coursework 
and were Promoted 

 
Total # of Students 
Participating 

 
Completion/ Promotion 

African-American 16 16 100.00% 

American Indian * * * 

American Indian or Alaska Native * * * 

Asian 19 19 100.00% 

Asian or Pacific Islander * * * 

Black (not Hispanic) 19 22 86.36% 

Black or African-American 93 103 90.29% 

Declined to State * * * 

Hispanic 65 69 94.20% 

Hispanic or Latino 134 138 97.10% 

Multi-racial 11 14 78.57% 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific 
Islander 

 

* 
 

* 
 

* 

Other * * * 

Undefined 145 156 92.95% 

White 76 80 95.00% 

White (not Hispanic) 95 100 95.00% 

White or Caucasian 326 360 90.56% 

Grand Total 1013 1094 92.60% 

*To provide meaningful results and to protect the privacy of individual students, data are displayed only when 
the total number of students in a group is at least 10 and when the performance of individuals would not be 
disclosed. Data for groups less than 10 are displayed with an asterisk (*). 

 

School Year 2016 - 2017 
 

Ethnic Subgroups 
# of Students that 
Completed Coursework 
and were Promoted 

 

Total # of Students 
Participating 

 

Completion/Promotion 

African-American 13 13 100.00% 

American Indian * * * 

American Indian or Alaska Native * * * 

Asian 29 32 90.63% 

Asian or Pacific Islander * * * 

Black (not Hispanic) 17 18 94.44% 

Black or African-American 121 132 91.67% 

Declined to State ** ** ** 

Hispanic 31 32 96.88% 

Hispanic or Latino 141 156 90.38% 

Multi-racial * * * 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander * * * 

Continued on next page. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 322 of 1019

DRAFT



34 of 46  

 

School Year 2016-2017, continued 
 

Ethnic Subgroups 
# of Students that 
Completed Coursework 
and were Promoted 

 

Total # of Students 
Participating 

 

Completion/Promotion 

Other * * * 

Undefined 186 198 93.94% 

White 40 41 97.56% 

White (not Hispanic) 65 68 95.59% 

White or Caucasian 396 451 87.80% 

Grand Total 1065 1169 91.10% 

*To provide meaningful results and to protect the privacy of individual students, data are displayed only when 
the total number of students in a group is at least 10 and when the performance of individuals would not be 
disclosed. Data for groups less than 10 are displayed with an asterisk (*). 
**No students in this population. 

 

School Year 2017-2018 

 
Ethnic Subgroups 

# of Students that 
Completed 
Coursework and 
were Promoted 

 
 

Total # of Students 
Participating 

 
Completion/Promotion 

African-American * * * 

American Indian ** ** ** 

American Indian or Alaska Native * * * 

Asian 26 28 92.86% 

Asian or Pacific Islander * * * 

Black (not Hispanic) * * * 

Black or African-American 110 120 91.67% 

Declined to State * * * 

Hispanic 25 27 92.59% 

Hispanic or Latino 115 130 88.46% 

Multi-racial * * * 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander * * * 

Other * * * 

Undefined 192 207 92.75% 

White 25 25 100.00% 

White (not Hispanic) 45 48 93.75% 

White or Caucasian 393 444 88.51% 

Grand Total 965 1068 90.36% 

*To provide meaningful results and to protect the privacy of individual students, data are displayed only when 
the total number of students in a group is at least 10 and when the performance of individuals would not be 
disclosed. Data for groups less than 10 are displayed with an asterisk (*). 
**No students in this population. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 323 of 1019

DRAFT



35 of 46  

Promotion Rates in Florida Cyber Charter Academies 

 

Below are promotion rates by school and by special category for SY2015-16 and SY2016-2017. These 

numbers represent the percentage of students that moved up at least one grade level from one school 

year to the next. SY2017-2018 school promotion rates were not available from FLDOE at the time of the 

submission of this application. 

AGGREGATE PROMOTIONS BY SCHOOL PERCENTAGES 
Dist 
# 

Dist Name School 
# 

School Name2 Year 
Opened SY15-16 SY16-17 

6 Broward 5059 FLCCA at Broward County 13-14SY 92.40% ** 
10 Clay 663 FLCCA at Clay County 14-15SY * 94.74% 
16 Duval 5371 FLCCA at Duval County 13-14SY 58.57% 69.19% 

29 Hillsborough 7678 FLCCA at Hillsborough County 14-15SY 84.30% * 

49 Osceola 153 FLCCA at Osceola County 12-13SY 74.58% 96.58% 

50 Palm Beach 4040 FLCCA at Palm Beach County 13-14SY 97.28% ** 

51 Pasco 4325 FLVA at Pasco County 13-14SY 72.93% 85.89% 

52 Pinellas 7341 FLVA at Pinellas County 14-15SY 71.95% 93.91% 

*: To provide meaningful results and to protect the privacy of individual students, data are displayed only when 
the total number of students in a group is at least 10 and when the performance of individuals would not be 
disclosed. 
**: No students in this population. 

 
FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY PROMOTIONS BY SPECIAL 
POPULATION 

PERCENTAGES  

BROWARD SY15-16 SY16-17 

Students with Disabilities 87.50% ** 

Free/Reduced Lunch Students 91.11% ** 

ESL Students 80.00% ** 

CLAY SY15-16 SY16-17 

Students with Disabilities * 100.00% 

Free/Reduced Lunch Students * 100.00% 

ESL Students * ** 

DUVAL SY15-16 SY16-17 

Students with Disabilities 44.83% 63.64% 

Free/Reduced Lunch Students 51.00% 67.29% 

ESL Students 50.00% 33.33% 

HILLSBOROUGH SY15-16 SY16-17 

Students with Disabilities 75.86% * 

Free/Reduced Lunch Students 81.82% * 
ESL Students 60.00% * 

Continued on next page. 

 
2 By June 30, 2016, Florida virtual charter schools managed by K12 Florida LLC changed their names from “Florida Virtual Academy (FLVA) 
at XX County” to “Florida Cyber Charter Academy (FLCCCA) at XX County.” A few school district authorizers, however, continued to use  
the FLVA naming convention after 6.30.16, for instance, when reporting virtual charter school data to FLDOE. In this application, we have 
referenced each virtual charter school according to the school name used by FLDOE in its reports. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 324 of 1019

DRAFT



36 of 46  

 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY PROMOTIONS BY SPECIAL 
POPULATION, continued 

PERCENTAGES  

OSCEOLA SY15-16 SY16-17 

Students with Disabilities 53.85% 100.0% 

Free/Reduced Lunch Students 73.33% 94.29% 

ESL Students 33.33% 75.00% 

PALM BEACH SY15-16 SY16-17 

Students with Disabilities 95.65% ** 

Free/Reduced Lunch Students 89.29% ** 

ESL Students ** ** 

PASCO SY15-16 SY16-17 

Students with Disabilities 50.00% 82.14% 

Free/Reduced Lunch Students 57.78% 88.14% 

ESL Students ** 66.67% 

PINELLAS SY15-16 SY16-17 

Students with Disabilities 69.57% 96.15% 

Free/Reduced Lunch Students 59.32% 98.41% 

ESL Students ** 100% 

*To provide meaningful results and to protect the privacy of individual students, data are displayed only when 
the total number of students in a group is at least 10 and when the performance of individuals would not be 
disclosed. Data for groups less than 10 are displayed with an asterisk (*). 
**No students in this population. 

 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY PROMOTIONS BY ETHNICITY PERCENTAGES  

BROWARD SY15-16 SY16-17 

American Indian or Alaska Native 100.00% ** 
Asian 100.00% ** 

Black or African-American 91.14% ** 

Hispanic or Latino 90.57% ** 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander ** ** 

Two or More Races 100.00% ** 

White 92.55% ** 

CLAY SY15-16 SY16-17 
American Indian or Alaska Native * ** 

Asian * ** 

Black or African-American * 100.00% 

Hispanic or Latino * 66.67% 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander * ** 

Two or More Races * 100.00% 
White * 95.83% 

DUVAL SY15-16 SY16-17 

American Indian or Alaska Native ** ** 
Asian 40.00% 33.33% 

Black or African-American 48.91% 65.41% 

Hispanic or Latino 69.57% 76.09% 

Continued on next page. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 325 of 1019

DRAFT



37 of 46  

 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY PROMOTIONS BY ETHNICITY PERCENTAGES  

DUVAL, continued SY15-16 SY16-17 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 0.00% 100.00% 

Two or More Races 68.42% 80.00% 

White 61.88% 69.15% 

HILLSBOROUGH SY15-16 SY16-17 
American Indian or Alaska Native 100.00% * 

Asian 100.00% * 

Black or African-American 87.23% * 

Hispanic or Latino 79.55% * 
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander ** * 

Two or More Races 94.12% * 

White 81.90% * 

OSCEOLA SY15-16 SY16-17 

American Indian or Alaska Native ** 100.00% 

Asian 100.00% 100.00% 

Black or African-American 75.00% 88.89% 

Hispanic or Latino 61.36% 96.00% 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 100.00% 100.00% 

Two or More Races 100.00% 100.00% 

White 79.66% 97.96% 

PALM BEACH SY15-16 SY16-17 

American Indian or Alaska Native 100.00% ** 

Asian 100.00% ** 
Black or African-American 97.44% ** 

Hispanic or Latino 97.22% ** 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander ** ** 

Two or More Races 100.00% ** 

White 96.67% ** 

PASCO SY15-16 SY16-17 

American Indian or Alaska Native ** ** 

Asian ** ** 

Black or African-American 77.78% 100.00% 

Hispanic or Latino 61.90% 92.00% 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander ** ** 

Two or More Races 80.00% 75.00% 
White 74.49% 83.87% 

PINELLAS SY15-16 SY16-17 
American Indian or Alaska Native ** 100.00% 

Asian 0.00% ** 

Black or African-American 72.73% 87.50% 

Hispanic or Latino 76.47% 100.00% 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander ** ** 

Two or More Races 57.14% 83.33% 
White 72.66% 94.59% 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 326 of 1019

DRAFT



38 of 46  

*To provide meaningful results and to protect the privacy of individual students, data are displayed only when 
the total number of students in a group is at least 10 and when the performance of individuals would not be 
disclosed. Data for groups less than 10 are displayed with an asterisk (*). 
**No students in this population. 

 
SCHOOL PERFORMANCE ACCOUNTABILITY OUTCOMES 

 
• Student, educator, and school performance accountability outcomes. Please include, at 

minimum, student standardized assessment results in total and by subgroup* (also 
provide name of assessment), state assessment results, if available, by total and 
subgroup, percent of teacher evaluations based on student performance, school grades, if 
applicable, other school/program ratings, dropout rates, graduation rates. 
* Subgroups to include students from major racial and ethnic groups, economically disadvantaged students, students with 
disabilities, and students with limited English proficiency. 

 

District Virtual Instruction Programs Performance on State Assessments for 2016-17 and 2017-18 

Grade level and subgroup performance in English Language Arts and Mathematics 

 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 
Grade Level 2016-17  2017-18  

 % Proficient # Students Tested % Proficient # Students Tested 

3rd Grade 72% 92 67% 76 

4th Grade 54% 102 69% 86 

5th Grade 61% 105 59% 96 

6th Grade 79% 80 69% 68 

7th Grade 69% 55 81% 52 

8th Grade 90% 68 90% 51 

9th Grade 83% 35 73% 48 

10th Grade 66% 56 82% 33 
 

From 2016-17 to 2017-18, the percent of students in the proficient category improved or remained stable 

in 4 grades. Improvements ranged from 12 to 15 points. The percent of students in the proficient 

category declined in 4 grades. The percent of students in the proficient category who declined ranged 

from 2 to 10 points. 

 

MATHEMATICS 
Grade Level 2016-17  2017-18  

 % Proficient # Students Tested % Proficient # Students Tested 

3rd Grade 48% 93 55% 74 

4th Grade 47% 103 56% 86 

5th Grade 45% 110 42% 98 

6th Grade 63% 80 48% 67 

7th Grade 58% 48 77% 44 

Continued on next page. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 327 of 1019

DRAFT



39 of 46  

 

MATHEMATICS, continued 
Grade Level 2016-17  2017-18  

 % Proficient # Students Tested % Proficient # Students Tested 

8th Grade 71% 52 70% 40 

Algebra 1 56% 61 68% 41 

Geometry 46% 41 62% 34 
 

From 2016-17 to 2017-18, the percent of students in the proficient category improved in 5 grades. 

Improvements ranged from 5 to 19 points. The percent of students in the proficient category declined in 

3 grades. The percent of student in the proficient category who declined ranged from 1 to 15 points. 

 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS: % PROFICIENT 

Grade Level 2016-17 2017-18 

All Students 70% 71% 

Economically Disadvantaged 62% 60% 

Students with Disabilities 56% 69% 

English Learners 78% 77% 

White/Caucasian 66% 68% 

African American 61% 70% 

Hispanic 78% 79% 

Asian 82% 81% 

American Indian/Alaskan Native NA NA 

Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander NA NA 

Students of Multiple Races/Multiracial 61% 72% 
 

From 2016-17 to 2017-18 in English/Language Arts the percentage of students in the proficient category 

improved for students in the subgroups of: Students with Disabilities, White/Caucasian, African 

American, and Hispanic.  Improvements ranged from 1 to 13 points.  The percent of students in the 

proficient category within the Economically Disadvantaged, English learners, and Asian subgroups 

declined by 1-2 points. Overall, students improved by 1 point. Data is not available for the Native 

Indian/Alaskan Native and Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander subgroups due to small student 

counts. 

MATHEMATICS: % PROFICIENT 

Grade Level 2016-17 2017-18 

All Students 53% 57% 

Economically Disadvantaged 37% 44% 

Students with Disabilities 51% 65% 

English Learners 63% 63% 

White/Caucasian 53% 55% 

African American 35% 55% 

Hispanic 59% 57% 

Continued on next page. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 328 of 1019

DRAFT



40 of 46  

 

MATHEMATICS: % PROFICIENT, continued 

Grade Level 2016-17 2017-18 

Asian 81% 78% 

American Indian/Alaskan Native NA NA 

Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander NA NA 

Students of Multiple Races/Multiracial 53% 65% 
 

From 2016-17 to 2017-18 in mathematics, the percent of students scoring in the proficient category 

improved or remained stable from 2016-17 to 2017-18 in every subgroup within the District Virtual 

Instruction Programs except for the Hispanic and Asian subgroups. Improvements ranged from 1 to 14 

points. These two subgroups saw declines of 2 and 3 points, respectively. Overall, students improved by 

5 points. Data is not available for the Native Indian/Alaskan Native and Native Hawaiian or other 

Pacific Islander subgroups due to small student counts. 
 

We do not have access to school-level standardized assessment results. 

 

Florida Cyber Charter Academy Accountability Data 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 

 

 

FLCCA Campus 
2015-16 Florida 
School Grade 

2016-17 Florida 
School Grade 

2017-18 Florida 
School Grade 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT CLAY 

 

I 
 

C 
 

C 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT DUVAL 

 

I 
 

D 
 

I 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT OSCEOLA 

 

I 
 

C 
 

D 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL ACADEMY AT 
PASCO 

 

I 
 

D 
 

C 

 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL ACADEMY AT 
PINELLAS CHARTER SCHOOL 

 

 
I 

 

 
C 

Voluntarily 
Relinquished 
Charter 

 

Florida Cyber Charter Academy State Assessment Data for 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 

Percent At or Above Proficient by grade level, school, year and number of students tested (cells with 
asterisks do not include a sufficient number of students to report data) 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

School Grade 
Level 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT 
CLAY 

3rd Grade * 3 * 1 * 3 

4th Grade * 1 * 8 * 1 

5th Grade * 3 * 2 * 5 

6th Grade * 1 * 6 * 5 

Continued on next page. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 329 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 41 of 46  

 

 
FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER 
ACADMEY AT 
CLAY, continued 

ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS, continued 

7th Grade * 3 * 4 * 9 

8th Grade * 1 * 6 * 9 

9th Grade * 1 * 1 * 7 

10th Grade - - * 1 * 6 
 

 
 

FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT 
DUVAL 

 
Grade 
Level 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

3rd Grade 56% 18 35% 34 48% 23 

4th Grade 31% 16 38% 26 35% 26 

5th Grade 35% 17 33% 42 25% 24 

6th Grade 43% 23 49% 47 30% 46 

7th Grade 44% 27 43% 35 33% 43 

8th Grade 55% 29 42% 52 41% 44 

9th Grade 21% 14 35% 26 39% 28 

10th Grade 70% 10 50% 18 29% 21 

 

 

 
FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT 
OSCEOLA 

3rd Grade * 7 43% 14 41% 41 

4th Grade * 7 * 8 38% 47 

5th Grade * 7 * 8 41% 46 

6th Grade 57% 14 60% 10 33% 104 

7th Grade 50% 10 47% 17 37% 106 

8th Grade 60% 10 64% 11 44% 114 

9th Grade * 5 * 7 38% 104 

10th Grade * 5 * 6 48% 81 

 

 

 
 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT 
PASCO 

3rd Grade * 4 55% 11 41% 22 

4th Grade 33% 12 * 7 50% 12 

5th Grade * 6 70% 10 36% 14 

6th Grade * 8 39% 18 39% 33 

7th Grade * 9 23% 13 28% 39 

8th Grade 46% 13 39% 23 43% 40 

9th Grade * 6 48% 21 47% 38 

10th Grade * 5 40% 10 49% 37 

 

 
 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT 
PINELLAS 
CHARTER  
SCHOOL 

3rd Grade 50% 12 90% 10 - - 

4th Grade 20% 10 * 6 - - 

5th Grade 9% 11 * 6 - - 

6th Grade * 8 * 8 - - 

7th Grade 27% 11 30% 10 - - 

8th Grade 40% 10 40% 25 - - 

9th Grade * 3 43% 14 - - 

10th Grade - - * 8 - - 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 330 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 42 of 46  

The small and varying number of charter school students who took the English Language Arts state 

assessment each year and at each grade level does not yield annual comparative information. 

 

MATHEMATICS 

School Grade 
Level 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

 

 

 
FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT 
CLAY 

3rd Grade * 3 * 2 * 3 

4th Grade * 1 * 8 * 1 

5th Grade * 3 * 2 * 5 

6th Grade * 1 * 6 * 7 

7th Grade * 1 * 3 * 9 

8th Grade * 4 * 5 * 7 

Algebra I * 1 * 3 27% 11 

Geometry - - * 1 * 5 

 

 

 
FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT 
DUVAL 

3rd Grade 56% 18 18% 34 30% 23 

4th Grade 6% 18 15% 26 13% 30 

5th Grade 11% 19 19% 43 16% 25 

6th Grade 26% 23 18% 50 16% 49 

7th Grade 31% 29 43% 40 23% 44 

8th Grade 31% 29 18% 49 20% 40 

Algebra I 25% 12 26% 35 29% 34 

Geometry 30% 10 20% 15 32% 22 

 

 

 
FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT 
OSCEOLA 

3rd Grade * 6 29% 14 22% 41 

4th Grade * 8 20% 10 22% 55 

5th Grade * 7 * 8 26% 47 

6th Grade 57% 14 50% 10 22% 106 

7th Grade * 8 44% 16 35% 110 

8th Grade 23% 13 * 8 29% 111 

Algebra I * 5 33% 12 26% 111 

Geometry * 5 * 7 30% 79 

 

 

 

 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT 
PASCO 

3rd Grade * 3 27% 11 29% 21 

4th Grade 18% 11 * 7 25% 12 

5th Grade * 8 18% 11 27% 15 

6th Grade * 8 33% 18 18% 34 

7th Grade 25% 12 31% 16 28% 40 

8th Grade 23% 13 23% 22 20% 35 

Algebra I * 3 39% 23 33% 46 

Geometry * 6 50% 12 35% 46 

Continued on next page. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 331 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 43 of 46  

 

MATHEMATICS, continued 

 
School 

 
Grade 
Level 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

 

 
FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT 
PINELLAS 
CHARTER 
SCHOOL, 
continued 

3rd Grade 25% 12 50% 10 - - 

4th Grade * 9 * 8 - - 

5th Grade 9% 11 * 6 - - 

6th Grade * 9 * 9 - - 

7th Grade 20% 10 50% 10 - - 

8th Grade 20% 10 25% 24 - - 

Algebra I * 3 36% 14 - - 

Geometry * 1 * 6 - - 
 

The small and varying number of charter school students who took the mathematics state assessment 

each year and at each grade level does not yield annual comparative information. 

 

SCIENCE 

School Grade 
Level 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

% 
Proficient 

# 
Students 
Tested 

% 
Proficient 

# 
Students 
Tested 

% 
Proficient 

# 
Students 
Tested 

FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER ACADEMY 
AT CLAY 

5th Grade * 2 * 2 * 5 

8th Grade - - 21% 38 * 9 

FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER ACADEMY 
AT DUVAL 

5th Grade 18% 17 * 7 20% 25 

8th Grade 35% 31 36% 11 29% 42 

FLORIDA CYBER 
CHARTER ACADEMY 
AT OSCEOLA 

5th Grade * 7 * 6 33% 43 

8th Grade * 7 * 6 30% 117 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT PASCO 

5th Grade * 4 27% 56 27% 15 

8th Grade * 8 38% 13 23% 40 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT 
PINELLAS CHARTER 
SCHOOL 

5th Grade * 9 21% 24 - - 

8th Grade * 7 26% 23 - - 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 332 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 44 of 46  

The small and varying number of charter school students who took the science state assessment each 

year and at each grade level does not yield annual comparative information. 
 

 
BIOLOGY END OF COURSE TEST 

School 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # 
Students 
Tested 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT CLAY 

- - - - * 2 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT DUVAL 

* 7 36% 22 50% 14 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT OSCEOLA 

* 2 * 7 60% 65 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT PASCO 

* 3 * 8 59% 34 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT PINELLAS 
CHARTER SCHOOL 

 
- 

 
- 

 
* 

 
2 

 
- 

 

- 

 
 

CIVICS END OF COURSE TEST 

School 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # 
Students 
Tested 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT CLAY 

* 1 * 3 * 9 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT DUVAL 

45% 20 45% 40 38% 42 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT OSCEOLA 

82% 11 42% 19 42% 109 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT PASCO 

* 5 41% 17 42% 43 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT PINELLAS 
CHARTER SCHOOL 

 
36% 

 
11 

 
* 

 
9 

 
- 

 

- 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 333 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 45 of 46  

 

 

 
 

US HISTORY END OF COURSE TEST 

School 2015-16  2016-17  2017-18  

 % Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # Students 
Tested 

% Proficient # 
Students 
Tested 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT CLAY 

- - - - * 4 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT DUVAL 

* 1 62% 13 63% 19 

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER 
ACADEMY AT OSCEOLA 

- - * 4 51% 61 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT PASCO 

- - * 7 64% 22 

FLORIDA VIRTUAL 
ACADEMY AT PINELLAS 
CHARTER SCHOOL 

 
- 

 
- 

 
* 

 
2 

 
- 

 

- 

 

The small and varying number of charter school students who took the three end of course state 

assessments each year and at each grade level does not yield annual comparative information. 

The charter schools did not have a sufficient number of students complete fall and spring school- 

administered standardized assessments to report trends or comparative information. 

 

SCHOOL GRADES 
 

K12 Florida LLC has continued to qualify as a Virtual Instruction Provider since the last application 

cycle in 2015. In 2015-2016, 2016-2017, and 2017-2018, K12 Florida LLC maintained a school grade of 

“B”. 

 

TEACHER EVALUATIONS 
• Percent of Teacher Evaluations Based on Student Performance 

 

At least 30% of the performance objectives weight in K12 teacher evaluations is based on student 

performance. 

 

DROPOUT AND GRADUATION RATES 
 

Dropout Rates 
Florida Cyber Charter Academies 

Dropout rates are not yet calculated by the FLDOE. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 334 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 46 of 46  

District Virtual Instruction Programs 

K12 continues to work with our district partners as part of the District Virtual Instruction Programs to collect 

and track student data. Dropout rates are not currently tracked by K12. As the provider of the Virtual 

Instruction Program, access to this information is not available. 

 

Graduation Rates 
Florida Cyber Charter Academies 

Graduation rates are not yet calculated by the FLDOE. 

 
District Virtual Instruction Programs 

K12 continues to work with our district partners as part of the district virtual instruction programs to collect 

and track student data. The data below indicates the graduation rates based on full time students enrolled in 

the district virtual instruction program, where K12 received confirmation from the district that students 

graduated at the end of the school year. 

• SY 2015-2016 96% Graduation rate 

• SY 2016-2017 85% Graduation rate 

• SY 2017-2018 92% Graduation rate 

 

DISCLOSURE WEBSITE 
 
Provide the link(s) to where this required disclosure information is prominently displayed on your website 

and the information is up to date:  www.k12.com 
 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: CAC5666E-23CA-4A5A-8AA6-EF084F44053A

Page 335 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trips

Description
We are asking for tentative approval. We realize that students may not be able to attend based on CDC guidelines or travel
restrictions at the time of the events. It is possible that the events may be cancelled by the organizer.
 
The School Board recongizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintent.

Gap Analysis
Career and Technical Student Organizations (CTSO) are co-curricular organizations for CTE students such as FFA, TSA, FBLA,
HOSA, SkillsUSA, and FCCLA. CTSO's extend teaching and learning through innovative programs, business and community
partnerships and leadership experiences at the school, state and national levels. CTSO's are a powerful avenue for helping our
nation address key challenges such as workforce development, student achievement, economic vitality and global
competitiveness. CTSO's are authorized by the U.S. Congress in the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education
Improvement Act.

Previous Outcomes
All out of state and and overnight trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written
district policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that CTSO's provide sutdents leadership development skills as well as hands on learning through
project based activities. CTSO events expose students to new experiences which increases their engagement within their
educational experience.

Strategic Plan Goal
Strategy 1.3: Prepare all students to be full option graduates who are prepared for college, eligible to enlist in military services. or
able to compete in the workforce.

Recommendation
The CTE Department recommends the school board approves out-of-state or overnight travel for any events on the official CTSO
state calendars attached.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; (904) 336-6904

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trips.pdf

ffa-out-of-state-and-overnight-field-trips_1 (1).pdf

Page 336 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/cte-out-of-state-and-overnight-field-trips.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/ffa-out-of-state-and-overnight-field-trips_1-1.pdf


Page 337 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 338 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 339 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 340 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 341 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 342 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 343 of 1019

DRAFT



We are asking for tentative approval. We realize that students may not be able to 

attend based on CDC guidelines or travel restrictions at the time of the event. It is 

possible that the events may be cancelled by the organizer. 

 

 

 

Schools Date Destination Group Purpose 
 

CHS, KHHS, MHS, 
OHS, OLJ, LAJH, 
WJH 

October 28-31, 
2020 

FFA National 
Convention, 
Indianapolis, IN 

FFA/Agriculture Represent Clay County School Board 
at the National FFA Convention. 
Students will attend leadership 
training, be exposed to career 
opportunities and chapters will be 
recognized for outstanding work 

CHS, KHHS, MHS, 
OHS, OLJ, LAJH, 
WJH 

October 20-22, 
2020 (Choose a 
day) 

Sunbelt AG Expo, 
Moultrie, GA 

FFA/Agriculture Expose Agriculture students to 1200 
exhibitors showcasing the latest 
farming technology 

CHS, KHHS, MHS, 
OHS, OLJ, LAJH, 
WJH 

End of August 
(dates have not 
been set yet) 

Chapter 
Presidents 
Conference 
Daytona Beach, FL 

FFA/Agriculture Chapter Presidents’ Conference 
(CPC) is first in a series of training 
conference for chapter FFA officers. 
The conference helps newly elected 
chapter officers identify their 
strengths, develop growth plans, 
and better prepare them to lead 
your chapter officer team. 

 

Page 344 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 -  Professional Learning Catalog 2020-21

Description
The Professional Learning Catalog (formerly Master In-Service Plan) identifies the educational training programs offered by the
district in order for educational professionals to earn points toward recertification. The state of Florida establishes requirements
for these components that must be updated and approved by the school board on an annual basis. The following draft is an update
on the components that Clay County District Schools offers its constituents. We have included additional components in areas of
Autism Spectrum Disorder and Gifted Add-On Endorsements so that all of our professional development offerings are aligned
with state regulations.

Gap Analysis
District professional development systems must include a Professional Learning Catalog that identifies the educational training
programs, called components of professional learning, that may generate points toward recertification or add-on endorsement.
Section 1012.98, Florida Statutes, the School Community Professional Development Act, sets forth requirements for educational
training programs with further requirements outlined in State Board of Education Rule 6A-5.071, F.A.C. The Professional
Learning Catalog shall be updated and approved by the district school boards on an annual basis.

Previous Outcomes
Professional development components have an impact on targeted areas. Effective modules have the capacity to change the
instructional and learning environment as well as increase the proficiency of the educator in targeted standards and initiatives.

Expected Outcomes
By including additional components, Clay County District Schools can increase the amount and variety of professional learning
opportunities available to its personnel. This increase in offerings will allow for the improvement of instruction, data analysis,
learning environment, and interventions to improve overall student achievement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1- Develop Great Educators and Leaders 
Strategy 1.1 Develop a high quality and aligned instructional system.
Goal 5- Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders
Strategy 5.2 Provide on-going training and support for teachers, support staff, and leaders

Recommendation
That the School Board of Clay County Approve the revised Professional Learning Catalog

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, Roger.Dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0.00

Review Comments

Attachments

Professional Learning Catalog 2020-21.pdf

Page 345 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/professional-learning-catalog-2020-21.pdf


Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

1 

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF CLAY COUNTY 
 
 

 
 

Professional Learning Catalog 
2020 – 2021  

 
David Broskie, Interim Superintendent of Schools 

 
Review Date: July 2020 

 
 

Discovering Endless Possibilities 
 
 

Clay County School Board 
 

Janice Kerekes   District 1 
Carol Studdard   District 2 
Tina Bullock   District 3 
Mary Bolla    District 4 
Ashley Gilhousen   District 5 

 
 
 

Page 346 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
RATIONALE          Page 
 

RATIONALE 3 

MANAGEMENT PROCESSES 

MANAGEMENT PROCESSES 3 

Participation 4 

Registration Process 4 

Component Information 4 

Component Points 4 

College Credit 5 

Renewing Professional Educator’s Certificates 5 

ESE-SWD (Students with Disabilities Required Credit 7 

Descriptions 7 

Bankable Points 8 

Schools of Excellence 9 

Procedure for Updating MIP 9 

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS 10 

Planning 10 

Delivery 12 

Follow-up 13 

Evaluation 13 

Participant Follow-up 14 

Program Evaluation 14 

Reporting 15 

Evaluation Matrix 16 

ADDENDUM 17 
 

Master Inservice Plan (MIP) Addendum 17 

COMPONENTS 18 

Teaching Students with Disabilities (Effective 7/1/2014) 18 

Administrator Components 20 

Content Area Components 24 

Additional Components 54 

District Only Components 69 

PDA-ESE Components 82 

 
 

  

Page 347 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

3 

RATIONALE 
 
The commitment to a quality philosophy and the development and implementation 
of school improvement has significantly impacted the focus, content, and delivery of 
professional development. The School District of Clay County does not see itself as 
unrelated collections of School Board members, administrators, classroom teachers, 
support personnel, community groups, and students operating on separate agendas. 
It is, rather, a collective group of stakeholders pursuing the principles of quality and 
the school improvement mission of providing "a quality education in a safe, inviting 
environment so that all students learn and become successful, responsible citizens". 
Quality principles and school improvement beliefs and goals reflect the importance 
of ongoing evaluation of processes, shared responsibility, and professional 
education of all personnel. The Florida legislature recognizes the importance of 
planning for developing human potential and requires each district to develop a 
comprehensive master inservice plan. 

 
MANAGEMENT PROCESSES 
 
Individual schools and District Administration divisions and departments are 
challenged to incorporate quality principles, research-based instructional strategies 
and school improvement concepts into their planning and implementation 
processes. As a result of site-based planning and decision making and the 
involvement of internal and external stakeholders, professional development must 
address specific school needs, division and department needs, and community 
needs and expectations. Data collection becomes a valuable tool to identify common 
priorities while evaluation and follow up are essential to providing quality 
professional development experiences. 
 
The responsibility for management of professional development in Clay County 
Schools lies primarily with the Professional Development Department. The 
Professional Development Department and the local sites facilitate the planning, 
delivery, follow-up and evaluation for the training and development experiences for 
instructional and non- instructional personnel. 
 
Professional development experiences are designed for individuals, teams, 
departments, and schools to reflect the variation in stakeholder needs. They are 
delivered on Inservice Days, outside of work day, during the work day, and during 
the summer. Workshops may be site- based or in a central or other applicable 
location. Personnel also have access to district online courses and courses at local 
universities and community colleges. 
 
All inservice offerings focus on one of the following categories: Florida Standards, 
subject content, best practices in teaching methods, technology, assessment and 
data analysis, classroom management, school safety, or parental involvement. 

Page 348 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

4 

Stakeholders may request professional development experiences as identified by a 
needs assessment and as prioritized funding permits. 
 
Much of the professional development for technical and other support services is 
administered by the specific departments involved due to varied funding sources, 
number of personnel, and specialized job knowledge. Departments use internal 
instructors as well as external consultants and trainers. 

 
Participation 
 
Stakeholders are informed about available opportunities through a district-wide 
training automated staff development management system, professional 
development calendar, flyers, announcements in faculty meetings, and electronic 
notices. 
 

Registration Process 
 
The registration process varies. Potential participants register via the internet by 
accessing the current automated professional development management system. In 
some instances, participants are recommended by their immediate supervisor. 
 

Component Information 
 
The Master Inservice Plan (MIP) contains the available components for use in 
training school board employees. Components may be written by district employees 
and submitted to the Professional Development Department for consideration. If it 
is determined that the need reflected in the new component is not addressed in a 
component currently in the plan, the Professional Development Department 
submits the new component to the Clay County School Board for approval. Once the 
board approves a component, it becomes a part of the MIP and can then be offered 
for component credit. 
 

Component Points 
 
The School District of Clay County offers professional development for certificated 
and non-certificated personnel. All activities for which inservice (component) points 
are awarded must be covered by an approved component outlined in the MIP. Final 
approval for component point credit will be given by the Professional Development 
Department. 
 
One (1) component point is equivalent to one (1) clock hour of participation in a 
training activity. Any component activity that has a partial hour will be rounded 
down (3.75 hours/points will become 3). The maximum number of points per day is 
six (6) for training conducted outside the School District of Clay County. 

Page 349 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

5 

 
All personnel involved in a professional development activity are expected to 
successfully implement newly learned strategies and complete the assigned follow-
up activity to demonstrate increased competency on the specific objectives 
addressed and its impact on student performance. Once evidence of participation 
and follow-up are completed, points will be awarded.  
 
Instructors of courses that lead to an add-on endorsement may receive inservice 
points the equivalent of the course hours. Points may only be awarded one time per 
course. 
 
Each individual is responsible for accessing his/her own personal professional 
development portfolio to determine the status of his/her progress in working 
toward certificate renewal and in completing activities in which they are currently 
enrolled. 
 

College Credit 
 
College credit can be used for the renewal of a certificate by requesting the College 
Credit Advisement form (HR-3-4040) from the Human Resources Department. 
Approval must be received prior to the first day of class. 
 

Renewing Professional Educator’s Certificate 
 
A State of Florida, Department of Education, Professional Educator’s Certificate can 
be renewed with component credit, college credit, a passing score on the subject 
area exam of a certification area listed on the certificate, instructing a college level 
course, or a combination of these options. These options must be completed within 
the 5-year validity period of the current certificate. Each staff member who wishes 
to have his/her teaching certificate renewed using only component points must 
have earned at least one hundred twenty (120) points during his/her current 
validity period of the certificate.  Twenty (20) of that 120 must be credit in teaching 
students with disabilities. 

 
  

Page 350 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

6 

ESE-SWD (Exceptional Student Education – Students with 
Disabilities) Credit – Effective July 1, 2014 
 
The Florida State Legislative group approved a new law requiring all those who hold 
a valid Florida Professional Certificate to complete 1 semester hour of college credit 
or 20 hours of professional development credit in teaching students with disabilities 
during the last validity period of the Professional Certificate. 
 
 
 
One (1) Semester Hour in Teaching SWD (students with disabilities) 
 

✓ Unacceptable College Courses 

✓ Courses in Gifted Education are NOT acceptable. 

✓ American Sign Language courses are NOT acceptable (exception— 
teaching American Sign Language to the Hearing Impaired). 
 

✓ Acceptable college courses: 

✓ Courses with ESE or Special Education prefixes 

✓ Introduction to Exceptional Student Education 

✓ Nature and Needs of the various disabilities 

✓ Teaching Students with Disabilities 

✓ Educating the Learning Disabled 

✓ Assessment in Exceptional Education 

✓ Assessing Students with Disabilities 

✓ Varying Exceptionalities 

✓ Individualized Instruction for Exceptional Students 

✓ Management Strategies for Students with Disabilities 

✓ Special Education Curriculum 
 
Twenty (20) Hours of Professional Development Credit in Teaching Students 
with Disabilities 
 

● Unacceptable MIP (Master Inservice Plan) ESE Component Areas 

✓ Procedural/Legal Requirements 

✓ Working with Aides/Volunteers/Mentors 

✓ Gifted Training 
 

● Acceptable MIP (Master Inservice Plan) ESE Component Areas 

✓ Instructional Strategies 

✓ Classroom/Behavior Management 

✓ Assessment 

Page 351 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

7 

✓ Curriculum 
 
This requirement may be met through the completion of online and/or face-to-face 
training opportunities that meet the state requirements listed above. The tracking of 
this requirement will be included in the district’s professional development 
management system. Certificated staff will be able to know their status toward 
meeting this requirement at any time by accessing their professional development 
portfolio. 
 
Administrators will be able to monitor their faculty’s progress toward meeting 
recertification requirements including the ESE-SWD 20-hours of professional 
development credit. 
 

 
Descriptions  

• Middle Grades Code of conduct training—The district has adopted a Student Code of 
Conduct that applies to all students in Elementary and Secondary schools.  All 
schools in the district ensure student understanding of the Code of Conduct at the 
start of the school year.  Parents and students are provided an electronic copy of the 
Code of Conduct, and it is posted on the district website.   

• The district provides Career And Professional Education (CAPE) Digital Tool 
certificates and CAPE Industry certifications through Career and Technical 
Education courses provided at both the Junior High and High school levels.  Junior 
High students have the opportunity to take Digital Tool certification exams via local 
school course offerings on an elective basis.  High School students complete CAPE 
Industry certifications via elective Career and Technical Education courses provided 
at each high school.  Teachers are provided inservice locally at the district level and 
through Perkins PDI (Professional Development Institute).   

• The district utilizes Google Apps for Education (G-Suite) throughout the district.  All 
staff/faculty and students in grades 3-12 have Google accounts, and the district has 
procured Google Chromebooks to aid in the integration of technology in the 
classroom.  Inservices are offered at both the local school and district levels, and the 
district has made Google certified courses available to teachers to increase their 
skills and knowledge in integrating technology for learning.  In addition, multiple 
technology tools are available for personalized learning including iReady and 
Achieve 3000.   

• Extended Learning Opportunities for Students—The district has numerous venues 
to offer extended learning opportunities for students.  Some of these include Dual 
Enrollment, Collegiate High School, Advanced International Certificate of Education 
(AICE), International Baccalaureate (IB), virtual and blended models of learning 
through Clay Virtual and Florida Virtual.  Students also receive extended learning 
through programs, electives and clubs in addition to differentiated instruction in the 
classroom.   

 

 
  

Page 352 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

8 

Bankable Points 
 
Per the Florida Department of Education, the only professional development points 
that can be categorized as “Bankable” are ESOL, Reading and ESE-SWD (Students 
with Disabilities). The objective and/or focus of the training must relate directly to a 
curriculum standard for ESOL, Reading or Students with Disabilities. 
 
Reading Credit 

● Reading training completed prior to July 1, 1999 cannot be banked. 
● A temporary certificate holder who completes bankable inservice points in 

teaching reading during the validity period of the temporary certificate 
must use those points toward renewal of the first 5-year professional 
certificate. The temporary and professional certificates must be issued for 
consecutive school years and such training must not have been included 
within the degree program. 

● A professional certificate holder who completes bankable inservice points in 
the teaching of reading in excess of the 120 inservice points needed for 
renewal may bank the excess points for renewal of professional certificates 
during subsequent renewal periods. 

● English and Language Arts points are not bankable. 
● Only professional development points that directly relate to Reading  

standards will be banked. 
 
To request approval for bankable professional development points in Reading, 
Inservice Coordinators must receive approval from the Supervisor of Elementary 
Education.  
 
ESOL Credit (English for Speakers of Other Languages) 
 

● A temporary certificate holder who completes bankable inservice points in 
teaching reading during the validity period of the temporary certificate 
must use those points toward renewal of the first 5-year professional 
certificate. The temporary and professional certificates must be issued for 
consecutive school years and such training must not have been included 
within the degree program. 

● A professional certificate holder who completes bankable inservice points in 
the teaching of ESOL in excess of the 120 inservice points needed for 
renewal may bank the excess points for renewal of professional certificates 
during subsequent renewal periods. 

 
ESE-SWD Credit (Exceptional Student Education-Students with Disabilities) 

● The banking of ESE-SWD credit will be administered as directed by the 
FLDOE’s Bureau of Certification. 

 

Page 353 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

9 

 
Schools of Excellence—Professional Certificate Renewal Credit 
 
The 2017 Florida Legislature created section 1003.631, Florida Statutes, 
establishing the Schools of Excellence Program. 
 
Beginning in school year 2017-2018, instructional personnel employed at a 
designated School of Excellence may receive 20 inservice points for each year of 
employment at the school (up to 60 points) as long as the school maintains the 
School of Excellence distinction.   
 
Per the Florida Department of Education, “Each certified individual employed at a 
designated School of Excellence may be awarded twenty (20) inservice points for 
the 2017-2018 school year. If the school maintains the three-year designation as a 
School of Excellence, each certified individual employed at the school during the 
respective designation years can earn another twenty (20) inservice points for the 
2018-2019 school year and an additional twenty (20) inservice points for the 2019-
2020 school year.” 
 
“An individual who changes employment only earns credit for a year of employment 
at a School of Excellence if s/he works a minimum of ninety-nine (99) days at the 
designated school.  Credit earned for teaching at a School of Excellence may be used 
only to satisfy general renewal credit. It cannot be used to satisfy credit for subject 
specialization or for teaching students with disabilities.”  (Florida Department of 
Education) 
 
 

Procedure for Updating MIP 
 
Revisions for the MIP are approved by the Clay County School Board with input 
from various sources. Some examples are listed below. 
 

● Participant evaluations of professional education experiences 
● A review of existing components by component authors 
● Program evaluations 
● Legislative, Department of Education, School Improvement and district 

expectations 
 
 

  

Page 354 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

10 

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT SYSTEMS 
 
Planning 
 
The most significant aspect of a district-wide professional development system is 
planning. Professional development must include scientifically research-based 
opportunities that align with disaggregated student achievement data, student and 
instructional personnel needs, School Improvement Plans, annual performance 
appraisal data for teachers and administrators, annual school reports, and district 
strategic planning. Within the planning process, the areas of needs assessment, 
developing a plan, addressing content learning and ensuring that trainers are highly 
skilled are imperative for success. The primary focus for training falls in one or 
more of the following categories: Florida State Standards, subject content, best 
practices in teaching methods, technology, assessment and data analysis, classroom 
management, school safety, or family involvement. 
 
To determine and plan for the professional development teachers need to improve 
student performance, the academic progress of our students must be evaluated. A 
formal needs assessment survey is presented (annually) to all faculty members. The 
needs assessment process is composed of six steps. 
 

● Identify data sources 
● Identify data collection methods 
● Educate participants to the purpose of the process 
● Collect data 
● Analyze data and establish priorities 
● Consider implications of the data  
 

A description of each follows: 
 

1. Identify Data Sources—Multiple data sources are used to assess the 
professional development needs of faculty members: 

o Classroom disaggregated student achievement data by content area 
and skills 

o District assessments 
o State assessments 
o School Improvement Plans 
o Annual performance appraisal data for teachers and administrators 
o Annual school reports 
o District plans for professional development 
o District strategic plans 
o K-12 Reading Plan 
o District Technology Plan 
o Feedback from teachers, administrators, Professional Development 

Advisory Council members, and curriculum specialists 

Page 355 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

11 

o Professional Development Department staff regarding requests for 
service from schools and departments/divisions 

o Clay County Education Association (CCEA) 
o Clay Educational Staff Professional Association (CESPA) 

 
2. Identify Data Collection Methods 

o Review student achievement data 
o Learning Target Plans 
o Personal interviews 
o Professional Development needs assessment survey completed and 

returned to the Professional Development Department 
o Review of teacher and administrator performance appraisals and 

school reports 
 

3. Educate Participants to Purpose of the Process 
Participants are oriented to the needs assessment process.  They are given 
instructions for completing the needs assessment survey.  They are also 
given instructions in the methods that should be used to identify their 
professional development needs.  
 

4. Collect Data  
Data collection methods are as follows:  
 

o Review Student Achievement Data 
Faculty members are asked to review classroom disaggregated 
student achievement data in conjunction with district assessments, 
state assessments, school reports, and School Improvement Plans to 
identify professional development needs for increased student 
performance. 

 
o Learning Target Plans 

Learning Target Plans are reviewed for unmet professional 
development needs. 

 
o Personal Interviews 

Professional development needs are identified by collegial 
conversations between teachers, administrators, and the 
Professional Development Department. 

 
o Professional Development Needs Assessment Survey 

A needs assessment survey is sent to all employees on an annual 
basis to determine teacher, administrator, and support employees 
professional development needs. 

 
o Teacher and Administrator Performance Appraisals 

Page 356 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

12 

Performance appraisals for teachers and administrators are 
reviewed in the process for determining the district wide 
professional development needs for improving student performance. 

 
5. Analyze Data and Establish Priorities 

The Professional Development Department, along with other departments 
in the district, analyzes the data collected and establishes the training 
priorities for the district.  

 

Delivery 
 
The delivery of professional development opportunities will focus on relevance, 
learning strategies, continuous training, technology usage, time resources, funding 
resources, coordinated records, leadership and growing the organization. To ensure 
relevance of professional development, evaluations completed by participants will 
be reviewed for similarity between identified needs and delivery. 
 
The most effective means for enforcing newly learned strategies are modeling, 
practice and feedback. These most often take place through participation in 
professional learning communities.  Instructors and/or facilitators are requested to 
model the techniques they are presenting in the same way a teacher would use them 
in the classroom. The opportunity for practice is an invaluable teaching method for 
ensuring mastery. Facilitators are also encouraged to allow opportunities for 
feedback once participants have implemented the new strategy into their classroom. 
 
Sustained or continuous professional learning is the best tool for reinforcing skills 
and knowledge that are new. Multiple sessions over an extended period of time 
allows for implementation and feedback and gives participants the opportunity for 
collegial conversations to discuss the implementation results. 
 
Many different forms of technology are used in providing training. They include, but 
are not limited to, online PD resources, Learning Management Systems, presentation 
software programs, videos, and educational software programs. 
 
One of the most significant elements in providing professional development is 
having the time available for delivery of training. Professional development is 
provided before, during and after the school day, on the weekends, during summer 
and during pre- and post-planning. 
 
Funding for professional development is based on the district’s FTE. Other funding 
may be provided through grants and state and federal funds designated for teacher 
growth. 
 
Easy access to coordinated records on received professional development is 
provided by an automated staff development management system. All certificated 

Page 357 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

13 

personnel are able to view their professional development portfolio to determine 
their progress toward certificate renewal. School administrators can also view the 
portfolios of their faculty members to ensure certificated personnel are on track 
with keeping their certificate renewed. 
 
A commitment to professional development is a primary focus when implementing 
district-wide initiatives to improve student performance. Change is always linked to 
improved student performance. Professional development is the best tool to use in 
dealing with change. The administrative staff is the catalyst in promoting change 
and in mentoring those who aspire to become leaders. 
 

Follow-up 
 
Effective professional development cannot happen without the transfer of newly 
learned skills/knowledge into the classroom. If professional development is to have 
a positive impact on student performance, it must be implemented. For this reason, 
all inservice opportunities will have a follow-up activity. Follow-up activities will be 
determined by the facilitator. Inservice points will not be awarded until follow-up 
has been successfully completed. 
 
For teachers to be successful in the implementation of new strategies, it is important 
for coaching and mentoring to take place. Administrators and professional 
development facilitators are encouraged to be available for consultation and 
feedback after training takes place. They are also encouraged to provide web-based 
resources, including email correspondence, for additional information and 
assistance. If training is initiated at the school level, the Inservice Coordinator at 
that school is responsible for ensuring follow-up takes place.  If training is initiated 
at the district level, the facilitator will coordinate the follow-up activity(ies) and 
ensure consistency throughout the district. 
 
 

Evaluation 
 
The most important aspect of an effective professional development system is 
evaluation. The only way to determine if a professional development activity has 
been implemented and if it is effective or ineffective is to conduct an evaluation to 
determine if there has been transfer into the classroom. If transfer into the 
classroom has taken place, it should be documented by tracking student change.  
Tracking student change can be done in many different ways. Some methods for 
tracking student change are: standardized achievement tests, district achievement 
tests, teacher-constructed tests, action research, performance checklists, and 
student portfolios. 
 

Page 358 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

14 

The results of professional development evaluations are used in planning for the 
subsequent years’ professional learning activities. They are also used to eliminate 
ineffective training that does not have a positive impact on student performance. 
 
The legislature requires all districts to document expenditures for professional 
development resources in the following categories: Florida State Standards, subject 
content, best practices in teaching methods, technology, assessment and data 
analysis, classroom management, school safety, and family involvement. 
 

Participant Follow-up 
 

● Each participant will submit evidence of the completion of an activity(ies). 
This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve student 
achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective logs/journals, 
newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia presentations. 

● The evidence may be on-line and must be submitted to the Professional 
Development Facilitator for each activity.  

● Each participant will submit to the Professional Development Facilitator 
documentary evidence of implementation for each of the related activities 
completed by the participant. 

 
 

Program Evaluation 
 
Program evaluation asks the fundamental question, “Is professional education in 
our district effectively meeting the needs of our organization and its employees?” 
This requires knowing stakeholder expectations and gauging them against our 
organizational purpose, the Professional Development mission, and the 
effectiveness of systems support. Program evaluation makes extensive use of 
existing data as well as the collection of new data through surveys, interviews, and 
focus groups. Program evaluation is the responsibility of the Professional 
Development Department. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 359 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

15 

Reporting 
 
Evaluation data is reported in the following ways: 
 

● Participation Evaluation 
Results are used by the provider and coordinator of the professional 
development offering and are reported to the district for individual 
sessions. This data is most useful when combined with other participant 
evaluations to help evaluate a component. 

 
● Component Evaluation 

Results of all component evaluations are reported to the Professional 
Development Department. This data is reviewed and used to assess the 
effectiveness of individual components. 

 
● Program Evaluation 

The School District of Clay County has a process for program evaluation. 
Data will be compiled and the results will be reported to all schools, 
departments, and the Professional Development Department.  

 
Tracking changes in educator practice is documented in one or more of the 
following methods: reflection logs, student assessments, professional learning 
community team logs, results documented in collaborative learning activities 
examining educator practice and work samples, learning walks, peer visits, and/or 
professional portfolios. 
 
Major professional learning initiatives at both the school level and district level will 
be documented and evaluated using the Professional Development Evaluation form.  
This form is completed by participants and submitted to the Professional 
Development Department. The facilitator is asked to summarize the planning, 
implementation, follow-up, and evaluation of the training.  They are also asked to 
provide input into how the evaluation of this training can be used in future 
professional learning initiatives. This document is used in planning future 
professional learning opportunities. This information is also used to fine-tune or 
discontinue ineffective professional learning. 
 
  

Page 360 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

16 

Evaluation Matrix 
 
An organization that expects to improve must systematically collect data to monitor 
and determine the effectiveness and appropriateness of its actions. Consequently, 
professional education services are continually evaluated by customers and 
suppliers. Three evaluation types are listed below. 
 
 
 

Evaluation 
Type 

Description Data Sources Collection 
Methods 

Responsible 

Participant 
evaluation 
 
 
 

 

Were skills, 
attitude, 
knowledge 
increased? 
Were activities 
effective? 

Participants Surveys, 
evaluations, 
interviews 

Consultant, 
Program 
Administrator, 
Prof. Dev. 
Facilitators 

Component 
Evaluation 

Were activities 
beneficial? 
 
Were 
participants 
and presenters 
satisfied? 

Participants, 
presenters 

Component 
Evaluation, 
surveys, 
interviews 

Consultants, 
Program 
Administrators
, Professional 
Development 
Facilitators 

Program 
Evaluation 

Was the 
overall plan for 
professional 
education 
effective? 

Mission, goals, 
needs, 
assessment, 
evaluations, 
surveys 

Surveys, 
review existing 
data 

Professional 
Development 
Department  

 
  

Page 361 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

17 

ADDENDUM 
 
Master Inservice Plan (MIP) Addendum 
The MIP must pay special attention to beginning teachers, leadership development, 
and intensive course work for learning new instructional strategies and designs. 
Legislation recognizes this fact and expects the MIP to address these three areas in 
the following ways: 
 

Areas Programs 
Beginning teachers Professional Learning Facilitators for 

Beginning Teachers Support Program 
 
Resident Clinical Faculty for Pre-Intern 
and Pre-Service Teachers 
 

Leadership development Level II Principalship Certification 
Aspiring APs Program 
 

Course work Various Colleges & Universities 
 
 
These three areas are not included in this publication due to their size and 
complexity. Complete documentation may be examined in the following locations: 

Program Location & Person to Contact 

 
Professional Learning Facilitators for 
Beginning Teachers Support Program 
 
Resident Clinical Faculty for Pre-Intern 
and Pre-Service Teachers 
 

 
Professional Development Department 
Contact: Jamie Iannone, Supervisor, 
Professional Development 

 
Level II Principalship Certification 
Aspiring APs Program 
 

 
Contact: Jamie Iannone, Supervisor 
Professional Development 
 
 

 
Course work 

 
Human Resources Division 
Contact: Brenda Troutman, Director, 
Instructional Personnel 

 
  

Page 362 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

18 

TRAINING COMPONENTS 
Teaching Students with Disabilities Component 
State Identifier: 2-100-011 Effective 7/1/2014  
Component Title:  Teaching Students with Disabilities Professional Development  
Inservice Points:         20 
Certification Areas:  All 
 
General Objectives: 
Participants will be able to: 

● Define and identify the federal and state requirements for identification and   
provision of services to students with disabilities. 

● Compare and contrast development and characteristics of students with   
disabilities to non-disabled peers. 

● Identify strategies for differentiating, adapting and providing 
accommodations in   the classroom for students with disabilities. 

● Identify instructional methods for integrating instruction in the classroom. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify state and federal legislation that has affected the education of 
students with disabilities. 

2. Identify the six principles of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act   
(IDEA). 

3. Recognize the sequence in the exceptional education process from referral 
to reevaluation. 

4. Understand the safeguards that exist to ensure that the rights of children 
with disabilities and their parents are protected. 

5. Understand the typical development and characteristics (e.g., language, 
cognitive- academic, social-emotional, sensory, physical-motor) of children. 

6. Compare and contrast the classifications and eligibility criteria established 
under IDEA and in the Florida State Board of Education rules. 

7. Identify models of support for assisting students with disabilities in 
accessing the general education curricula. 

8. Identify the guidelines of differentiated instruction used to maximize 
achievement for all students.  

9. Identify the principles and guidelines to eliminate barriers to learning. 
10. Explore how specially designed instruction for students with disabilities is 

related to instruction. 
11. Identify instructional strategies for acquisition, generalization, and 

maintenance of standards-based skills. 
12. Identify ongoing informal assessment techniques for adjusting instruction. 
13. Identify instructional tools and adjustments that can be used to support a  

differentiated learning environment to accommodate individual learner 
needs. 

 
 

Page 363 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

19 

 
 
Activities may include: 

1. Completion of all learning activities. 
2. Review references and resources provided by facilitator/instructor.  
3. Identify key terms associated with the exceptional students with disabilities 
4. Demonstrate an understanding of the steps involved in the exceptional 

education process. 
5. Demonstrate an understanding of strategies for differentiating and adapting   

instruction.  
6. Acquire skills in instructional methods for integrating instruction in the   

classroom. 
7. Demonstrate 80% mastery of course objectives. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 
Following successful completion of the training, participants must complete all 
required follow-up activities assigned. 
 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect documentary evidence of follow-up from each   
participant.  

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of   
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
 
  

Page 364 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

20 

Administrator Components 
 
State Identifier:  7-507-016 Effective: 7.1.2010 
Component Title:  Administrator Development 
Inservice Points:  3-120 
Certification Areas: All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable all participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective schools 
at all levels. It will enable participants to recognize and evaluate effective teaching 
strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Participants will also be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-based 
instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Understand and apply the Florida Principal Standards. 
2. Develop knowledge of the research done on identifying effective teacher 

strategies in order to become certified in the evaluation process. 
3. Develop and demonstrate knowledge of the Clay County Assessment System 

(CAS). 
4. Demonstrate knowledge of research and competency development through 

preparation and presentation of inservice components. 
5. Identify, develop, and implement appropriate use of computers and other 

technologies for instruction and management. 
6. Develop knowledge and application of the Florida Standards. 
7. Identify effective practices that promote human rights and opportunities for 

developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 
8. Establish and oversee professional learning communities based upon 

individual needs identified in student assessment data. 
 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in or developing research-based workshops, on-site 
visitations/demonstrations (including technology), videotaped 
presentations, professional learning communities, lesson design/study 
groups, conferences (provided proper paperwork is submitted), 
collaborative learning walks, lectures and role-playing that will enhance the 
development of administrators and staff. 

2. Participating in and implementing distance learning administrative 
activities. 

Page 365 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

21 

3. Participating in training to understand and apply the Florida Principal 
Standards. 

4. Preparing a portfolio for the HRMD Leadership Development Program. 
5. Participating in training and demonstrating the ability to use formative, 

summative, and benchmark data through observation, diagnostic skills, 
analyses of the data, and providing appropriate feedback to teachers. 

6. Demonstrating knowledge of and applying appropriate procedures for  
implementing the CAS (Clay Assessment System)  

7. Participating in training on C.E.T. (Clinical Educator Training) that will 
enhance knowledge of interpersonal communication skills, effective 
supervisory responses, instructional diagnostic instruments, recording 
anecdotal data, techniques in interactive data, steps of the clinical 
supervision model, and procedures for conducting pre- and post-
observation conferences. 

8. Participating in training of Principal Perceiver Interviews and implementing 
use of the instrument. 

9. Participating in and implementing Professional Development Plan training 
through the S.P.R.I.N.T. (Supervisors of Pre-Intern Teachers) office. 

10. Participating in and implementing strategies through collegial 
conversations between and among schools through the Crown Consortium, 
Florida Leaders.net, SREB (Southern Regional Education Board), and PEP 
(Professional Enhancement Program) programs to enhance instructional 
leadership qualities among administrative staff. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
teacher performance/student achievement may be in the form of reports, 
papers, reflective logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or 
multimedia presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on-line or in print and must be submitted to the 
Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This evidence 
will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
last day for teachers of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
activity completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

Page 366 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

22 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary 
evidence of teacher performance/student achievement in reading, 
writing, science, and/or math to the Professional Development Office. 

State Identifier:  7-512-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title:   Instructional Leadership 
Inservice Points:  3-120 
Certification Area(s):  
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable all participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective 
classrooms at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate research-based instructional strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more student-centered learning 
environment. 
Participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-based 
instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Demonstrate knowledge of effective implementation of School 
Improvement plans at the local school/district levels including the purpose 
and oversight of the Learning Target Plans. 

2. Develop knowledge of first year school advisory council members and/or 
chairpersons in the effective implementation of the school improvement 
planning process at the local school and district level as it pertains to State 
Educational Goals, Section 9, 229.591, Florida Statutes. 

3. Develop knowledge of the evaluative self-study and purposes and 
procedures of the AdvancEd external five year review. 

4. Demonstrate knowledge of the accreditation process for planned 
improvements. 

5. Demonstrate knowledge and effective implementation of the Florida 
Continuous Improvement Model 

6. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 
opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

7. Demonstrate knowledge, participation and effective implementation in the 
Multi-Tiered System of Support.  

8. Establish and oversee professional learning communities for instructional 
staff based upon individual needs identified in student assessment data. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Developing and implementing strategies to meet objectives of the school 
improvement plan model. 

Page 367 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

23 

2. Developing knowledge and skill in identifying measurable outcomes for 
specific goals while developing, implementing, and assessing adequate 
progress according to the school improvement plan model. 

3. Participating in the monitoring and evaluation of current school/district 
improvement plans including the K-12 Reading Plan. 

4. Developing and implementing professional learning communities, lesson 
study/design groups, and action research to develop practical strategies for 
data collection and analysis. 

5. Demonstrating knowledge of the AdvanceEd evaluation manual to acquire 
the ability to interpret policies, practices, and standards and evaluate the 
status of the school. 

6. Increasing knowledge of the practical role of the School Advisory Council in 
advancing student achievement. 

7. Demonstrating the ability to deal with interpersonal processes, such as 
collaboration, conflict management, problem solving and decision making 
that accompany change efforts. 

8. Acquiring knowledge in the development of a variety of valid needs 
assessments so that the goals and objectives of the school improvement 
plan will reflect those assessments. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on-line, or in print and must be submitted to the 
Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This evidence 
will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of school-
wide student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect documentary evidence of follow-up from each 
participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 368 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

24 

 
  

Page 369 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

25 

State Identifier: 1-000-001 Effective 7.1.2010 
Component Title: Learning With Art (Visual) 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in art. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in art. 
3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in art. 
4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 

planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
art. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information in art. 

7. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 
opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills that could be taught using art to advance student learning. 

2. Serving on District or State art textbook adoption committee to insure 
alignment with the Florida Standards and the Next Sunshine State Standards 
(NGSSS). 

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing an artworks copyright 
presentation. 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 

Page 370 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

26 

proper paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing pertaining to art 
in school. 

5. Participating in distance learning arts activities, such as those programs 
offered by the Cummer Museum of Art or the Appleton Museum of Art and 
implementing those activities in the classroom. 

6. Developing and implementing a community art awareness program. 
7. Developing and implementing cross-curricula art lessons. 
8. Developing and implementing an art-in-the-home program involving 

parents and children in the arts. 
 
 
 
 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the art related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science and/or math. 

 
 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 

Page 371 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

27 

 
 
 
State Identifier: 1-004-001 Effective: 7.1.2010 
Component Title: Foreign Language Learning 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): Foreign Language 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in foreign languages. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in foreign 
languages. 

3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 
foreign languages. 

4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning among regular education and exceptional student education staff 
members. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
foreign languages. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to learn, 
use, and analyze information in foreign languages. 

7. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 
opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills that could be taught in Foreign Language to advance student 
learning. 

2. Serving on District or State foreign language textbook adoption committee 
to insure alignment with Florida Standards and the Next Generation 
Sunshine State Standards (NGSSS). 

Page 372 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

28 

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing a foreign language copyright 
presentation. 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 
proper paperwork is submitted), lectures or role-playing, and action 
research. 

5. Participating in and implementing district/school curriculum articulation in 
foreign language grades K-12. 

6. Developing, participating in, and implementing in the production of 
materials to be used in foreign language to align with the FL Standards and 
NGSSS. 

7. Participating in and implementing distance learning foreign language 
activities. 

8. Developing, participating in and implementing cross-curricula foreign 
language lessons. 

9. Reviewing, analyzing and identifying research related to ways to integrate 
foreign language through the other content areas. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 

Page 373 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

29 

 
 
 
 
 
State Identifier: 1-407-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Information Literacy 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objective: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Participants will also be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-based 
instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in information literacy. 

2. Describe the process used to select materials for the media center. 
3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies. 
4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 

planning between regular education, media, technology, and exceptional 
student education staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
library media/information literacy. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information. 

7. Acquire skills in motivating students to become avid and enthusiastic 
readers. 

8. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 
opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills that could be taught using information literacy to advance 
student learning. 

Page 374 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

30 

2. Serving on district or state textbook adoption committees to insure 
alignment with Florida State Standards and the Next Generation Sunshine 
State Standards (NGSSS). 

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing a copyright presentation. 
4. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 

on-site visitations/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 
proper paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing. 

5. Participating in and implementing distance learning activities. 
6. Developing (through collaboration with classroom teachers), participating 

in, and implementing cross-curricula information literacy lessons. 
7. Demonstrating knowledge of and skills in library/media programs and 

instructional resources. 
8. Using interlibrary loan services through various providers. 
9. Identifying and using services and training available through distance 

learning. 
10. Demonstrating the ability to operate and maintain audiovisual materials 

and equipment. 
11. Demonstrating ethical behavior in regard to information and information 

technology. 
12. Developing and describing strategies to encourage students to read age- 

appropriate literature. 
13. Participating in the selection of research-based adolescent and/or children’s 

literature within the field of general education or a specific content area. 
14. Identifying ways to monitor student progress as competent and motivated 

readers. 
15. Developing and describing collaborative strategies to assist and encourage 

classroom teachers in introducing specific titles/resources to their students. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print, and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

Page 375 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

31 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 376 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

32 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
State Identifier: 1-008-002 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Learning with ELA (English Language Arts) 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objective: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate 
effective research-based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in English Language Arts. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in English 
Language Arts. 

3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in  
ELA.  

4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
language arts. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information in ELA. 

7. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 
opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

Page 377 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

33 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on student-
centered strategies and skills that could be taught using literacy strategies 
to advance student learning. 

2. Serving on district or state textbook adoption committees to insure 
alignment with Florida State Standards. 

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing an ELA copyright 
presentation. 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitations/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 
proper paperwork is submitted), lectures, and role-playing. 

5. Participating in and implementing distance learning English Language Arts 
activities. 

6. Developing, participating in, and implementing cross-curricula English 
Language Arts lessons. 

7. Reviewing, analyzing, and identifying research related to ways to integrate 
language arts through the other content areas. 

8. Identifying and implementing ways to assess student performance using a 
portfolio approach. 

9. Developing and implementing a parent awareness program describing the 
advantages of integrated language arts instruction across the content areas. 

10. Developing and implementing appropriate language arts teaching strategies. 
11. Creating thematic units that integrate English Language Arts with the other 

content areas. 
12. Developing an understanding of and techniques for implementing the 

Collaborative Classroom principles.  
13. Developing, describing, and implementing strategies to encourage students 

to read and discuss age-appropriate literature. 
14. Identifying and implementing ways to monitor student progress as 

competent and motivated readers. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, or PowerPoint/multimedia presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

Page 378 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

34 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the language arts related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form from 
each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
State Identifier: 1-009-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Learning with Mathematics 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in math. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in math. 
3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 

math. 
4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 

planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
math. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
formative, summative, and benchmark assessment data. 

7. Develop knowledge and effective implementation of the Response to 
Intervention (RtI) process. 

Page 379 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

35 

8. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 
developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century strategies and skills that could be taught in mathematics advance 
student learning. 

2. Serving on District or State math textbook adoption committee to insure 
alignment with the Florida State Standards.  

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing a math copyright 
presentation. 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 
proper paperwork is submitted), lectures, role-playing, or action research. 

5. Participating in and implementing district/school curriculum articulation in 
mathematics grades K-12. 

6. Developing, participating in, and implementing materials to be used in math 
to align with the Florida State Standards.  

7. Participating in and implementing distance learning math activities. 
8. Developing, participating in, and implementing cross-curricula math 

lessons. 
9. Reviewing, analyzing, and identifying research related to ways to integrate 

math through the other content areas. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, or PowerPoint/multimedia presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the mathematics related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

Page 380 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

36 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
State Identifier: 1-011-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Learning Through Physical Education 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment.  Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate 
effective research-based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in physical education, athletic coaching, health, physical science, 
and NJROTC. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption. 
3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright and legal procedures and 

policies in physical education, athletic coaching, health, physical science, and 
NJROTC. 

4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge in and implement techniques for motivating students in 
physical education, athletic coaching, health, physical science, and NJROTC. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information in physical education, athletic coaching, health, physical 
science, and NJROTC. 

Page 381 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

37 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills that could be taught using art to advance student learning. 

2. Serving on District or State textbook adoption committee to insure 
alignment with the Florida State Standards and Next Generation Sunshine 
State Standards (NGSSS). 

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing a physical 
education/athletic coaching copyright or tort liability in athletics 
presentation. 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 
proper paperwork is submitted), or lectures or role-playing pertaining to 
physical education/athletic coaching in school. 

5. Participating in distance learning physical education/athletic coaching 
activities. 

6. Developing, participating in, and implementing a community physical 
education awareness program, such as a Health and Physical Fitness Fair. 

7. Developing, participating in, and implementing cross-curricula physical 
education, health, and NJROTC lessons. 

8. Developing, participating in, and implementing a physical 
education/athletic coaching/NJROTC program involving parents and 
children in physical education/athletic coaching. 

9. Developing and implementing programs that enhance student and parent 
knowledge of rules, safety regulations, skills, and social opportunities found 
in selected interscholastic sports and NJROTC programs. 

10. Participating in and implementing District/school curriculum articulation in 
physical education. 

11. Developing and implementing the District Health and Physical Fitness 
curriculum. 

12. Developing and implementing programs that enhance awareness of the 
social, motivational, psychological, physiological, and maturational 
advantages of participation in interscholastic sports and NJROTC programs. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, or PowerPoint/multimedia presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print, and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

Page 382 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

38 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
State Identifier: 1-012-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Pre-Kindergarten 
Inservice Points: 3-60 
Certification Area(s): Pre-K, to include ESE Pre-K 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at the pre-kindergarten level. It will also enable administrators to 
recognize and evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in pre-kindergarten elementary school. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in specific 
content areas. 

3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 
pre- kindergarten elementary education. 

4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular pre-kindergarten education and pre-kindergarten 
exceptional student education staffs. 

Page 383 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

39 

5. Develop knowledge in and implement techniques for motivating students in 
pre- kindergarten elementary classrooms. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information in pre-kindergarten elementary situations. 

7. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 
opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills that could be taught at the preK, K level to advance student 
learning. 

2. Serving on District or State pre-kindergarten textbook adoption committee 
to insure alignment with Florida State Standards. 

3. Participating in and implementing distance learning Pre-kindergarten 
activities. 

4. Participating in or developing a pre-kindergarten elementary copyright 
presentation. 

5. Participating in or developing research-based workshops, on-site 
visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional learning 
communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided proper 
paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing that will enhance 
elementary learning. 

6. Developing and implementing Pre-Kindergarten curriculum. 
7. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that strengthen 

communication between home and school and parent and child. 
8. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that foster 

children’s oral language while encouraging development in reading and 
writing. 

9. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that develop 
children’s abilities in speaking, reading, and writing. 

10. Developing and implementing evaluation techniques of students and 
programs. 

11. Developing and implementing key experiences and activities that advance 
the cognitive development within the classroom. 

12. Develop skills in identifying the characteristics of a developmentally 
appropriate and cognitively oriented pre-kindergarten curriculum to 
include establishing a daily routine and arranging and equipping a pre-
kindergarten classroom to maximize learning opportunities. 

13. Develop and implement knowledge and skills of child safety and first aid. 
14. Develop knowledge of the problems children face (child abuse, cocaine 

babies) as these problems relate to learning. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

Page 384 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

40 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, or PowerPoint/multimedia presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site within 30 
days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than teacher’s last day 
of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 385 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

41 

 
State Identifier: 1-013-008 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Learning With Reading 
Inservice Points: 3-120 (Bankable when district approved) 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objective: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in reading. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in reading. 
3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 

reading. 
4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 

planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
reading. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
student data from formative, summative, and benchmark assessments. 

7. Develop knowledge and effective implementation of the MTSS process. 
8. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 

opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills and strategies that could be taught in reading to advance 
student learning. 

2. Serving on district or state textbook adoption committees to insure 
alignment with the Florida State Standards.  

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing a reading copyright 
presentation. 

Page 386 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

42 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitations/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 
proper paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing. 

5. Developing the skills necessary to implement student-centered, 
collaborative research-based reading programs,  

6. Participating in training provided for reading tutors and coaches. 
7. Participating in and implementing distance learning reading activities. 
8. Developing, participating in, and implementing cross-curricula reading 

lessons. 
9. Reviewing, analyzing, and identifying research related to ways to integrate 

Reading through the other content areas. 
 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, or PowerPoint/multimedia presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 387 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

43 

 
 
 
State Identifier: 1-015-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Learning with Science 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more student-centered 
collaborative learning environment. Administrator participants will be able to 
recognize and evaluate effective research-based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in science. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in science. 
3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 

science. 
4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 

planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
science using strategies such as Argument Driven Inquiry (ADI). 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
student data from formative, summative, and benchmark assessments. 

7. Develop knowledge and effective implementation of the MTSS process. 
8. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 

opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participate in and implement science safety standards procedures (all 
grades). 

2. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills and strategies that could be taught in science to advance 
student learning. 

3. Serving on District or State science textbook adoption committee to insure 
alignment with Next Generation Sunshine State Standards (NGSSS). 

Page 388 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

44 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing a science copyright 
presentation. 

5. Developing, participating in, and implementing workshops, on-site 
visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional learning 
communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided proper 
paperwork is submitted), lectures and/or role-playing, and action research. 

6. Participating in and implementing district/school curriculum articulation in 
science grades K-12. 

7. Developing, participating in, and implementing in the production of 
materials to be used in science to align with the Next Generation Sunshine 
State Standards (NGSSS). 

8. Developing, participating in, and implementing in the production of 
materials to be used in science that align with the NGSSS. 

9. Participating in and implementing distance learning science activities. 
10. Developing, participating in, and implementing cross-curricula science 

lessons and labs. 
11. Reviewing, analyzing and identifying research related to ways to integrate 

science through the other content areas. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line or in print, and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 

Page 389 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

45 

 
 
 
 
 
State Identifier: 1-016-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Social Sciences Learning 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objective: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels.  It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in social sciences. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in social sciences. 
3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 

social sciences. 
4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 

planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
social sciences. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information in social sciences. 

7. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 
opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills and strategies that could be taught in social sciences to 
advance student learning. 

Page 390 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

46 

2. Serving on district or state textbook adoption committees to insure 
alignment with the Florida State Standards and the Next Generation 
Sunshine State Standards (NGSSS). 

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing a social sciences copyright 
presentation. 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing workshops, on-site 
visitations/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional learning 
communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided proper 
paperwork is submitted), lectures, and role-playing. 

5. Participating in and implementing distance learning social sciences 
activities. 

6. Identifying and implementing research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in social sciences. 

7. Developing knowledge of and implementing techniques for motivating 
students in social sciences. 

8. Developing, participating in, and implementing techniques that will teach 
students how to analyze information in social sciences. 

9. Developing, participating in, and implementing networks for 
communicating with others in the state and country on innovative strategies 
for teaching social sciences. 

10. Developing, participating in, and implementing appropriate social sciences 
teaching strategies. 

11. Reviewing, analyzing, and implementing test instruments appropriate for 
social sciences evaluation. 

12. Developing and implementing methods to incorporate reading in the 
content area of social sciences. 

13. Developing and implementing thematic units that integrate social sciences 
with reading and language arts skills. 

14. Updating knowledge in content area of social sciences. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

Page 391 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

47 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 392 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

48 

State Identifier: 3-003-003 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Computer Science/Technology Education 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels using technology education tools. It will also enable 
administrators to recognize and evaluate effective use of technology in the 
classroom. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment utilizing technology. Administrator participants will be able to 
recognize and evaluate effective research- based technology education 
tools/programs. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning through computer science and technology. 

2. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies 
regarding computer use in courses. 

3. Demonstrate knowledge of the ethical and moral issues surrounding 
technology and computer use in the classroom. 

4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students to 
use computers and technology in their studies. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information gained through technology use. 

7. Demonstrate competency in basic operations, productivity, communication, 
research, planning and management, social, ethical, legal, and human issues. 

8. Identify effective practices that promote human rights and opportunities for 
developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in or developing a computer/technology copyright 
presentation. 

2. Participating in or developing workshops, on-site 
visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional learning 
communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided proper 
paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing that will enhance the use 
of computer software and hardware. 

Page 393 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

49 

3. Demonstrating the ability to use technology equipment and to define the 
personnel involved in producing a video that enhances student learning. 

4. Demonstrating the ability to devise and implement assignments that use 
multimedia (the melding of multi-media) to enhance student learning. 

5. Developing classroom websites that encourage involvement in the 
classroom. 

6. Demonstrating the ability to devise and implement programs for classroom 
management as well as programs for classroom lessons that indicate a 
restructuring of the lecture-oriented classroom to a more student-centered 
one. 

7. Demonstrating the ability to use textbook-related technology to enhance 
student learning. 

8. Demonstrating the ability to implement and maintain a successful TCP/IP 
network. 

9. Demonstrating the ability to explain and employ administrative automated 
information management systems.  

10. Identifying and using services and training available through distance 
learning. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line or in print, and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the technology related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted: Master Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 

Page 394 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

50 

 
State Identifier: 3-007-005 Effective 7/1/2010 
Component Title: Technology - Integration into the Curriculum 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels by integrating technology into the curriculum. It 
will also enable administrators to recognize and evaluate effective use of technology 
systems. 
 
Upon successful completion of the components, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional technology strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning through technology integration. 

2. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies 
regarding technology use in courses. 

3. Demonstrate knowledge of the ethical and moral issues surrounding 
technology use in the classroom. 

4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students to 
use technology in their studies. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information gained through technology use. 

7. Demonstrate competency in basic operations, productivity, communication, 
research, planning and management, social, ethical, legal, and human issues. 

8. Develop skills and implement techniques that will teach students how to 
effectively utilize online collaboration programs, systems, or applications. 

9. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 
opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of 
diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in or developing a technology copyright presentation. 
2. Participating in or developing workshops, on-site 

visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional learning 

Page 395 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

51 

communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided proper 
paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing that will enhance the 
integration of technology in the instructional setting. 

3. Demonstrating the ability to incorporate diverse software programs to 
enhance student learning. 

4. Demonstrating the ability to devise and implement assignments that use 
multimedia (the melding of multi-media) to enhance student learning. 

5. Demonstrating the ability to devise and implement programs for classroom 
management as well as programs for classroom lessons that indicate a 
restructuring of the lecture-oriented classroom to a more student-centered 
one.  

6. Demonstrating the ability to devise and implement strategies for and 
lessons involving the use of adaptive software and hardware to enhance 
student learning. 

7. Demonstrating the ability to devise and implement the adaptation of a 
traditional unit of study into an on-line unit of study through an interactive 
website. 

8. Demonstrating the ability to use textbook-related technology to enhance 
student learning. 

9. Demonstrate the ability to design lessons and activities that involve 
(incorporate) online student collaboration through the use of blog’s, wiki’s, 
and social networking. 

10. Identifying and using services and training available through distance 
learning. 

11. Developing classroom websites that encourage family involvement in the 
classroom. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line or in print, and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the technology related activities completed by the participant. 

 

Page 396 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

52 

 
 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 397 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

53 

State Identifier: 1-017-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Learning through Writing 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objective: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels.  It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more student -centered 
learning environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in writing. 

2. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies. 
3. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 

planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

4. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
writing and improvement of student writing skills. 

5. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information in writing. 

6. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights and 
opportunities for developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills and strategies that could be taught in writing to advance 
student learning.  

2. Serving on district or state textbook adoption committees to insure 
alignment with the Florida Standards.  

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing a writing copyright  
presentation. 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing workshops, on-site 
visitations/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional learning 
communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided proper 
paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing. 

5. Participating in and implementing distance learning writing activities. 

Page 398 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

54 

6. Developing, participating in, and implementing cross-curricula writing 
lessons. 

7. Creating a writing environment in the classroom and implementing a 
systematic approach for teaching writing as a process. 

8. Developing lessons and activities to be used in writing instruction 
throughout the school day. 

9. Identifying ways to monitor student progress and assess student 
performance in writing. 

10. Identifying ways to teach students how to assess and reflect on their own 
writing. 

11. Modeling a variety of techniques for pre-writing, drafting, revising, and 
editing student writing. 

12. Identifying a variety of audiences and purposes for writing related to all 
curriculum areas. 

13. Applying and modeling questioning techniques to enhance students’ critical 
thinking skills as they apply to the writing process. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, or PowerPoint/multimedia presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 

Page 399 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

55 

 
 
 
Additional Components 
 
State Identifier: 6-414-002 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Basic Life Saving Training 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): Content for all areas 
 
General Objective(s): 
This component is designed to train participants on adult and pediatric CPR 
(Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation), choking, bleeding control, bandaging, splinting, 
trauma & medical emergencies, shock, burn care, safety, and accessing 9-1-1 
services. Also included is an introduction to AEDs (Automatic External 
Defibrillator). This component trains the first aid provider/lay person responder 
what to do until EMS (Emergency Medical Service) arrives. This is a certification 
course which will require continuing education and re-current training as required. 
 
Specific Objective(s): 

1. Participants will gain knowledge on how to identify Sudden Cardiac Arrest 
(SCA) and how to respond to SCA with the application of Cardiopulmonary 
Resuscitation (CPR), use of an AED, and use of the Heimlich maneuver to 
clear obstructed airway in choking. 

2. Participants will gain knowledge of the curriculum and concepts necessary 
to successfully teach basic life support/CPR as prescribed by the American 
Heart Association or American Red Cross. 

3. Participants will gain knowledge on how to identify and react to basic life 
saving functions; clearing an airway, artificial breathing, artificial 
circulations, controlling the loss of blood flow, poisons, and trauma shock. 

4. Participants will demonstrate CPR and FBAO (Foreign Body Airway 
Obstruction) skills for evaluation according to standards established by the 
American Heart Association and the American Red Cross. 

5. Participants will demonstrate knowledge of the specific hands-on 
procedures needed to teach the actual administration of CPR to individuals. 

6. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 
developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 

 
Activities: 

1. A three-day workshop will be conducted by a certified trainer in BLS/CPR 
and First Aid. 

2. A sixteen-hour workshop, which will include lectures, demonstrations, and 
an emergency first aid video, will be conducted. 

3. Participants will be involved in simulated emergency rescue situations in 
order to demonstrate acquisition of skills. 

Page 400 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

56 

4. An eight-hour course of instruction on Basic Life Support and First Aid 
Training. 

5. A four-hour course of instruction and testing is required for the adult-only 
certification. An additional two hours are required to add the pediatric 
certification. 

 
Participant Evaluation: 
Participant shall successfully demonstrate increased competency on the written 
objectives established by the provider with a minimum passing score of 80%. The 
participant will successfully complete all evaluation criteria to become certified by 
the American Heart Association or the American Red Cross. 
 
Component Evaluation: 
The instructor will submit to the facilitator a summary of the pass/fail rate of the 
participants post-assessment. At least 90% of participants shall demonstrate 
increased skill or knowledge. 
 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master Inservice Plan Committee, October, 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 401 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

57 

 
 
 
State Identifier: 5-404-003 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Classroom Management 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): Content for all areas 
 
General Objective(s): 
The purpose of this component is to enable all participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all levels. This component will enable administrators to recognize 
and evaluate effective classroom management strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement classroom management strategies that will create an atmosphere 
allowing for effective learning to take place. Administrators will be able to recognize 
and evaluate effective research-based classroom management strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Demonstrate knowledge of the skills of high performing teachers such as 
organization, questioning techniques, effective presentations, developing 
and administering assessments, conferencing with parents, 
teaching/learning styles, multiple intelligences, the difference between 
concepts, academic rules, value knowledge, laws and law-like, Learning 
Target Plans, and Professional Development Plans. 

2. Demonstrate knowledge of productive group work, cooperative learning 
and group work. 

3. Develop and implement classroom management concepts and techniques. 
4. Develop knowledge of high -risk student characteristics and research-based 

instructional strategies designed to meet their needs. 
5. Develop a variety of strategies for improving behavior management 

including cognitive and empirical approaches. 
6. Develop and implement knowledge of cooperative discipline. 
7. Demonstrate skills in teaching students from varied cultures. 
8. Research and implement proven strategies for motivating students. 
9. Develop and implement knowledge and skills of the MTSS process. 
10. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 

developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 
 
Activities: 

1. Developing and participating in research-based workshops, on-site 
visitation/demonstrations (including technology), videotaped 
presentations, professional learning communities, lesson design/study 
groups, conferences (provided proper paperwork is submitted), lectures 

Page 402 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

58 

and role-playing that will enhance the implementation of effective 
classroom management, instructional strategies, and cooperative learning. 

2. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills and classroom management strategies that could be 
implemented to advance student learning. 

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing procedures for reducing 
restrictions in a student’s optimal learning environment including CHAMPS 
(Conversation Help Activity Movement Participation System) training. 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing consequences designed to 
reduce the occurrence of behaviors that warrant a suspension or expelling 
in accordance with the Clay County School Board policies. 

5. Developing, participating in, and implementing classroom management 
procedures that will integrate the affective curriculum with academics that 
will enhance students’ learning environment. 

6. Develop and implement appropriate strategies and resources to assess 
students’ interests, abilities, and/or aptitudes. 

7. Develop and implement the cognitive, psychomotor, and affective strategies 
appropriate for use in the instruction of high risk students. 

8. Develop and implement a behavior management system appropriate for use 
with high risk students. 

9. Develop and implement techniques for individualizing instruction for 
specific high risk students. 

10. Participating in and implementing distance learning activities. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line or in print, and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant follow the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
activity completed by the participant. 

 
 
 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

Page 403 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

59 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master Inservice Plan Committee, October, 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 404 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

60 

 
State Identifier: 4-401-002 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Data Analysis/Assessment 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to increase knowledge and 
acquire skills in data analysis and assessment methods and systems to improve 
student learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective 
learning environments at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to 
recognize and evaluate effective data analysis and assessment methods. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate research-based 
data analysis and assessment tools and techniques that can be used to identify 
student instructional needs. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices/assessments to enhance 
student learning. 

2. Demonstrate knowledge of current data analysis/assessment procedures 
and policies. 

3. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

4. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information and their own assessment data. 

5. Demonstrate knowledge and understanding of rubrics, portfolios, effective 
alternative assessments, disaggregation and interpretation of student data, 
and formal and informal assessment strategies/techniques. 

6. Develop and implement knowledge and skills of the MTSS process. 
7. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 

developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 
 
Activities may include: 

1. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 
proper paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing pertaining to data 
analysis or assessments in school. 

2. Participating in distance learning data analysis and/or assessment activities. 

Page 405 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

61 

3. Developing and implementing cross-curricula desegregated/aggregated 
data/assessment analysis lessons to enhance the learning of students. 

4. Developing and implementing the use of state/district testing/assessment 
data provided as well as data in all forms collected within the classroom to 
make informed academic decisions for individual students. 

5. Developing, participating in, and implementing data analysis training 
through the Southern Regional Education Board (SREB--Schultz Center) and 
within the district. 

6. Developing, participating in, and implementing generic and/or specific 
rubric for a variety of tasks. 

7. Developing, participating in, and implementing requirements, locating 
appropriate data elements, and specific data to be input into TERMS and the 
DOE Data Base for specific Survey periods. 

8. Develop and implement knowledge of procedures to verify accuracy of 
reporting data and the correction of already submitted data to DOE. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the art related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 

Page 406 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

62 

 
 
 
State Identifier: 2-400-004 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Elementary Education 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): Elementary 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at the elementary grade levels. It will also enable administrators to 
recognize and evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in the elementary school. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in specific 
content areas. 

3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 
elementary education. 

4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students in 
elementary classrooms. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information in elementary situations. 

7. Develop and implement knowledge and skills of the MTSS process. 
8. Identify effective practices that promote human rights and opportunities for 

developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 
 
Activities may include: 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills and strategies that could be taught to advance student 
learning. 

2. Serving on District or State elementary textbook adoption committee to 
insure alignment with the Florida State Standards and the Next Generation 
Sunshine State Standards (NGSSS). 

Page 407 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

63 

3. Participating in or developing an elementary copyright presentation. 
4. Participating in or developing research-based workshops, on-site visitation 

and/or demonstrations, videotaped presentations, a professional learning 
community, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided proper 
paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing that will enhance 
elementary learning. 

5. Developing and implementing school-wide homework guidelines. 
6. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that strengthen 

communication between home and school and parent and child. 
7. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that foster 

children’s oral language while encouraging development in reading, writing 
and all instructional areas. 

8. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that develop 
children’s abilities in speaking, reading and writing. 

9. Participating in and implementing distance learning activities. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted by:  Master Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 

Page 408 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

64 

 
 
 
 
 
State Identifier: 8-413-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Family Involvement 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable the school community to improve 
student learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective 
classrooms at all grade levels. It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective processes for family involvement in the educational setting. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement strategies that will construct a home/school connection that will 
emphasize an individualized learning environment. Administrator participants will 
be able to recognize and evaluate research- based strategies for improving the 
school community. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning through family involvement. 

2. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 
regard to family involvement. 

3. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs and families. 

4. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students and 
parents to increase family involvement. 

5. Identify effective practices that promote human rights and opportunities for 
developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 

 
Activities may include: 

1. Developing, participating in, and implementing a family-focused copyright 
presentation. 

2. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitation and/or demonstrations, videotaped presentations, 
professional learning communities, lesson design/study groups, 
conferences (provided proper paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-
playing that enhance the home/school connection. 

3. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to make 
effective decisions. 

Page 409 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

65 

4. Developing and implementing guidelines for parent conferences that 
positively impact student achievement. 

5. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that will enhance 
a parent’s awareness of and involvement with their child’s 
academic/societal/extra-curricular activities and responsibilities. 

6. Developing and implementing programs that increase family involvement in 
behavior rehabilitation programs. 

7. Developing, participating in, and implementing family literacy programs. 
8. Developing, participating in, and implementing effective parenting 

programs to include effective listening skills and enhanced communication 
between parents and their child. 

9. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that encourage 
family involvement in literacy building. 

 
10. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that develop 

children’s abilities in speaking, reading and writing. 
11. Developing, participating in, and implementing programs that will increase 

educator knowledge of the importance of family involvement in 
drug/alcohol/anger management programs. 

12. Develop classroom websites that encourage family involvement in the 
classroom/school environment. 

13. Participating in and implementing distance learning activities. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

Page 410 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

66 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted by:  Master Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
  

Page 411 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

67 

State Identifier: 6-103-005 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Safe Crisis Management 
Inservice Points: 3-94 
Certification Area(s): Content for all areas 
 
General Objective(s): 
The purpose of this component is to enable all participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective schools 
at all levels. It will enable participants to recognize and evaluate effective strategies 
for controlling crisis situations. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement research-based strategies that will create a safe learning environment. 
Participants will also be able to recognize, evaluate and use safe crisis management 
strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Participants will demonstrate knowledge of the stages of a crisis situation. 
2. Participants will demonstrate knowledge of verbal and non-verbal 

interactive techniques to prevent/de-escalate explosive situations. 
3. Participants will become familiar with safe crisis management concepts and 

techniques such as safe zone, pivot, balance and parry. 
4. Participants will be able to correctly use/teach physical control and evasive  

techniques. 
5. Participants will acquire knowledge of the dynamics of explosive behaviors. 
6. Participants will be able to successfully utilize/teach holding techniques. 

Participants will be able to explain rationale and to demonstrate correct 
performance of current safe crisis management techniques/technologies. 

7. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 
developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 

 
Activities: 

1. Participating in or developing research-based workshops, on-site 
visitation/demonstrations (including technology), videotaped 
presentations, conferences (provided proper paperwork is submitted), 
lectures and role-playing that will enhance the implementation of Safe Crisis 
Management. 

2. Participating in inservice on Safe Crisis Management. 
3. Participating in trainer-focused inservice on Safe Crisis Management. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant must successfully demonstrate mastery of skills through a 
formal assessment administered by the facilitator. 

2. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 

Page 412 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

68 

student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

3. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

 
4. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 

Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net. within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted by:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 413 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

69 

 
 
State Identifier:        8-510-004 Effective: 7.1.2010 
Component Title:      Support Services Training 
Inservice Points:       3-120 
Certification Area(s): N/A 
 
General Objective(s): 

1. Participants will increase the quality of their work area by increasing 
knowledge of trouble shooting techniques, test procedures, and leadership 
techniques. 

2. Participants will increase effectiveness by maintaining safe work practices 
and procedures. 

3. Participants will become better equipped to deal with the changes in 
technology evident in the repair industry. 

4. The Support Services Personnel shall perform more efficiently and 
effectively in support of the district’s goals related to pupil transportation. 

5. Participants will achieve certification and/or licensure as defined in the 
specific objective. 

6. Support employees shall acquire skills in achieving a positive learning 
environment for all students. 

7. Identify effective practices that promote human rights for developing an 
understanding an appreciation of diversity. 

 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Receiving certification in Refrigeration and Recovery; Liquid Petroleum Gas; 
Boiler; Lift Station; School Bus Inspection and Backflow Prevention. 

2. Participating in and implementing recommended methods of eliminating 
“down-time” through preventive maintenance. 

3. Learning to identify defects that may jeopardize safety and the proper 
response to such defects. 

4. Becoming familiar with appropriate standards of accounting associated with 
all work. 

5. Becoming proficient in the role of the driver or attendant, demonstrating 
professional standards in pupil management and the District’s discipline 
plan and displaying knowledge of customer service techniques and 
standards applied in the local setting. 

6. Demonstrating increased skill in troubleshooting equipment maintained by 
the District. 

7. Receiving training and certification in fork-lift, ram set nail gun and pin gun, 
Uniform Building Code Inspector and AutoCADD (Computer Aided Drafting 
and Drawing) Systems. 

8. Demonstrating increased knowledge of local, state, and national codes and 
directives. 

9. Increasing skill in safe working practices. 

Page 414 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

70 

10. Developing skills in building the team concept in the workplace, and in 
working and interacting successfully with fellow employees. 

11. Increasing skills in the use of computer software programs related to the 
employees’ specific job assignment. 

12. Increasing skills in effectively managing, training and directing personnel. 
 
 
 
 
Activities: 
Activities may consist of but are not limited to lectures, demonstrations, self-
directed study materials, workshops, question/answer discussions and/or 
laboratory exercises designed for practicing new techniques. 
 
Participant Evaluation: 
A pre- and post- assessment will be administered to each participant. The 
participant shall successfully demonstrate increased competency on 80% of the 
specific objectives of the component. 
 
Component Evaluation: 
The instructor will submit to the facilitator a summary of the pass/fail rate of the 
participants post-assessment. At least 90% of the participants shall demonstrate 
increased skills or knowledge. 
 
Organization Information: 
Submitted by:  Master Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 415 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

71 

 
 
 
District Only Components 
 
 
State Identifier: 2-007-002 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Best Teaching Practices K-12 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels.  It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the components, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate research-based 
instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning. 

2. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

3. Develop knowledge and implement techniques for motivating students. 
4. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 

information. 
5. Research, identify, and implement instructional strategies that relate to 

learning methods. 
6. Identify student differences and apply supplemental/specific instructional 

techniques in the classroom to promote student performance. 
7. Increase knowledge in and translate research-based academic intervention 

methods into the K-12 classroom. 
8. Increase knowledge and demonstrate skills in research-based techniques 

used in motivating students to learn. 
9. Develop knowledge and effective implementation of the MTSS process. 
10. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 

developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 
 
Activities may include: 

Page 416 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

72 

1. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 
proper paperwork is submitted), lectures or role-playing, or action 
research. 

2. Teaching a professional development course that leads to an add-on 
endorsement. 

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing the production of materials 
to be used to align with the Florida State Standards and Next Generation 
Sunshine State Standards. 

4. Participating in and implementing distance learning activities. 
5. Developing, participating in, and implementing performance-based 

strategies and cross- curricula activities. 
6. Reviewing, analyzing, and identifying research related to ways to integrate 

instruction in the content areas. 
7. Creating a learning environment that meets the needs of the diverse student 

population. 
8. Improving skills in using a variety of performance assessment techniques 

and strategies. 
9. Expanding knowledge and techniques for effective communication in the 

classroom. 
10. Acquiring knowledge and trends related to specific content areas. 
11. Expanding skills and using technology to manage, evaluate, and improve 

classroom instruction. 
12. Utilizing peer observations and feedback sessions to improve teaching and 

student learning. 
13. Recognizing the need and implementing the process for continuous 

improvement for the teacher and the school. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 
30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

Page 417 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

73 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the activities completed by the participant. 

5. Submit grade report showing completion of course participants. 
 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development follow-up Form 
from each Participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evident of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted by the Master Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 418 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

74 

State Identifier: 2-100-006 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: ESE (Exceptional Student Education) Learning 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): All 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective learning 
environments at all grade levels.  It will also enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective teaching strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement research-based strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in Exceptional Student Education (ESE). 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in ESE. 
3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 

ESE. 
4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 

planning between regular education and exceptional student education 
staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge of and will implement techniques for motivating 
students in ESE. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information in ESE. 

7. Identify and implement strategies to deal with affective needs through 
behavior plans and specific curriculum. 

8. Develop and implement specific guidelines that comply with state and 
federal regulations. 

9. Develop awareness of and implement successful and varied assessments. 
10. Develop and implement curricula accommodations/modifications and 

behavioral management skills that will promote positive student 
functioning/learning. 

11. Develop and implement knowledge and skills to identify and appropriately 
place ESE students. 

12. Develop knowledge and effective implementation of MTSS process. 
13. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 

developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 
 
Activities may include: 

Page 419 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

75 

1. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills and instructional strategies that could be implemented to 
advance student learning. 

 
2. Serving on District or State ESE textbook adoption committee to insure 

alignment with Florida State Standards and the Next Generation Sunshine 
State Standards (NGSSS). 

3. Developing, participating in, and implementing an ESE copyright 
presentation. 

4. Developing, participating in, and implementing research-based workshops, 
on-site visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional 
learning communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided 
proper paperwork is submitted), or lectures or role-playing pertaining to 
ESE. 

5. Participating in distance learning ESE activities and implementing those 
activities in the classroom. 

6. Developing and implementing a community ESE awareness program. 
7. Developing and implementing cross-curricula and inclusion ESE lessons. 
8. Demonstrating and developing instructional/ behavioral techniques for use 

with ESE students. 
9. Develop an understanding of medical conditions and medications, using 

information from evaluations, for appropriate delivery of strategies that will 
positively impact student learning/progress. 

10. Develop, participate in, and implement techniques for safely positioning, 
moving, and lifting students for optimal learning opportunities. 

11. Develop knowledge and skills for successful use of assistive technology 
devices that will positively impact student learning/progress. 

12. Developing and demonstrating the appropriate writing of goals and 
objectives for optimal learning opportunities of students. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity related to student 
academic achievement a Professional Development Follow-up Form, 
available on-line U.oneclay.net site within 30 days of the compilation of the 
follow-up evidence or no later than teacher’s last day of the current 
academic year. 

Page 420 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

76 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the ESE related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
  

Page 421 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

77 

 
State Identifier: 6-404-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
Component Title: Student Services – A Safe Learning Environment 
Inservice Points: 3-60 
Certification Area(s): Content for all areas 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to establish an inviting and 
safe learning environment for students at all grade levels. This component will 
enable participants to recognize and evaluate effective strategies and techniques for 
creating a safe, positive place for learning. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement strategies that will create safe learning environments. Participants will 
be able to recognize and evaluate procedures and research-based best practices in 
eliminating any physical, cultural, or mental health threats or barriers that may 
interfere with the academic achievement of students. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Demonstrate knowledge of analyzing information to identify students’ 
environmental and instructional needs in order to select appropriate 
proactive learning and behavioral strategies and interventions. 

2. Demonstrate knowledge of legal and ethical issues and implement effective 
methods of communication, consultation, and collaboration with students, 
families, parent/guardians, administrators, general education teachers, and 
other professionals as equal partners in educational teams. 

3. Develop and implement research-based concepts and models to improve 
racial/ethnic relations and understandings among students. 

4. Develop and implement research-based intervention strategies for violence 
prevention and resolution of student/faculty conflicts. 

5. Implement established procedures within schools in the event of an 
emergency or catastrophic event. 

6. Identify and implement behavioral interventions that promote and support 
safety in the learning environment. 

7. Recognize and apply the laws, rules, policies, and established procedures 
that are required in providing a safe place to learn. 

8. Develop knowledge and effective implementation of the MTSS process. 
9. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 

developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 
 
Activities may include: 

1. Developing and participating in research-based workshops, on-site visitation, 
demonstrations (including technology), videotaped presentations, problem- 
solving teams, professional learning communities, lesson design/study 

Page 422 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

78 

groups, conferences (provided proper paperwork is submitted), lectures, and 
role-playing that will enhance the role of Student Services. 

2. Participating in professional learning communities that reflect on 21st 
century skills strategies that could be implemented to advance student 
learning. 

3. Participating in and implementing Question, Persuade, Refer,(QPR) strategies 
with students and adults to enhance health, safety, while reducing risk.  

4. Participating in and implementing Foundations, a research-based school-
wide discipline program. 

5. Participating in and implementing techniques of Crisis Intervention training. 
6. Develop and implement appropriate strategies and resources to assess 

students’ interests, abilities, and/or aptitudes. 
7. Develop and implement the cognitive, psychomotor, and affective strategies 

appropriate for use in the instruction of high risk students. 
8. Participating in and implementing distance learning activities. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity related to student 
academic achievement a Professional Development Follow-up Form, 
available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site within 30 days of the compilation 
of the follow-up evidence or no later than teacher’s last day of the current 
academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science and/or math skills for each 
activity completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 

Page 423 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

79 

 
 
 
State Identifier:        6-409-001 Effective: 7.1.2010  
Component Title: Student Services – Social, Counseling, Psychological and Health 
Inservice Points:       3-120 
Certification Area(s): Content for all areas 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable participants to improve student 
learning, improve student behavior, recognize multicultural issues, and create more 
efficient and effective schools at all grade levels. This component will enable 
participants to recognize and evaluate effective student services procedures and 
learning strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement strategies that will create a more individualized learning environment. 
Participants will be able to recognize and evaluate research-based academic 
interventions and best practices to eliminate physical, cultural, or mental health 
threats or barriers that may interfere with student’s academic achievement. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Demonstrate knowledge of and skills in analyzing data to identify students’ 
environmental and instructional needs in order to select appropriate 
proactive learning and behavioral strategies and interventions. 

2. Demonstrate knowledge of legal and ethical issues involved in the social, 
counseling, psychological, and health issues in the schools. 

3. Establish and implement effective methods of communication, consultation, 
and collaboration among students, families, parent/guardians, 
administrators, general education teachers, and other professionals as equal 
partners in education teams. 

4. Develop and implement methods of accommodating assessment, 
instruction, and materials to meet individual student needs. 

5. Develop and implement knowledge of transition planning from elementary 
to secondary education to develop desired post-school outcomes. 

6. Identify and deliver methods/techniques to generate a dropout retrieval 
program. 

7. Implement the knowledge of state and federal legislation affecting the 
education of students by adapting that knowledge to academic and career 
planning for post-school outcomes. 

8. Develop and implement research-based concepts and models to improve 
racial/ethnic relations and understandings among students and faculties. 

9. Demonstrate knowledge and implement new testing instruments and 
evaluation techniques for all forms of assessment. 

Page 424 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

80 

10. Analyze and relate current information regarding scholarships, financial aid, 
and transitional trends in education. 

11. Identify and use current laws, rules, policies, and procedures in managing 
student records. 

12. Knowledge in analyzing and maintaining student attendance records. 
13. Develop and implement research-based models that promote parent 

involvement and parent support. 
14. Develop and implement knowledge and skills in the Multi Tiered System of 

Support process. 
15. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 

developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 
 
Activities may include: 

1. Developing and participating in research-based workshops, on-site 
visitation/demonstrations (including technology), problem-solving teams, 
videotaped presentations, professional learning communities, lesson 
design/study groups, conferences (provided proper paperwork is 
submitted), lectures and role-playing that will enhance the job performance 
of Student Services staff. 

2. Participating in and implementing Question, Persuade, Refer,(QPR) 
strategies with students and adults to enhance health, safety, while reducing 
risk.  

3. Participating in and implementing Foundations, a research-based school-
wide discipline program. 

4. Participating in and implementing Crisis Intervention.  
5. Develop and implement appropriate strategies and resources to assess 

students’ interests, abilities, and/or aptitudes. 
6. Develop and implement the cognitive, psychomotor, and affective strategies 

appropriate for use in the instruction of high risk students. 
7. Participating in and implementing distance learning activities. 

 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on-line or in print and must be submitted to 
the Professional Development Facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity related to student 
academic achievement a Professional Development Follow-up Form, 
available on-line at the U.oneclay.net within 30 days of the compilation of 

Page 425 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

81 

the follow-up evidence or no later than teacher’s last day of the current 
academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science and/or math skills for each 
activity completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in reading, writing, science and/or math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:   Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 426 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

82 

State Identifier: 1-002-001 Effective:  7.1.2010  
Component Title: CTE (Career & Technical Education)/TECH PREP Learning 
Inservice Points: 3-120 
Certification Area(s): Agriculture, Business, Distributive, Diversified, Health 
Science, Public Service, Family and Consumer Sciences, Technical Education, 
Marketing Education, Trades/Industrial Education, Exploratory Education, and 
ESE/ CTE. 
 
General Objectives: 
The purpose of this component is to enable all CTE/TECH PREP teachers to improve 
student learning, improve student behavior, and create more efficient and effective 
classrooms at secondary grade levels. It will enable administrators to recognize and 
evaluate effective instructional strategies. 
 
Upon successful completion of the component, all participants will be able to 
implement instructional strategies that will create a more individualized learning 
environment. 
Administrator participants will be able to recognize and evaluate effective research-
based instructional strategies. 
 
Specific Objectives: 

1. Identify and implement research-based practices to enhance student 
learning in CTE/TECH PREP courses. 

2. Describe the process used to select textbooks for adoption in CTE/TECH 
PREP courses. 

3. Demonstrate knowledge of current copyright procedures and policies in 
CTE/TECH PREP courses. 

4. Demonstrate competencies related to cooperative consultations and 
planning between regular education, exceptional student education and 
CTE/TECH PREP staffs. 

5. Develop knowledge of and will implement techniques for motivating 
students in CTE/TECH PREP studies. 

6. Develop and implement techniques that will teach students how to analyze 
information in CTE/TECH PREP courses. 

7. Research, evaluate, and implement models that promote work force 
readiness. 

8. Acquire knowledge in and demonstrate the ability to use differentiated 
instructional strategies in the CTE/TECH PREP classroom. 

9. Identify and implement reading strategies within the CTE/TECH PREP 
classroom. 

10. Developing, participating in and implementing cross-curricula lessons and 
labs. 

11. Identify effective classroom practices that promote human rights for 
developing an understanding and appreciation of diversity. 

 

Page 427 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

83 

Activities may include: 
1. Serving on District or State CTE/TECH PREP textbook adoption committee 

to insure alignment with Next Generation Sunshine State Standards 
(NGSSS). 

2. Participating in or developing a CTE/TECH PREP copyright presentation. 
3. Implementing interactive computer/laser disk software as it pertains to 

CTE/TECH PREP. 
4. Participating in or developing workshops, on-site 

visitation/demonstrations, videotaped presentations, professional learning 
communities, lesson design/study groups, conferences (provided proper 
paperwork is submitted), lectures, or role-playing that will enhance 
CTE/TECH PREP learning. 

5. Participating in the summer CTE internship program. 
6. Participating in and implementing distance learning CTE/TECH PREP 

activities. 
 
Participant Follow-up: 

1. Each participant will submit hard evidence of the completion of an 
activity(ies). This evidence of implementation of strategies to improve 
student achievement may be in the form of reports, papers, reflective 
logs/journals, newspaper stories, and PowerPoint or multimedia 
presentations. 

2. The evidence may be on disk, on line, or in print and must be submitted to 
the professional development facilitator (PDF) for each activity. This 
evidence will be returned to the participant following the submission of the 
Professional Development Follow-up Form. 

3. Each participant must submit to the PDF for each activity a Professional 
Development Follow-up Form, available on-line at the U.oneclay.net site 
within 30 days of the compilation of the follow-up evidence or no later than 
teacher’s last day of the current academic year. 

4. Each participant will submit to the PDF documentary evidence of individual 
student achievement in reading, writing, science, and/or math skills for each 
of the related activities completed by the participant. 

 
Facilitator Component Evaluation: 

1. Each facilitator will collect a Professional Development Follow-up Form 
from each participant. 

2. Each facilitator will submit a short summary of the documentary evidence of 
student achievement in Reading, Writing, Science and/or Math. 

 
Organization Information: 
Submitted:  Master-Inservice Plan Committee, October 2009 
 
 
 

Page 428 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

84 

 
 
PDA-ESE Components 
 
 
STATE IDENTIFIER:  1-103-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
COMPONENT TITLE: Module 1 - Foundations of ESE 
INSERVICE POINTS:  60 
CERTIFICATION AREA(S): Content for All Areas 
 
GENERAL OBJECTIVES: 
Increase knowledge of foundations of exceptional student educations. 
 
SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES: 
Upon completion of the activities, each participant will have gained the knowledge 
and skills to be able to: 
 

1. Identify state and federal legislation and case law that have affected the 
education of student with disabilities. 

2. Identify appropriate practices based on legal and ethical standards (e.g., due 
process, procedural safeguards, confidentiality, access to general education, 
least restrictive environment, transition planning, and free and appropriate 
public education). 

3. Identify the required components of Individual Educational Plans, Family 
Support Plans and Individual Transition Plans. 

4. Identify the classification systems and eligibility criteria under the current 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). 

5. Compare the development and characteristics (e.g., language, 
cognitive/academic, social/emotional, and physical/motor) of children with 
disabilities to typical development and characteristics. 

6. Recognize the roles and responsibilities of IEP and child study team 
members. 

7. Identify models of support for providing assistance in general education 
curricula. 

8. Identify the purposes and functions of professional and advocacy 
organizations relevant to education of students with disabilities. 

 
ACTIVITIES: 
Participants will participate in online activities and group sessions and are to 
complete the following activities: 

1. Research and application of skills 
2. Interviews with experienced educators 
3. Development of lesson plans, behavior profiles, and teaching strategies 
4. Identification of local and state resources 

Page 429 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

85 

5. Analysis of student performance/behavior and identification of appropriate 
strategies to address deficit areas 

6. Development of Individualized Educational Plans and Transition Plans 
7. Determination of appropriate assessment tools and techniques 

 
PARTICIPANT EVALUATION: 
Demonstrated competency of at least 80% of the objectives as determined by 
completion of the assessment tasks in each module in compliance with Section 
231.608 (1) Florida Statutes and Rule 6A-5.071 (5), FAC 
 
COMPONENT EVALUATION: 
Upon completion of all activities related to a module, participant information 
regarding attendance and evaluation results will be submitted for inservice point 
assignment. Participants will complete feedback forms on the effectiveness of the 
training design, delivery, and consultants/facilitators. Module facilitators will also 
complete an evaluation of the overall quality of the design, delivery, and outcomes 
of the module completed by the module facilitator. 
 
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION: 
Submitted by: Pam White, ESE Technology Specialist 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 430 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

86 

 
 
 
 
 
STATE IDENTIFIER:  4-102-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
COMPONENT TITLE: Module 2 - Knowledge of Assessment and Evaluation 
INSERVICE POINTS:  60 
CERTIFICATION AREA(S): Content for All Areas 
 
GENERAL OBJECTIVES: Increase knowledge of assessment and evaluation  
 
SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES: 
Upon completion of the activities, each participant will have gained the knowledge 
and skills to be able to: 

1. Identify the purpose of assessment (e.g., screening, eligibility, diagnosis, 
identification of relevant instructional content, and effectiveness of 
instruction) across disciplines. 

2. Identify the legal requirements and ethical principles regarding the 
assessment of students with disabilities (e.g., confidentiality, adherence to 
test protocols, and appropriateness of assessment for students with special 
needs). 

3. Identify appropriate formal an informal assessments for students across 
disciplines. 

4. Interpret, analyze, and apply the results of formal and informal assessments 
for students across disciplines. 

5. Identify alternative assessment strategies and procedures (e.g. 
observations, performance- based assessments, interviews, and portfolios) 
and their appropriate use. 

6. Identify the factors that influence disproportionate representation of 
students from diverse cultural, linguistic, and socioeconomic backgrounds 
in programs for students with disabilities and recognize the implications for 
assessment. 

 
ACTIVITIES: 
Participants will participate in online activities and group sessions and are to 
complete the following activities: 

1. Research and application of skills 
2. Interviews with experienced educators 
3. Development of lesson plans, behavior profiles, and teaching strategies 
4. Identification of local and state resources 
5. Analysis of student performance/behavior and identification of appropriate 

strategies to address deficit areas 
6. Development of Individualized Educational Plans and Transition Plans 
7. Determination of appropriate assessment tools and techniques 

Page 431 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

87 

 
PARTICIPANT EVALUATION: 
Demonstrated competency of at least 80% of the objectives as determined by 
completion of assessment tasks in each module in compliance with Section 231.608 
(1) Florida Statutes and Rule 6A-5.071 (5), FAC 
 
COMPONENT EVALUATION: 
Upon completion of all activities related to a module, participant information 
regarding attendance and evaluation results will be submitted for inservice point 
assignment. Participants will complete feedback forms on the effectiveness of the 
training design, delivery, and consultants/facilitators. Module facilitators will also 
complete an evaluation of the overall quality of the design, delivery, and outcomes 
of the module completed by the module facilitator. 
 
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION: 
Submitted by: Pam White, ESE Technology Specialist 
 
  

Page 432 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

88 

STATE IDENTIFIER: 2-100-003 Effective:  7.1.2010 
COMPONENT TITLE: Module 3 - Instructional Practices 
INSERVICE POINTS: 60 
CERTIFICATION AREA(S): Content for All Areas 
 
GENERAL OBJECTIVES: Increase knowledge of instructional practices in 
exceptional student education 
 
SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES: 
Upon completion of the activities, each participant will have gained the knowledge 
and skills to be able to: 

1. Analyze assessment information to identify a student’s environmental needs 
and instructional levels, to select appropriate specialized techniques and 
learning strategies, and to determine IEP content. 

2. Select instructional practices that reflect individual learning needs and 
incorporate a wide range of learning strategies and specialized materials to 
create an appropriate instructional environment for students with 
disabilities. 

3. Identify instructional strategies for acquisition, generalization, and 
maintenance of skills across real-life situations at school, at home, and in the 
community. 

4. Select relevant general education and special education curricula 
appropriate for a given student=s age, instructional needs, and functional 
performance across settings. 

5. Identify effective methods of communication, consultation, and 
collaboration with students, families, parents, guardians, administrators, 
general education teachers, paraprofessionals, and other professionals as 
equal members of education teams. 

6. Identify methods of accommodating and modifying assessment, instruction, 
and materials to meet individual student needs. 

7. Analyze educational activities to assist in the determination and 
development of accommodations and modifications that allow students 
across disabilities to participate in a meaningful way. 

 
ACTIVITIES: 
Participants will participate in online activities and group sessions and are to 
complete the following activities: 

1. Research and application of skills 
2. Interviews with experienced educators 
3. Development of lesson plans, behavior profiles, and teaching strategies 
4. Identification of local and state resources 
5. Analysis of student performance/behavior and identification of appropriate 

strategies to address deficit areas 
6. Development of Individualized Educational Plans and Transition Plans 
7. Determination of appropriate assessment tools and techniques 

Page 433 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

89 

 
 
 
 
PARTICIPANT EVALUATION: 
Demonstrated competency of at least 80% of the objectives as determined by 
completion of the assessment tasks in each module in compliance with Section 
231.608 (1) Florida Statutes and Rule 6A-5.071 (5), FAC 
 
COMPONENT EVALUATION: 
Upon completion of all activities related to a module, participant information 
regarding attendance and evaluation results will be submitted for inservice point 
assignment. Participants will complete feedback forms on the effectiveness of the 
training design, delivery, and consultants/facilitators. Module facilitators will also 
complete an evaluation of the overall quality of the design, delivery, and outcomes 
of the module completed by the module facilitator. 
 
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION: 
Submitted by: Pam White, ESE Technology Specialist 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 434 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

90 

 
 
STATE IDENTIFIER: 5-101-001 Effective:  7.1.2010 
COMPONENT TITLE: Module 4 - Positive Behavioral Supports 
INSERVICE POINTS: 60 
CERTIFICATION AREA(S): Content for All Areas 
 
GENERAL OBJECTIVES: Increase knowledge of assessment, design, and 
implementing positive behavioral supports 
 
SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES: 
Upon completion of the activities, each participant will have gained the knowledge 
and skills to be able to: 

1. Analyze the legal and ethical issues pertaining to positive behavior 
management strategies and disciplinary actions. 

2. Identify data collection strategies to assess student behavior. 
3. Analyze individual and group data to select and evaluate proactive 

interventions that foster appropriate behavior. 
4. Identify and interpret the essential elements of a functional behavior 

assessment and a behavior intervention plan. 
5. Recognize the various concepts and models of positive behavior 

management. 
 
ACTIVITIES: 
Participants will participate in online activities and group sessions and are to 
complete the following activities: 

1. Research and application of skills 
2. Interviews with experienced educators 
3. Development of lesson plans, behavior profiles, and teaching strategies 
4. Identification of local and state resources 
5. Analysis of student performance/behavior and identification of appropriate 

strategies to address deficit areas 
6. Development of Individualized Educational Plans and Transition Plans 
7. Determination of appropriate assessment tools and techniques 

 
PARTICIPANT EVALUATION: 
Demonstrated competency of at least 80% of the objectives as determined by 
completion of the assessment tasks in each module in compliance with Section 
231.608 (1) Florida Statutes and Rule 6A-5.071 (5), FAC 
 
COMPONENT EVALUATION: 
Upon completion of all activities related to a module, participant information 
regarding attendance and evaluation results will be submitted for inservice point 
assignment. 

Page 435 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

91 

Participants will complete feedback forms on the effectiveness of the training 
design, delivery, and consultants/facilitators. Module facilitators will also complete 
an evaluation of the overall quality of the design, delivery, and outcomes of the 
module completed by the module facilitator. 
 
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION: 
Submitted by: Pam White, ESE Technology Specialist 
 
 
  

Page 436 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

92 

STATE IDENTIFIER: 2-100-004 Effective:  7.1.2010 
COMPONENT TITLE: Module 5 - Language Development and Communication 
INSERVICE POINTS: 60 
CERTIFICATION AREA(S): Content for All Areas 
 
GENERAL OBJECTIVES: Increase knowledge of language development and 
communication skills 
 
SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES: 

Upon completion of the activities, each participant will have gained the knowledge 
and skills to be able to: 

1. Identify the sequence of expressive and receptive language development 
and the components of language structure. 

2. Identify communication deficits and select appropriate interventions. 
3. Select strategies for integrating communication instruction into education 

settings. 
4. Select appropriate assistive technology and alternative communication 

systems to facilitate communication. 
 
ACTIVITIES: 

Participants will participate in online activities and group sessions and are to 
complete the following activities: 

1. Research and application of skills 
2. Interviews with experienced educators 
3. Development of lesson plans, behavior profiles, and teaching strategies 
4. Identification of local and state resources 
5. Analysis of student performance/behavior and identification of appropriate 

strategies to address deficit areas 
6. Development of Individualized Educational Plans and Transition Plans 
7. Determination of appropriate assessment tools and techniques 

 
PARTICIPANT EVALUATION: 

Demonstrated competency of at least 80% of the objectives as determined by 
completion of the assessment tasks in each module in compliance with Section 
231.608 (1) Florida Statutes and Rule 6A-5.071 (5), FAC 
 
COMPONENT EVALUATION: 

Upon completion of all activities related to a module, participant information 
regarding attendance and evaluation results will be submitted for inservice point 
assignment. Participants will complete feedback forms on the effectiveness of the 
training design, delivery, and consultants/facilitators. Module facilitators will also 
complete an evaluation of the overall quality of the design, delivery, and outcomes 
of the module completed by the module facilitator. 
 
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION: 

Page 437 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

93 

Submitted by: Pam White, ESE Technology Specialist 
STATE IDENTIFIER: 2-100-005 Effective:  7.1.2010 
COMPONENT TITLE: Module 6 - Interpersonal Interactions and Participation 
INSERVICE POINTS: 30 
CERTIFICATION AREA(S): Content for All Areas 
 
GENERAL OBJECTIVES: Increase knowledge of skills related to interpersonal 
interactions and participation 
 
SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES: 
Upon completion of the activities, each participant will have gained the knowledge 
and skills to be able to: 

1. Select appropriate instructional procedures for teaching adaptive life skills 
based on observations, ecological assessments, family interviews, and other 
student information. 

2. Identify methods for evaluation and documenting student progress in 
acquiring, generalizing, and maintaining skills related to interpersonal 
interactions and participation in activities across settings (e.g. at school, at 
home, and in the community). 

3. Identify skills necessary for students with disabilities to engage in self-
determination and self-advocacy. 

 
ACTIVITIES: 
Participants will participate in online activities and group sessions and are to 
complete the following activities: 

1. Research and application of skills 
2. Interviews with experienced educators 
3. Development of lesson plans, behavior profiles, and teaching strategies 
4. Identification of local and state resources 
5. Analysis of student performance/behavior and identification of appropriate 

strategies to address deficit areas 
6. Development of Individualized Educational Plans and Transition Plans 
7. Determination of appropriate assessment tools and techniques 

 
PARTICIPANT EVALUATION: 
Demonstrated competency of at least 80% of the objectives as determined by 
completion of the assessment tasks in each module in compliance with Section 
231.608 (1) Florida Statutes and Rule 6A-5.071 (5), FAC 
 
COMPONENT EVALUATION: 
Upon completion of all activities related to a module, participant information 
regarding attendance and evaluation results will be submitted for inservice point 
assignment. Participants will complete feedback forms on the effectiveness of the 
training design, delivery, and consultants/facilitators. Module facilitators will also 

Page 438 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

94 

complete an evaluation of the overall quality of the design, delivery, and outcomes 
of the module completed by the module facilitator. 
 
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION: 
Submitted by: Pam White, ESE Technology Specialist 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 439 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

95 

 
 
 
 
STATE IDENTIFIER: 1-103-002 Effective:  7.1.2010 
COMPONENT TITLE: Module 7 - Transition 
INSERVICE POINTS: 60 
CERTIFICATION AREA(S): Content for All Areas 
 
GENERAL OBJECTIVES: Increase knowledge of the transition process 
 

SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES: 
Upon completion of the activities, each participant will have gained the knowledge 
and skills to be able to: 

1. Identify activities relevant to the four stages of career development (i.e. 
awareness, exploration, preparation, and placement). 

2. Identify the essential domains of transition planning (e.g. personal/social, 
general community functioning, and leisure/recreational) for students with 
disabilities. 

3. Demonstrate knowledge of transition planning using student and family 
preferences to develop desired post-school outcomes. 

4. Identify resources and strategies to assist in students functioning effectively 
in a variety of environments to which they will be transitioning. 

 
ACTIVITIES: 
Participants will participate in online activities and group sessions and are to 
complete the following activities: 

1. Research and application of skills 
2. Interviews with experienced educators 
3. Development of lesson plans, behavior profiles, and teaching strategies 
4. Identification of local and state resources 
5. Analysis of student performance/behavior and identification of appropriate 

strategies to address deficit areas 
6. Development of Individualized Educational Plans and Transition Plans 
7. Determination of appropriate assessment tools and techniques 

 

PARTICIPANT EVALUATION: 
Successful completion will be based on demonstrated competency of at least 80% of 
the objectives as determined by completion of the assessment tasks in each module 
in compliance with Section 231.608 (1) Florida Statutes and Rule 6A-5.071 (5), FAC. 
 
COMPONENT EVALUATION: 
Upon completion of all activities related to a module, participant information 
regarding attendance and evaluation results will be submitted for inservice point 
assignment. Participants will complete feedback forms on the effectiveness of the 
training design, delivery, and consultants/facilitators. Module facilitators will also 

Page 440 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

96 

complete an evaluation of the overall quality of the design, delivery, and outcomes 
of the module completed by the module facilitator. 
 
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION: 
Submitted by: Pam White, ESE Technology Specialist 

  

Page 441 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

97 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Theory & Practice of Coaching a 

Specific Sport  
Component Number: 1-011-001 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 011  
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of athletic coaches in the 
knowledge of instruction and physiological principles applied to 
coaching a specific sport. 
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

Page 442 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

98 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 443 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

99 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate instructional strategies for athletic 

coaching. 

2. Outline the development of athletic program philosophy, 

including goals and objectives. 

3. Recognize the importance of pre-assessment/formative 

assessment in establishing instructional levels. 
4. Distinguish characteristics of coaching an activity or sport. 

5. List feedback methods used in athletic coaching. 

6. Define methods used to evaluate student athletes and program 

effectiveness. 

7. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

8. Identify available and suitable professional resources for 

coaching. 

9. Identify basic training principles (e.g. overload, progression, 

specificity).  

10. Identify the variables by which overload can be modified.  

11. Evaluate and interpret the results of pre-physical fitness and 

motor assessments. 
12. Using evaluated data, apply principles of training to formulate 

individual and group conditioning programs.  

13. Explain body composition factors related to athletic 

performance potential including body weight as it affects 

performance and the percentage body fat related to 

conditioning.  

14. Identify environmental conditions and their effects on 

personal health, safety, and learning (e.g. temperature, 

humidity, lighting, etc.)  

 

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 
➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

Page 444 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

100 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are developmentally appropriate pertaining to 

the coaching of a specific sport.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to the coaching of a specific sport.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

Page 445 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

101 

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

Page 446 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

102 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Katie Moeller 

 
  

Page 447 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

103 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP Professional Learning Communities 

 
11. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Professional Learning 

Communities  
Component Number: 2-408-023 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 408 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

023 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

3-120 

 
  
12. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
The purpose of this component is to enhance Clay County District 
Schools organizational capacity to boost student learning by 
implementing Professional Learning Communities (PLC) characterized 
by shared purpose, collective activity and responsibility among staff.  
Effective PLCs have an enduring influence on teacher practice and seek 
to enhance teacher knowledge of curriculum and instructional 
practices; therefore, it is vital that all members of the organization are 
continuously building communities that focus on continuous learning 
and improvement.   
 
 

13. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

Page 448 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

104 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 
14.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning 1.1.1. Individual 

Needs 
Assessment: The 
educator identifies 
individual 
professional learning 
goals with primary 
emphasis on student 
learning needs by 
reviewing 
certification needs, 
classroom-level 
disaggregated student 
achievement and 
behavioral data 
related to content 
area skills, school 
initiatives, the School 
Improvement Plan, 
and school and team 
goals. 

2.1.4. Generating 
a School-wide 
Professional 
Development 
Plan: As part of the 
School Improvement 
Plan and in 
collaboration with the 
district’s Professional 
Development System, 
the school 
administrator and 
School Advisory 
Council generate a 
school-wide 
Professional 
Development Plan 
that includes research 
and/or evidence-
based professional 
development aligned 
to identified 
classroom level needs 
for student 
achievement, 
responds to 
educators’ level of 
development, and 
specifies how the plan 
will be evaluated. 

3.1.5. 
Integration of 
Initiatives: 
Professional 
learning supports 
educators in 
integrating and 
using federal, state, 
and district 
initiatives in 
content, instruction, 
and intervention 
strategies to 
increase student 
achievement. 

Learning 1.2.1. Learning 
Communities: The 
educator participates 
in collaborative 
learning communities 

2.2.1. Learning 
Communities: 
School-based 
professional learning 
occurs in 

3.2.1. Learning 
Communities: 
The district 
supports and 
encourages 

Page 449 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

105 

whose members use a 
cycle of continuous 
improvement to 
achieve goals that 
align with individual, 
school, and district 
goals for student 
achievement. 

collaborative teams of 
adults whose goals 
are aligned with the 
team members’ 
IPDPs and the school 
and district goals for 
student achievement. 

professional 
learning in 
collaborative teams 
of educators. 

Implementing 1.3.1. 
Implementation 
of Learning: The 
educator applies 
newly acquired 
professional 
knowledge, skills, 
dispositions, and 
behaviors to improve 
his or her 
practice. 

2.3.1. 
Implementation 
of Learning: The 
school provides 
follow-up support to 
facilitate 
implementation of 
professional learning 
in the workplace. 

3.3.2. Coaching 
and Mentoring: 
The district 
provides mentoring 
and/or coaching for 
all educators to 
ensure high-fidelity 
classroom 
implementation of 
professional 
learning, with the 
assistance 
continuing as 
needed until 
educators 
implement the 
learning with 
comfort and 
accuracy. 

Evaluating 1.4.2. Changes in 
Educator 
Practice: The 
educator evaluates 
the impact of all 
professional learning 
on his or her practice 
through reflection, 
assessment, 
collaborative 
protocols for 
examining educator 
practice and work 
samples, peer visits, 
and/or professional 
portfolios. 

2.4.4. Evaluation 
Measures: Schools 
use summative and 
formative data from 
state or national 
standardized student 
achievement 
measures, when 
available, or other 
measures of student 
learning and behavior 
such as district 
achievement tests, 
progress monitoring, 
educator-constructed 
tests, action research 
results, discipline 
referrals, and/or 
portfolios of student 
work to assess the 
impact of professional 
learning. 

3.4.3. Changes 
in Students: The 
district assesses the 
impact of 
professional 
learning on student 
performance. 

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 

Page 450 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

106 

15. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 
  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 
16. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 

implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Educators will create a shared mission, vision and values with 
collaborative teams of teachers.   

2. Educators will engage in collective inquiry to determine action 
steps based on student achievement.  

3. Educators will assess students’ mastery of learning objectives 
through various formative and summative assessment 
measures, including classroom assessments, standardized 
assessments and district progress monitoring tools.   

4. Educators will analyze student data and make instructional 
decisions accordingly.  

5. Educators will ensure that the classroom curriculum is based 
on standards; research-based instructional practices are 
utilized in the classroom; student mastery is assessed and 
appropriate interventions are implemented for all students.  

 
17. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 
Educators will collaborate in common subject areas.  Collaboration 
will consist of analyzing student data and making instructional 
decisions as a result of data analysis.  Educators will co-plan units of 
study and lesson plans to ensure consistency across grade-
level/subject area.  Educators will create flexible groups of students 
to ensure personalized learning is occuring for each student. 
 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 
Participants will collaborate with same grade-level/subject area 
teachers.  Based on the needs of the collaborative teams, local schools 
may provide targeted, research-based Professional Development 
opportunities for teachers and will provide necessary resources that 
meet teachers' needs to support student learning. 
   

Page 451 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

107 

KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 
Effective research-based practices, data analysis, flexible grouping, 
personalized learning, collaborative problem solving 

 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
18. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

Page 452 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

108 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
19. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  
Educators will assess students’ mastery of learning objectives 
through various formative and summative assessment measures, 
including classroom assessments, standardized assessments and 
district progress monitoring tools.   
 
 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 

 
20.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

Page 453 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

109 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development/Learning 
Name of component author Katie Moeller 

 
  

Page 454 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

110 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Performing Arts  
Component Number: 1-010-002 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 010 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

002 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of performing arts teachers in 
the knowledge of instruction and effective skills in teaching performing 
arts to students.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 455 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

111 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 456 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

112 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate instructional strategies for performing arts.  

2. Outline the development of performing arts program 

philosophy, including goals and objectives. 

3. Recognize the importance of pre-assessment/formative 

assessment in establishing instructional levels. 

4. Distinguish characteristics of teaching performing arts.  
5. List feedback methods used in performing arts.  

6. Define methods used to evaluate students in performing arts 

and program effectiveness. 

7. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

8. Identify available and suitable professional resources for 

performing arts instructors.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences be provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are developmentally appropriate pertaining to 

the instruction of students in performing arts.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to students in performing arts.  
 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

Page 457 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

113 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 
participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 

Page 458 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

114 

 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 

Page 459 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

115 

aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 460 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

116 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Reading Competency 1 
Component Number: 1-013-009 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 013 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

009 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential reading teachers in 
the knowledge of instruction and principles applied to teaching reading 
in order to improve student achievement.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 461 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

117 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 462 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

118 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate instructional strategies for effectively 

teaching reading.  

2. Outline the development of high quality reading programs.  

3. Recognize the importance of pre-assessment/formative 

assessment in establishing instructional levels. 

4. Distinguish characteristics of effective reading strategies.  
5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at specific reading skills.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to reading instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 
objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

Page 463 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

119 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 

Page 464 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

120 

 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 
targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 

Page 465 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

121 

objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 466 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

122 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Reading Competency 2 
Component Number: 1-013-010 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 013 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

010 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential reading teachers in 
the knowledge of instruction and principles applied to teaching reading 
in order to improve student achievement.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 467 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

123 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 468 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

124 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate instructional strategies for effectively 

teaching reading.  

2. Outline the development of high quality reading programs.  

3. Recognize the importance of pre-assessment/formative 

assessment in establishing instructional levels. 

4. Distinguish characteristics of effective reading strategies.  
5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at specific reading skills.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to reading instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 
objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

Page 469 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

125 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 

Page 470 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

126 

 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 
targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 

Page 471 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

127 

objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 472 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

128 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Reading Competency 3 
Component Number: 1-013-011 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 013 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

011 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential reading teachers in 
the knowledge of instruction and principles applied to teaching reading 
in order to improve student achievement.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 473 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

129 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 474 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

130 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate instructional strategies for effectively 

teaching reading.  

2. Outline the development of high quality reading programs.  

3. Recognize the importance of pre-assessment/formative 

assessment in establishing instructional levels. 

4. Distinguish characteristics of effective reading strategies.  
5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at specific reading skills.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to reading instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 
objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

Page 475 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

131 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 

Page 476 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

132 

 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 
targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 

Page 477 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

133 

objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 478 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

134 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Reading Competency 4 
Component Number: 1-013-012 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 013 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

012 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential reading teachers in 
the knowledge of instruction and principles applied to teaching reading 
in order to improve student achievement.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 479 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

135 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 480 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

136 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate instructional strategies for effectively 

teaching reading.  

2. Outline the development of high quality reading programs.  

3. Recognize the importance of pre-assessment/formative 

assessment in establishing instructional levels. 

4. Distinguish characteristics of effective reading strategies.  
5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at specific reading skills.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to reading instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 
objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

Page 481 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

137 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 

Page 482 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

138 

 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 
targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 

Page 483 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

139 

objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 484 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

140 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Reading Competency 5 
Component Number: 1-013-013 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 013 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

013 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential reading teachers in 
the knowledge of instruction and principles applied to teaching reading 
in order to improve student achievement.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 485 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

141 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 486 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

142 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate instructional strategies for effectively 

teaching reading.  

2. Outline the development of high quality reading programs.  

3. Recognize the importance of pre-assessment/formative 

assessment in establishing instructional levels. 

4. Distinguish characteristics of effective reading strategies.  
5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at specific reading skills.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to reading instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 
objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

Page 487 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

143 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 

Page 488 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

144 

 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 
targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 

Page 489 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

145 

objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 490 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

146 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ASD Endorsement  
Component Number: 1-102-005 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 102 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

005 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of ASD teachers in the 
knowledge of the nature & needs, assessment & diagnostic of students 
with special needs.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 491 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

147 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 492 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

148 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students with ASD 

2. Outline the development of an effective classroom 

environment that supports students with ASD.   

3. Recognize the importance of assessments and diagnostics in 

establishing instructional levels. 
4. Distinguish characteristics of effective instruction for students 

with ASD.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 493 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

149 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

Page 494 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

150 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 495 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

151 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 496 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

152 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ASD Endorsement  
Component Number: 2-100-009 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 100 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

009 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of ASD teachers in the 
knowledge of the applied behavior analysis and positive behavior 
supports for students with ASD.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 497 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

153 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 498 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

154 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students with ASD 

2. Outline the development of an effective classroom 

environment that supports students with ASD.   

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students with ASD.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 499 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

155 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

Page 500 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

156 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 501 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

157 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 502 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

158 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ASD Endorsement  
Component Number: 2-100-010 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 100 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

010 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of ASD teachers in the 
knowledge of the applied behavior analysis and positive behavior 
supports for students with ASD through field-based experiences.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 503 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

159 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 504 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

160 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students with ASD 

2. Outline the development of an effective classroom 

environment that supports students with ASD.   

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students with ASD.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 505 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

161 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

Page 506 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

162 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 507 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

163 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 508 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

164 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ASD Endorsement  
Component Number: 3-100-001 
Function: (One digit code) 3 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 100 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of ASD teachers in the 
knowledge of the assistive/instructional technology and 
alternative/augmentative communication systems.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 509 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

165 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 510 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

166 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students with ASD 

2. Outline the development of an effective classroom 

environment that supports students with ASD.   

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students with ASD.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 511 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

167 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

Page 512 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

168 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 513 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

169 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 514 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

170 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ASD Endorsement  
Component Number: 3-100-002 
Function: (One digit code) 3 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 100 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

002 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of ASD teachers in the 
knowledge of the assistive/instructional technology and 
alternative/augmentative communication systems.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 515 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

171 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 516 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

172 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students with ASD 

2. Outline the development of an effective classroom 

environment that supports students with ASD.   

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students with ASD.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 517 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

173 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

Page 518 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

174 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 519 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

175 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 520 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

176 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ASD Endorsement  
Component Number: 1-102-004 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 102 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

004 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of ASD teachers in 
understanding the nature & needs, and assessment & diagnostic of 
students with ASD.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 521 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

177 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 522 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

178 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students with ASD 

2. Outline the development of an effective classroom 

environment that supports students with ASD.   

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students with ASD.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 523 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

179 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

Page 524 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

180 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 525 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

181 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 526 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

182 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ESE Procedures and Practices  
Component Number: 8-103-102 
Function: (One digit code) 8 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 103 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

102 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of ESE teachers when following 
district procedures and best practices for students with special needs.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

Page 527 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

183 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 528 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

184 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students with disabilities.  

2. Outline the development of an effective classroom 

environment that supports students with disabilities.  

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students with disabilities.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 529 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

185 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

Page 530 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

186 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 531 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

187 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 532 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

188 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Schools of Excellence  
Component Number: 8-521-001 
Function: (One digit code) 8 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 521 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of personnel that are 
responsible for leading and changing the learning environment at a 
school in order to increase student achievement and be identified as a 
school of excellence.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

Page 533 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

189 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 534 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

190 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate systems for instruction and leadership in 

order to improve student achievement.  

2. Outline the development of an effective classroom 

environment including school wide behavior systems.  

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

interventions for students and teachers.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 535 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

191 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

Page 536 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

192 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 537 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

193 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 538 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

194 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Gifted Competency 2 
Component Number: 1-106-001 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 106 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential teachers of the 
gifted including curriculum development and implementation 
strategies.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 539 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

195 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 540 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

196 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that are gifted.  

2. Outline the development of effective curriculum and design for 

students that are gifted.  

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are gifted.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

changes for curriculum.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 541 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

197 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 542 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

198 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 543 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

199 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 544 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

200 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Gifted Competency 1 
Component Number: 4-106-006 
Function: (One digit code) 4 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 106 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

006 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential teachers of the 
gifted including understanding the nature and needs of students that 
are gifted.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 545 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

201 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 546 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

202 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that are gifted.  

2. Outline the foundation of an effective classroom environment 

for students that are gifted.  

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are gifted.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

changes for curriculum.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 547 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

203 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 548 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

204 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 549 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

205 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 550 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

206 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Gifted Competency 3 
Component Number: 4-106-007 
Function: (One digit code) 4 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 106 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

007 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential teachers of the 
gifted including guidance and counseling for students that are gifted.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

Page 551 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

207 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 552 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

208 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that are gifted.  

2. Outline the development of guidance and counseling protocols 

for students that are gifted.  

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are gifted.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

changes for how to counsel students that are gifted.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 553 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

209 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 554 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

210 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 555 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

211 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 556 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

212 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Gifted Competency 4 
Component Number: 2-106-014 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 106 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

014 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential teachers of the 
gifted including the instruction and support of special populations 
students that are gifted.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 557 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

213 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 558 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

214 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that are gifted.  

2. Outline the development of an effective learning environment 

for students that are gifted.  

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are gifted.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

changes for curriculum.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 559 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

215 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 560 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

216 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 561 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

217 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 562 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

218 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Gifted Competency 5 
Component Number: 2-106-013 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 106 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

013 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of potential teachers of the 
gifted including the theory and development of creativity of students 
that are gifted.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 563 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

219 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 564 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

220 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate instructional and engagement strategies for 

students that are gifted.  

2. Outline the development of an effective learning environment 

that cultivates creativity for students that are gifted.  

3. Recognize the importance of applied behavior analysis in order 

to better support student success.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are gifted.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

changes for curriculum and instruction.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 565 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

221 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 566 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

222 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 567 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

223 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 568 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

224 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ESOL 
Component Number: 1-700-001 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 700 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers of ESOL students 
that includes effective methodology for teaching English to speakers of 
other languages.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 569 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

225 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 570 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

226 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that speak English as a second language.  

2. Understand and practice the effective methodology for teaching 

English to students that speak other languages.  

3. Outline the development of effective curriculum and design for 

students that are speakers of other languages.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are ESOL.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and 

program effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that are ESOL.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 571 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

227 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 572 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

228 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 573 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

229 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 574 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

230 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ESOL 
Component Number: 1-701-001 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 701 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers of students that are 
ESOL that includes the effective testing and evaluation of students.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

Page 575 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

231 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 576 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

232 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that speak English as a second language.  

2. Understand and implement effective testing and evaluations for 

students that are ESOL.  

3. Outline the development of effective curriculum and 

assessment for students that are speakers of other languages. 
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are ESOL.  

5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that are ESOL.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 577 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

233 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 578 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

234 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 579 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

235 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 580 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

236 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ESOL 
Component Number: 1-702-001 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 702 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers of ESOL students 
that includes applied linguistics for teaching English to speakers of 
other languages.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 581 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

237 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 582 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

238 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that speak English as a second language.  

2. Understand and practice the applied linguistics for teaching 

English to students that speak other languages.  

3. Outline the implementation of applied linguistics for students 

that are speakers of other languages.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are ESOL.  

5.  Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that are ESOL.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 583 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

239 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 584 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

240 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 585 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

241 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 586 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

242 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ESOL 
Component Number: 1-703-001 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 703 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers of ESOL students 
that includes the effective development of curriculum and materials for 
teaching students that are learning English as a second language.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 587 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

243 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 588 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

244 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that speak English as a second language.  

2. Outline the development of effective curriculum and design for 

students that are speakers of other languages.  

3. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are ESOL.  
4. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

5. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

6. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that are ESOL.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 
i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

Page 589 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

245 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 
participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 590 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

246 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 
➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 

Page 591 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

247 

aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 592 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

248 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ESOL 
Component Number: 1-704-001 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 704 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers of ESOL students 
that includes enriching the various content classes that students who 
are ESOL participate in.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 593 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

249 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 594 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

250 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that speak English as a second language.  

2. Understand and practice incorporating engagement strategies 

for students that are ESOL into other content areas.  

3. Outline effective enrichment strategies for students that are 

speakers of other languages into other content areas.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are ESOL.  

5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that are ESOL.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 595 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

251 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 596 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

252 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 597 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

253 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 598 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

254 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ESOL 
Component Number: 1-704-002 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 704 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

002 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of category III teachers of ESOL 
students that includes effective methodology for teaching students that 
are learning English as a second language.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 599 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

255 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 600 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

256 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that speak English as a second language.  

2. Understand and practice the effective methodology for teaching 

English to students that speak other languages.  

3. Outline the development of effective curriculum and design for 

students that are speakers of other languages.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are ESOL.  

5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that are ESOL.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 601 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

257 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 602 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

258 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 603 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

259 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 604 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

260 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ESOL 
Component Number: 1-705-001 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 705 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers of ESOL students 
that includes effective strategies for cross-cultural communication 
skills.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 605 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

261 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 606 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

262 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that speak English as a second language.  

2. Understand and practice cross-cultural communication skills 

for students that are ESOL.  

3. Outline the development of effective curriculum and design that 

incorporates cross-cultural communication skills.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are ESOL.  

5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that are ESOL.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 607 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

263 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 608 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

264 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 609 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

265 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 610 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

266 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component ESOL 
Component Number: 1-705-004 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 705 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

004 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of administrators and guidance 
counselors for working with students who are learning English as a 
second language.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 611 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

267 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 612 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

268 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Inform staff of appropriate accommodations and modifications 

for students that speak English as a second language.  

2. Understand and promote the effective methodology for teaching 

students that speak English as a second language.   

3. Understand the resources available for students that speak 

English as a second language.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that are ESOL.  

5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that are ESOL.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 613 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

269 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 614 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

270 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 615 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

271 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 616 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

272 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Reading Difficulties, Disabilities, 

and Dyslexia  
Component Number: 2-013-005 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 013 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

005 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers of students that have 
reading difficulties, disabilities, and dyslexia. Teachers will learn 
instructional and intervention strategies in order to raise student 
achievement.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

Page 617 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

273 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

Page 618 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

274 

 
6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 

implementation outcomes.  
 

2. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that have reading difficulties, disabilities, or dyslexia.  

3. Understand and implement effective testing and evaluations for 

students that have reading difficulties, disabilities, or dyslexia. 

4. Outline the development of effective lessons for students that 

have reading difficulties, disabilities, or dyslexia. 

5. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that have reading difficulties, 

disabilities, or dyslexia. 

6. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

7. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

8. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that have reading difficulties, 

disabilities, or dyslexia. 

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  
 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 

Page 619 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

275 

KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 
ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 620 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

276 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 

Page 621 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

277 

10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 
will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 622 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

278 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Reading Difficulties, Disabilities, 

and Dyslexia for SWD  
Component Number: 2-100-018 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 100 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

018 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers of students that have 
reading difficulties, disabilities, and dyslexia. Teachers will learn 
instructional and intervention strategies in order to raise student 
achievement.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

Page 623 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

279 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

Page 624 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

280 

 
6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 

implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

students that have reading difficulties, disabilities, or dyslexia.  

2. Understand and implement effective testing and evaluations for 

students that have reading difficulties, disabilities, or dyslexia. 

3. Outline the development of effective lessons for students that 

have reading difficulties, disabilities, or dyslexia. 

4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students that have reading difficulties, 

disabilities, or dyslexia. 

5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students that have reading difficulties, 

disabilities, or dyslexia. 

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  
 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 

Page 625 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

281 

KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 
ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 626 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

282 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 

Page 627 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

283 

10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 
will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 628 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

284 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Character Education  
Component Number: 2-016-001 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 016 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers in the area of 
character education. Teachers will learn how to infuse character 
lessons into other content areas and assist students with social and 
emotional learning.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

Page 629 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

285 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 630 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

286 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate accommodations and modifications for 

character development of students.   

2. Outline the development of effective character lessons for 

students.  

3. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective character instruction of students.  
4. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

5. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

6. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for character education of students.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 
i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

Page 631 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

287 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 
participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 632 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

288 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 
➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 

Page 633 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

289 

aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 634 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

290 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Athletic Coaching Endorsement  
Component Number: 2-011-001 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 011 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers who want to acquire 
the athletic coaching endorsement. Coaches will learn about coaching 
theory and practice.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 635 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

291 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 636 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

292 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate coaching strategies for students who 

participate in athletics.  

2. Understand and implement effective athletic assessment of 

students in order to create a united team.  

3. Outline the development of effective lessons for athletic 

students.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students in athletics.  

5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students in athletics.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 637 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

293 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 638 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

294 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 639 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

295 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 640 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

296 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Athletic Coaching Endorsement  
Component Number: 2-011-002 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 011 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

002 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers who want to acquire 
the athletic coaching endorsement. Coaches will learn about how to 
care for and prevent athletic injuries.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 641 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

297 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 642 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

298 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate care strategies for athletics who get injured.  

2. Understand and implement effective assessment of athletic 

injuries so that proper care can be provided to students.  

3. Outline the development of effective injury prevention 

strategies to be followed by coaches.  

4. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 
effectiveness. 

5. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

6. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for the care and prevention of athletic injuries.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 
objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

Page 643 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

299 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 644 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

300 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 
 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Page 645 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

301 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 646 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

302 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Athletic Coaching Endorsement  
Component Number: 1-103-001 
Function: (One digit code) 1 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 103 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

60 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers who want to acquire 
the athletic coaching endorsement. Coaches will learn about specific 
sporting rules and procedures.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

Page 647 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

303 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 

Page 648 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

304 

6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 
implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate coaching strategies for students who 

participate in specific sports.  

2. Understand and implement effective athletic assessment of 

students in a specific sport.  

3. Outline the development of effective lessons for athletic 

students.  
4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students in athletics.  

5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students in a specific sport.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 
pertaining to ASD instruction.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

Page 649 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

305 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  

iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 
participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 650 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

306 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 651 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

307 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 652 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

308 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Job Embedded Reading 

Endorsement  
Component Number: 2-013-014 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 013 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

014 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

150-300 Points maximum 

 
  
2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
To broaden professional competencies of teachers who want to acquire 
the reading endorsement through a job embedded pathway. Teachers 
will learn high effect strategies for the instruction of reading and how to 
provide quality interventions to students who need additional reading 
assistance.  
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Reading 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

Page 653 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

309 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 
Planning    
Learning 1.2.2 Content 

Focused: 
Professional 
learning focuses 
primarily on 
developing 
content 
knowledge and 
content-specific 
research-and/or 
evidence-based 
instructional 
strategies and 
interventions in 
the content areas 
specified in 
s.1012.98 F.S. and 
aligned with 
district and state 
initiatives.  
 

2.2.3 Learning 
Strategies: 
Professional 
learning uses 
strategies aligned 
with the intended 
goals and 
objectives; 
applies 
knowledge of 
human learning 
and change; and 
includes 
modeling of 
research- and/or 
evidence-based 
instruction, 
practice and 
classroom-based 
feedback.  
 

3.2.8 District 
Support: The 
district 
recognizes and 
supports 
professional 
learning as a key 
strategy for 
improving 
teaching quality 
and student 
learning.   
 

Implementing    
Evaluating    

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 

  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

Page 654 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

310 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 
6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 

implementation outcomes.  
 

1. Select appropriate instructional strategies for creating an 

effective reading block.  

2. Understand and implement effective assessment strategies for 

students in reading.  

3. Outline the development of effective lessons for reading.  

4. Distinguish characteristics of positive behavior supports for 

effective instruction of students in reading.  

5. Define methods used to evaluate student progress and program 

effectiveness. 

6. Analyze and utilize evaluated data when redesigning programs. 

7. Utilizing data, identify areas of growth and determine effective 

strategies for students in reading.  

 
 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

➢ Conferences and Seminars (with proper documentation)  

➢ Distance Learning Activities (e.g. webinars)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will develop and implement activities for 

students that are targeted at increasing the academic 

achievement of students with ASD.  

➢ Teachers will engage actively in instructional inquiry in the 

context of collaborative professional communities, focused 

on instructional improvement and student achievement 

pertaining to ASD instruction.  
 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

Page 655 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

311 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Develop an action plan for demonstrating the 

objectives in the workplace. 

ii. Maintain a journal/folder of activities supporting the 

objectives. 

iii. Other as determined by the instructor.  
iv. Note: the implementation agreement defining what 

participants will do in the follow-up portion of the 

component (implementation) may be developed by 

participants and component providers.  

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 
 

8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 
resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 656 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

312 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ Changes in instructional or learning environment practices.  

“A”  

➢ Changes in observed educator proficiency in implementing 

targeted standards or initiatives. “F” 

➢ Results of school/teacher constructed student growth 

measure(s) that track student progress. “B” 

➢ Observation of student performance.  “D” 

 
Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
Participants will use multiple measures to determine changes in 
professional practice and student performance as a result of engaging 
in the professional learning. These measures will include 
documentation of changes in instructional practices related to the 
component content and changes in student performance.  
 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 

Page 657 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

313 

evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 
aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

Periodic assessments to determine the degree to which the 
component is impacting teachers’ mastery of the focus area goals and 
objectives will be conducted. The information from impact 
evaluations and process monitoring will be reviewed by 
school/district leadership teams to determine the need for revision of 
content/process, or to align changes in teacher performance to 
student achievement. 
 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Professional 

Development 
Name of component author Jamie Iannone  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 658 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

314 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component 

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Nature and Needs, 

Assessment, and Diagnosis of 

Autism Spectrum Disorders 

with Field Experience 

 
Component Number: 4-102-005 
Function: (One digit code) 4 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 102 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

005 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for 
component 

Maximum 80 

 
  

2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  
 

 Participants will be able to identify characteristics associated with 
Autism Spectrum Disorders (ASD), demonstrate an understanding of 
current trends and research-based methodologies used to create 
appropriate instructional programs for these students, and become 
familiar with formal and informal assessments used for diagnosis and 
instructional planning. 

 
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

Page 659 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

315 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click 

Here for List 
 

 Educator School District 

Planning ☒ 1.1.1 
☐ Click here to enter 

text. 
☒ 3.1.3, 3.1.4, 3.1.5 

Learning 
☒ 1.2.2, 1.2.3, 1.2.4, 
1.2.5, 

☐ Click here to enter 

text. 

☒ 3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 
3.2.4, 3.2.5, 3.2.8 

Implementing ☒ 1.3.1, 1.3.3 
☐ Click here to enter 

text. 
☒ 3.3.1, 3.3.2, 3.3.3 

Evaluating ☒ 1.4.2, 1.4.3, 1.4.4 
☐ Click here to enter 

text. 
☐ 3.4.3, 3.4.7 

 
 

 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  
 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 
  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 
6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 

implementation outcomes.  
 

Educators will: 

1. Demonstrate knowledge of the major characteristics of autism and the 

range of functioning level across all domains including communication, 

Page 660 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

316 

sensory responses and needs, stereotypical behaviors, socialization and 

social skill development. 

2. Demonstrate understanding of the historical perspective of etiological 

theories and treatment approaches of individuals with autism. 

3. Demonstrate knowledge of current research trends, medical and 

educational issues, comorbidity and programs in the field of autism. 
4. Understand the effects of neurological differences and its impact on 

learning and behavior. 

5.Identify eligibility criteria for ASD as defined by the most recent version 

of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual, and the definition/description 

used by The Florida Department of Education. 

6.Demonstrate understanding of the instruments used and process utilized 

for a comprehensive evaluation, including: 

a. criteria for determining eligibility (medical and educational) 

b. autism-specific instruments 

c. instruments used to determine IQ 

7. Describe the impact of autism on the family. 
8. Demonstrate the ability to work effectively with parents. 

9. Understand factors considered when determining placement and 

services for students with ASD. 

10. Match levels of support to the changing needs of a student with ASD. 

11. Reflect knowledge of growth and development in curricular planning 

and expectations. 

12.Describe the development of appropriate educational objectives across 

the range of functioning levels and across the age span (from preschool 

through adult services). 

13. Demonstrate the ability to write appropriate educational and 

behavioral goals and objectives. 
14. Demonstrate an understanding of strategies for structuring the 

environment to promote: 

a. opportunities to enhance communicative initiations and interactions; 

b. opportunities for appropriate play and leisure activities; 

c. self-regulation and self-control; 

d. sensory-motor concerns and 

e. direct instruction. 

15. Describe the importance that sensory issues play in maladaptive 

behaviors exhibited by many students with ASD and how to accommodate 

for sensory issues in the school environment. 

16.Describe strategies to promote social interactions and learning in more 

inclusive environments, including general education and community. 

17. Describe various physical and visual strategies that can be used to 

accommodate a student with ASD in both a self-contained and a general 

Page 661 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

317 

education classroom, (i.e., environmental structuring, schedules, social 

situation stories and scripts), in order to communicate social information 

and expectations. 

18.Plan and implement activities for independent functional life skills for a 

student with autism. 

19. Categorize the different types of visual schedules used to promote 
independence based on a student's educational and cognitive abilities. 

20.Implement evidence-based and promising practices strategies, such as 

incidental teaching, discrete trial, group instruction, task analysis, use of 

prompts and prompt fading, shaping, effective use of reinforcement in 

teaching skills, shadowing, modeling and scaffolding. 

21. Describe strategies for conducting ongoing classroom-based 

assessments and databased decision making for program development. 

22. Demonstrate transfer, lifting and positioning techniques 

 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

➢ Participants will engage in: 

➢ Guided inquiry 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Observation of best practices 

➢ Practice of Strategies 

➢ Cycles of Feedback 

➢ Data analysis 

➢ Lesson Planning 

➢ Facilitated Group Discussions 

➢ Case Studies 

➢ Reading Professional Texts 
➢ Action Planning 

➢ Presentations 

➢ Action Research 

HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 
➢ Tasks within the in-service components may include reading 

content, completing formative reflection and vocabulary 
assignments, responding to scenarios, reviewing web-based 
resources, and completing objective and field experience-
based summative exercises.  

 

Page 662 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

318 

KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Participants must demonstrate a theoretical and functional 

knowledge to complete all course objectives and all 

summative assignments to receive credit for the component. 
Field experiences will be an element of application within 

each in-service component. Successful completion of the field 

experiences will be demonstrated through the submission of 

application exercises to an experienced course facilitator 

who will provide corrective and elaborative feedback to 

enhance the participant’s learning process. 

 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants 
to receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here 
should include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method 
code selected for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

Page 663 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

319 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

1. Participant understanding of 
these practices will be assessed 
through oral/written reflection, 
participant products, quizzes, 
discussion groups and case study 
participation. 

2. Evidence of changes in instructional 
practice will be collected through 
evidence of implementation and 
participants work products throughout 
the course. 

3. Changes in student performance will be evaluated 
based on student work products and student growth 
analysis from assignments and assessments. 

The impact data will be reviewed, as appropriate, by course 
facilitators, district staff and/or departmental leaders to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the professional development on 
changing participant behaviors and student outcomes. 

 

Page 664 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

320 

Florida Diagnostic and Learning Resources System (FDLRS), 
Professional Learning and Development, and the Florida 
Department of Education will review the impact of the 
evaluation data gathered in the course’s required participant 
satisfaction survey. 

 
 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe 

what will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use 
these aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

a. What evaluation data address value of the PD design? 
 
Participants will provide feedback on the professional learning experience 
regarding its relevance and usefulness in their current role by completing 
the Professional Development evaluation form at the conclusion of the 
course. 
 

b. What evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of 
the PD? 

 
Participants will provide feedback on the professional learning experience 
regarding how well it was planned and facilitated by completing the 
Professional Development evaluation form at the conclusion of the course. 
 

c. Who will use these aspects of PD evaluation data? 
 
The professional development department and the facilitator of the 
professional learning experience will use the Professional Development 
evaluation data to reflect on practices and plan future sessions. 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved  July 2020 
Department ESE Services  
Name of component author Peggy 

Williams 
 
 
 
 

Page 665 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

321 

 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component 

 
1. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Applied Behavior Analysis and 

Positive Behavior Supports for 
Students with Autism Spectrum 
Disorders with Field Experience 

Component Number: 2-100-001 
Function: (One digit code) 2 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 100 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

001 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

Minimum 80/Maximum 80 

 
  

2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  
 

This course provides participants with an understanding of how 
applied behavior analysis principles pertain to individuals with ASD, 
including implementation associated with teaching various skills and 
supporting behavior in educational settings. The functional assessment 
of problem behavior as well as proactive and preventative methods for 
addressing problem behavior will be addressed. In addition, evidence-
based instructional strategies to develop communication, social, self-
help, and academic skills will be emphasized and linked to behavioral 
needs. 

 
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

Page 666 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

322 

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Educator School District 

Planning ☒ 1.1.1 
☐ Click here to enter 

text. 
☒ 3.1.3, 3.1.4, 3.1.5 

Learning 
☒ 1.2.2, 1.2.3, 1.2.4, 
1.2.5, 

☐ Click here to enter 

text. 

☒ 3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 
3.2.4, 3.2.5, 3.2.8 

Implementing ☒ 1.3.1, 1.3.3 
☐ Click here to enter 

text. 
☒ 3.3.1, 3.3.2, 3.3.3 

Evaluating ☒ 1.4.2, 1.4.3, 1.4.4 
☐ Click here to enter 

text. 
☐ 3.4.3, 3.4.7 

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 
  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 
6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 

implementation outcomes.  
 

Educators will: 

 

Page 667 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

323 

1. Identify social and behavioral issues associated with ASD and 

how those behaviors impact the functioning and quality of life of 

these individuals. 

2. Demonstrate an understanding of the effect of theory of mind and 

executive functioning on learning and behavior. 

3. Define applied behavioral analysis. 
4. Describe possible reasons for self-stimulatory, repetitive 

behaviors. 

5. Understand basic behavioral principles, including basic operant 

reinforcement, differential reinforcement, extinction, punishment, 

discrimination training, generalization, etc. 

6. Understand and use reinforcement, shaping, behavioral 

momentum, chaining, modeling, prompting, fading, imitation, 

discrimination training, and presentation/instructions to promote 

adaptive behaviors and skills. 

7. Describe methods for identifying rein forcers including parent 

input. 
8. Develop a classroom token economy system that incorporates 

different schedules of reinforcement. 

9. Plan instruction for social skills. 

10. Identify evidence-based strategies to increase self-awareness 

and the ability to self-regulate including self-monitoring systems. 

11. Describe methods used to decrease behaviors: overcorrection, 

time out, response cost and extinction. 

12. Explain the importance of choosing ethical interventions (e.g., 

least restrictive and non-aversive interventions). 

13. Identify proactive and preventative methods for addressing 

problem behaviors. 
14. Describe visual strategies that may prevent inappropriate 

behavior. 

15. Identify, define, and prioritize target behaviors. 

16. Demonstrate the ability to use and collect data using a variety of 

assessment tools including the antecedent-behavior-consequence 

(ABC) model. 

17. Develop a hypothesis of the function of behavior, considering 

setting events, antecedents/triggers, and consequence events. 

18. Demonstrate the ability to design intervention strategies that 

match the function of a competing behavior (functional 

equivalency) 

19. Understand the importance of data collection throughout all 

phases of intervention (e.g., baseline, treatment, generalization, 

maintenance). 

Page 668 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

324 

20. Develop a Functional Behavioral Assessment and Positive 

Behavior Intervention Plan (PBIP) that takes into consideration 

function and the context of the problem behavior. 

 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

Participants will engage in: 

• Guided inquiry 
• Discussion 
• Observation of best practices 
• Practice of Strategies 
• Cycles of Feedback 
• Data analysis 
• Lesson Planning 
• Facilitated Group Discussions 
• Case Studies 
• Reading Professional Texts 
• Action Planning 
• Presentations 
• Action Research 

HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

Tasks within the in-service components may 

include reading content, completing formative 

reflection and vocabulary assignments, 

responding to scenarios, reviewing web-based 

resources, and completing objective and field 

experience-based summative exercises.  

KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

Participants must demonstrate a theoretical 
and functional knowledge to complete all 
course objectives and all summative 
assignments to receive credit for the 
component. Field experiences will be an 
element of application within each in-service 
component. Successful completion of the field 
experiences will be demonstrated through the 
submission of application exercises to an 
experienced course facilitator who will 

Page 669 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

325 

provide corrective and elaborative feedback 
to enhance the participant’s learning process. 

 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable 
participants to receive on-going feedback on implementation of new 
learning.  Text here should include reference to the primary implementation 
monitoring method code selected for data base element 215253.  
 
 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 

process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

Page 670 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

326 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used 

to determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous 
section titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner 
Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

1. Participant understanding of 
these practices will be assessed 
through oral/written reflection, 
participant products, quizzes, 
discussion groups and case study 
participation. 

2. Evidence of changes in instructional 
practice will be collected through 
evidence of implementation and 
participants work products throughout 
the course. 

3. Changes in student performance will be 
evaluated based on student work products 
and student growth analysis from 
assignments and assessments. 

➢  

Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
The impact data will be reviewed, as appropriate, by course facilitators, 
district staff and/or departmental leaders to evaluate the effectiveness of 
the professional development on changing participant behaviors and 
student outcomes. 

  
Florida Diagnostic and Learning Resources System (FDLRS), Professional 
Learning and Development, and the Florida Department of Education will 
review the impact of the evaluation data gathered in the course’s required 
participant satisfaction survey. 
Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

Page 671 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

327 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: 

Describe what will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation 
processes. Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD 
design? What evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the 
PD? Who will use these aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

a. What evaluation data address value of the PD design? 
 

Participants will provide feedback on the 
professional learning experience regarding its 
relevance and usefulness in their current role by 
completing the Professional Development evaluation 
form at the conclusion of the course. 

 

b. What evaluation data addresses quality of 

implementation of the PD? 
 

Participants will provide feedback on the 
professional learning experience regarding how well 
it was planned and facilitated by completing the 
Professional Development evaluation form at the 
conclusion of the course. 

 

c. Who will use these aspects of PD evaluation data? 
 

The professional development department and the 
facilitator of the professional learning experience will 
use the Professional Development evaluation data to 
reflect on practices and plan future sessions. 

 
 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved July 2020 
Department ESE Services  
Name of component author Peggy 

Williams 
 
 

Page 672 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

328 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component 

1. Identification 
 

Title: Name of Component Augmentative/Alternative 
Communication Systems and 
Assistive/Instructional Technology 
for Students with Autism Spectrum 
Disorders with Field Experience 

Component Number: 3-100-003 
Function: (One digit code) 3 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 100 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

003 

Points to be Earned: 
Number/range of points to be 
earned for component 

Minimum 80/Maximum 80  

 
  

2. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  
 

 Participants will be able to describe and analyze communication needs, 
design strategies to facilitate intervention, and demonstrate an 
understanding of various communication interventions for students with 
Autism Spectrum Disorders; including AAC/AT. Participants will 
understand the importance of transition planning for students with ASD. 

 
 
 

3. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

Page 673 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

329 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

 Other: To provide Clay County students with the highest quality teaching and learning processes 
available. 

 
4. Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 Educator School District 

Planning ☒ 1.1.1 
☐ Click here to enter 

text. 
☒ 3.1.3, 3.1.4, 3.1.5 

Learning 
☒ 1.2.2, 1.2.3, 1.2.4, 
1.2.5, 

☐ Click here to enter 

text. 

☒ 3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 
3.2.4, 3.2.5, 3.2.8 

Implementing ☒ 1.3.1, 1.3.3 
☐ Click here to enter 

text. 
☒ 3.3.1, 3.3.2, 3.3.3 

Evaluating ☒ 1.4.2, 1.4.3, 1.4.4 
☐ Click here to enter 

text. 
☐ 3.4.3, 3.4.7 

 
 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  

 
5. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 
  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 
6. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 

implementation outcomes.  
 

Educators will: 

1. Identify and describe communication characteristics of students 

with ASD including: limited communication, limited joint attention, 

and unconventional forms of communication. 

2. Examine different alternative/augmentative communication (AAC) 
systems used with students with Autism Spectrum Disorders: 

a. Single message 

b. Picture communication systems 

Page 674 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

330 

c. Manual communication boards 

d. Voice output communication devices 

e. Dynamic display devices 

3. Consider different options for symbols as communication tools: 

objects, photos, symbols, etc. 

4. Identify the differences between communication systems and 
choice systems. 

5. Develop a classroom plan that integrates the use of 

alternative/augmentative communication and 

assistive/instructional technology(ies) into the curriculum, for 

example: environmental structure, picture symbols, visual 

schedules, electronic devices. 

6. Describe how to individualize a communication system for an 

individual student. 

a. Identify vocabulary the student would need in specific 

environments. 

b. Identify opportunities where the student would need to 
communicate. 

7. Describe how to manipulate the classroom/school environment to 

promote communication, including the use of “sabotage”. 

8. Examine why student behavior improved across settings and with a 

variety of people when the communication tools provide 

consistency. 

9. Demonstrate the ability to work effectively with paraprofessionals, 

service providers, general education teachers. 

10. Describe the process of obtaining an assistive technology evaluation 

in your district. 

11. Identify appropriate assistive/instructional technology(ies) that can 
be used to assist students with ASD of differing abilities. 

12. Describe an example of low, mid and high-tech technology supports 

across all areas of development, including: 

a. communication 

b. social interactions 

c. academics 

b. daily living 

c. executive functioning 

13. Describe the benefits of community-based instruction. 

14. Describe services that support transition, career and vocational 

development, community participation, and independent living in 

your community. 

Page 675 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

331 

15. Identify transition assessments and how the information gained is 

used to develop transition IEP goals, including goals for self-

determination and self-advocacy. 

16. Describe how individuals with autism are included in transition 

planning in your district. 

 
7. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

Participants will engage in: 

• Guided inquiry 
• Discussion 
• Observation of best practices 
• Practice of Strategies 
• Cycles of Feedback 
• Data analysis 
• Lesson Planning 
• Facilitated Group Discussions 
• Case Studies 
• Reading Professional Texts 
• Action Planning 
• Presentations 
• Action Research 

HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

Tasks within the in-service components may 

include reading content, completing formative 

reflection and vocabulary assignments, 

responding to scenarios, reviewing web-based 

resources, and completing objective and field 

experience-based summative exercises. 

KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

Participants must demonstrate a theoretical 
and functional knowledge to complete all 
course objectives and all summative 
assignments to receive credit for the 
component. Field experiences will be an 
element of application within each in-service 
component. Successful completion of the field 
experiences will be demonstrated through the 
submission of application exercises to an 

Page 676 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

332 

experienced course facilitator who will 
provide corrective and elaborative feedback 
to enhance the participant’s learning process.  

 
 
Select ONE 
 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

 
8. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable 
participants to receive on-going feedback on implementation of new 
learning.  Text here should include reference to the primary implementation 
monitoring method code selected for data base element 215253.  
 
 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 

process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

Page 677 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

333 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
9. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used 

to determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous 
section titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner 
Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

1. Participant understanding of these practices 

will be assessed through oral/written 

reflection, participant products, quizzes, 

discussion groups and case study 

participation.  

2. Evidence of changes in 
instructional practice will be 
collected through evidence of 
implementation and participants 
work products throughout the 
course. 

3. Changes in student performance will 
be evaluated based on student work 
products and student growth 
analysis from assignments and 
assessments. 

Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
The impact data will be reviewed, as appropriate, by course facilitators, 
district staff and/or departmental leaders to evaluate the effectiveness of 
the professional development on changing participant behaviors and 
student outcomes. 

 
Florida Diagnostic and Learning Resources System (FDLRS), Professional 
Learning and Development, and the Florida Department of Education will 
review the impact of the evaluation data gathered in the course’s required 
participant satisfaction survey. 
Click or tap here to enter text. 
 

Page 678 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

334 

 
10.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: 

Describe what will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation 
processes. Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD 
design? What evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the 
PD? Who will use these aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

a. What evaluation data address value of the PD design? 
 
Participants will provide feedback on the professional learning experience 
regarding its relevance and usefulness in their current role by completing 
the Professional Development evaluation form at the conclusion of the 
course. 
 
b. What evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the 
PD? 
 
Participants will provide feedback on the professional learning experience 
regarding how well it was planned and facilitated by completing the 
Professional Development evaluation form at the conclusion of the course. 
 
c. Who will use these aspects of PD evaluation data? 
 
The professional development department and the facilitator of the 
professional learning experience will use the Professional Development 
evaluation data to reflect on practices and plan future sessions. 

 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved July 2020 
Department ESE Services  
Name of component author Peggy 

Williams  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 679 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

335 

Clay County District Schools 
High Quality MIP (HQMIP) Component  

 
11. Identification 

 
Title: Name of Component Ethics – Instructional Personnel 
Component Number: 8-410-503 
Function: (One digit code) 8 
Focus Area: (3 digit code) 410 
Local Sequence Number(s): (3 digit 
code(s) 

503 

Points to be Earned: Number/range 
of points to be earned for component 

3 Points maximum 

 
  
12. Description: Briefly describe the content or general objectives.  

 
Florida certified educators are held to standards of conduct as outlined 
in the Florida Statutes and State Board of Education Rule.  The 
Principles of Professional Conduct represent the guideposts of what 
professional educators and members of the community can and should 
expect from educators.  This training coves all components of Rule 6A-
10.081 and F.S.1012.795 
 

13. Link(s) to Priority Initiatives:  
Identify the alignment of the targeted professional learning with key district 
priorities (select all that apply). 
 

 Academic content standards for student achievement  

 Assessment and tracking student progress 

 Collegial learning practices  

 Continuous improvement practices  

 Digital Learning/Technology Infusion  

 Evaluation system indicators/rubrics/components  

 Instructional design and lesson planning  

 Instructional leadership (as per FPLS standards) 

 Learning environment (as per FEAPS standards) 

 Mastery of a specific instructional practice: Reading 

 Mastery of a specific leadership practice: Click or tap here to enter text. 

 Multi-tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 

 Needs Assessments/Problem Solving supporting improvement planning (SIP, IPDP, DP) 

 Non-classroom instructional staff proficiencies supporting student success 

Page 680 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

336 

 Organizational leadership proficiencies (as per FPLS) 

 Professional and ethical behavior 

 Regulatory or compliance requirements 

  

 
14.  Florida PD Protocol Standards Supported by this Component: Click Here 

for List 
 

 Check here if not significantly related to any Protocol Standard.  
 

15. Impact Area(s): Select all that apply. 
  

 
Study leading to deep understanding of the practice(s), standard(s), and/or 
processes(es) targeted 

 
Repetitive practice leading to changes in proficiency of educator or leader on the 
job 

 
Tracking improvements in student learning growth supported by the professional 
learning 

 
16. Specific Learner Outcomes: Identify the priority study and/or on-the-job 

implementation outcomes.  
 

• Understand and implement 

professional judgment in 

decision making 

• Understand and apply 

required obligations to 

student, profession, and 

public – Rule 6A-10.081 

• Understand function of PPS 

and PPC 

• Understand why educators 

are held to higher standard 

of conduct than general 

public and possible 

consequences of decision 

made 

 
 
17. Learning Procedures (Methods):  

 
WHAT will occur during the professional development component 
delivery? 

Page 681 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

337 

➢ Lecture 

➢ Discussion 

➢ Demonstration 

➢ Audio-visual aids 

➢ Laboratory activities (role-playing)  

 
HOW will the experiences by provided to participants during this delivery? 

➢ Participants will participate in scenarios and determine if 

there are any violations of Principles of Professional 

Conduct. 

➢ Teachers will engage actively in discussions or proper 

decision making on and off campuses.  

 
KEY ISSUES to be included in participant implementation agreements 
(should support the specific learner outcomes identified above). 

➢ Each participant will complete one or more of the following: 

i. Survey of training and questions that may need 

addressing 

ii. Write reflection of learned knowledge from training 

 
 
 
Select ONE 

 

 A Knowledge Acquisition: Workshop - training event or process (limited to knowledge transmission/training focused on 
understanding the component's content)  

 B Electronic, Interactive (includes facilitation supporting development/application on the job)  

 C Electronic, Non-Interactive (knowledge transmission/training but no job embedded implementation supports)  

 D Learning Community/Lesson Study Group (Use this code where job embedded collegial support processes are core 
learning delivery method)  

 F Independent Inquiry (Includes development, for example, Action Research; Creating PD or teaching resources with 
intended application outcomes specified)  

 G Structured Coaching/Mentoring (May include one-on-one or small group instruction by a coach/mentor with a teacher or 
school administrator with specific learning objectives)  

 H Implementation of “high effect” practice(s) (monitored with structured feedback from peer, coach, or supervisor)  

 I Job Embedded: Workshop, training event or process focused on (modeling and supporting new/improved practices being 
successfully demonstrated on the job) 

 J Deliberate Practice: Learning processes embedded in deliberate practice growth targets or Individual professional 
development plans (IPDP), Leadership Development Plans (ILDP), or School Improvement Plans (SIP) 

 K Problem Solving Process (Implementation of Florida’s 8 step Problem Solving Process or other well defined problem 
solving process focused on specific school improvement objective(s)) 

Page 682 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

338 

 
18. Implementation/Monitoring Procedures: Describe the method(s) and 

resources(s) that will be provided to support, monitor, and enable participants to 
receive on-going feedback on implementation of new learning.  Text here should 
include reference to the primary implementation monitoring method code selected 
for data base element 215253.  
 

 M Structured Coaching/Mentoring by coaches, mentors, knowledgeable others not part of the district’s personnel evaluation 
process (monitoring/feedback on the learning may include direct observation, conferencing, oral reflection and/or lesson 
or practice demonstration/modeling) 
 

 N Independent Learning/Action Research related to job responsibilities, specific professional learning goals or deliberate 
practice growth targets (should include evidence of monitoring job embedded implementation of targeted learning) 
 

 O Collaborative Planning - Monitoring, and feedback related to targeted professional learning, includes Learning Community 
or other properly implemented team learning practices focused on job-embedded learning supported by colleagues 
 

 P Participant Product related to training or learning process (may include lesson plans, written reflection on lessons learned, 
audio/video exemplars, case study findings, modeling improved practice, samples of resulting student work, and/or 
collegial training resources) 
 

 Q Lesson Study group participation (monitoring and feedback focused on both the research-based Lesson Study process and 
impact of the process on lessons implemented) 
 

 R Electronic - Interactive with on-going monitoring and feedback via online or face-to-face facilitation on targeted learning 
 

 S Electronic - Non-interactive with learning monitored thru online comprehension checks and/or participant’s summative 
reports or modeling to peers or supervisors 
 

 T Evaluation of Practice Indicators – The practice portion of district personnel evaluation processes for monitoring and 
providing feedback on evaluation indicators/components/domains are employed to monitor and provide feedback on 
implementation of the professional learning. (Note: this code may be used when the professional learning target(s) are 
aligned to specific personnel evaluation system indicators/components/and/or domains)  

 
19. Impact Evaluation Procedures: Describe the processes that will be used to 

determine the impact of the component on areas identified in previous section 
titled “Impact Areas” and priority issues from “Specific Learner Outcomes”. 
 

What methods will be used to evaluate the impact of the component on the 
targeted Impact Areas and Targeted Learner Outcomes?  

➢ NA 

Who will use the evaluation impact data gathered?  
 
NA 
 

 
20.  Procedures for Use of the Component’s Evaluation Findings: Describe what 

will be done with the data obtained through the evaluation processes. 
Considerations: What evaluation data addresses value of the PD design? What 
evaluation data addresses quality of implementation of the PD? Who will use these 

Page 683 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

339 

aspects of PD evaluation data?  
 

NA 
 
 
District record keeping data related to development of this component:  
 

Date Approved       
Department Human 

Resources 
Name of component author Brenda 

Troutman  
 
 
 
  

Page 684 of 1019

DRAFT



Master Inservice Plan  Revised: May 29, 2020 

340 

 
Specialized Training Components 
Add-on Endorsement Programs 
 
Training components used for Add-on Endorsement programs are found within the 
written program submitted under separate cover. For information regarding these 
components, please contact the Professional Development Department. 
 
Approved Add-on Endorsement Programs: 

● Athletic Coaching 
● English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) 
● Gifted 
● Reading 
● Autism Spectrum Disorders 

 

Page 685 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Approval of Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling (LETRS) for Reading Endorsement

Description
Florida state statute requires the Reading Endorsement for teachers who provide reading intervention instruction for students. 
Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling (LETRS) provides teachers with the necessary skills and resources to
teach struggling readers.  This program is based on the Science of reading instruction and leverages decades of research
including the latest neuroscience that reveals how students learn to read and how to teach reading with effective instruction.  The
comprehensive program provides a depth of content beyond other literacy professional development solutions-covering all
essential components of reading, language, spelling, and writing.  
LETRS is approved by the Florida Department of Education as an effective professional learning program that meets the needs
of struggling readers, and Clay County District Schools has received program approval from FLDOE for using LETRS as the
district Reading Add-On Endorsement. 
 
“The LETRS professional development course of study is unique in many ways. Because reading is a language-based skill,
simply learning strategies to address reading as a text-based skill is inadequate. LETRS is grounded in the fundamental idea that
reading difficulties can be best addressed by teaching the structures and functions of language directly. Teachers learn what,
when and how language skills need to be taught and ways to develop language for both prevention and intervention of struggling
readers. Oral language is the basis for later reading comprehension. Second language learners and children who come to school
from a background of poverty need extra support at the oral language level in order to give them the best chance of becoming
proficient readers. Yet our teachers seldom have the opportunity for undergraduate work, graduate work or professional
development in oral language and its impact on literacy learning. When we combine instruction in language with instruction
about reading foundational skills like phonemic awareness and basic phonics, we are creating a strong basis upon which
strategies and skills for advanced decoding, vocabulary development, fluency, deep reading comprehension of various text
genres and writing can develop. 
While deeply grounded in the science of reading, LETRS gets teachers involved in their own learning throughout the units of
study. As teachers learn about instructional practices that align with the theory and research they are learning in their classes, text
and online units of study, there are activities and self-evaluations in the text and online that give teachers the grounding in
classroom instruction they desire and need. Teachers create a reflective journal throughout their study and work and have
constant opportunities that bridge the research and theory about instruction and assessment directly into their classrooms to help
them internalize the knowledge as they apply and practice what they are learning. 
Louisa Moats says, “Teachers do better, when they know better.” LETRS allows teachers to increase their knowledge base and
their understanding of why they do what they do as they teach children to read. As committed as LETRS is to empowering
teachers, we never lose sight of why this work is so important. We always stay focused on the student, because it is the student
whose life can be changed by a well-informed and caring teacher. One of the first activities we do in the beginning of our first
unit of study is to ask teachers to think of a student who they taught and who they wished they could have helped more. We then
have the teachers dedicate their study to that student. Every teacher knows that they could do better if they knew better! Teachers
love LETRS because they know that it adds value to their practice and through those changes that occur it helps them change the
lives of the students they care so much about. 
In reviewing the Florida Reading Endorsement matrix, it is clear that the full scope of LETRS aligns with the scope and goals of
the FL Reading Endorsement and Florida’s dedication to developing the strongest reading teachers. In addition, the blend of
print, online and face-to-face resources/trainings match the time requirements of the Reading Endorsement process (60 hours for
each competency – 300 total hours).”

Gap Analysis
It is estimated that approximately 600 Clay County teachers need the Reading Endorsement to educate the 5500 students
requiring reading intervention. Approximately 200 teachers throughout the district were Reading Endorsed when the statute went
into effect, and 300 teachers received the Reading Endorsement during the 2019-20 school year through the Job Embedded
Reading Endorsement and the Traditional Reading Endorsement pathways. 

Page 686 of 1019

DRAFT



Previous Outcomes
It is estimated that approximately 600 Clay County teachers need the Reading Endorsement to educate the 5500 students
requiring reading intervention. Approximately 200 teachers throughout the district were Reading Endorsed when the statute went
into effect, and 300 teachers received the Reading Endorsement during the 2019-20 school year through the Job Embedded
Reading Endorsement and the Traditional Reading Endorsement pathways. 

Expected Outcomes
The contract with LETRS will provide for 90 additional teachers to receive their Reading Endorsement thereby increasing their
capacity to teach reading to all students and particularly to struggling readers.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Develop a High Quality & Aligned Instructional System, Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support
personnel, and leaders.  
Strategy 1.1 Provide teachers and students with the tools and resources necessary to meet the demands of the Florida Standards
and students' individual needs., Strategy 5.2: Provide ongoing training and support for teachers, support staff, and leaders.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the contract for LETRS for the Reading Add-On Endorsement

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, Roger.Dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$125,308.00 (Title II pending FLDOE approval)

Review Comments

Attachments

200137 Voyager Sopris Learning.pdf

Page 687 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/200137-voyager-sopris-learning.pdf


Page 688 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 689 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 690 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 691 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 692 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 693 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 694 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 695 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 696 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 697 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 698 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 699 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 700 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 701 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 702 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 703 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 704 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 705 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 706 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 707 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 708 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 709 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 710 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 711 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 712 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 713 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Healthcare Services Agreement

Description
Agreement between MAXVAC, LLC ( Health Hero Florida) and the Clay County District Schools. The company will be
providing vaccines to the students in Clay County such as the Flu vaccine and Tdap vaccines. They will be replacing the services
that Healthy Schools, LLC used to provide to our schools. 

Gap Analysis
Compare performance against potential. 

Previous Outcomes
To provide continued health services. 

Expected Outcomes
To provide needed vaccines to the students of Clay County District Schools. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Approve the Healthcare Services Agreement as submitted. 

Recommendation
Approve as submitted. 

Contact
 Kristin Riebe, Coordinator of Nursing Services (904) 336-6884, kristin.riebe@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
N/a

Review Comments

Attachments

Contract Review Form & Contract with Health Hero Florida.pdf

Page 714 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contract-review-form-contract-with-health-hero-florida.pdf


Page 715 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 716 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 717 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 718 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 719 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 720 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 721 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 722 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 723 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 724 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Approve the 2020-2021 District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance renewal submitted by Arthur J. Gallagher
& Co. (broker)

Description
Annual renewal of the District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance policies

Gap Analysis
Annually, the District undergoes a comprehensive analysis of its current insurable property and personnel.  Our broker (Arthur J.
Gallagher) obtains competitive quotes based on current insurance trends and needs for the next fiscal year.  The goal is to obtain
the best coverage possible while maintaining a manageable budget for the coverage.  This year, the policy includes renewal for
Property, General Liability, Auto Liability, School Leaders including Employment Practices Liability, Worker's Compensation,
Crime, Cyber Risk, Boiler & Machinery, Storage Tank Liability, and Active Assailant Liability.
The overall cost is an 11% increase from the prior year's premium.  The increase is due to the rise in property values and payroll
expenditures.

Previous Outcomes
It is a standard operating practice to negotiate and present insurance renewals for approval based on needs, trends, and financial
availability.
2015-2016 = $1,200,697
2016-2017 - $1,040,615
2017-2018 - $1,045,627
2018-2019  $1,095,983
2019-2020   $1,160,753
2020-2021   $1,238,455   (proposed - recommend option #1)

Expected Outcomes
To approve the Superintendent's recommendation (Option #1) to renew the 2020-2021 Property & Casualty Insurance Program.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
To obtain the School Board's approval of the District's Property, Liability, and Active Assailant insurance renewal policies as
presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs 284-6571  susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$1,238,455  funded by Self Insurance Program

Review Comments

Attachments

Core360 PPT_Program Structure_FINAL.pdf

Clay County District Schools Property  Casualty Premium Summary 2020xlsx.pdf

Page 725 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/core360-ppt_program-structure_final.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/clay-county-district-schools-property-casualty-premium-summary-2020xlsx.pdf


©2018 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO.  |  AJG.COM

1

18GGB17\29618X

Please note that coverages are not drawn to scale and actual policy verbiage should be consulted for coverage terms and conditions  

Equipment 

Breakdown

Cyber LiabilityWorkers’ 

Compensation/ 

Employers’ Liability  

Public Entity 

Liability   

State National

Work Comp Statutory

Employers Liability 

$1,000,000

Chubb 

$3,000,000

Limit

Travelers 

Insurance Co.

$250,000,000

Any One 

Accident 

Named Windstorm Only

$4M XS $16M

Second Excess Layer 

$35M XS $16M 

First Excess Layer

$15M XS $1M

Excess Property 

$51MM All Risks $16M 

Named Windstorm  

Lloyds of London

$900,000

Per Occurrence for 

Property  

$800,000 Per Occurrence 

for GL & AL 

$4,800,000 Per 

Occurrence for GL & AL 

Out of State

$900,000 for Employee 

Benefits, Law 

Enforcement  EPL & 

Sexual Harassment 

Liability

$800,000 Sexual Abuse  

$1,000,000 Each Claim 

for E&O 

$100,000 Each Claim

Crime Liability

$100,000 Property SIR

$50,000 Auto Damage  
SIR

$200,000  Auto Liability & 
General Liability SIR

$100,000 E&O, Employee 
Benefits, Law 

Enforcement  SIR

$200,000 Sexual Abuse 

$25,000 Crime SIR

$500,000 SIR Per 

Occurrence 

$10,000 

Deductible

Active Assailant 

Liability 

Commerce and 

Industry

$1,000,000

Limit

$10,000 

Deductible

Storage Tank 

Liability 

$25,000 

Deductible

$100,000 SIR Per 
Occurrence 

(except 10% Named Wind) 
Storm 

Indian Harbor 

Ins. Co.

$1,000,000

Limit

$25,000 SIR 

Lloyds of London 

$900,000 

Per Occurrence  

Page 726 of 1019

DRAFT



Clay County District Schools

Property and Casualty Premium Summary

#1 #2 #3 #4

Expiring Program 

Lloydos of 

London Renewal 

Lloyds of 

London Renewal 

- Increase 

Liability SIR's to 

$300,000

Lloyd's of 

London Renewal 

- Removing 

Property

Safety National 

Package

Description 2019-2020 2020-2021 2020-2021 2020-2021 2020-2021

School Board Package 304,000.00$             334,000.00$        299,000.00$        224,000.00$        145,650.00$        

Excess Property 576,422.00$             657,960.00$        657,960.00$        785,000.00$        785,000.00$        

Excess WC 108,647.00$             118,455.00$        118,455.00$        118,455.00$        152,519.00$        

B&M 13,923.00$               14,434.00$          14,434.00$          14,434.00$          14,434.00$          

Storage Tank * 4,810.00$                 2,759.00$            2,759.00$            2,759.00$            2,759.00$            

Active Assailant 15,000.00$               15,535.00$          15,535.00$          15,535.00$          15,535.00$          

Student Accident 9,069.00$                 9,069.00$            9,069.00$            9,069.00$            9,069.00$            

Cyber Risk 22,233.00$               26,186.00$          26,186.00$          26,186.00$          26,186.00$          

Total Cost before fees 1,054,104.00$          1,178,398.00$     1,143,398.00$     1,195,438.00$     1,151,152.00$     

Florida Surcharges/ FEMA Fees 28.00$                      32.00$                 32.00$                 32.00$                 32.00$                 

TRIA 44.00$                      25.00$                 25.00$                 25.00$                 25.00$                 

AJG Risk Management Fee 60,000.00$               60,000.00$          60,000.00$          60,000.00$          60,000.00$          

Total Cost after fees 1,114,176.00$          1,238,455.00$     1,203,455.00$     1,255,495.00$     1,211,209.00$     

124,279.00$        89,279.00$          141,319.00$        97,033.00$          

11% 8% 13% 9%

Self Insured Retentions 

(SIR)/Deductibles

General Liability $200,000 $200,000 $300,000 $200,000 $200,000

Auto Physical Damage $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 Not Covered

Auto Liability $200,000 $200,000 $300,000 $200,000 $200,000

Public Officials $100,000 $100,000 $300,000 $100,000 $100,000

Excess WC & EL $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

Employee Benefits Liability $100,000 $100,000 $300,000 $100,000 $200,000

Law Enforcement Liability $100,000 $100,000 $300,000 $100,000 $100,000

Property $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000

Crime $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 Not Covered

Sexual Abuse Liability $200,000 $200,000 $300,000 $200,000 Not Covered

*Named Windstorm Deductible is 10% Per Location of Total Insured Values, subject to $1,000,000

Note:

Total p over expiring ($)

Total p over expiring (%)

#2 Option - General Liability, Auto and Sexual Abuse SIR would be $300,000.  Errors and Ommissions, Law Enforcement and 

Employee Benefit Liability would be $200,000
#3 Option - General Liability, Auto, Sexual Abuse, Errors and Omissions, Law Enforcement and Employee Benefits Liability 

would be $300,000

Page 727 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Approve Advertisement and Notice of Public Hearing to adopt proposed revisions to School Board Policy 5.02A, Business
Affairs Purchasing, 5.03B Business Affairs School Activity Accounts, and 5.02C, Business Affairs Use of School Buildings,
Grounds and Equipment

Description
School Board Policies outlines rules and procedures to ensure the efficient operation of the school district.  The School Board
and Superintendent met collectively in a workshop setting and developed the proposed changes.  The Board intends to adopt the
proposed revisions following a public hearing to take place on August  6, 2020.

Gap Analysis
All Board Policies are reviewed periodically to ensure they are up to date and compliant with current applicable laws and
regulations.

Previous Outcomes
The Board policies have been reviewed and/or revised in the past. 

Expected Outcomes
The proposed amendments to Board policies will be adopted by the Board and implemented appropriately.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the advertisement and Notice of Intent to Adopt proposed amendments to Board policies following the public hearing in
August 2020.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent to Business Affiairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Internal Account policy 5.03B.pdf

CCSB - 5.02 Business Affairs_Purchasing_Federal Grant Funds as of 6_9_2020_(DRAFT).pdf

Proposed 5.02C BAD Facility Use Policy.pdf

Approval to Advertise Public Hearing SB Policies 5.02A, 5.03B, 5.02C.pdf

Page 728 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/internal-account-policy-503b_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/ccsb-502-business-affairs_purchasing_federal-grant-funds-as-of-6_9_2020_draft.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proposed-502c-bad-facility-use-policy_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-public-hearing-sb-policies-502a-503b-502c.pdf


1 

 

 

5.03B .INTERNAL ACCOUNTS/SCHOOL ACTIVITY ACCOUNTING 

 

 1. Basic Principles 

 

 a. The School Board shall be responsible for the administration and control of  the internal 

funds and in connection therewith shall: 

 

 1. Adopt written policies governing the receipt and disbursement of all  internal funds and 

for the accounting for property pursuant to Florida Statutes provide for an annual audit of 

internal funds by a qualified individual. 

 

 2. The financial transactions of school organizations shall be accounted for in the school 

internal funds.  All organizations connected with or operating in the name  of the school 

which obtain monies from the public shall be handled within the internal funds structure. 

 

 3. School internal funds are to be used to benefit activities authorized by the district 

 school board. 

 

 4. Student participation in fundraising activities shall not be in conflict with the 

instructional program as administered by the Superintendent. 

 

 5. The objective of fund raising activities by the school, by any group within, connected 

with, or in the name of the school shall not conflict with programs as administered by the 

Superintendent. 

 

 6. Funds collected each year should be expended to benefit those students currently  in 

school unless those funds are being collected for a specific documented purpose.   Those 

internal account funds designated for general purposes should be used to benefit the entire 

student body.  Funds collected for classes should follow the students to each class level at 

the end of the year. 

 

 7. The collecting and expending of school internal funds must be made in accordance  with 

the Florida Constitution, existing laws, State Board of Education Rules, District School Board 

Rules and Florida High School Activities Association Rules. Sound business practices should 

be observed in all transactions. 

 

 8. Student projects and activities designed to provide educational experiences should  be 

conducted in such a manner as to offer a minimum of competition to commercial firms. 

 

 9. Purchases from internal fund accounts shall not exceed the resources of that account, 

except for items for resale. 

 

 10. An adequate system of internal controls shall be maintained in order to safeguard  the 

assets of the school internal funds. 

    

  

  

Page 729 of 1019

DRAFT



2 

 

  

 11. In the event of violations of any rules established herein, the Superintendent shall be            

 responsible for disciplinary action as may be deemed necessary. 

  
12. The internal accounts shall be maintained under the cash basis of accounting. 

 

 

 a. Account Balances 

 

To  ensure that funds collected each year are expended to benefit those students currently in school 

the following account balance limits are prescribed by the Board: 
Class, club and department monies shall be expended for the benefit of the class, club or department or 

for purposes designated by the class, club or department that participated in generation of the revenue.   

The specific purpose of the revenue collected must be documented by approved written minutes, field 

study request, fundraising activity form, etc.  

Funds collected for classes should follow the students to each class level at the end of the year. 

Graduation classes (6th, 8t and 12th grades) should be transferred into the General Account. 
Funds cannot be transferred out of the General Account back into the clubs, classes or departments.  
 

Secondary Schools:  The ending balance shall not be greater than the sum of one-half (1/2) the 

beginning balance plus two-thirds (2/3) of the current year’s revenue. 

Elementary Schools:  The ending balance shall not be greater than the sum of one-sixth (1/6) of the 

beginning balance plus six-sevenths (6/7) of the current year’s revenue 

If the ending amount is greater than the result of the above formula then written documentation 

should be available for the specific purpose of which    the funds are being accumulated. 

The calculation on the change in an account balance shall be made on an    individual account basis 

for athletics, music, class, club, department, and      general   fund   accounts.  THE LIMITATION 

ON ACCOUNT BALANCES  SHALL NOT APPLY TO TRUST FUND ACCOUNTS, CLASSES 

(Sophomore,   Junior and Senior ONLY) OR TO ACCOUNTS BEING HELD IN TRUST FOR 

OUTSIDE ORGANIZATIONS. 

End of year transfers do not apply to Athletic, Music, Trust Funds, and General Funds. 
 

b. Financial Reports 

 

The Principal’s Monthly Financial Report prescribed in the Internal Funds Manual shall be submitted 

prepared on or before the fifteenth (15th) of each month during the school year.  This report shall also 

be considered the annual report and be used for audit purposes.   

The annual report shall also be considered the annual report and be used for audit purposes.   

 

The annual report shall be submitted prepared on or before the fifteenth of July. 

 For audit purposes the Principal shall have prepared a list of accounts payable and a list of 

encumbrances as of June 30 of the audit period. These lists shall be certified as correct by the 

Principal.  

   

 

 

 

 

Page 730 of 1019

DRAFT



3 

 

c. Annual Audit 

 

 The Superintendent/Board shall designate a qualified individual or firm to  audit the Internal 

Fund records. This audit shall include any notations of any  failure  to  comply  with  

requirements  of  Florida  Statutes, State Board of  Education  Rules,  and  rules of the School 

Board, and commentary as to financial management and irregularities.  Such a signed written 

report shall be presented to the School Board while in session and filed as part of the public 

record. 

 

 It is the responsibility of the Principal to respond, in writing, to the audit criticisms of the 

auditor.  The response is to be made within two weeks of the exit conference directly to the 

auditor with a copy to the Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs.  These audit 

responses shall be included with  the audits when presented to the Board. 

 

d. Policies and Procedures  

 

 Policies and procedures as outlined in the Internal Accounts Manual shall be the authority for 

the handling of Internal Funds.  The policies as stated above will serve as supplemental 

policies to the Internal Funds Manual.  Florida Statutes and State Board of Education Rules 

are the governing requirements complied with and, in the case of conflict, will take 

precedence over the Internal Funds Manual. 

 

 

 
(Ref. F.S. 1001.42; 1011.60; 1011.07; 1011.18)(Adopted: 01-08-81) (Amended: 03-08-84) (Amended: 02-02-88) 

(Amended: 06-18-96) 

 
 
 

Page 731 of 1019

DRAFT



1 

 

 

Revisions to the Purchasing Policy are due to: 

 

 Add Federal Purchasing Guidelines 

 Add Superintendent & Designee Authority (Purchase Order/Contracts) 

 Add FL DOE Rule 6A-1.012 regrading Competitive Solicitation Exemptions 

 Change Director to Supervisor of Purchasing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 732 of 1019

DRAFT



2 

 

SECTION V 

BUSINESS AFFAIRS 

 

5.02 GENERAL POLICIES 
 

 A. Purchasing 

The School Board recognizes that maximum economy and efficiency are best achieved through a 

centralized purchasing function. All purchases that are paid from School District funds shall be the 

responsibility of the Superintendent except to the extent expressly noted hereinafter. No person, 

unless authorized to do so under this policy, may make any purchase or enter into any contract 

involving the use of Board funds. The Board shall not knowingly approve unauthorized expenditures. 

The following provisions shall govern purchasing and bidding other than for capital projects, which 

are addressed in Board policy. Any Board employee who has purchasing authority shall consider first 

the interests of the Board in all purchases and seek to obtain the maximum value for each dollar 

expended; not solicit or accept any gifts or gratuities from present or potential vendors which might 

influence or appear to influence purchasing decisions; and refrain from any private business or 

professional activity that might present a conflict of interest in making purchasing decisions on behalf 

of the Board.  

This policy shall generally apply to the District’s purchase of commodities and contractual services, 

except it shall not apply to: 

A. employment contracts; 

B. acquisition of architectural, engineering, landscape architectural, construction management at 

risk, registered surveying and mapping, or other services pursuant to Board Policy;  

C. acquisition of professional services as provided for in F.A.C. 6A-1.012(11)(a);  

D. contracts which are exempted, in whole or in part, from this policy’s requirements, as set forth 

below; 

E. proposals and agreements for public-private partnerships with private entities for qualifying 

projects pursuant to F.S. 255.065. 

1.   The Director Supervisor of Purchasing will be responsible for organizing and administering 

acquisitions for the district in accordance with responsibility and authority delegated by the District’s 

Superintendent, School Board and resultant policies.  The guidelines and procedures outlined in the 

Purchasing Handbook regarding of Centralized Purchasing approved by the School Board will be 

used by the District Purchasing Department in its conduct of business. 

 2.   Insofar, as possible or practical, all purchases from budgeted funds shall be based on requisitions.  

Each requisition shall be properly financed, budgeted, and encumbered prior to issuing a purchase 

order. Purchases of goods or services should not precede a requisition or purchase order, except in the 

event of an emergency as described below. Requisitions must be approved by either the Principal, the 

Department head Administrator or designee prior to issuance of the purchase order.  No person, 

unless authorized to do so under regulations of the Board, may make any purchase involving the use 

of school funds; no expenditures for unauthorized purchases will be approved for payment by the 

Board. 

3.   Purchase orders will be executed by the Director Supervisor of Purchasing.  A properly 

completed purchase order form is to be considered a contract for goods, services, supplies or 

equipment between the School Board and a qualified vendor.  The purchase order form is to be 

approved and signed by the Director  Supervisor of Purchasing or Superintendent.   Insofar as 

Page 733 of 1019

DRAFT



3 

 

possible or practical, no purchase order is to be mailed or issued until after it has been encumbered 

against budgeted funds.  Purchase orders are not required for salaries, utilities, and other similar items 

that are exempt by law or regulation.   

4.   When it is the most economical method, blanket Purchase orders will be used to procure items 

and services of a competitive and non-competitive nature.  A blanket purchase order is an  open  end  

a contract which designates one company as supplier for items frequently  needed  by  a  particular 

school/department.  The blanket purchase order in whole or in part, defines the terms, conditions, 

persons or departments authorized to use the blanket purchase order, delivery instructions and total 

dollar value for a specified period of time.  It is the intention of the School Board that the use of 

blanket purchase orders be limited. The Superintendent is authorized to issue purchase orders where 

the total amount does not exceed $500,000 that is in compliance with purchasing procedures and does 

not exceed the applicable appropriation in the District budget; 

A. In accordance with, but not limited to, State Contracts, Government Contract Awards, 

Cooperative Agreements,  

B. District and State adopted textbooks and/or instructional materials when such purchase is 

made in support or student instruction.  

C. Technology items such as but not limited to, desktops, laptops, tablets and other devices 

when such purchase is made in accordance with District technology standards.  

D. To fulfill the District’s obligation of an Approved Contract in accordance with Contract 

policy herein. 

5.   Except as authorized by law or rule, competitive solicitations shall be requested from three (3) or 

more reputable sources for any authorized commodities or contractual services exceeding $50,000 or 

more.  The School Board may not divide the procurement of commodities or contractual services so 

as to avoid this monetary threshold requirement. For expenditures less than $50,000 and when 

practical, quotations will be requested as follows:   

$150,000-$24,999 – informal quotes, e.g., documented telephone quotes or web search 

from 2 or more qualified vendors sources 

$25,000-$39,999 - written quotes from 3 or more qualified vendors sources 

$40,000 - formal written sealed quotes 

It shall be the responsibility of the Director Supervisor of Purchasing, with other qualified staff 

personnel, to recommend the lowest responsive and responsible proposers meeting specification and 

conditions of a competitive solicitation.  When a competitive solicitation other than the lowest 

competitive solicitation is being recommended, it will be the responsibility of the Director  

Supervisor of Purchasing to submit to the School Board the reasons for this recommendation. 

(Amended: 09/21/89, 02-17-94, 06-19-97; 10-19-00; 12/16/14) 

6.   In the event of tied or identical bids, preference shall be given to the bid which certifies that a 

drug-free workplace has been implemented in accordance with Section 287.087 F.S..  If all tied bids 

have a drug-free workplace program certification, then preference shall be given to the bidder whose 

business is physically located in Clay County, Florida.  If neither vendor is located in Clay County, 

Florida then preference shall be given to the bidder whose business is physically located in the State 

of Florida.  If more than one tied bidder is located in Clay County, Florida or if no tied bidder or 

more than one tied bidder is located in the State of Florida, the award of the tied bid shall be decided 

Page 734 of 1019

DRAFT



4 

 

by the flip of a coin in the presence of witnesses.  The coin flip shall be administered by the Director 

Supervisor of Purchasing who shall designate the calling of heads or tails. 

7.   The School Board shall have the authority to reject any or all competitive solicitations; request 

new competitive solicitations; award alternate competitive solicitations not meeting the general 

specifications set forth; award competitive solicitations on a per item or total competitive solicitation 

basis; or purchase the required commodities or contractual services in any other manner authorized 

by law or rule – whichever would be in the best interest of the School Board.  Competitive 

solicitation disputes will be resolved by following the procedures as outlined in the Purchasing 

Handbook of Procedures Regarding Centralized Purchasing/ Accounts Payable/Warehouse of the 

School Board. 

8.   The School Board will not, under any conditions, consider escalating prices at the time of the 

competitive solicitation or after the official time the competitive solicitation is awarded by the School 

Board unless the competitive solicitation document has a provision stating otherwise. 

9.   Exception to Competitive Bidding Requirements  

Notwithstanding anything in this policy to the contrary, the Board may make certain purchases 

without the requirement for competitive solicitations, under the following conditions: 

The requirement for requesting competitive solicitations and making purchases, insofar as they relate 

to purchases of petroleum and paper products, are hereby waived when the following conditions have 

been met: 

a.  Competitive solicitation have been requested in the manner prescribed, and 

b.  The School Board has made a finding that no valid or acceptable firm competitive 

solicitation has been received within the prescribed time. 

When such a finding has been officially made the School Board may authorize the Director 

Supervisor of Purchasing to negotiate with suppliers to execute a contract for such supplies under 

whatever terms and conditions are felt to be to in the best interest of the School Board. 

 

As required by 1001.42(102)(j), Florida Statutes, the School Board shall receive and give 

consideration to the prices available to it under rules of the Department of Management Services, 

Division of Purchasing. The School Board shall have the option of purchasing under the contracts as 

may be established, if such purchases are to the economic advantage of the School Board and meet 

the standards and specifications prescribed by the Superintendent. 

In lieu of requesting competitive solicitations from three (3) or more sources, the School Board may 

make purchases at or below the specified prices from contracts awarded by other city or county 

governmental agencies, other district school boards, community colleges, federal agencies, the public 

or governmental agencies of any state, or from state university system cooperative bid agreements 

and cooperative organizations/networks or contracts, when the proposer awarded a contract by 

another entity defined herein shall permit purchases by the School Board at the same terms, 

conditions and prices (or below such prices) awarded in such contracts, and such purchases are to the 

economic advantage of the School Board. 

A contract for commodities or contractual services may be awarded without competitive solicitations 

if state or federal law, a grant or a state or federal agency contract prescribes with whom the School 

Board must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the appropriations process. 

A contract for regulated utilities or government franchised services may be awarded without 

competitive solicitations. 

Page 735 of 1019

DRAFT



5 

 

The State Board has waived the requirement for requesting competitive solicitations from three (3) or 

more sources for purchases by the Board of: 

1. Professional services which shall include, without limitation, artistic services; 

academic program reviews; lectures by individuals; auditing services not subject to 

F.S. 218.391; legal services, including attorney, paralegal, expert witness, court 

reporting, appraisal or mediator services; and health services involving examination, 

diagnosis, treatment, prevention, medical consultation or administration; provided 

nothing herein shall be deemed to authorize the superintendent to acquire professional 

consultant services without Board approval as required by Board Policy 6540;  

2. Educational services and any type of copyrighted materials including, without 

limitation, educational tests, textbooks, printed instructional materials, computer 

software, films, filmstrips, videotapes, DVDs, disc or tape recordings, digital 

recordings, or similar audio-visual materials, and for library and reference books, and 

printed library cards where such materials are purchased directly from the producer or 

publisher, the owner of the copyright, an exclusive agent within the state, a 

governmental agency or a recognized educational institution; 

3. Commodities and contractual services when: 

a. competitive solicitations have been requested in the manner prescribed by this 

policy; and  

b. the Board has made a finding that no valid or acceptable firm proposal has 

been received within the prescribed time. 

When such a finding has been officially made, the Board may enter into negotiations with suppliers 

of such commodities and contractual services and may execute contracts with such vendors under 

whatever terms and conditions as the Board determines to be in its best interests 

 

Information technology resources, whether by purchase, lease, lease with option to purchase, rental, 

or otherwise as defined in F.S. 282.0041(11), may be acquired by competitive solicitation or by direct 

negotiation and contract with a vendor or supplier, as best fits the needs of the District as determined 

by the Board. 

Purchases of insurance, risk management programs, or contracting with third party administrators for 

insurance-related services may be through competitive solicitation or by direct negotiation and 

contract with a vendor or supplier. 

Commodities or contractual services available only from a single source may be exempted from the 

competitive solicitation requirements. When the Board believes that commodities or contractual 

services are available only from a single source, the Board will electronically post a description of the 

commodities or contractual services sought for a period of at least seven (7) business days. The 

description will include a request that prospective vendors provide information about their ability to 

supply the commodities or contractual services described. If it is determined in writing by the Board, 

after reviewing any information received from prospective vendors, that the commodities or 

contractual services are available only from a single source, the Board shall provide notice of its 

intended decision to enter a single source contract in the manner specified Section 120.57(3), F.S., 

and may negotiate on the best terms and conditions with the single source vendor. 

10.   An emergency purchase is defined as one brought about by a sudden unexpected turn of events 

(i.e. acts of God, riot, fires, floods, accidents, or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of the 

cost center head in the normal conduct of its business) involving health, welfare, injury, or loss to the 

Page 736 of 1019

DRAFT



6 

 

School Board, and which can be rectified only by immediate purchase of equipment, supplies, 

materials, or services.   When the Superintendent of Schools determines in writing that a bona fide 

emergency exists, he/she may authorize the purchase of equipment, supplies, materials or services 

without compliance with policies which impact spending limits, require requisitions, competitive 

solicitations or other preliminary measures leading to the issuance of a purchase order.   A confirming 

purchase order shall be issued for all purchases made under this heading.  The confirmation shall 

contain an explanation of the nature of the emergency. 

11.   It is the responsibility of each principal or department head, or their authorized representative, to 

acknowledge receipt of goods or services to their school or department immediately upon receipt, by 

signing and returning to the Accounts Payable Office the copy of the purchase order provided for that 

purpose.  Any discrepancy between the items specified in the purchase order and what is received 

shall be noted, in writing rejected and a note attached in Business Plus, by the principal or department 

head or authorized representative of the school.  Payments will not be made until the signed purchase 

order receiving copy is returned to the Accounts Payable Office. 

12.  No lease agreement shall exceed a period of twelve months; however, acquisitions by this 

method may be subject to a clause granting option to renew.  The School Board may not enter into a 

lease or lease/purchase agreement,  the  term of which exceeds one year, unless the agreement 

contains the stipulation, “ … subject to the availability of funds.”. 

11.  Contracts and Contractual Authority 

  

Each Board contract for services must include a provision that requires the contractor to comply with 

public records laws, specifically to: 

 

A. keep and maintain public records required by the Board to perform the service; 

B. upon request from the Board's custodian of public records, provide the Board with a copy of 

the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time, 

and at a cost that does not exceed the cost established by the School Board; 

C. ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the 

contract term and following completion of the contract if the contractor does not transfer the 

records of to the Board; 

D. upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the Board all public records in 

possession of the contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the Board to 

perform the service; 

If the contractor transfers all public records to the Board upon completion of the contract, the 

contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 

public records disclosure requirements. If the contractor keeps and maintains public records upon 

completion of the contract, the contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public 

records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the Board, upon request from the 

Board's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology 

systems of the Board. 

 

If a contractor does not comply with the Board's request for records, the Board shall enforce the 

contract provisions in accordance with the contract. A contractor who fails to provide the public 

records to the Board within a reasonable time may be subject to penalties under s. 119.10. 

 

Page 737 of 1019

DRAFT



7 

 

Each contract must also include the following statement, in substantially the following form, 

identifying the contact information of the District's custodian of public records: IF THE 
CONTRACTOR/VENDOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, OR ITS DUTY TO 
PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THE UNDERLYING 
CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR/VENDOR SHALL CONTACT THE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT’S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 900 WALNUT STREET, 
GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 32043, OR AT 904-336-6500, OR AT: 
PRR@myoneclay.net 
 

 

The Board shall constitute the contracting agent from the District school system (F.S. 1001.41). This 

policy defines the mandatory requirements for review, approval, and execution of agreements or 

contracts between the Board and vendors and/or service providers. 

 

A. Definition 

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that is intended to have 

legal effect. Contracts document the mutual understanding between the parties as to the terms 

and conditions of their agreement, contain mutual obligations, and clearly state the 

agreement's consideration. The term consideration includes the cost of the services and/or 

products to be provided by second party (vendor or service provider) and any non-monetary 

performance. No school, department, or other organizational unit has authority to contract in 

its own name. All Board contracts must be made in the legal name of the Board, "The School 

Board of Clay County, Florida". The School or Department may extend this name to include 

the school or department as follows, "The School Board of Clay County, Florida o/b/o 

________________ (insert the school or department name)" where o/b/o means "on behalf 

of". 

1.   Contracts for goods and/or services that are not part of a solicitation for an educational 

facility pursuant to F.S. Chapter 255 or Chapter 1013 must be in compliance with the 

competitive solicitation guidelines and procedures referenced herein. 

2.   Contracts for the construction and professional, construction management, or design-

build services under F.S. 287.055 or Chapter 1013 must be in compliance with the 

competitive solicitation guidelines and procedures referenced in Board Policy. 

  

B. Contract Review 

All contracts shall be reviewed and approved by the School Board Attorney and/or the 

Supervisor of Purchasing to ensure legality, compliance with Board policy, and to ensure the 

Board interests are protected before the authorized signatory may execute the contract. 

  

C. Board Authorized Contracts 

All contracts having a value of $100,000 or more shall be authorized by the Board at a regular 

or special meeting and signed by the Board Chairman. 

  

D. Delegated Authority 

Page 738 of 1019

DRAFT



8 

 

All approved contracts having a value of less than $100,000 and contracts described in Board 

Authorized Contracts above that are exempt from requirement for Board authorization, may 

be executed by the Superintendent or appropriate District administrator based on the value of 

the contract. 

  

1. All approved contracts having a value of $50,000 or more, but less than $100,000 

shall be signed by the Superintendent, or Superintendent Designee at the time. 

2. All approved contracts having a value of $25,000 or more, but less than $50,000, 

shall be signed by the Superintendent, or the Assistant Superintendent for Business 

Affairs. 

3. All approved contracts having a value of less than $25,000 and contracts of any value 

described in Board Authorized Contracts above that are exempt from the requirement 

for Board approval, may be signed by the Superintendent, or the Assistant 

Superintendent for their Division, or Chief Officers, or Director, or Principal. 

4. The Superintendent is authorized to approve contract amendments or change orders 

for the purchase of commodities and services up to the amount of ten (10) percent or 

$50,000, whichever is less, of the original contract amount that was previously 

approved by the Board.  

5. The Board will not recognize a contract or agreement as binding unless executed by 

an authorized employee in accordance with this policy. Vendors that enter into a 

contract are required to determine if the person purporting to execute a contract on 

behalf of the Board or the Board on behalf of a school or department is authorized to 

do so. Employees who enter into agreements without authority may be personally 

liable for such agreements, whether oral or written. Employees who enter into 

unauthorized agreements may be subject to disciplinary action. 

13.  12.  Petty cash funds will be established for the primary purpose of small day-to-day purchases 

and minor equipment repairs.  No equipment may be purchased using petty cash funds. 

14.  13.  Competitive solicitation, quotations, a list of vendors and one copy of all purchase orders 

issued or canceled will be maintained in the district’s purchasing office. 

15.  14.    The School Food Service Department will be responsible for the conformity of 

procurement and the accuracy and payment of invoices for food and materials purchased for that 

department.  

15. Procedures as outlined in the Purchasing Handbook shall be the authority for procurement. The 

policies as stated above will serve as supplemental policies to the Purchasing Manual Handbook. 

Florida Statutes, State Board of Education Rules, and Federal Regulations are the governing 

requirements complied with and, in the case of conflict, will take precedence over the Purchasing 

Handbook. 

16.  Federal Grants/Funds  

Procurement of all supplies, materials, equipment, and services paid for from Federal funds or 

District matching funds shall be made in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local 

statutes and/or regulations, the terms and conditions of the Federal grant, Board policies, and 

administrative procedures, including  all provisions contained in 2 CFR 200.316 through 2 CFR 

200.326. NOTE: In the event that state law is more restrictive than federal law, the District reserves 

the right to utilize and comply with the more restrictive state law.  

Page 739 of 1019

DRAFT



9 

 

The Superintendent shall maintain a procurement and contract administration system in accordance 

with the USDOE requirements (2 C.F.R. 200.317-.326) for the administration and management of 

Federal grants and Federally-funded programs.  The District shall maintain a contract administration 

system that requires contractors to perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and 

specifications of their contracts or purchase orders.  Except as otherwise noted, procurement 

transactions shall conform to the provisions of the District’s documented general Purchasing Policy 

in Section 5.02 Business Affairs.  

General Procurement Standards  

The District will implement the provisions of 2 CFR 200.318 and will use its own documented 

procurement standards which reflect applicable state and local standards, ensuring that said standards 

conform with applicable federal laws.  

District shall maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the 

The District shall maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing 

the performance of its employees engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts.  

To foster greater economy and efficiency, the District may enter into State and local 

intergovernmental agreements where appropriate for procurement or use of common or shared goods 

and services.   

Competition  

All procurement transactions paid for from Federal funds or District matching funds shall be 

conducted in a manner that encourages full and open competition and that is in accordance with good 

administrative practice and sound business judgment.  In order to promote objective contractor 

performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, the District shall exclude any contractor 

that has developed or drafted specifications, requirements, statements of work, or invitations for bids 

or requests for proposals from competition for such procurements.  

The District shall not use statutorily or administratively imposed State, local, or tribal geographical 

preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except when an applicable Federal statute 

expressly mandates or encourages a geographic preference; or the District is contracting for 

architectural and engineering services, in which case geographic location may be a selection criterion 

provided its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given the nature and size of 

the project, to compete for the contract. In the instance where state law requires local preferences, the 

District shall follow state law.  

If the District uses a pre-qualified list of persons, firms, or products to acquire goods and services that 

are subject to this policy, the pre-qualified list shall include enough qualified sources as to ensure 

maximum open and free competition.  The District shall allow vendors to apply for consideration to 

be placed on the list annually.  

All terms of 2 C.F.R. 200.318 shall be followed.  

Procurement Methods  

The District shall utilize the following methods of procurement:   

A. Micro-purchases:    

Procurement by micro-purchase is the acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount 

of which does not exceed the micro-purchase threshold in C.F.R. 200, as amended.  The District shall 

Page 740 of 1019

DRAFT



10 

 

distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers.  Micro-purchases may be made 

without soliciting competitive quotations if Superintendent considers the price to be reasonable.    

B. Small Purchases:    

Small purchase procedures are relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing 

services, supplies, and other property that does not exceed the competitive bid threshold of $50,000.  

Small purchase procedures require that price or rate quotations shall be obtained from an adequate 

number of qualified sources.  

C. Sealed Bids:    

Sealed, competitive bids shall be obtained when the purchase of, and contract for, single items of 

supplies, materials, or equipment which amounts to $50,000 and when the Board determines to build, 

repair, enlarge, improve, or demolish a school building/facility the cost of which will exceed $50,000.   

In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions shall be present:   

1. A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available;  

2. Two (2) or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the 

business; and  

3. The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the 

successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price.  

When sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply:  

1. Bids shall be solicited in accordance with the provisions of State law and District. Bids 

shall be solicited from an adequate number of qualified suppliers, providing sufficient 

response time prior to the date set for the opening of bids.  The invitation to bid shall be 

publicly advertised.   

2. The invitation for bids will include product/contract specifications and pertinent 

attachments and shall define the items and/or services required in order for the bidder to 

properly respond.   

3. All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids; bids 

will be opened publicly.  

4. A firm fixed price contract award will be made in writing to the lowest responsible 

bidder.  Where specified in bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation 

cost, and life cycle costs shall be considered in determining which bid is lowest.  

Payment discounts may only be used to determine the low bid when prior experience 

indicates that such discounts are usually taken.   

5. The Board reserves the right to reject any or all bids for sound documented reason.  

 

D. Competitive Proposals  

Procurement by competitive proposal is normally conducted with more than one source submitting an 

offer and is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids.   

If this method is used, the following requirements apply:   

1. Requests for proposals shall be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and their 

relative importance.  Any response to the publicized requests for proposals shall be 

considered to the maximum extent practical.  

2. Proposals shall be solicited from an adequate number of sources.  

Page 741 of 1019

DRAFT



11 

 

3. The District shall use its written method for conducting technical evaluations of the 

proposals received and for selecting recipients   

4. Contracts shall be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is most advantageous 

to the program, with price and other factors considered.  

5. The District may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based 

procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services whereby 

competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected, 

subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation.  The method, where price is 

not used as a selection factor, can only be used in procurement of A/E professional 

services.  It cannot be used to purchase other types of services though A/E firms are a 

potential source to perform the proposed effort.  

 

E. Noncompetitive Proposals  

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals allows for solicitation of a proposal from only one source 

and may be used only when one or more of the following circumstances apply:   

1. The item is available only from a single source  

2. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting 

from competitive solicitation  

3. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes noncompetitive 

proposals in response to a written request from the District  

4. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined to be inadequate.    

 Small and Minority Businesses, Women’s Businesses and Labor Surplus area Firms  

 The District shall take affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business 

enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.321.  

Contract/Price Analysis  

 In compliance with 2 CFR 200.323, the District shall perform a cost or price analysis in connection 

with every procurement action in excess of the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, including contract 

modifications.  Cost analysis is defined as evaluating the separate cost elements that make up the total 

price; price analysis is defined as evaluating the total price, without looking at the individual cost 

elements.  

The method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular procurement 

situation; however, the District shall come to an independent estimate prior to receiving bids or 

proposals.  

The District shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price.  To establish a fair and 

reasonable profit, consideration is given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne 

by the contractor, the contractor’s investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record 

of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work.   

Awarding Agency Review  

Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.324, the District shall make available, upon request of the awarding agency or 

pass through agency, technical specifications on proposed procurements where the awarding or pass 

through agency believes such review is needed.  

Bonding Requirements  

For construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts exceeding the Simplified  

Page 742 of 1019

DRAFT



12 

 

Acquisition Threshold, in the event that the awarding agency or pass through agency has not accepted 

the Districts bonding policies, the District shall ensure that the minimum requirements of 2 CFR 

200.325 are followed regarding bid guarantees, performance bonds and payment bonds.  

Maintenance of Procurement Records  

The District shall maintain records sufficient to detail the history of all procurements, including 

records which reflect rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor 

selection, or rejection, and the basis for the contract price.  

Legal  

(Amended: 11/18/03, 12/16/14) FL Statutes Chapter 1001:  1001.41, 120:  120.54, 120.536, 287; 

DOE Rule 6A-1.012  

Code of Federal Regulations: 2 CFR 200.316; 2 CFR 200.317; 2 CFR 200.318; 2 CFR 200.319; 2  

CFR 200.320; 2 CFR 200.321;  2 CFR 200.322; 2 CFR 200.323; 2 CFR 200.324; 2 CFR 200.325; 2 

CFR 200.326   

 

F.S. 119.0701    F.S. 255.05    F.S. 255.0516    F.S. 255.0518   F.S. 287.084    F.S. 287.087 

F.S. 287.132    F.S. 287.133    F.S. 295.187    F.S. 1001.43    F.S. 1010.04    F.S. 1010.07(2) 

F.S. 1010.48    

F.A.C. 6A-1.012, Purchasing Policies 

F.A.C. 5P-1.003, Responsibilities for the School Food Service Program 

  

Page 743 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 744 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 745 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 746 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 747 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 748 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 749 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 750 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 751 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 752 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 753 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 754 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 755 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2020-2021

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2020-2021 school year. 
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
To be determined.

Review Comments

Attachments

Allocation Summary - June 25, 2020.pdf

Page 756 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/allocation-summary-june-25-2020.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS 

 2020-2021 SUMMARY

Board Meeting, June 25, 2020

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2020-2021 ACTIONS

General Funds

FIE-0521 1.00 Administrative Support Assistant, 11-Month Program Needs ($21,319) ($6,193) ($27,512)

FIE-0521 1.00 Student Records Secretary, 12-Month Program Needs $24,180 $7,024 $31,204

TOTAL: $2,861 $831 $3,692

Pending Board Approval 6/25/2020

Page 757 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Approve Advertisement and Notice of Public Hearing for Revisions to the Clay County District Schools Use of
Facilities/Use of Grounds Manual

Description
The purpose of this item is to update specified sections within the CCDS Use of Facilities/Use of Grounds Manual to clarify the
requirements of the use of facilities and grounds by outside organizations and groups and to define when, by whom, and under
what terms such use is allowable.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes
None

Expected Outcomes
Approve the CCSB  Use of Facilities/Use of Grounds  Manual

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources

Recommendation
To obtain the School Board's approval and acceptance of the revised Internal Accounts Manual as presented

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs 336-6721  Susan.Legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

NEW Application-Agreement - Updated 6-2020 (7).pdf

Approval to Advertise Notice of Public Hearing Use of Facilities & Grounds Manual.pdf

Page 758 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/new-application-agreement-updated-6-2020-7.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-notice-of-public-hearing-use-of-facilities-grounds-manual.pdf


 
  

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

A complete guide to the rental of Clay County District properties 
 
 
 

Use of 
Facilities & 
Grounds 
Manual 

Updated: 06/04//2020 Page 759 of 1019

DRAFT



1 | P a g e  
  

 

School District of Clay County 
Application for Use of Facilities &/or Grounds 

Applicant Information 

Contact Name:    Title:  

 Last First    

Organization Name:     

Address:   

 Street Address  

    

 City State ZIP Code 

Primary Phone:  Email:  

Secondary Phone:  Email:  

 

Date(s) of Use:  Sun 
 

Mon 
 

Tue 
 

Wed 
 

Thu 
 

Fri 
 

Sat 
 

Time(s) requested: From              AM PM 

If multiple dates,   please attach schedule Times must include set-up, tear-down,& 
clean-up To                   AM PM 

 

Activity/Function:     

 Club meeting, Athletic Game, Dinner, Camp, etc.   (Attach advertisements and/or flyers)    

Facility Location:     

 School Name, Professional Development Center, Teacher Training Center, Multi-Purpose Room    

Room/Bldg/Area:     

 Portable, Classroom, Cafeteria (kitchen not included), Kitchen, Media Center, Gym, track, field, etc.       

Equipment/Furniture:     

 List all onsite furnishings and equipment needs you are requesting    

 

Will food and/or beverages be offered/sold? 

YES 
 

NO 
 Will you need A/C or Heat for this event? 

YES 
 

NO 
 

Will tickets be sold for entry to this event 

YES 
 

NO 
 

If yes,                          Price for Adult? 
                              Price for Students? 

     $ 
     $ 

Will you be bringing in any equipment, furniture, 
wall hangings, etc.? 

YES 
 

NO 
  

   List and describe equipment, etc. being brought in for event use 

User must complete & submit this application to the facility Administrator at least 10 business days prior to an event, to be given timely consideration for use. 

Application Acknowledgement & Promise 
Applicant understands that this application is subject to approval and availability.  If the application is approved, applicant will need to sign and agree to 
all terms as outlined in the Use Agreement (exhibit A), all terms as set forth in School Board Policy, timely payment of fees/charges, and comply with all 
of the District’s insurance requirements. 
 

Applicant Signature:    Date:  
 

Facility Administrator 
Approval of Use: 

YES 
 

NO 
 Signature:  Date:  

Organization Type:   Tax Exempt Cert #  

 Church, HOA, Athletic, Private, Student, etc.   If claiming exemption 

Page 760 of 1019

DRAFT



2 | P a g e  
  

Exhibit A – Use Agreement & Fees (page 1 of 2) 

This Agreement made between the SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY (hereinafter referred to as the "Board") and 
_________________________  (hereinafter referred to as "User") ; In consideration of the following mutual promises and 
conditions, the Board and User agree as follows:  

1. The Board grants to the User the temporary use of the facilities described on the Application for Use of Facilities &/or Grounds, 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Application") attached hereto and made a part hereof for the purposes, dates, and times set forth on 
said application. Such use shall be in conformance with and subject to the Board's Policies, any Administrative Regulations developed 
pursuant to such policy, and School/Facility policies at each individual location. 

2. User shall conform to the general conditions of use set forth in this Agreement and the additional conditions of use, and other matters, 
if any, set forth in the Application.  

3. The Board prohibits User and any outside agencies from using the Board’s name, school name, mascots, logos, or any Board 
images, to imply connection to, or endorsement of User or their activities without express written consent and prior approval of its 
presentation. 

4. This Agreement shall be deemed dated, and become effective, as of the date on which a duly authorized representative of the Board 
executes this Agreement, provided such date of execution is later than the date on which the User executes this Agreement.  

5. This Agreement shall not be assignable or transferable in any manner without the express written consent of the Board.  

6. This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the Board and the User.  

7. The parties of this agreement acknowledge and agree that this agreement shall not be exclusive in any respect. 

8. The User agrees to provide at its expense general liability coverage under an occurrence basis policy, with minimum limits of 
$I,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 or more in aggregate, combined single limit covering bodily injury, property damage, 
personal injury, premises, operations, products, completed operations, independent contractors, and contractual liability. There shall 
be no exclusions for contracted liability. Coverage must be written by a carrier which has and maintains a rating of "A-" or better. The 
School Board of Clay County, Florida, shall be named as Certificate Holder and Additional Insured for claims arising out of any and all 
facility use under this policy and that the insurance is not cancelable without first giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Board.  

9. The User fully understands, acknowledges and appreciates that despite the Board’s best reasonable efforts to mitigate all hea lth and 
safety risks, there are known, unknown, and potential dangers while utilizing the Board’s facilities, services, equipment, personnel, 
etc. The dangers include, but are not limited to, the potential exposure, contraction, spreading, and infection of diseases and viruses. 

10. User hereby agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Board, its agents, and employees, from and against any and all losses, 
claims demands, penalties, judgments, court costs, attorneys' fees and liabilities of every other kind and nature in connection with, 
arising from, or related to User's use of the Board's facility, occupancy of the subject premises, installation, operation or maintenance 
of any fixtures or equipment in or upon the demised premises, or any negligence or fault of the User in failing to control, monitor or 
supervise any activity on the premises during the term of the lease of the premises hereunder.  

11. Notwithstanding any other provision in this agreement, the User agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Board from and against 
any and all losses, claims, demands, penalties, judgments, court costs, attorneys' fees and liabilities of every kind and nature 
whatsoever which may arise as a result of any employee, agent, member, guest, invitee, licensee or volunteer of the User causing 
any harm or violating any rights of the Board, or its agents, employees, or any student, parent, guardian, invitee, licensee, visitor or 
guest on or about the premises of any Board facility or who may otherwise be injured, including but not limited to injury to any civil 
right protected by law, as a result of or during any use of the facility by the User.  

12. User will include language in its advertising, permission slips, waivers, etc. that expressly notifies and explains that the The School 
Board of Clay County, its agents, entities, and employees are not connected to the User’s activities and that the Board shall be 
released and held harmless from liabilities of every kind and nature in connection with, arising from, or related to User's use of the 
Board's facility. 

13. The User agrees that it will cooperate with the Board, school principal, or designee (of either of them) when any of said Board 
representatives shall direct the User to remove any employee, agent, member, guest, invitee or licensee of the User from the facility. 
Such direction to remove may be given at the sole discretion of the Board or its designee so long as the Board or its designee has 
required the removal in the interest of the educational program, or the safety, health, welfare or security of any student, parent, 
guardian, guest, invitee, licensee, employee or agent of the Board, or the security and/or safety of the facility.  

14. Risk of any loss to User's property shall be entirely upon User. User may not store any equipment, material or other matter in Board's 
facilities without express written approval from the Board or designee.  

15. No equipment, material or other matter, which presents a health or safety hazard to persons or property, may be brought upon the 
Board's facility. The use of open flames, makeshift electrical wiring, flammable and/or caustic materials (and the like) are prohibited.  

16. The use of any form of tobacco (including “vape” products), illegal drugs, liquor, profane language, obscene materials or acts, 
gambling or violence are prohibited.  

17. Food or beverages may not be used without express written approval from the Board or designee.  

18. User is not permitted to utilize stoves, ovens, microwave ovens, hot plates or any devices which have the potential to cause a fire on 
Board property.  

19. Electrical equipment shall not be operated without express written approval from the Board. 

20. Equipment, material, or other matter owned by the Board may not be used or removed without written approval from the Board.  

21. Users, their agents, and their guest should have no expectations of Privacy while using the Board property.  

22. All equipment, material, and other matter brought upon the facility by User shall be removed and the facility cleaned up and restored 
to the condition in which it was provided prior to the end of agreed use, unless the Board or designee expressly approves other 
arrangements in writing. At the Board’s discretion, and to safeguard the health and safety of all who enter or use our facilities, 
additional charges may be assessed for after-event deep cleaning and sanitation. 

Page 761 of 1019

DRAFT



3 | P a g e  
  

Exhibit A – Use Agreement & Fees (page 2 of 2) 
1. The Board requires an SBCC employee’s presence for entry, additional supervision, and to ensure User's compliance with this 

Agreement. A Police Officer may be deemed appropriate for the protection of the facility and other Board property. Every effort will be 
made by the site administrator to secure personnel for an approved event, but the Board and its entities do not and cannot accept 
responsibility for employees’ lack of participation, willingness or availability for supervision. 

2. Additionally, User shall at all times provide sufficient self-supervision of its activities to ensure compliance with this Agreement. 

3. Use of a facility may be terminated by the Board in the event of any emergency, force majeure, User’s breach of Agreement, or in the 
event that the facility is required for any Board or educational program, which cannot reasonably, be held at another time and place.  

4. All persons using the Board's facility pursuant to the Agreement shall confine themselves to the area of the facility for which temporary 
use has been granted to User. 

5. At no time shall the maximum capacity of the facility space be exceeded.  

6. Pursuant to Section 790.06(12)(a), Florida Statutes, it is illegal for non-law enforcement officers to bring weapons onto SBCC property 
(even w/ concealed permit). 

7. User will comply with all Federal, State, and Local laws, including any/all taxes payable to the government. 

8. The User agrees that if the standard fee schedule changes during the period for use reserved hereunder, that any increased fees 
shall be due and payable at the time they become effective.  

9. Prior to use of Board's facilities, User shall pay to Board the fees set forth in the Use Agreement & Fees. All payments will be made 
payable to “The School Board of Clay County” and received no less than five (5) business days prior to use. 

10. User warrants that all information, including attachments to Application, and other statements or materials that User may have given 
the Board in connection with the Application, and subsequent Use Agreement, described is true, complete and correct.  

School Administrator/District Site Location Manager shall enter fees per Board approved pricing guide 

Applicant/Organization name:     

School/Location of Event:  Event Type:  

 

Building/Room Event Dates Event Times Total Hours Fees/Rate 

       

       

       

Grounds Use       

       

       

District Personnel       

       

       

Utility/Equip Rental       

       

       

       

Sales tax will be collected at a rate of 7% as required by law unless a valid tax-exempt certificate is provided 
 

. 

Taxes  

Total  

 

Notes or Special Instructions:  

  

  

Applicant signature denotes total agreement to all terms, conditions, notes, and fees assigned in Exhibit A (pages 1 & 2). 

Applicant Signature:    Date:  

Principal or Location Rep:  Title/Location  Date:  

 

Superintendent/Designee 
Approval of Use: 

YES 
 

NO 
 Signature:  Date:  

Page 762 of 1019

DRAFT



4 | P a g e  
  

Exhibit B – Use Rental Fees (page 1 of 3) 

The groups identified under each User Group are provided as examples and are not intended to be an exclusive 
list. The types of fees assessed for each group are also listed but subject to review and approval.  

User Group 1 - School Groups  

User Group 1 includes organizations that serve the students, parents, and teachers of the Clay County School District. User Group 1 
applicants are not required to pay for use, utilities or personnel costs; the only exception to this would be when a school employee is 
required to work overtime to accommodate another schools use or when any of the district's personnel are required to hire additional 
staff to support a school function. In this case, the School or organization seeking use is responsible to reimburse these costs to the 
facility being used.  

School Approved Clubs/Activities PTA/SAC Meetings Booster Clubs 

District In-Service Workshops School Directed FHSAA Activities See Group 3 Exemptions 

     
Fees Required: 

 • Salary/Benefits  

User Group 2 - School Related Groups  

User Group 2 consists of students, employees or parents who are participating in an activity that does not directly relate to school 
activities but enhances the school or provides a definite educational service to the students of that school. Youth Organizations are 
defined as secular and non-secular organizations that provide moral and character development programs that are consistent with the 
Clay County School District’s character development curriculum. This Group is responsible to pay all required utility fees and school 
personnel costs when the use takes place outside the normal hours of operation.  

Youth Organizations Boy/Girls Scouts of America Teachers Assoc. 

Board of County Commissioners Soccer Clubs Little League 

Charter Schools 4-H Clubs Boys/Girls Club 

 
Fees Required: 

• Utility Fees  
• Salary/Benefits Costs  
• Sales Tax  

User Group 3 - Non-Profit Organizations  

User Group 3 consists of local civic, fraternal, and governmental and community oriented groups whose sole purpose is providing a 
service for students and parents of the community. This Group is responsible to pay all required school personnel and utility costs when 
the use takes place outside the normal hours of operation. 

Activities exempted include: town meetings sponsored by a municipality, voter precincts and public hearings. These exempt 
activities are assessed at a User Group I level.  

City/County Parks & Rec. HOAs Grant Funded Tutoring/Enrichment 

Church Groups Town Hall Meetings Public Hearings 

 
Fees Required: 

• Facility Use Fee  
• Utility Fees  
• Salary/Benefits Costs  
• Equipment Use Fees 
• Sales Tax  

User Group 4 - For-Profit  

User Group 4 includes those citizens, associations, clubs or other organizations who wish to use school facilities for commercial, for-
profit purposes.  

Fees Required: 
• Facility Use Fee  
• Utility Fees  
• Salary/Benefits Costs  
• Equipment Use Fees 
• Sales Tax 

Page 763 of 1019

DRAFT



5 | P a g e  
  

Exhibit B – Use Rental Fees (page 2 of 3) 

FACILITY OR GROUNDS REQUESTED FEES CALCULATION UNITS 

CAFETORIUM w/o STAGE (kitchen rental not included) $60.00 Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum  

CAFETORIUM w/ STAGE (kitchen rental not included) $70.00 Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum 

CLASSROOM  $50.00 Flat fee - single occurrence up to 4 hours 

GYMNASIUM w/ Bleachers $100.00 Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum 

GYMNASIUM w/o Bleachers $80.00 Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum 

KITCHEN USE (only)(must include SBCC staff) $20.00 Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum (add kitchen staff pricing) 

MEDIA CENTER  $60.00  Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum 

PORTABLE CLASSROOM $40.00 Flat fee - single occurrence up to 4 hours 

FOOTBALL STADIUM W/ LIGHTING $200.00 Flat fee - single occurrence up to 6 hours (does not include access to 
concession stands) 

FOOTBALL STADIUM W/0 LIGHTING $160.00 Flat fee – single occurrence up to 6 hours (does not include access 
to concession stands) 

BASEBALL FIELD  W/ FIELD LIGHTS $160.00 Flat fee – single occurrence up to 6 hours (does not include access 
to concession stands) 

BASEBALL FIELD W/O FIELD LIGHTS $120.00 Flat fee – single occurrence up to 6 hours (does not include access 
to concession stands) 

PARKING LOT ONLY $30.00 Per hour – lighting  recommended from dusk to 1 hour post event 
(see Utilities for lighting pricing) 

USE OF IMMEDIATE AREA RESTROOMS 

(price covers consumables & refuse)(if restocking & 
garbage changes are required, you must order custodial 
services) 

Not available with Parking Lot Only 

$0.00 

$10.00 

$20.00 

+$10.00 

0-30 people at event (included) 

31-100 people at event (per 4 hr event)($5 ea hr. after) 

100-200 people at event (per 4 hr event)($10 ea hr. after) 

for each additional 100 people (or part thereof/per 4 hr event) 

 

Due to safety and security issues, an authorized/paid SBCC employee (as designated by the Principal or Board designee) must be present for 
all Facility Use events to monitor and ensure the security of buildings.  

When deemed necessary, a member of law enforcement may also be required for events/functions.  If the available law enforcement officer is 
a SBCC employee, the custodial/other employee may be waived.  This waiver does not include required Food Service Employees when Kitchens 
are used. 

PERSONNEL REQUIRED FEES CALCULATION UNITS 

CUSTODIAL SERVICES (includes services) $40.00 Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum  

FOOD SERVICES (req. for access to kitchen) $30.00 Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum 

SBCC EMPLOYEE (monitor only) $30.00 Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum (no custodial services included) 

LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES (as required by policy) $50.00 Per hour w/ 3 hour minimum 

IT/AUDIO-VISUAL/LIGHTING (w/ equip rental) $50.00 Per hour w/ 2 hour minimum 

 

UTILITIES/EQUIPMENT FEES CALCULATION UNITS 

PARKING LOT LIGHTING $20.00 Per hour (recommended from dusk to 1 hour post event)  

OUTDOOR FACILITY LIGHTING $10.00 Per hour (recommended from dusk to 1 hour post event) 

SCOREBOARD $40.00 Flat fee (proper personnel or training required) 

STAGE LIGHTING/AUDIO-VISUAL/ETC. $40.00 Flat fee (may require IT/AV personnel) 

Page 764 of 1019

DRAFT



6 | P a g e  
  

Exhibit B – Use Rental Fees (page 3 of 3) 

Sales Tax - A 7.0% Sales Tax is charged on the following fees: rental, facility use, utilities, equipment and supplies, unless an 

organization provides a copy of a valid Florida Sales Tax Certificate of Exemption to Risk Management. NOTE: A Federal Tax 
Exemption number does not apply to State of Florida Sales Tax Exemption.  

Security and Damage Deposit - Users may be required to pay a Security and Damage Deposit at the discretion of the Site 
Administrator. A Security and Damage Deposit of 50% of the TOTAL FEE may be required for first time users and user groups larger 
than one hundred in attendance. A Security and Damage Deposit of 100% of the TOTAL FEE for previous users may be required 
based on past damage occurring during their contract. The School will provide receipts to the organization for proof of repairs or 
replacements.  

Law Enforcement Services – Law enforcement services will be required for events expecting more than 30 people, all sporting 

events, and where deemed necessary by Administration. 

Insurance and Indemnification - Unless stated otherwise users shall provide a certificate of insurance evidencing general liability 
coverage under an occurrence basis policy, with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 or more in aggregate, 
combined single limit covering bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, premises, operations, products, completed operations, 
independent contractors, and contractual liability. There shall be no exclusions for contracted liability. Coverage must be written by a 
carrier that has and maintains a rating of "A-" or better according to A.M. Best Company.  

The School Board of Clay County, Florida, shall be named as Certificate Holder and Additional Insured for claims arising out of any and 
all facility use under this policy. . All governmental users shall provide evidence of insurance or self-insurance to the limits set forth in 
F.S 768.28 except as prohibited by F.S. 768.28(18). All users shall agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the School Board of 
Clay County, Florida, and its employees for any expense, cost, loss, damage claim, judgment or claims bill incurred or rendered against 
same, including attorneys' fees and investigation expenses (pre-suit, suit, trial, appeal, and post appeal proceedings) on account of any 
intentional or negligent acts or omissions of the user or its employees, agents or servants.  

Outstanding Balances - Agencies or organizations with outstanding balances greater than 30 days shall not be permitted to lease 
facilities until the balance is reconciled. Past due notices will be mailed out and Schools will be notified of those groups that have not 
paid.  

Corrected or Changed Invoices - Corrections, cancellations or changes for existing charges must be verified by the School's Facility 
Use contact person and sent via e-mail to Risk Management. Adjustments must be made for any event within 30 days of the 
occurrence.  

Fees & Fee Waivers - School Groups requesting the use of their own facility will not be charged any fees. School Groups requesting 
the "Cross Use of Schools" will be charged the Personnel Costs when a school employee is required to work or hire additional staff to 
accommodate another school’s use. School Related Groups requesting the use of a facility will be responsible to pay all required school 
personnel costs and utility fees when the use takes place outside the normal hours of operation.  

Use Fees for Non-Profit Groups may be reduced or waived by the Site Administrator; however, items under Utility Fees and Personnel 
Costs cannot be waived or reduced. Rental Fees for For-Profit Groups may be reduced by the Site Administrator, but must be approved 
in advance by the Superintendent, his/her designee, or the Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs; however, items under Utility 
Fees and Personnel Costs cannot be waived or reduced. Groups with other agreements with the School Board will follow the rules 

outlined in that agreement and may not be bound by these pricing rules (all other rules may apply). 

COVID 19 REQUIREMENTS 

Cleaning and Disinfecting – Due to the recent pandemic the District must rely on its trained Custodians and/or Maintenance 

Employees for the cleaning and disinfecting of our property.  The Principal or Site Manager will determine an estimated timeframe 
based on Use as applied for. The Board employee’s pay and mandatory cleaning products will be added to cost of Use. However, if 
additional time is required, User will be billed the reasonable addition accordingly. 

SAFETY AND SECURITY UPDATE 

No Keys – For the safety of our students and employees as well as the security of our campuses/buildings/etc. keys cannot be 
checked out and will not be provided to outside organizations. 

 

  

Page 765 of 1019

DRAFT



7 | P a g e  
  

Exhibit C – Expanded Standard for Use & Rentals of Facilities (1 of 2) 

1. Public school facilities may be used for Non-School Purposes in accordance with the following provisions:  

a. Each user/applicant of public school facilities may make application for use in the administrative office of the 
requested facility. Each user/applicant of public school facilities may access and complete the lease application 
(available on the District’s website under Business Affairs/Risk Management/ Facility Usage) and submit the 
completed application and related back-up information to the requested facility.  

b. Upon receiving an Application for Use of Facility or Grounds, the school principal or facility administrator shall 
determine if the requested use conflicts with school programs (such as extracurricular school activities or other 
previously scheduled activities). If the school principal or facility administrator approves the use of the facility on 
the date requested, they should forward the approved & completed application, with necessary back-up, to the 
Superintendent’s designee for final approval or denial.  

c. Payment for Use of Facility or Grounds should be submitted to the Business Affairs Department with a copy of the 
approved Agreement, no later than five days prior to the event. 

d. An employee of the School Board, approved by the school Principal or facility manager, must be available to 
open, close and monitor the public school facility throughout the meeting, event, or program. Use of public school 
facilities will be denied if school district staff is unavailable.  

2. The Superintendent or designee shall review the Fee Schedule periodically (no less than annually), and any changes 
to the Fee Schedule shall be recommended to the School Board for approval.  

3. Government Organizations: 

a. On School Days during the normal operational hours when custodial staff is present, Government Organizations 
shall be exempt from the payment of Rental Fees, Custodial Costs and Utilities Costs. However, Government 
Organizations shall pay Consumable Items Costs. 

b. After School Hours or on Non-School Days when custodial staff presence is required, Government Organizations 
shall pay Custodial Costs, Consumable Items Costs, Utilities Costs and Personnel Costs, as incurred including, 
without limitation, any required security.  

c. Regardless of school days, normal operational hours, after school hours, or non-school days, Government 
Organizations that charge participants for activities shall pay Rental Fees, Custodial Costs, Utilities Costs and 
Personnel Costs as incurred, including, without limitation, any required security.  

d. All fees shall be based on the current established Fee Schedule (appended to this Policy as Exhibit B).  

e. This Policy is not applicable if a separate agreement exists between the School Board and another governmental 
entity for the use of school facilities. Those agreements shall stand upon their own terms. 

4. Non-Profit Corporation or Section 501 (c) (3) Organization 

a. An entity which represents itself as a Non-Profit Corporation and is registered and recognized as a Non-profit 
Corporation in the State of Florida, shall fulfill the Lease Application requirements, all insurance requirements set 
forth in this Policy, and submit a copy of its State of Florida issued Certificate of Status (or State of Florida 
document(s) confirming status as a Non-Profit Corporation) prior to each and every use of public school facilities  

b. A Section 501 (c) (3) Organization shall fulfill the Lease Application requirements, all insurance requirements set 
forth in this Policy, and provide a copy of its approved IRS Section 501 (c) (3) certificate (or document(s) issued 
by the IRS confirming status as a Section 501 (c) (3) Organization) prior to each and every use of public school 
facilities.  

c. On School Days, a Non -Profit Corporation or a Section 501 (c) (3) Organization shall pay nominal charges for 
electricity and administrative costs, Consumable Items Costs, as listed in the Fee Schedule, and Personnel 
Costs, as incurred including security, but shall be exempt from the payment of Rental Fees and Custodial Costs.  

d. During After School Hours or on Non-School Days, a Non -Profit Corporation or a Section 501 (c) (3) Organization 
shall also pay Rental Fees, Custodial Costs, Utilities Costs and Personnel Costs, as incurred including, without 
limitation, any required security.  

e. All fees shall be based on the current established Fee Schedule. In addition, any use of equipment shall be 
subject to Rental Fees.  

 

 

Page 766 of 1019

DRAFT



8 | P a g e  
  

5. Exhibit C – Expanded Standard for Use & Rentals of Facilities (2 of 2) 

6. Other Organizations:  

1) Other Organizations shall fulfill all Lease Application and insurance requirements necessary for each use of 
public school facilities.  

7. On School Days, Other Organizations shall pay Rental Fees, Utilities Costs and any Personnel Costs that are 
incurred including, without limitation, any required security, or additional custodial staff.  

8. During After School Hours or on Non-School Days, when custodial staff presence is required, Other Organizations 
shall pay Rental Fees, Custodial Costs, Utilities Costs and any Personnel Costs as incurred including, without 
limitation, any required security.  

9. All fees are based on the current established Fee Schedule (appended to this Policy as Exhibit B).  

10. This Policy may not apply to vendors who are awarded contracts as a result of a Request for Proposal (RFP) process 
issued by the School Board including, but not limited to, any entities that provide before and after school child care or 
before and after tutorials, etc. Any use of public school facilities by such entities shall be governed by the specific 
contracts or agreements existing between such entities and the School Board.  

11. The school principal or facility administrator shall require the use of regular food service workers when fixed kitchen 
equipment is used in connection with food, service and clean-up during use of a public school facility rental. The 
group or organization shall pay the cost of the food service worker(s) involved, according to the adopted rate 
schedule.   

12. All checks for rental of public school facilities, as well as for payment of on-site services shall be made payable to the 
School Board of Clay County. Organizations must prepay all Rental Fees before being given access to public school 
facilities. However, if the rental period is greater than one month, facility lease cost shall be paid on a monthly basis.  

13. Parties can only enter into leases up to one (1) year and will require renewal each new fiscal year (July 1 – June 30).  

14. Any group or organization that intends to charge students and/or adults for any type of service/activity during the 
usage of public school facilities/equipment must provide the School Board with a letter addressed to the 
Superintendent stating that the organization will report to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) all salaries and 
applicable taxes.  Additionally they will report all fees exceeding $600.00 paid to any School Board employees, a copy 
of which will be provided to the IRS by the School Board. 

15. INSURANCE The user of public school facilities shall be financially responsible for all liability and property damage 
incurred during its use of facilities, if such damage occurs as a result of its use subject to applicable law. The user of a 
public school facility must furnish a Certificate of Insurance to the Risk Management Department of the School Board 
at least seven (10) working days prior to the use of the public school facilities, and the Certificate of Insurance must 
contain the criteria as noted in Exhibit B, 9. The user of a public school facility is required to notify the School District 
immediately if the above referenced insurance coverages are cancelled.  

16. Food truck vendors participating in an event conducted by a group may prepare, make and/or sell food directly to 
patrons at the event. However, such food truck vendors must comply with all applicable state, local and School Board 
requirements including insurance as stated in 18.  

17. These rules work in conjunction with all School Board Policies 

 

Page 767 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 768 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Approve Advertisement and Notice of Public Hearing on Revisions to the Clay County District Schools Internal Accounts
Manual

Description
The purpose of this item is to update specified sections within the CCDS Internal Account Manual.  Section 6.A-1.097, F.A.C.
(State Board of Education Rules) designates the responsibility of Internal Funds to the School Boards and directs the Boards to
adopt written policies governing the receipt and disbursement of funds.  The CCDS Internal Accounts Manual represents a
comprehensive set of policies and procedural guidelines governing the receipt and disbursement of internal funds.  

Gap Analysis
The most recent update to this manual was completed in 2010.  A complete rewrite is needed due to new rules and regulations as
imposed by State Statues, School Board Rules, and GASB 84.   The attached version represents a complete rewrite of this
manual, and the 2010 version is now obsolete.  

Previous Outcomes
None

Expected Outcomes
Approve the CCSB  Internal Accounts Manual as submitted.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources

Recommendation
To obtain the School Board's approval and acceptance of the revised Internal Accounts Manual as presented

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs 336-6721  Susan.Legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Internal Accounts Manual.pdf

Approval to Advertise Notice of Public Hearing Internal Accounts Manual.pdf

Page 769 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/internal-accounts-manual.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-notice-of-public-hearing-internal-accounts-manual.pdf


Page 770 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 771 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 772 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 773 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 774 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 775 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 776 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 777 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 778 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 779 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 780 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 781 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 782 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 783 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 784 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 785 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 786 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 787 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 788 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 789 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 790 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 791 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 792 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 793 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 794 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 795 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 796 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 797 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 798 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 799 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 800 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 801 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 802 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 803 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 804 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 805 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 806 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 807 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 808 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 809 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 810 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 811 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 812 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 813 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 814 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 815 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 816 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 817 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 818 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 819 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 820 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 821 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 822 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 823 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 824 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 825 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 826 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 827 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 828 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 829 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 830 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 831 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 832 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 833 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 834 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 835 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 836 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 837 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 838 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 839 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 840 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 841 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 842 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 843 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 844 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 845 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 846 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 847 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 848 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 849 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 850 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 851 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 852 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 853 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 854 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 855 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 856 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 857 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 858 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 859 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 860 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 861 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 862 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 863 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 864 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Monthly Financial Reports for May, 2020

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending May 31, 2020.

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for May,
2020.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

May 2020 Board Monthly Financial Report.pdf

May 2020 Board Monthly Property Report.pdf

Page 865 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2020-board-monthly-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-2020-board-monthly-property-report.pdf


Page 866 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 867 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 868 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 869 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 870 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 871 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 872 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 873 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 874 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 875 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 876 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 877 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 878 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 879 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 880 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 881 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Budget Amendment for Month Ending May 31, 2020

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accoutns prescribed by the State Board are changed
fromthe original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendments show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.

Previous Outcomes
It has been past (normal) practice to provide budget amendemtns, in accourdance with Florida State Board of Education
Administrative Rule 6A-1.006.

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendments are provded to meet stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and accountability
of the district budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments as presented for May 31, 2020.

Contact
Dr, Susan M. Legutko Assistant Superintendent for Business  Affairs  (904) 336-6721

Financial Impact
As presented

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 882 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - June, 2020

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted.  These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair.  These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated.  Deletions are for property items received in
the month of May, 2020.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05.

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal.  Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes.  All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability. 

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - June, 2020 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property.  Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

Deletion-Report-June, 2020.pdf

Page 883 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-june-2020.pdf


Depreciation

06/30/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0111 BANNERMAN LEARNING CENTER

2,916.00 2,916.00ICE MACHINE SELF CONTAINED Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 05/18/199500058551
2,916.00 0.00

LCTN 0241 W E CHERRY ELEMENTARY
4,995.00 4,995.00PRINTER:POSTER - PROIMAGE XL30 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 11/25/200300080602
1,495.00 1,495.00LAMINATOR: ROLL GBC PINNACLE27 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 02/23/201212000475
6,490.00 7,911.00

LCTN 0252 ORANGE PARK HIGH
1,610.00 1,610.00DRUM SET:LUDWIG 5 PIECE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 09/05/199500060212
2,234.00 2,234.00PRESENTER:ELMO VISUAL - ELMHV5 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 05/27/200400079058
1,699.99 1,699.99SOUND SYSTEM: BOSE PS1 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 07/20/200600090327
2,549.99 2,549.99HORN: DOUBLE FRENCH - HOLTON H Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 05/10/201212000613
8,093.98 7,038.99

LCTN 0261 DOCTORS INLET ELEMENTARY
3,150.00 3,150.00ICE MAKER: MODULAR FLAKER W/BI Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 10/31/200600088769
3,150.00 2,549.99

LCTN 0331 S BRYAN JENNINGS ELEMENTARY
1,177.57 1,177.57LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE E6400 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 11/25/200800097562
2,924.57 2,924.57TEACHER STATION: C/M/K/PRT/WEB Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 08/13/200909000819
4,102.14 4,327.57

LCTN 0341 CLAY HIGH SCHOOL
2,225.22 2,225.22PROJECTOR: HITACHI MULTIMEDIA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 01/11/200100075422
1,698.00 1,698.00PROJECTOR:HITACHI LCD SVGA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 01/24/200200075450
1,469.31 1,469.31PROJECTOR: SVGA HITACHI 1100 L Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/13/200200077380
1,646.95 1,097.97CAMERA: DIGITAL SLR - NIKON D7 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 11/13/201415000472
1,646.95 1,097.97CAMERA: DIGITAL SLR - NIKON D7 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 11/13/201415000473
8,686.43 9,415.07

LCTN 0352 LAKESIDE ELEMENTARY
1,048.00 1,048.00COMPUTER:APPLE IMAC Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 10/12/200000071950
1,048.00 1,097.97

LCTN 0361 ORANGE PARK JUNIOR HIGH

06/30/202006/01/2020Date Range 113:56:3706/01/2020 Page 884 of 1019

DRAFT



Depreciation

06/30/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
1,698.00 1,698.00PROJECTOR: HITACHI LCD MOBILE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 01/24/200200077322
1,138.00 1,138.00CART: LAPTOP SECURITY 16-MODUL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 12/18/200800096573
1,183.39 1,183.39LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6430+W Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 09/12/201314100073
2,265.99 2,265.99CART: DELL MOBILE COMPUTING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 01/15/201515000675
2,265.99 2,265.99CART: DELL MOBILE COMPUTING Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 01/15/201515000676
8,551.37 7,333.38

LCTN 0371 WILKINSON JUNIOR HIGH
1,475.00 1,475.00SAXOPHONE:BARITONE YAMAHA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 12/17/198100026549
1,275.00 1,275.00HORN:YAMAHA FRENCH Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/15/198800043843
1,006.05 1,006.05TABLE:DEMONSTRATE W/MIRRORS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 07/23/199700057894
1,138.00 1,138.00CART: LAPTOP SECURITY 16-MODUL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 11/25/200800092893
1,139.00 1,139.00LAPTOP: LATITUDE D520 - DELL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/27/200700093308
1,138.00 1,138.00CART: LAPTOP SECURITY 16-MODUL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 11/25/200800095068
2,452.00 2,452.00LAPTOP: MACBOOK PRO 15 INCH - Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 05/22/200800095478
2,152.99 2,152.99IMAC - APPLE 27 " ZOPF" Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 11/21/201314000264

11,776.04 11,889.04

LCTN 0391 MIDDLEBURG HIGH SCHOOL
1,224.00 1,224.00C/M/K - DELL PRECISION T1600 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 02/09/201212000469
3,339.00 3,339.00C/M/K:DELL PRECISION T7500 WOR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 02/09/201212000471
4,563.00 3,376.99

LCTN 0401 RIDGEVIEW ELEMENTARY
2,018.00 2,018.00LAPTOP:LATITUDE D800 - DELL PM Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 10/09/200300080139
2,018.00 3,339.00

LCTN 0431 RIDGEVIEW HIGH SCHOOL
1,375.00 1,375.00PROJECTOR: LUMENS SVGA LCD Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 02/13/200300078667
1,075.00 1,075.00PROJECTOR: POWERLITE LCD - EPS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 12/13/200700091600
1,123.54 1,123.54LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE E6420 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 06/07/201212000723
1,358.27 1,358.27LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE E6540 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 06/05/201414001344
4,931.81 5,591.54

LCTN 0511 MCRAE ELEMENTARY
2,924.58 2,924.58TEACHER STATION: C/M/K/PRT/WEB Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 08/13/200909000817
2,924.58 1,358.27

06/30/202006/01/2020Date Range 213:56:3706/01/2020 Page 885 of 1019

DRAFT



Depreciation

06/30/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0551 FLEMING ISLAND HIGH SCHOOL

1,630.00 1,630.00PROJECTOR:LCD SVGA PHILIPS 150 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 08/28/200300079180
1,859.00 1,859.00EUPHONIUM: SILVER - MACK EU115 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/11/200300079419
5,122.95 5,122.95SOUSAPHONE: SILVER W/CASE - YA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 01/25/200700080750
2,011.00 2,011.00CUTTER: WALL MOUNT - FLETCHER Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 10/26/200600083830
1,164.00 1,039.29CAMERA: DIGITAL - CANON EOS60D Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 04/11/201313000562
1,049.00 536.99EUPHONIUM: SILVER - MACK EU115 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 12/10/201516000089
1,289.00 398.98LENS: CAMERA - SIGMA 150-600MM Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 04/27/201717000133

14,124.95 15,123.81

LCTN 0611 OAKLEAF JUNIOR HIGH
2,416.00 2,416.00ICE MAKER: CUBE LOW PROFILE W/ Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 09/12/200600090937
2,416.00 398.98

LCTN 0661 OAKLEAF HIGH SCHOOL
1,000.48 1,000.48LAPTOP - APPLE MACBOOK MC207LL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 06/29/201010001805
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000028
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000030
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000032
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000034
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000037
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000040
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000044
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000047
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000050
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000054
1,589.58 1,589.58C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 980 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/26/201011000056
1,093.59 1,093.59LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6410 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/23/201011000065
1,093.59 1,093.59LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6410 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/23/201011000070
1,093.59 1,093.59LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6410 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/23/201011000102
1,093.59 1,093.59LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6410 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/23/201011000116
1,093.59 1,093.59LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6410 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/23/201011000134
1,227.17 1,227.17C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 9010 DES Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 09/12/201314000077
1,091.96 1,091.96LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE E5540 ST Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 02/12/201515100331

26,272.94 27,596.98

06/30/202006/01/2020Date Range 313:56:3706/01/2020 Page 886 of 1019

DRAFT



Depreciation

06/30/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 9000 SCHOOL BOARD

1,709.50 949.72LAPTOP: MOBILE PRECISION DELL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 10/30/201718000139
1,709.50 1,091.96

LCTN 9006 DEPT OF ELEMENTARY EDUCATION
1,132.00 1,132.00LAPTOP: APPLE MACBOOK AIR MJVE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 11/12/201516000147
1,132.00 949.72

LCTN 9010 TRANSPORTATION
62,727.50 62,727.50BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/14/2007B0000635
62,727.50 62,727.50BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 05/10/2007B0000650
62,727.50 62,727.50BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/14/2007B0000651
62,727.50 62,727.50BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/28/2007B0000653
62,727.50 62,727.50BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/28/2007B0000655
62,727.50 62,727.50BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/14/2007B0000656
62,727.50 62,727.50BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 05/10/2007B0000657
77,154.24 77,154.24BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000659
77,154.24 77,154.24BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000660
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 10/09/2008B0000662
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000663
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 10/09/2008B0000665
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/14/2008B0000667
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000668
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000669
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000670
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/14/2008B0000672
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 10/09/2008B0000674
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000675
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/14/2008B0000676
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000678
77,154.24 77,154.24BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/14/2008B0000680
77,154.24 77,154.24BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000681
77,154.24 77,154.24BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000682
77,154.24 77,154.24BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000686
77,154.24 77,154.24BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000687

06/30/202006/01/2020Date Range 413:56:3706/01/2020 Page 887 of 1019

DRAFT



Depreciation

06/30/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
77,154.24 77,154.24BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 07/24/2008B0000689
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000697
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000699
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000700
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000701
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000702
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/25/2009B0000703
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000704
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000705
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000706
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/25/2009B0000708
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000709
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000710
83,560.09 83,560.09BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000711
83,560.08 83,560.08BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000714
83,560.08 83,560.08BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/25/2009B0000715
83,560.08 83,560.08BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000716
83,560.08 83,560.08BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/25/2009B0000718
83,560.08 83,560.08BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000719
83,560.08 83,560.08BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000720
83,560.08 83,560.08BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/2009B0000721
83,560.08 83,560.08BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/25/2009B0000722
83,560.08 83,560.08BUS: SCHOOL 71 PASSENGER 2010 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/25/2009B0000723
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000738
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000739
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000740
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000741
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000742
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000744
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000745
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000746
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000747
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000748
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000749

06/30/202006/01/2020Date Range 513:56:3706/01/2020 Page 888 of 1019

DRAFT



Depreciation

06/30/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000750
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000751
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000752
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000753
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000754
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000755
81,443.23 75,334.99BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000756
81,443.22 75,334.98BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000757
81,443.22 75,334.98BUS: 71 PASSENGER 2011 C-2 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 04/08/2010B0000758
11,261.67 11,261.67SEDAN: 4 DR CHEV CAPRICE 1989 Motor VehiclesJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 09/14/1989V0000059
3,750.85 3,750.85SEDAN: 4 DR CHEVROLET IMPALA ( Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/25/2006V0000266

5,464,376.17 5,339,592.52

LCTN 9040 INFORMATION SERVICES
1,031.00 1,031.00CHASSIS/MONITOR/KEYBOARD - DEL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 02/27/200300078608
1,073.52 1,073.52MODULE:CREDENZA/BRIDGE/DESK - Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 08/11/200500085100
2,454.17 2,454.17DESK: MODULAR W/HUTCH/RETURN 2 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 08/24/200600089882
2,454.17 2,454.17DESK: MODULAR W/HUTCH/RETURN 2 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 08/24/200600089883
2,454.17 2,454.17DESK: MODULAR W/HUTCH/RETURN 2 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 08/24/200600089896
2,454.17 2,454.17DESK: MODULAR W/HUTCH/RETURN 2 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 08/24/200600089897
2,454.17 2,454.17DESK: MODULAR W/HUTCH/RETURN 2 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 08/24/200600089898
2,399.06 2,399.06MODULE: HUTCH/CREDENZA/BRIDGE/ Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 06/28/200700091942
1,077.74 1,077.74C/M/K - DELL PRECISION T3400 M Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/11/200909000735
1,587.58 1,587.58STUDENT STATION: COMPUTER Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 08/13/200909000816
1,180.74 1,180.74C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 960 MINI Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 09/10/200910000061
1,180.74 1,180.74C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 960 MINI Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 09/10/200910000068
1,180.74 1,180.74C/M/K - DELL OPTIPLEX 960 MINI Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 09/10/200910000072
1,717.00 1,717.00C/M/K - APPLE IMAC 27 " ZOM6" Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 05/26/201111001113
1,355.33 1,355.33MODULE:CREDENZA/BRIDGE/DESK-CO Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 06/09/201111001116
1,224.00 1,224.00C/M/K - DELL PRECISION T1600 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 01/26/201212000463
1,224.00 1,224.00C/M/K - DELL PRECISION T1600 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 01/26/201212000464
1,224.00 1,224.00C/M/K - DELL PRECISION T1600 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 02/09/201212000466
1,224.00 1,224.00C/M/K:DELL PRECISION T1600 WOR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 06/07/201212000887
1,100.00 1,100.00C/M/K - DELL PRECISION T1600 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 11/08/201213000351
1,190.00 1,190.00LAPTOP - APPLE MACBOOK AIR 11 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 09/12/201314000179

06/30/202006/01/2020Date Range 613:56:3706/01/2020 Page 889 of 1019

DRAFT



Depreciation

06/30/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
1,183.39 1,183.39LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6430 + Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 09/12/201314100091
1,182.00 1,182.00LAPTOP: APPLE MACBOOK PRO MD10 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 08/13/201516000013
1,182.00 1,182.00LAPTOP: APPLE MACBOOK PRO MD10 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 08/13/201516000014
2,110.85 1,155.94FLUKE TROUBLESHOOTING KIT-ACK- Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 09/10/201516000034
1,132.00 1,132.00LAPTOP: MACBOOK AIR APPLE MJVE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 09/10/201516000060
1,648.00 804.38CAMERA: DSLR CANON EOS70D Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 02/11/201616000388
1,182.00 1,116.33LAPTOP: MACBOOK PRO APPLE MD10 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 09/08/201617000197
1,182.00 1,116.33LAPTOP: MACBOOK PRO APPLE MD10 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 09/08/201617000200
4,770.85 1,533.49INTERACTIVE FLAT PANEL 70 " RE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 03/22/201717000429
1,719.99 552.85CART: XLRG FUSION VIDEO CONFER Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/01/2020 03/22/201717000430
1,719.99 552.85CART: XLRG FUSION VIDEO CONFER Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 03/22/201717000432

52,253.37 47,949.86

LCTN 9060 HUMAN RESOURCES
1,412.00 1,412.00LAPTOP: MACBOOK AIR - APPLE MF Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/01/2020 12/12/201314000269
1,412.00 552.85

LCTN 9104 DEPT OF HEALTH & MILITARY SERV
1,070.64 1,070.64LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6410 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 12/10/201011000571
1,060.43 1,060.43LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6410 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/08/201112000020
1,060.43 1,060.43LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6420 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 12/15/201112000200
1,123.54 1,123.54LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE E6420 +W Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 03/08/201212000493
1,232.00 1,232.00LAPTOP:MACBOOK AIR 13 " APPLE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 05/08/201414001350
1,183.39 1,183.39LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6430 + Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/12/201314100043
1,183.39 1,183.39LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6430 + Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 09/12/201314100044
1,132.00 1,132.00LAPTOP: APPLE MACBOOK AIR MJVE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentMissing  06/01/2020 11/12/201516000146
9,045.82 9,325.82

06/30/202006/01/2020Date Range 713:56:3706/01/2020 Page 890 of 1019

DRAFT



Depreciation

06/30/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method

5,641,994.10
Totals for Deletion Report

5,507,811.31

Note:MAY 2020 DELETIONS
Disposal Method Descriptions:

JUNK/PARTS - Part(s) of an asset are used and remainder of part(s) are sold, recycled or disposed

TRADE-IN - Vendor issues a credit towards a new purchase

THEFT/VANDALISM - Items stolen or broken (police report attached)

MISSING - Items lost and are not found during property inventory (Annually)

SURPLUS SALE - Items that are outdated, not working or obsolete.  Items are either sold, recycled or disposed

ENTERED IN ERROR- Not used

TRANSFER/DONATION - From Clay County District to an Outside Agency (Approved by Board or Superintendent)

DESTROYED - Fire/Natural Disaster, etc.

Total Software
0.00

Total Audio Visual
0.00

Total Vehicles
5,464,376.17

Total Furniture
177,617.93

THRESHOLD (ex. $750 TO $1000)

06/30/202006/01/2020Date Range 813:56:3706/01/2020 Page 891 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - BID to be Awarded

Description
Award BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Refuse Collection - County Wide Bid #20-BA-127:  Contract Period is for a three (3) year period from August 1, 2020 through
July 31, 2023 with the option to renew for additional contract periods upon mutual agreement, in writing. Bid established for the
purchase of refuse collection to include garbage and recyclable pick-up county wide. The vendors awarded are the most
responsive and responsible qualified bidders meeting specifications.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Prior Board approved Bid will expire but it was used successfully during the past terms to provide quality services and products
to the district. 

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendors to provide quality services and products at the terms and conditions listed in
the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2;  Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Award BID as follows:
a. Refuse Collection - County Wide Bid #20-BA-127: 

Advanced Disposal Services Jacksonville, LLC., 7580 Philips Highway, Jacksonville, FL  32256 for Section A (Service
Area #1 and #2), Section B (Service Area #1 and #2)

-

United Site Services of Florida, LLC., 11574 Philips Highway, Jacksonville, FL  32256 for Section C (Service Area #1 and
#2)

-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Refuse Collection - County Wide Bid #20-BA-127:  Estimated $1,150,000.00 for Contract Period from General Revenue

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 892 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district.  The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF).  The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month.  As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status.  Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 6.25.20.pdf

Page 893 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-62520.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Bryce Ellis, Phil Hans, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Janice Kerekes.  The pre-qualification 
certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Advanced Roofing, Inc. General, HVAC, Roofing 
and Solar Contractor 

$40,000,000.00 July 31, 2021 

Communication Solutions, Inc. Specialty Electrical 
Contractor 

$300,000.00 July 31, 2021 

Playmore Recreational Products & 
Services 

Building Contractor $5,000,000.00 July 31, 2021 

 

Page 894 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights Elementary School Intercom/PA System

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Engineer, has reached
Substantial Completion on May 12, 2020 and Final Completion on June 4, 2020 in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

KHE Intercom.PA Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

Page 895 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khe-intercompa-substantial-final-completion.pdf


Page 896 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 897 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights High School Intercom/PA System

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Engineer, has reached
Substantial Completion on May 12, 2020 and Final Completion on June 4, 2020 in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

KHHS Intercom.PA Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

Page 898 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khhs-intercompa-substantial-final-completion_2.pdf


Page 899 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 900 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Change Order #1 for Lakeside Junior High School Parking Lot Renovation

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications.  Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval.  This change order addresses unforeseen conditions encountered and other change
of scope issues.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Change Order # 1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $2,950.77.   Architect fees will not increase as a result of this change
order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

LSJH Parking Lot Renovation CO 1.pdf

Page 901 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lsjh-parking-lot-renovation-co-1.pdf


Page 902 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 903 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 904 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C28 - Change Order #3 (Direct Purchasing) for Doctors Inlet Elementary School Cafeteria Expansion

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner.  These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save the sales tax.  The direct
purchases are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Change Order # 3.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $292,284.58 will not impact the budget.  A total tax savings in the
amount of $16,591.58 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

DIS Cafeteria Expansion CO 3.pdf

Page 905 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/dis-cafeteria-expansion-co-3.pdf


Page 906 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 907 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C29 - Substantial and Final Completion of Rideout Elementary School Intercom/PA System

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Engineer, has reached
Substantial Completion on May 5, 2020 and Final Completion on May 22, 2020 in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

ROE Intercom.PA Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

Page 908 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/roe-intercompa-substantial-final-completion.pdf


Page 909 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 910 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C30 - Substantial and Final Completion of Thunderbolt Elementary School Intercom/PA System

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Engineer, has reached
Substantial Completion on May 5, 2020 and Final Completion on May 22, 2020 in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

TBE Intercom.PA Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

Page 911 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/tbe-intercompa-substantial-final-completion.pdf


Page 912 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 913 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C31 - District Renovation/Remodeling Operations Building 1 First Floor Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP). The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held June 9,
2020 at 2:30 p.m.  The project had three (3) bidders and all bidders met the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Relocate the Food Service Department from the second floor to eliminate accessibility and structural issues.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Thomas May Construction Company, the low bidder meeting specifications the base bid in
the amount of $199,500.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Bid Tabulation C-30-19 20.pdf

Page 914 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/bid-tabulation-c-30-19-20.pdf


Page 915 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C32 - 2019-20 S.R.E.F. Casualty, Safety, Sanitation, Relocatable, and Fire Safety Inspection

Description
The School District of Clay County is required to conduct an Annual Casualty, Safety, Sanitation Inspection Report as well as an
Annual Relocatable and Fire Safety Inspection by persons licensed and proficient with applicable Rules and Standards.  These
Inspection Reports were performed by in-house licensed and qualified personnel and are available for public review.

Gap Analysis
Local fire officials and public school districts must employ or contract with an individual certified as a fire safety inspector in
compliance with Section 633.081, Florida Statutes, in order to conduct a comprehensive fire safety inspector of each public
school facility annually.  s.1013.12, F.S. and s.1013.38, F.S. became effective on July 1, 2011.

Previous Outcomes
The SREF/Fire Safety Inspections were accomplished with one inspector and completed without disrupting the school for more
than a couple of hours.  The school custodian walks the school with the inspector and takes notes on deficiencies that are also
part of the report.  The schools fixed or placed work orders for deficiencies found and returned a letter to the inspector stating all
items were completed or a work order was placed.
 

Expected Outcomes
The SREF/Fire Safety Inspections will be completed in compliance with Section 633.081, Florida Statutes, in order to conduct a
comprehensive fire safety inspector of each public school facility annually.  s.1013.12, F.S. and s.1013.38, F.S. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 
 

Recommendation
Approve the District 2019-2020 Casualty, Safety, Sanitation, Relocatable, and Fire Safety Inspection Report.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net, Tod Sweatland, Director
of Code Enforcement (904) 336-6826, tod.sweatland@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
All deficiencies will be corrected at the school level or by the Maintenance department and funded by General and/or Capital
Outlay funds.

Review Comments

Attachments

Elementary SREF Inspections.pdf

Elementary SREF Inspections Cont..pdf

High School SREF Inspections.pdf

Page 916 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections-cont.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/high-school-sref-inspections.pdf


Page 917 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 918 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 919 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 920 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 921 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 922 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 923 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 924 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 925 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 926 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 927 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 928 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 929 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 930 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 931 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 932 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 933 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 934 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 935 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 936 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 937 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 938 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 939 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 940 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 941 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 942 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 943 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 944 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 945 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 946 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 947 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 948 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 949 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 950 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 951 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 952 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 953 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 954 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 955 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 956 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 957 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 958 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 959 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 960 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 961 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 962 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 963 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 964 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 965 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 966 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 967 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 968 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 969 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 970 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 971 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 972 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 973 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 974 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 975 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 976 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 977 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 978 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 979 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 980 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 981 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 982 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 983 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 984 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 985 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 986 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 987 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 988 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 989 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 990 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 991 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 992 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 993 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 994 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 995 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 996 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 997 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 998 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 999 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 1000 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C33 - Change Order #1 for Clay High School Erosion Control/Stormwater Repair

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order addresses unforseen conditions encountered and other change
of scope issues.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
effective environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent of Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Jeffery Marks, Project Manager, (904) 336-6821, jeffery.marks@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $68,942.40. Architect fees will increase by $5,860.11 as a result of this
change order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 for Clay High School Erosion Control Stormwater Repair.pdf

Page 1001 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-for-clay-high-school-erosion-control-stormwater-repair.pdf


Page 1002 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 1003 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 1004 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 1005 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C34 - Option Contract for Roderico Property

Description
Through negotiation with the property owner, the attached Option Contract has been developed and the School Board is now in a
positon to approve this acquisition. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Option Contract approval allows the purchase of property.

Expected Outcomes
Roderico Road property acquisition for School Board use.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve the Option Contract to purchase the Roderigo Road property in the amount of $125,000.00.  The appraised value of the
property is $134,000.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Interim Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net, James Fossa,
Coordinator of Planning and Intergovernmental Affairs, (904) 336-6852,  james.fossa@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

RODERIGO OPTION CONTRACT.docxFINAL (1).docx FINAL AGAIN.pdf

Page 1006 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/roderigo-option-contractdocxfinal-1docx-final-again.pdf


OPTION CONTRACT 

 

Option is given this _____ day of _______, 2020, by The City of Green Cove Springs, Florida, by 

and through the Green Cove Springs City Council, 321 Walnut Street, green Cove Springs, 

Florida, (“Green Cove Springs”), which hereby grants to the School Board of Clay County, 

Florida, 900 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida, (School Board”), the exclusive right and 

option to purchase, on terms and conditions set forth herein, that certain real property in Clay 

County, Florida, more particularly described as follows: 

Land situated in Block 30 and Block 31 in P.B. Hamilton’s subdivision; as per plat thereof 

recorded in Plat Book 1 on page 36 and Plat Book 6 on  page 37; of the public records of 

Clay County, Florida, which land is located in Green Cove Springs, Florida and consists 

of lots 4 and 5 of Block 30 in P.B. Hamilton’s subdivision, which land is bordered on the 

south by lot 3 of Block 30 in P.B. Hamilton’s subdivision;  bordered on the west by the 

eastern right of way of CSX railroad which is coterminous with the western boundary 

line of Block 30; bordered on the north by the southern boundary of the right of way of 

Center Street; and bordered on the easternmost side of the right of way of Roderigo 

Avenue, a/k/a Roderico Avenue which is coterminous with the western boundaries of 

those lands and property owned by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, which 

lands are situated on Blocks 31 and 34 of P.B. Hamilton’s subdivision and the  now 

closed right of way of Ludorigo Avenue. 

The land included in this purchase also includes the entire right of way of Roderigo 

Avenue a/k/a Roderico Avenue from its northern junction with southern boundary 

Center Street the southern junction with the northern right of way boundary of Walnut 

Street/Barbantio Avenue. 

1. OPTION CONSIDERATION. The consideration for this option contract shall be ten dollars 

($10.00), which sum, if District exercises this option, shall apply toward the purchase price. 

 2. OPTION TERM. District shall have ninety (90) days from date of execution hereof within which 

to give notice to Green Cove Springs in writing of its intention to exercise this option.  

3. CLOSING DATE. The closing of the transaction shall take place in the office of District’s attorney 

within 30 days from the date of the notice of intent to exercise this option. Green Cove Springs 

shall convey the Property to District at closing by special warranty deed, subject to the matters 

set forth in Section 5 below.  

4. PURCHASE PRICE. In the event District elects to exercise this option, it shall pay Green Cove 

Springs the purchase price of $125,000.00, at closing.  

5. PROOF OF TITLE. District shall, at its expense, obtain a binder of title insurance written by a 

title insurer acceptable to District, binding said title insurer to issue, after closing, a policy of title 

Page 1007 of 1019

DRAFT



insurance insuring the title to the property to be free and clear of all liens or mortgages and 

subject only to covenants, conditions, restrictions and easements, if any, recorded in the public 

records of Clay County, Florida, and subject to matters that would be shown by a current survey 

of the Property, and current real estate taxes not yet due and payable as of the date of closing. 

 6. CLOSING COSTS, TAXES, ETC. The real property taxes on the property, if any, shall be prorated 

between the parties as of the date of the closing. Any outstanding tax certificates for prior years  

shall be paid by Green Cove Springs. Green Cove Springs shall pay for Green Cove Spring’s 

attorney’s fee, if any. Seller shall pay deed stamps. District shall pay for title insurance, property 

survey, recording of the deed, its attorney’s fee and all other closing costs.  

7. FAILURE TO EXERCISE OPTION. If District does not exercise this option in accordance with its 

terms and within the option period, this option and the rights of District shall automatically 

terminate without notice. 

 8. NOTICES. All notices provided for herein shall be deemed to have been duly given if and when 

deposited in the United States mail, properly stamped and addressed to the party for whom 

intended at the party's above listed address, or when delivered personally to such party. 

As to City of green Cove Springs:       c/o Steve Kennedy 

                 City Manager  

            City of Green Cove Springs 

            321 Walnut Street 

            Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

 

As to School Board:                      Ms. Bryce Ellis 

                       Asst. Superintendent of Operations 

                       925 West Center Street 

            Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

 

9. BINDING EFFECT. This option shall be binding upon and shall inhere to the benefit of the parties 

hereof and to their respective heirs, successors or assigns. 

 

 10. CLOSING CONDITION. Green Cove Springs warrants as a condition to the execution hereof 

and the closing of this transaction that, except for limited occupation of the structure which is on 

the property which occupation shall terminate no later than July 15, 2020, and except as 

disclosed by instruments recorded in the public records of Clay County, Florida, the property shall 

not be occupied by them or by anyone else at the time of closing without written consent of 

District.  

 

11. TIME OF ESSENCE. Time is of the essence of this option.  

 

Page 1008 of 1019

DRAFT



12. ADDITIONAL MATTERS. The District and Green Cove Springs agree that the closing of 

Roderigo/Roderico Avenue shall be addressed by ordinance as soon as possible after closing of 

this transaction. 

  

13. AS IS. If District elects to purchase the Property, it shall accept the same in its “AS-IS” 

condition, subject to requirements of paragraph 12.  

 

14. NO BROKERS. Green Cove Springs and District each warrants to the other that the party 

making the warranty has not authorized any broker or finder to act on its behalf in connection 

with the sale and purchase hereunder and that neither has dealt with any broker or finder 

purporting to act on behalf of any other party with respect to this transaction. This Section shall 

survive the Closing or any earlier termination of this Agreement.  

 

Witnesses as to Green Cove Springs:  

 

_______________________________   City of Green Cove Springs, Florida 

  

_______________________________                        ______________________________ 

BY: B. VAN ROYAL, MAYOR 

 

 

DATE: ___________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

             SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA  

 

 

       ______________________________  

CAROL Y. STUDDARD,  CHAIRMAN  

 

Attest: 

 ____________________________    DATE: ____________________  

DAVID S. BROSKIE  

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

 

 

Page 1009 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 1010 of 1019

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 25, 2020  Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised proposed revisions to School Board Policy 5.02A, Business Affairs Purchasing

Description
School Board Policies outlines rules and procedures to ensure the efficient operation of the school district.  The School Board
and Superintendent met collectively in a workshop setting and developed the proposed changes.  The Board intends to adopt the
proposed revisions following a public hearing to take place on June 25, 2020.

Gap Analysis
All Board Policies are reviewed periodically to ensure they are up to date and compliant with current applicable laws and
regulations.

Previous Outcomes
The Board policies have been reviewed and/or revised in the past. 

Expected Outcomes
The proposed amendments to Board policies will be adopted by the Board and implemented appropriately.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve/Adopt as advertised proposed amendments to Board policy 5.02A, following the public hearing.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent to Business Affiairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

CCSB - 5.02 Business Affairs_Purchasing_FEDERAL GRANT MONEY (1).docx FINAL (1).pdf

Approval to Advertise Notice of Public Hearing SB Policy Purchasing 5.02A.pdf

Page 1011 of 1019

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/ccsb-502-business-affairs_purchasing_federal-grant-money-1docx-final-1_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/approval-to-advertise-notice-of-public-hearing-sb-policy-purchasing-502a.pdf


1 

 

SECTION V 

BUSINESS AFFAIRS 

 

5.02 GENERAL POLICIES 
 

 A. Purchasing 

1.   The Director of Purchasing will be responsible for organizing and administering acquisitions for 

the district in accordance with responsibility and authority delegated by the District’s Superintendent, 

School Board and resultant policies.  The procedures outlined in the handbook regarding centralized 

purchasing  approved by the School Board will be used by the District Purchasing Department in its 

conduct of business. 

 2.   Insofar, as possible or practical, all purchases from budgeted funds shall be based on requisitions.   

Requisitions must be approved by either the principal or the department head prior to issuance of the 

purchase order.  No person, unless authorized to do so under regulations of the Board, may make any 

purchase involving the use of school funds; no expenditures for unauthorized purchases will be 

approved for payment by the Board. 

3.   Purchase orders will be executed by the Director of Purchasing.  A properly completed purchase 

order form is to be considered a contract for goods, services, supplies or equipment between the 

School Board and a qualified vendor.  The purchase order form is to be approved and signed by the 

Director of Purchasing or Superintendent.   Insofar as possible or practical, no purchase order is to be 

mailed or issued until after it has been encumbered against budgeted funds.  Purchase orders are not 

required for salaries, utilities, and other similar items that are exempt by law or regulation. 

4.   When it is the most economical method, blanket purchase orders will be used to procure items 

and services of a non-competitive nature.  A blanket purchase order is  an  open  end  contract which 

designates one company as supplier for items frequently  needed  by  a  particular school/department.  

The blanket purchase order defines the terms, conditions, persons or departments authorized to use 

the blanket purchase order, delivery instructions and total dollar value for a specified period of time.  

It is the intention of the School Board that the use of blanket purchase orders be limited. 

5.   Except as authorized by law or rule, competitive solicitations shall be requested from three (3) or 

more reputable sources for any authorized commodities or contractual services exceeding $50,000 or 

more.  The School Board may not divide the procurement of commodities or contractual services so 

as to avoid this monetary threshold requirement. For expenditures less than $50,000 and when 

practical, quotations will be requested as follows:   

$15,000-$24,999 – documented telephone quotes from 2 or more qualified vendors  

$25,000-$39,999 - written quotes from 3 or more qualified vendors  

$40,000 - formal written sealed quotes 

It shall be the responsibility of the Director of Purchasing, with other qualified staff personnel, to 

recommend the lowest responsive and responsible proposers meeting specification and conditions of 

a competitive solicitation.  When a competitive solicitation other than the lowest competitive 

Page 1012 of 1019

DRAFT



2 

 

solicitation is being recommended, it will be the responsibility of the Director  of Purchasing to 

submit to the School Board the reasons for this recommendation. 

(Amended: 09/21/89, 02-17-94, 06-19-97; 10-19-00; 12/16/14) 

6.  In the event of tied or identical bids, preference shall be given to the bid which certifies that a 

drug-free workplace has been implemented in accordance with Section 287.087 F.S..  If all tied bids 

have a drug-free workplace program certification, then preference shall be given to the bidder whose 

business is physically located in Clay County, Florida.  If neither vendor is located in Clay County, 

Florida then preference shall be given to the bidder whose business is physically located in the State 

of Florida.  If more than one tied bidder is located in Clay County, Florida or if no tied bidder or 

more than one tied bidder is located in the State of Florida, the award of the tied bid shall be decided 

by the flip of a coin in the presence of witnesses.  The coin flip shall be administered by the Director 

of Purchasing who shall designate the calling of heads or tails. 

7.  The School Board shall have the authority to reject any or all competitive solicitations; request 

new competitive solicitations; award alternate competitive solicitations not meeting the general 

specifications set forth; award competitive solicitations on a per item or total competitive solicitation 

basis; or purchase the required commodities or contractual services in any other manner authorized 

by law or rule – whichever would be in the best interest of the School Board.  Competitive 

solicitation disputes will be resolved by following the procedures as outlined in the Handbook of 

Procedures Regarding Centralized Purchasing/ Accounts Payable/Warehouse of the School Board  

8.  The School Board will not, under any conditions, consider escalating prices at the time of the 

competitive solicitation or after the official time the competitive solicitation is awarded by the School 

Board unless the competitive solicitation document has a provision stating otherwise. 

9.  The requirement for requesting competitive solicitations and making purchases, insofar as they 

relate to purchases of petroleum and paper products, are hereby waived when the following 

conditions have been met: 

a. Competitive solicitation have been requested in the manner prescribed, and 

b. The School Board has made a finding that no valid or acceptable firm competitive 

solicitation has been received within the prescribed time. 

When such a finding has been officially made the School Board may authorize the Director of 

Purchasing to negotiate with suppliers to execute a contract for such supplies under whatever terms 

and conditions are felt to be to in the best interest of the School Board. 

As required by 1001.42(102)(j), Florida Statutes, the School Board shall receive and give 

consideration to the prices available to it under rules of the Department of Management Services, 

Division of Purchasing. The School Board shall have the option of purchasing under the contracts as 

may be established, if such purchases are to the economic advantage of the School Board and meet 

the standards and specifications prescribed by the Superintendent. 

In lieu of requesting competitive solicitations from three (3) or more sources, the School Board may 

make purchases at or below the specified prices from contracts awarded by other city or county 

governmental agencies, other district school boards, community colleges, federal agencies, the public 

or governmental agencies of any state, or from state university system cooperative bid agreements 

Page 1013 of 1019

DRAFT



3 

 

and cooperative organizations/networks or contracts, when the proposer awarded a contract by 

another entity defined herein shall permit purchases by the School Board at the same terms, 

conditions and prices (or below such prices) awarded in such contracts, and such purchases are to the 

economic advantage of the School Board. 

A contract for commodities or contractual services may be awarded without competitive solicitations 

if state or federal law, a grant or a state or federal agency contract prescribes with whom the School 

Board must contract or if the rate of payment is established during the appropriations process. 

A contract for regulated utilities or government franchised services may be awarded without 

competitive solicitations. 

10. An emergency purchase is defined as one brought about by a sudden unexpected turn of events 

(i.e. acts of God, riot, fires, floods, accidents, or any circumstances or cause beyond the control of the 

cost center head in the normal conduct of its business) involving health, welfare, injury, or loss to the 

School Board, and which can be rectified only by immediate purchase of equipment, supplies, 

materials, or services.   When the Superintendent of Schools determines in writing that a bona fide 

emergency exists, he/she may authorize the purchase of equipment, supplies, materials or services 

without compliance with policies which require requisitions, competitive solicitations or other 

preliminary measures leading to the issuance of a purchase order.   A confirming purchase order shall 

be issued for all purchases made under this heading.  The confirmation shall contain an explanation 

of the nature of the emergency. 

11. It is the responsibility of each principal or department head, or their authorized representative, to 

acknowledge receipt of goods or services to their school or department immediately upon receipt, by 

signing and returning to the Accounts Payable Office the copy of the purchase order provided for that 

purpose.  Any discrepancy between the items specified in the purchase order and what is received 

shall be noted, in writing rejected and a note attached in Business Plus, by the principal or department 

head or authorized representative of the school.  Payments will not be made until the signed purchase 

order receiving copy is returned to the Accounts Payable Office  

12. No lease agreement shall exceed a period of twelve months; however, acquisitions by this method 

may be subject to a clause granting option to renew.  The School Board may not enter into a lease or 

lease/purchase agreement,  the  term of which exceeds one year, unless the agreement contains the 

stipulation, “ … subject to the availability of funds.”   

13. Petty cash funds will be established for the primary purpose of small day-to-day purchases and 

minor equipment repairs.  No equipment may be purchased using petty cash funds. 

14. Competitive solicitation, quotations, a list of vendors and one copy of all purchase orders issued 

or canceled will be maintained in the district’s purchasing office. 

15. The School Food Service Department will be responsible for the accuracy and payment of 

invoices for materials purchased for that department.  

16.  Procedures as outlined in the Purchasing Handbook shall be the authority for procurement. The 

policies as stated above will serve as supplemental policies to the Purchasing Manual. Florida 

Statutes, State Board of Education Rules, and Federal Regulations are the governing requirements 

complied with and, in the case of conflict, will take precedence over the Purchasing Handbook 

Page 1014 of 1019

DRAFT



4 

 

17. Federal Grants/Funds 

Procurement of all supplies, materials, equipment, and services paid for from Federal funds or 

District matching funds shall be made in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local 

statutes and/or regulations, the terms and conditions of the Federal grant, Board policies, and 

administrative procedures, including  all provisions contained in 2 CFR 200.316 through 2 CFR 

200.326. NOTE: In the event that state law is more restrictive than federal law, the District reserves 

the right to utilize and comply with the more restrictive state law. 

The Superintendent shall maintain a procurement and contract administration system in accordance 

with the USDOE requirements (2 C.F.R. 200.317-.326) for the administration and management of 

Federal grants and Federally-funded programs.  The District shall maintain a contract administration 

system that requires contractors to perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and 

specifications of their contracts or purchase orders.  Except as otherwise noted, procurement 

transactions shall conform to the provisions of the District’s documented general Purchasing Policy 

in Section 5.02 Business Affairs. 

General Procurement Standards 

The District will implement the provisions of 2 CFR 200.318 and will use its own documented 

procurement standards which reflect applicable state and local standards, ensuring that said standards 

conform with applicable federal laws. 

District shall maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the 

The District shall maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing 

the performance of its employees engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts. 

To foster greater economy and efficiency, the District may enter into State and local 

intergovernmental agreements where appropriate for procurement or use of common or shared goods 

and services.  

Competition 

All procurement transactions paid for from Federal funds or District matching funds shall be 

conducted in a manner that encourages full and open competition and that is in accordance with good 

administrative practice and sound business judgment.  In order to promote objective contractor 

performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, the District shall exclude any contractor 

that has developed or drafted specifications, requirements, statements of work, or invitations for bids 

or requests for proposals from competition for such procurements. 

The District shall not use statutorily or administratively imposed State, local, or tribal geographical 

preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except when an applicable Federal statute 

expressly mandates or encourages a geographic preference; or the District is contracting for 

architectural and engineering services, in which case geographic location may be a selection criterion 

provided its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given the nature and size of 

the project, to compete for the contract. In the instance where state law requires local preferences, the 

District shall follow state law. 

Page 1015 of 1019

DRAFT



5 

 

If the District uses a pre-qualified list of persons, firms, or products to acquire goods and services that 

are subject to this policy, the pre-qualified list shall include enough qualified sources as to ensure 

maximum open and free competition.  The District shall allow vendors to apply for consideration to 

be placed on the list annually. 

All terms of 2 C.F.R. 200.318 shall be followed. 

Procurement Methods 

The District shall utilize the following methods of procurement: 

 A. Micro-purchases:   

Procurement by micro-purchase is the acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount 

of which does not exceed the micro-purchase threshold in C.F.R. 200, as amended.  The District shall 

distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers.  Micro-purchases may be made 

without soliciting competitive quotations if Superintendent considers the price to be reasonable.   

 B. Small Purchases:   

Small purchase procedures are relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing 

services, supplies, and other property that does not exceed the competitive bid threshold of $50,000.  

Small purchase procedures require that price or rate quotations shall be obtained from an adequate 

number of qualified sources. 

 C. Sealed Bids:   

Sealed, competitive bids shall be obtained when the purchase of, and contract for, single items of 

supplies, materials, or equipment which amounts to $50,000 and when the Board determines to build, 

repair, enlarge, improve, or demolish a school building/facility the cost of which will exceed $50,000.  

In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions shall be present:  

 1. A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available;  

 2. Two (2) or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the 

business; and 

 3. The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the 

successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price. 

When sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply: 

 1. Bids shall be solicited in accordance with the provisions of State law and District. Bids 

shall be solicited from an adequate number of qualified suppliers, providing sufficient response time 

prior to the date set for the opening of bids.  The invitation to bid shall be publicly advertised.  

 2. The invitation for bids will include product/contract specifications and pertinent 

attachments and shall define the items and/or services required in order for the bidder to properly 

respond.  

Page 1016 of 1019

DRAFT



6 

 

 3. All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids; bids 

will be opened publicly. 

 4. A firm fixed price contract award will be made in writing to the lowest responsible 

bidder.  Where specified in bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation cost, and life 

cycle costs shall be considered in determining which bid is lowest.  Payment discounts may only be 

used to determine the low bid when prior experience indicates that such discounts are usually taken.  

 5. The Board reserves the right to reject any or all bids for sound documented reason. 

 D. Competitive Proposals 

Procurement by competitive proposal is normally conducted with more than one source submitting an 

offer and is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids.  

If this method is used, the following requirements apply:  

 1. Requests for proposals shall be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and their 

relative importance.  Any response to the publicized requests for proposals shall be considered to the 

maximum extent practical. 

 2. Proposals shall be solicited from an adequate number of sources. 

 3. The District shall use its written method for conducting technical evaluations of the 

proposals received and for selecting recipients  

 4. Contracts shall be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is most advantageous 

to the program, with price and other factors considered. 

 5.         The District may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based 

procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services whereby competitors' 

qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of 

fair and reasonable compensation.  The method, where price is not used as a selection factor, can only 

be used in procurement of A/E professional services.  It cannot be used to purchase other types of 

services though A/E firms are a potential source to perform the proposed effort. 

 E. Noncompetitive Proposals 

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals allows for solicitation of a proposal from only one source 

and may be used only when one or more of the following circumstances apply:  

 1. The item is available only from a single source 

 2. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting 

from competitive solicitation 

 3. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes 

noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the District 

 4. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined to be inadequate.   

Page 1017 of 1019

DRAFT



7 

 

 Small and Minority Businesses, Women’s Businesses and Labor Surplus area Firms 

 The District shall take affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business 

enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.321. 

Contract/Price Analysis 

 In compliance with 2 CFR 200.323, the District shall perform a cost or price analysis in connection 

with every procurement action in excess of the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, including contract 

modifications.  Cost analysis is defined as evaluating the separate cost elements that make up the total 

price; price analysis is defined as evaluating the total price, without looking at the individual cost 

elements. 

The method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular procurement 

situation; however, the District shall come to an independent estimate prior to receiving bids or 

proposals. 

The District shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price.  To establish a fair and 

reasonable profit, consideration is given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne 

by the contractor, the contractor’s investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record 

of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work.  

Awarding Agency Review 

Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.324, the District shall make available, upon request of the awarding agency or 

pass through agency, technical specifications on proposed procurements where the awarding or pass 

through agency believes such review is needed. 

Bonding Requirements 

For construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts exceeding the Simplified 

Acquisition Threshold, in the event that the awarding agency or pass through agency has not accepted 

the Districts bonding policies, the District shall ensure that the minimum requirements of 2 CFR 

200.325 are followed regarding bid guarantees, performance bonds and payment bonds. 

Maintenance of Procurement Records 

The District shall maintain records sufficient to detail the history of all procurements, including 

records which reflect rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor 

selection, or rejection, and the basis for the contract price. 

Legal 

(Amended: 11/18/03, 12/16/14) FL Statutes Chapter 1001:  1001.41, 120:  120.54, 120.536, 287; DOE Rule 6A-1.012 

Code of Federal Regulations: 2 CFR 200.316; 2 CFR 200.317; 2 CFR 200.318; 2 CFR 200.319; 2 

CFR 200.320; 2 CFR 200.321;  2 CFR 200.322; 2 CFR 200.323; 2 CFR 200.324; 2 CFR 200.325; 2 

CFR 200.326  

 

Page 1018 of 1019

DRAFT



Page 1019 of 1019

DRAFT


